
 

  
Page 1 

 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 

Washoe County District Board of Health 

Date and Time of Meeting:   Thursday, September 26, 2013, 1:00 p.m. 
 

Place of Meeting:     Washoe County Health District 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B 
South Auditorium 
Reno, Nevada  89520 

 

District Board of Health Meeting Agenda 
All items numbered or lettered below are hereby designated for possible action as if the words “for possible action” 
were written next to each item (NRS 241.020). An item listed with asterisk (*) next to it is an item for which no 
action will be taken. 

 

Time 
Agenda 

Item 
No. 

Agenda Item Presenter 

1:00 PM *1. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance Led by Invitation 
 

Mr. Smith 

 *2. Roll Call 
 

Mr. Flores 

Public 
Comment 

*3. Public Comment (limited to three (3) minutes per person) 
 

Mr. Smith 

 4. Approval/Deletions to Agenda for the September 26, 2013 Meeting 
 

Mr. Smith 

 5. Approval/Additions/Deletions to the Minutes of the August 22, 
2013 Regular Meeting 
 

Mr. Smith 

 
 
 
 
 
 

*6. Recognitions  
A. Introduction of New Employee(s) –  

1. Joshua Restori – F/T AQ Spec II – AQM – 9/09/13 
2. Introduction of Jessica Ponce and Andrew Stutman,  

Public Health Associate Program (PHAP) Staff from CDC 
B. Promotions –  

1. Daniel Timmons – AQ Spec II – AQM 
C. Years of Service –  

1. Virginia Williamson – CCHS – 20 years 
D. Retirements – None. 

Mr. Smith and Mr. 
Dick 
 
 
 
 

 7. Proclamations – Approval of a Proclamation Declaring September 
as National Preparedness Month 

Mr. Smith and Mr. 
Dick 

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
1001 East Ninth Street / P.O. Box 11130 

Reno, Nevada  89520 
Telephone   775.328‐2400 • Fax   775.328.2279 

www.washoecounty.us/health

GEORGE HESS, MD 
DENIS HUMPHREYS, OD 

JULIA RATTI 
 

KEVIN DICK 
Interim District Health Officer 

 

LESLIE ADMIRAND 
Deputy District Attorney 

MATT SMITH, Chairman 
KITTY JUNG, Vice Chairman 

GEORGE FURMAN, MD 
SHARON ZADRA 



 

  
Page 2 

 
   

Time 
Agenda 

Item 
No. 

Agenda Item Presenter 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8. Consent Agenda:  Matters which the District Board of Health 
may consider in one motion.  Any exceptions to the Consent 
Agenda must be stated prior to approval. 
 

A. Air Quality Management Cases: 
 

1. Recommendation to Uphold Unappealed Citations to the 
Air Pollution Control Hearing Board: 
 

a. Builtall Construction – Case 1124, NOV 5277 
911 Linda Way, Sparks, NV 89431 

b. Bailor Construction – Case 1125, NOV 5278 
PO Box 21231, Carson City, NV 89721 

c. Bison Construction – Case 1126, NOV 5279 
PO Box 3198, Carson City, NV 89702 

d. Boys & Girls Club – Case 1128, NOV 5274 
2680 East 9th Street, Reno, NV 89512 

e. Montane Building Group – Case 1131, NOV 5383 
5310 Keitzke Lane, Suite 206, Reno, NV 89511 

 

2. Recommendation of Cases Appealed to the Air Pollution 
Control Hearing Board. None. 

 

3. Recommendation for Variance: None. 
 

B. Sewage, Wastewater & Sanitation Cases:   Recommendation 
to Approve Variance Case(s) Presented to the Sewage, 
Wastewater & Sanitation Hearing Board.  None. 

 

C. Budget Amendments / Interlocal Agreements: 
 

1. Approve termination of the Interlocal Agreement between 
the Washoe County Health District and the University of 
Nevada School of Medicine Integrated Clinical Services, 
Inc., and University of Nevada School of Medicine 
Multispecialty Group Practice North, Inc. dba 
MEDSchool Associates North (MSAN), to provide a 
faculty physician to serve as a consultant on pediatric 
Tuberculosis cases effective October 31, 2013. 
 

2. Authorize Travel and Travel Reimbursements for two 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) 
Assignees (Jessica Ponce and Andrew Stutman), for the 
period of July 29, 2013 through August 1, 2015 in a total 
amount not to exceed $2,500. 
 

3. Approval of Subgrant Amendment #2 from the Nevada 
State Health Division for the Women, Infants and 
Children (WIC) Clinic Program for the period of October 
1, 2012 through September 30, 2014 in the total amount of 
$2,143,996 in support of Salaries and Benefits, Travel and 
Training, and Operating Expenditures; and if approved 
authorize the Chairman to execute. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Ms. Albee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ms. Buxton 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

  
Page 3 

 
   

Time 
Agenda 

Item 
No. 

Agenda Item Presenter 

4. Approve Subgrant Amendment #2 from the Nevada 
Department of Health and Human Services, Division of 
Public and Behavioral Health for the period January 1, 
2013 through December 31, 2013 in the amount of 
$99,227, bringing the total CY 2013 funding for the 
Immunization Program Grant (IOs 10028 & 10029), to 
$297,673; and if approved authorize the Chairman to 
execute. 
 

5. Approve Notice of Subgrant Award for the period August 
1, 2013 through July 31, 2014 in the total amount of 
$136,833 in support of the Centers for Disease Control 
and Prevention (CDC) Epidemiology and Laboratory 
Capacity (ELC) Affordable Care Act Federal Program, IO 
10984; and if approved authorize the Chairman to execute. 
 

6. Approval of Subgrant Amendment #2 from the Division 
of Public and Behavioral Health in the total amount of 
$623,386.50 (with $62,338.65 or 10% match) for the 
budget period July 1, 2012 through December 31, 2013 in 
support of the Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and 
Response (ASPR) Hospital Preparedness Program; 
approve amendments totaling an increase of $37,058 in 
both revenue and expense to the FY14 ASPR Hospital 
Preparedness Federal Grant Program, IO 10708; Authorize 
travel and travel reimbursements for non-County 
employees (individuals to be determined) in the 
approximate amount of $3,000 specific to the Northern 
Nevada Disaster Victim Recovery Team Project, 
supported by the grant award; and if approved authorize 
the Chairman to execute. 
 

7. Approval of Subgrant Amendment #2 from the Division 
of Public and Behavioral Health in the total amount of 
$1,045,473 (with $104,547.30 or 10% match) for the 
budget period July 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 in 
support of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 
(CDC) Public Health Preparedness Program; approve 
amendments totaling an increase of $128,275 in both 
revenue and expense to the FY14 CDC Public Health 
Preparedness Federal Grant Program, IO 10713; and if 
approved authorize the Chairman to execute.  
 

8. Proposed Approval of Agreement between the Washoe 
County Health District and Public Health Foundation in 
the amount of $63,900 to conduct part of a Fundamental 
Review of the Health District; and if approved, authorize 
the Chairman to execute the agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ms. Stickney 
 
 
 
 
 

 9. 
 

Air Pollution Control Hearing Board Cases appealed to the 
District Board of Health.   None. 
 
 

Ms. Albee 



 

  
Page 4 

 
   

Time 
Agenda 

Item 
No. 

Agenda Item Presenter 

 10. Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority:  
    
A. Review and Acceptance of the Operations and Financial 

Reports for August, 2013; and 
 

*B.  Update of REMSA’s Community Activities Since  
        August, 2013 
 

 
 
Mr. Gubbels 

 11. Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Direction to Staff regarding 
Emergency Medical Services (“EMS”), Including 
Recommendations Contained in the TriData Report and Various 
Other EMS Studies  
 

Dr. Todd 

 12. Request and possible approval of extension of time to complete 
REMSA Franchise Agreement Negotiations 
 

Mr. Dick 

 13. Review and Acceptance of the Monthly Public Health Fund 
Revenue and Expenditure Report for August, 2013 
 

Ms. Stickney 

 14. Update on Citation and Enforcement regarding Prevention of Bear 
Activity within Populated Areas 
 

Mr. English 

 *15. Presentation on National Association of Local Boards of Health 
(NALBOH) 21st Annual Conference held August 14-16, 2013 in 
Salt Lake City, Utah 
 

Dr. Furman 

 *16. Informational Update regarding Nevada Revised Statute 
Requirements for District Board of Health Appointment of a 
District Health Officer, and the Washoe County Job Specification 
for the District Health Officer Position 
 

Chair Smith and  
Ms. Admirand 

 *17. Staff Reports and Program Updates 
 

A. Director, Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness 
Communicable Disease; Public Health Preparedness; 
Emergency Medical Services; and Vital Statistics 

 

 
 
Dr. Todd 

  B. Director, Community and Clinical Health Services  
Clinical Programs and Non-Communicable Disease Updates  
 

Mr. Kutz 

  C. Director, Environmental Health Services  
Food Program; Land Development; Solid Waste / Special 
Events; and Vector-Borne Disease Program 

 

Mr. Sack 

  D. Acting Director, Air Quality Management  
Air Quality; Planning and Monitoring Activity; Permitting 
Activity; Compliance & Inspection Activity; and Permitting & 
Enforcement Activity  
 

Ms. Albee 
 
 

  E. Administrative Health Services Officer  
Technology and WIC Updates 
 

Ms. Stickney 

  F. Interim District Health Officer  
REMSA / EMS, Fundamental Review, Staffing, Permit 
Software Project, Cross Divisional Initiatives, Other Events 
and Activities, and Health District Media Contacts and 
Outreach 

Mr. Dick 



 

  
Page 5 

 
   

Time 
Agenda 

Item 
No. 

Agenda Item Presenter 

Board  
Comment 

*18. Limited to Announcements or Issues for Future Agendas 
 

Mr. Smith 

 19. Emergency Items 
 

Mr. Dick 

Public 
Comment 

*20. Public Comment (limited to three (3) minutes per person).  No 
action may be taken. 
 

Mr. Smith 

 
 

21. Adjournment Mr. Smith 

 
Business Impact Statement:  A Business Impact Statement is available at the Washoe County Health District for those items 
denoted with a “$.” 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, combined with other items, withdrawn from the agenda,  moved to the agenda of 
another later meeting; moved to or from the Consent section, or they may be voted on in a block.  Items with a specific time 
designation will not be heard prior to the stated time, but may be heard later.  Items listed in the Consent section of the agenda are 
voted on as a block and will not be read or considered separately unless withdrawn from the Consent. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
The District Board of Health Meetings are accessible to the disabled.  Disabled members of the public who require special 
accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested to notify Administrative Health Services in writing at the Washoe 
County Health District, PO Box 1130, Reno, NV 89520-0027, or by calling 775.328.2416, 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Time Limits:  Public comments are welcomed during the Public Comment periods for all matters whether listed on the agenda or 
not.  All comments are limited to three (3) minutes per person.  Additionally, public comment of three (3) minutes per person 
may be heard during individual action items on the agenda.  Persons are invited to submit comments in writing on the agenda 
items and/or attend and make comment on that item at the Board meeting.  Persons may not allocate unused time to other 
speakers. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Response to Public Comments: The Board of Health can deliberate or take action only if a matter has been listed on an agenda 
properly posted prior to the meeting.  During the public comment period, speakers may address matters listed or not listed on the 
published agenda.  The Open Meeting Law does not expressly prohibit responses to public comments by the Board of Health.  
However, responses from the Board members to unlisted public comment topics could become deliberation on a matter without 
notice to the public.  On the advice of legal counsel and to ensure the public has notice of all matters the Board of Health will 
consider, Board members may choose not to respond to public comments, except to correct factual inaccuracies, ask for Health 
District Staff action or to ask that a matter be listed on a future agenda.  The Board of Health may do this either during the public 
comment item or during the following item:  “Board Comments – Limited to Announcement or Issues for future Agendas.”  
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Pursuant to NRS 241.020, Notice of this meeting was posted at the following locations: 
 
Washoe County Health District, 1001 E. 9th St., Reno, NV 

Reno City Hall, 1 E. 1st St., Reno, NV   

Sparks City Hall, 431 Prater Way, Sparks, NV 

Washoe County Administration Building, 1001 E. 9th St, Reno, NV 

Washoe County Health District Website www.washoecounty.us/health 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

Supporting materials are available to the public at the Washoe County Health District located at 1001 E. 9th Street, in Reno, 
Nevada.  Mr. Bill Flores, Administrative Secretary to the District Board of Health is the person designated by the Washoe County 
District Board of Health to respond to requests for supporting materials.  Mr. Flores is located at the Washoe County Health 
District and may be reached by telephone at (775) 328-2427 or by email at wflores@washoecounty.us.  Supporting materials are 
also available at the Washoe County Health District Website www.washoecounty.us/health  pursuant to the requirements of NRS 
241.020. 



  
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENT: Chair Matt Smith, Vice Chair Kitty Jung, Dr. George Furman, Dr. George Hess, Dr. Denis Humphreys, Council Member Ratti,  

and Council Member Sharon Zadra 
 
ABSENT: None. 
 
STAFF: 

Leslie Admirand, Deputy District Attorney 
Kevin Dick, Interim District Health Officer 
Eileen Stickney, Administrative Health Services Officer, AHS 
Charlene Albee, Acting Division Director, AQM  
Daniel Inouye, Monitoring and Planning Branch Chief, AQM  
Steve Kutz, Division Director, CCHS 

Laurie Griffey, Administrative Assistant I, AHS 
Patsy Buxton, Fiscal Compliance Officer, AHS 
Kelli Seals, Health Educator, CCHS 
David Boland, Senior Environmental Health Specialist, EHS 
James English, Environmental Health Specialist Supervisor, EHS 

Robert Sack, Division Director, EHS 
Randall Todd, DrPH, Division Director, EPHP 
Phil Ulibarri, Public Information Officer, AHS 
Steve Fisher, Department Computer Application Specialist, AHS 

 

Bill Flores, Recording Secretary  
 
TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

1:02 pm 
1, 2 

Meeting Called to 
Order, Pledge of 
Allegiance and Roll 
Call 
 

Chair Smith called the meeting to order. Roll call was taken and a quorum noted. The Pledge of 
Allegiance was led by Council Member Zadra.   
 

 

3. Public Comment None. 
 

 

4. Approval / 
Deletions – Agenda 
– August 22, 2013 

Chair Smith called for any deletions to the Agenda of the August 22, 2013 DBOH Meeting. 
 
 
 
 

Council Member 
Ratti moved, 
seconded by Dr. 
Hess, that the August 
22, 2013, Agenda be 
approved as 
presented.     
 
MOTION CARRIED  

Washoe County District Board of Health 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

August 22, 2013 

 

wflores
Typewritten Text
DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 5



 
 
 

           Page 2 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

5. Approval / 
Additions / 
Deletions to the 
Minutes of the 
June 27, 2013 
Regular Meeting 
and July 25, 2013 
Regular Meeting 
 

Chair Smith called for any additions or corrections to the Minutes of the June 27, 2013 Regular 
Meeting and July 25, 2013 Regular Meeting. 
 
 

Council Member 
Ratti moved, 
seconded by Vice 
Chair Jung, that the 
Minutes of the June 
27, 2013 Regular 
Meeting and July 25, 
2013 Regular 
Meeting be approved 
as presented. 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
Council Member 
Zadra noted 
abstention from 
approval of the July 
25, 2013 Minutes. 
 

6. Recognitions Mr. Dick and Chair Smith made the following recognitions: 
 
A. Introduction of new employee(s) – None. 
B. Years of Service – None. 
C. Retirements –  

1. Stacey Akurosawa – EPHP – 16 years 
D. Recognitions –  

1. Certificate of Senatorial Recognition and plaque presented to the Washoe County Health 
District in recognition of sponsoring the Keep Truckee Meadows Beautiful “Beautiful 
Business Program” accepted by Bob Sack and Jim English of EHS. 

 

 

7. Proclamations 
 

Healthy Living Week – September 15 – 21, 2013 – Proclamation accepted by Kelli Seals, Health 
Educator, CCHS. 
 
Ms. Seals presented handouts for upcoming events (filed). 

Vice Chair Jung 
moved, seconded by 
Council Member 
Zadra, to approve the 
proclamation as 
presented. 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 

8. Consent Agenda 
 
 

A. Air Quality Management Cases: 
 

1. Recommendation to Uphold Unappealed Citations to the Air Pollution Control Hearing 
Board: None. 

 
 
 



 
 
 

           Page 3 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2. Recommendation of Cases Appealed to the Air Pollution Control Hearing Board. None. 

 
3. Recommendation for Variance: None. 

 
B. Sewage, Wastewater & Sanitation Cases:   Recommendation to Approve Variance Case(s) 

Presented to the Sewage, Wastewater & Sanitation Hearing Board.  
 

Variance Case No. 1-13S 
Mr. Richard Cook 
4890 Turning Leaf Way 
Reno, NV 89519 
 

C. Budget Amendments / Interlocal Agreements: 
 

a. Approval of Notice of Grant Award dated June 21, 2013 from the Department of Health and 
Human Services Public Health Service for the period June 30, 2013 to June 29, 2014 in 
the amount of $799,838 in support of the Family Planning Program; Approval of 
amendments totaling an increase of $14,838 in both revenue and expense to the FY 14 
Title X Family Planning Federal Grant Program (IO 10025). 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dr. Humphreys 
moved, seconded by 
Council Member 
Zadra, that the 
Consent Agenda be 
approved as 
presented in a single 
motion. 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

9. Air Pollution 
Control Hearing 
Board Cases 
Appealed to the 
District Board of 
Health. 

There were no cases for consideration this month. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

10. Regional 
Emergency Medical 
Services Authority: 
 
A. Review and 

Acceptance of 
the Operations 
and Financial 
Reports for July, 
2013; and 

 
 
 

Mr. Jim Gubbels, President of REMSA, reported that in July, 2013, Priority 1 Compliance was at 
92%, and Priority 2 Compliance was at 96%. Looking at Priority 1 Compliance by zone, the 8-
minute zone was at 92%, the 15-minute zone was at 97%, and the 20-minute zone was at 98%. 
Looking at the average bill for the month for Care Flight, the average bill was $7,798, bringing the 
year-to-date total to $7,798. On the ground side, the average bill for the month was $1,066, 
bringing the year-to-date ground average to $1,066. 
 
Mr. Gubbels provided an update from a request from the Board of Health on July 25, 2013 
regarding annexations. In 2004, there were many annexations taking place in the community which 
remained quite frequent until 2008. The Health District and REMSA got together to determine how 
they were going to deal with the influx of annexations. They called other ambulance companies 
across the nation, but there was not a lot of experience with annexations. This region was one of 
the few places dealing with this issue. Next, they went to both the planning committees in Sparks 
and Reno to understand how they deal with annexations and received explanations of their process 

 
Council Member 
Ratti moved, 
seconded by Council 
Member Zadra, to 
accept the REMSA 
Operations and 
Financial Report for 
July 2013 as 
presented.  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 



 
 
 

           Page 4 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BOARD COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

with building and development of infrastructure. They then decided to develop a plan and create a 
process. First, the Health District would notify REMSA every time there was an annexation, and 
REMSA would have sixty days to look at the planned annexation and respond. Mr. Gubbels 
provided a handout (filed) illustrating annexations from 2004 to present with parcel number and 
ordinance number. These annexations are either included in an 8-minute zone or included within a 
study area. Out of 159 annexations on the list, 85 have been placed into the 8-minute zone, and 74 
have been placed into the study area. From there, they developed a process to monitor and follow 
(filed). The annexations placed into the study area are studied to examine performance if placed 
into the 8-minute zone. As the cities look at public safety needs and placing of resources as the 
community grows, REMSA does the same. Double Diamond is a good example where they are just 
now looking at whether they should position a fire station in that area; Verdi and Spanish Springs 
are other examples. There is a fire station out in Wingfield Springs but not on Pyramid Highway. As 
the population grows, REMSA has to determine how they move forward and serve those people. 
Each month, REMSA sends a report to the Health District displaying who fell into the study zone. 
Every six months, they sit down and look at it cumulatively to see if they are going to change any of 
those zones. For example, during the month of July, 2013, there were 17 transports into the test 
area zones. Those test area zones are 15-minute zones, one is a 20-minute zone, and they studied 
them to an 8-minute zone. Out of those 17 calls, out of a total of 3,513 transports, representing 
.005%, they were late on 9 of the calls to the 8-minute standard, and 8 of the calls were on-time for 
a 47% compliance. There were two calls in a 15-minute zone in Arrowcreek Parkway. Both of those 
calls were on-time. Even though they are in a 15-minute assigned zone, they were on-time to a 
studied 8-minute response. There were two calls in a 15-minute zone in Double Diamond. They 
were late to an 8-minute standard, but they were on-time to a 15-minute standard. One call was .2 
seconds late for an 8-minute standard, and the other one was 56 second late for an 8-minute 
standard. Therefore, Mr. Gubbels explained that they are not talking about a huge amount of time 
behind the 8-minute zone even though it is a defined 15-minute zone. In Northeast Sparks, there 
were five calls in that area for the month of which one call was late, coming in at 80%. That late call 
was four minutes past the 8-minute standard. That call was in a currently defined 20-minute zone, 
and they were there within 12 minutes and 43 seconds. These areas are not just automatically 
placed into the 8-minute zone due to compliance. For every one call late, he needs to be on-time 
ten times to make a 90% compliance. He pointed out that REMSA is not taking this lightly; this is 
something that is ongoing and is being studied.  
 
Dr. Hess requested clarification on the color-coded map filed. 
 
Mr. Gubbels explained that all of the pink are 8-minute response zones, all of the orange are 15-
minute response zones, and all of the yellow are 20-minute response zones. The study areas are 
in blue with some in Somersett, Verdi, Cold Springs, Sparks, Double Diamond, and a little bit of 
Arrowcreek Parkway. No different when looking at public safety services or city services, as these 
areas enlarge and develop with transportation and population base present, REMSA changes their 
resources to meet those needs. In the mean time, they are studying, no different than the cities 
would study, when there will be the economical opportunity to go ahead and change those 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

           Page 5 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B. Update of 

REMSA’s 
Community 
Activities Since 
July, 2013 

response zones.  
 
Chair Smith asked if Mr. Gubbels had the fire response times for all of those areas. 
 
Mr. Gubbels responded that Dr. Todd had taken the period of April and matched data to determine 
if somebody arrived within the 8-minute standard. That one month study showed that 94% of the 
time, one of the agencies arrived within an 8-minute period of time. The importance of that study is 
to determine if there are gaps within the system. That was very limited, as we only had one month 
of shared data, and Dr. Todd wants to expand that further. One of the questions Mr. Gubbels 
raised in the EMS Working Group was if there are gaps in the community. If there are gaps, then 
either fire first response or REMSA needs to determine how those gaps are filled. He explained 
that the report was helpful in providing a picture that, between the response agencies combined, 
they are meeting response goals 94% of the time or greater. Even the unincorporated areas with 
Truckee Meadows Fire still show that one of them is still getting there within that period of time.  
 
Dr. Humphreys asked how the term “best effort” applies in this system. 
 
Mr. Gubbels responded that “best effort” does not apply here, because the annexations were 
defined as unincorporated areas and are now incorporated.  
 
Dr. Hess clarified that the white area on the map would be the “best effort” area. 
 
Mr. Gubbels responded in the affirmative but clarified that this area runs all the way to the Oregon 
border and down to Carson City as well as East and West. 
 
Vice Chair Jung asked if the Board could have a copy of the list to which Mr. Gubbels was 
referring. 
 
Mr. Gubbels responded that the list may be reviewed at the Health District, but, because it has 
addresses, it cannot be released per HIPAA. 
 
Council Member Ratti asked if a list could be created listing the 159 annexation areas and which 
ones were placed in the 8-minute zone and which were placed in the study area. 
 
Mr. Gubbels responded in the affirmative and provided a copy of that information to place in the 
record. 
 
Mr. Gubbels announced that REMSA received their reaccreditation from the International 
Academies of Emergency Dispatch of which the document was provided within the REMSA report. 
Internationally, REMSA is one of 4% that have this accreditation; they have maintained this 
accreditation since 2001. He is very proud of the REMSA staff to be able to continue to reach those 
measurements and meet these reaccreditations.      



 
 
 

           Page 6 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

11. Presentation, 
Discussion, and 
Possible Direction to 
Staff regarding 
Emergency Medical 
Services (“EMS”), 
Including 
Recommendations 
Contained in the 
TriData Report and 
Various Other EMS 
Studies 
  
BOARD COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Randall Todd, DrPH, reported that the Board has been provided a fairly brief report of the last EMS 
Working Group due to the meeting’s short length. He pointed out that he thinks it is a major 
accomplishment that the group got the resupply agreement signed. It had been the topic of 
discussion at several of these working groups. What REMSA has put together and what the fire 
first response agencies have agreed to try, at least on a 90-day trial basis, is a substantial 
improvement in terms of accountability for how these supplies get used by one agency and then 
resupplied by another agency. Dr. Todd noted that at the time of this meeting they had not received 
any of the 911 data that they were hoping to be able to merge in with the earlier study presented to 
the Board previously. They have received some data but not all; he believes there are some 
technical challenges in pulling the data the way they need it. Dr. Todd has offered his staff to assist 
if desired. They will continue to pull that data and refine the picture that was presented in the 
PowerPoint previously, providing better data going forward.  
 
Chair Smith noted that he received a call from the Reno Mayor who explained that REMSA is not 
reimbursing supplies to the Fire Department. He asked if that was the case. 
 
Dr. Todd responded in the negative.  
 
Mr. Gubbels responded that the supply exchange agreement is very old between the agencies, 
created in 1996. It is an exchange for supply goods at the scene. At that time, the fire service was 
supposed to complete a form indicating what supplies had been used, handing it to REMSA, which 
never occurred. The part of exchanging supplies did occur, but no documentation ever occurred. 
He pointed out that he needs to be accountable to his Board for the amount of supplies being used, 
and he is also asking the fire departments to be accountable. In the past, the fire department was 
basically taking the supplies that they felt they needed, and there was no accountability or 
measurement. Mr. Gubbels explained that he could not report how much money he spent last year 
in resupplying fire first response. Furthermore, some medications were being exchanged, and that 
cannot be done by law. He asked the fire chiefs back in June to work with him to change this 
process. At that point, medications were taken off the list, and there is another group of prescribed 
items, IV supplies, that by law cannot be exchanged. He admitted that even he did not know that. 
IV supplies are a prescription along with airway supplies. The first agreement allowed sending over 
a list of supplies used once per week which would then be replaced. With the items that cannot be 
exchanged, they will be tracked and reimbursed monetarily. Then, they agreed to reimburse 
monetarily on all items. REMSA agreed to reimburse on their cost. They did not like that idea, 
because REMSA buys supplies in bulk, resulting in different pricing. Now, the newly signed 
agreement involves fire agencies tracking what they use on a case. They actually login to 
REMSA’s supply system, enter the run number, the date, and what they used. Every month, 
REMSA will monitor those entries, audit some of them, and then provide cash reimbursement for 
soft good supplies, IV supplies, and airway supplies used. This is a 90-day trial period. It puts 
accountability on both the fire side and the REMSA side so that they know exactly what is being 
spent.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

           Page 7 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

Council Member Ratti asked if REMSA staff ever take supplies from Fire.  
 
Mr. Gubbels responded in the negative. He continued that the one thing that will be exchanged at 
the scene is immobilization devices. Those are the backboards that REMSA purchased for the 
entire community. The Fire Department carries backboards, and REMSA carries backboards, 
including C collars. These are exchanged provided that they do not get depleted. They carry three 
in the ambulance, but once they get to the hospital, the backboard goes with the patient, creating 
the need to resupply the ambulance.  
 
Council Member Zadra asked if there was concurrence with the City that the IVs and drugs 
cannot be legally transferred. 
 
Mr. Gubbels responded that medication was an issue that obtained agreement that they will be 
responsible for their own. The IV and airway supplies will have remuneration through dollars.  
 
Ms. Zadra asked if this issue was just with the City of Reno or others as well. 
 
Mr. Gubbels responded that they began having conversations in June. The chiefs were more 
amenable, but when they got it down to their supply level, it came back up the chain of command 
with the chiefs voicing more concern. He had thought they were done in June, but now they are. It 
was signed with an effective date of August 15, 2013. No one has called him. Therefore, as far as 
he knows, the system is working. 
 
Ms. Zadra clarified if after this 90-day trial period this process will just continue if everything is 
working.  
 
Mr. Gubbels responded in the affirmative.    
 
Ms. Zadra asked if it will require a policy action from the Board. 
 
Mr. Gubbels responded in the negative and added that none of this is in the Franchise.  
 
Mr. Dick pointed out that Dr. Todd has included the resupply agreement in the Board packet and is 
signed by all of the fire chiefs. He thinks that this is a positive accomplishment of the EMS Working 
Group. 
 
Chair Smith asked Council Member Zadra if she could make sure that the Reno Mayor gets this 
information. 
 
Ms. Zadra agreed.  
 
Dr. Hess explained that it made no sense to him why the Sheriff wants to have medical dispatch. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

           Page 8 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

He asked for clarification on the Sheriff’s position.  
 
Dr. Todd offered to very briefly summarize the Sheriff’s position as he has heard it several times. 
He explained that the Sheriff maintains that when a call comes in to 911, that is purportedly a 
medical call, what might not be immediate apparent is that it could be a law enforcement issue. As 
an example, as provided by the Sheriff at the last meeting, a call came in to 911 as an apparent 
cardiac arrest. That is clearly a medical issue requiring an ambulance to be sent as quickly as 
possible. Therefore, dispatch will disconnect the call once REMSA is on the line and maintaining 
contact with the caller while the ambulance is en route. This is necessary so that pre-arrival 
instructions can be given, CPR can be started, where minutes and second can be critical with this 
type of event. However, as things continued to unfold, it became known that this incident was 
perhaps not a cardiac arrest but instead a self-inflicted gunshot wound. Apparently, the assertion 
was that nobody had asked about the location of the gun. When you have a gunshot wound, 
whether or not self-inflicted, and you do not know the whereabouts of the gun, then you have 
personnel potentially being in harm’s way. It has been difficult to understand what percentage of 
the time does this happen. There were several examples like this provided. You can follow the logic 
that the Sheriff would be using, but Mr. Gubbels brought up the question if any of these incidents 
have been forwarded for review. The Sheriff’s solution to this issue is that his office takes over 
dispatch. Dr. Todd explained that his solution at the meeting was that he believes they would all 
agree that better and timely exchange of information between the agencies would be useful in 
addressing the type of scenario that the Sheriff was describing. Dr. Todd argued, and the Sheriff 
agreed with him, that Mr. Gubbels’ proposal was also a valid one. Looking at these specifics and 
finding some ways to do process improvement on how information is gathered as an event is 
unfolding, would also be useful. He thinks that they perhaps made some progress there. He also 
pointed out that the Sheriff does do emergency medical dispatch for the North Lake Tahoe Fire 
Protection District, falling outside the Franchise Area and acting as its own transport agency.  
 
Council Member Zadra requested clarification that the working group is going to attempt to 
perform some evaluation behind improving the current system versus changing dispatch.     
 
Dr. Todd responded that he believes that there is an agreement that they need better and timelier 
information. The TriData report suggested that this could happen through collocation of dispatch, 
meaning that REMSA’s dispatch could simply be moved to the location of 911 dispatch. However, 
the TriData report also very clearly said that this could be done virtually. There are good examples 
of this occurring successfully in a virtual way. This means that the computer-aided dispatch (CAD) 
system that the PSAP is using to dispatch law enforcement and fire with a transfer to REMSA 
dispatch for EMD, could be linked with REMSA so that information inputted would immediately 
appear in both dispatch systems. Dr. Todd personally believes, and he noted that this is an area 
where they do not have consensus, that this would solve all of the problems that the Sheriff has 
identified as reasons why he should take over the dispatch operation. He also thinks that it would 
address many of the concerns that REMSA has expressed, from a medical standpoint, as to why 
they should retain EMD. In a very real sense, doing emergency medical dispatch and providing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

           Page 9 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

emergency medical services is the practice of medicine outside of the hospital, and the dispatch is 
a critical piece of that. He explained that the Sheriff makes some valid points, and REMSA makes 
some equally valid points. Where it comes apart is in how they resolve those points. He personally 
believes that technology can resolve that; he does not think the Sheriff is quite so sure of that. 
 
Ms. Zadra asked for confirmation that the EMS Working Group is committed to continue to 
evaluate.  
 
Dr. Todd responded in the affirmative. He is going to take the Sheriff’s agreement, and he is hoping 
the Mr. Gubbels is going to take the Sheriff’s agreement, and look at both as a yes. They should 
also take a look at the run numbers that he was citing so that REMSA can evaluate on a case-by-
case basis. He hears the Sheriff saying that we need to look at this from a systems standpoint, not 
a case-by-case standpoint, but he thinks that REMSA is also correct that looking at specific cases 
can be useful for affecting process improvements. 
 
Ms. Zadra asked what is best practice for communities of similar size. 
 
Dr. Todd explained that there are so many differences from community to community. He thinks 
that we have a very fine emergency medical dispatch system with REMSA that is state of the art. 
The fact that it is staffed with people who are certified as EMTs or paramedics and who have 
significant field experience makes them very well able. EMD does require the ability to provide 
specific instructions and make modifications based on information obtained from the caller. There 
are many communities who use their PSAP for dispatching fire, law enforcement, and ambulance. 
He explained that if they did not have the state of the art dispatch that they have for EMD, that 
might be a good way to go. However, he explained that they have this system, it is working very 
effectively and has worked very effectively for a number of years. He noted that he has a hard time 
seeing why they should be changing this system except through technology to make it better and 
more transparent across the disciplines. 
 
Ms. Zadra asked if Dr. Todd is aware if any of the EMS recommendations will be on the next 
September 16th concurrent meeting agenda between the cities, County, school district, and 
potentially the Health Board. 
 
Mr. Dick responded that he has been told that it will not be on the concurrent meeting agenda for 
September 16th, and the Board of Health will not be part of the concurrent meeting. The 120-day 
period that commenced at the June 10th concurrent meeting is going to be coming to a close on or 
about October 2nd. He has continued to meet with the City and County Managers, or their 
representatives, to discuss the approach forward with the modernization of the Franchise 
Agreement, and they do not see how they can get to closure on this in that timeframe. They do not 
have any concurrent meeting that will be occurring before that timeframe; therefore, they have 
discussed working together to bring pretty much an identical item to each of the governing bodies 
to request an extension so that they can continue to work on the Franchise negotiations. In regard 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

           Page 10 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

to the Franchise negotiations, they are working together with the City and County Managers and 
have developed an outline format structure for a franchise agreement where they have looked at a 
lot of different agreements in place in different counties in California and the types of components 
that are included in those agreements. They are trying to incorporate the types of components they 
think are important to have a more comprehensive and detailed franchise agreement than is 
currently in place. They are also assessing the overall EMS structure and coming up with some 
conceptual structures of how EMS oversight might work over all of the EMS agencies, not just 
oversight of the REMSA Franchise Agreement. He communicated this information to the REMSA 
Board at their most recent meeting. The Managers had intended to visit with the REMSA Board on 
August 16th, but they pushed that back to September 20th, due to Shaun Carey’s injury. He also 
mentioned that he received the Board of County Commissioners’ August 27, 2013 meeting agenda, 
and Item 14 is a status report on the EMS Working Group, including progress on previous direction, 
etc. It says that the Sheriff and Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District will be reporting on that 
item at the request of Chairman Humke. Mr. Dick expressed that he found that to be odd since they 
are working with the County Manager on this project.  
 
Chair Smith commented that when he was in front of the County Commission, when 
Commissioner Breternitz was there, Commissioner Breternitz asked him if after taking a look at a 
report, if he found anything in there that could better the system, if he would be willing to partake in 
that. Chair Smith explained that he told him that he would absolutely be willing. He explained that 
this EMD issue, the only way to better it, or get close to it, is to be accredited and have every single 
person up there at dispatch be a paramedic or EMT. He expressed frustration, because he feels 
that this effort is not bettering things; it is a downgrade. It is all about bettering the system.  
 
Dr. Todd mentioned that he believes the EMD that is at REMSA is accredited. 
 
Chair Smith clarified that the Sheriff should have every single person up there at least a 
paramedic to take that call and also be accredited even to be equal to what is in place right now. 
He added that it is not making the system better by giving it to the Sheriff for the one or two phone 
calls where there might be a gunshot, etc. 
 
Council Member Ratti commented that she thinks they all need to be cautious about drawing any 
lines in the sand this early in the process, because the working group is still working on it. She 
thinks that there still could be a great collaborative solution that could come from the ongoing 
conversations. She also mentioned that she agrees that medical dispatch is the practice of 
medicine and that they need to be very careful in toying with that. She pointed out that it is the first 
step in the data collection process. She added that when they are only talking about dispatch, they 
also need to make sure that they are talking about it as part of accountability in the data collection 
process that has failed them in the past in terms of being able to blend the information from fire 
departments, law enforcement, and REMSA. She does not want to be in a place where she has to 
pay $60,000 to an outside consultant to tell her what is going on in her own community. She does 
not want to be in a place again where staff is spending many hours with an intern to look at one 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

           Page 11 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

month’s worth of data. She added that they need to get to a place where they can have regular, 
transparent data that starts with a shared dispatch or shared dispatch protocol and good 
communication between the two. It has to be examined globally in terms of a starting point for the 
data collection for everybody, including unique identifiers for each rollout and vehicle locators. The 
final decision has to be holistic to make sure that data can be collected, showing red flags. Having 
annexations that happen at the pace they did between 2004 and 2008, she does not want to wait 
until 2013 to know if there is a problem in the system. It is only through the regular collection of that 
data that they will know whether they have gaps in the system on a regular basis.  
 
Dr. Todd responded that the good news is that he is hearing consensus around the EMS Working 
Group table on everything Ms. Ratti just said; there is agreement that they need the data, they 
need the AVL (automatic vehicle location), and they need it timely. Unfortunately, they are about a 
year to a year and a half away from a full blown technological solution to that. They would probably 
be that far away even if they dismantled REMSA dispatch and collocated. There is no fast answer; 
the time that he and his staff are spending crunching some data and trying to match things up is a 
band-aid. Every time they get some answers, additional questions are raised, which is not a bad 
thing. However, they do not want to continue this band-aid effort. They will get it down to where it is 
a little bit less labor-intensive so that they can get a little bit more data, but it is not the final 
solution. The really good news is that no one is disagreeing on what is needed; there is a little bit of 
disagreement as to how they go about accomplishing that.  
 
Ms. Ratti commented that she is merely saying that those things also inform what our dispatch 
should look like.  
 
Chair Smith asked since it is a year and a half before they are ready to go, what has to happen. 
 
Dr. Todd responded that in order to put in place a CAD-to-CAD linkage, the PSAPs need to 
upgrade their CAD software. There is the collocated 911 center; Washoe County Sheriff collocated 
with Reno ECom Dispatch Center. In Sparks, there is the Sparks 911 Dispatch.  
 
Mr. Smith asked who needs to upgrade in order to make it work. 
 
Dr. Todd responded that those two need to upgrade. The Sheriff and Reno are currently using a 
CAD system that is called “Tiburon.” It is at the end of its life. It makes no sense to try to upgrade 
and spend money putting in a CAD-to-CAD linkage with REMSA when that software has to go 
away. Fortunately, the Sheriff has obtained grant funding to upgrade the Tiburon system so that it 
will be worth putting in a CAD-to-CAD linkage. REMSA would need to obtain the software 
necessary to link their TriTech CAD system so that it will talk in real-time to the upgraded Tiburon 
system. Sparks is using the West Covina system which is a fairly antiquated CAD system. There 
appears to be consensus that it also needs to be upgraded. The Sheriff hopes that the City of 
Sparks will decide to upgrade to the same version of Tiburon software that he is using. That would 
certainly provide some interoperability and make it easier to shift calls if one PSAP goes down. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

           Page 12 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

They are probably nine months to a year away from the installation of the upgrade to Tiburon for 
Reno and Washoe County. He does not know where Sparks is with theirs.  
 
Mr. Smith asked for clarification that the Sheriff wants to take EMD and place it in an antiquated 
system and do the dispatch. 
 
Dr. Todd clarified that the Sheriff wants to take it and put it into a new Tiburon system. 
 
Mr. Smith commented that if he has a new Tiburon then they can do CAD-to-CAD. 
 
Dr. Todd responded in agreement. 
 
Mr. Smith added that they cannot do CAD-to-CAD now, because they are not upgraded enough to 
do it. Therefore, what he wants to do, since they do not have the software to do the CAD, he is 
going to take it and do the EMD. 
 
Dr. Todd explained that that would presuppose there is a timeline on this effort, and he has not 
heard anybody talk timelines. He has heard them talk conceptually if EMD should be collocated 
with the Sheriff’s Office. The other thing that has not been raised is where this leaves Sparks. 
 
Mr. Smith commented that this comes back to the same question of whether or not this system will 
be better, which he cannot yet see. Until they get upgraded, he explained, it is not going to be 
better. 
 
Council Member Zadra commented that there may be an opportunity for discussion with the 
Sheriff federal framework.  
 
Dr. Todd added that Stacey Akurosawa’s retirement took his EMS staff down to zero. Therefore, 
they have expedited with the Human Resources Department, who has posted the vacancy, and he 
has been able to bring in an intermittent-hourly employee who is learning as she goes along. He 
also has to get her EMD-certified in order to take on some of the auditing processes that they do to 
validate some of these numbers that Mr. Gubbels provides to the Board every month.  
 
Dr. Humphreys asked how often the EMS Working Group is meeting, and who are the members 
of this working group. 
 
Dr. Todd responded that they have been meeting more or less a couple times a month. They had 
some scheduling issues; the meeting he just reported took place on August 9th, and the next 
meeting will be held on September 6th. Normally, they get together for a couple hours every couple 
weeks. This came out of an earlier concurrent meeting of the boards. The two City Managers, the 
County Manager, and the District Health Officer were assigned to the working group. In practice, 
there has been some expansion of that. For example, he attends that group regularly, the cities 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

           Page 13 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

and the County have brought in their respective Fire Chiefs, and the City of Sparks Assistant City 
Manager, Steve Driscoll, has been routinely there and has taken over chairmanship during Mr. 
Carey’s recovery. The Reno City Manager brings along the City of Reno Finance Director, Robert 
Chisel. It is a good group, and he believes they have the right people to debate and discuss and 
hopefully get to some consensus and improvements.  
 
Dr. Humphreys asked if REMSA is represented in this working group. 
 
Dr. Todd responded that REMSA was not initially but is now represented as well. Mr. Gubbels is 
regularly in attendance at that meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NO MOTION 
 

12. PUBLIC HEARING: 
Proposed Approval 
and Adoption of 
Amendments to the 
Washoe County 
District Board of 
Health Regulations 
Governing Air 
Quality 
Management, 
Section 040.051, 
Woodstove / 
Fireplace Insert 
Emissions, and 
Section 040.052, 
Outdoor Wood-Fired 
Boilers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Charlene Albee, Acting Division Director of Air Quality Management, noted that before the Board 
today are some proposed amendments to the District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air 
Quality Management, specifically Section 040.51, which regulates the woodstove / fireplace insert 
emissions, and Section 040.52, regarding outdoor wood-fired boilers. The proposed amendments 
for the woodstove Section 051 is primarily to bring commercial facilities that have solid fuel burning 
devices into compliance with the regulations in the same way that residential properties have been 
done for a number of years. This has been happening more and more recently with the old historic 
homes in Downtown Reno and Sparks that are being converted to business property. The zoning 
has changed prior to them becoming a business; once the zoning changes to commercial, they no 
longer have any authority to make sure that the solid fuel burning devices in those houses are up to 
the cleanest standards. They end up with basically a doughnut in the neighborhood where all of the 
residential homes around it have clean burning devices and there is one old smoker in the middle 
which causes neighborhood complaints regarding why theirs has to be clean when that one does 
not. What really pushed this into the forefront is they actually had a new warehouse that was being 
built out in Sparks, in the industrial area, where there was a desire to have a caretaker’s residence 
built in the back of the warehouse with a wood stove inside the residence. Since it was on a 
commercial property, they could not make them put in a clean burning stove, potentially creating 
some real smoke impacts for the businesses in the area. Luckily, the fire department stepped in 
and did not allow that to happen, alleviating the problem. However, this incident really brought the 
issue to their attention that they needed to have the commercial properties brought in. They are not 
asking them to do anything that the private residences are not already doing. The other change 
that is put into this 051 amendment is in Subsection 051.C.3.c., as a result of the Caughlin Fire and 
the Washoe fires, they had made a policy decision to allow the people who had lost their homes to 
rebuild with whatever they had preexisting. They decided that it would be best to build that into the 
regulations so that they have something as a foundation to stand upon. Therefore, that is why the 
statement of being rebuilt following a natural disaster was included. The rest of the changes in that 
section are really just cleanup language. Section 040.052, Outdoor Wood-Fired Boilers, is 
proposing to be renamed as Hydronic Heaters. This is actually the result of a citizen that came in 
who is looking to build an off-the-grid house out in the Northeast end of Palomino Valley, 
approximately seven to ten miles off the main highway. He wanted to put in one of these hydronic 
heaters, and they had specifically prohibited the installation of those heaters, based on experiences 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

           Page 14 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

they had heard from other air agencies. The first generations of these hydronic heaters were 
basically a little metal shed where you opened the door and stacked a whole bunch of wood that 
was set on fire and left to smolder to the point where they did have highways up in the Northeast 
that were having to close due to high levels of smoke with several of these located close together. 
They had put the prohibition in place to stay away from those. There are not a lot of timber 
resources; therefore, they did not think it would be a problem. Since those first generation units 
came out, there has been a lot of work by EPA, in conjunction with the manufacturers, to come up 
with some cleaner burning units. They are now qualifying the units similarly to how they certify the 
wood stoves. In recognition of the work that they have done and this request that they received, 
they decided to go ahead and acknowledge the hydronic heaters and go ahead and approve the 
installation under certain conditions, primarily being on a minimum 40-acre parcel, attempting to 
prevent overlapping impacts. In addition, it would also have to be located outside of a non-
attainment basin so that they do not have any problems meeting their ambient air quality 
standards. They held a public workshop. One member of the public showed up from the Reno-
Sparks Association of Realtors. He is neutral on this subject, realizing that in Section 051, bringing 
the commercial buildings up to the same standards as the residential was probably the right thing 
to do.    
 
Chair Smith opened the public hearing and asked for any public comment. There was no public 
comment. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Vice Chair Jung 
moved, seconded by 
Dr. Hess, to adopt 
amendments to 
Sections 040.51 and 
040.52 of the Washoe 
County District Board 
of Health Regulations 
Governing Air Quality 
Management as 
presented.  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

13. Presentation of 
Environmental 
Health Services 
Division Programs, 
Mandates, Fees – 
Activities and 
Mandates for the 
Waste Management 
Program 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Bob Sack, Division Director of Environmental Health Services (EHS), noted that this is the third and 
final presentation from Environmental Health Services in an overview of the Division’s different 
programs, today taking a look at the Institutions Program, Land Development, and Vector Program. 
He mentioned that he included within the agenda packet all of the enabling statutes that they deal 
with, not the regulations, but the actual NRS statutes that are associated with each of these 
programs. He mentioned specifically that Well Construction, Tattoo Invasive Body Decorations, and 
Vector-Borne Disease and Mosquito Abatement programs are not mandated specifically, but the 
Health District is the only agency carrying out these programs. He showed the structure of 
Environmental Health Services as also provided within the staff report. The Land Development and 
Drinking Water Program processes are oriented around protecting groundwater supplies and 
ensuring that the groundwater is acceptable for drinking and other recreational uses. They oversee 
all of the public water systems, such as Truckee Meadows Water Authority (TMWA) and the 
County, totaling 94 regulated water systems. They inspect one-third of those systems per year. 
Although this is mandated, there is some state Safe Drinking Water Act money received from the 
feds that helps offset the costs. They also respond to water- and sewage-related complaints. They 
often work with the cities on sewage backups and water line breaks, ensuring that they are properly 
repaired and still safe for the public. They do consider those leaks to be imminently dangerous 
issues, especially on the sewage side. They perform plan review and construction inspections for 
domestic wells, septic tanks and water systems. Even though they are not mandated directly, 
domestic wells are almost impossible to separate on a residential basis from the residential septic 
systems. For example, within Historic Verdi, there are drinking water wells and septic systems that 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

           Page 15 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BOARD COMMENT 
 

are 10-15 feet apart. In essence, they are directly drinking their sewage in some of that older part 
of town. Therefore, making sure that these systems are designed properly and generally taking the 
needs of each into account on a piece of property is really needed and works real well. They 
provide continuous support and guidance to all public water systems in Washoe County. There are 
a lot of regulatory requirements at the federal and state level that they report to the Health District, 
such as when they get a bad Bac-T sample, requiring a lot of interaction to ensure that the law is 
being implemented, which is extremely complex. They also regulate the drinking water hauler and 
sewage pumper trucks. They have found that there are very few actual drinking water haulers out 
there; there is not much of a need for just drinking water, except on an emergency basis. There are 
some issues with being able to haul drinking water on a bulk basis if they had a large emergency 
with a lot of water outage. That is something that they have been discussing with TMWA and the 
County.  
 
Council Member Zadra left at 2:18pm. 
 
Dr. Furman left at 2:19pm and returned at 2:22pm. 
 
Dr. Hess asked if there is a record of who is out there and easily accessible in the event of an 
emergency.    
 
Mr. Sack responded that as an example, there is a planning effort that is just now being undertaken 
to plan for a large outage and how they are going to get water to specific areas. That could be a 
problem. There are mechanisms to get bottled water in, but actually supplying bulk water into a 
system could be problematic. They are finding with the sewage pumper trucks, totaling about 50 or 
60, that there are quite a few that are unpermitted. They are in the middle of an effort to identify the 
unpermitted trucks and bring them into compliance. There has been a problem with waste products 
being discharged into storm drains. Part of their permitting process is knowing where they are 
dumping waste and ensuring that it is an acceptable location. Mr. Sack showed an example of a 
septic system and aquifer system as provided within the staff report but also displayed animation 
illustrating the injection of sewage from an improperly installed septic system, contaminating 
groundwater and surface water with fecal matter, and the flow of groundwater protected from 
contamination as sewage flows from the septic tank out to the leach field, dispersed not at a point 
source but over a wider area. Mr. Sack showed an example of an overturned sewage truck as 
provided within the staff report. When this type of incident occurs, there is an immediate sewage 
contamination issue that must be resolved, causing active response from staff. Some of the 
efficiencies implemented over the last few years include streamlining of plan submittal 
requirements. They had received quite a few complaints from the public who did not understand 
why they had to have all of the things that were required with plans. They determined that they 
were requiring too many things. Since that time, they have changed those submittal requirements, 
and he has not received any such complaints over the past year and a half. These improvements 
take away the need for the public to come back multiple times as they attempt to satisfy all of those 
requirements. It can still happen, but the lessening of requirements has been quite successful. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

           Page 16 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

They have implemented a health information system where they are scanning new septic and well 
data into GIS. They have historical data back into the early sixties on microfilm. Over the last six or 
seven years, all new information has been scanned into GIS rather than being placed on microfilm. 
Records are a lot more readily available, but they still have probably over 30,000 records on 
microfilm that require resources to transfer into the new system. They experienced a reduction in 
workload on septic system inspections. They used to perform about 1,000 per year, dropped to 
about 100 at the low. Wells went from over 300 inspections to 40 or 50. They reduced staff 
resources in this area; as some retirements occurred and they lost almost 30% of staff, a number 
of them came from this area. Workload is now going back up on both the commercial and 
residential development side. They negotiated with both TMWA and the State whereby small water 
projects do not have to be submitted to them for review and approval; small pipe replacements, etc. 
were just being handled the same way that TMWA or the County was already doing. They just 
agreed upon the process, the other entities do them that way, and the Health District receives a list 
of small-scale water projects. Their relationship with the County and TMWA is very good.  
 
Their Vector Program has a goal of no human disease outbreaks in Washoe County. They do early 
surveillance in order to target disease outbreaks. They are also implementing design standards in 
public and private infrastructure to minimize habitat for disease-bearing rodents and insects. One, if 
the habitat is not there then they do not have to go back every year, multiple times, and treat the 
area with larvicide, perform plague dusting, or trap rodents to try and remove them. They have a 
very high level of collaboration with stakeholders in the cities, Washoe County’s Community 
Development and Public Works Departments, homeowner’s associations, and the Nevada 
Department of Agriculture Animal Disease Lab. They especially have a very tight relationship with 
the Animal Disease Lab. Animal bite investigations and residential insect infestation advisory 
inspections include rabies cases. They are going to develop a formal agreement with Washoe 
County Regional Animal Services to memorialize what is working real well. They perform the dog 
and cat bite investigations while EHS does all of the wild animal, high-risk investigations where 
they would typically see rabies from bats, foxes, etc. If Regional Animal Services has a problem, 
EHS will come in on the routine dog and cat bites to exercise their rabies authority. On the 
residential insect infestation advisory, it used to be pretty much related to roaches, such as in an 
apartment building, but now, by far, it is bed bugs. They are not a huge, immediate health hazard, 
but they are an “ick” factor. Even within the hotel statutes, they are required to respond to those 
bed bug infestations. On an advisory basis, their vector staff provides advice to the public as well. 
They perform the proactive, reactive habitat treatment to prevent disease, such as spraying for 
mosquitoes and dusting boroughs in the spring for fleas to try and reduce plague problems. Their 
mosquito abatement program is by far the biggest aspect of the program. They perform larviciding 
on a proactive basis, applications by helicopter, which is the best control they have for mosquitoes. 
On a reactive basis, the fogging they do is specific to areas where the adults are there and they 
know there is going to be a problem or the problem already exists in that area. They know that they 
have West Nile Virus out there; there have been press releases regarding the positive mosquito 
pools. Currently, the reports are coming from the East Valley side. When their robust surveillance 
indicates that they have a problem in an area, before they get a human case, they try and go out 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

           Page 17 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

and perform fogging. Whatever insects it hits will die on that particular day. However, that does not 
assist with mosquitoes that hatch after the period of time when the fogging is out there, typically 
done under ideal conditions early in the morning. This is an area where they have reduced quite a 
bit of monetary resources over the last few years. The larviciding is dramatically lower; the products 
they use are very specific to mosquitoes and very expensive to not affect other insects. 
Furthermore, it requires a helicopter to apply in the larger areas. They have to do more by hand. 
Some of the areas they can no longer fly; therefore, they are hitting areas that are very close to 
residential housing, such as Mira Loma, Spanish Springs, and Washoe Valley. They are not hitting 
all of the acreage that needs to be treated, but they are hitting the highest risk areas in order to try 
and prevent interaction. In 2007, they performed 11 aerial treatments, treating 6,000 acres, and 
they performed 25 fog applications, treating 1,600 acres. They take mosquito pools or sample, 
trapping a group of mosquitoes at a particular location, blending them together and testing for West 
Nile Virus.  
 
Vice Chair Jung asked in regard to mosquito abatement if they introduce the mosquito-eating fish. 
 
Mr. Sack responded in the affirmative and confirmed that the fish is the gambusia.  
 
Ms. Jung asked if introducing the fish is the cheapest form of abatement. 
 
Mr. Sack responded that in small sources, such as ponds, it is quite effective, but in larger sources, 
the fish will often not survive. The gambusia are inexpensive, because they grow them. Rancho 
San Rafael is one of the spots used to grow them, and they procreate quite rapidly. They provide 
them to the public free of charge. In 2012, they were down to 5 total aerial treatments with an 
increase in fogging applications.  In 2007, West Nile Virus was hitting pretty hard with a lot of 
positive samples, including positive human cases. The more larviciding they do, the less fogging 
they have to do, in general, and vice versa. They utilize a small plastic cup to obtain samples to 
determine presence of mosquito larvae as shown in a picture, as provided within the staff report. 
He also showed an example of a storm drain inlet, as provided within the staff report, which could 
produce thousands of mosquitoes within one day under the right conditions. They are discovering 
that the use of treated sewage for irrigation is very safe from the standpoint of bacteria and virus, 
but it still has a chemical soup that mosquitoes find extremely nutritious. They are seeing an 
increase in larvae in some of these storm drain basins around those areas where treated sewage is 
being used. He is not saying that treated sewage should not be used, but it is an interesting 
byproduct that they are seeing. There are over 25,000 of these catch basins within the urban 
environment here. They have GPS-mapped a large number of those basins. They are treating 
7,000 to 8,000 catch basins annually, including in the Incline area that has quite a few catch basins 
with mosquito problems. In regard to design standards in development, they are trying to reduce 
wetlands that will have to be treated. They use low-flow channels, a picture of which is provided 
within the staff report, which compresses stagnant water into a smaller area that will continue to 
runoff. In regard to plague suppression, dog and cat owners do not really see fleas here, but they 
do exist in rodent boroughs on the rodents. When there is plague active in an area and a lot of 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

           Page 18 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

rodents die, those fleas then come out of the boroughs due to hunger. That is when they can 
transmit plague to animals, such as a dog in a field, possibly bringing plague back to the home. 
They have had historically at least one death from the plague in this area. They do identify plague 
almost every year somewhere in the area. It is cyclical, and the area is overdue for a pretty large 
event involving plague. In regard to efficiencies, acres treated with larvicide has decreased, they 
have made changes to survey and treatment procedures for plague reduction, just doing enough to 
determine that indeed they need to apply dusting, implemented engineering controls to reduce 
vector habitat, and increased use of handheld GIS devices in order for the helicopter pilot to have 
the exact area that he needs to treat, reducing overspray and ultimately less pesticide necessary to 
apply per area.  
 
The Institutions area category is a combination of many smaller programs. In general, they are 
required to have these programs to protect and prevent disease and injury or adverse health 
effects and contamination in these environments. They inspect child care facilities and respond to 
complaints. Most of these complaints deal with some sort of EPI outbreak, requiring the need for 
them to go in and help interdict. The Hand, Foot, and Mouth Disease outbreak last year existed 
within child care. Giardia and Norovirus have a lot of transmission within these facilities as well.  
 
Invasive Body Decorations (IBDs), tattoo and piercing facilities, total about 60 active facilities, 
previously totaling about 40. The Health District is the only agency authorized to implement health 
and safety regulations. The first set of these types of regulations were brought to the Board about 
15-20 years ago. No other agency does these which EHS feels is important in order to protect the 
patrons that are getting these tattoos and body piercings done. A lot of tattoo parlors have artists 
who do not have a lot of technical expertise or medical training. Therefore, there is a lot that goes 
into permitting one of these parlors to ensure that they are operating correctly. They performed 896 
inspections. Unique to them, part of being the “Special Events Capital of the World” is that the area 
is now getting tattoo conventions. There can be upwards of 40 or 50 booths, and they have to 
perform multiple inspections to ensure that they are sterilizing their equipment, etc. There are 5 or 
6 of these conventions on an annual basis.  
 
Vice Chair Jung asked if there is a licensing or state standard. 
 
Mr. Sack responded in the negative. The only regulations that are there are the Health District’s 
regulations.  
 
Ms. Jung asked if the Board of Health has considered taking a Bill Draft Request (BDR) to the 
legislature.      
 
Mr. Sack responded that they have not. Almost every health agency in the country is in a similar 
situation. The state has taken its own regulations, Southern Nevada Health District has taken its 
own regulations, all of which are fairly similar, modeled after Washoe County Health District. He 
does not think that the demand has been there, because it is actually effectively regulated. What 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

           Page 19 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

they are getting into, and they are starting to see it in Southern Nevada, is things like implants and 
digitizing where people are intentionally removing fingers or joints or implanting a shark fin in their 
back. They want to do these things in these piercing places, and that is crossing the line into 
medical practice. They are starting to run into those types of pressures where they are trying to do 
some pretty invasive modifications. The Medical Board is looking at that as well.  
 
Ms. Jung commented that she still thinks that there should be some sort of training and/or 
certification that makes the person legitimate in terms of knowing how to properly sanitize and 
dispose the needles. As a policy board, she feels that they need to potentially bring back a bill 
request. 
 
Mr. Sack responded that they do not have the ability to offer bill drafts, but they can bring 
something back to the Board. 
 
Ms. Jung responded that the Board of County Commissioners only gets two BDRs, but they can 
always find somebody to carry it. She continued by asking about the age limit for acquiring 
piercings and tattoos. 
 
Mr. Sack responded with the general answer of age 18. 
 
Ms. Jung asked if their parents can waive that age limit. 
 
Mr. Sack responded that parents can sign for it. They have ran into a problem, but not in the last 
few years, where a 16-year old would come in with his parent who looked about 17 or 18 and sign 
as the parent. Part of what they do on these inspections is making sure that they have checked for 
parental authorization.  
 
Ms. Jung inquired about the minimum age. 
 
Mr. Sack recalls a State law where it may be a minimum age of 15 or 16. 
 
Ms. Jung asked if the Health District would be the reporting agency if a known 14-year old has 
tattoos. 
 
Mr. Sack responded that it is not illegal for somebody underage to have tattoos; it is illegal for 
somebody to tattoo them. The complaint would be regarding where they got tattooed. It would be 
against the facility, and they would be the reporting agency in that case. Mr. Sack continued with 
Hotel / Motel Room / Mobile Home / RV Facility Inspections, explaining that they all require routine 
inspections, responding to complaints, and plan reviews. They have a pretty high reinspection rate 
on their RV parks and a portion of their motels, which are the “weeklies”, and they are really the 
only agency on the “weeklies” that keep them in compliance. He explained that some of these 
motels are in deplorable condition; therefore, they have a high reinspection rate and problems 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

           Page 20 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

associated with them. They are also seeing a tremendous turnover with these weekly motels, 
sometimes three or four times per year. Therefore, it is a continuous process of going in, 
evaluating, trying to get them up to code. Some of it is due to the clientele abusing their physical 
facilities. It is something that has to be chased, staying after those owners. They have about 800 
annual and seasonal pools and spas that they regulate. An improperly operated pool is extremely 
high risk from both a chemical basis and safety aspect. Therefore, they take them pretty seriously. 
They have cut down the number of inspections. In the past, they did one inspection per month on 
both annual and seasonal pools. Now, they are doing about two to three per each on an annual 
basis and putting more on the pool operators and their certifications to keep them in compliance. In 
the Certified Pool Operator Program that has been in place for about one year, they already have 
260 operators. They are also required to perform school and jail facility inspections. By statute, 
they must inspect schools one time per semester, including regulating the kitchens associated with 
them. There are only a couple jail facilities. They perform one annual inspection of those and 
respond to quite a few complaints, usually from inmates. Additionally, on a complaint basis, 
typically from other agencies, such as Social Services, they inspect housing to assist in 
determining if it is an environment safe for kids or any person to live. They will ask EHS to make an 
evaluation on whether or not the conditions are considered a health hazard. They can see these 
issues both in weekly hotels or residential apartments or houses. They are probably responding to 
one or two of these types of complaints every month. Mr. Sack explained that some of them are 
incredibly deplorable, usually with multiple agencies involved. If kids are involved, it is a lot easier 
to get everybody out. Often times on the adult side, and they are not considered elderly but 
possibly mentally ill or have a hoarding complex, it is very difficult to get resources to help these 
people. In regard to Institutions, they have created the CPO (Certified Pool Operator) program, 
allowing approved businesses to open seasonal facilities, eliminating a round of inspections on a 
detailed basis. They have reduced pool and spa inspections by 75%. They have streamlined 
change of ownership inspections of all institution facilities. They are focusing on disease prevention 
in major resort properties. For example, instead of inspecting every room at the Nugget, they will 
inspect about 10% of the rooms and really concentrate on the floors, how are they cleaning the 
rooms, how are they cleaning up a vomiting event, how are they cleaning the trash cans and ice 
buckets. Mr. Sack calls it more of a norovirus prevention inspection, because if what they are doing 
will prevent norovirus, then it is going to take care of virtually every other disease transmission 
problem within those facilities. In regard to school and child care facility inspections, they are 
focusing on disease prevention and child safety. Mr. Sack explained that their biggest value to the 
community is performing risk assessments to determine risk from both a general health hazard 
standpoint and in a regulatory environment.     
 
Mr. Sack displayed a picture of a special event crowd and explained that their goal is to ensure that 
those crowds continue to come to the area. 
 
Dr. Humphreys commented that he was out at Red Hawk Golf Course about four weeks ago, fairly 
early in the morning, and stopped for about 10 minutes to watch the application of larvicide. He 
explained that seeing the helicopter maneuver to apply the larvicide is quite interesting to watch.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

           Page 21 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

Mr. Sack commented that the guy they currently use and have used for the past 20+ years, Joel, is 
a former Vietnam helicopter pilot, can fly those mosquito applications very precisely and very low. 
Mr. Sack added that he is an incredibly good pilot. They still get some complaints that he is too 
close to the houses, etc., and they try to keep the helicopter as far away as possible. The areas 
they are working right now involve them working the interface close to residential neighborhoods. 
 
Vice Chair Jung asked if there is a reason why they use a helicopter and not a crop duster. 
 
Mr. Sack responded that it is basically due to the preciseness. A lot of those products do not 
handle well out of a plane. It is too fast, spreading around a lot more, whereas the helicopter 
application is incredibly precise.  
 
Dr. Humphreys added that one thing he witnessed was the helicopter maneuvered as if the pilot 
had backed up and was able to hover and then go right down to hit a specific target area and then 
right back up. That would be tough for a plane. 
    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NO MOTION 
 

14. Review and 
Acceptance of the 
Monthly Public Health 
Fund Revenue and 
Expenditure Report for 
July, 2013 
 
 

Eileen Stickney, Administrative Health Services Officer, presented the Monthly Public Health Fund 
Revenue and Expenditure Report for July 2013, beginning of Fiscal Year 14, stating that Staff 
recommends the Board accept the report. Ms. Stickney pointed out the top of the second page, 
stating that Holiday Work is at 73% this month and 7% last month. She explained that she did 
confirm with Mr. Sack that he had four EHS staff that were working special events on Fourth of 
July. She will highlight items like this at a variance so that when they prepare the budget for Fiscal 
Year 15, they will make appropriate adjustments.   

Dr. Hess moved, 
seconded by Vice 
Chair Jung, to 
accept the Health 
Fund Revenue and 
Expenditure Report 
for July, 2013.  
MOTION CARRIED 

15. Presentation, 
Discussion, and 
Possible Direction to 
Staff regarding a 
Fundamental Review 
 
 
 

Mr. Dick commented that since the last meeting, he has been in contact with two individuals that 
had been referred by NACCHO, Dr. Les Beitsch and Mr. Matt Stefanak, who both have significant 
experience with public health, both at the local and state levels. Mr. Stefanak is a leading expert in 
financial management for health districts, and Dr. Beitsch is an expert in the focus area of 
performance management and quality improvement. Ms. Stickney made several calls to the 
President of Management Partners, but she did not receive any response back regarding if they 
had, or knew companies who had, experience performing reviews of health districts. Links were 
included within the staff report to papers authored by these two individuals. Mr. Stefanak authored 
one on financial turnaround at the health district that he managed in a county in Ohio. The other 
one was sent to them by Dr. Beitsch. The paper outlines how the accreditation framework was 
used in a county in Illinois that experienced a 50% staff reduction as a way of aligning their 
resources and their programs with those limited resources to attempt to address the needs of the 
community. Both of the papers indicate that there is really a lack of studies of health districts with 
these kinds of projects. Mr. Dick noted that late yesterday afternoon, he received draft scopes of 
work from Mr. Stefanak and Dr. Beitsch. Dr. Beitsch does consulting work in conjunction with the 
Public Health Foundation, and he suggested that the Health District work with them so that they 
could provide some staff support for a fundamental review here. When they first contacted these 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

           Page 22 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

two individuals, it was somewhat a shot in the dark to see whether they might be willing to work 
with each other and bring their expertise to the table in their different areas. Coincidentally, they 
had been on a panel together the previous month at a conference. While they had not worked 
together previously, they knew of each other, and they were happy to do a collaborative project. 
The scopes of work received are designed to work in conjunction with each other. The process 
would be that they would come out and meet with management, the Board, and stakeholders within 
the community to obtain information input on the front-end. Staff would then work to conduct a self-
assessment; there is a tool that has been created using the accreditation framework. That would be 
work that would be done internally. They would also be doing some work on the financial aspects 
of the Health District as well to provide that information to them. They would then come out again 
and basically meet to ground truth the information provided to them through the self-assessment. 
They would then work on synthesizing that information and developing a report which they would 
provide as a draft and then come out and present a final report to the Board. The timeline that they 
have outlined is assuming that there is a contract in place to commence work October 1st. The end 
date for the final report that they identified is March 7th. One of Mr. Dick’s task, if proceeding with 
the fundamental review, would be to work with them on moving up the final report presentation to 
the February meeting. The Board budget meeting is anticipated to take place in early March; this 
could be helpful to address the financial situation at that time.  
 
Vice Chair Jung asked if the Board will see the scope of work and the contract.  
  
Mr. Dick responded that in order to proceed, showing the draft scopes of work provided to the 
Board today (filed), he would request approval to proceed with finalizing the scopes of work and 
getting the contract in place, because he does not want to delay another month to bring it back to 
the Board, continuing to shoot for that October 1st timeframe. He did discuss with them the 
comments received from the Board. Also, in response to some of Ms. Zadra’s concerns, Dr. 
Beitsch also has a J.D. He feels very comfortable in doing the NRS review. Mr. Dick feels that it is 
really an exceptional team, and he is excited about being able to have these leaders in their areas 
working with the Health District.  
 
Ms. Jung noted to keep in mind to look at what areas would be cheaper to outsource rather than 
insource, because that is an efficiency that many commissions and boards and elected department 
heads are examining as well. 
 
Mr. Dick responded that he will mention that, and he believes Mr. Stefanak would have some of the 
background to be able to assess that.  
 
Dr. Hess asked if this includes the other individual even though that name is not on the scope of 
work. 
 
Mr. Dick responded that one of the things he will request with the proposal received from the Public 
Health Foundation is that it specifically designate Dr. Beitch’s time. It turns out that Mr. Stefanak is 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Vice Chair Jung 
moved, seconded by 
Council Member 
Ratti, to proceed.  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



 
 
 

           Page 23 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

actually a board member of the Public Health Foundation; therefore, he preferred to have a 
separate contractual relationship so that he does not get into conflict of interest issues with that 
organization.  
  
Council Member Ratti commented that the proposal discussed today is significantly improved 
upon last month’s proposal, and she is really excited about the direction they are headed.   
 

16. Discussion and 
Possible Direction to 
Staff regarding 
process for appointing 
a permanent District 
Health Officer 
 
BOARD COMMENT 
 

Chair Smith pointed at that when the Board appointed Mr. Dick as the Interim District Health 
Officer, part of that motion was that they were not going to talk about it for at least six months. 
 
Dr. Hess commented that he thought it was for just six months. 
 
Mr. Smith responded that it was for at least six months at which time the Board would review Mr. 
Dick’s performance and decide if that want to solicit applicants. 
 
Dr. Hess commented that that was not his understanding. 
 
Vice Chair Jung commented that that could be easily rectified by looking at the Minutes. 
 
Mr. Smith commented that he does not mind explaining the process to allow the Board to proceed. 
 
Dr. Hess commented that he does not know why they need to wait until the end of six months; it 
seems to him that the process needs to get started.  
 
Mr. Smith commented that his feelings are that they currently have an Interim District Health 
Officer who is doing a fantastic job. He wanted to give him six months to really get his feet on the 
ground. At that point, the Board can talk about it. His feelings are, and he explained that he has 
been on the Board for a long time, that they need an administrator for this position, not a doctor. 
They have had numerous doctors over the years, and they need somebody to run an organization 
rather than a doctor. That is his personal feelings, and he does not know what the other board 
members feel.  
 
Dr. Hess commented that he would like to counter that. He feels that the previous doctor who was 
their administrator, from his perspective on the outside looking in, he thinks that there were some 
issues. However, he personally feels that in living in Washoe County for 20 years, and with 
interactions with those folks, due to his work at the University, the last director was the best they 
have ever had in those 20+ years. He also thinks that they need to start laying the groundwork, if 
Mr. Dick is going to be the selection, in figuring out how they go contrary to state law. He explained 
that NRS Chapter 439 says that the District Health Officer needs to have a graduate education in 
public health or what is called a class specification for District Health Officer which he stumbled 
upon during a web search. He explained that he does not have a problem with people finding 
alternative ways to meet those qualifications, but he thinks that the Board needs to sit down and 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

           Page 24 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

decide what it is that they are looking for in their administrator.  
  
Deputy District Attorney Leslie Admirand requested the NRS section cited by Dr. Hess.  
 
Dr. Hess responded that it was NRS 439.400, Paragraph 2. 
 
Ms. Admirand commented that she wanted to ensure that the section applied to this population. 
 
Dr. Hess continued that one of the problems with this situation is that he feels that a free flowing 
discussion cannot truly take place. He personally thinks that they should have a subcommittee that 
can sit down and decide what they are looking for and bring it back to the Board for approval or 
disapproval and get on with the process. He explained that he did not go through this process in 
the past when they picked Dr. Iser or Dr. Anderson. As the new kid on the block, he does not think 
that they are properly approaching this process at the current time.  
 
Council Member Ratti commented that she thinks that they have not even started the process; 
she feels that there are many different ways to do it. She has had the benefit of being part of the 
process on the District Board of Health but also doing it for the City of Sparks for different positions 
that have been open. There are different philosophies, such as developing folks from the inside 
and providing them opportunity to promote, or conducting a national search. She thinks that those 
are some of the questions that need to be answered first. She thinks that they have put Mr. Dick in 
a very awkward position, as the Interim Director, of having to defend or tell them whether or not he 
meets the minimum qualifications. She needs somebody to verify for her the answer to that 
question. 
 
Ms. Admirand responded that she is able to do that. 
 
Dr. Hess explained that he has been in situations where he has been on the search committee for 
a dean and for a variety of people, and he has never been in a situation where he has been forced 
into voting, not voting, or abstaining on a particular position without at least having a curriculum 
vitae and a resume in front of him.  
 
Ms. Ratti commented that she does not think there is any proposal in front of her today to vote on 
any position.     
 
Dr. Hess responded in the negative, but added that for the interim appointment, there was, and he 
is still angered by that situation. 
 
Ms. Ratti responded that that is fair. 
 
Dr. Furman commented that they had a previous director, Barbara Hunt, who did not meet these 
qualifications. She did not have a Master of Public Health, and she was not a physician. This was 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

           Page 25 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

allowed, because it was felt that there are other things that can happen; it is not an absolute. He 
was unsure if there had been any changes to the requirements since then.  
 
Ms. Admirand responded that there have not been any changes in the statute; therefore, she can 
outline what the NRS says and their parameters in choosing a health officer.  
 
Mr. Smith commented that they should start with that. Based on her conclusion on that, this 
discussion can continue. He does not want to put Mr. Dick in any kind of position whatsoever at this 
point. He feels that Mr. Dick is doing a very good job and advised Mr. Dick to continue doing what 
he is doing. They are going to look at a couple of statutes and have a discussion next month. Then, 
they will have to find out what they did with Barbara Hunt. 
 
Ms. Admirand commented that there is the Personnel and Administration Committee as a Board of 
Health committee. That is something that the Board could utilize.  
 
Mr. Smith commented that they will get that information and then get the committee going.  
 
Ms. Ratti asked if assignments were made to that committee. 
 
Ms. Admirand believes that there are assignments but does not have the updated list; she would 
have to check for the updated list. 
 
Ms. Ratti commented that that would be good to know. 
 
Dr. Furman commented that they also looked at other candidates, and they were also not 
physicians. 
 
Dr. Hess commented that it does not have to be a physician; it needs to be somebody with a 
graduate degree in public health or the equivalent.  
 
Dr. Furman explained that some of the people they interviewed did not have either a graduate 
degree in public health or a M.D. 
    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NO MOTION 
 

*17. Staff Reports and 
Program Updates 
 
A. Director, 

Epidemiology 
and Public 
Health 
Preparedness 

Dr. Randall Todd, Director, Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness, presented his monthly 
Division Director’s Report, a copy of which was placed on file for the record. Dr. Todd added that 
under the first item of the report, Communicable Disease – Pertussis, they have had a couple of 
clusters of pertussis cases. He just today received a report from the State that Washoe County is 
not alone in Nevada of having pertussis (whooping cough). The statewide year-to-date total is 107 
cases of whooping cough, compared to 112 cases for all of last year within the State. They are only 
a little over halfway through the year, because communicable diseases are counted on the 
calendar year, not the fiscal year. Of those 107 cases, Clark County accounts for 84. Washoe 
County has had 13 cases. Of those 13, 12 have been reported since May, and 10 of those have 

 



 
 
 

           Page 26 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

 been reported within the last week. They are seeing this spiral upwards; he was feeling pretty good 
last year when neighboring states had pertussis outbreaks and Nevada did not. It may be Nevada’s 
turn. There are concerns that a number of these cases have been fully immunized. 
 
Vice Chair Jung commented that she has had the worst allergies of her life. She explained that 
she went to the urgent clinic yesterday, unable to go to her own primary care physician due to a 
current wait of one and a half months, but when she examined her, the physician’s assistant 
explained that she was draining like crazy without necessarily feeling sick. The nurse had told her 
that in her 20 years of practicing in the West, this season has been the worst allergy season of all 
ages, genders, and socioeconomic status, and her theory was that this year’s weird weather has 
reactivated certain things that would be dead by now. She has seen tons of ear infections, tons of 
throat infections, and bronchitis. Ms. Jung wondered if there was any correlation between the two. 
 
Dr. Todd commented that there is not likely a correlation, because the majority, at least 9 of 13 
cases confirmed from the laboratory, that they actually have pertussis. 
 
Council Member Ratti left at 3:17pm. 
 
Dr. Hess asked about the current DTaP vaccine and if these kids would have received that 
immunization. 
 
Dr. Todd responded that the wholesale pertussis vaccine, although it did not cause too many side 
effects in young people, when you became an adult and got your tetanus booster, you got a TD 
and not a DTP, because pertussis was not good for you. To make the pertussis vaccine safer, they 
went to an acellular formulation of the vaccine that is safer, but they are now just getting to the 
point where they have an age cohort of kids where all they have had is the acellular pertussis. 
There is a theory out there that maybe it is not as effective unless you have had at least a dose of 
whole-cell.  
 
Dr. Hess asked if any of these cases required hospitalization.  
 
Dr. Todd responded that he is not aware of any hospitalizations. 
 
Dr. Hess commented that there was some discussion that when they do get it with this vaccine, 
they do not get as sick; it is modified.  
 
Dr. Todd responded that that is correct. He also explained that this is a cough that is extremely 
severe to the point where you can literally turn blue due to inability to take in enough oxygen.  
  

 B. Director, 
Community and 

Mr. Steve Kutz, Director, Community and Clinical Health Services, presented his monthly Division 
Director’s Report, a copy of which was placed on file for the record. He highlighted that under the 
Immunization Program, he wanted to remind the Board of Health that they had performed almost 

 



 
 
 

           Page 27 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

Clinical Health 
Services 
 

50 school-located vaccination clinics over the past year. This really assisted with the launch of the 
new school year. In speaking with Dana Baltunas, Director of Student Health Services, there were 
around 200 students in need of immunizations at the start of school, a far lower number than they 
had experienced in the previous year. Therefore, their efforts are paying off. Under the 
Tuberculosis Prevention and Control Program, over the last week or so, they have put in two 
applications for additional funding related to their ongoing cases of tuberculosis here. A program 
through the vendor who provides them with QuantiFERON testing, called the TBoss 
Reimbursement Program, and they are looking forward to about $10,000 in reimbursement costs 
for the tubes and the testing through the Nevada State Public Health Laboratory. He expressed 
appreciation to Ms. Stickney and her staff for helping them to make that happen. They also just put 
in an application for $10,000 for intermittent / hourly staff to help support the TB Program with the 
additional staffing needs in order to meet the demands in the community, helping to prevent and 
control TB.  
 
Dr. Hess asked about how many active cases of TB are being investigated. 
 
Mr. Kutz responded that they have two cases. One is in an aggregate dormitory-type setting, and 
one is at a hospitality-type setting. They actually had two cases that were positive which initiates 
testing in concentric rings. The risk assessments take a lot of time, with the blood draws and 
testing, and he acknowledged and expressed appreciation for Dr. Todd’s staff as well as the 
Nevada State Health Division Tuberculosis Prevention and Control Program. In regard to the 
Chronic Disease Prevention Program, Mr. Kutz acknowledged Kelli Seals for highlighting some 
things that will be done for the Fifth Annual Obesity Forum. Flyers were provided at the meeting 
(filed) for the Obesity Forum. Mr. Kutz explained that he attended last year for the first time, and it 
one of the best day-long conferences, locally produced, well-polished and impressive, and he was 
very proud of staff’s efforts.   
 

 C. Director, 
Environmental 
Health Services  

   

Mr. Robert Sack, Director, Environmental Health Services, presented his monthly Division 
Director’s Report, a copy of which was placed on file for the record. He highlighted the additional 
three positive mosquito pools the received for West Nile Virus this week, bringing them up to six. 
 
Dr. Humphreys asked about the locations of those findings. 
 
Mr. Sack responded that the latest findings were in the Rosewood Lakes area. Everything is on the 
east side of the valley, Damonte Ranch, up to the south of the river.   
 

 

 D. Acting Director, 
Air Quality 
Management 

 

Ms. Charlene Albee, Acting Division Director, Air Quality Management, presented the monthly 
Division Director’s Report, a copy of which was placed on file for the record. She provided an 
update on their smoke impacts from the American Fire. The fire started on August 10th, with 
Truckee Meadows impact starting on Sunday, August 11th. They have been seeing a dramatic 
change in the Air Quality Index, due to PM2.5 impacts. The highest to date for the 24-hour rolling 

 



 
 
 

           Page 28 

TIME / 
ITEM 

SUBJECT / AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION 

average is 128, occurring on Saturday, August 17th. That is Unhealthy for Sensitive Groups. On 
August 18th, when thunderstorms rolled into the valley, a video of the increasing smoke was 
captured by the National Weather Service camera (filed). That is something they usually cannot 
see on average. The video is only about five minutes of elapsed time. They went from a single digit 
of 6 PM2.5 to 130. The American Fire is expected to be contained by Sunday, September 1st. 
Unfortunately, the Yosemite Rim Fire impacts have hit the Truckee Meadows Basin during this 
meeting. They have conducted four interviews in the past hour, and AP has actually picked up the 
story as well. There is not expected containment on the Rim Fire.  
 
Dr. Humphreys asked about changes in air quality other than the obvious change in visibility.  
 
Ms. Albee explained that there are health impacts associated with this air quality, such as an 
increase in allergies, burning eyes, drainage, and sore throats. Anybody who is sensitive to 
bronchitis can suffer with this type of air quality. The ozone numbers and all of the other pollutants 
have not really been impacted by the fires.  
 
Mr. Dick expressed appreciation to Ms. Albee and Mr. Inouye for the fantastic job they have been 
doing as they continue to do their own jobs and his job in Air Quality. Mr. Inouye has been on the 
run with the media, doing multiple interviews every day. 
 

 E. Administrative 
Health Services 
Officer 
 

The Administrative Health Services Officer’s Reports for this month were addressed in other 
agenda items. Ms. Stickney added that she would start including a WIC update to provide some 
data.  
 
Dr. Hess commented that he was very impressed with her ability to get a contract renegotiation 
with the owner of the property. He feels that they need to thank that person, making a substantial 
contribution to the Health District. 
 
Mr. Stickney responded that they could provide a certificate. She knows that property values have 
reduced, and there are a lot of places available.  
 

 

 F. Interim District 
Health Officer 
and Health 
District Updates  

 

Mr. Kevin Dick, Interim District Health Officer, presented the monthly District Health Officer Report, 
a copy of which was placed on file for the record.   
 
Mr. Dick highlighted steps taken with the Health District’s Quality Improvement (QI) initiative. The 
Accreditation Readiness Team (ART) has been meeting for over the course of the last year or 
more to discuss QI and training and a QI plan. They are moving forward. Veronica Frenkel, 
Organizational Development Coordinator with the County Manager’s Office, assisted them in 
designing and implementing a survey of staff on QI which was just completed. Tomorrow, they will 
be having a special session with her and the Division Directors to discuss their approach to QI. 
They will then hold a series of meetings with the Division Directors and Supervisors to launch the 

 





DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7 
 

PROCLAMATION 
National Preparedness Month 

 
WHEREAS, “National Preparedness Month” creates an important opportunity 

for every resident of Washoe County to learn more about ways to prepare for all types of 
emergencies, including public health threats, potential terrorist attacks, and natural 
disasters; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is often neighbors and friends who respond first on the scene after 
an emergency.  This year’s National Preparedness Month theme is “You Can Be the 
Hero”, asking all citizens to ready themselves to assist in case of emergency; and 

 

WHEREAS, experience tells us that investing in the preparedness of ourselves, 
our families, businesses and communities can improve the response to and recovery from 
a disaster or other emergency, thereby reducing the physical, emotional and financial 
impact of that disaster or  emergency in our communities and in our nation; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Washoe County Health District, throughout the various 
divisions, and other state, local, private and volunteer agencies are working together to 
increase public awareness in preparing for public  health emergencies and to educate 
individuals on how to take responsibility for preparedness; and 

 

WHEREAS, emergency preparedness is the responsibility of every citizen of 
Washoe County, and everyone is urged to make preparedness a priority, working together 
to ensure that individuals, families and communities are prepared for any type of 
emergency; and  

 

WHEREAS, all citizens are encouraged to participate in citizen preparedness 
activities and to visit the website www.ReadyWashoe.com to learn more about 
emergency preparedness, which includes these simple steps: 

 Make a Plan – know who to call, where to meet                                                                                     
 Assemble a Kit – know what to pack and have enough supplies for at least 3 days   
 Stay Informed – know about types of emergencies and related response actions 

 

PROCLAIMED, by the Washoe County District Board of Health that September 
2013 is National Preparedness Month, and encourages all citizens and businesses to 
develop their own emergency preparedness plan, and work together toward creating a 
more prepared community. 

 

ADOPTED, this 26th day of September, 2013. 
 
 
      

           _________________________________ 
           A.M. Smith III, Chairman 
           Washoe County District Board of Health 

  



DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8. A. 1. a. 

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

Recommendation 

September 26, 2013 

District Board of Health 

Daniel Inouye, Acting Director, Air Quality Management 

Built All Construction - Case No. 1124 
Unappealed Citation No. 5277 
Agenda Item: 8. A. 1. a. 

Public Health 
Prevent Promote . Prolect , 

Air Quality Management Division Staff recommends that Citation No. 5277 be upheld and a fine of $1,360, with 
attendance of an asbestos awareness course, be levied against Built All Construction for failure to have an asbestos 
survey performed by a qualified person and submitted to Air Quality for the issuance of an Acknowledgement of 
Asbestos Assessment prior to the demolition/renovation of a commercial facility. Conducting demolition/renovation 
activities without obtaining an asbestos survey and an Acknowledgement of Asbestos Assessment is a major 
violation of the District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality Management, specifically Section 
030.105(8)(10) National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP), Subpart M - Asbestos, which 
is implemented through Section 030.107(A), Hazardous Air Pollutants, Asbestos Sampling and Notification. This is a 
negotiated settlement. 

Recommended Fine: $4,400.00 Negotiated Fine: $1 ,360.00 

Background 

On July 11, 2013, Washoe County Air Quality Management Division received a citizen complaint from Mr. Jim Brown, 
Construction Specialist, for the commercial property located at 911 Linda Way in Sparks. The complaint was 
regarding the removal of possible asbestos containing materials associated with demolition/renovation activities 
occurring at the facility. A review of the Air Quality Management records determined an Asbestos Acknowledgement 
Form had not been completed for any renovation activities at that location. 

Air Quality Specialist II Wallace Prichard was dispatched to the above address and found that several walls had been 
removed from the interior of the building. During his investigation, AQ Specialist Prichard was able to determine the 
work had been initiated by Built All Construction. The suspect asbestos containing materials were illegally removed 
and hauled away for disposal in Built All Construction trucks that were located on site. AQ Specialist Prichard then 
made contact with Mr. Fred Olson, City of Sparks Building and Enforcement Division, to determine if a building permit 
had been issued for the renovation activities in question. Mr. Olson was able to confirm a building permit had not 
been issued for the 911 Linda Way address and, in fact, a Stop Work had been issued by the City of Sparks for the 
construction activities at that address. 

P.O. BOX 11130 Reno, NV 89520-0027 • (775) 784-7200 •FAX (775) 784-7225 
www.ourcleanair.com 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8. A. 1. a. 



September 26, 2013 
DBOH I Built All Construction I Case 1124 
Page 2 

AQ Specialist Prichard contacted Mr. Tomas Madrigal, representative for Built All Construction, and directed him to 
stop work immediately and contract with a licensed Asbestos Consultant to perform a survey of all of the materials to 
be disturbed as part of the renovation activities. Mr. Madrigal contracted with Mr. Larry Thir, Environmental Inspection 
and Control Services, and a survey was performed on June 27, 2013. The laboratory results from the survey found 
no asbestos detected. On July 24, 2013, Mr. Madrigal submitted a copy of the asbestos survey to Air Quality 
Management and obtained an Acknowledgement of Asbestos Assessment. 

Based on the results of the file review and investigation, AQ Specialist Prichard issued Notice of Violation Citation 
No. 5277 for a major violation of Section 030.107 (A), Asbestos Sampling and Notification. 

Settlement 

On July 24, 2013, Senior AQ Specialist Dennis Cerfoglio conducted a negotiated settlement meeting attended by AQ 
Specialist Prichard and Mr. Madrigal. After careful consideration of all the facts in the case, AQ Specialist Cerfoglio 
recommended that Citation No. 5316 be upheld with a fine of $1,360 and attendance of an asbestos awareness 
course. A Memorandum of Understanding was signed by all parties. 

Alternatives 

1. The District Board of Health may determine that no violation of the Regulations has taken place and dismiss 
Citation No. 5277. 

2. The Board may determine to uphold Citation No. 5277 but levy any fine in the range of $0 to $10,000 per 
day. 

In the event the Board determines to change the proposed penalty, the matter should be continued so that Mr. 
Madrigal and Built All Construction may be properly noticed. 

Daniel Inouye, Acting Division Director 
Air Quality Management 

DI/DC: ma 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

1001 EAST NINTH ST.• SUITE 8171 •RENO NV 89512 
(775) 784-7200 

NOTICE OF VIOLATION 

NOV 5 2 f 7 DATE ISSUED: J//I j3 
1ssuED To: & ;1fA1 L Cn.stiucip;,HoNE #: 202- ;i. go - ,;1S 
MAILINGADDRESS: ed8'90 ~ ~~ITY/ST: ~) NtJ ZIP: 895tJ"'2--

NAME/OPERATOR: P.e,iee.... yt)~ PHONE#: __ z_~~~--~/_/_/_2-____ _ 

¥A COMPLAINT NO. C.t1 £13- OOCf 5 PERMIT NO. 

YOU ARE HEREBY OFFICIALLY NOTIFIED THAT ON (DATE) AT (TIME), 
YOU ARE IN VIOLATION OF THE FOLLOWING SECTION(S) OF THE WASHOE COUNTY DISTRICT BOARD 
OF HEALTH REGULATIONS GOVERNING AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT: 

0 MINOR VIOLATION OF SECTION: lX MAJOR VIOLATION OF SECTION: 

0 040.030 _ DUST CONTROL 

0 040.055 ODOR/NUISANCE 

D 040.200 

0 OTHER 

DIESEL IDLING 

----------

0 030.000 OPERATING W/O PERMIT 

0 030.2175 VIOLATION OF PERMIT CONDITION 

~ 030.105 ASBESTOS/NESHAP 

~ OTHER 0 30, I 07 

~OL~IONDESCRIPTION:~~~-· -~-~~~~~-~~~-~-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-
~, --~~ ~"~~ 
~~~~': . 
WC~ONOF~O~~N:~-9~1~/~L~'-N~~~· ~~~&~)-L-y~,~g~--fl~~~~~s~,~N~V~.~~~9~¥~3~1_ 
POINTOFOBSE~ION:~-~~N~~~;J~e-J~~~~A~~~-S~t~L~~=~~~~~~~~~--~~~~---
Weather: ¥'fl Wind Direction From: N--E'"""5iN 

Emissions Observed: A///1 
(lf -V-is_u_a_I E_m .......... is~si'-o-ns.;.__P_erf_o_r_m_e_d ___ S_e_e_a_tt_a_c_he_d_P_l_u_m_e_E_v_a_lu-a-ti-on_R_e_co_r_d_) ------

D WARNING ONLY: Effective ____ a.m./p.m. (date) you are hereby ordered to abate the above 
violation within hours/days. I hereby acknowledge receipt of this warning on the date indicated. 

Signature ________________ _ 

iSJ.clTATION: You are hereby notified that effective on /I I :3 (date) you are in violation of the section(s) cited above. You are 
nereby ordered to abate the above violation within ours/days. You may contact the Air Quality Management Division 
to request a negotiated settlement meeting by calling (775) 784-I 00. You are further advised that within 10 working days of the date 
of this Notice of Violation, you may submit a written petition for a peal to the Washoe County Health District, Air Quality Management 
Division, P.O. Box 11130, Reno, Nevada 89520-0027. Failure to submit a petition within the specified time will result in the submis
sion of this Notice of Violation to the District Board of Health with a recommendation for the assessment of an administrative fine. 

GNING THIS FORM IS NOT AN ADMISSION OF GUILT 

Signatur . Date: 2::£'/-fltll~ -~-~IJ 
~s~~~l~~-N-i!!F~Oo::'.'CR_.A~PP~E;,,i;A;:lll!!L~F:::..:O~::.........~~~~~-------- Title:~ ~f ~;_, 
H-AIR-09 (Rev. 04/12) 



DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

MEMORANDUM OIF UNDERSTANDING 

WASHOE COUNTY HEAL TH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

Date: 0'/ j'.:J.o I 3 

Company Name: &,.,.;tt=A.Ji e~ 
Addre?s: · :2..B: 9eJ · 1.LM>4A ~. R.~, NV. 
Notice of Violation No.:. S:2. 7 7 Case No.: //J. '-I 

The staff of the Air Quality Management Division of the Washoe County District 

Health Department issued the above referenced cifation for the violation of 

Regul~~-to!i'.f0.3l>.Lt:J7 _ ~ 

. . 
A settlement of this matter has been negotiated between the undersigned parties 

resulting in a penalty amount of$ ~ 3 ~CJ, '2.5L . This settlement will 

be submitted to the District Board of Health for review at the regularly scheduled 

meeting on ~O 3 

-~4~ 
Signature of District Representie 

Print Name 

Witness 

Witness Witness 

P.O. BOX 11130 Reno, NV 39520-002'7 e © (775) 784-7200 0 FAX (Ii§) 784-7225" 



AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT - ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTY TABLE & 
RECOMMENDED FINE CALCULATION WORKSHEET 



Administrative Penalty Table 

Air Quality Management Division 
Washoe County Health District 

I. Minor Violations - Section 020.040(C) 
Regulation 1st Violation 

040.005 Visible Emissions $ 1,000 
040.030 Dust Control (fugitive) 250 
040.035 Open Fires 500 
040.040 Fire Training 500 
040.050 Incinerator 1,000 
040.051 Woodstoves 500 

. 040. 055 Odors 1, 000 
040.080 Gasoline Transfer (maintenance) 1,000 
040.200 Diesel Idling 500 
050.001 Emergency Episode 1,000 

II. Major Violations - Section 020.040 

R.egu1ation 
030.000 

030.1402 

030.2175 

030.235 

030.000 

Violation 
Construction/Operating without Permit 
(per major process system or unit/day) 

~ailure to Comply with Stop Work Order 

Operation Contrary to Permit Conditions 
(per day or event) 

Failure to Conduct Source Test or Report 
(per Reporting Period for Each Unit) 

All other Major Violations 
(per day or event) 

Construction Without a Dust Control Permit 
Project Size - Less than 1 O acres 
Project Size - 10 acres or more 

Ill. Major Violations - Section 030.107 Asbestos 

A Asbestos Sampling & Notification 

B. Asbestos Control Work Practices 
(per day or event) 

C. Asbestos Containment & Abatement 
(per day or event) 

2nd Violation 
$ 2,500 

750 
1,000 
1,000 
2,000 
1,000 
2,000 
2,000 
1,000 
2,000 

Source Category 
Minimum Maximum 
$ 5,000 $ 10,000 

10,000/day 

5,000 

2,500 

$10,000 

$ 500 + $50 per acre 
$1,00.0 + $50 per acre 

$ 2,000 - $10,000 

$ 5,000 - $10,000 

$ 5,000 - $10,000 

10,000/day 

10,000 

5,000 

$ 10,000 



Company Name 
Contact Name 

Washoe County Air Quality Management 
Permitting & Enforcement Branch 

Recommended Fine Calculation Worksheet 

Built All Construction 
Tom Madrigal 

Case -"#;.....;1....:.1=24-'---- NOV '-'-#5=2"-'-7-"-7 _ _ _ Complaint CMP13-0095 

Violation of Section 030.107 (A) Asbestos Sampling and Notification 

I. Base Penalty as specified in the Penalty Table 
Contractor is new to the area so a lower base penalty was chosen 

= $ __ 4~00_0 __ _ 

II. Severity of Violation 

A. Public Health Impact 

1. Degree of Violation 
(The degree of which the person/company has deviated from the regulatory requirements) 

Minor - 0.5 Moderate - 0. 75 Major - 1.0 Adjustment Factor ....... 1 ....... 0 __ 

2. Toxicity of Release 
Criteria Pollutant - 1 x 

Hazardous Air Pollutant - 2x Adjustment Factor 

3. Environmental/Public Health Risk (Proximity to sensitive environment or group) 

N/A 

Negligible - 1 x Moderate - 1.5x Significant - 2x Adjustment Factor ..._1.=0 __ 

Total Adjustment Factors (1 x 2 x 3) = 1.0 

B. Adjusted Base Penalty 
Base Penalty 4 000 x Adjustment Factor 1.0 = $ 4,000 

C. Multiple Days or Units in Violation 

Adjusted Penalty 4.000 x Number of Days or Units 1.0 = $ 4,000 

D. Economic Benefit 
A voided Costs $ 400 = $ 400 
Cost of Asbestos Survey 

Penalty Subtotal - Recommended Fine 
Adjusted Base Penalty $ 4,000 + Economic Benefit $ __ 4_0_0 ___ _ = $ 4,400 



Ill. Penalty Adjustment Consideration 

A. Degree of Cooperation (O - 25%) - 25 % 

B. Mitigating Factors (O - 25%) - 25 % 
1. Negotiated Settlement 
2. Ability to Pay 

3. Other (explain) 

c. Compliance History 
No Previous Violations (O - 10%) 

Similar Violation in Past 12 months (25 - 50%) + 

Similar Violation within past 3 year (10 - 25%) + 

Previous Unrelated Violation (5 - 25%) + 

Total Penalty Adjustment Factors - sum of A, B, & C 

IV. Recommended/Negotiated Fine 

Penalty Adjustment: 

$ 4.400 
Penalty Subtotal 
(From Section II) 

x -60 % = 
Total Adjustment Factors 
(From Section Ill) 

Additional Credit for Environmental Investment/Training - $400 
Cost for Asbestos Awareness Course for Built All Construction 

Adjusted Penalty: 

$ 4,400 
Penalty Subtotal 
(From Section II) 

$ 3,040 
Total Adjustment Value 

(From Section Ill + Credit) 

10 % 

% 

% 

% 

-60 % 

$ 2,640 
Total Adjustment Value 

$ 1,360 
Negotiated 
Fine 

Date 



Complaint Status: NOV 

Complaint Type: ASBESTOS 

Inspector: WPRICHARD 

COMPLAINT INVESTIGATION REPORT 
Washoe County Air Quality Management Division 

Complaint Number: CMP13-0095 

Source of Complaint: CITIZEN 

Date Received: 07/08/2013 

Inspector Area: 4 

Time: 4:40 P.M. 

Complaint Description: NOV CITATION 5277 CASE 1124 - NO ASBESTOS ASSESSMENT & NO PERMITS 

Address: 911 LINDA WAY SPKS 

Location: 

Parcel Number: 03435222 

Related Permit Number: 

Complainant: 
JIM BROWN 

911 LINDA WAY 
SPARKS NV 89431 
775-786-6070 

Investigation: 

Responsible Party: 
BUIL TALL CONSTRUCTION 
PETER MEYERSON 
2890 VASSAR STREET SUITE #l 7B 
RENO,NV 89502 
702-280-1445 

Removal of material without asbestos assessment and no permits. 

The Air Quality Management Division (AQMD) of the Washoe County District Health Department is 
issuing Notice of Violation #5277 on July 11, 2013, to the company known as BuiltAII Construction 
for removal and demolition of materials before an EPA NESHAP Notification OF DEMOLITION and 
RENOVATION had been obtained by the general contractor. · 

On July 11,2013 Washoe County Air Quality Management Division received a complaint from Jim Brown 
Construction Specialist for the property at 911 Linda Way, Sparks, NV. 89431. This was regarding 
possible asbestos containing material being removed from 911 Linda Way. Complaint #CMP13-0095 was 
generated and assigned to investigator Air Quality Specialist Prichard. 

Specialist Prichard was dispatched to the above address and found that several walls had been 
reiri.oved from the interior of the building. The work had been initiated with removal of walls, 
electrical, and sheetrock by BuiltAll Constructions workmen and the materials were loaded into 
their truck and removed from the premise. 

Specialist Prichard contacted Fred Olson at the City of Sparks building enforcement to confirm if a 
building permit had been issued to BuiltAII Construction. It was confirmed that no building permit 
had been issued by the City of Sparks and Fred Olson had issued a Stop Work Order at the building. 



At that time Mr. Olson did not know who the contractor was and Specialist Prichard found that 
BuiltAll Construction was the responsible patty after speaking with Mr. Brown who manages the 
building. There was never an Asbestos Assessment Acknowledgement Form issued. 

Based on the results of the Air Quality Management Division's investigation a Notice of Violation 
of Section 030.105 and 030. l 07 Asbestos/NESHAP, a Major Violation of National Emission Standards 
for Hazardous Air Pollutants, Citation #5271 was issued on July 11, 2013. 

Enforcement Activities 

Warning Citation .. : 
NOV ...... .. ............. : 

Settlement... .......... : 0712412013 
Appealed ............... : 
Upheld ................... : 

Status Information 

Initialized By ....... : TBURTON 
Date Assigned ..... : 07/08/2013 

Citation Number: 
NOV Number .... : 
Case Number ..... : 
Amount. ........ ... .. : 

Amount. ....... ... .. .. : 

Completed Date ... : 
Completed By ...... : 

5277 
0 

1124 
$0.00 

$0.00 



AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ASBESTOS ASSESSMENT 

FOR BRINKS LOCATED AT 
911 LINDA WAY, SUITE 100, SPARKS NV 

DATED: JULY 24, 2013 



ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF ASBESTOS ASSESSMENT 
Washoe County Air Qt,1ality Management Division 

Permit Number: ASB13-0617 

. . 
Property Owner: CAROL JO CROSBY ET AL 

Property Being Evaluated: BRINKS- SUITE #100 

Address: 911 LINDA WAY SPKS 

TYPE OF PROJECT 
RENO 

TYPE OF PROPERTY 
NON-RES 

FILING FEE: $62.00 /J. 

Phone: 741-2766 

PROPERTY BEING ASSESSED 
PARTIAL* 

*Note: If this project is a partiai renovation and additional work is to be conducted later, additional asbestos assessment(s) will be 
required unless this ass~ssment covers all pertinent representative .asbestos suspected materials throughout the building. 

General Contractor: 
BUIL TALL CONSTRUCTION 
TOMAS MADRIGAL 
2890 VAS SAR# 17B 

. RENO, NV 89502 

Abatement Contractor: 

Consultant or Assessment Company: 
EICS 

2900 VASSAR #503 
RENO, NV 89502 

Assessment Results: ACM ABSENT 

Abatement Completed: 

** No~e.: If asbestos present, abatement must be conducted in accordance with NESI P~nd OSHA Yi u. lattons before renovation or 
demolition work may proceed. ~/ / / • · 

10-DAYNOTIFICATIONMANDATORYFORDEMOLITION /.. VA-..,/.... / / 
Comments: 
Tenant improvement for current occupant Brinks, consisting of removal of demising wall. No ACM 
detected during sampling. Use best management practices for dust control, and dispose of all waste 
properly. 

1 ? Dlte 

Signature on this asbestos assessment document does NOT constitute full Health District approval for this project. Any additional Health 
permits such as are required for bar or restaurant operations, underground storage tanks, hazardous material disposal or air pollution 
sources must be obtained separately. 

Signature by the Washoe County Health District does not warrant, nor should this report be taken to warrant, that asbestos was or was 
not present on stated property. Exposure to even small amounts of airborne asbestos fibers may cause cancer. For this reason the Health 
District reco"!mends that all asbestos handling and abatement work be performed by certified asbestos contractors. 

Washoe County Health District Air Quality Management Division 
1001 E. Ninth St, Suite 8171, Reno, NV 89512 I (775)784-7200 I FAX (775)784-7225 



EICS - BULK SAMPLE ASBESTOS REPORT 
DATED JUNE 28, 2013 

AND 

ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES INC REPORT 
DATED JUNE 28, 2013 

BOTH FOR BRINKS INC LOCATED AT 
911 LINDA WAY, SPARKS NV 



Environmental Inspection & Control Services 

CLIENT 
BuiltAll Construction Co. 
2890 Vassar St #88-17 
Reno, NV 89502 
Mr. Tom Madrigal 
LOCATION 
911 Linda Way #100 
Sparks, NV 
PURPOSE OF INSPECTION 
Planned tenant improvement 
REFERENCES 
Exhibit A 
Asbestos TEM Laboratories report 122715 

June 28, 2013 

Background 
EICS was engaged by the client to inspect the above noted location for the presence of asbestos containing materials 
(acm). The site consists of a one story tilt wall warehouse. The age of the building was approximately 22 years. The 
client indicated plans to disturb several interior non-load bearing walls in the course of a tenant improvement project. 
The inspection was performed on June 27, 2013 by Lawrence G. Thir, owner and senior hygienist of EICS. Access 
was provided by the client. · 

Inspection 
I first discussed the project with the client. I carefully inspected the affected areas for suspect acm. I wetted and using 
a clean sharp instrument, extracted 4 bulk samples of suspect acm from the targeted areas. Each sample was placed 
in an individual sealed and labeled container and logged on a chain of custody. The samples were packaged and 
taken to Asbestos TEM Laboratories in Sparks, NV for 24 hr. analysis by polarized light microscopy (PLM) using EPA 
method 600/R-93/116. 

Sample no. 
1 
2 
3 
4 

Location 
Laboratory results 

Material 
Restrm. S. wall 
Restrm. W.wall 
Warehouse W. wall 
Warehouse S. wall 

Wall surface texture 
Wall surface texture 
Wall surface texture 
Wall surface texture 

Discussion and recommendations 

Asbestos content 
None detected 
None detected 
None detected 
None detected 

USEPA and NV DEISH consider any building material with asbestos content greater than 1% as asbestos containing 
material (ACM). The above note materials were found with no asbestos content. They may be disturbed with no 
precautionary measures for asbestos exposure. 

Limitation 
This report is applicable only to the area of the building, herein discussed. Destructive/invasive investigation was not 
performed. 

Thank you for the opportunity to be of service. If you have any questions, please call me at (775)786-2800. 

R~~lly sub itted, ~' 
~~hir 

EICS-Senior Hygienist 
IJPM0080 

2900 Vassar Street #503 

Reno, NV 89502 

eicsnevada.com 

thir_eics@hotmail.com 

PH. (775) 786-2800 

FAX. (7715) 786-9599 



0 I . 

ExhA 

Office area 

warehouse 
-

Restrwm 

·12 3/ 
Wall <femorrticm 

I 

. : 

inda Way #WO Spaf"f.s, NV vl 
~;~711~ ' 
ence G. Thir ~ .,_ / 

I Pfof01181J 



ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES, INC. 

EPA Method 600/R-93/116 
Polarized Light Microscopy 

Analytical Report 

Report No. 122715 

1350 Freeport Blvd., Unit 104 
Sparks, NV 89431 

(775) 359-3377 
FAX (775) 359-2798 

With Main Office Located At: 
630 Bancroft Way, Berkeley, CA 94710 

Ph. (510) 704-8930 Fax (510) 704-8929 



ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORJES, INC 

Jun-28-13 

Mr. Larry Thir 

E.l.C.S. 

2900 Vassar Street, #503 

Reno, NV 89502 

RE: LABORATORY JOB# 875-### 
Polarized light microscopy analytical results for 4 bulk sample(s). 
Job Site: 911 Linda Way #100, Sparks 
Job No.: BAC62713-2 
Report No.: 122715 

Accredited by 

OOW~&,@)~ 
NVLAP Lab Code 200104-0 

Enclosed please find the bulk material analytical results for one or more samples submitted for asbestos analysis. 
The analyses were performed in accordance with EPA Method 600/R-93/116 or 600/M4-82-020 for the determination 
of asbestos in bulk building materials by polarized light microscopy (PLM). Please note that while PLM analysis is 
commonly performed on non-friable and fine grained materials such as floor tiles and dust, the EPA method 
recognizes that PLM is subject to limitations. In these situations, accurate results may only be obtainable through 
the use of more sophisticated and accurate teclmiques such as transmission electron microscopy (TEM) or X-ray 
diffraction (XRD). 

Prior to analysis, samples are logged-in and all data pertinent to the sample recorded. The samples are checked for 
damage or disruption of any chain-of-custody seals. A unique laboratory ID number is assigned to each sample. 
A hard copy log-in sheet containing all pertinent information concerning the sample is generated. This and all 
other relevant paper work are kept with the sample throughout the analytical procedures to assure proper analysis. 

Each sample is opened in a class 100 HEPA negative air hood. A representative sampling of the material is selected 
and placed onto a glass microscope slide containing a drop of refractive index oil. The glass slide is placed under a 
polarizing light microscope where standard mineralogical techniques are used to analyze and quantify the various 
materials present, including asbestos. The data is then compiled into standard report format and subjected to a 
thorough quality assurance check before the information is released to the client. 

For possible future reference, samples are normally kept on file for one year. 

Sincerely Yours, 

Laboratory Analyst 
ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES, INC. 

--- These results relate only to the samples tested and must not be reproduced, except in full, with the approval of 
the laboratory. This report must not be used to claim product endorsement by NVLAP or any other agency of the 
U.S. Government. ---

1350 Freeport Blvd. Unit 104 • Sparks, NV 89431 • (775) 359-3377 • FAX (775) 359-2798 

With Main Office in Berkeley, CA (510) 704-8930 



Accredited by 

Contact: Mr. Larry Thir 

Address: E.I.C.S. 

POLARIZED LIGHT MICROSCOPY 
ANALYTICAL REPORT 
EPA Method 600/R-93/116 or 600/M4-82-020 

Samples Indicated: 4 Report No. 
Reg. Samples Analyzed: 4 Date Submitted: 
Split Layers Analyzed: 0 

Page: ! of! 

122715 

Jun-27-13 

Jun-28-13 Date Reported: 
2900 Vassar Street, #503 

Job Site I No. 911 Linda Way #100, Sparks 
Reno, NV 89502 

BAC62713-2 

OTHER DATA 
DESCRIPTION 1) Non-Asbestos Fibers 

SAMPLE ID ASBESTOS 2l Matrix Materials FIELD 
3 DatefTlme Collected 

% TYPE 4) Date Analyzed LAB 

1. 
1) 1-5% Cellulose Wall Surface Texture, Restroom South Wall 

None Detected 2)95-99% Cale, Paint, Otherm.p. 

Lab ID# 875-02191-001 3) 4) Jun-28-13 Texture-Blue/White 

2. 
1) 1-5% Cellnlose Wall Surface Texture, Restroom West Wall 

None Detected 2) 95-99% Cale, Paint, Other m.p. 

Lab ID# 875-02191-002 3) 4) Jun-28-13 Texture-Blue/White 

3. 
1)5-10% Cellulose Wall Surface Texture, Warehouse West Wall 

None Detected 2)90-95% Paint, Cale, Otherm.p. 

Lab ID# 875-02191-003 3) 4) Jun-28-13 Texture-Brown/White 

4. 1) 1-5% Cellulose Wall Surface Texture, Warehouse South Wall 

None Detected 2)95-99% Paint, Cale, Otherm.p. 

Lab ID# 875-02191-004 3) 4)Jun-28-13 Texture-White 

1) 

2) 

LabID# t3) 4) 

1) 
2) 

Lab ID# 3) 4) 

1) 
2) 

Lab ID# 3) 4) 

1) 
2) 

LabID # 3) 4) 

1) 
2) 

Lab ID# 3) 4) 

1) 
2) 

Lab ID# 3) 4) 

Limit of Quantitation of Method is Estimated to be 1 % Asbestos Using a Visual Area Estimati n Technique 

Laboratory Analyst"---"":::.....;::........,..c....,,,"-~'--~~-fL---___ _ 
Greg Hanes 

ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES, INC. 1350 Freeport Blvd., Unit 104, Sparks, NV 89431 (775) 359-3377 
With Main Office in Berkeley, CA (510) 704-8930 



___ ..---~-· ·· .. . 

ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES, INC 
I 

I· 1350 Freeport Blvd., Unit #104 * Spark$, NV 89431 • Ph: (775) 369-3377 " Faxi (775) 359-2798 
Home office at: 630 Bancroft Way " Berkeley, CA 94710 • Ph: (510) 704-8930 " Fax: (510) 704-8429 

***BULK SAMPLE SUBMISSION FORM I CHA/N .. Q '..CU ODY*""' 
rs:· '/1 ~ . 

Company; . ?/Le[ ·. -....;._2 hr _4 hr 

Address: -~ ltJe) JA: ?f. Job Site; g..L.-..:L~~~~tH--C---L.....;..__.;:;:.JLL~..., 
City-State-Zip: Job No: !f;!et:z.!Jf .LP.0.#: -----

Email:-----------------------------
Samnle'Number Sanmle Descrfotfon . Samnle Location 

. . I /,/1141/ f/1u~~Fll'~h~Y /?~rfit?t.?#1 -e / 7/7i1!1 
. ti II fl R'hr:r~l"h h) hJ~I/ I 

; II // /I u/J.!,r)-',#t?vrl. h}, 1. l/J.tl I 
JI /I // ////l~fllt?l/(I'; /?~ /}}#// 

7 -, 

• 

" 

I 

I .te- '011/ Special nstructions._--'-~-~---------------------

Received by Date/Time 

~ r:r1l1.g 
1.-!.!~=.!!C!.:l-=:=:!!~---!!.:!!!::::~ 

3~.3t)fi 

Name/Com n 

Si nature · SI nature 

Y:lfo .... _11a1e~~llulks,ab2C11-M.doo Send original to lab· keep yellow copy Page __ of __ 



DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8. A.1. b. 

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

Recommendation 

September 26, 2013 

District Board of Health 

Daniel Inouye, Acting Director, Air Quality Management 

Bailor Construction - Case No. 1125 
Unappealed Citation No. 5278 
Agenda Item: 8. A. 1. b. 

Public Health 
Pre vent . Promote. Prolect 

Air Quality Management Division Staff recommends that Citation No. 5278 be upheld and a fine of $2,000 be levied 
against Bailor Construction for failure to have an asbestos survey performed by a qualified person and submitted to Air 
Quality for the issuance of an Acknowledgement of Asbestos Assessment prior to the demolition/renovation of a 
commercial facility. Conducting demolition/renovation activities without obtaining an asbestos survey and an 
Acknowledgement of Asbestos Assessment is a major violation of the District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air 
Quality Management, specifically Section 030.105(B)(10) National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants 
(NESHAP), Subpart M - Asbestos, which is implemented through Section 030.107(A), Hazardous Air Pollutants, 
Asbestos Sampling and Notification. This is a negotiated settlement. 

Recommended Fine: $5,400.00 Negotiated Fine: $2,000.00 

Background 

On July 11, 2013, Washoe County Air Quality Management Division received an anonymous citizen complaint regarding 
a commercial building located at 609 Sierra Rose Drive, Unit #3, in Reno. The complainant was concerned about the 
disturbance of possible asbestos containing materials associated with demolition/renovation activities at that address. A 
review of the Air Quality Management records determined an Asbestos Acknowledgement Form had not been 
completed for any renovation activities at that location. 

Air Quality Specialist II Wallace Prichard was dispatched to the above address and found that several walls had been 
removed from the interior of Unit #3. During his investigation, AQ Specialist Prichard was able to determine the work 
had been initiated by Bailor Construction, acting as a subcontractor for Bison Construction. The suspect materials were 
illegally removed and hauled away for disposal utilizing pickup trucks on the jobsite. AQ Specialist Prichard made 
contact with Mr. Greg Bailor, owner of Bailor Construction, to inquire about the asbestos survey and Acknowledgement 
of Asbestos Assessment required for the removal of any suspect asbestos containing materials. Mr. Bailor informed AQ 
Specialist Prichard that he thought all of the permits had been obtained by the general contractor, Mr. John Martin, Bison 
Construction. AQ Specialist Prichard instructed Mr. Bailor to stop work immediately until a determination could be made 
regarding the status of the required permits. 

P.O. BOX 11130 Reno, NV 89520-0027 • (775) 784-7200 •FAX (775) 784-7225 
www.ourcleanair.com 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8. A. 1. b. 



September 26, 2013 
DBOH I Bailor Construction I Case 1125 
Page 2 

AQ Specialist Prichard was able to confirm an asbestos survey had not been completed and submitted to Air Quality in 
order to obtain the required Acknowledgment of Asbestos Assessment. AQ Specialist Prichard also contacted Mr. Bill 
Warner, City of Reno Building Department, and confirmed a building permit had not been issued to Bison Construction 
for activities in Unit #3. 

Mr. Martin, Bison Construction, contracted with Lisa Monroe & Associates and an asbestos survey was performed on 
July 11, 2013. The laboratory results from the survey found no asbestos detected. On July 15, 2013, Mr. Martin 
submitted a copy of the asbestos survey to Air Quality Management and obtained an Acknowledgement of Asbestos 
Assessment. 

Based on the results of the file review and investigation, AQ Specialist Prichard issued Notice of Violation Citation No. 
5278 to Bailor Construction for a major violation of Section 030.107 (A), Asbestos Sampling and Notification. On July 
24, 2013 the citation was delivered by certified mail to Mr. Bailor in Carson City. 

Settlement 

On August 15, 2013, Senior AQ Specialist Dennis Cerfoglio conducted a negotiated settlement meeting attended by AQ 
Specialist Prichard and Mr. Greg Bailor. After careful consideration of all the facts in the case, AQ Specialist Cerfoglio 
recommended that Citation No. 5278 be upheld with a fine of $2,000. A Memorandum of Understanding was signed by 
all parties. 

Alternatives 

1. The District Board of Health may determine that no violation of the Regulations has taken place and dismiss 
Citation No. 5278. 

2. The Board may determine to uphold Citation No. 5278 but levy any fine in the range of $0 to $10,000 per day. 

In the event the Board determines to change the proposed penalty, the matter should be continued so that Mr. 
Bailor and Bailor Construction may be properly noticed. 

Daniel Inouye, Acting Division Director 
Air Quality Management 

DI/DC: ma 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

1001 EAST NINTH ST.• SUITE 8171 •RENO NV 89512 
(775) 784-7200 

NOTICE OF VIOLATION 

. /I,_ V 

NOV 5 2 7 8 DATE ISSUED: 0 7 /I I fa() I 3 , 
ISSUED TO: ----=f.3-~~::;....::· """"--~------ PHONE#: <6 '{CJ - 0 S 3 '-/ 

MAILINGADDRESS: eo- Bax:. :l 12 31 CITY/ST: e~ e-4,N~: <;?97:i.1 

NAME/OPERATOR: GA~& .A . ·B~ PHONE#:------- - --

PERMIT NO. ____________ COMPLAINT NO. C tv'I P 13 - ooqq 

YOUAREHEREBYOFFICIALLYNOTIFIEDTHATON 7 //1/:J.e;/ 3 (DATE)AT 9. '3tJ .14 ltl(TIME), 
YOU ARE IN VIOLATION OF THE FOLLOWING SECTION(S)OF THE WASHOE COUNTY DISTRICT BOARD 
OF HEALTH REGULATIONS GOVERNING AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT: 

0 MINOR VIOLATION OF SECTION: 0 MAJOR VIOLATION OF SECTION: 

0 040.030 _ DUST CONTROL 0 030.000 OPERATING W/O PERMIT 

0 040.055 ODOR/NUISANCE 0 030.2175 VIOLATION OF PERMIT CONDITION 

LOCATIONOFVIOLATION: ~t!J 1 .. <2,,.1~ R.odle D.,, . R-Vl(t.O, /JI/. 
POINTOFOBSERVATION: I~ ~ # 3 
Weather: J!f1 A Wind Direction From: N E S W 

Emissions Observed: N /A 
(lf-V-is_u_a_I E- m- is..,.si ..... o-ns- P-erf_o_r_m_e_d ___ S_e_e_a_tt_a_c_he_d_P_lu_m_e_E_v_a_lu-a-ti-on_R_e_co_r_d_) - -----

D WARNING ONLY: Effective ____ a.m./p.m. (date) you are hereby ordered to abate the above 
violation within hours/days. I hereby acknowledge receipt of this warning on the date indicated. 

Signature ___ ~M-f-0~~~-----------
7 

~ CITATION: You are hereby notified that effective on date) you are in violation of the section(s) cited above. You are 
hereby ordered to abate the above violation within : tf; days. You may contact the Air Quality Management Division 
to request a negotiated settlement meeting by calling (775) 784- . ou are further advised that within 10 working days of the date 
of this Notice of Violation, you may submit a written petition for appeal to the Washoe County Health District, Air Quality Management 
Division, P.O. Box 11130, Reno, Nevada 89520-0027. Failure to submit a petition within the specified time will result in the submis
sion of this Notice of Violation to the District Board of Health with a recommendation for the assessment of an administrative fine. 

SIGNING THIS FORM IS NOT AN ADMISSION OF GUILT 

Signature: · ~ 

lssuedby: ~~L~~ 
0 PETITION FR APPEAL FORM RoVIDED 

Date: 

Title:d-~--a-, L-H'-t.~7-~ 
H·AIR-09 (Rev. 04/12) 



Date: 

DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

8 /IS I ;lD/3 
I J 

Company Name: G-A.ej A. 
Address: · Pa . -Ba¢: .:l..1 2 3 I 

A~ 
c~ C;;I;;, NV 

\. 

Notice of Violation No.:. 5~ 7 ~ Case No.: _ _,./_._/--'-J.._S __ _ 

The staff of the Air Quality Management Division of the Washoe County District 

Health Department issued the above referenced citation for the violation of 

Regulation: 5~ ()30, /(!)~ ~ 030. /C 7 
t'to~//VEStlA/? 

I 

Print Name Print Name 

Title 

Witness 

Witness Witness 

P.O. BOX 11130 JReno, NV 39520-0027 © ® (775) 784-7200 ©FAX (775) 784-7225'' 



AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT - ADMINISTRATIVE PENAL TY TABLE & 
. RECOMMENDED FINE CALCULATION WORKSHEET 



Administrative Penalty Table 

Air Quality Management Division 
Washoe County Health District 

I. Minor Violations - Section 020.040(C) 
Regulation 1st Violation 

040.005 Visible Emissions $ 1,000 
040.030 Dust Control (fugitive) 250 
040.035 Open Fires 500 
040.040 Fire Training 500 
040.050 Incinerator 1,000 
040.051 Woodstoves 500 
040.055 Odors 1,000 
040.080 Gasoline Transfer (maintenance) 1,000 
040.200 Diesel Idling 500 
050.001 Emergency Episode 1,000 

II. Major Violations - Section 020.040 

Regulation 
030.000 

030.1402 

030.2175 

030.235 

030.000 

Violation 
Construction/Operating without Permit 
(per major process system or unit/day) 

Failure to Comply with Stop Work Order 

Operation Contrary to Permit Conditions 
(per day or event) 

Failure to Conduct Source Test or Report 
(per Reporting Period for Each Unit) 

All other rylajor Violations 
(per day or event) 

Construction Without a Dust Control Permit 
Project Size - Less than 1 O acres 
Project Size - 10 acres or more 

Ill. Major Violations - Section 030.107 Asbestos 

A Asbestos Sampling & Notification 

B. Asbestos Control Work Practices 
(per day or event) 

C. Asbestos Containment & Abatement 
(per day or event) 

2"d Violation 
$ 2,500 

750 
1,000 
1,000 
2,000 
1,000 
2,000 
2,000 · 
1,000 
2,000 

Source Category 
Minimum · Maximum 
$ 5,000 $ 10,000 

10,000/day 

5,000 

2,500 

$10,000 

$ 500 + $50 per acre 
$1,000 + $50 per acre 

$ 2,000 - $10,000 

$ 5,000 -$10,000 

$ 5,000 - $10,000 

10,000/day 

10,000 

5,000 

$ 10,000 



Company Name 
Contact Name 

Washoe County Air Quality Management 
Permitting & Enforcement Branch 

Recommended Fine Calculation Worksheet 

Bailor Construction 
Greg Bailor 

Case #1125 NOV #5278 
""----'---~---

Complaint CMP13-0099 ------

Violation of Section 030.107 (A) Asbestos Sampling and Notification 

I. Base Penalty as specified in the Penalty Table = $ __ 5~,_oo_o __ _ 

II. Severity of Violation 

A. Public Health Impact 

1. Degree of Violation 
(The degree of which the person/company has deviated from the regulatory requirements) 

Minor- 0.5 Moderate - 0. 75 Major- 1.0 Adjustment Factor ' ...:..;1."""0 __ 

2. Toxicity of Release 
Criteria Pollutant - 1 x 
Hazardous Air Pollutant - 2x Adjustment Factor 

3. Environmental/Public Health Risk (Proximity to sensitive environment or group) 

N/A 

Negligible - 1 x Moderate - 1.5x Significant - 2x Adjustment Factor _1._0 __ 

Total Adjustment Factors (1 x 2 x 3) = 1.0 

B. Adjusted Base Penalty 
Base Penalty 5 000 x Adjustment Factor 1.0 = $ 5,000 

c. Multiple Days or Units in Violation 

Adjusted Penalty 5,000 x Number of Days or Units 1.0 = $ 5,000 

D. Economic Benefit 
Avoided Costs$ 400 = $ 400 
Cost of Asbestos Survey 

Penalty Subtotal - Recommended Fine 
Adjusted Base Penalty $ 5,000 +Economic Benefit $_~4~0~0 ____ = $ 5,400 



Ill. Penalty Adjustment Consideration 

A. Degree of Cooperation (O - 25%) - 25 % 

B. Mitigating Factors (O - 25%) - 25 % 
1. Negotiated Settlement 
2. Ability to Pay 
3. Other (explain) 

C. Compliance History 
No Previous Violations (0 - 10%) --~10~_ % 

Similar Violation in Past 12 months (25 - 50%) + _____ % 

Similar Violation within past 3 year (1 o -25%) + _____ % 

Previous Unrelated Violation (5 - 25%) + _____ % 

Total Penalty Adjustment Factors - sum of A, B, & C 

IV. Recommended/Negotiated Fine 

Penalty Adjustment: 

$ 5.400 
Penalty Subtotal 
(From Section II) 

x -6Q 0/o = 
Total Adjustment Factors 
(From Section Ill) 

Additional Credit for Environmental Investment/Training - NIA 

Adjusted Penalty: 

$ 5.400 
Penalty Subtotal 
(From Section II) 

$ 3.240 
Total Adjustment Value 

(From Section Ill+ Credit) 

= 

-60 % 

$ -3,240 
Total Adjustment Value 

$ 2,000 
Negotiated 
Fine 

Date 



Complaint Status: NOV 

Complaint Type: ASBESTOS 

Inspector: WPRICHARD 

COMPLAINT INVESTIGATION REPORT 
Washoe County Air Quality Management Division 

Complaint Number: CMP13-0099 

Source of Complaint: CITIZEN 

Date Received: 07/11/2013 

Inspector Area: 3 

Time: 8:23:00 AM 

Complaint Description: NOV CITATION 5278 CASE 1125 *NOV CITATION 5279 CASE 1126-ASBESTOS 
WORK IN A COMMERCIAL BUILDING WITH NO AQ PERMITS - LOADIN 

Address: 609 SIERRA ROSE DR RENO 

Location: UNIT 3 OR 4 

Parcel Number: 04094135 

Related Permit Number: 

Complainant: 
ANONYMOUS 

Investigation: . 

Responsible Party: 
BISON CONSTRUCTION 
JOHN MARTIN (OWNER) 
P.OBOX3198 
CARSON CITY NV 89702 
775-849-1850 

Asbestos Work in a commercial building with no Air Quality permit. Also loading a truck with sheet 
rock. 

The Air Quality Management Division (AQMD) of the Washoe County District Health Department is 
issuing Notice of Violation #5279 on July 11, 2013, to thy company known as Bison Construction for 
removal and demolition of materials before an EPA NESHAP Notification OF DEMOLITION and 

RENOVATION 
was issued. 

On July 11, 2013 Washoe County Air Quality Management Division received a complaint from an 
anonymous caller regarding possible asbestos containing material being removed from Unit #3 at 609 
Sierra Rose Drive, Reno. Complaint #CMP13-0099 was generated and assigned to investigator Air 
Quality Specialist Prichard. 

AQ Specialist Prichard was dispatched to the above address and found that several walls had been 
removed from the interior of the Unit #3. The work had been initiated with removal of walls, 
electrical, and sheetrock by Greg A. Bailor's workmen. Greg A. Bailor is a subcontractor and was 
conducting the removal of materials that were then loaded into their truck and disposed of. 



AQ Specialist Prichard contacted Bill Warner at the City of Reno to confirm if a building permit 
had been issued to Bison Construction for 609 Sie1rn Rose Drive, Unit #3. It was confinned that no 
building permit had been issued by the City of Reno to Bison Construction. Also after checking the 
data base at Air Quality and speaking with Mr. John Maiiin, the owner of Bison Construction, 
investigation showed that there was no asbestos survey for the property submitted. Therefore, the 
Asbestos Assessment Acknowledgement F01m was never issued from the Air Quality Mgmt office. 

After being notified of the violation and that all work was to be ceased, Mr. Martin hired Lisa 
Monroe & Associates, Inc. Lisa Monroe's company conducted an asbestos bulk sampling analysis. The 
test was completed on 07/11/2013 and all samples were listed as no asbestos detected. 

Mr. Martin obtained an Acknowledgment of Asbestos Assessment (ASB13-0593) from Washoe County Air 
Quality Management Division on July 15, 2013. 

Based on the results of the Air Quality Management Division's investigation a Notice of Violation 
of Section 030.105 and 030.107 Asbestos/NESHAP, a Major Violation of National Emission Standards 

· for Hazardous Air Pollutants a 
Notice of Violation Citation #5279 has been issued on July 11, 2013. 

Enforcement Activities 

Warning Citation .. : Citation Number: 5278 
NOV ..................... : 07/11/2013 NOV Number .... : 5279 

Case Number ..... : 1125 
Settlement.. ........... : Amount... ........... : $0.00 
Appealed ............... : 
Upheld ................... : Amount.. ............. : $0.00 

Status Information 

Initialized By ....... : MAMES Completed Date ... : 
Date Assigned ..... : 07/11/2013 Completed By ...... : 



AIR QUAUTY MANAGEMENT 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ASBESTOS ASSESSMENT 

FOR RENO DIAGNOSTICS - SUITE C, UNIT 3 LOCATED AT 
609 SIERRA ROSE DRIVE, RENO 

DATED: JULY 15, 2013 



ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF ASBESTOS ASSESSMENT 
Washoe County Air Quality Management Division 

Permit Number: ASB13-0593 

Property Owner: RIBEmO COMP ANY Phone: 775-825-4646 

Property Being Evaluated: T.I. - FOR RENO DIAGNOSTICS SUITE C BLDG 3 - NEW BILLING CENTER. 

Address: 609 SIERRA ROSE DR RENO 

TYPE OF PROJECT 
RENO 

TYPE OF PROPERTY 
NON-RES 

FILING FEE: $62.00 /,/ 

PROPERTY BEING ASSESSED 
PARTIAL* 

*Note: If this project is a partial renovation and additional work is to be conducted later, additional asbestos assessment(s) will be 
required unless this assessment covers all pertinent representative asbestos suspected materials throughout the building. 

General Contractor: 
BISON CONSTRUCTION 
JOHN MARTIN 
POBOX3198 
CARSON CITY, NV 89702 

Abatement Contractor: 

Consultant or Assessment Company: 
LISA MONROE & AS SOCIA TES 

POBOX2252 
SP ARKS, NV 89431 

Assessment Results: ACM ABSENT 

Abatement Completed: 

** Note: If asbestos present, abatement must be conducted in accordance with NESHAP and OSHA regulations before renovation or 
demolition work may proceed. . . 

10-DAY NOTIFICATION MANDATORY FOR DEMOLITION 
Owner I Represe0tative's Name 

Comments: 
T.I. - Interior remodel for new Reno Diagnostics billing center. Sampling found NO ACM present. Use 
best methods of dust control during construction and dispose of waste properly. 

Health District Representive < / Date 

Signature on this asbestos assessment document does NOT constitute full Health District approval for this project. Any additional Health 
permits such as are required for bar or restaurant operations, underground storage tanks, hazardous material disposal or air pollution 
sources must be obtained separately. 

Signature by the Washoe County Health District does not warrant, nor should this report be taken to warrant, that asbestos was or was 
not present on stat~d property. Exposure to even small amounts of airborne asbestos fibers may cause cancer. For this reason the Health 
District recommends that all asbestos handling and abatement work be performed by certified asbestos contractors. 

Washoe County Health District Air Quality Management Division 
1001 E. Ninth St, Suite 8171, Reno, NV 89512 / (775)784-7200 I FAX (775)784-7225 



USA MONROE & ASSOCIATES ASBESTOS SAMPUNG AND TESTING REPORTS FOR 
RENO DIAGNOSTICS, SUITE C, UNIT 3 LOCATED AT 

609 SIERRA ROSE DRIVE, RENO NEVADA 

DATED: JULY 11, 2013 



Lisa Monroe & Associates, Inc. 
P.O. Box 2252 

Sparks, NV 89432 
Phone/Fax: 775-355-1011 

Email Address: LM-ASSOCIAT ES(a)ATT.NET 

Bulk Sample Asbestos Report 

Date of Report: 7-15-13 Date ofinspection: 7-11-13 

Company/Client: Bison Construction 

Address: P.O. Box3198 

City, State & Zip: Carson City, NV 89702 

Building Name: 

Building Address: 609 Sierra Rose Drive, Reno, Nevada 

Area of Building Inspected: Suite #3 

A survey was performed at 609 Sierra Rose Drive on July 11, 2013 . The inspection involved the 
collection of 6 bulk samples from the existing materials where the walls have been removed. The 
suspect asbestos containing materials that were sampled include wall texture and joint compound. 
The laboratory analysis shows no asbestos detected in the materials that were tested. 

Asbestos Overview 

Environmental regulatory agencies and health professionals consider any substance with an 
, asbestos content of one percent or greater to pose a significant health hazard in the event of 

disturbance. Asbestos was used in a wide variety of building materials, such as thermal or 
acoustical insulators or as a binder for tensile strength. Some examples of where asbestos can be 
found include spray acoustic on ceilings, wall textures, joint compounds, floor tiles, linoleum 
flooring and the mastic used to adhere the flooring. Because asbestos containing building 
materials are still being manufactured, mainly in other countries, all building materials that will 
be disturbed by renovation or demolition activities should be tested for asbestos content. 

The inspection that was performed involved only the areas that the client requested and the 
delivery of this report does not guarantee that all asbestos was identified or that all suspect 
asbestos containing materials were sampled within the building. 

Submitted by: 

Li.Mv D. /\101IW"~ President 

Lisa Monroe & Associates, Inc. 
NV DIROSHES: IJPM0061 
CAC: 92-0660 



' I 

________ E...,aj] ~~~~r~~~~ ~ 
SPECIALISTS IN ASBESTOS-RELATED ANALYSIS 

Bulk Sample Analysis (PLM) Report Report# 130712001 

Lisa Monroe & Associates 
P.O. Box 2252 
Sparks, NV 89432 

Phone: (775) 355-1011 

Sample Number Sample Location 
13-8791-1 Northwest 

Lab# 13-243453 

13-8791-2 Southeast wall 
Lab# 13-243454 . 

13-8791-3 Southwest wall 
Lab# 13-243455 

i 
13'-8791-4 J South wall 

Lah# 13-243456 i 
I 
i 
! 

13-8791-5 / East wall 
Lab# 13-243457 

' 
i 
I 

13-8791-6 Northwest wall 
Lab# 13-243458 

Date Collected: 07/11/13 
Date Received: 07/12/13 
Date Analyzed: 07/12/13 

.fob Information: 
13-8791 
609 Siena Rose Drive, Suite 3 

Sample Description Analytical Results 
White texture I No asbestos detected 

I 
White texture ! No asbestos detected 

White texture No asbestos detected 

White joint compound No asbestos detected 

White joint compound No asbestos detected 

I 
I 
I 

j White joint compound I No asbestos detected 
I 

I I 

I I 
I l • 

OFFICIAL NOTICE: After 45 days, samples are disposed of through a licensed waste hauler, unless client requests their return. 

Total number of samples: 6 Page 1-ofl 

.; ult findings are made to the methodologies and paramete 

3463 Ramona Ave., Suite 17 • Sacramento, CA 95826 • (916) 456-4892 • Fax (916)'456-1082 



CITATION NOTIFICATION SENT CERTIFIED MAIL TO GREG A. BAILOR FROM 
WASHOE COUNTY AIR QUAUTY MANGEMENT DIVISION, WALLACE PRICHARD 

RECEIVED JULY 29, 2013 



;~u.s. Postal Ser.vice,"" - . - . 
CERTIFIED KtfAIL:,,. RECEIPT ' 
(Domestic Mail Only; No Insurance Coverage Provided) 

Postage $ 
1---- - - -1 

Certified Fee 
.:r 
Cl Retum Receipt Fee 
Cl (Endorsement Required) 
Cl 1--- --- - --i 

Restricted Delivery Fee 
Cl (Endorsement Required) 
I"- 1--- - - - - --';l 

lT" Total Postage & Fees $ ru '--'------~ 

r-'I 11n1 70 

r-=i •• ,---.. - -._,__ •• Y\'-"-- -~·=v:.c;.~ .4 .. ~s;>.,.'!\c:i..G. _ __ ____ _ 
Cl S1reo1. RPI ... o.; r:' 
I"- ~:_<?.~.~~-~()--~~~-~~_\ ____ ___ ___________ _ 

City, Stot11, ZIP+4 ~ - , N '6: 
i: ll I 

SENDER: COMPLETE THIS SECTION 

• Complete Items 1, 2, and 3. Also complete 
item 4 if Restricted Delivery is desired. 

• Print your name and address on the reverse 
so that we can return the card to you. 

• Attach this card to the back of the mailpiece, 
or on the front If space permits. 

DYes 
1. Article Addressed to: · ddress below: 0 No 

·V\r- l\C""' -!\ · -:b~ .. \~< 
1>-<J • }:Jes~ Q) \(;)._3 \ 

t,~!:l~r-. \_,\\:> :;'\_V i~1a \ 
' 

3. Service Type 
IW'Certifled Mall 
0 Registered 
D Insured Mall 

2. Article Number 
(rransfer from service labeQ 

PS Form 3811, February 2004 

D Express Mail 
D Return Receipt for Merchandise 
oc.o.o. 

4. Restricted Delivery? (Extra Fee) D Yes 

7011 2970 0004 2282 9134 \,,:f? 
Domestic Return Receipt 102595-02-M· 1540 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

July 24, 2013 

Mr. Greg A. Bailor 
Nevada License #44094 
P.O. Box 21231 
Carson City, Nevada 89721 

Re: 609 Sierra Rosa Drive, Unit #3, Reno, NV 

Dear Mr. Bailor: 

Public Health 
Pr event9 Promote. Protect. 

The Air Quality Management Division (AQMD) of the Washoe County District 
Health Department is issuing Notice of Violation #5278 on July 11, 2013, to the 
company known as Greg A. Bailor for removal and demolition of materials before 
an EPA NESHAP Notification OF DEMOLITION and RENOVATION was issued 
to the general contractor Bison Construction. 

On July 11,2013 Washoe County Air Quality Management Division received a 
complaint from an anonymous caller regarding possible asbestos containing 
material being removed from Unit #3 at 609 Sierra Rose Drive, Reno. Complaint 
#CMP13-0099 was generated and assigned to investigator Air Quality Specialist 
Prichard. 

Specialist Prichard was dispatched to the above address and found that several 
walls had been removed from the interior of the Unit #3. The work had been 
initiated with removal of walls, electrical, and sheetrock by Greg A. Sailor's 
workmen and the materials were loaded into their truck and removed from the 
premise. 

Specialist Prichard contacted Bill Warner at the City of Reno to confirm if a 
building permit had been issued to Bison Construction for 609 Sierra Rose Drive, 
Unit #3. It was confirmed that no building permit had been issued by the City of 
Reno to Bison Construction. Also after checking the data base at Air Quality and 
speaking with Mr. John Martin, the owner of Bison Construction, investigation 
showed that there was no asbestos survey for the property submitted. Therefore, 
the Asbestos Assessment Acknowledgement Form was never issue. 

Based on the results of the Air Quality Management Division's investigation a 
Notice of Violation of Section 030.105 and 030.107 Asbestos/NESHAP, a Major 
Violation of National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants a 
Citation #5278 has been issued on July 11, 2013. 

P.O. BOX 11130 Reno, NV 89520-0027 • (775) 784-7200 • FAX (775) 784-7225 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

Printed on Recycled Paper 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

Public Health 
Prevent. Promote . Protect . 

Following the issuance of a notice of violation (NOV), there are two (2) options for 
addressing the issues. These options include: 1) an appeal may be heard by the 
Air Pollution Control Hearing Board; or 2) a Memorandum of Und.erstanding may 
be executed between the parties if a negotiated settlement can be arrived at. 

An appeal form has been included for your convenience. Please contact either 
Dennis Cerfoglio, Permitting/Compliance Supervisor at 775-784-7232, or myself at 
775-784-7212 to discuss your preference for the resolution of this matter. 

Wallace P. Prichard Ph.D 
Air Quality Specialist II 

Enclosures 

Appeal of Violation 

Certified Mail # 7011 2970 0004 2282 9134 

P.O. BOX 11130 Reno, NV 89520-0027 • (775) 784-7200 • FAX (775) 784-7225 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

Printed on Recycled Paper 



DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8. A. 1. c. 

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

Recommendation 

September 26, 2013 

District Board of Health 

Daniel Inouye, Acting Director, Air Quality Management 

Bison Construction - Case No. 1126 
Unappealed Citation No. 5279 
Agenda Item: 8. A. 1. c. 

Public Health 
Prevent Promote~ Protect 

Air Quality Management Division Staff recommends that Citation No. 5279 be upheld and a fine of $2,500 be levied 
against Bison Construction for failure to have an asbestos survey performed by a qualified person and submitted to Air 
Quality for the issuance of an Acknowledgement of Asbestos Assessment prior to the demolition/renovation of a 
commercial facility. Conducting demolition/renovation activities without obtaining an asbestos survey and an 
Acknowledgement of Asbestos Assessment is a major violation of the District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air 
Quality Management, specifically Section 030.105(B)(10) National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants 
(NESHAP), Subpart M - Asbestos, which is implemented through Section 030.107(A), Hazardous Air Pollutants, 
Asbestos Sampling and Notification. This is a negotiated settlement. 

Recommended Fine: $5,400.00 Negotiated Fine: $2,500.00 

Background 

On July 11, 2013, Washoe County Air Quality Management Division received an anonymous citizen complaint regarding 
a commercial building located at 609 Sierra Rose Drive, Unit #3, in Reno. The complainant was concerned about the 
disturbance of possible asbestos containing materials associated with demolition/renovation activities at that address. A 
review of the Air Quality Management records determined an Asbestos Acknowledgement Form had not been 
completed for any renovation activities at that location. 

Air Quality Specialist II Wallace Prichard was dispatched to the above address and found that several walls had been 
removed from the interior of Unit #3. During his investigation, AQ Specialist Prichard was able to determine the work 
had been initiated by Bailor Construction, acting as a subcontractor for Bison Construction. The suspect materials were 
illegally removed and hauled away for disposal utilizing pickup trucks on the jobsite. AQ Specialist Prichard made 
contact with Mr. Greg Bailor, owner of Bailor Construction, to inquire about the asbestos survey and Acknowledgement 
of Asbestos Assessment required for the removal of any suspect asbestos containing materials. Mr. Bailor informed AQ 
Specialist Prichard that he thought all of the permits had been obtained by the general contractor, Mr. John Martin, Bison 
Construction. AQ Specialist Prichard instructed Mr. Bailor to stop work immediately until a determination could be made 
regarding the status of the required permits. 

P.O. BOX 11130 Reno, NV 89520-0027 • (775) 784-7200 •FAX (775) 784-7225 
www.ourcleanair.com 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8. A. 1. c. 



September 26, 2013 
DBOH I Bison Construction I Case 1126 
Page 2 

AQ Specialist Prichard was able to confirm an asbestos survey had not been completed and submitted to Air Quality in 
order to obtain the required Acknowledgment of Asbestos Assessment. AQ Specialist Prichard also contacted Mr. Bill 
Warner, City of Reno Building Department, and confirmed a building permit had not been issued to Bison Construction 
for activities in Unit #3. 

Specialist Prichard contacted Mr. John Martin, Bison Construction, regarding the required asbestos survey and 
Acknowledgement of Asbestos Assessment and did receive confirmation that neither had been completed. Specialist 
Prichard advised Mr. Martin that all work must stop until the required asbestos survey was completed and submitted to 
Air Quality Management in order to obtain the required Acknowledgement of Asbestos Assessment. Specialist Prichard 
advised Mr. Martin that if any asbestos was found it would have to be removed by a licensed abatement contractor. Mr. 
Martin contracted with Lisa Monroe & Associates and an asbestos survey was performed on July 11, 2013. The 
laboratory results from the survey found no asbestos detected. On July 15, 2013, Mr. Martin submitted a copy of the 
asbestos survey to Air Quality Management and obtained an Acknowledgement of Asbestos Assessment. 

Based on the results of the file review and investigation, AQ Specialist Prichard issued Notice of Violation Citation No. 
5279 to Bison Construction for a major violation of Section 030.107 (A), Asbestos Sampling and Notification. On July 
24, 2013 the citation was delivered by certified mail to Mr. Martin in Carson City. 

Settlement 

On August 15, 2013, Senior AQ Specialist Dennis Cerfoglio conducted a negotiated settlement meeting attended by AQ 
Specialist Prichard and Mr. John Martin. After careful consideration of all the facts in the case, AQ Specialist Cerfoglio 
recommended that Citation No. 5279 be upheld with a fine of $2,500. A Memorandum of Understanding was signed by 
all parties. 

Alternatives 

1. The District Board of Health may determine that no. violation of the Regulations has taken place and dismiss 
Citation No. 5279. 

2. The Board may determine to uphold Citation No. 5279 but levy any fine in the range of $0 to $10,000 per day. 

In the event the Board determines to change the proposed penalty, the matter should be continued so that Mr. 
Bailor and Bailor Construction may be properly noticed. 

l~~ 
Daniel Inouye, Acting Division Director 
Air Quality Management 

DI/DC: ma 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

1001 EAST NINTH ST.• SUITE 8171 •RENO NV 89512 
(775) 784-7200 

NOTICE OF VIOLATION 

.. ,,~.., 

NOV 5 2 7 9· DATE ISSUED: z/t I /;;i.o I 3 

ISSUED TO: J8 etAA?cJ c~PHONE #: fs''{Cj - /a' 5"0 

MAILING ADDRESS: o/S'S /( ti. S 3 q 5 CITY/ST: /<l4k ~-AJ.IP: _ _ _ 

NAME/OPERATOR: Q4AL. }11 ~ PHONE#: 7 ~ 0 ds 0 

P.£RM1r Ne. et>(! BeQC. J / q ~ CC . 2'97~2. coMPLAINT No. C mP 1 3 -0019 

YOU ARE HEREBY OFFICIALLY NOTIFIED THAT ON (DATE) AT (TIME), 
YOU ARE IN VIOLATION OF THE FOLLOWING SECTION(S) OF THE WASHOE COUNTY DISTRICT BOARD 
OF HEALTH REGULATIONS GOVERNING AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT: 

0 MINOR VIOLATION OF SECTION: 

0 040.030 _ DUST CONTROL 

0 040.055 ODOR/NUISANCE 

0 MAJOR VIOLATION OF SECTION: 

0 030.000 OPERATING W/O PERMIT 

0 030.2175 VIOLATION OF PERMIT CONDITION 

D WARNING ONLY: Effective ____ a.m./p.m. (date) you are hereby ordered to abate the above 
violation within hours/days. I hereby acknowledge receipt of this warning on the date indicated. 

Signature _ _ _.M~?'J'--'-~-----------7 

fM CITATION: You are hereby notified that effective on 7 // I .S (date) you are in violation of the section(s) cited above. You are 
hereby ordered to abate the above violation within I lJ: IJ(J o /days. You may contact the Air Quality Management Division 
to request a negotiated settlement meeting by calling (775) 784- 0. You are further advised that within 10 working days of the date 
of this Notice of Violation, you may submit a written petition for appeal to the Washoe County Health District, Air Quality Management 
Division, P.O. Box 11130, Reno, Nevada 89520-0027. Failure to submit a petition within the specified time will result in the submis
sion of this Notice of Violation to the District Board of Health with a recommendation for the assessment of an administrative fine. 

SIGNING THIS FORM IS NOT AN ADMISSION OF GUILT 

Signature: -----..,.----=-__..,--~'---7"'-~-+--=-----r----r'T------ Date:------~-- , 

Issued by: a./_.,£,,,-< ~ Title: ~ c(h, /tL fl~ 
0 PETITION FOR APPE.AL FORM RVIDED 7/ 
H·AIR-09 (Rev. 04/12) 



DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DJIVISION 

MEMORANDUM OIF UNDERSTANDING 

WASHOE COUNTY HEAL TH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

Date: e¥1o/1?.o I 3 . 

Company Name: t;J~ e~ m,,;t.:_) 
Addre~s: · f.tJ. 31'19' ~=l/ ~7oZ · 
Notice of Violation No.:. ~ 71 Case No.: // ::Z. 4 

The staff of the Air Quality Management Division of the Washoe County District 

Health Department issued _the above referenced =rfor the violation of 

Regulation: h.r~ CJ30. /6 5' t!J3 0. / e) 7 
~hA~ //VES!fAP . 

7 

Signature of Company Representative ignature of District Repres ntative 

De:NtJ i5 A, &FiRfO&Lf o 
Print Name Print Name 

c;?ec ~s S/t,A/ 
Title Title 

Witness Witness 

Witness Witness 

JP'.O. BOX 11130 RellllO, NV 89520-0027 0 © (775) 784-7200 ~FAX (775) 784-7225" 



AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT - ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTY TABLE & 
RECOMMENDED FINE CALCULATION WORKSHEET 



Administrative Penalty Table 

Air Quality Management Division 
Washoe County Health District 

I. Minor Violations - Section 020.040(C) 
Regulation 1st Violation 

040.005 Visible Emissions $ 1,000 
040.030 Dust Control (fugitive) 250 
040.035 Open Fires 500 
040.040 Fire Training 500 
040.050 Incinerator 1,000 
040.051 Woodstoves 500 
040.055 Odors 1,000 
040.080 Gasoline Transfer (maintenance) 1,000 
040.200 Diesel Idling 500 
050.001 Emergency Episode 1,000 

II. Major Violations - Section 020.040 

Regulation 
030.000 

030.1402 

030.2175 

030.235 

030.000 

Violation 
Construction/Operating without Permit 
(per major process system or unit/day) 

Failure to Comply with Stop Work Order 

Operation Contrary to Permit Conditions 
(per day or event) 

Failure to Conduct Source Test or Report 
(per Reporting Period for Each Unit) 

All other Major Violations 
(per day or event) 

Construction Without a Dust Control Permit 
Project Size - Less than 10 acres 
Project Size - 10 acres or more 

Ill. Major Violations - Section 030.107 Asbestos 

A Asbestos Sampling & Notification 

B. Asbestos Control Work Practices 
(per day or event) 

C. Asbestos Containment & Abatement 
(per day or event) 

2nd Violation 
$ 2,500 

750 
1,000 
1,000 
2,000 
1,000 
2,000 
2,000 
1,000 
2,000 

Source Category 
Minimum Maximum 
$ 5,000 $ 10,000 

10,000/day 

5,000 

2,500 

$10,000 

$ 500 + $50 per acre 
$1 ,000 + $50 per acre 

$ 2,000 - $10,000 

$ 5,000 - $10,000 

$ 5,000 - $10,000 

10,000/day 

10,000 

5,000 

$ 10,000 



Company Name 
Contact Name 

Case #1126 

Violation of Section 

Washoe County Air Quality Management 
Permitting & Enforcement Branch 

Recommended Fine Calculation Worksheet 

Bison Construction 
John Martin 

NOV #5279 
-~---

Complaint CMP13-0099 

030.107.A Asbestos Sampling & Notification 

I. Base Penalty as specified in the Penalty Table = $ __ 5 ..... _oo_o __ _ 

II. Severity of Violation 

A. Public Health Impact 

1. Degree of Violation 
(The degree of which the person/company has deviated from the regulatory requirements) 

Minor - 0.5 Moderate - 0. 75 Major - 1.0 Adjustment Factor _1._0 __ 

2. Toxicity of Release 
Criteria Pollutant - 1 x 
Hazardous Air Pollutant - 2x Adjustment Factor 

3. Environmental/Public Health Risk (Proximity to sensitive environment or group) 

N/A 

Negligible- 1x Moderate - 1.5x Significant- 2x Adjustment Factor ..... 1 ....... 0 __ 

Total Adjustment Factors (1 x 2 x 3) = 1.0 

B. Adjusted Base Penalty 
Base Penalty 5 000 x Adjustment Factor 1.0 = $ 5,000 

J 

c. Multiple Days or Units in Violation 

Adjusted Penalty 5 000 x Number of Days or Units 1.0 = $ 5,000 

D. Economic Benefit 
A voided Costs $ 400 = $ 400 
Average cost of an asbestos survey 

Penalty Subtotal - Recommended Fine 
Adjusted Base Penalty$ 5,000 +Economic Benefit $_-'4..0.0..0.0 ____ = $ 5,400 



Ill. Penalty Adjustment Consideration 

A. Degree of Cooperation (0-25%) - 25 % 

B. Mitigating Factors (O - 25%) - 25 % 
1. Negotiated Settlement 
2. Ability to Pay 
3. Other (explain) 

c. Compliance History 
No Previous Violations (O -10%) 5 % 

Similar Violation in Past 12 months (25 - 50%) + _____ % 

Similar Violation within past 3 year (10 - 25%) + _ ____ % 

Previous Unrelated Violation (5 - 25%) + _____ % 

Total Penalty Adjustment Factors - sum of A, B, & c -55 % 

IV. Recommended/Negotiated Fine 

Penalty Adjustment: 

$ 5,400 
Penalty Subtotal 
(From Section II) 

x -55 °/o : 
Total Adjustment Factors 
(From Section Ill) 

Additional Credit for Environmental Investment/Training - N/A 

Adjusted Penalty: 

$ 5,400 
Penalty Subtotal 
(From Section II) 

Air Quality Specialist 

$ 2,970 
Total Adjustment Value 
(From Section Ill + Credit) 

= 

$ 2,970 
Total Adjustment Value 

$ 2,500 
Negotiated 
Fine 

Date 



Complaint Status: NOV 

Complaint Type: ASBESTOS 

Inspector: WPRICHARD 

COMPLAINT INVESTIGATION REPORT 
Washoe County Air Quality Management Division 

Complaint Number: CMP13-0099 

Source of Complaint: CITIZEN 

Date Received: 07/11/2013 

Inspector Area: 3 

Time: 8:23:00 AM 

Complaint Description: NOV CITATION 5278 CASE 1125 *NOV CITATION 5279 CASE 1126-ASBESTOS 
WORK IN A COMMERCIAL BUILDING WITH NO AQ PERMITS - LOADIN 

Address: 609 SIERRA ROSE DR RENO 

Location: UNIT 3 OR 4 

Parcel Number: 04094135 

Related Permit Number: 

Complainant: 
ANONYMOUS 

Investigation: 

Responsible Party: 
BISON CONSTRUCTION 
JOHN MARTIN (OWNER) 
P.O BOX 3198 
CARSON CITY NV 89702 
775-849-1850 

Asbestos Work in a commercial building with no Air Quality permit. Also loading a truck with sheet 
rock. 

The Air Quality Management Division (AQMD) of the Washoe County District Health Department is 
issuing Notice of Violation #5279 on July 11, 2013, to the company known as Bison Construction for 
removal and demolition of materials before an EPA NESHAP Notification OF DEMOLITION and 

RENOVATION 
was issued. 

On July 11, 2013 Washoe County Air Quality Management Division received a complaint from an 
anonymous caller regarding possible asbestos containing material being removed from Unit #3 at 609 
Sierra Rose Drive, Reno. Complaint #CMP13-0099 was generated and assigned to investigator Air 
Quality Specialist Prichard. 

AQ Specialist Prichard was dispatched to the above address and found that several walls had been 
removed from the interior of the Unit #3. The work had been initiated with removal of walls, 
electrical, and sheetrock by Greg A. Bailor's workmen. Greg A. Bailor is a subcontractor and was 
conducting the removal of materials that were then loaded into their truck and disposed of. 



AQ Specialist Prichard contacted Bill Warner at the City of Reno to confirm if a building permit 
had been issued to Bison Construction for 609 Sierra Rose Drive, Unit #3. It was confirmed that no 
building permit had been issued by the City of Reno to Bison Construction. Also after checking the 
data base at Air Quality and speaking with Mr. John Martin, the owner of Bison Construction, 
investigation showed that there was no asbestos survey for the property submitted. Therefore, the 
Asbestos Assessment Acknowledgement Fmm was never issued from the Air Quality Mgmt office. 

After being notified of the violation and that all work was to be ceased, Mr. Martin hired Lisa 
Monroe & Associates, Inc. Lisa Monroe's company conducted an asbestos bulk sampling analysis. The 
test was completed on 07/11/2013 and all samples were listed as no asbestos detected. 

Mr. Martin obtained an Acknowledgment of Asbestos Assessment (ASB13-0593) from Washoe County Air 
Quality Management Division on July 15, 2013. 

Based on the results of the Air Quality Management Division's investigation a Notice of Violation 
of Section 030.105 and 030.107 Asbestos/NESHAP, a Major Violation of National Emission Standards 
for Hazardous Air Pollutants a 
Notice of Violation Citation #5279 has been issued on July 11, 2013. 

Enforcement Activities 

Warning Citation .. : Citation Number: 5278 
NOV ..................... : 07/11/2013 NOV Number .... : 5279 

Case Number ..... : 1125 
Settlement. ........ .. .. : Amount... ........... : $0.00 
Appealed .. ... .. ..... ... : 
Upheld ........ ..... ...... : Amount.. ............. : $0.00 

Status Information 

Initialized By ....... : MAMES Completed Date ... : 
Date Assigned ..... : 07/11/2013 Completed By ...... : 



AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ASBESTOS ASSESSMENT 

FOR RENO DIAGNOSTICS - SUITE C, UNIT 3 LOCATED AT 
609 SIERRA ROSE DRIVE, RENO 

DATED: JULY 15, 2013 



ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF ASBESTOS ASSESSMENT 
. Washoe County Air Quality Management Division 

Permit Number: ASB13-0593 

Property Owner: RIBEIRO ·co MP ANY Phone: 775-825-4646 

Property Being Evaluated: T.I. - FOR RENO' DIAGNOSTICS SUITE C BLDG 3 - NEW BILLING CENTER. 

Address: 6490 S MCCARRAN BL VD RENO 

TYPE OF PROJECT 
RENO 

FILING FEE: $62.00 

TYPE OF PROPERTY 
NON-RES 

PROPERTY BEING ASSESSED 
PARTIAL* 

*Note: If this project is a partial renovation and additional work is to be conducted later, additional asbestos assessment(s) will be 
required unless this assessment covers all pertinent representative asbestos suspected materials throughout the building. 

General Contractor: 
BISON CONSTRUCTION 
JOHN MARTIN 
POBOX3198 
CARSON CITY, NV 89702 

Abatement Contractor: 

Consultant or Assessment Company: 
LISA MONROE & AS SOCIA TES 

POBOX2252 
SP ARKS, NV 89431 

Assessment Results: ACM ABSENT 

Abatement Completed: 

** Note: If asbestos present, abatement must be conducted in accordance with NESHAP a:YJ OSHA regulations before renovation or 

domolitfon wo•k moy pmood. J J/J L 
10-DAY NOTIFICATION MANDATORY FOR DEMOLITION ~f'! iJi£'.~ 

Owner I Representative's Name 

Comments: 
T.I. - Interior remodel for new Reno Diagnostics billing center. Sampling found NO ACM present. Use 
best methods of dust control during construction and dispose of waste properly. 

Health District Re11rqtentive Date 

Signature on this asbestos assessment document does NOT constitute full Health District approval for this project. Any additional Health 
permits such as are required for bar or restaurant operations, underground storage tanks, hazardous material disposal or air pollution 
sources must be obtained separately. 

Signature by the Washoe County Health District does not warrant, nor should this report be taken to warrant, that asbestos was or was 
not present on stated property. Exposure to even small amounts of airborne asbestos fibers may cause cancer. For this reason the Health 
District recommends that all asbestos handling and abatement work be performed by certified asbestos contractors. 

Washoe County Health District Air Quality Management Division 
1001 E. Ninth St, Suite 8171, Reno, NV 89512 / (775)784-7200 I FAX (775)784-7225 

g4.q ~ C}l)5d-

('.J 
. ····=· 

.,:;.~ 



ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF ASBESTOS ASSESSMENT 
Washoe County Air Quality Management Division 

Permit Number: ASB13-0593 

Property Owner: RIBEIRO COMP ANY Phone: 775-825-4646 

Property Being Evaluated: T.I.· - FOR RENO DIAGNOSTICS SUITE C BLDG 3 - NEW BILLING CENTER. 

Address: 609 SIERRA ROSE DR RENO 

TYPE OF PROJECT 
RENO 

TYPE OF PROPERTY 
NON-RES 

FILING FEE: $62.00 /./ 

PROPERTY BEING ASSESSED 
PARTIAL* 

*Note: If this project is a partial renovation and additional work is to be conducted later, additional asbestos assessment(s) will be 
required unless this assessment covers all pertinent representative asbestos suspected materials throughout the building. 

General Contractor: 
BISON CONSTRUCTION 
JOHN MARTIN 
POBOX3198 
CARSON CITY, NV 89702 

Abatement Contractor: 

Consultant or Assessment Company: 
LISA MONROE & ASSOCIATES 

POBOX2252 
SPARKS, NV 89431 

Assessment Results: ACM ABSENT 

Abatement Completed: 

** Note: If asbestos present, abatement must be conducted in accordance with NESHAP and OSHA regulations before renovation or 
demolition work may proceed. · 

10-DAY NOTIFICATION MANDATORY FOR DEMOLITION 
Owner I Represe11tative's Name 

Comments: 
T.I. - Interior remodel for new Reno Diagnostics billing center. Sampling found NO ACM present. Use 
best methods of dust control during construction and dispose of waste properly. 

Signature on this asbestos assessment document does NOT constitute full Health District approval for this project. Any additional Health 
permits such as are required for bar or restaurant operations, underground storage tanks, hazardous material disposal or air pollution 
sources must be obtained separately. · 

Signature by the Washoe County Health District does not warrant, nor should this report be taken to warrant, that asbestos was or was 
not present on stat~d property. Exposure to even small amounts of airborne asbestos fibers may cause cancer. For this reason the Health 
District recommends that all asbestos handling and abatement work be performed by certified asbestos contractors. 

Washoe County Health District Air Quality Management Division 
1001 E. Ninth St, Suite 8171, Reno, NV 89512 / (775)784-7200 I FAX (775)784-7225 



Communication Result Report ( Ju I. 15. 2013 4:20PM) * 
~l 

D at e/T i me : Ju l. 15. 2013 4: 19PM 

F i l e 
No. Mode 

0851 Memory TX 

Reason 
E. 
E. 
E. 

Destination Pg ( s) Result 

Reno Bui laing P. OK 

for error 
Busy 1) Hang up or line fai 

3) No answer 
E. 2) 
E. 4) No facsimile connection 

5) Exceeded ma x. E-mai size 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF ASBESTOS.ASSESSMENT 
Waohoe County Air Quality Management Division 

f'oo:nll NUll\U•r:ll~B!~OS!ll 

rrongrtv Owner: RIBEmo COMP ANY ~· 775-1125-4616 

froo<rty Belnr Evaluated: T.I. -FOR RENO J>IAGNOSTIC.S SUITE C BLDG 3 - NEW BILLING CENTER. 

~· 609 SDUUY.:RQSJtlllUIJ!;NO 

TXfE OFI'ROJECT - TXPE Ql'PRffi'llRTY : PRQPERTY BEINGASSl!SSED 
RllNO NON-RES ' fARTJAL• 

•Kgh: IHhJ, proJoi.1 Jt a partw muiw.lloa d addim.J 1TC1'fl. It Iv bownOllmdJll.lc", adllUloJlOJ.a&bt.sb.l 11aomicrit(1)T1\ll ~· 
nqi.W"tifl fQJ'uc Chi• 111:n:m1tal umr:n All r.rtlat•d ~l'f'Utllhltifl ll(lu:lta1 aw:(leded nP.tvUT1 tftl-01thtu~ tb1 tluJJdlo&o 

Gsncra1 Co11trRctor: 
BISON CONSTllUCTION 
SOHN MARTIN 
l'OBOXJl98 
CARSON CrrY, NV 89702 

Abakmcul Conkactot: . 

Com1ultnnt ot AMeJ!ment Compaov 
LISA MONROE & ASSOCIATES 

POBOX'.2252 · 
SPARKS, NV 89431 

A~ei\Jtle:d Re.K1tlb: ACM ABSENT 

Abatement ComnJm:d: 

; . N~e: U Jotb."1:u IDE..1111lo .lu.111~ i:=iiDi' bttHdhatlt4 ffli utardooce l'lilh NESHAP uplf OSHA rtet]leHollS 1>.tfort: ruavatlmi or 
dtmolilitm. work mar pcOted. . . 

Commenb~ 
l".l -lhteriom•nCd.S fu<newl!.e!!o Diagnoslics billing e<nl<I'. S.mpling fo1111d NO ACM present Use 

· best melhod• of dust control dWing coru;truc.tion and dispose ofv.'llStO propcdy: · 

Sigm.tnni on thl9 Hb.t:SCIJS ~ dOUl!Qat'"' !'\OT tuMJMefWlJoll.b Dtttrfd 'l'J'fO"'I br t.W1 fl HJ Jett /ntt 11diiflhma( Hullh 
e1tmlli l~cll as He reoqulttd ~ flgr or n1b\i('.UI) •Jtr'llWIN, wtilu""oJlllll'MI .@ft"!X' tsnb. t.U11.rdnn m•r.ub.l il;spual 6f 11lr podulion 
aoarca mu't lie obtwb:ied HJ.11t-atd;r. 

Washoe County Health Dls!rlctAlr Quality Management piv'ision 
1001 E. Ninth St, Sul1B8171, Reno, NV 69512 f (775)784-7200·/ FAX (775)784·7225 

P. 

* * 

Page 
Not Sent 



USA MONROE & ASSOCIATES ASBESTOS SAMPUNG AND TESnNG REPORTS FOR 
RENO DIAGNOsncs, SUITE C, UNIT 3 LOCATED AT 

609 SIERRA ROSE DRIVE, RENO NEVADA 

DATED: JULY 11, 2013 



Lisa Monroe & Associates, Inc. 
P.O. Box 2252 

Sparks, NV 89432 
Phone/Fax: 775-355-1011 

Email Address: LM-ASSOCIATES®ATT.NET 

Bulk Sample Asbestos Report 

Date of Report: 7-15-13 Date of Inspection: 7-11-13 

Company/Client: .Bison Construction 

Address: P.O. Box 3198 

City, State & Zip: Carson City, NV 89702 

Building Name: 

Building Address: 609 Sierra Rose Drive, Reno, Nevada 

Area of Building Inspected: Suite #3 

A survey was performed at 609 Sierra Rose Drive on July 11, 2013. The inspection involved the 
collection of 6 bulk samples from the existing materials where the walls have been removed. The 
suspect asbestos containing materials that were sampled include wall texture and joint compound. 
The laboratory analysis shows no asbestos detected in the materials that were tested. 

Asbestos Overview 

Environmental regulatory agencies and health professionals consider any substance with an 
asbestos content of one percent or greater to pose a significant health hazard in the event of 
disturbance. Asbestos was used in a wide variety of building materials, such as thermal or 
acoustical insulators or as a binder for tensile strength. Some examples of where asbestos can be 
found include spray acoustic on ceilings, wall textures, joint compounds, floor tiles, linoleum 
flooring and the mastic used to adhere the flooring. Because asbestos containing building 
materials are still being manufactured, mainly in other countries, all building materials that will 
be disturbed by renovation or demolition activities should be tested for asbestos content. 

The inspection that was performed involved only the areas that the client requested and the 
delivery of this report does not guarantee that all asbestos was identified or that all suspect 
asbestos containing materials were sampled within the building. 

Submitted by: 
L(Mµ D. /\11.011Wo-e,, President 

Lisa Momoe & Associates, Inc. 
NV DIROSHES: IJPM0061 
CAC: 92-0660 



________ E_3J ~~~~!~~~~ ~ 
SPECIALISTS IN ASBESTOS-RELATED ANALYSIS 

Bulk Sample Analysis (PLM) Report Report# 130712001 

Lisa Monroe & Associates 
P.O. Box 2252 
Sparks, NV 89432 

Phone: (775) 355-1011 

Sample Number Sample Location 
13-8791-1 Northwest 

Lab# 13-243453 

13-879.1-2 Southeast wall 
Lab# 13-243454 

i . 

13-8791-3 Southwest wall 
Lab# 13-243455 

U-8791-4 South wall 
Lab# 13-243456 • 

13-8791-5 East wall 
Lub# 13-243457 ' 

' 

I 
13-8791-6 I Northwest wall 

Lab# 13-243458 l 

l 

Date Collected: 07/11/13 
Date Received: 07/12/13 
Date Analyzed: 07/12/13 

Job Information: 
13-8791 
609 Sierra Rose Drive, Suite 3 

Sample Descripfion Analytical Results 
White texture No asbestos detected 

White texture No asbestos detected . 
I . 

White texture No asbestos detected 

White joint compound No asbestos detected 

White joint compound No asbestos detected 
I 

I . 
I 

; White joint compound I No asbestos detected 

' 
I 

r I 
I 

OFFICIAL NOTICE: After 45 days, samples are disposed of through a licensed waste hauler, unless client requests their return. 

Total number of samples:· 6 Page 1of1 

-:' ult findings are made to the methodologies and parameter 

3463 Ramona Ave., Suite 17 • Sacramento, CA 95826 • (916) 456-4892 • Fax (916) 456-1082 



CITATION NOTIFICATION SENT CERTIFIED MAIL TO JOHN MARTIN FROM 
WASHOE COUNTY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION, WALLACE PRICHARD 

RECEIVED AUGUST 1, 2013 



- ~ - --4-=-~-..--- ..... ...--:-- .... ' if 

U.S. Postal Service,w. • ·: . · - ·• 
CERTIFiED fillAIL~ ~ RECEIPT · . · 
(Domestic Mail Only; No Insurance Coverage Provided) · 

SENDER: COMPLETE THIS SECTION 

• Complete Items 1, 2, and 3. Also complete 
item 4 if Restricted Delivery is desired. 

• Print your name and address on the reverse 
so that we can return the card to you. 

• Attach this card to the back of the mailpiece, 
or on the front if space permits. 

1. Article Addressed to: 

~ .. ~~hl\~C:....~\r\ 
cva~}.~\~i 

~""""' t,._~ '\\_V 'ti~o;;i, 

; • ' . ·; 

3 . Service Type 

J1G Certified Mail 
0 Registered 

0 Insured Mall 

4. Restricted Delivery? (Extra Fee) 

2. Article Number 

(Transfer from service /abeQ 7011 2970 0004 2282 9141 

PS Form 3811, February 2004 Domestic Return Receipt 

Ill Agent 
Iii Addressee 

C. Date of Delivery 

OYes 

102595·02-M-1540 ! 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

July 24, 2013 

Mr. John Martin 
P.O. Box 3198 
Carson City, Nevada 89702 

Re: 609 Sierra Rosa Drive, Unit #3, Reno, NV 

Dear Mr. Martin: 

Public Health 
Prevent. Promo te. Pr o tect . 

The Air Quality Management Division (AQMD) of the Washoe County District 
Health Department is issuing Notice of Violation #5279 on July 11, 2013, to the 
company known as Bison Construction for removal and demolition of materials 
before an EPA NESHAP Notification OF DEMOLITION and RENOVATION was 
issued. 

On July 11, 2013 Washoe County Air Quality Management Division received a 
complaint from an anonymous caller regarding possible asbestos containing 
material being removed from Unit #3 at 609 Sierra Rose Drive, Reno. Complaint 
#CMP13-0099 was generated and assigned to investigator Air Quality Specialist 
Prichard. 

Specialist Prichard was dispatched to the above address and found that several 
walls had been removed from the interior of the Unit #3. The work had been 
initiated with removal of walls, electrical, and sheetrock by Greg A. Sailor's 
workmen. Greg A. Bailor is a subcontractor and was conducting the removal of 
materials that were then loaded into their truck and disposed of. 

Specialist Prichard contacted Bill Warner at the City 0f Reno to confirm if a 
building permit had been issued to Bison Construction for 609 Sierra Rose Drive, 
Unit #3. It was confirmed that no building permit had been issued by the City of 
Reno to Bison Construction. Also after checking the data base at Air Quality and 
speaking with Mr. John Martin, the owner of Bison Construction, investigation 
showed that there was no asbestos survey for the property submitted. Therefore, 
the Asbestos Assessment Acknowledgement Form was never issue. 

After being notified of the violation and that all work was to be ceased Mr. Martin 
hired Lisa Monroe & Associates, Inc. Lisa Monroe's company conduct an 
asbestos bulk sampling analysis. The test was completed on 07 /11/2013 and all 
samples were listed as no asbestos detected. 

P.O. BOX 11130 Reno, NV 89520-0027 • (775) 784-7200 • FAX (775) 784-7225 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

Printed on Recycled Paper 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

Mr. Martin obtained an Acknowledgment of Asbestos Assessment (ASB13-0593) 
from Washoe County Air Quality Management Division on July 15, 2013. 

Public Health 
Preven t Promot e. Protec t 

Based on the results of the Air Quality Management Division's investigation a 
Notice of Violation of Section 030.105 and 030.107 Asbestos/NESHAP, a Major 
Violation of National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants a 
Citation #5279 has been issued on July 11, 2013. 

Following the issuance of a notice of violation (NOV), there are two (2) options for 
addressing the issues. These options include: 1) an appeal may be heard by the 
Air Pollution Control Hearing Board; or 2) a Memorandum of Understanding may 
be executed between the parties if a negotiated settlement can be arrived at. 

An appeal form has been included for your convenience. Please contact either 
Dennis Cerfoglio, Permitting/Compliance Supervisor at 775-784-7232, or myself at 
775-784-7212 to discuss your preference for the resolution of this matter. 

Wallace P. Prichard Ph.D 
Air Quality Specialist II 

Enclosures: 

Notice of Violation #5279 (Pink Sheet) 

Appeal of Violation 

Certified Mail# 7011 2970 0004 2282 9141 

P.O. BOX 11130 Reno, NV 89520-0027 • (775) 784-7200 •FAX (775) 784-7225 
www.wasboecounty.us/bealth 

Printed on Recycled Paper 



DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8. A.1. d. 

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

Recommendation 

September 26, 2013 

District Board of Health 

Daniel Inouye, Acting Director, Air Quality Management 

Boys and Girls Club of Truckee Meadows - Case No. 1128 
Unappealed Citation No. 527 4 
Agenda Item: 8. A. 1. d. 

Public Health 
Preve nt Promote Protect . 

Air Quality Management Staff recommends that Citation No. 5274 be upheld and a fine of $1,000 be levied against Fred 
Taeubel, Project Manager for the Boys and Girls Club of Truckee Meadows, for violation of Conditions No. 10 and 11 of 
Conditional Dust Control Permit No. DCP13-0047. Condition No. 10 requires the owner or general contractor to erect an 
informational sign at the main entrance to the project site prior to initiation of disturbance of the ground surface. Condition 
No. 11 requires a log book be maintained on-site documenting all dust control activities on a daily basis. Failure to comply 
with the conditions of Oust Control Permit No. DCP-13-0047 is a Major Violation of the District Board of Health Regulations 
Governing Air Quality Management, specifically Section 030.2175, Operations Contrary to Permit. This is a negotiated 
settlement. 

Recommended Fine: $1,500 Negotiated Fine: $1,000 

Background 

On July 17, 2013, Air Quality Specialist II Suzanne Dugger was conducting a routine inspection of Oust Control Permit No. 
DCP13-0047 issued for the future Boys and Girls Club to be located at 1300 Foster Drive in Reno. During the inspection, 
AQ Specialist Dugger discovered a dust control sign had not been posted at the entrance to the project site as required by 
Condition No. 10 of the permit. AQ Specialist Dugger contacted Mr. Jeff Forsyth, Project Manager for United Construction, 
to inquire about the status of the dust control sign. During this contact, AQ Specialist Dugger also found there were no 
dust control water truck logs on site as required by Condition No. 11 of the permit. AQ Specialist Dugger informed Mr. 
Forsyth of the dust control permit requirements to erect a dust control sign and maintain water truck logs on-site at all 
times. 

On July 26, 2013, AQ Specialist Dugger conducted a follow up inspection to determine if the project was in compliance 
with the conditions of Dust Control Permit No. DCP13-0047. The results of the follow up inspection confirmed a dust 
control sign had not been erected and no water truck logs were on site. Upon review of the dust control permit, AQ 
Specialist Dugger determined the responsible party for the project was Mr. Fred Taeubel, Project Manager for the Boys 
and Girls Club. AQ Specialist Dugger contacted Mr. Taeubel to inform him of the noncompliance issues. 

Based on the results of the original and follow up inspections and the failure to comply with the permit conditions regarding 
signage and water truck logs, Specialist Dugger issued Notice of Violation Citation No. 527 4 for a major violation of Section 
030.2175 for Operations Contrary to Permit. 

P.O. BOX 11130 Reno, NV 89520-0027 • (775) 784-7200 • FAX (775) 784-7225 
www.ourcleanair.com 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8. A.1. d. 



September 26, 2013 
DBOH I Boys and Girls Club of Truckee Meadows I Case 1128 
Page 2 

Settlement 

On August 22, 2013, Senior AQ Specialist Dennis Cerfoglio conducted a negotiated settlement meeting attended by AQ 
Specialist Dugger and Mr. Fred Taeubel, Project Manager for the Boys and Girls Club of Truckee Meadows. After careful 
consideration of all the facts presented in the case, Senior AQ Specialist Cerfoglio proposed that Citation No. 5274 be 
upheld with a fine of $1,000 dollars. A Memorandum of Understanding was signed by all parties. 

Alternatives 

1. The District Board of Health may determine that no violation of the regulations has taken place and dismiss 
Citation No. 5274. 

2. The Board may determine to uphold Citation No. 5274 and levy a fine in the range of $0 to $10,000 per day. 

In the event the Board determines to change the penalty, the matter should be continued so that Mr. Fred 
Taeubel and the Boys and Girls Club of Truckee Meadows may be properly noticed. 

Daniel Inouye, Acting Division Director 
Air Quality Management 

DI/DC: ma 



NOV 5 2 f 4 

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

1001 EAST NINTH ST.• SUITE 8171 •RENO NV 89512 
(775) 784-7200 

NOTICE OF VIOLATION 
DATE ISSUED: "/ --;)( - 'J.-6t 5 

ISSUEDTO: F{l.ED m~u. (3cL PHONE #: -~-Cf_' o_-~ __;/_'-l_s_Y _____ _ 

MAILING ADDRESS: ;2. ~ ~ 0 E ' q ~ S'T I CITY/ST: _ (L_ c;_µ_o ____ ZIP: ~i ~-I 2_ 

NAME/OPERATOR: PE ftv, N€ CoAJ s l(U(.L 116/J PHONE#: Ge; I- 5 7 (>G,, 
Jc jf_}J i+-E= 0 6 .. '-t> a. 11+ u /J t rE o c. o µ S -t~ll..~£.1.L--=---n..-o -1-1----"J-'€~F~F-¥~0 .... rt:.-s"'""v ....... ·nt=--~-

PERM IT NO. De. p i3 - OOYI COMPLAINT NO. lM'Y \?>-cuo=i 

YOUAREHEREBYOFFICIALLYNOTIFIEDTHATON 7-..ll.-';}013 (DATE)AT q~ ~O (TIME), 
YOU ARE IN VIOLATION OF THE FOLLOWING SECTION(S) OF THE WASHOE COUNTY DISTRICT BOARD 
OF HEALTH REGULATIONS GOVERNING AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT: 

0 MINOR VIOLATION OF SECTION: !X) MAJOR VIOLATION OF SECTION: 

LJ040.030 _DUST CONTROL 0 030.000 OPERATING W/O PERMIT 

0 040.055 ODOR/NUISANCE 

0 040.200 DIESEL IDLING 

0 OTHER ----------

~ 030.2175 VIOLATION OF PERMIT CONDITION 

0 030.105 ASBESTOS/NESHAP 

0 OTHER ---------
VIOLATION DESCRIPTION: /VD 'Dus l e.okJ \/t.o L s I &f-J . /0 (! Dus r- Coµ\te.O L 

L06~ o>J . .s·1·~. Sec..-. le:.) 

LOCATION OF VIOLATION: 1300 F-oSTE v2.. ·j),.e. fl €00 A.I J 

POINT OF OBSERVATION: C> IV s ; n= / fJ :Lo.J 1.S er A:Lti-l-

Weather: __ C_L_E~tA~£-_________________ Wind Direction From: N E S W 

Emissions Observed: 
-----------------------------~ (If Visual Emissions Performed - See attached Plume Evaluation Record) 

D WARNING ONLY: Effective ____ a.m./p.m. (date) you are hereby ordered to abate the above 
violation within hours/days. I hereby acknowledge receipt of this warning on the date indicated. 

Signature ________________ _ 

t]J"' CITATION: You are hereby notified that effective on "1 ~ ;ll:. -::JD ·3 (date) you are in violation of the section(s) cited above. You are 
hereby ordered to abate the above violation within l 41 M G"O 11trS1&~/days. You may contact the Air Quallty Management Division 
to request a negotiated ent meeting by calling (775) 784-7200. You are further advised that within 10 working days of the date 
of this Notice of Vio t0n, you y submit a written petition for appeal to the Washoe County Health District, Air Quality Management 
Division, R . 11130, Reno, evada 89520-0027. Failure to submit a petition within the specified time will result in the submis

is Nati of Viol tion to he ·stFiet Board of Health with a recommendation for the assessment of an administrative fine. 



DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 
WASHOE COUNTY HEAL TH DISTRICT 

Notice of Violation No.: 5 a 7/./- Case No.: JI;) 8 
location of Violation: 1300 P~/:;:J~ ----<-~------

A settlement of this matter has .been negBR:ated between the undersigned parties 

resulting in a penalty amount of$ l 0 00 - This settlement will be 

st •hmittp to e District Board of Health for review at the regularly scheduled meeting on .s dfo .;io J.3 . 

~~ 
Print Name 

OJ (I./ 01 .. /s. 
Title 

Witness 

Witness 

Dt=~tJjs A· C.ERT6Glio 
Print Name 

s~.//;:v 

Witness 

P.O. BOX 11130 Reno, NV 89520-0027 111,. (775) 784-7200 •FAX (775) 784-7225 
www.ourclcanai1·.com 



AIR QUAUTY MANAGEMENT - ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTY TABLE & 
RECOMMENDED FINE CALCULATION WORKSHEET 



Administrative Penalty Table 

Air Quality Management Di_vision 
Washoe County Health District 

I. Minor Violations - Section 020.040(C) 
Regulation 1st Violation 

040.005 Visible Emissions $ 1,000 
040.030 Dust Control (fugitive) 250 
040.035 Open Fires 500 
040.040 Fire Training 500 
040.050 Incinerator 1,000 
040.051 Woodstoves 500 
040.055 Odors 1,000 
040.080 Gasoline Transfer (maintenance) 1,000 
040.200 Diesel Idling 500 
050.001 Emergency Episode 1,000 

II. Major Violations - Section 020.040 

Regulation 
030.000 

030.1402 

030.2175 

030.235 

030.000 

Violation 
Construction/Operating without Permit 
(per major process system or unit/day) 

Failure to Comply with Stop Work Order 

Operation Contrary to Permit Conditions 
(per day or event) 

Failure to Conduct Source Test or Report 
(per Reporting Period for Each Unit) 

All other Major Violations 
(per day or event) 

Construction Without a Dust Control Permit 
Project Size - Less than 10 acres 
Project Size - 10 acres or more 

Ill-. Major Violations - Section 030.107 Asb~stos 

A Asbestos Sampling & Notification 

B. Asbestos Control Work Practices 
(per day or event) 

C. Asbestos Containment & Abatement 
(perday or event) 

2"d Violation 
$ 2,500 

750 
. 1,000 

1,000 
2,000 
1,000 
2,000 
2,000 
1,000 
2,000 

Source Category 
Minimum 
$ 5,000 

10,000/day 

2,500 

2,500 

$ 5,000 

$ 500 + $50 per acre 
$1,000 + $50 per acre 

$ 2,000 - $10,000 

$ 5,000 - $10,000 

$ 5,000 - $10,000 

Maximum 
$10,000 

10,000/day 

10,000 

5,000 

$ 10,000 



Company Name 
Contact Name 

Case #1128 

Violation of Section 

Washoe County Air Quality Management 
Permitting & Enforcement Branch 

Recommended Fine Calculation Worksheet 

Bovs & Girls Club of Truckee Meadows 
Fred Taeubel 

NOV #5274 ---=-="---'------- Complaint CMP13-0107 

030.2175 Operations Contrary to Permit 

I. Base Penalty as specified in the Penalty Table = $ __ 2=·=50=.0;;......_ __ 

II. Severity of Violation 

A. Public Health Impact 

1. Degree of Violation 
{The degree of which the person/company has deviated from the regulatory requirements) 

Minor-0.5 Moderate-0.75 Major-1.0 Adjustment Factor """'1.;..;;..0 __ 

2. Toxicity of Release 
Criteria Pollutant - 1 x 
Hazardous Air Pollutant - 2x Adjustment Factor 

3.. Environmental/Public Health Risk {Proximity to sensitive environment or group) 

N/A 

Negligible-1x Moderate-1.5x Significant-2x Adjustment Factor _1._0 __ 

Total Adjustment Factors (1 x 2 x 3) = 1.0 

B. Adjusted Base Penalty 
Base Penalty 2 500 x Adjustment Factor 1.0 = $ 2,500 

c. Multiple Days or Units in Violation 

Adjusted Penalty 2,500 x Number of Days or Units 1.0 = $ 2,500 

D. Economic Benefit 
Avoided Costs$ = $ N/A 
No cost benefit was determined for this administrative violation 

Penalty Subtotal - Recommended Fine 
Adjusted Base Penalty$ 2.500 +Economic Benefit $ _ _.O _____ = $ 2,500 



Ill. Penalty Adjustment Consideration 

A. Degree of Cooperation (O - 25%) - 25 % 

B. Mitigating Factors (O -25%) - 25 % 
1. Negotiated Settlement 
2. Ability to Pay 
3. Other (explain) 

c. Compliance History 
No Previous Violations (O -10%) 10 % 

Similar Violation in Past 12 months (25 - 50%) + _____ % 

Similar Violation within past 3 year (10 - 25%) + _____ % 

Previous Unrelated Violation (5 - 25%) + _____ % 

Total Penalty Adjustment Factors - sum of A, B, & C 

IV. Recommended/Negotiated Fine 

Penalty Adjustment: 

$ 2,500 
Penalty Subtotal 
(From Section II) 

x -60 % = 
Total Adjustment Factors 
(From Section Ill) 

Additional Credit for Environmental Investment/Training - N/A 

Adjusted Penalty: 

$ 2 500 
Penalty Subtotal 

(From Section II) 

$ 1.500 
Total Adjustment Value 
(From Section Ill+ Credit) 

= 

-60 % 

$ 1.500 
Total Adjustment Value 

$ 1,000 
Negotiated 
Fine 

Date 



AIR QUAUTY MANAGEMENT 
DUST PERMIT# DCP13-0047 

APPLICATION SUBMITTED BY BOYS & GIRLS CLUB OF TRUCKEE MEADOWS 



WA§HOE C«JUNTY lBIJEAJL'JflBI Jm!§'fllUCT @ 
AJ!JR QUALRTY MANAGEMENT DlIVJI§JION JPUlhilli<elirlerutl:lffi 

Pr e ve nt. Promote. P1 olcct. 

Dus~ Ccmtmi Perrmi~ #: DCP13-0047 

BOYS & GIRLS CLUB OF TRUCKEE MEADOWS 

l«:»cc<3ltfi10Wil «Ji~ ro~v®~©>~mteli'ilft: 1300 FOSTER DRIVE, RENO NV 89509 

4 

~$$ ll.Jl®ld !Da~e: 06/04/2013 IE1qpi11~~i©>~ D©Jte: 12/04/2014 
i§S lUl®d lo: BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB 

The following requirements are special conditions of approval for this dust control permit in 
addition to the standard conditions noted in the permit application. The special conditions noted 
below must be followed in all activities covered in this permit. 

1. The required number of water trucks will be assigned and available for operation 24 HOURS A 
DAY, 7 DAYS A WEEK for the purpose of water application for control of fugitive dust. If the 
required number cannot control fugitive dust emissions from equipment operations and/or gusty 
wind conditions, the applicant shall immediately provide additional water trucks. CESSATION OF 
OPERATIONS IS REQUIRED IF DUST CANNOT BE CONTROLLED DUE TO EQUIPMENT 
OPERATIONS AND/OR GUSTY WIND CONDITIONS. IF CESSATION OF OPERATIONS IS 
USED AS A DUST CONTROL MEASURE, CONTINUED WATERING OF THE PROJECT IS 
REQUIRED. , 

2. Dust emissions generated on any entrance or exit haul roads due to equipment operations or 
gusty wind conditions must be controlled 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, by the use of water 
application or an environmentally safe dust palliative (District Regulation 040.030, Section C. 2. 
a. and b.) Any palliative used must comply wi th state and local regulations and not provide a 
noxious odor or contaminate ground water. 

3. All projects importing or exporting dirt, rock or other fill materials must comply with the work 
practice standards in District Regulation 040.Q30, Section C. 4., including load tarping, watering 
or Freeboard. Any soil tracked onto adjoining paved roadways will be promptly removed by wet 
broom or washing. Regular vacuum or wet sweeping will be performed at least daily, and more 
often if necessary or if ordered by the Control Officer due to a violation. Any materials tracked out 
or spilled which cause visible fugitive dust for a period of five (5) minutes in any hour period shall 
be cleaned up immediately. 

4. Any soil or fill storage piles operated or maintained as a part of this construction lot will be 
covered or wetted down sufficiently to prevent wind blown dust. Dust emissions from screening 
operations will be controlled by the use of a water truck or other control measure that prevents 
fugitive dust. · 

.. 1001 E gth Street Suite 8171, RENO NV 89512 
(775) 784-7200 ·FAX (775) 784-7225 www.washoecounty.us/health 



Dn.ns~ Cco~ftrnl Peli'meft #: DCP13-0047 
!BOY§ ~{ G~Rl§ CUJlB <Of lRUCrr{EIE - 1300 FOSTER DRIVE, RENO NV 89509 
MEADOWS 

5. The applicant shall implement additional dust control measures, such a~ e)(tra water trucks, water 
cannons, re-vegetation, environmentally safe dust palliatives (which comply with all applicable 
regulations and do not emit a noxious odor and do not contaminate ground water), wind fencing, 
and/or cessation of operations should these measures fail to control fugitive dust emissions from 
this project. · 

6. Once final grade has been completed, and if no structures are being constructed, the 
owner/developer shall be required to establish a long-term stable surface. This shall include 
re-vegetation or covering the disturbed soil with rock or crushed asphalt products within 30 days 
of completion of final grade. The use of an approved palliative is an option, but must be 
approved by the Air Quality Management Division (AQMD) prior to application. 

7. The applicant shall provide a Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) and dilution ratio to AQMD staff 
for any dust palliative selected for use as a dust control measure at this site. , 

8. A copy of this dust control permit {:shall be maintained at the construction project site and 
available to any sub-contractor or Ar Quality Management Division inspector to review upon 

\ 

request. 

9. ANY CHANGES MADE TO THE PROPOSED OPERATIONS, SCOPE OF WORK OR SURFACE 
DISTURBANCES UNDER THIS DUST CONTROL PERMIT shall be submitted to the Washoe 
County Health District, AQMD in writing and must receive approval from the Control Officer prior 
to implementation . 

10. The owner or the general contractor shall erect an informational sign at the main entrance to the 
project site. The sign shall be a minimum of 4 ft by 4 ft in size, and shall be in place prior to 
initiation of disturbance of the ground surface. The sign lettering shall be at least 4 inches high 
and shall be bold and easily readable by the public. The sign shall remain in place_ for the life of 
the project. The sign shall include the following information, also see attached e><ample: 

a) The name of the project. 
b) A statement identifying the General Contractor. 
c) A statement proclaiming that "All operators at this site are required to control dust 

emissions from their operations. The General Contractor is required to oversee and control 
project wide dust emissions." 

d) A statement proclaiming that "For dust relateq problems coming from this site, or to make a 
dust complaint, call this phone number 24 hours per day, seven days per week: (775) 
784-7200. A 24-hour phone number for both the Contractor/Developer and the Air Quality 
Management Division shall als.o be posted. The 24-hour phone number for complaints to 
the Air Quality Management Division is (775) 784-7200. 

2 



Dm~~ Collil~rn~ ~®li"MD~ #: DCP13-004 7 
180V§ & GDRL§ CUJIB OF l'IRUC~IEE - 1300 FOSTER DRIVE, RENO NV 89509 
MEADOWS 

11. A 1.og book of all dust control operations, containing all information as required by the Control 
Officer in the standard "WA§HOIE COUNTY IDU§T CONTROL l 0G 71 must be maintained on a 
daily basis (copies of blank log sheets are available at the Air Quality Management Division 
Office). Required information includes, but is not limited to, the number of OIPERAT~NG water 
trucks/pulls, the size of OIPIERATiNG water trucks/pulls (gallons capacity of each truck/pull), and 
the condition of the surface crust on disturbed areas. The operator shall record in the logbook all 
dust control efforts and the compliance level of the site with dust control requirements. The 
logbook shall be kept at the project site and made available to District representatives upon 
request. 

12. Visible dust may not be emitted into the air from any operations or disturbed areas of this project 
for more than 5 minutes in any hour period (Regulation 040.030, Section C. 1). All disturbed 
areas must maintain a visible surface crust or other cover in compliance with Regulation 
040.030, Section C.2.c. Compliance shall be determined using US Environmental Protection 
Agency Reference Method 22, with an observation period of not less than 5 minutes in any hour 
period. Copies of District Regulations, enforcement policies and USEPA Reference Testing 
Methods may be obtained by contacting the Air Quality Management Division at (775) 784-7200. 

' 
13. Failure to comply with all of the requirements of this Dust Control Permit shall be considered a 

citable violation of District Regulations and this dust control permit. Citations may be issued for 
each day of violation, in amounts up to $10,000 per day as stated in District Regulations. 

14. Any use of recycled wastewater from a public or private sewer treatment plant must ta!(e into 
account the protection of public heath. 

NOTE: All operators who clear more than one (1) acre of land also need an NPDES permit 
addressing water quality issues related to storm run-off from the Nevada Division of 
Environmental Protection. Contact the Bureau of Water Pollution Controi at (775) 687-9418 for 
further information. 

Control Officer 

THIS IS NOT A GRADING PERMIT. THESE CONDITIONS ADDRESS DUST CONTROL ONCE THE GRADING PERMIT 
HAS BEEN OBTAINED. IF THE GRADING PERMIT IS DENIED THIS PERMIT IS VOID. 

3 



DUST CONTROL PERMIT APPLICATION 

AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 
PO Box 11130, Reno NV 89520-0027 * (775) 784-7200 *Fax (775) 784-7225 i 3 · oC·C 

FEE as of July 1, 2012: $108.00 per acre - plus a $33.00 admirsistration fee per permit 
(Less than .5 acres round down; .5 and greater round up) 

THE "APPLICANT" IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL DUST CONTROL 24 HOURS A DAY. SEVEN DAYS A WEEK, 

Including weekends and holidays, from commencement of project to completion . 

The Applicant must be the Property Owner/Developer, and signed by the Applicant or his 
Attorney in Fact. Fill in the application completely or it will be returned for completion. 

1. NameofDevelopment: BDys o..0 J Ci : r(s Club .,~ lr u vl<!.4- ()"?u..Ja ...i ~ 

To be filled in by AQ Staff 

Permit No.: OC.P \o .. 00 4 '7 
Area: .3 
Water Truck(s): _ __,__ __ _ 

Hydro Basin: 'f!El No 

2. Development Address: _13=-=o~o==--....Jf....Jo:!..!s~~~,..___:l::l~r·'--!, .;e--=-+,. ....JRe~"'-'ni.,~tJ~l/_'ilfL'l-'-'s"O~..:.'l ________ _ _ _ 

3. Size of Project (disturbed acres): 3. '6 A~ce_ 

4. Type of Project (choose one): 

Residential - Single Family ___ Residential - Multi Family . Commercial with Residential 

f~oad Construction - New Road Construction - Maintenance!Retrnbilitation ___ _ 

Commercial I Industrial ..... - ..... - .. - . Municipal/Utilities _.!<'. ... _._ 
6. If renewing an existing permit, list permit number: --------

NOTE - - The Dust Control Permit is valid for eighteen (18) months from the date of approval. !!. 
the project is not complete or has not commenced by the expiration date, the Applican t must 
submit a renewal application to the Air Quality Management Division. Failure to do so will result 
in the Permit expiring and could result in a citation. 

7. APPLICANT -- Name and current Address of Property Owner/Developer: 
Owner/Developer: &,'j .s o...,d C:.1 rl.~ Llvb 

Address: ..:Z.t..go C (l)~"R S+.-e.a...--t 
City: ~ 

Contact: -~/VZ-L.!..!;/t=...~- .....:::W.!:'...-"u"-r..t::.......,=---------

State: -'-;v-'---J ______ _ Zip: 1Nst-z.. 

Phone Number: (7-is-j '331- .>431 Email: ...,,_,Ne in@ ~,, +,.,., • ~......., 

8. Name and current Address of Project Engineer/Consultant: 

Engineer/Consultant: Contact: ~~""e.""c:..c.r:..>J''f--'uJ.=°'""-'-1 <-::...l.""-. ____ _ _ 
I 

Address: 8"l S"" I o'-1 

City: Sq; c\! . .( 
Phone ,Number: (t-, s) 3 54~ :13o3 

State: N~~v'~------ Zip: ?lJ.31 

9. Name and Address of General Contractor: 

Contractor: t).,, :.J-e..d C,.rohucJi.,""7 Contact: ----------- ---
Address: .5')00 /V1; I/ s+re.Q..-t 
City: &""° State: ~tV_l/~----- Zip: ?'f~"'2-

Phone Number: (-n .r) 8' ~11- &oq o Email : ~· - ---- --- --- --

10. Name and Address of Grading/Excavating Contractor: 
Contractor: Pe.o. ,,.,..g_ Co nsh v c.±1 2...-. . l:cc.. Contact: /V?,· <.1.-.e. ! 13.o cde ,.. 

; 

Address: 2.$3-Z.. La rk.;~ C ;rc.la.... 
City: Sp"' ck.s State: NI/ Zip: .,,_8'-'-'1'..:....13_ 1 _ _ _ 

Phone Number: h-is) 3 s-q_ 2.<- ~g Email: bo c de.,.,..,e, pe.o. ,,1"4.U!"' '° +-. l..owJ 



11. Proposed Construction Dates - Per Phase: *** provide grading and phasing maps *** 

On-Site Grading/Excavation: Complete: 
Building Construction: Start: -------- Complete: -------

12. Will fill material be required? Yes yd3 
; No _x __ 

13. Will there be an excess of native material as a result of excavation? Yes _.....__ ___ yd3 .2 S-<.lo c. y 
No ____ _ 

14. Amount of Material to be excavated (yd\ ~' ....,c~o=-=o~-----------------
15. Is there a soil analysis report available? Yes _ _,_X_____ No _ _____ _ 

16. On-Site soil type: -~~~1~1 -~~-S~~~A~~~--------------------
17. Method of dust control to be utilized (per phase): (attach a map showing dust control strategy-utilize scale with contours) 

Water Truck(s) /- 3 d¥ecrL(1 0 __, °Pe .. ,,.,_+.:.,,,,., (number of trucks) 

Chemical Sealant----- -------- (type - attach MSDS Sheets) 
Sprinklers/Water Cannons (locations) 

Compaction 1D b (percent) 

Enclosure (fences, windbreaks) 

Revegetation (type - attach seeding schedule) 
Will temporary irrigation be supplied? Yes No 

Water Source: T/YIWft £=\ti ~ +-.._,,, d 

Speed Limits - ---- --- ---- Other-------- ---------

NOTE - Permanent stabilization methods such as construction/landscaping, revegetation, chemical 
sealant/palliative, or other approved method(s) of dust suppression must occur "within 30 days of 
grading completion". Dust suppression must continue regardless of construction status. 

18. Method to control mud and soil being tracked onto adjacent paved roadways: IZovk +co.<-k.. ou +-

19. Frequency of daily street cleaning: ---'-'A-'-'~=----...c.M-~""d~a.. .... d ;.:... - - --- ---- --- --- --- - - -

20. Describe the methods (fences, barriers, etc.) to prevent unauthorized traffic on the construction site(s): 

Pe.c ·,""s,:f-e...- f"en u.,.. 

21. -~ersons to be cont~~~uring n.o:-worki~g hours in case of dust prob~eF: . 

Name&Phoneno: ..._ 'CF°~ -:f°OQS,,f\\-\ Email: -~~·=~:.....::~:;_· ~_,__;....=-~'-""-'-~=.-
(1\"~me & Phone no: /k] 1M r:f--1.-~ufl-o'V ·-7 ~l)-77 J-S77(. Email: · t:.-E:h. 
.:-'\ . - , £1,,\-g(l.N;v/'-t.~~ UfJ\~) ~~"'f'(/..-JG-'-fv-- , \..:-.,_. 

\ 'J\} "" 2 . ~he Ap ~cant's (~:leloper) signature or that of his/her Attorney in fact on this application shall constitute 

~ a eem•.J~by the{~p~ll antl a,ccept responsibility for meeting the "Conditions of P.'.an" (altac,hed): 

~ k~~e9--'___· -·· ---!-6/t.-=-z___,__/_1~-s __ 
Signature / o;(te 

·71uv ~ 1 cc [)f.1Nt::1e{ · /6(/ 
Print or type name ~ Title 

~a1 ( 1. a uu_,s cQu 8 0t~ ""; 1-<J({;CE:& - 6 70 --- I~ J f 
Company Narl\e f1 b)!Vl-;Jot.i::;. \ Phone Number I 

Revised: 612012 



Plan Review Fee Paid: 

AMOUNT PAID: a; 4(QS.oo I CHECK#: '2 3(oO(o CC: --"--=-=------ -----~ 

DATE: (o/3 {2012> 

Permit Approved: 

Permit Expires: 

Plan Denied: 

Change to permit: 

Date Received: 

Date Complete: 

COMPANY: PEA'\J 1NE- c.,0NSTTZuCuO't-J fNC 

\2 / 4 /~o\y 
Date 

Date 

Date Date Date 

See attached fax/letter - YES NO 

ContaciPerson/Company: ---------------------~ 

Project Results: -------------------------



COMPLAINT INVESTIGATION REPORT 
Washoe Cow1ty Air Quality Management Division 

Complaint Number: CMP13-0107 

Complaint Status: NOV Source of Complaint: INVESTIGATOR 

Complaint Type: DUSTPLAN Date Received: 07/26/2013 Time: 9:30 AM. 

Inspector: SDUGGER Inspector Area: 3 

Complaint Description: NOV CITATION 5274 - CASE 1128 - VIOLATION OF 040.030 DUST CONTROL 
PLAN - NO SIGN POSTED OR LOGS ON SITE 

Address: 1300 FOSTER DR RENO 

Location: 

Parcel Number: 01017130 

Related Permit Number: DCP 13-004 7 

Complainant: 
SUZANNE DUGGER 
AIR QUIALITY SPECIALIST II 
1001 EAST NINTH STREET #Bl 71 
RENO NV 89512 
784-7217 

Investigation: 

Responsible Party: 
BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB 
2680 E. 9TH STREET 
RENO NV 

89512 
690-1434 

7-26-2013 As a follow up to an earlier site visit performed on July 17, 2013 AQS Dugger arrived on 
site of the Boys and Girls Club future location located at 1300 Foster Dr. in Reno, Nevada. On site 
AQS Dugger spoke again with Mr. Jeff Forsyth, Project Manager of United Construction, to inquire 
about the dust control sign and the dust control logs. Both the sign and logs were not on site on 
the previous site visit. Mr. Forsyth stated that the sign was still not up and that the dust 
control logs were also not on site. AQS Dugger reviewed Dust Control Permit #DCP13-0047 and 
determined that the RP who signed the permit was Mr. Fred Taeubel, project manager for the Boys and 
Girls Club. AQS Dugger contacted Mr. Taeubel and informed him that not having a dust control sign 
on site and not having dust control logs on site were both violations of 040.03 0 Sec.3 ( c ). Due to 
violation of 040.030 Sec. (c), AQS Dugger issued NOV Citation #5274. An appeal form was given with 
the NOV. 

Enforcement Activities 

Warning Citation .. : 07/26/2013 Citation Number: 5274 
NOV ..................... : NOV Number .... : 0 

Case Number ..... : 1128 



Settlement. ........ .... : Amount... ........... : $0.00 
Appealed ... ... .... ..... : 
Upheld .............. .. ... : Amount.. ............. : $0.00 

Status Information 

Initialized By ....... : TBURTON Completed Date ... : 
Date Assigned ..... : 07/26/2013 Completed By ...... : 



AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT 
CONSTRUCTION SITE INSPECTION FORM 

FOR BOYS & GIRLS CLUB 

DATED 7-26-2013 AT 9:30 AM 



WASHOE COUNTY AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 
PO Box 11130, Reno, NV 89520-0027 

Office (775) 784-7200 *Fax (775) 784-7225 

CONSTRUCTION SITE INSPECTION FORM 

Enforcement Officer: S tt 7 A- /V "1 E j) U (, 6 €l'L Dateffime: 7 ~ Z (:; - ~ o i 3 I Cf ; ~ D 

Permit No.: pc P i"?> - DO Y 7 Responsible Party: Bo-1 '> i. (], tlt.l..5 l l..lA. <.?> 

Project Name: Boli-> ~ '1 tU .. S l..t..L(.~ Location: 13 o 1> {:.-o :> retL. b .t.. • 

Weather: ~Clear 0 Partly Cloudy 0 Cloudy ~ecent Rain Temp: Wind/mph: {!)- Direction: _ _ 

Site: ig/Active D Inactive D Project Complete Workers Present: m es D No 

Activities Occurring: D None 

D Clearing/Grubbing 0 Backfilling D Abrasive Blasting 

D Cut & Fill 0 Importing/Exporting D Explosive Blasting 

D Trenching i:g/stockpiling D Demolition (mech) 

EMISSIONS COMPLIANCE ~Yes 

0 Clearing Forms 

EB' General Construction 

0 Landscaping 

CJ No 

0 Crushing/Screening 

[B--'Subgrade Prep 

D Paving 

Fugitive Dust Emissions: D Yes 11:r'No If yes, source: _____ _ _ ___ Plume Length: _____ _ 

Opacity: - ---------'-"-% 

Project Soils: 9 C!r'Moist D Gravel D Palliative 0 Crust D Other: _______ _ 

Unstable: D Dry D Loose D Powdery 

Interior Roads: if None Stable: D Paved D Type II D Moist D Dust Suppressant 

Unstable: D Dry D Loose D Powdery 

Track-out: 0 Yes ~o Dust from vehicles: 0 Yes CTYN'o If yes, D Interior 0 Access 

Water Source: D Hydrant 0 Stand Tank D Reservoir D None Observed !!3'6ther: ft-z. o Ttl.. "-'-le:.. CV 
Mitigation Equipment: D Hose D Pull(s) r:9-rruck(s) 0 None Observed D Other: _ _ _ _ 

Mitigation Equipment Ratio: rg/p..dequate D Inadequate 

Track-out device present: D Yes, functional D Yes, not functional ~No.needed D No, not needed 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLIANCE 0 Yes ig/No 

Acreage Permitted: Y Project Size: ig/Equal to 0 Greater than 

Staging/Parking area(s): 0 N/A [9"'0n-Site D Off-Site, included in acreage D Off-Site, not included in acreage 

Stationary Source Permits: B" No Equipment D Screen 0 Crusher 0 Batch Plant ATC#: ____ _ 

DCP Sign: 0 Yes rn-"No DCP On-Site: 0 Yes 0 No 0 Not Verified 

Spoke with: f-/1..EO '111-EIA i3~L Title: Pll.o.Jf:.<--1 "'1J1.Vl"\-t; e &'Jn person/ D phone 

Actions Taken: D None D Verbal Warning 

D Notice of Violation - Warning: ~Notice of Violation - Citation: 

Deficiencies to be corrected: 



DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8. A. 1. e. 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

September 26, 2013 

District Board of Health 

Daniel Inouye, Acting Director, Air Quality Management 

Montane Building Group- Case No. 1131 
Unappealed Citation No. 5383 
Agenda Item: 8. A. 1. e. 

Recommendation 

Public Health 
Prevent . Promote. Protect. 

Air Quality Management Division Staff recommends that Citation No. 5383 be upheld and a fine of $2,500.00 dollars be levied 
against Montane Building Group for failure to have an asbestos survey performed by a qualified person and submitted to Air 
Quality for the issuance of an Acknowledgement of Asbestos Assessment prior to 'the demolition/renovation of a commercial 
facility. Conducting demolition/renovation activities without obtaining an asbestos survey and an Acknowledgement of Asbestos 
Assessment is a major violation of the District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality Management, specifically 
Section 030.105(B)(10) National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP), Subpart M - Asbestos, which is 
implemented through Section 030.107(A), Hazardous Air Pollutants, Asbestos Sampling and Notification. This is a negotiated 
settlement. 

Recommended Fine: $5,000.00 Negotiated Fine: $2,500.00 

Background 

On August 13, 2013, at approximately 9:20 a.m., Air Quality Specialist II Michael Osborn was driving south on Vista Boulevard 
when he observed a 30-yard dumpster positioned in front of 650 Vista Boulevard, Suite 100, in Sparks. AQ Specialist Osborn 
pulled into the parking area to investigate the need for a waste container at that location. Shortly after his arrival, AQ Specialist 
Osborn observed a worker throwing vinyl floor tile, a suspect asbestos containing material, into the container. AQ Specialist 
Osborn then entered the building and identified himself to the two workmen performing the removal. The two workmen were 
identified as Isreal Garcia and Filiberto Muro. AQ Specialist Osborn inquired about any asbestos sampling that may have been 
performed and if an Acknowledgement of Asbestos Assessment had been obtained from Washoe County Air Quality 
Management. Mr. Muro was unsure if the testing and Acknowledgement Form had been completed and referred AQ Specialist 
Osborn to Mr. Paul Slocum, owner of Montane Building Group. AQ Specialist Osborn immediately contacted Mr. Slocum who 
stated the asbestos sampling had been completed but that he had not yet received the test results. AQ Specialist Osborn 
asked Mr. Slocum to please meet him at the job site so they could discuss the vinyl floor tile and linoleum removal. 

Upon arrival, Mr. Slocum informed AQ Specialist Osborn that the asbestos testing had actually not been completed prior to the 
disturbance of the suspect flooring materials. AQ Specialist Osborn instructed Mr. Slocum to stop work immediately until a 
licensed Asbestos Consultant could perform a survey of all suspect materials associated with the demolition/renovation 
activities scheduled for the project. Specialist Osborn advised Mr. Slocum that if any asbestos was detected it would have to 
be removed by a licensed abatement contractor. Mr. Slocum stated that he was very familiar with the asbestos regulations 
since he formerly worked for Marcor Environmental, a licensed asbestos abatement contractor. 

P.O. BOX 11130 Reno, NV 89520-0027 • (775) 784-7200 •FAX (775) 784-7225 
www.ourcleanair.com 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8. A. 1. e. 



September 26, 2013 
DBOH I Montane Building Group I Case 1131 
Page 2 

Mr. Slocum contracted with Ms. Jill Smith of Air Tranquility, a licensed asbestos consultant, to perform the survey that 
afternoon. On August 14, 2013, the results of the laboratory analysis found no asbestos detected in any of the samples. Mr. 
Slocum submitted the asbestos survey to Air Quality Management and obtained the required Acknowledgement of Asbestos 
Assessment on August 15, 2013. 

Based on the results of the investigation, Specialist Osborn issued Notice of Violation Citation No. 5383 for a major violation of 
Section 030.107 (A), Asbestos Sampling and Notification. 

Settlement 

On August 21, 2013, Senior AQ Specialist Dennis Cerfoglio conducted a negotiated settlement meeting attended by Specialist 
Osborn and Mr. Paul Slocum, Montane Building Group. After careful consideration of all the facts in the case, Specialist 
Cerfoglio recommended that Citation No. 5383 be upheld with a fine of $2,500. A Memorandum of Understanding was signed 
by all parties. 

Alternatives 

1. The District Board of Health may determine that no violation of the Regulations has taken place and dismiss Citation 
No. 5383. 

2. The Board may determine to uphold Citation No. 5383 but levy any fine in the range of $0 to $10,000 per day. 

In the event the Board determines to change the proposed penalty, the matter should be continued so that Montane 
Building Group may be properly noticed. 

Daniel Inouye, Acting Division Director 
Air Quality Management 

DI/DC: ma 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

1001 EAST NINTH ST.• SUITE 8171 •RENO NV 89512 
(775) 784-7200 

NOTICE OF VIOLATION 

DATE ISSUED: . 1.~/1'3/ u'!>J'J. 

MAILING ADDRESS: .t.)'3.ic> t(".J .. ~ i-~ ki:L 
-'l 

NAME/OPERATOR::.\:>,~~ -S.. .~h--. ,, ~, ..,., ~ 
.. ;;; - ~- i ' 

PERMIT NO._----'-'\-=-'-"''----'. "1"'-";"1"'"""-..--- ---- ----COMPLAINT NO. C%~l\lil'A3 ~ 01 l_? 

YOU ARE HEREBY OFFICIALLY NOTIFIED THAT ON <-:"{)\' 'd.\'""lt:1r~-, (DATE) AT \ t~~'("i\\ ~~~ ,\,~; . (TIME), 
YOU ARE IN VIOLATION OF THE FOLLOWING SECTION(S) OF THE WASHOE COUNTY DISTRICT BOARD 

. OF HEALTH REGULATION,S GOVERNING AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT: . 

0 MINOR VIOLATION OF SECTION: 0 MAJOR VIOLATION OF SECTION: 

0 040.030 DUST CONTROL 

0 040.055 ODOR/NUISANCE 

0 040.200 DIESEL IDLING 

0 OTHER ---- - ------

0 030.000 OPERATING W/O PERMIT 

0 030.2175 VIOLATION OF PERMIT CONDITION 

JI 030.105 ASBESTOS/NESH}\P 

0 OTHER ~:ir~~ • \ f.'.') ~; A. 

' ' . ' ~ Weather: __ .;;..;... J ·-"--J._r.:!)..=-' =J \=_..1;"'""'''"'""'1 _,.=\_l1l-"--'l:=·~...._,.. ... ,'.';.o--'------------Wind Direction From: N E S W 

Emis$ions Observed: \~ .... ,:'\ ~"'"~-'1 ----"'-"......_,......,...._,__ _______________________ -'--_ 

(If Visual Emissions Performed - See attached Plume Evaluation Record) 

[J. WARNING ONLY: Effective _· ____ a.m./p.m. (date) you are hereby ordered to abate the above 
violation within hours/days. I hereby acknowledge receipt of this warning on the date indicated. 

Signature. _ _____ __________ _ 

D CITATION: You are hereby notified that effective. on j:.,\ \ ~ \ \ ~~ (date) you are in violation of th~ section(s) cited above. You'are 
hereby ordered to abate the above violation within \ l':J. "'f\, Y'rl ,

1 
hours/days. You may contact the Air Quality Management Division 

to request a negotiated settlement meeting by calling (775) 784-7200. You are further advised that within 10 war.king days of the date 
of this Notice of Violation, you may submit a written petition for appeal to the Washoe County Health District, Air Quality Management 
Division, P.O. Box 1113QJ.R~f1R, !';Jl;lvada 89520-0027. Failure to su bmit a petition within the specified time will result in the submis:
sion of this Notice of'Vtolation to the Dis~LGt:,~oard of Health with a recommendation for the assessment of an administrative fine. 

. ,. __..SIG, ING THIS-·FOffKris.NOT AN ADMISSION OF GUILT 
,,4.J~~ .. ~ · '""' - / . . ~-.... • • • • .t 1~-·.:.$C:i':. 

,? ~ tr'" /. ""1 t:.":t ~ /{ ""'~ r ... ') 
Signature: ;' "~-~?" / ;./· .,:__ . -··---· Date: il~ ~ ,, ·"~" l ·""'·· . 

Issued by: )/ i \l \f\ i·,. D~ . ...;:;-::::-:.::.:- Title: _'l..._~~Q= .. ' '--·"'"'~l_,,,.T=.L"-------
0 PETITION FOR A P°PEAL FORM PROVIDED 
H-AIR-09 (Rev. 04/12) ,-. 

'. . . .. . 
• I .,· • 



DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

Date: A. \)l\ d I 
j 

AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 
WASHOE COUNTY HEAL TH DISTRICT 

l 
L_Q t.3 

Company Name: . U .. {,;i mn:\.ltl su B t; 1 ~ ~ g, . 1V>i
1 

}:1 JI f>IJ,f' • ~-t\\t 
. Company Address: 5 '3 IC !<Mi.3 /G,, l. C l / /l o . , S-f.Q._ z O (p 7Zw1 n Ill V 

» I gqs" 

Notice of Violation No.: 53 1) 9> Case No.: tVJ1..P15 - Ql/9 · 

Location of Violation: 650 {.)_ 1 ~r0. J? ... Qc.,cf . ~t=i /Q() > S~c>.A l<.o, f\J V 

The staff of the Air Quality Management Divi9ion of the Washoe County Health District 

issued the above referenced Citation forjhe yjolat~<?f Regulation: ~ 

s:..~ei. IC~~ 5rad5'?"P 7 
~~~~ 

A settlement of this matter · has been negotiated between the undersigned parties 
n oCJ 

resulting in a penalty amount of$ .,:, d 5 00- . This settlement will be 

submitted to t District Board of Health for review at the regularly scheduled meeting on 
-ev d.& b/Dl3. 

Witness 

Title ~ 

Witn~.~~~ 
Witness Witness 

P.O. BOX: 11130 Reno, NV 8952.0-0027 • • (775) 784-7200 •FAX (775) 784-7225 



AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT- ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTY TABLE & 
RECOMMENDED FINE CALCULATION WORKSHEET 



Administrative Penalty Table 

Air Quality Management Di.vision 
Washoe County Health District 

I. Minor Violations - Section 020.040(C) 
Regulation 1st Violation 

040.005 Visible Emissions $ 1,000 
040.030 Dust Control (fugitive) 250 
040.035 Open Fires 500 
040.040 Fire Training 500 
040.050 Incinerator 1,000 
040.051 Woodstoves 500 
040.055 Odors 1,000 
040.080 Gasoline Transfer (maintenance) 1,000 
040.200 Diesel Idling 500 
050.001 Emergency Episode 1,000 

II. Major Violations - Section 020.040 

Regulation 
030.000 

030.1402 . 

030.2175 

030.235 

030.000 

Violation 
Construction/Operating without Permit 
(per major process system or unit/day) 

Failure to Comply with Stop Work Order 

Operation Contrary to Permit Conditions 
(per day or event) 

Failure to Conduct Source Test or Report 
(per Reporting Period for Each Unit) 

All other Major Violations 
(per day or event) 

Construction Without a Dust Control Permit 
Project Size - Less than 10 acres 
Project Size - 10 acres or more 

m. Major Violations - Section 030.107 Asbestos 

A. Asbestos Sampling & Notification 

B. Asbestos Control Work Practices 
(per day or event) 

C. Asbestos Containment & Abatement 
(per day or event) 

2"d Violation 
$ 2,500 

750 
. 1,000 

1,000 
2,000 
1,000 
2,000 
2,000 
1,000 
2,000 

Source Category 
Minimum Maximum 
$ 5,000 $ 10,000 

10,000/day 

2,500 

2,500 

$ 5,000 

$ 500 + $50 per acre 
$1,000 + $50 per acre 

$ 2,000 - $10,000 

$ 5,000 - $10,000 

$ 5,000 - $10,000 

10,000/day 

10,000 

5,000 

$ 10,000 



Company Name 
Contact Name 

Case #1131 

Violation of Section 

Washoe County Air Quality Management 
Permitting & Enforcement Branch 

Recommended Fine Calculation Worksheet 

Montane Building Group 
Paul Slocum 

NOV #5383 
-~"-------

Complaint CMP13-0119 

030.107 .A Asbestos Sampling & Notification 

I. Base Penalty as specified in the Penalty Table = $ __ ~s._o_oo __ _ 

II. Severity of Violation 

A. Public Health Impact 

1. Degree of Violation 
(The degree of which the person/company has deviated from the regulatory requirements) 

Minor- 0.5 Moderate- 0.75 Major-1.0 Adjustment Factor __ 1.'"""o __ 

2. Toxicity of Release 
Criteria Pollutant - 1 x 
Hazardous Air Pollutant - 2x Adjustment Factor 

3. Environmental/Public Health Risk (Proximity to sensitive environment or group) 

N/A 

Negligible- 1x Moderate-1.5x Significant- 2x Adjustment Factor _1._0 __ 

Total Adjustment Factors (1 x 2 x 3) = 1.0 

B. Adjusted Base Penalty 
Base Penalty 5 000 x Adjustment Factor 1.0 = $ 5,000 

c. Multiple Days or Units in Violation 

Adjusted Penalty 5,000 x Number of Days or Units 1.0 = $ 5,000 

D. Economic Benefit 
A voided Costs $ 400 = $ 400 
Average cost of an asbestos survey 

Penalty Subtotal - Recommended Fine 
Adjusted Base Penalty $ 5,000 + Economic Benefit $ 400 = $ 5,400 



Ill. Penalty Adjustment Consideration 

A. Degree of Cooperation (O - 25%) - 25 % 

B. Mitigating Factors (O - 25%) - 25 % 
1. Negotiated Settlement 

2. Ability to Pay 

3. Other (explain) 

C. Compliance History 
No Previous Violations (O - 10%) _ _ _ 5"'---- % 

Similar Violation in Past 12 months (25 - 50%) + _ ____ % 

Similar Violation within past 3 year (10 - 25%) + _ ____ % 

Previous Unrelated Violation (5 - 25%) + _ ____ % 

Total Penalty Adjustment Factors - sum of A, B, & C 

IV. Recommended/Negotiated Fine 

Penalty Adjustment: 

$ 5,400 
Penalty Subtotal 
(From Section II) 

x -55 % = 
Total Adjustment Factors 
(From Section Ill) 

Additional Credit for Environmental Investment/Training - N/A 

Adjusted Penalty: 

$ 5,400 
Penalty Subtotal 

(From Section II) 

$ 2,970 
Total Adjustment Value 

(From Section Ill + Credit) 

= 

-55 % 

$ 2,970 
Total Adjustment Value 

$ 2,500 
Negotiated 
Fine 

Date 



Complaint Status: NOV 

Complaint Type: ASBESTOS 

Inspector: MOSBORN 

COMPLAINT INVESTIGATION REPORT 
Washoe County Air Quality Management Division 

Complaint Number: CMP13-0119 

Source of Complaint: INVESTIGATOR 

Date Received: 08/13/2013 

Inspector Area: 2 

Time: 9:33 a.m. 

Complaint Description: NOV CITATION 5383 - CASE 1131 - VIOLATION OF 030.107A, FAILURE TO 
COMPLETED ASBESTOS SURVERY AND ASSESSMENT PRIOR TO DISTURBANC 

Address: 650 VISTA BLVD SPKS 

Location: SUITE 100 

Parcel Number: 

Related Permit Number: 

Complainant: 
MICHAEL OSBORN - AQ SPECIALIST II 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DNISION 
1001E9TH ST STE Bl71 
RENO NV 89512 
775-772-7923 

Investigation: 

Responsible Party: 
MONTANE BUILDING GROUP INC 
PAUL SLOCUM 
5310 KIETZKE LANE STE 206 
RENO NV 89511 
775-624-3966 

On August 13th, 2013 at approximately 0920 a.m., Specialist Osborn while driving South on Vista 
Blvd. observed a 30 yard container in front of 650 Vista Blvd. Ste 100. Experience has shown that 
this size container is usually used for demolitions or remodels. On contacting Washoe County Air 
Quality it was learned that there had been no survey or assessments received for this-address. 
Shortly thereafter Specialist Osborn observed an unidentified individual throwing what appeared to 
be vinyl tile into the container. 

Specialist Osborn entered into the building and presented a business card and introduction to 
Israel Garcia and Filiberto Muro who were removing tile, mastic and other building systems from the 
interior of Suite 100. On making an inquiry into the sampling survey and asbestos notification Mr. 
Muro was unsure if it had been done. Mr. Muro referred Specialist Osborn to Paul Slocum of Montane 
Building Group. 

On contacting Mr. Slocum via telephone initially he stated that the sampling was done but he hadn't 
received the results as of yet. He told Osborn that he would get them and immediately go down to 
Air Quality. He stated that the samples had been taken by Air Tranquility, a company Osborn was 
unfamiliar with at that time. I asked Mr. Slocum to come down to Vista Blvd. so I could speak with 
him. On his arrival I asked him for his sampling results and he explained that the sampling hadn't 
been done yet. He further explained that he had told the guys to start work yesterday at 3 :00 p.m. 



so they could get a head start on the project. It should be noted that neither employee was wearing 
any type of PPE. It was further noted that approximately 3,000 ft. plus of tile had been removed. 
(Specialist Osborn's estimate.) Linoleum had been disturbed in the bathroom along with cove base 
around the floor areas. There were two types of tiles observed with yellow mastic. Carpet/mastic 
had also been removed from some areas which covered the tiles. Mr. Slocum when advised of sampling 
procedures stated that he was very familiar these procedures due to have been employed with MACOR 
asbestos abatement Company of Reno. Mr. Slocum was issued Notice of Violation Citation #5383 for 
violation of 030.107A sampling and survey required. Mr. Slocum was further presented with a 
Petition for appeal and instructed not to continue working until a survey has been completed and 
taken to the Washoe County Air Quality Office. 

Michael R. Osborn, AQS II 
Washoe County Air Quality 
Washoe County Health District 

Enforcement Activities 

Warning Citation .. : 
NOV ..................... : 08/13/2013 

Settlement. .. ..... .. ... : 
Appealed .. ..... .. .... .. : 
Upheld ................... : 

Status Information 

Initialized By ....... : MOSBORN 
Date Assigned ..... : 08/13/2013 

Citation Number: 
NOV Number .... : 
Case Number ..... : 
Amount. ............. : 

Amount.. .... ......... : 

Completed Date ... : 
Completed By ...... : 

0 
5383 
1131 

$0.00 

$0.00 



AIR TRANQUILITY LLC - BULK SAMPLE ASBESTOS REPORT 
DATED AUGUST 13, 2013 

AND 

ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES INC REPORT 
DATED AUGUST 14, 2013 

BOTH FOR 650 VISTA BOULEVARD, UNIT 100, SPARKS NV 



Air Tnimq uilify, LJLC 
PO Box 18476 
Reno, NV 89511 
Phone: 775-771-3897 
lE mail:jil!@a jrtranQ 11 iHty.crun 

Date of Inspection: 8-13-13 

Client: Montane Building Group 

Bulik Sample Asbestos lRejpoirt 

Address: 5310 Kietzke Ln., Ste. 206, Reno, NV 89511 

Project#: 13010 

Project Address: 650 Vista Blvd., Suite 100, Sparks, Nevada 89431 

Area of Building Inspected: Single Level Floor-Demolition Area 

An asbestos survey was conducted at 650 Vista Blvd., Suite 100 on August 13th, 2013. This site was red 
tagged by Washoe County due to the demolition starting without an asbestos survey or demolition permit. 
There were enough remnant materials from the demolition area to obtain samples. Eight bulk samples were 
collected from the demolition area of this building. The suspect containing materials that were collected 
included VCT tile w/mastic, vinyl flooring w/mastic, joint compound, acoustic ceiling tile, carpet mastic and 
drywall. The laboratory analysis detected no asbestos in the material's that were tested. 

Asbestos Synopsis 

Asbestos is a naturally occurring mineral that has been used in literally hundreds of products. It gained 
widespread use due to being plentiful, readily available, low in cost, and having extremely unique properties. 
It does not bum, is incredibly strong, conducts heat and electricity poorly, and can withstand chemical 
corrosion. Asbestos therefore proved to be well suited for many uses in the construction field. For example, 
asbestos emerged as an insulating component in thermal system insulation for boilers and as a reinforcement 
material for a variety of products. These building materials are in fact still being manufactured mainly in 
other countries. This is why all building materials that will be disturbed by demolition or renovation should 
be tested for asbestos Environmental regulatory agencies and health professionals consider any substance 
with an asbestos content of one percent or greater to pose a significant health hazard in the event of 
disturbance. Some examples of where asbestos can be found include acoustic ceiling tiles, joint compound 
sheet rock, and the mastic used to seal carpet or vinyl flooring. 

The survey that was performed involved only the areas of the building that the client requested. This report 
does not guarantee that all suspect asbestos containing materials were identified or that all were sampled 
within the building. 



ASBESTOS TEIVi LABORATORIES, INC. 

EPA Method 600/R-93/116 

Polarized Light Microscopy 

Analytical Report 

Report No. · 123147 

1350 Freeport Blvd., Unit 104 
Sparks, NV 89431 

(775) 359-3377 
FAX (775) 359-2798 

With Main Office Located At: 
630 Bancroft Way, Berkeley, CA 94710 

Ph. (510) 704-8930 Fax (510) 704-8929 



ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES, INC 

Aug-14-13 

Ms. Jill Smith 
Air Tranquility, LLC 
P.O. Box 18476 
Reno, NV 89511 

RE: LABORATORY JOB# 9052-010 

Accredited by 

[}!)W~~~~ 
NVLAP Lab Code200104-0 

Polarized light microscopy analytical results for 8 bulk sample(s) with 5 sample split(s) 
Job Site: 650 Vista Blvd., Sparks, NV 
Job No.: 13010 
Report No.: 123147 

Enclosed please find the bulk material analytical results for one or inore samples submitted for asbestos analysis. 
The analyses were performed in accordance with EPA Method 600/R-93/116 or 600/M4-82-020 for the determination 
of asbestos in bulk building materials by polarized light microscopy (PLM). Please note that while PLM analysis is 
commonly perf01med on non-friable and fine grained materials such as floor tiles and dust, the EPA method 
recognizes that PLM is subject to limitations. In these situations, accurate results may only be obtainable through 
the use of more sophisticated and accurate techniques such as transmission electron microscopy (TEM) or X-ray 
diffraction (XRD). 

Prior to analysis, samples are logged-in and all data pertinent to the sample recorded. The samples are checked for 
damage or disruption of any chain-of-custody seals. A unique laboratory ID number is assigned to each sample. A 
hard copy log-in sheet containing all pertinent information concerning the sample is generated. This and all other 
relevant paper work are kept with the sample throughout the analytical procedures to assure proper analysis. 

Each sample is opened in a class 100 HEPA negative air hood. A representative sampling of the material is selected 
and placed onto a glass microscope slide containing a drop ofrefractive index oil. The glass slide is placed under a 
polarizing light microscope where standard mineralogical techniques are used to analyze and quantify the various 
materials present, including asbestos. The data is then compiled into standard report format and subjected to a 
thorough quality ass~rance check before the information is released to the client. 

For possible future reference, samples are normally kept on file for one year. 

Sincerely Yours, 

Laboratory Analyst 
ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES, INC. 

--- These results relate only to the samples tested and must not be reproduced, except in full, with the approval of 
the laboratory. This report must not be used to claim product endorsement by NVLAP or any other agency of the 
U.S. Government. ---

1350 Freeport Blvd. Unit 104 .. Sparks, NV 89431 (775) 359-3377 .. FAX (775) 359-2798 



Accredited by 

~w[£mf 
N VLAP tab Code ;~04-0 

Contact: Ms. Jill Smith 

Address: Air Tranquility, LLC 

P.O. Box 18476 

Reno, NV 89511 

§AMPLE ID 

13010-1. 

Lab ID # 9052-00010-001 

13010-2. 

Lab ID # 9052-00010-002 

13010-3. 

Lab ID # 9052-00010-003A 

13010-3. 

Lab ID# 9052-00010-003B 

13010-3. 

Lab ID # 9052-00010-003C 

13010-3. 

Lab ID # 9052-00010-0030 

13010-4. 

Lab ID # 9052-00010-004A 

13010-4. 

Lab ID# 9052-00010-004B 

13010-5. 

Lab ID # 9052-00010-005 

13010-6. 

Lab ID # 9052-00010-006 

POLARIZED LIGHT MICROSCOPY 
ANALYTICAL REPORT 
EPA Method 600/R-93/116 or 600/M4-82-020 !Page: ! of i 

Samples Indicated: 8 Report No. 123147 
Reg. Samples Analyzed: 8 Date Submitted: Aug-14-13 
Split Layers Analyzed: 5 

Date Reported: Aug-14-13 

Job Site I No. 650 Vista Blvd., Sparks, NV 

13010 

OTHER DATA 
DE§CRIPTION 1) Non-Asbestos Fibers 

ASBESTOS 2l Matrix Materials !FIELD 3 Datemme Collected 
O/o TYPE 4) Date Analyzed LAB 

1)2- 10% Cellulose,Fiberglnss Drywall, East Wall or Room 1 

None Detected 2)90-98% Gyp, Other m.p. 

3) 4) Aug-14-13 Drywall-White 

1} 1-5% Cellulose ~oim Compound, East Wall or Room I 

None Detected 2) 95 .. 99% Cale, Gyp, Other m.p. 

3) 4) Aug-14-13 JointCom-White 

1) 1-5% Cellulose Blue VCT Tile W/ Mastic, South Entry to Room 

None Detected 2) 95-99% Plast, Cale, Qtz, Other m.p. 2 

3) 4}Aug-14-13 Floor Tile-Blue 

1) 1-5% Cellulose Blue VCT Tile WI Mastic, South Entiy to Room 

None Detected 2) 95-99% Cale, Gyp, Other m.p. 2 

3) 4)Aug-14-13 MasLic-Clear/Grey 

1)5-10% Cellulose Blue VCT lile W/ Mastic, South Entry to Room 

None Detected 2) 90-95% Plast, Cale, Qtz, Other m.p. 2 

3) 4}Aug-14-13 LeveJCmpd-Grey 

1) 1-5% Cellulose Blue VCT Tile WI Mastic, South Entry to Room 

None Detected 2)95-99% Cale, Gyp, Other m.p. 2 

3) 4)Aug-14-13 Mastic-Yellow 

1} 1-5% Cellulose Multi Colored VCT Tile WI Mastic, Floor of 

None Detected 2) 95-99% Pia st, Cale, Qtz, Other m.p. Room3 

3) 4)Aug-14-13 Floor Tile-Grey 

1) 1-5% Cellulose Multi Colored VCT Tile WI Mastic, rloor of 

None Detected 2)95-99% Cale, Gyp, Other m.p. Room3 

3) 4)\ug-14-13 Mastic-Yellow 

1)2·I0% Cell ulose,Synthetics Carpet Mastic, Floor of Room 3 

None Detected 2)90-98% Cale, Gyp: Other m.p. 

3) 4)Aug-14-l 3 Mastic-Yellow 

1)<1% Cellulose Rubber Base Mastic, Outside North Wall of 

None Detected 2) I 00-100% Cale, Gyp, Other m.p. Room4 

3) 4}Aug-1 4-13 Mastic-White 

Limit of Quantitation of Method is Estimated to be 1 % Asbestos Using a Visual Area Estimat"i n Technique 

. Laboratory Aualyst__,,.,·~---~"'--+-.,,c.---'-~-rµ--___ _ 
Greg Hanes 

ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES, INC. 1350 Freeport Blvd., Unit HJ4, Sparks, NV 89431 (775) 359-3377 
With Main Office in Berkeley, CA (510) 704-8930 



Accredited hy 

~W~£,wf 
NVLAP Lab Code ;M;.04-0 

Contact: Ms. Jill Smith 

Address: Air Tranquility, LLC 

P.O. Box 18476 

Reno, NV 89511 

SAMPLE ID 

13010-7. 

I,,ab m # 9052-00010-007 

13010-8. 

Lab ID# 9052-00010-008A 

13010-8. 

Lab ID# 9052-00010-0088 

Lab ID# 

Lab ID# 

Lab ID# 

Lab ID# 

Lab ID# 

Lab ID# 

Lab ID# 

POLARIZED LIGHT MJICROSCOPY 
ANALYTICAL REPORT 
EPA Method 600/R-93/116 or 600/M4-82-020 Page: ~of l 

Samples Indicated: 8 Rep01tNo. 123147 
Reg. Samples Analyzed: 8 Date Submitted: Aug-14-13 
Split Laye~·s Analyzed: 5 

Date Reported: Aug-14-13 

Job Site I No. 650 Vista Blvd., Sparks, NV 

13010 

OTHER DATA 
DESCRIPTION 1) Non-Asbestos Fibers 

ASJBE§TOS 2) Matrix Materials FIELD 
O/o TYPE 

3) Date/Time Collected 
LAB 4) Date Analyzed 

1 )50-70% Cellulose,Fiberglass i\cGustic Ceiling Tile, Ceiling in Room 5 

None Detected 2)30-50% GlassFoam, Bndr, Other 
m.p. 

3) 4) Aug-14-13 Ceiling Tile-Grey/White 

1 )30-50% Cellulose,Fiberglass Spoiled Vinyl Flooring w/Mastic, Floor in 

None Detected 2)50-70% Plast, Gyp, Other m.p. Restroom I 

3) 4) Aug-14-13 Sheet Floor/Backing-Grey 

1} 1-5% Fiberglass, Cellulose SpoHed Vinyl Flooring w/Mastic, Floor in 

None Detected 2) 95-99% Cale, Gyp, Other 111.p. Restroom I 

3) 4) Aug-14-13 Mastic-Yellow 

1) 
2) 

3) 4) 

1) 

2) 

3) 4) 

1) 

2) 

3) 4) 

1) 

2) 

3) 4) 

1) 
2) 

3) 4) 

1) 
2) 

3) 4) 

1) 
2) 

3) 4) 

Limit of Quantitation of Method is Estimated to be 1 % Asbestos Using a Visual Area Estimati Technique 

Laboratory Analyst~=-=:::..__,~~~'------"~.......;_~---
Greg Htrnes 

ASBESTOS TEM LABORATORIES, INC. 1350 Freeport Blvd., Unit 104, Sparks, NV 89431 (775) 359-3377 
With Main Ofjlce in Berkeley, CA (510) 704-8930 



B1lllllk Sample 
Chain of Custody Form 

P.O. Box 18476, Reno, Nevada 89511-(775) 771-8897 

ugust 13th, 2013 sbestos. TEM Laboratories, Inc. 
1.350 Freeport Blvd., Unit 104 
Sparks, NV 89431 
~775) 359-3377 

Rinnai-Montane Email: Hll@airtranquility.com 

Project#: 1301 O Address:. 650 Vista Blvd., Spa~s. Nevada Copy To: 

Tel: 5~0-4815(Paul w/Montane) Email: 

Number of Samples: 8 Date Required: Check Priority: 

Special Instructions: Date: 

_, _, . 

0 Reg. 

·• -n8idr1me · 
• • ' I'".- .;. -



1&2 Nearly all of and ceiling and 
walls were already removed. 

NEW CONSTRUCTION 
I. 



AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ASBESTOS ASSESSMENT 

FOR 650 VISTA BOULEVARD, UNIT 100, SPARKS NV 

DATED: AUGUST 15, 2013 



ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF ASBESTOS ASSESSMENT 
Washoe County Air Quality Management Division 

Permit Number: ASB13-0706 

Property Owner: BRE/NV INDUSTRIAL PROPERTY LLC Phone: 

Property Being Evaluated: UNIT #100- REMOVE EXISTING WALLS TO RECONFIGURE 
BREAKROOM AND REPLACE FLOORING 

Address: 650 VISTA BLVD SPKS 

TYPE OF PROJECT 
RENO 

FILING FEEi $62.00 

TYPE OF PROPERTY -
NON-RES 

PROPERTY BEING ASSESSED 
PARTIAL* 

*Note: If this project is a partial renovation and additional work is to be conducted later, additional asbestos assessment(s) will be 
required unless this assessment covers all pertinent representative asbestos suspected materials throughout the building. 

General Contractor: 
MONTANE BUILDING GROUP INC 
PAUL SLOCUM 
5310 KIETZKE LANE STE 206 
RENO, NV 89511 

Abatement Contractor: 

10-DAY NOTIFICATION MANDATORY FOR DEMOLITION 

Comments: 

Consultant or Assessment Company: 
AIR TRANQUILITY LLC 

PO BOX 19476 
RENO, NV 89511 

Assessment Results:· ACM ABSENT 

Abatement Completed: 

... -· 

T.I. - remodel existing breakroom. Demo existing walls and replace flooring throughout office. 
Sampling found NO ACM present. Use best methods of dust control during construction and dispose of 
waste properly. 

Date 

. . 
Signature on this asbestos assessment document does NOT constitute full Health District approval for this project. Any additional Health 
permits such as are required for bar or restaurant operations, underground storage tanks, hazardous material disposal or air pollution 
sources must be obtained separately. 

Signature by the Washoe County Health District does not warrant, nor should this report be taken to warrant, that asbestos was or was 
not present on stated property. Exposure to even small amounts of airborne asbestos fibers may cause cancer. For this reason the Health 
District recommends that all asbestos handling and abatement work be performed by certified asbestos contractors. 

Washoe County Health District Air Quality Management Division 
1001 E. Ninth St, Suite 8171; Reno, NV 89512 / (775)784-7200 I FAX (775)784-7225 



PHOTOS TAKEN BY AQ SPECIAUST II, MICHAEL OSBORN 
OF 650 VISTA BOULEVARD, UNIT 100 IN SPARKS NV 

DATED AUGUST 15, 2013 



.. -.'· ·. 

.. 

08/13/2013 9:34:02 AM 

Violation of 030.107 A; Failure to 
conduct an asbestos survey prior 
to disturbing vinyl tiles and mastic 
from a public building. 

I ' 

·1 

'• 

.· 

.. 



• • I I 
1 

- . 
• . _.. . -

., 

08/13/2013 9:34:15 AM I 08/13/2013 9:34:32 AM I _, 
~ 

I .._· • -
. . . ' 

- .... -

. 
·1 

. ' 
.. • • 4 

. i . -



08/13/2013 9:35:29 AM 08/13/2013 9:52:21 AM 

08/13/2013 9:52:5"0 AM .. -

'•• 



' . 

1,-

08/13/2013 9:53:35 AM 

. -
- J 

08/13/2013 9:54:21 AM 



08/13/2013 9:55:30 AM I 

' 
~ 



DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.C.1 

Washoe County Health District 
STAFF REPORT 

Public Health 
rr~vcn!. Promote. Protect. 

BOARD MEETING DATE: September 26, 2013 

DATE: September 6, 2013 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Palsy Buxton, Fiscal Compliance Officer, Washoe County Health District~ 
775-328-2418, pbux!oniaJ.washoecounty.us 

THROUGH: Eileen Sticlmey, Administrative Health Services OfficerJ::'.L / 
775-328-2417, estickney@washoecountv.us ·~ 

SUBJECT: Approve termination of the Interlocal Agreement between the Washoe County 
Health District and the University of Nevada School of Medicine Integrated Clinical 
Services, Inc., and University of Nevada School of Medicine Multispecialty Group Practice 
North, Inc., dba MEDSchool Associates North (MSAN), to prnvide a faculty physician to 
serve as a consultant on pediatric Tuberculosis cases effective October 31, 2013. 

SUMMARY .. 
The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve and execute, or direct the Health 
Officer to execute, contracts in excess of $50,000, lnterlocal Agreements and amendments to the 
adopted budget. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 

The District Board of Health ratified the lnterlocal Agreement with MSAN to provide a faculty 
physician to serve as a consultant on pedia!iic Tuberculosis cases ·in the total amount of $2,000 
per year for the pe1iod July I, 2011 tlu·ough June 3 0, 2014 at the June 23, 2011 meeting. A copy 
of this Agreement is attached. 

BACKGROUND 

The Washoe County Health District received notice from Dr. Sonia Budecha that she is no 
longer affiliated with MSAN and is working through Renown effective September 3, 2013. It is 
our ll!1derstanding that the only other pedia!iic respiratory specialist is Dr. Lokshin and he is not 
affiliated with MSAN either. As such, we are proposing to te1111inate the contract with the 
University of Nevada School of Medicine Integrated Clinical Services, Inc., ru1d University of 
Nevada School of Medicine Multispecialty Group Practice North, Inc., dba MED School 
Associates No11h (MSAN) for the period July I, 2011 through June 30, 2014. The contract rate 
is $500 per quarter, not to exceed a total annual runount of $2,0,00. 

AGENDA ITEM# __ 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET I P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2400 FAX (775) 328-2279 
www.washoecounty.us/health · 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOY!=R 
0011.iT<::n "" ci::rvr1 <=n c11ci::c 

1

wflores
Rectangle



The Interlocal Agreement provided for: medical consultation services related to the diagnosis 
and treatment of active tuberculosis cases and latent tuberculosis infection in pediatric patients 
(0-14 years) by record review or office visit; discussion and review of progress and concerns 
related to pediatric tuberculosis patients; and approval of pediat1ic treatment protocols and 
clinical evaluations perfonned by District nurses. 

Should the Board approve the termination of this Agreement, a Jetter will be sent (copy attached) 
notifying MSAN of this action. 

FISCAL IMP ACT 

Should the Board approve to terminate this Interlocal Agreement, there will be no additional 
impact to the adopted FY 14 budget. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the Washoe County District Board of Health approve tennination of the 
Interlocal Agreement between the Washoe County Health District and the University of Nevada 
School of Medicine Integrated Clinical Services, Inc., and University of Nevada School of 
Medicine Multispecialty Group Practice North, Inc., dba MEDSchool Associates North 
(MSAN), to provide a faculty physician to serve as a consultant on pediatric Tuberculosis cases 
effective October 31, 2013. 

POSSIBLE MOTION 

Move to approve termination of the Interlocal Agreement between the Washoe County Health 
District and the University of Nevada School of Medicine Integrated Clinical Services, Inc., and 
University ofNevada School of Medicine Multispecialty Group Practice North, Inc., dba 
MEDSchool Associates North (MSAN), to provide a faculty physician to serve as a consultant 
on pediatric Tuberculosis cases effective October 31, 2013. 

2



September 26, 2013 

Gail Smith, MBA 
UNSOMMSAN 
1664 N. Virginia Street MIS 1332 
Reno, NV 89557-1332 

Dear Ms. Smith, 

:tr~tmbfil,<r! JBL\E:.zlit1i1 
Frcv~nl. Prnmatc_ Ptoi~LI 

The Washoe County Health District ("Health District") has enjoyed its working relationship with 
MSAN for many years, and hope to continue to do so with other services. However, due to the 
depariure of your assigned consultant for Pediatric Tuberculosis, Dr. Sonia Budhecha, we will be 
terminating our contract for these services. 

This letter serves as the written notification required under the ''TERMINATION" paragraph 
attached of the "Agreement" between the Health District and MSAN for pediatric tuberculosis 
consultation services. The termination of the Agreement shall be effective October 31, 2013. 

With your permission, the Health District will keep your information on file in the event 
circumstances change, and your specialized services could be utilized in the future. 

If you have any questions please feel free to contact Steve Kutz at (775) 328-3759. 

Sincerely, 

Matt Smith 
Chairman, Washoe County District Board of Health 

cc: Steve Kutz 
Candy Hunter 
Lisa Lottritz 
Patsy Buxton 
File 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET I P.O. BOX ·1·1130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2400 FA)( (775) 328-2279 
www.washoecounty.us/healih 

lh/A<;!~nr- rn1 l"ITV I<; llM i:::n1 Ill! nPPfll:>TI !"llTV r--.01 nvr.:1~ 

3



lNTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

TI-HS AGREEMENT is made and entered into between the WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH 
DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as "District," and the University ofNevada Schoo] of 
Medicine Integrated Clinical Services, Inc., and University of Nevada School of Medicine Multi
Special!y Group Practice Norlb, Inc., dba MEDSchooJ Associates North, hereinafter referred to 
as "MSAN." 

WHEREAS, the Disbict conducts several public health programs which require the services of a 
physician consultant; and 

WHEREAS, MSAN has faculty physicians who are licensed to practice medicine in the State of 
Nevada, and specialize in pediatric pulmonmy medicine; and 

WHEREAS, MSAN agrees to provide a faculty member to serve as a consultant on pediahic 
Tuberculosis cases; 

Now therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the parties agree as 
follows: 

The MSAN agrees lo: 
l. Provide medical consultation services related to the diagnosis and treatment of active 

tuberculosis cases and latent tuberculosis infection in pediatric patients (0-14 years) by 
record review or office visit. 

2. Discuss m1d review progress and concerns related to pediatric tuberculosis patients and 
approve pediatric treatment protocols and clinical evaluations performed by District nurses. 

3. Bill the District quarterly for consultative services provided. 
4. Ensure that the physicim1 consultant lms submitted to a full background investigation 

pursuant to NRS l 79.180 et seq., which includes a criminal history check and fmgerprinting, 
mid authorize the Dismct to receive the records. The discovery of a) Bll undisclosed 
conviction for a sexual offense or a conviction based on an arrest or initial chm·ge for a 
sexual offense, b) an undisclosed pending mrnst or initial charge for a sexual offonse, or c) 
two or more incidents resulting in arrest or initial charge of sexual offense which have not 
resulted in conviction and were not disclosed may be grounds for immediate ie1m.ination of 
this Agreement without prior notice by the District, as may the arrest, initial charge or 
conviction of physician for a sexual offense dming the term of this Agreement. 

The District agrees to: 
l. Reimburse MSAN $2,000 per year in four (4) quarterly payments of $500 for services 

described herein. 
2. Be responsible for all fiscal and program responsibilities, records and reports for patients 

provided services through Distiict pro grains. 
3. Provide physician(s) with appropriate fmms to obtain fingerpiints at the Washoe County 

Sheriff's Office. 

G:/Managernent/Contracls/201 O/MSAN Budhecha i 
4

wflores
Rectangle



4. Provide no payment in advance of senrices. Payments are to be mailed to the following 
address: MEDSchool Associates North 

Nelson Building - MS 353 
Attn: Accounts Receivable 

401 West Second Street, Suile 237 
Reno, 1'1V 89503-5353 

I-IIPAA: TI1e parties aclmowledge that they are subject to the provisions of the Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act and the regulations promulgated there under (hereinafter 
"HJP AA"), pertaining to the maintenance, handling, retention, confidentiality and availability of 
records and data containing protected health information, as that term is defined by 45 
C.F.R.§ 164.50 l. It is agreed that in addition ta maintaining such records and data in accordance 
with HIP AA and any more restrictive provisions of state law, including but not limited to, 
chapters 441A of tl1e Nevada Revised Statutes and the Nevada Administrative Code, the parties 
will require that all employees, contractors, and agents with whom they share tl1e records and 
data provide comparable protections to those provided by the parties. 

INDEl\IJNIFICATION. 
a. Consistent with the Limited Liability provision stated below, each parly shall indemnif'y, hold 

harmless and defend, not excluding the other's right to participate, the other party from and 
against all liability, claims, actions, danmges, losses, and expenses, including but not limited 
to reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, arising out of any alleged negligent or willful acts or 
omissions of the indemrufying party, its officers, employees and agents. Such obligation shall 
not be construed to negate, abridge, or otherv.~se reduce any other right or obligation of 
indemnity, wbich would otherwise exist as to any party or person, described in this 
paragraph. 

b. The indemnification obligation under this paragrnph is conditioned upon receipt of •Nritten 
notice by the indemnifying party within 30 days of the indemnified party's actual notice of 
any actual or pending claim or cause of action. The indemnifying party shall not be liable ta 
hold harmless any attorneys' fees and costs for the indemnified party's chosen right to 
participate with legal counsel. 

c. In the event that the provisions of NRS Chapter 41 do not apply to a party, the party not 
covered by Chapter 41 agrees to indemnify the other party for any amount of damages in 
excess of the capped amount contained in Chapter 41 that may be awarded. 

LIMITED LIABILITY. 111e parties will not waive and intend to assert available NRS chapter 41 
liability limitations in all cases. Contract liability of both parties shall not be subject to punitive 
damages. To the extent applicable, actual contract damages for any breach shall be limited by 
NRS 353.260 and NRS 354.626. 

TERJvL The tern1 of this Agreement is from July I, 201 I through June 30, 2012 unless extended 
by the mutual agreement of the Parties. The Agreement will automatically be renewed far t\¥0 

successive one-year periods for a total of 3 years on the same tem1s unless either party gives the 
other written notice of nonrenewal at least 60 days prior to June 30 of each year. The automatic 
renewal provision of this section shall not affect tl1e right of the Health District to tenninate the 
Agreement as provided below. 

G:/Ma nagemer,l/Contracls/20'1 O/MSAN Budhecha 2 
5

wflores
Rectangle



TERMINATION. Either party may terminate this Agreement and any amendments at any time, 
without cause or penalty upon 30 days \.\~·itten notice to the other party. The District shall 
reimburse MSAN· for any services still owing prior to the termination date of this Agreement but 
reserves the iight to withhold payment if it is determined that the services were not provided. 

NON-APPROPRJATION. In the event funds are not appropriated for lhis purposes specified in 
this Agreement, MSAN hereby consents to the termination of this Agreement. In such event, 
District will notify provider in writing and 1he agreement will terminate on the date specified in 
the notice. Both parties understand that this funding out provision is required by N.R.S. 354.626. 

SEVERABILITY. TI1e provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed severable and if any 
portion shall be held invalid, illegal or unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of the 
Agreement shall be in effect and binding upon the parties. 

W AIYER OF PROVISION. Any waiver of any terms or conditions hereof must be in writing 
and signed by the parties hereto. A waiver of any of the terms or conditions hereof sball not be 
construed as a waiver of any other terms of conditions hereof 

AMENDMENTS. This Agreement may be amended at any time by mutual agreement of the 
parties without adclitional consideration, provided tl1at before any amendment shall be operative 
or valid it shall be reduced to writing and signed by the parties .. Ratification by the goventing 
bodies shall be a conclition precedent to its entry in1o force. This Agreement may be reviewed at 
any time by both parties to determine whether the Agreement is appropriate as it relates to 
individuals referred from the District. 

ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties and 
shall be binding upon the parties and no other agreements, oral or written, have been entered into 
with respect to the subject of th.is Agreement. 

ASSIGNMENT. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to permit assignment 
by MSAN of any rights, duties or obligations wider this Agreement and such assigmnent is 
expressly prohibited. 

N011CES. Official notices required under this Agreement slrnll be sent to the pmties by 
certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid in the United States Postal 
Service to the addresses set forth below, or to such other addresses as the parties may designate 
in writing .from time to time by notice given in accordance with the provisions of this section. 

Notices to MSAN shall be addressed to: 
Gail Smith, MBA 

UNSO!vl 
J 664 N. Virginia Street, .M/S 1332 

Reno, NV 89557-D32 

G:/l'vlanagemenUContracls/201 O/MSAN B udhech a 3 
6

wflores
Rectangle



Notices to the District shall be addressed to: 
Districi Healih Officer 

Washoe Comity Health District 
P 0 Box 11130 

Reno NV 89520-0027 

Witness whereof, the parties hereto or a representative of either have set their hands and 
subscribed their signatures as of the date and year indicated. 

District Board of Health 

By: q>;:p/ ,t2-.-~ 
?- ,.,,r.--S 

Chairman 
Date: c»-;l.3- // 

University of Nevada School of Medicine Integrated Clinical Services, Jnc., and University 
ofNevada School of Medicine MuJtispecialty Group Practice North, Inc., dba MEDSchool 
Associates North 

Date: /· 7-// 
-------

G:/Mo:i nagement/Conlracts/201 0/MSAN 13 udhecha 4 7

wflores
Rectangle

wflores
Rectangle



87/25/2Bll B9:37 7757843093 Ul,IIV HEAL TH SYSTEM 

EXHIBIT A 

Washoe County Health District 
OSE!A Bloodborne Pathogen Requirements for 

Independent Corntiractors 

PAGE 01/Bl 

Although the OSHA Standard for bloodborne pathogens covers employees, the Washoe County 
Health. District (WCBD) wishes to insure that all individuals working on site (independent 
contractor) at risk for exposure \'!ill adhere to the recomm9:iipations outline in the WCDHD 
Bloodborne Patl10gens El<posure Control Plan. Copies oft~p plan are availabl.e in the Division$ 
v.~.thin the Department · 

Your si.gnaturc below indicates your agi:eement that: 

You have reviewed a cunent copy of the WCHDH Bloodborn~ Pathogen Exposure Control Plan 
as o.fthe date below. 

You will abide by those policies. 

You l1ave designated a health care provider to provide you post exposrne evaluation aud 
prophylaxis at your own eitpense in the event you are exposed to blood or body fluids. 

The WCDHD offers independent contractors initial aJJd annual blood borne pathogen training. 
Should you decline this training, you agree to comply with any OSHA requirements for 
Bloodborne Pathogen training that might apply to you llllder Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration (OSHA) Bloodborne Pathogens Standard, 29 CFR 1910.1030, enacted in 
December, 1991., to reduce occupational exposure to Hepatitis B Virus (HBV), Human 
Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) and other bloodbome pathogens. 

:NAME' f) /I , I ,·. , ,q_ . t.:11., .:t n e c..,ITt:-._ 
DATE 

8

wflores
Rectangle

wflores
Rectangle



DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.C.2 

Washoe County Health District 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

THROUGH: 

SUBJECT: 

SUMMARY: 

Public Health 
l'rcv~n\. l'romnte. Prnlcct. 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: September 26, 2013 

September 5, 2013 

Dis!Jict Board of Health 

Patsy Buxton, Fiscal Compliance Officer, Washoe County Health District ~---
775-328-2418, pbuxton@washoecounty.us 

Eileen Stickney, Administrative Health Services Officer, Washoe County Health~ 
District, 775-328-2417, esticknev@washoecounty.us 

Authorize Travel and Travel Reimbursements for two Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention (CDC) Assignees (Jessica Ponce and Andrew 
Stutman), for the period of July 29, 2013 through August I, 2015 in a total 
amount not to exceed $2,500. 

On June 14, 2011, the Washoe Board of County Commissioners (BCC) delegated the authority 
to the Washoe County District Board ofI-Iealth (DBOH) to make final decisions regarding 
approval of non-employee travel. 

District Board of Health strategic priority: Experience a low rate of communicable diseases. 

BCC Strategic Objective supported by this item: Safe, secure and 'healthy communities. 

Approval of the non-employee travel also supports the Disti·ict's Community & Clinical Health 
Service Divisions Sexual Health program's mission to provide comprehensive prevention 
education, treatment, and surveillance activities in Washoe County that reduce the incidence of 
STD infection including HIV. The Sexual Health Program emphasizes s!J·ategies that empower 
individuals to decrease risk-related behaviors, thereby decreasing the incidence of new STD and 
mv infections in the community. 

PREVIOUS ACTION: 

On June 27, 2013, the Board of Health approved a request to Authorize Travel and Travel 
Reimbursements for a Non-County Employee (Patrick Russell) in the approximate an1ount of 
$1,200 in support of the HIV Prevention Grant Program (IO 10013). 

AGENDA ITEM# 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET I P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2400 FAX (775) 328-2279 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
PRlldT\:n n~I r.>i::rvr1 i::n OflO!:"D 

1

wflores
Rectangle



BACKGROUND: 

District Board of Health 
Page 2 of 3 

The Washoe County Health District submitted an application to the CDC to be a host site for a 
Public Health Associate to work in our community. CDC agreed· and assigned two individuals 
(Jessica Ponce and Andrew Stutman) to work with us for a two (2) year assignment. As a host 
site we provide the Associate(s) first-hand experience in the implementation of public health 
programs at the Health District level. 

The Agreement with CDC stipulates that Associates will have the san1e rights, responsibilities, 
and supervision as comparably situated employees of the host agency including receiving 
reimbursement for local travel expenses, participating in host site training, and receiving 
technical direction and mentoring from host site employees. 

It is anticipated travel expenses will mainly be local mileage reimbursement; however if required 
training opportunities are outside of the Tahoe Basin the amount being requested should be 
sufficient to cover travel expenses. 

FISCAL IMP ACT: 

Should the Board approve the non-county employee travel, there will be a fiscal impact, 
however, this impact is minimal and will be absorbed within the Community and Clinical Health 
Services division operating expenditures. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that the District Board of Health authorize Travel and Travel Reimbursements 
for two Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) Assignees (Jessica Ponce and 
Andrew Stutman), for the period of July 29, 2013 through August l, 2015 in a total amount not 
to exceed $2,500. 

POSSIBLE MOTION: 

Move to authorize Travel and Travel Reimbursements for two Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention (CDC) Assignees (Jessica Ponce and Andrew Stutman), for the period of July 29, 
2013 through August 1, 2015 in a total amount not to exceed $2,500. 

2

wflores
Rectangle



DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.C.3 

Washoe County Health District 
PublicHeallth 
!'r~\·cnt. Promote. !'rn!cct. 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: September 26, 2013 

DATE: September 9, 2013 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Patsy Buxton, Fiscal Compliance Officer, Washoe County Health District~ 
775-328-2418, pbuxton1Ci1washoecounty .us 

Eileen Stickney, Administrative Health Services Officer ~ 
775-328-2417, esticknev(ilJ.washoecountv.us ~ 

THROUGH: 

SUBJECT: Approval of Subgrant Amendment #2 from the Nevada State Health Division 
for the Women, Infants and Children (WIC) Clinic Program for the period October 1, 2012 
through September 30, 2014 in the total amount of $2,143,996 in support of Salaries and 
Benefits, Travel and Training, and Operating Expenditures; and if approved authorize the 
Chairman to execute. 

SUMMARY 

The Washoe Cow1ty District Board of Health must approve and execute, or direct the Health 
Officer to execute, contracts in excess of $50,000, Interlocal Agreements and amendments to the 
adopted budget. The Washoe County Health District has received a Notice ofSubgrant Award 
from the Nevada State Health Division that provides funding for the period October 1, 2012 
through September 30, 2014 in the amount of$2,143,996 ($1,071,998 per year) in support of the 
Special Supplemental Nutrition Progran1 for Women, Infants m1d Children. A copy of the 
Subgrant Amendment #2 is attached. 

District Board of Health strategic priority: Be assured that mandates are met and needed 
services are delivered. 

BCC Strategic Objective supported by this item: Safe, secure and healthy communities. 

It also supports the Washoe County Health District's Special Supplemental Nutrition Program 
for Women, Infants m1d Children (WTC) mission. It is to provide 'supplemental nutritious foods, 
nutrition education and refe1Tals to other health and social services to eligible pregnant and 
postpartum women, infants and children up to age five in Washoe County to prevent the 
occunence of health problems m1d to improve the health status of these persons. 

AGENDA ITEM# 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET I P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2400 FAX (775) 328-2279 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
PR1NTFn nN RFr.Yr'.I Fn PAPFR 

1

wflores
Rectangle



District Board of Health meeting of September 26, 2013 
Page 2 

PREVIOUS ACTION 

The District Board of Health approved last year's base Notice ofSubgrant Award for the period 
October 1, 2012 through September 30, 2013 in the total amount of $1,071,998 on September 27, 
2012. 

BACKGROUND 

The Washoe County Health District agrees to provide a level of service sufficient to provide 
WIC food instruments to an estimated 6,576 participants per month for a total of78,91 l 
participants per year during the term of this Subgrant Award. 

This document has been revised to reflect the correct funding levels in each budget category per 
year: Personnel= $1,007,089; Travel= $5,750.00 and Operating= $59,159. The total award 
an10unt will remain at $1,071,998. 

FISCAL IMP ACT 

No budget amendments are necessary at this time. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the Washoe County District Board of Health approve Subgrant 
Amendment #2 from the Nevada State Health Division for the Women, Infants and Children 
(WIC) Clinic Program for the period October 1, 2012 through September 30, 2014 in the total 
amount of$2,143,996 in support of Salaries and Benefits, Travel and Training, and Operating 
Expenditures; and if approved authorize the Chairman to execute. 

POSSIBLE MOTION 

Move to approve Subgrant Amendment #2 from the Nevada State Health Division for the 
Women, Infants and Children (WIC) Clinic Progran1 for the period October 1, 2012 through 
September 30, 2014 in the total an10unt of $2, 143,996 in support of Salaries and Benefits, Travel 
and Training, and Operating Expenditures; and if approved authorize the Chairman to execute. 

2



HD Amendment #: 2 
-----"'-

Department of Health and Human Services 

Jl)lVllSION of Public and Behavioral Health 

(hereinafter referred to as the DIVISION) 

HD Contract#: 
12031 

Budget Account#: 3214 
C t # --,-, ,-.1-·-1:1.,,-. a egory : I·· ,o<t l.' 

GL#: 
0

8516 
SUBGRANT AMENDMENT #2 

Program Name: Subgrnntee Name: 
Women, Infants and Children (WIC) Washoe County Health Distiict 
Bureau of Child, Family, and Community Wellness 
Nevada State Health Division 
Address: Address: 
4126 Technology Way, Suite #102 I 009 East 9111 Street 
Carson City, NV 89706-2009 PO Box 11130 

Reno, NV 89520 
Origillal Subgrant Period: Subgrantee EIN#: 88-6000138 
October 1, 2012- September 30, 2013 Subgrantee Vendor#: T41107900 

Amended Subgrant Period: Dun & Bradstreet#: 073-78-6998 
October I, 2012- September 30, 2014 

Source of Funds: % of Funds: CFDA#: Federal Grant#: 
WIC Nutrition Services/Administration 100 10.577 7NV700NV7 

Amendment : This change is to increase the total dollar amount for a two (2) year term of the sub grant from 
$1,071,998.00 to $2,143,996.00. Annual reimbursement will not exceed $1,071,998.00. Scope of work remains 
the same. WIC funding levels are subject to change dependent on yearly grant allocation from USDA. The WIC 
program is discretionary and subject to Sequestration cuts which may affect fonding levels. Funding adjustments 
could be necessary and dependent of these factors. 

Change from: 
Personnel: $ 
Operating: $ 
Travel: $ 
Total: $ 

1,007,089.00 
59,159.00 

5,750.00 
1,071,998.00 

Change to: 
Personnel: $ 2,014,178.00 
Operating: $ 118,318.00 
Travel: $ 11,500.00 
Total: $ 2,143,996.00 

By signing this Amendment, the Authorized Subgrantee Official or their designee, Program Manager, Bureau 
Chief, and Health Division Administrator acknowledge the above as the new standard of practice for the above 
referenced Subgrant. Further, the undersigned understand this amendment does not alter, in any substantial way, 
the non-referenced contents of the Original Sub grant Award and all of its Attachments. 
Authmized Sub-grantee Official .::i1gm1ture uatc 

Title: 

Michelle Walker ~fYl \,e!)uJJ . .e. WctJLJ:~ c·: ,/ ./ 

Program Manager C;J'j~-/~/>;; - ~"'- -
Deborah Hanis, MA, CPM • jl\,.kll l tl,£J~:LJ frl'ht /--:)-- ,~·j,\i/) 
Bureau Chief ·---· · 1r 1 , 
Richard Whitley, MS ~ 
Administrator, Health Divis ·o · . 

(_V,;j-{"";)1 JL· 

C:\Users\ARRivers\Desktop\Subgrant Amendments 13\SUBGRANT AMENDMENT Washoe Co OB. 13.docx 
NSHD Temp/ale: Updated 4-13-10 3



DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.C.4 

Washoe County Health District 

DATE: 

TO: 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: September 26, 2013 

September 16, 2013 

District Board of Health 

PublicHeallth 
Pn\'cnl. Promnt~. Protect. 

FROM: Patsy Buxton, Fiscal Compliance Officer, Washoe County Health District ffY 
775-328-2418, pbuxton@washoecountv.us 

Eileen Stickney, Admini~trative Health Services Officer~ 
77 5-328-2417, esticknev@washoecountv.us 

THROUGH: 

SUBJECT: Approve Subgrant Amendment #2 from the Nevada Department of 
Health and Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health for the period 
January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 in the amount of $99,227, bringing total CY 
2013 funding for the Immunization Program Grant (I Os 10028 & 10029), to $297,673; and 
if approved authorize the Chairman to execute. 

SUMMARY 

The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve and execute, or direct the Health 
Officer to execute, contracts in excess of $50,000, Interlocal Agreements and amendments to the 
adopted budget. 

The Health District received Subgrant Amendment #2 from the Nevada Department of Health 
and Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health which provides for grant funding 
for the on-going Immunization Program, IOs 10028 & 10029. A copy of Amendment #2 is 
attached. 

District Board of Health strategic priority: Be assmed that mandates are met and needed 
services arn delivered. 

BCC Strategic Objective supported by this item: Safe, secure, and healthy communities. 

Approval of Sub grant Amendment #2 also supports the Health District Immunization Program 
Mission to promote public health by reducing vaccine preventable disease through 
inununization, with an emphasis on collaboration and cooperatimi with community partners. 

AGENDA ITEM# ---

1001 EAST NINTH STREET I P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2400 FAX (775) 328-2279 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
PR!NTFn ON RFr.vr.1 i:n PAPFR 

1

wflores
Rectangle

wflores
Rectangle

wflores
Rectangle



PREVIOUS ACTION 

District Board ofl-Iealth 
Page 2 of2 

The Washoe County Distlict BoaTd of Health approved a Notice ofSubgrant Award in the 
amount of$99,223, representing "Round 1" of funding, in support of the Immunization Progi-am 
on February 28, 2013. 

The Washoe County District Board of Health approved a Notice ofSubgrant Award in the 
amount of$99,223, representing "Round 2" of funding, in support of the Immunization Progi-an1 
on July 25, 2013. 

BACKGROUND 

The NSHD has received "Round 3" of funding from the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention (CDC). As such, the Amendment reflects the subgi-ant period of January 1, 2013 
through December 31, 2013, with additional funding of$99,227. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

No budget amendments are necessary as sufficient budget authority is available through 6/30/14. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the District Board of Health approve Subgi-ant Amendment #2 from the 
Nevada Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health 
for the peliod January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 in the amount of $99,227, bringing 
total CY 2013 funding for the !111111unization Program Grant (!Os I 0028 & 10029), to $297,673; 
and if approved auth01ize the Chairman to execute. 

POSSIBLE MOTION 

Move to approve Subgrant Amendment #2 from the Nevada Department of Health mid Human 
Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health for the period January 1, 2013 through 
December 31, 2013 in the amount of $99,227, bringing total CY 2013 funding for the 
Immunization Progi-am Grant (I Os 10028 & 10029), to $297,673; m1d if approved autholize the 
Chairman to execute. 

2

wflores
Rectangle



HD Amendment#: 13128-2 
Nevada Department of Health and Human Services 

DIVISION OF PUB UC AND BEHAVIORAL HEAL TH 

(hereinafter referred to as the DIVISION) 

HD Contract#: 13128 ----
BudgetAccount#: 3213 

-----,,-
Category #: 20 

--c----'----
G L #: 8516 

Job Number: ----.,,9-,-32.,._6-8'--1'""3'-

SUBGRANT AMENDMENT #2 

Program Name: Subgrantee Name: 
Immunization Program Washoe County Health District (WCHD) 
Bureau of Child, Family & Community Wellness 
Nevada State Division of Public and Behavioral Health 
Address: Address: 
4150 Technology Way, Suite #210 PO Box 11130 
Carson City, NV 89706-2009 Reno, NV 89520 

Original Subgrant Period: Subgrantee EIN#: 88-6000138 
1/1/2013 through 12/31/2013 

Subgrantee Vendor#: T40283400 Q 

Amended Subgrant Period: 
1 /1/2013 through 12/31/2013 Dunn and Bradstreet #: 73786998 

Source of Funds: % of Funds: CFDA#: Federal Grant #: 
1.Centers for Disease Control & Prevention 100% 93.268 1 H23JP000727-01 

Amendment #2: The Nevada State Immunization Program received Round 3 funding from the CDC issued on 
8/27/2013. It is necessary for the Nevada State Immunization Program to increase the subgrant award so that 
the subgrantee can accomplish the scope of work set out in the original subgrant. This amendment does not 
affect the subgrant scope of work. This amendment increases the approved subgrant budget by $99,227, from 
$198,446 to $297,673. 

Change to: 
Total Approved Budget Categories & Funding Sources 

CATEGORIES FUNDING SOURCE 
VFC OPS (01) VFC/AFIX (04) 317 OPS (00) PAN FLU (05) TOTAL 

1. Personnel $169,211 $108,042 $277,253 
2. Travel $600 $6,800 $7,400 
3. Ooeratina $1,300 $1,300 
4. Equipment 
5. Contractual/Consultant 
6. Training 
7. Other $11,720 $11,720 
TOTAL $182,831 $114,842 $297,673 

Any categorical adjustments must be approved through the Immunization Program Manager. Written permission 
must be obtained and can be done via email. Please note that funding cannot be moved between funding 
sources (example - moving funds from VFC Ops to 317 Ops), but funds can be moved within a funding source 
(example - from Personnel to Travel). 

Page 1 of 2 

S:\CF&CW\CFCW Share\IZ\Subgrants\Subgranls 2013\WCHD #2.docm 
.. ,,..., ,,..., -r ___ ,_,_. ',__,_, _ _,..,. .. .,,, 

3



Disbursement of funds will be as follows: 
Payment will be made upon receipt and acceptance of Reimbursement Request and supporting documentation 
specifically requesting reimbursement for actual expenditures specific to this subgrant. Total reimbursement will 
not exceed $297,673 during tl1e subgrant period. 

By signing this Amendment, the Authorized Subgrantee Official or their designee, Program Manager, Bureau 
Chief, and Health Division Administrator acknowledge the above as the new standard of practice for the above 
referenced Subgrant. Fu1iher, the undersigned understand this amendment does not alter, in any substantial 
way, the non-referenced contents of the Original Subgrant Award and all of its Attachments. 

Kevin Dick 
Interim District Health Officer --

Karissa Loper, lv1PH 
State Immunization Program 
Manaoer 

Deborah A. Harris, MA, CPM 
CFCW Bureau C/1ief 

Richard Whitley, lv1S 
Administrntor, Health Division 

;:i1gnature 

~ ' ONV)'I:.&-' 
,_p 

~ t-1\i-:h -"'-' ,,, .. , 
IJ / •, I 

( (' I \-,-\ \. ... -
- "-----" ' 

Page 2 of 2 

qJ"t/13 
' 

'lh /t;; 
I 

. / I 
"'/ '"!'"!"' 1Jr : ti' -' 
:' I 

'% 

,. 

uate 

S:\CF&CW\CFCW Share\IZ!Subgranls\Subgranls 2013\WCHD #2.docm 4



Washoe County Health District 
STAFF REPORT Pu.l!blicHealth 

Prcvcnl. Promol~. Prntecc. 

BOARD MEETING DATE: September 26, 2013 

DATE: September 16, 2013 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Patsy Buxton, Fiscal Compliance Officer, Washoe County Health District ~{.< 
775-328-2418, pbuxton@washoecountv.us 

THROUGH: Eileen Sticlmey, Administrative Health Services Officer, Washoe County~ 
Health District, 775-328-2417, estickney(cilwashoecountv.us 

SUBJECT: Approve Notice of Subgrant Award for the period August 1, 2013 
through July 31, 2014 in the total amount of $136,833 in support of the Centers for 
Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity 
(ELC) Affordable Care Act Federal Grant Program, IO 10984; and if approved 
authorize the Chairman to execute. 

SUMMARY 
The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve and execute, or direct the 
Health Officer to execute, contracts in excess of $50,000, Interlocal Agreements and 
amendments to the adopted budget. 

The Washoe County Health District received a Notice of Subgrant Award from tl1e 
Division of Public and Behavioral Health for the period August 1, 2013 through July 31, 
2014 in the total amount of$136,833 in support of the Epideniiology and Laboratory 
Capacity Grant Progran1. A copy of Sub grant Award is attached. 

District Board of Health strategic priority: Experience a low rate of communicable 
diseases. 

BCC Strategic Objective supp01ied by this item: Safe, secure and healtl1y communities. 

This item supports the Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness (EPHP) Division's 
mission to strengthen the capacity of public healtl1 infrastructure to detect, assess, and 
respond decisively to control the public health consequences of biote1rnrism events or 
any public health emergency. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
The District Board of Health approved amendments totaling an increase of $62,216 in 
both revenue and expense to the FYl3 CDC ELC grant program (IO 10984) on January 
24, 2013. 

AGENDA ITEM# __ 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET I P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2400 FAX (775) 328-2279 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTI JS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER 

1

wflores
Typewritten Text
DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.C.5 

wflores
Rectangle



BACKGROUND 
The Nevada State Health Division has awarded the Epidemiology Program $136,833 for 
the period August 1, 2013 through July 31, 2014. Funds will be used to support 
personnel, travel, operating expenditures. 

FISCAL IMP ACT 
No budget amendments are necessary as sufficient budget authority is available through 
June 30, 2014. The Notice of Grant Award includes $16,474 indirect federal revenue. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Washoe County District Board of Health approve the Notice 
of Subgrant Award for the period August 1, 2013 through July 31, 2014 in the total 
amount of $136,833 in support of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) 
Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity (ELC) Affordable C<ire Act Federal Grant 
Program, IO 10984; and if approved authorize the Chainnan to execute. 

POSSIBLE MOTION 
Move to approve the Notice of Sub grant Award for the period August 1, 2013 through 
July 31, 2014 in the total amount of$!36,833 in support of the Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention (CDC) Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity (ELC) Affordable 
Care Act Federal Grant Program, IO 10984; and if approved authorize the Chairman to 
execute. 

2



Department of Health and Human Services 

DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEAL TH 

(hereinafter referred to as the DIVISION) 

Division #: &· l 4 1'75 '7 
Budget Account# 3219 

Category#: 16 
GL#: 8516 

Job Number: 
NOTICE OF SUBGRANT AWARD 

Program Name: Subgrantee Name: 
Office of Public Health Informatics and Epidemiology Washoe County Health District (WCHD) 
Community Services Section 
Division of Public and Behavioral Health 

Address: Address: 
4126 Technology Way, Suite #200 1001 East Ninth Street 
Carson City, NV 89706-2009 Reno, NV 89502 

Subgrant Period: Subgrantee's EIN#: 88-6000138 
August 1, 2013 through July 31, 2014 Vendor#:T41107900 

Dun & Bradstreet#: 73-786-998 

Reason for Award: This award is funded through the Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity (ELG) Program -
Building and Strengthening Epidemiology, Laboratory and Health Information System grant from the CDC. The 
WCHD will use these funds to complete health information system development and exchange activities. 

Countuliesl to be served: ( ) Statewide ( X ) Specific county or counties: Washoe County 

Annroved Budaet Cateciories: 
1. Personnel $ 111,611 Subgrantee may make categorical 
2. Travel $ 6,969 funding adjustments up to ten percent 
3. Operating $ 979 (10%) of the total subgrant amount 
4. Equipment $ - without amending the agreement, so 
5. Contractual/Consultant $ - Jong as the adjustment is reasonable to 
6. Other $ 800 support the activities described within 
7. Indirect $ 16,474 the Scope of Work and the adjustment 

Total Cost $ 136,833 
does not alter the Scope of Work. 

Disbursement of funds will be as follows: 
Payment will be made upon receipt and acceptance of an invoice and supporting documentation specifically 
requesting reimbursement for actual expenditures specific to this subgrant. Total reimbursement will not 
exceed $136,833 .OD during the subarant oeriod. 
Source of Funds: % of Funds: CFDA#: Federal Grant#: 
1. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 73.89% 93.521 3U50CI000900-02S4 
2. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 26.11% 93.283 3U50CI000900-02S5 
Terms and Conditions 
In accepting these grant funds, it is understood that: 
1. Expenditures must comply with appropriate state and/or federal regulations. 
2. This award is subject to the availability of appropriate funds. 
3. Recipient of these funds agrees to stipulations listed in Sections A through E of this subgrant award. 

;:,1gnature uate 

Washoe County Health District ,..--=·, 

Judy DuMonte .·/)/ ' ) ....J- -n 1,.--
ti/, 2 °/a./· -· Program Manager / i/ I _,·;,..,·],·:-i-. I ( { ii ,..._:.~.,.:.--),I / '/_/I I l ". ,.--· " r""! r: r •" )/ ) 

Mary Wherry -; 
\_;~,...(.: __ ~~, ll ~- 31.,.::.-, Deputy Administrator V\~. ~ . ..· \(' . ' .. _...........,, 

j 

Richard Whitley, MS ·:) u 
Administrator, Division of ;ib 
Public and Behavioral Heall 

"\(L//l..\(i) 
' I 

3



DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
NOTICE OF SUBGRANT AWARD 

SECTION A 
Assurances 

As a condition of receiving subgranted funds from the Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health, the 
Subgrantee agrees to the following conditions: 

1. Subgrantee agrees grant funds may not be used for other than the awarded purpose. In the event 
Subgrantee expenditures do not comply with this condition, that portion not in compliance must be 
refunded to the Division of Public and Behavioral Health. 

2. Subgrantee agrees to submit reimbursement requests for only expenditures approved in the spending plan. 
Any additional expenditures beyond what is allowable based on approved categorical budget amounts, 
without prior written approval by the Division of Public and Behavioral Health, may result in denial of 
reimbursement. 

3. Approval of subgrant budget by the Division of Public and Behavioral Health constitutes prior approval for 
the expenditure of funds for specified purposes included in this budget. Unless otherwise stated in the 
Scope of Work the transfer of funds between budgeted categories without written prior approval from the 
Division of Public and Behavioral Health is not allowed under the terms of this subgrant. Requests to 
revise approved budgeted amounts must be made in writing and provide sufficient narrative detail to 
determine justification. 

4. Recipients of subgrants are required to maintain subgrant accounting records, identifiable by subgrant 
number. Such records shall be maintained in accordance with the following: 

a. Records may be destroyed not less than three years (unless otherwise stipulated) after the final 
report has been submitted if written approval has been requested and received from the 
Administrative Services Officer of the Division of Public and Behavioral Health. Records may be 
destroyed by the Subgrantee five (5) calendar years after the final financial and narrative reports 
have been submitted to the Division of Public and Behavioral Health. 

b. In all cases an overriding requirement exists to retain records until resolution of any audit 
questions relating to individual subgrants. 

Subgrant accounting records are considered to be all records relating to the expenditure and 
reimbursement of funds awarded under this Subgrant Award. Records required for retention include all 
accounting records and related original and supporting documents that substantiate costs charged to the 
subgrant activity. 

5. Subgrantee agrees to disclose any existing or potential conflicts of interest relative to the performance of 
services resulting from this subgrant award. The Division of Public and Behavioral Health reserves the 
right to disqualify any grantee on the grounds of actual or apparent conflict of interest. Any attempt to 
intentionally or unintentionally conceal or obfuscate a conflict of interest will automatically result in the 
disqualification of funding. 

6. Subgrantee agrees to comply with the requirements of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and the 
Rehabilitation Act of·1973, P.L·: 93c112, as amended, and any relevant programcspedfic regulations, and 
shall not discriminate against any employee or offeror for employment because of race, national origin, 
creed, color, sex, religion, age, disability or handicap condition (including AIDS and AIDS-related 
conditions). 

7. Subgrantee agrees to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (P.L. 101-136), 42 U.S.C. 
12101, as amended, and regulations adopted thereunder contained in 28 CFR 26.101-36.999 inclusive, 
and any relevant program-specific regulations. 

8. Subgrantee agrees to comply with the requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability 
Act of 1996, 45 C.F.R. 160, 162 and 164, as amended. If the subgrant award includes functions or 4



activities that involve the use or disclosure of Protected Health Information, the Subgrantee agrees to enter 
into a Business Associate Agreement with the Division of Public and Behavioral Health, as required by 45 
C.F.R 164.504 (e). 

9. Subgrantee certifies, by signing this subgrant, that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, 
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this 
transaction by any federal department or agency. This certification is made pursuant to regulations 
implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, 28 C.F.R. pt. 67 § 67.510, as published 
as pt. VII of May 26, 1988, Federal Register (pp.19150-19211). This provision shall be required of every 
Subgrantee receiving any payment in whole or in part from federal funds. 

10. Subgrantee agrees, whether expressly prohibited by federal, state, or local law, or otherwise, that no 
funding associated with this subgrant will be used for any purpose associated with or related to lobbying or 
influencing or attempting to lobby or influence for any purpose the following: 

a. any federal, state, county or local agency, legislature, commission, council, or board; 
b. any federal, state, county or local legislator, commission member, council member, board 

member, or other elected official; or 
c. any officer or employee of any federal, state, county or local agency, legislature, commission, 

council, or board. 

11. Division of Public and Behavioral Health subgrants are subject to inspection and audit by representatives of 
the Division of Public and Behavioral Health, Nevada Department of Health and Human Services, the State 
Department of Administration, the Audit Division of the Legislative Counsel Bureau or other appropriate 
state or federal agencies to 

a. verify financial transactions and determine whether funds were used in accordance with 
applicable laws, regulations and procedures; 

b. ascertain whether policies, plans and procedures are being followed; 
c. provide management with objective and systematic appraisals of financial and administrative 

controls, including information as to whether operations are carried out effectively, efficiently 
and economically; and 

d. determine reliability of financial aspects of the conduct of the project. 

12. Any audit of Subgrantee's expenditures will be performed in accordance with Generally Accepted 
Government Auditing Standards to determine there is proper accounting for and use of subgrant funds. It 
is the policy of the Division of Public and Behavioral Health (as well as a federal requirement as specified 

in the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 [Revised June 271
h, 2003]) that each 

grantee annually expending $500,000 or more in federal funds have an annual audit prepared by an 
independent auditor in accordance with the terms and requirements of the appropriate circular. A COPY 
OF THE FINAL AUDIT REPORT MUST BE SENT TO THE NEVADA DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND 
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, ATIN: ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES OFFICER IV, 4150 TECHNOLOGY 
WAY.SUITE 300, CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89706-2009, within nine (9) months of the close of the 
Subgrantee's fiscal year. To ensure this requirement is met Section D of this subgrant must be filled 
out and signed. 

5



DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEAL TH 
NOTICE OF SUBGRANT AWARD 

SECTION B 
Description of services, scope of worl<, deliverables and reimbursement 

Washoe County Health District (WCHD), hereinafter referred to as Subgrantee, agrees to provide the following 
services and reports according to the identified timeframes: 

o The Senior Epidemiologist will assist with communicable disease reporting, tracking, follow up, and 
analysis. Support to include sample size determination, data collection instrument development, 
analytical statistical analyses, report review, epidemiological software training, development, and 
implementation, outbreak response timeliness evaluation for Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral 
Health. 

• The WCHD will submit written progress reports to the Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health 
electronically as required for the grant progress and annual reports. This report must have updates on 
current project progress as well as the future funding year project proposal and budget. 

• Additional information may be requested by the Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health, as 
needed, due to evolving state and federal reporting requirements. 

• Identify the source of funding on all printed documents purchased or produced within the scope of this 
subgrant, using a statement similar to: 'This publication Uournal, article, etc.) was supported by the 
Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health through Grant Numbers 3U50CI000900-02S4 and 
3U50CI000900-02S5 from Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC). Its contents are solely 
the responsibility of the authors and do not necessarily represent the official views of the Nevada 
Division of Public and Behavioral Health nor Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC)." 

• Any activities performed under this subgrant shall acknowledge the funding was provided 
through the Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health by Grant Number s 
3U50CI000900-02S4 and 3U50CI000900-02S5 from the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention. 

• Report detailed influenza data to include age of individual, date tested, type of test, subtyping 
of influenza (A, B) if available, and county of residence to the Nevada Division of Public and 
Behavioral Health on a weekly basis. 

(continued on next page) 

6



Subgrantee agrees to adhere to the following budget: 

1. Personnel $ 111,611 

2. Travel $ 6,969 

3. Operating $ 979 

4. Equipment $ 0 
5. Contractual/Consultant $ 0 
6. Other $ 800 

7. Indirect $ 16,474 

Total Cost $ 136,833 

To cover the salary and fringe for Lei Chen, Senior 
Epidemiologist 

Local travel and to allow WCHD staff to attend the 
following out-of-stale trainings/travel: CSTE 
Conference, West Coast Epi Conference, Epi In 
Action Course, Public Health Surveillance Course, 
and other related conferences/trainings. 

To cover purchase of reference books and 
materials 

To cover subscriptions to the Journal of Infectious 
Diseases, Journal of Clinical Infectious Diseases, 
etc. 
Calculated at 20% of salary only 

• Subgrantee may make categorical funding adjustments up to ten percent (10%) of the total subgrant 
amount without amending the agreement, so long as the adjustment is reasonable to support the 
activities described within the Scope of Work and the adjustment does not alter the Scope of Work. 

• Equipment purchased with these funds belongs to the federal program from which this funding was 
appropriated and shall be returned to the program upon termination of this agreement. 

• Travel expenses, per diem, and other related expenses must conform to the procedures and rates 
allowed for State officers and employees. It is the Policy of the Board of Examiners to restrict 
contractors/Subgrantees to the same rates and procedures allowed Stale Employees. The State of 
Nevada reimburses at rates comparable to the rates established by the US General Services 
Administration, with some exceptions (State Administrative Manual 0200.0 and 0320.0). 

Subgrantee agrees to request reimbursement according to the schedule specified below for the actual 
expenses incurred related to the Scope of Work during the subgrant period. 

• Requests for Reimbursement will be accompanied by supporting documentation, including a line item 
description of expenses incurred, summarizing the total amount and type of expenditures made during 
the reporting period. 

• Requests for Reimbursements will be submitted monthly. 

• Submit monthly Requests for Reimbursement no later than 15 days following the end of the month. 

• Additional expenditure detail will be provided upon request from the Division. 

Additionally, the Subgrantee agrees to provide: 

• A complete financial accounting of all expenditures to the Division of Public and Behavioral Health 
within 30 days of the CLOSE OF THE SUBGRANT PERIOD. Any un-obligated funds shall be returned 
to the Division of Public and Behavioral Health at that time, or if not already requested, shall be 
deducted from the final award. 

The Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health agrees: 

T,,,,...,,,..,/-c.lo.· I lrv/<:>larl n7_n1-1 '=l 

7



• Review and approve activities through programmatic and fiscal reports and conduct site visits at the 
Subgrantee's physical site as necessary. 

• Provide reimbursements, not to exceed a total of $136,833, for the entire subgrant period. 

• Provide technical assistance, upon request from the Subgrantee. 

• The Nevada Division of Public andO Behavioral Health reserves the right to hold reimbursement under 
this subgrant until any delinquent forms, reports, and expenditure documentation are submitted to and 
accepted by the Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health. 

• The Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health reserves the right to hold reimbursement 
under this subgrant until any delinquent forms, reports, and expenditure documentation are 
submitted to and accepted by the Division of Public and Behavioral Health. 

Both parties agree: 

• Based on the bi-annual narrative progress and financial reporting forms, as well as site visit findings, if 
it appears to the Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health that activities will not be completed in 
time specifically designated in the Scope of Work, or project objectives have been met at a lesser cost 
than originally budgeted, the Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health may reduce the amount 
of this subgrant award and reallocate funding to other preparedness priorities within the state. This 
includes but is not limited to: 

o Reallocating funds between the subgrantee's categories, and 

Reallocating funds to another subgrantee or funding recipient to address other identified Nevada Division of 
Public and Behavioral Health priorities, by removing it from this agreement through a subgrant amendment. 

All reports of expenditures and requests for reimbursement processed by the Nevada Division of Public and 
Behavioral Health are SUBJECT TO AUDIT. 

This subgrant agreement may be TERMINATED by either party prior to the date set forth on the Notice of 
Subgrant Award, provided the termination shall not be effective until 30 days after a party has served written 
notice upon the other party. This agreement may be terminated by mutual consent of both parties or unilaterally 
by either party without cause. The parties expressly agree that this Agreement shall be terminated immediately if 
for any reason the Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health, state, and/or federal funding ability to satisfy 
this Agreement is withdrawn, limited, or impaired. 

8



DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND 
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

NOTICE OF SUBGRANT AWARD 
SECTION C 

Financial Reporting Requirements 

·oo A Request for Reimbursement is due on a monthly or quarterly basis, based on the terms of the 
subgrant agreement, no later than the 15th of the month. 

·oa Reimbursement is based on actual expenditures incurred during the period being reported. 
·oa Payment will not be processed without all reporting being current. 
·oo Reimbursement may only be claimed for expenditures approved within the Notice of Subgrant Award. 

Provide the following information on the top portion of the form: Subgrantee name and address where the 
check is to be sent, Division (subgrant) number, Bureau program number, draw number, employer l.D. 
number (EIN) and Vendor number. 

An explanation of the form is provided below. The cells are pre-programed and will auto populate when data is 
entered. 

A. Approved Budget: List the approved budget amounts in this column by category. 

B. Total Prior Requests: List the total expenditures for all previous reimbursement periods in this column, 
for each category, by entering the numbers found on Lines 1-8, Column D on the previous Request for 
Reimbursement/Advance Form. If this is the first request for the subgrant period, the amount in this column 
equals zero. 

C. Current Request: List the current expenditures requested at this time for reimbursement in this column, for 
each category. 

D. Year to Date Total: Add Column B and Column C for each category. 

E. Budget Balance: Subtract Column D from Column A for each category. 

F. Percent Expended: Divide Column D by Column A for each category and total. Monitor this column; it will 
help to determine if/when an amendment is necessary. Amendments MUST be completed (including all 
approving signatures) 30 days prior to the end of the subgrant period. 

*An Expenditure Report/Bae/cup that summarizes, by expenditure GL, the amounts being claimed in 
column 'C' is required. 

9



Nevada Department of Health and Human Services 

Division# 14095 -----
PUBLIC and BEHAVIORAL HEAL TH Bureau Program # 

G L # -----oc85=-1"'6--

Draw #: 
REQUEST FOR REIMBURSEMENT 

Program Name: Subgrantee Name: 

Office of Public Health Informatics and Epidemiology Washoe County Health District (WCHD) 

Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health 

Address: Address: 

4126 Technology Way, Suite #200 1001 East Ninth Street 
Carson City, NV 89706-2009 Reno, NV 89502 

Subgrant Period: Subgrantee EIN#: 

August 1, 2013 through July 31, 2014 Subgrantee Vendor#: 

FINANCIAL REPORT AND REQUEST FOR FUNDS 

Month(s): 

(must be accompanied by expenditure report/back-up) 

· Calendar Year: 

A B c D 
Approved Budget Category Approved Total Prior Current Year To 

Budget Requests Request Date Total 

1 Personnel $ 111,611 $ 0$ 0 $ 0$ 

2 Travel $ 6,969 $ 0$ 0$ 0$ 

3 Operating $ 979 $ 0$ 0 $ 0$ 

4 Equipment $ 0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 

5 Contract/Consultant $ 0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 

6 Other $ 800 $ 0$ 0 $ 0$ 

7 Indirect $ 16,474 $ 0$ 0$ 0$ 

8 Total $ 136,833 $ 0$ 0$ 0$ 

This report is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

Authorized Signature Title 

E 
Budget 
Balance 

111,611 

6,969 

979 

0 

0 

800 

16,474 

136,833 

Date 

Reminder: Request for Reimbursement cannot be processed without an expenditure report/backup. 

88-6000138 

T41107900 

F 
Percent 

Expended 
0% 

0% 

0% 

-
-

0% 

0% 

0% 

Reimbursement is only allowed for items contained within Subgrant Award documents. If applicable, travel claims 
must accompany report. 

FOR DIVISION USE ONLY 

Program contact necessary? __ Yes -- No Contact Person: 

Reason for contact: 

Fiscal review/approval date: Signed: 

Scope of Work review/approval date: Signed: 

ASO or Bureau Chief (as required): Date: 

10



DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
NOTICE OF SUBGRANT AWARD 

SECTION D 

NEVADA DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEAL TH 
AUDIT INFORMATION REQUEST 

1. Non-Federal entities that expend $500,000.00 or more in total Federal Awards are required to 
have a single or program-specific audit conducted for that year, in accordance with OMB 
Circular A-133. A COPY OF THE FINAL AUDIT REPORT MUST BE SENT TO THE NEVADA 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, ATTN: ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
OFFICER IV, 4150 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 300, CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89706-2009, 
within nine (9) months of the close of your fiscal year. 

2. Did your organization expend $500,000.00 or more in all Federal Awards 
during your most recent fiscal year? YES NO 

3. When does your fiscal year end? 

4. Official name of organization? 

5. How often is your organization audited? 

6. When was your last audit performed? 

7. What time period did it cover? 

8. Which accounting firm conducted the audit? 

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE 

11



SECTION E 

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE ADDENDUM 

BETWEEN 

Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health 
Hereinafter referred to as the "Covered Entity" 

and 

Washoe County Health District 
Hereinafter referred to as the "Business Associate". 

PURPOSE. In order to comply with the requirements of HIPAA and the HITECH Act, this Addendum is hereby 
added and made part of the Contract between the Covered Entity and the Business Associate. This Addendum 
establishes the obligations of the Business Associate and the Covered Entity as well as the permitted uses and 
disclosures by the Business Associate of protected health information it may possess by reason of the Contract. The 
Covered Entity and the Business Associate shall protect the privacy and provide for the security of protected health 
information disclosed to the Business Associate pursuant to the Contract and in compliance with the Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191 ("HIPAA"), the Health Information Technology for 
Economic and Clinical Health Act, Public Law 111-5 ("the HITECH Act"), and regulation promulgated there under by the 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (the "HIPAA Regulations") and other applicable laws. 

WHEREAS, the Business Associate will provide certain services to the Covered Entity, and, pursuant to such 
arrangement, the Business Associate is considered a business associate of the Covered Entity as defined in HIPAA, the 
HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule and Security Rule; and 

WHEREAS, Business Associate may have access to and/or receive from the Covered Entity certain protected 
health information, in fulfilling its responsibilities under such arrangement; and 

WHEREAS, the HIPAA Regulations, the HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule and the Security Rule require the Covered 
Entity to enter into a contract containing specific requirements of the Business Associate prior to the disclosure of 
protected health information, as set forth in, but not limited to, 45 CFR Parts 160 & 164 and Public Law 111-5. 

THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual obligations below and the exchange of information pursuant to this 
Addendum, and to protect the interests of both Parties, the Parties agree to all provisions of this Addendum. 

I. DEFINITIONS. The following terms shall have the meaning ascribed to them in this Section. Other capitalized 
terms shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the context in which they first appear. 

1. Breach means the unauthorized acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of protected health information which 
compromises the security or privacy of the protected health information. The full definition of breach can be 
found in 42 USC 17921and45 CFR 164.402. 

2. Business Associate shall mean the name of the organization or entity listed above and shall have the 
meaning given to the term under the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act. For full definition refer 
to 45 CFR 160.103. 

3. CFR stands for the Code of Federal Regulations. 
4. Contract shall refer to this Addendum and that particular Contract to which this Addendum is made a part. 
5. Covered Entity shall mean the name of the Division listed above and shall have the meaning given to such 

term under the Privacy Rule and the Security Rule, including, but not limited to 45 CFR 160.103. 
6. Designated Record Set means a group of records that includes protected health information and is 

maintained by or for a covered entity or the Business Associate that includes, but is not limited to, medical, 
billing, enrollment, payment, claims adjudication, and case or medical management records. Refer to 45 CFR 
164.501 for the complete definition. 

12



7. Disclosure means the release, transfer, prov1s1on of, access to, or divulging in any other manner of 
information outside the entity holding the information as defined in 45 CFR 160.103. 

8. Electronic Protected Health Information means individually identifiable health information transmitted by 
electronic media or maintained in electronic media as set forth under 45 CFR 160.103. 

9. Electronic Health Record means an electronic record of health-related information on an individual that is 
created, gathered, managed, and consulted by authorized health care clinicians and staff. Refer to 42 USC 
17921. 

10. Health Care Operations shall have the meaning given to the term under the Privacy Rule at 45 CFR 
164.501. 

11. Individual means the person who is the subject of protected health information and is defined in 45 CFR 
160.103. 

12. Individually Identifiable Health Information means health information, in any form or medium, including 
demographic information collected from an individual, that is created or received by a covered entity or a 
business associate of the covered entity and relates to the past, present, or future care of the individual. 
Individually identifiable health information is information that identifies the individual directly or there is a 
reasonable basis to believe the information can be used to identify the individual. Refer to 45 CFR 160.103. 

13. Parties shall mean the Business Associate and the Covered Entity. 
14. Privacy Rule shall mean the HIPAA Regulation that is codified at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, Subparts A, D 

and E. 
15. Protected Health Information means individually identifiable health information transmitted by electronic 

media, maintained in electronic media, or transmitted or maintained in any other form or medium. Refer to 45 
CFR 160.103 for the complete definition. 

16. Required by Law means a mandate contained in law that compels an entity to make a use or disclosure of 
protected health information and that is enforceable in a court of law. This includes, but is not limited to: court 
orders and court-ordered warrants; subpoenas, or summons issued by a court; and statues or regulations that 
require the provision of information if payment is sought under a government program providing public 
benefits. For the complete definition refer to 45 CFR 164.103. 

17. Secretary shall mean the Secretary of the federal Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) or the 
Secretary's designee. 

18. Security Rule shall mean the HIPAA regulation that is codified at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 Subparts A and 
C. 

19. Unsecured Protected Health Information means protected health information that is not rendered 
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals through the use of a technology or 
methodology specified by the Secretary in the guidance issued in Public Law 111-5. Refer to 42 USC 17932 
and 45 CFR 164.402. 

20. USC stands for the United States Code. 

11. OBLIGATIONS OF THE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE. 

1. Access to Protected Health Information. The Business Associate will provide, as directed by the Covered 
Entity, an individual or the Covered Entity access to inspect or obtain a copy of protected health information 
about the Individual that is maintained in a designated record set by the Business Associate or, its agents or 
subcontractors, in order to meet the requirements of the Privacy Rule, including, but not limited to 45 CFR 
164.524 and 164.504(e) (2) (ii) (E). If the Business Associate maintains an electronic health record, the 
Business Associate or, its agents or subcontractors shall provide such information in electronic format to 
enable the Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under the HITECH Act, including, but not limited to 42 USC 
17935. 

2. Access to Records. The Business Associate shall make its internal practices, books and records relating to 
the use and disclosure of protected health information available to the Covered Entity and to the Secretary for 
purposes of determining Business Associate's compliance with the Privacy and Security Rule in accordance 
with 45 CFR 164.504(e)(2)(ii)(H). 

3. Accounting of Disclosures. Promptly, upon request by the Covered Entity or individual for an accounting of 
disclosures, the Business Associate and its agents or subcontractors shall make available to the Covered 
Entity or the individual information required to provide an accounting of disclosures in accordance with 45 
CFR 164.528, and the HITECH Act, including, but not limited to 42 USC 17935. The accounting of 
disclosures, whether electronic or other media, must include the requirements as outlined under 45 CFR 
164.528(b). 

4. Agents and Subcontractors. The Business Associate must ensure all agents and subcontractors to whom it 
provides protected health information agree in writing to the same restrictions and conditions that apply to the 
Business Associate with respect to all protected health information accessed, maintained, created, retained, 
modified, recorded, stored, destroyed, or otherwise held, transmitted, used or disclosed by the agent or 
subcontractor. The Business Associate must implement and maintain sanctions against agents and 

13



subcontractors that violate such restrictions and conditions and shall mitigate the effects of any such violation 
as outlined under 45 CFR 164.530(f) and 164.530(e)(1). 

5. Amendment of Protected Health Information. The Business Associate will make available protected health 
information for amendment and incorporate any amendments in the designated record set maintained by the 
Business Associate or, its agents or subcontractors, as directed by the Covered Entity or an individual, in 
order to meet the requirements of the Privacy Rule, including, but not limited to, 45 CFR 164.526. 

6. Audits, Investigations, and Enforcement. The Business Associate must notify the Covered Entity 
immediately upon learning the Business Associate has become the subject of an audit, compliance review, or 
complaint investigation by the Office of Civil Rights or any other federal or state oversight agency. The 
Business Associate shall provide the Covered Entity with a copy of any protected health information that the 
Business Associate provides to the Secretary or other federal or state oversight agency concurrently with 
providing such information to the Secretary or other federal or state oversight agency. The Business 
Associate and individuals associated with the Business Associate are solely responsible for all civil and 
criminal penalties assessed as a result of an audit, breach, or violation of HIPAA or HITECH laws or 
regulations. Reference 42 USC 17937. 

7. Breach or Other Improper Access, Use or Disclosure Reporting. The Business Associate must report to 
the Covered Entity, in writing, any access, use or disclosure of protected health information not permitted by 
the Contract, Addendum or the Privacy and Security Rules. The Covered Entity must be notified immediately 
upon discovery or the first day such breach or suspected breach is known to the Business Associate or by 
exercising reasonable diligence would have been known by the Business Associate in accordance with 45 
CFR 164.410, 164.504(e)(2)(ii)(C) and 164.308(b) and 42 USC 17921. The Business Associate must report 
any improper access, use or disclosure of protected health information by: the Business Associate or its 
agents or subcontractors. In the event of a breach or suspected breach of protected health information, the 
report to the Covered Entity must be in writing and include the following: a brief description of the incident; the 
date of the incident; the date the incident was discovered by the Business Associate; a thorough description 
of the unsecured protected health information that was involved in the incident; the number of individuals 
whose protected health information was involved in the incident; and the steps the Business Associate is 
taking to investigate the incident and to protect against further incidents. The Covered Entity will determine if 
a breach of unsecured protected health information has occurred and will notify the Business Associate of the 
determination. If a breach of unsecured protected health information is determined, the Business Associate 
must take prompt corrective action to cure any such deficiencies and mitigate any significant harm that rnay 
have occurred to individual(s) whose information was disclosed inappropriately. 

8. Breach Notification Requirements. If the Covered Entity determines a breach of unsecured protected 
health information by the Business Associate has occurred, the Business Associate will be responsible for 
notifying the individuals whose unsecured protected health information was breached in accordance with 42 
USC 17932 and 45 CFR 164.404 through 164.406. The Business Associate must provide evidence to the 
Covered Entity that appropriate notifications to individuals and/or rnedia, when necessary, as specified in 45 
CFR 164.404 and 45 CFR 164.406 has occurred. The Business Associate is responsible for all costs 
associated with notification to individuals, the media or others as well as costs associated with mitigating 
future breaches. The Business Associate must notify the Secretary of all breaches in accordance with 45 
CFR 164.408 and must provide the Covered Entity with a copy of all notifications rnade to the Secretary. 

9. Breach Pattern or Practice by Covered Entity. Pursuant to 42 USC 17934, if the Business Associate 
knows of a pattern of activity or practice of the Covered Entity that constitutes a material breach or violation of 
the Covered Entity's obligations under the Contract or Addendum, the Business Associate must immediately 
report the problem to the Secretary. 

10. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that the Business Associate or its agents or 
subcontractors have no ownership rights with respect to the protected health information it accesses, 
maintains, creates, retains, modifies, records, stores, destroys, or otherwise holds, transmits, uses or 
discloses. 

11. Litigation or Administrative Proceedings. The Business Associate shall make itself, any subcontractors, 
employees, or agents assisting the Business Associate in the performance of its obligations under the 
Contract or Addendum, available to the Covered Entity, at no cost to the Covered Entity, to testify as 
witnesses, or otherwise, in the event litigation or administrative proceedings are commenced against the 
Covered Entity, its administrators or workforce members upon a claimed violation of HIPAA, the Privacy and 
Security Rule, the HITECH Act, or other laws relating to security and privacy. 

12. Minimum Necessary. The Business Associate and its agents and subcontractors shall request, use and 
disclose only the minimum amount of protected health information necessary to accomplish the purpose of 
the request, use or disclosure in accordance with 42 USC 17935 and 45 CFR 164.514(d){3). 

13. Policies and Procedures. The Business Associate must adopt written privacy and security policies and 
procedures and documentation standards to meet the requirements of HIPAA and the HITECH Act as 
described in 45 CFR 164.316 and 42 USC 17931. 

14. Privacy and Security Officer(s). The Business Associate must appoint Privacy and Security Officer(s) 
whose responsibilities shall include: monitoring the Privacy and Security compliance of the Business 

0"1rrc 1 'Jnf1 t; 

14



Associate; development and implementation of the Business Associate's HIPAA Privacy and Security policies 
and procedures; establishment of Privacy and Security training programs; and development and 
implementation of an incident risk assessment and response plan in the event the Business Associate 
sustains a breach or suspected breach of protected health information. 

15. Safeguards. The Business Associate must implement safeguards as necessary to protect the confidentiality, 
integrity, and availability of the protected health information the Business Associate accesses, maintains, 
creates, retains, modifies, records, stores, destroys, or otherwise holds, transmits, uses or discloses on behalf 
of the Covered Entity. Safeguards must include administrative safeguards (e.g., risk analysis and designation 
of security official), physical safeguards (e.g., facility access controls and workstation security), and technical 
safeguards (e.g., access controls and audit controls) to the confidentiality, integrity and availability of the 
protected health information, in accordance with 45 CFR 164.308, 164.310, 164.312, 164.316 and 
164.504(e)(2)(ii)(B). Sections 164.308, 164.310 and 164.312 of the CFR apply to the Business Associate of 
the Covered Entity in the same manner that such sections apply to the Covered Entity. Technical safeguards 
must meet the standards set forth by the guidelines of the National Institute of Standards and Technology 
(NIST). The Business Associate agrees to only use, or disclose protected health information as provided for 
by the Contract and Addendum and to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is known to 
the Business Associate, of a use or disclosure, in violation of the requirements of this Addendum as outlined 
under 45 CFR 164.530(e)(2)(f). 

16. Training. The Business Associate must train all members of its worl<force on the policies and procedures 
associated with safeguarding protected health information. This includes, at a minimum, training that covers 
the technical, physical and administrative safeguards needed to prevent inappropriate uses or disclosures of 
protected health information; training to prevent any intentional or unintentional use or disclosure that is a 
violation of HIPM regulations at 45 CFR 160 and 164 and Public Law 111-5; and training that emphasizes 
the criminal and civil penalties related to HIPM breaches or inappropriate uses or disclosures of protected 
health information. Workforce training of new employees must be completed within 30 days of the date of 
hire and all employees must be trained at least annually. The Business Associate must maintain written 
records for a period of six years. These records must document each employee that received training and the 
date the training was provided or received. 

17. Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information. The Business Associate must not use or further 
disclose protected health information other than as permitted or required by the Contract or as required by 
law. The Business Associate must not use or further disclose protected health information in a manner that 
would violate the requirements of the HIPM Privacy and Security Rule and the HI TECH Act. 

Ill. PERMITTED AND PROHIBITED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY THE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE. The Business 
Associate agrees to these general use and disclosure provisions: 

1. Permitted Uses and Disclosures: 
a. Except as otherwise limited in this Addendum, the Business Associate may use or disclose protected 

health information to perform functions, activities, or services for, or on behalf of, the Covered Entity as 
specified in the Contract, provided that such use or disclosure would not violate the HIPAA Privacy and 
Security Rule or the HITECH Act, if done by the Covered Entity in accordance with 45 CFR 164.504{e) (2) 
(i) and 42 USC 17935 and 17936. 

b. Except as otherwise limited by this Addendum, the Business Associate may use or disclose protected 
health information received by the Business Associate in its capacity as a Business Associate of the 
Covered Entity, as necessary, for the proper management and administration of the Business Associate, 
to carry out the legal responsibilities of the Business Associate, as required by law or for data aggregation 
purposes in accordance with 45 CFR 164.504{e)(2)(A), 164.504(e)(4)(i){A), and 164.504(e)(2)(i)(B). 

c. Except as otherwise limited in this Addendum, if the Business Associate discloses protected health 
information to a third party, the Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, 
reasonable written assurances from the third party that such protected health information will be held 
confidential pursuant to this Addendum and only disclosed as required by law or for the purposes for 
which it was disclosed to the third party. The written agreement from the third party must include 
requirements to immediately notify the Business Associate of any breaches of confidentiality of protected 
health information to the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach. Refer to 45 CFR 164.502 and 
164.504 and 42 USC 17934. 

d. The Business Associate may use or disclose protected health information to report violations of law to 
appropriate federal and state authorities, consistent with 45 CFR 164.5020)(1 ). 

2. Prohibited Uses and Disclosures: 
a. Except as otherwise limited in this Addendum, the Business Associate shall not disclose protected health 

information to a health plan for payment or health care operations purposes if the patient has required this 
special restriction, and has paid out of pocket in full for the health care item or service to which the 
protected health information relates in accordance with 42 USC 17935. 

15



b. The Business Associate shall not directly or indirectly receive remuneration in exchange for any protected 
health information, as specified by 42 USC 17935,unless the Covered Entity obtained a valid 
authorization, in accordance with 45 CFR 164.508 that includes a specification that protected health 
information can be exchanged for remuneration. 

IV. OBLIGATIONS OF COVERED ENTITY 

1. The Covered Entity will inform the Business Associate of any limitations in the Covered Entity's Notice of 
Privacy Practices in accordance with 45 CFR 164.520, to the extent that such limitation may affect the 
Business Associate's use or disclosure of protected health information. 

2. The Covered Entity will inform the Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of, permission by an 
individual to use or disclose protected health information, to the extent that such changes may affect the 
Business Associate's use or disclosure of protected health information. 

3. The Covered Entity will inform the Business Associate of any restriction to the use or disclosure of protected 
health information that the Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522 and 42 USC 
17935, to the extent that such restriction may affect the Business Associate's use or disclosure of protected 
health information. 

4. Except in the event of lawful data aggregation or management and administrative activities, the Covered 
Entity shall not request the Business Associate to use or disclose protected health information in any manner 
that would not be permissible under the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act, if done by the 
Covered Entity. 

V. TERM AND TERMINATION 

1. Effect of Termination: 
a. Except as provided in paragraph (b) of this section, upon termination of this Addendum, for any reason, 

the Business Associate will return or destroy all protected health information received from the Covered 
Entity or created, maintained, or received by the Business Associate on behalf of the Covered Entity that 
the Business Associate still maintains in any form and the Business Associate will retain no copies of 
such information. 

b. If the Business Associate determines that returning or destroying the protected health information is not 
feasible, the Business Associate will provide to the Covered Entity notification of the conditions that make 
return or destruction infeasible. Upon a mutual determination that return or destruction of protected 
health information is infeasible, the Business Associate shall extend the protections of this Addendum to 
such protected health information and limit further uses and disclosures of such protected health 
information to those purposes that make return or destruction infeasible, for so long as the Business 
Associate maintains such protected health information. 

c. These termination provisions will apply to protected health information that is in the possession of 
subcontractors, agents, or employees of the Business Associate. 

2. Term. The Term of this Addendum shall commence as of the effective date of this Addendum herein and 
shall extend beyond the termination of the contract and shall terminate when all the protected health 
information provided by the Covered Entity to the Business Associate, or accessed, maintained, created, 
retained, modified, recorded, stored, or otherwise held, transmitted, used or disclosed by the Business 
Associate on behalf of the Covered Entity, is destroyed or returned to the Covered Entity, or, if it not feasible 
to return or destroy the protected health information, protections are extended to such information, in 
accordance with the termination. 

3. Termination for Breach of Contract. The Business Associate agrees that the Covered Entity may 
immediately terminate the Contract if the Covered Entity determines that the Business Associate has violated 
a material part of this Addendum. 

VI. MISCELLANEOUS 

1. Amendment. The parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this Addendum from time to 
time for the Covered Entity to comply with all the requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, Public Law No. 104-191 and the Health Information Technology for 
Economic and Clinical Health Act (HITECH) of 2009, Public Law No. 111-5. 

2. Clarification. This Addendum references the requirements of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule and 
the Security Rule, as well as amendments and/or provisions that are currently in place and any that may be 
forthcoming. 

3. Indemnification. Each party will indemnify and hold harmless the other party to this Addendum from and 
against all claims, losses, liabilities, costs and other expenses incurred as a result of, or arising directly or 
indirectly out of or in conjunction with: 

D~no 1.dnf1 'i TP.mnlFifP.· llndafed 07-01-13 
16



a. Any misrepresentation, breach of warranty or non-fulfillment of any undertaking on the part of the party 
under this Addendum; and 

b. Any claims, demands, awards, judgments, actions, and proceedings made by any person or organization 
arising out of or in any way connected with the party's performance under this Addendum. 

4. Interpretation. The provisions of the Addendum shall prevail over any provisions in the Contract that may 
confiict or appear inconsistent with any provision in this Addendum. This Addendum and the Contract shall 
be interpreted as broadly as necessary to implement and comply with HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the Privacy 
Rule and the Security Rule. The parties agree that any ambiguity in this Addendum shall be resolved to 
permit the Covered Entity and the Business Associate to comply with HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the Privacy 
Rule and the Security Rule. 

5. Regulatory Reference. A reference in this Addendum to a section of the HITECH Act, HIPAA, the Privacy 
Rule and Security Rule means the sections as in effect or as amended. 

6. Survival. The respective rights and obligations of Business Associate under Effect of Termination of this 
Addendum shall survive the termination of this Addendum. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Business Associate and the Covered Entity have agreed to the terms of the above written 
agreement as of the effective date set forth below. 

COVERED ENTITY BUSINESS ASSOCIATE 

Division of Public and Behavioral Health 
(Enter Division Name) (Enter Business Name) 

4150 Technology Way 
(Enter Division Address) (Enter Business Address) 

Carson City, NV 89706 
(Enter Division City, State and Zip Code) (Enter Business City, State and Zip Code) 

775-684-4200 
(Enter Division Phone Number) (Enter Business Phone Number) 

775-684-4211 
(Enter Division Fax Number) (Enter Business Fax Number} 

(Authorized Signature) (Authorized Signature) 

Richard Whitley 
{Print Name) (Print Name) 

Administrator 
(Title) (Title) 

TPmn/;:}/p· I Jnrl:<ifPrl n7~01-1.1 

17



DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.C.6 

Washoe County Health District @ 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

THROUGH: 

Public Health 
Pr~v~nt. Promote. Prcucct 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: September 26, 2013 

September 16, 2013 

District Board of Health 

Patsy Buxton, Fiscal Compliance Officer, Washoe County Health District f/3 
775-328-2418, pbuxton!Zilwashoecounty.us 

Eileen Sticlmey, Administrative Health Services Officer, Washoe Cotmty Health pj} 41L 
District, 775-328-2417, esticknev@washoecounty.us ·~ i 

SUBJECT: Approval of Subgrant Amendment #2 from the Division of Public and 
Behavioral Health in the total amount of $623,386.50 (with $62,338.65 or 10% match) for 
the budget period July 1, 2012 through December 31, 2013 in support of the Assistant 
Secretary for Preparedness and Response (ASPR) Hospital Preparedness Program; 
approve amendments totaling an increase of $37,058 in both revenue and expense to the 
FY14 ASPR Hospital Preparedness Federal Grant Program, IO 10708; Authorize travel 
and travel reimbursements for non-County employees (individuals to be determined) in the 
approximate amount of $3,000 specific to the Northern Nevada Disaster Victim Recovery 
Team Project, supported by the grant award; and if approved authorize the Chairman to 
execute. 

SUMMARY 
The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve and execute, or direct the Health 
Officer to execute, contracts in excess of $50,000, Interlocal Agreements and amendments to the 
adopted budget. 

The Washoe County Health District received a Notice of Subgrant Award from the Nevada State 
Health Division for the peiiod July 1, 2012 through December 31, 2013 in the total an10unt of 
$623,386.50 in support of the Public Health Preparedness ASPR Grant Program. A copy of the 
Subgrant Amendment #2 is attached. · 

District Board of Health strategic priority: Protect population from health problems and 
health hazards. 

BCC Strategic Objective supported by this item: Safe, Secure and Healthy Communities. 

This item supports the Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness (EPHP) Division's mission 
to strengthen the capacity of public health infrastructure to detect, assess, and respond decisively 
to control the public health consequences of biotenoiism events or any public health emergency. 

AGENDA ITEM# 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET I P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2400 FAX (775) 328-2279 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
PRll\ITl=n n~I Ri=rvr.1 i=n DJ'l.Dl=R 

1

wflores
Rectangle



PREVIOUS ACTION 
The District Board of Health approved the Notice of Subgrant Award from the Nevada State 
Health Division in the amount of $404,044 for the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013 insupport 
of the Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and Response (ASPR) Hospital Preparedness 
Program at their August 23, 2012 meeting. 

BACKGROUND 
The Nevada State Health Division has awarded the Public Health Preparedness Program 
$623,386.50 for the budget period July 1, 2012 through December 31, 2013. Funds will be used 
to support personnel, travel, other professional services, and operating expenditures. Items 
include but are not limited to: hydration and nutrition (water/juice/coffee and snacks/light hmch) 
to be provided for participants in training exercises, meetings and other grant activities to ensure 
continuity of active participation; Incentives (non-cash value gift cards such as Walmart, 
Starbucks, etc) to be provided to preparedness training facilitators, etc. who volunteer their time 
training staff; incentives for meeting and training participants; and MRC program supplies to 
maintain operations of the MRC unit include signage, binders, certificates, hats, lapel pins, 
badges, go-bags, first-aid kits, etc. 

Included in the award is $20,934 in funding for a Registered Environmental Health Specialist to 
work on overtime status to complete a Potable Water Project. A Regional Water Emergency 
Response Guide will be written and will provide the entire region an outline of what happens 
during a water emergency, to include timeframes of water restoration. The guidance will also 
include question packets for regional hospitals that would be used in creating annexes to facility 
Emergency Operations Plans in the event of a water emergency. 

The Northern Nevada Disaster Victim Recovery Team project funded by this award is in the 
second year of development. The focus this year will be on team member development. 
Trainings will be available for medical examiner's offices, coroner's offices, Jaw enforcement 
personnel, medical field personnel, and search and rescue personnel on recovery operations. The 
training will review the systematic approach for recovery procedures to include: gridding, search 
techniques, photography, numbering, mapping, and packaging of recovered remains. After the 
trainings a tabletop exercise will be conducted to test the plan that was written during FYI 3. 

The FYI 4 ASPR Budget was projected at $404,040. Budget period 2 only reflects six months of 
autl10rity. It is anticipated that a second round of funding in the amount of$219,346.50 will be 
awarded after the next Interim Finance Committee meeting scheduled for October 22, 2013. 
There was $13,687 in unspent funds from budget period 1. The budget amendment takes into 
account receiving the second round of funding and will bring the Notice of Subgrant Award into 
alignment with the progran1 budget. 

This award cunently includes $20,913 of indirect revenue. No budget adjustment is needed for 
the indirect revenue. 

This budget an1endment will also require Board of County Commissioners approval. 

2



FISCAL IMP ACT 
Should the Board approve these budget amendments, the adopted FY 14 budget will be 
increased by $37 ,058 in the following accounts: 

Amount of 

Account Number Description I ncrease/(Decrease) 

2002-10-10708 -431100 Federal Revenue $37,058 
Total Revenue $37,058 

2002-10-1 0708 -701300 Overtime 20,934 
2002-10-10708-701412 Salary Adjustment (6,584) 
2002-10-10708 -705360 Benefit Adjustment (3,747) 
2002-10-10708 -710100 Professional Svcs 19,274 
2002-10-10708 -710110 Contracted/Temp Services (12,500) 
2002-10-10708-710334 Copy Machine Expense 150 
2002-10-10708-710350 Office Supplies 500 
2002-10-10708-710355 Books and Subscriptions (350) 
2002-10-10708-710360 Postage (50) 
2002-10-10708 -710502 Printing 360 
2002-10-10708-710508 Telephone Land Lines 1,340 
2002-10-10708 -710509 Seminars and Meetings 800 
2002-10-10708 -710512 Auto Expense (300) 
2002-10-10708-710872 Food Purchases (100) 
2002-10-10708-711210 Travel 1,725 
2002-10-10708 -711504 Equipment nonCapital 15,606 

Total Expenditures $37,058 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Washoe County District Board of Health approve Subgrant 
Amendment #2 from the Division of Public and Behavioral Health in the total amount of 
$623,386.50 (with $62,338.65 or 10% match) for the budget period July 1, 2012 through 
December 31, 2013 in support of the Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and Response (ASPR) 
Hospital Preparedness Program; approve amendments totaling an increase of$37,058 in both 
revenue and expense to the FY14 ASPR Hospital Preparedness Federal Grant Program, IO 
10708; Authorize travel and travel reimbursements for non-County employees (individuals to be 
determined) in the approximate amount of $3,000, supported by the grant award; and if approved 
authorize the Chairman to execute. 

POSSIBLE MOTION 
Move to approve Subgrant Amendment #2 from the Division of Public and Behavioral Health in 
the total an10unt of$623,386.50 (with $62,338.65 or 10% match) for the budget period July 1, 
2012 through December 31, 2013 in support of the Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and 
Response (ASPR) Hospital Preparedness Program; approve an1endments totaling an increase of 
$37,058 in both revenue and expense to the FY14 ASPR Hospital Preparedness Federal Grant 
Progran1, IO I 0708; Authorize travel and travel reimbursements for non-County employees 
(individuals to be detem1ined) in the approximate amount of $3,000, supported by the grant 
award; and if approved authorize the Chainnan to execute. 

3



Division#: 13008-2 
-:--=-::c=-c-=-c--

P ro gram#: ASPR0?-13 

Department of Health and Human Services 

Division Public & Behavioral Health 

(hereinafter referred to as the DIVISION) 
Budget Account#: 3218 

------c--
Category #: 22 

----:c-,----
G L #: 8516 

Job #: -----,-9 3cc-8c-c8c-c9-c-1-3 

SUBGRANTAMENDMENT#2 

Program Name: Subgrantee Name: 
Public Health Preparedness Washoe County Health District (WCHD) 
Health Planning & Emergency Response 
Division Public & Behavioral Health 

Address: Address: 
4150 Technology Way, Suite #200 1001 East Ninth Street 
Carson City, NV 89706-2009 Reno, NV 89520 

Subgrant Period: Subgrantee's 
July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2017 EIN#: 88-6000138 
Subgrant Budget Period: Vendor#: T40283400Q 
July 1, 2012 through December 31, 2013 Dun & Bradstreet#: 073786998 

Source of Funds: % of Funds: CFDA#: Federal Grant#: 

1. ASPR Hospital Preparedness Program 100% 93.889 5U90TP000534-02 

Amendment #2: 

The purpose of this amendment is to increase the funding by $219,346.50 to cover expenses incurred 
during six months of Budget Period 2 (July 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013) and to add a new Scope of 
Work for Budget Period 2 as detailed in Attachment A and B. The new grand total for this subgrant award is 
$623,386.50. 

Budget Period 1 Budget Period 2 Grand Total 
{7/1/12-6/30/13) {7/1/13-12/31/13) {7/1/12-12/31/13) 

1. Personnel $ 235,762 $ 139,421.00 $ 375, 183.00 
2. Contractual/Consultant $ 81,450 $ 32,017.00 $ 113,467.00 
3. Travel $ 9,563 $ 7,862.50 $ 17,425.50 
4. Equipment $ 9,750 $ 14,303.00 $ 24,053.00 
5. Supplies $ 22,006 $ 1,125.00 $ 23, 131.00 
6. other $ 19,053 $ 3,705.00 $ 22,758.00 
7. Indirect $ 26.456 $ 20,913.00 $ 47 369.00 

Total Cost $ 404,040 $ 219,346.50 $ 623,386.50 

By signing this Amendment, the Authorized Subgrantee Official or their designee, Program Manager, Bureau 
Chief, and Health Division Administrator acknowledge the above as the new scope of work for the above 
referenced Subgrant. Further, the undersigned understand this amendment does not alter, in any substantial 
way, the non-referenced contents of the Original Subgrant Award and all of its Attachments. 

Authorized Sub-grantee Official 
-=i1gnature uate 

Title 

Erin Seward C .. h. ?) 9/5/!3 Health Program Manager 11, PHP l/('~/ !11 J c l · 'Ja //:''_., / • • J {/ l f· /,, 

Chad Westom -
dod Bureau Chief LJ-bJ,JJv'~"--- ("• ... : ; --

--i I 0 i ~ 
Richard Whitley, MS 

f/JO.rvvlJJ!)Ov ~Vo flfr Administrator, Division of 0. I l .13 
Public and Behavioral Health 

. 
n--- .. _r;-.-. 

4



This page intentionally left blank 

ASPROl-13 WCHD Page 2 of73 Privileged Communication 5



DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
NOTICE OF SUBGRANT AWARD 

SECTION A 
Assurances 

• All original terms and conditions remain unchanged. 

SECTION B 
Description of services, scope of work, deliverables and reimbursement 

• The attached Scope of Work is for Budget Period 2, July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 and is broken 
down by capability, task and function. Attachment A: Capability Summary, shows the estimated 
allocation of awarded funds and proposed subgrantee effort by capability. Attachment B contains the 
capabilities under this subgrant award including, but not limited to, the subgrantee planned activities 
and performance measure planned activities. 

• Achievement of Capability Objectives for Budget Period 2 to be completed by June 30, 2014. 
Outcome of the funded Capabilities will be measured by Division of Public and Behavioral Health. 
Each funded capability requires substantial achievement and demonstration of completion as 
specified in the Scope of Work of the funded functions and resource elements. If objectives are not 
met, Division of Public and Behavioral Health may reduce the amount of this subgrant award and 
reallocate funding to other preparedness priorities within the state. 

• Submit written Progress Reports to the Division of Public & Behavioral Health electronically 
according to the following schedule. This schedule may change due to availability of reporting 
templates and scheduled site visits. The Quarterly Reports are cumulative progress reports and 
should be submitted with the Request for Reimbursement at the end of the month. 

o October 31, 2014 Quarterly Progress Report - Year 2 
o January 31, 2014 Mid Year Progress Report- Year 2 
o April 30, 2014 Quarterly Progress Report- Year 2 
o July 31, 2014 Annual Progress Report- Year 2 
o October 31, 2015 Quarterly Progress Report - Year 3 
o January 31, 2015 Mid Year Progress Report- Year 3 
o April 30, 2015 Quarterly Progress Report - Year 3 
o July 31, 2015 Annual Progress Report-Year3 
o October 31, 2015 Quarterly Progress Report- Year 4 
o January 15, 2016 Mid Year Progress Report- Year 4 
o April 30, 2016 Quarterly Progress Report - Year 4 
o July 31, 2016 Annual Progress Report-Year4 
o October 31, 2016 Quarterly Progress Report - Year 5 
o January 15, 2017 Mid Year Progress Report-Year 5 
o April 30, 2017 Quarterly Progress Report- Year 5 
o July 31, 2017 Final Progress Report - Year 5 

(For the period of 07/01/13 - 9/30/13) 
(For the period of 07/01/13 - 12/31/13) 
(For the period of 07/01/13 - 3/31/14) 
(For the period of 07/01/13 - 06/30/14) 
(For the period of 07/01/14 - 9/30/14) 
(For the period of 07/01/14 - 12/31/14) 
(For the period of07/01/14-3/31/15) 
(For the period of 07/01/14 - 06/30/15) 
(For the period of 07 /01/15 - 9/30/15) 
(For the period of 07 /01/15 - 12/31 /15) 
(For the period of 07 /01/15 - 3/31 /16) 
(For the period of 07/01/15 - 06/30/16) 
(For the period of 07/01/16 - 9/30/16) 
(For the period of 07 /01 /16 - 12/31/16) 
(For the period of 07/01/16 - 3/31/17) 
(For the period of 07 /01 /16 - 06/30/17) 

• Schedule of Quarterly Match/Cost Sharing Reports remains unchanged. 

(continued on next page) 

ASPR07-13 WCHD Page 3 of 73 Privileged Communication 
6



Subgrantee agrees to adhere to the following Year 2 budget through December 31, 2013: 

1. Personnel $ 13g,431.00 
Director, Epidemiology & Health Preparedness 5% 
Public Health Preparedness Manager 30% 
Administrative Secretary 50% 
Public Health Emergency Response Coordinator 95% 
Health Educator II 25% 
MRC Program Coordinator 50% 
Public Information Officer 5% 
Public Health Emergency Response Coordinator 5% 
Fringe Benefits (40.75%) 

2. Contractual/ $ 32,017.00 Part-Time Clerical Assistant, Translation/Interpretation Services, 
Contract Services Consultant/Contract Services: MRC Training Classes, Northern Nevada 

Disaster Victim Recovery Team Project (NNDVRT}, Continuity of 
Operations Planning (COOP) Project, NNDVRT Training, Call Center 
Training and Media Buy. 

3. Travel $ 7,862.50 In State Travel and Out of State Travel - In compliance with Federal 
GSA rates 

4. Equipment $ 14,303.00 WebEOC Annual Maint. Fee for WCHD Instance, WebEOC Annual 
Maint. Fee for WCHD Resource Manager, Air Purifier Systems, Prox 
Reader and installation, and Medical Examiner Equipment. 

5. Supplies $ 1, 125.00 Office Supplies and Operating Supplies 

6. Other $ 3,705.00 Telephone Services, Postage, Copy Machine, Educational Supplies, 
MRC Program Supplies, Rental Space I Meeting room, and Printing 

7. Indirect $ 20,913.00 Indirect Costs (15%) 

Total Cost $ 21g,346.50 

• The maximum approved funding under this subgrant has increased by $21 g,346.50 for six months of 
Year 2 budget period which covers July 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013. The grand total for 
this subgrant award is $623,386.50. 

• Requests for Reimbursement will be accompanied by supporting documentation, including the 
Reimbursement Worksheet and any required invoice copies. All Budget Period 1 and Budget Period 
2 expenses will be submitted separately. The Budget Period 2 Request for Reimbursement is 
included in Section C. Requests for Reimbursement are due on or before the 301

h of the following 
month. · 

• At the end of this budget period WCHD may submit a written request for carry-over of unexpended 
funding into the next budget period. The carry-over request may not exceed 10% of the current 
budget period awarded amount or a total equal to or less than $21,934.65. The request to carry
over must be submitted by April 30, 2014 and include a breakdown of estimated carry-over funding 
by category and by capability, reason or barriers which resulted in the carry-over and the planned 
scope of work to be completed with these carry-over funds. Please note that a Carry-Over request is 
not a guarantee. 

ASPRD7-13 WCHD Page 4 of 73 Pdvileged Communication 7



• Costs associated with food or meals are NOT permitted unless included with per diem as a apart of 
official travel. Meals cannot be claimed within 50 miles of the official workstation. 

o Subgrantee agrees to cost share/match a nonfederal contribution in the amount of 10% ($1 for each 
$10 of federal funds provided in this subgrant). The Cost Sharing/Match for Budget Year 2 will be 
$21,934.65 for a grand total Cost Sharing/Match of $62,338.65. This match may be provided 
directly or through donations from public or private entities and may be in cash or in kind, fairly 
evaluated, including plant, equipment or services. Amounts provided by the federal government or 
services assisted or subsidized to any significant extent by the federal government may not be 
included in determining the amount of such nonfederal contributions. Documentation of match, 
including methods and sources must be available upon request of Division Public & Behavioral 
Health. Subgrantee will sign attached Match Certification (Attachment 1). 

• Reimbursement Worksheet will be submitted along with each Request for Reimbursement: 

? Insert detailed breakdown of all monthly expenditures included in the attached reimbursement 
request (column c). 

? Provide complete travel detail including purpose of travel and attach copies of travel claim 
summary (if available). 

? Attached invoice copies for all items listed in Contracl/Consultant and Equipment. Also attach 
invoices for all Supplies and other purchases that are over $500 per item. NOTE: Supplies are 
items which have a consumable live of less than 1 year and Equipment are items over $5,000 
per item OR have a consumable live of over 1 year (ie: laptops, iPads, printers, etc ... ). 

? Return document along with the monthly reimbursement request. 

• Budget Request and Justification Form will be submitted along with each Request for 
Reimbursement: 
? Insert your total monthly expenditure amount from your attached reimbursement request in 

column a. 
:» Provide tl1e percentage of the capabilities these funds are to be applied against in column b. 
:» If utilizing an electronic copy, this will auto-populate the dollar amount in column c. 
:» Return document along with the monthly reimbursement request. 

ASPROl-13 WCHD Page 5 of 73 Privileged Communication 8



DIVISION PUBLIC & BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
NOTICE OF SUBGRANT AWARD 

SECTION C 
Financial Reporting Requirements 

Request for Reimbursement form 

"'° A Request for Reimbursement is due on a monthly basis, based on the terms of the subgrant agreement, 
no later than the 30th of the month. 

"'" Reimbursement is based on actual expenditures incurred during the period being reported. 
"'" Payment will not be processed without all reporting being current and without the Reimbursement 

Worksheet. 
"'" Reimbursement may only be claimed for expenditures approved within the Notice of Subgrant Award. 
"'° PLEASE REPORT IN DOLLARS and CENTS (No Rounding) 

Provide the following information on the top portion of the form: Subgrantee name and address where the check is to 
be sent, Health Division (subgrant) number, Bureau program number, draw number, employer l.D. number (EIN) and 
Vendor number. 

An explanation of the form is provided below. 

A. Approved Budget: List the approved budget amounts in this column by category. 

B. Total Prior Requests: List the total expenditures for all previous reimbursement periods in this column, for each 
category, by entering the numbers found on Lines 1-8, Column D on the previous Request for 
Reimbursement/Advance Form. If this is the first request for the subgrant period, the amount in this column equals 
zero. 

C. Current Request: List the current expenditures requested at this time for reimbursement in this column, for each 
category. 

D. Year to Date Total: Add Column Band Column C for each category. 

E. Budget Balance: Subtract Column D from Column A for each category. 

F. Percent Expended: Divide Column D by Column A for each category and total. Monitor this column; it will help to 
determine if/when an amendment is necessary. Amendments MUST be completed (including all approving signatures) 
30 days prior to the end of the subgrant period. 

ASPRDl-13 WGHD Page 6 of 73 Privileged Communication 
9



Nevada Department of Health and Hurnarn Services 
Division Public & Behavioral Health Division#. 13008-2 

Public Health Preparedness Program Program#. ASPA:l7-13 
G_#. 8516 

GRANDTOfAL Job#. 9388913 
DrCM!#. ____ _ 

REQUEST FOR RBl\/IBURSEl\/El\IT 

Pr®ram Name: Subqrantee Name: 
Public Health Preparedness W3shoe County Health District (\/\CHO) 
Health Planning & Errergency Response 
Nevada State Health Division 

Address: Address: 
4150 Technology \N3y, Suite 200 1001 East Ninth Street 
Carson Qty, NV 89706 Reno, NV 89520 

SubQrant Period: Subgrantee BN #. 88-6000138 
July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2017 

Subgrantee Vendor#. T40283400Q 
Subgrant Buclqet Period: 
July 1, 2012 through Decerrber 31 , 2013 Dun & Bradstreet#. • 073786998 

RNANQAL REPORT AND REQUEST FOR FUNDS 

(report in dollars and cents; must be accompanied by expenditure report/back-up) 

Month(s): Calendar Year: 

A B c D 
E 

F 
i'pproved Budget Category i'pproved Total Prior Cu1Tent Year To 

Budget Balance Percent 
Budget Requests Request Date Total Expended 

1 Personnel $ 375,183.00 $ 235,761.68 $ 0.00 $ 235,761.68 $ 139,421.32 63% 

2 Contract/Consultant $ 113,467.00 $ 75,385.94 $ 0.00 $ 75,385.94 $ 38,081.06 O''lo 

3 Travel $ 17,425.50 $ 8,850.11 $ 0.00 $ 8,850.11 $ 8,575.39 51% 
. I' 4 Supplies $ 22,131.00 $ 17,718.40 $ 0.00 $ 17,718.40 $ stj I" 1/.4.41~ 80"/o 

'-" [,,. I 

5 Equipn-ent $ 24,053.00 $ 9,750.00 $ 0.00 $ 9,750.00 $ 14,303.00 a'lo 

6 Other $ 22,758.00 $ 17,156.35 $ 0.00 $ 17,156.35 $ 5,601.65 0% 

7 Indirect $ 47,369.00 $ 25,730.89 $ 0.00 $ 25,730.89 $ 21,638.11 0% 

8 Total $ 622,386.50 $ 390,353.37 $ 0.00 $ 390,353.37 $ 232,033.13 63% 

This report is true and correct to the best of 11¥ kncMAedge. 

Authorized Signature Title Date 

Reninder: Request for A=iniJurserrent cannot be processed wthout an eiq:ienditure report/backup. A=iniJurserrent is only 
aJICM.ed for il:errE contained wthin Subgrant AW3rd docu1T811!s. If applicable, tral.ei clai!TB ITUS1: accorrpany report 

FCR f-EALlH DIVISIQ\J USE O\I... Y 

Program contact necessary? __ Yes -- l\b Contact Person: 

Feason for cO!ltact 

Fiscal reviBlliapproval date: Signed: 

Scope of \/\brl< reviBlliapproval date: Signed: 

ASOor Bureau Chief (as required): Date: 

ASPR07-13 WCHD Page 7 of 73 Privileged Communication 10



Proqram Name: 

Nevada Departrrent of Health and Hurren Seivices 

Division Public & Behavioral Health 

Public Health Preparedness Program 

BUDGET PERIOD 1 

REQUEST FOR RBIVEUR.SEIVENT 
Subctrantee Name: 

Dlision#. 13C03-1 

Program#. ASPAJ7-12 
G...#. 8516 

Job#. 93989128 
DraN#. -----

Public Health Preparedness \N3shoe County Health District (VI.CHO) 
Health Planning & Errergency Response 
Nevada State Health Division 

Address: Address: 
4150 Technology \/\0y, Suite 200 1001 East Ninth Street 
Carson City, NV 89706 Reno, NV 89520 

Subcirant Period: Subgrantee BN #: 88-6000138 
July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2017 

Subgrantee Vendor#: T40283400Q 
Subcirant Budqet Period: 
July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013 Dun & Bradstreet#: • 073786998 

FINANCIAL REPORT AND REQUEST FOR FUNDS 

(report in dollars and cents; must be accompanied by expenditure report/back-up) 

Month(s): Calendar Year: 

A 
B c D 

E F 
f'W1:M3:l Bu:tJel Categ>y f'W1:M3:l BudgS: 

Total Pricr current YesrTo 
BudgS: Balance 

Percent 
Requests Request Date Total Exp2rded 

1 Personnel $ 235,762.00 $ 235,761.68 $ 0.00 $ 235,761.68 $ 0.32 100% 

2 ContracVConsultant $ 81,450.00 $ 75,385.94 $ 0.00 $ 75,385.94 $ 6,004.03 O'lo 

3 Travel $ 9,563.00 $ 8,850.11 $ 0.00 $ 8,850.11 $ 71289 93% 

4 Supplies $ 22,006.00 $ 17,718.40 $ 0.00 $ 17,718.40 $ 4,287.6'.J 81% 

5 Equiprrent $ 9,750.00 $ 9,750.00 $ 0.00 $ 9,750.00 $ 0.00 Cl"/o 

6 other $ 19,053.00 $ 17,193.35 $ 0.00 $ 17, 193.35 $ 1,Sffi.65 O"lo 

7 Indirect $ 26,493.00 $ 25,730.89 $ 0.00 $ 25,730.89 $ 725.11 Cl"/o 

8 Total $ 404,040.00 $ 390,353.37 $ 0.00 $ 390,353.37 $ 13,683.63 97% 

This report is true and correct to tre test of ITlJ kncMle:fge. 

Authoriza::I Signature Titte D3te 

FarirOOr: Fe'.:juestfor Roirrburserrent cannot be proc:csed wthoutan eiq:ienditure report/beckup. Roirrburserrent is only 
allCMed for iterrs contained wthin SuQ;:jrant A'J\Elfd docurrenls. If applicable, 1T8\.el clalrrs m.st accorrpany report 

FCR.1-EAL TH DIVISICN USE O\I... Y 

Programcontactnecessary? __ Yes -- l\b Contact Person: 

Reason for contact 

Fiscal reliEMlapprO\/al date: Signed: 

ScO[E of \/\brk reiEMiapprO\/al c:latB' Signed: 

N'Dor Bureau Chief (as required): D3te: 

ASPROl-13 WCHD Page 8 of73 Privileged Communication 
11



l\.l!evad!a Departmem olf Health andl Human Senvices 
Division Public 8, Behavioral Health Division #. 1300& 2 

Public Health Preparedness Program 

BUDGET PERIOD 2 

REQUEST FOR RBIVBURSEMENT 
PrQgram Name: SubQrantee Name: 

Program#. ASPR07-13 
G__#. 8516 

Joo#. 9388913 

DraN#. -----

Public Health Preparedness W3shoe County Health District (\/\CHO) 
Health Planning & Errergency Response 
Nevada State Health Division 

Address: Address: 
4150 Technology Way, Suite 200 1001 East Ninth Street 
Carson Qty, NV 89706 Reno, NV 89520 

Subgrant Period: Subgrantee EIN '#". 88-6000138 
July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2017 

Subgrantee Vendor'#". T402834000 
SubQrant Budqet Period: 
July 1, 2013through Deoerrber 31, 2013 Dun & Bradstreet'#". ' 073786998 

RNANCIAL REPORT AND REQUEST FOR FUNDS 

(report in dollars and cents; must be accompanied by expemliture report/bacl<-up) 

Month(s): Calendar Year: 

A B c D 
E 

F 
,Approved Budget Category ,Approved Total Aior OJrrent Year To 

Budget Balance 
Percent 

Budget Requests Request Date Total 8qJended 

1 Personnel $ 139,421.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 139,421.00 0% 

2 ContracliConsultant $ 32017.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 32017.00 0% 

3 Travel $ 7,862.50 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 7,862.50 O"/o 

4 Supplies $ 125.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ ]125.00 0% 

5 EquiprTBnt $ 14,303.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 14,303.00 O"/o 

6 Other $ 3,705.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 3,705.00 0% 

7 Indirect $ 20,913.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 20,913.00 O"/o 

8 Total $ 218,346.50 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 2-18;346:50 0% 

This report is true and correct to the best of ny knov\.!e::lge. ;._lilf 3"-fl/.~:JU 

Authorized Signature lltie Date 

Rs!Tinder: R=quest for FerTburserrent cannot be processed Vli1hout an e>q:ienditure report/backup. FerTburserrent is 
only allCM.ed for iterrs contained Vli1hin Subgrant A\Aard docurrents. If applicable, tra.el clairrs rrust acccrrpany report 

Fffi f-£AL TH DIVISIO\J USE Cl\!L Y 

Program contact necessary? __ Yes -- N:i Contact Ferson: 

A=asa1 for contact 

Rscal revievv'approval dale: Signed: 

Sccpe of \/\kJrk revievv'approval dale: Signed: 

ASOor Bureau Chief (as required): Dale: 

ASPROl-13 WCHD Page 9 of 73 Pdvi/eged Communication 12



Personnel Title 

Contract I Consultant 

Travel 

Washoe County Health District (WCHD) 

Reimbursement Worksheet 

July 1 - July 31, 2013 

Description 

Description 

Mileage@ lodging & AirFare 

Amount 

TOTAL 

Amount 

TOTAL 

(Name of Traveler) Travel Dates To $0.565/mi Per Diem &Misc Purpose/ Description Amount 

TOTAL 

Supplies Description Amount 

TOTAL 

Equipment Description (attach invoice copies for all items) Amount 

TOTAL 

Other Description Amount 

TOTAL 

Indirect Description Amount 

TOTAL 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

ASPROl-13 WCHD Page 10 of 73 Privileged Communication 
13



Division Public & Behavioral Health : Public Health Preparedness 
Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and Response: Hospital Preparedness Program 

Budget Request and Justification Form 
Washoe County Health District 

July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 

Contact Name: Jeff Whitesides 
Phone Number: 775-328-6130 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

E-Mail Address: jwhitesides@washoecounty.us 

Applicant/ Agency Name: WCHD 
-,--~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Total Agency Request: $438,693 -- Year 2 

** Insert your total monthly expenditure amount below from your attached reimbursement request in column a. Provide the 

percentage of the capabilities these funds are to be applied against in column b. If utilizing an electronic copy this will auto
populate the dollar amount in column c. Return this document along with your monthly reimbursement request. This will 

provide a tracking to expedite the mid- and end-of-year progress reporting. 

**Please contact us if you have any questions. 

Budget Summary 

Monthly Expenditure: 
p . ' . 

1. Healt,hcare System Preparedness 
Fl: Develop, refine, or sustain Healthcare Coalitions 

FZ: Coordinate healthcare planning to prepare the 

healthcare system for a disaster 

F3: lndentify and prioritize essential healthcare assets and services. 

F4: Determine gaps in the healthcare preparedness and 

identify resources for mitigation of these gaps 

FS: Coordinate training to assist healthcare responders to develop 

the necessary skills in order to respond 

F6: Improve healthcare response capabilities through 

coordinated exercise and evaluation 

F7: Coordinate with planning for at-risk individuals and those 

with special medical needs 

2. Healthcare System Recovery: 

Fl: Develop recovery processes for the healthcare delivery system 

F2: Assist healthcare organizations to implement 

Continuity of Operations {COOP) 

3. Emerg~ncyOpe~ations c;ilordination: 

Fl: Healthcare organization multi-agency representation 

and coordination with emergency operations 

FZ: Assess and notify stakeholders of healthcare delivery status 

F3: Support healthcare response efforts through coordination 

of resources 

F4: Demobilize and evaluate healthcare operations 

ASPROl-13 WCHD Page 11of73 

(a) (b) 
Current 9fi 

Utilized 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

(c) 
Current$ 
Utilized 

Privileged Communication 14



Budget Summary-- Page2 

5. Fatality Management: 

Fl: Coordinate surges of deaths and human remains at healthcare 

organizations with community fatality management operations 

FZ: Coordinate surges of concerned citizens with community 

agencies responsible for family assistance 

F3: Mental/behavioral support at the healthcare organization level 

6. Information Sharing: 

Fl: Provide healthcare situational awareness that contributes to 

the incident common operating picture. 

FZ: Develop, refine, and sustain redudant, interaperable 

communication systems 

10. Medical Surge: 

Fl: The Healthcare Coalition assists with the coordination of 

the healthcare organization response during incidents that 

require medical surge 

FZ: Coordinate integrated healthcare surge operations with 

pre-hospital Emergency Medical Services 

F3: Assist healthcare organizations with surge capacity and 

capability 

F4: Develop Crisis Standards of Care guidance 

FS: Provide assistance to healthcare organizations 

regarding evacuation and shelter in place operations 

14. Responder Safety and Health 

Fl: Assist healthcare organizations with additional 

pharmaceutical protection for healthcare workers 

F2: Provide assistance to healthcare organizations with access 

to additional Personal Protective Equipment. 

:is. Volunteer Management: 

Fl: Participate with volunteer planning processes to 

determine the need for volunteers in healthcare organizations 

F2: Volunteer notification for healthcare response needs 

F3: Organization and assignment of volunteers 

F4: Volunteer notification for healthcare response needs 

ASPROl-13 WCHD Page 12 of73 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

Privileged Communication 15



Date: 

External Funding 
Source: 

ATTACHMENT 1 

Nevada State I Division Public & Behavioral Health 
Public Health Preparedness Program 

Match Certification 

2012 ASPR Hospital Preparedness Program (HPP) 

ASPR07-13 

A mandatory cost sharing/matching cost contribution is required for the following 
proposal: 

Funding Recipient: Washoe County Health District (WCHD) 

Project Title: HPP and PHEP Cooperative Agreement 

Project Grant#: 5U90TP000534-02 

Duration: From: July1,2013 
~~~~~~~~-

To: December31, 2013 

Total cost sharing/matching cost contribution: $21,934.65 I Percentage: 10% 

Source of cost sharing/matching cost contribution: 

Name: 

Account# (if 
applicable): 

Funding recipient hereby certifies that the identified cost sharing/matching cost 
contribution is not being used to match any other funding source. 

Washoe County Health District 
Name and Title 

(Funding Recipient) 
Signature Date 

ASPROl-13 WCHD Page 13 of 73 Privileged CommuniCation 16



This page intentionally left blank 

ASPR07-13 WCHD Page 14 of 73 Pdvileged Communication 
17



Budget)! · funCI I 
% •• Am:i8~tion 

30.24% $132,666 

I; > I 

·1· .. ·· .... -.· ,: ;,. '/ 

'·· 

< I I. ·, , ... , ' 

I 

+ 
I 

' 

I": -

I-
I 

Attachment A: Capability Summary 

Washoe County Health District (WCHD) 

ASPR Hospital Preparedness Program (BP2) Subgrant # ASPR07-13 

July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2014 

Funding - Budget Perod 2: $ 438,693 

.Capability lFunsii&n Name 

1 I Healthcare System Preparedness 

Build I F1 I Determine risks to the health of the jurisdiction 

Sustain 

Build 

1 ·• 

Build F2 

Build 

I No Activity 

I. 
I. 

Build F3 

Build 

T1 

Form a collaborative preparedness planning group that provides integration, coordination, 
and organization for the purpose of regional healthcare preparedness activities and 
response coordination. 

Provide a regional healthcare multi-agency coordination function to share incident specific 
healthcare situational awareness to assist with resource coordination during response and 

T2 I recovery activities 
Build I P1 I Healthcare Coalition regional boundaries 
Build I P2 I Healthcare Coalition primary members 
Build I P3 I Healthcare Coalition essential partner memberships 
Build I P4 !Additional Healthcare Coalition partnerships/memberships 
Build I PS I Healthcare Coalition organization and structure 

Build I P6 I Multi-agency coordination during response 
Coordinate healthcare planning to prepare the healthcare system for a disaste 

T1 

T2 

Engage relevant response and healthcare partners to assess the probability of hazards 
deemed likely to affect the healthcare delivery capability within a geographic area and 
prioritize response and mitigation activities given available resources. 

Engage healthcare partners to coordinate healthcare planning efforts with local and state 
emergency operations planning to integrate healthcare organization priorities and unique 
needs into response and recovery operations. 

Build P1 Healthcare system situational assessments 
Build P2 Healthcare System disaster planning 

Identify and prioritize essential healthcare assets and services. 

T1 I Identify and prioritize the essential healthcare assets and serv'1ces of the community 

Coordinate planning and preventative measures to assist with the protection of prioritized 
I I No Activity T2 I healthcare assets and essential services. 

-

Build I P1 I Identify and prioritize critical healthcare assets and essential services 
No Activity I P2 I Priority healthcare assets and essential services planning 

Build I P3 I Equipment to assist healthcare organizations with the provision of critical services 

Capability Summary Page 15 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

18



Attachment A: Capability Summary . ·' .·:·: ·: ' ••. <\(•;. Build F4 Determine gaps in the healthcare preparedness and identify resources for mitigation of 
. i<> .· 

• • •• I?> i •. . 
·. ·. Perform a resource assessment by analyzing healthcare organization needs and evaluating 

• ••• •• ••••••••••• 
.i >. >' .·• 

.. · Sustain T1 
exercises, training, and actual incidents or events to determine gaps and corrective action. --- __ ,_ _____ .... _, ' 

.· •.<.; .. ,.;g~T·•·> -"·--_- - -- - Deconflict resources by ensuring response resources are not over allocated to multiple 
·, . 

I ' ; ?. 
Build T2 

' : stakeholders within the community 

·•>:t .. ·::: •' •••••• -'--:;; - - - ._:-·,,_·-.- : Build P1 Healthcare resource assessment 
: :,.,.,. ... ·.· . ·.-- - -:, . .. . .· .·· . 

.· .... : . . .. ·. Build P2 Healthcare resource coordination . . ... . 
,_- - ... ·. ::, . No Activity P3 Address healthcare information gaps '·':': - . ' : . ;-

,_ :: ' ,-:_;,;·'. ;·,·,:,-; -~';-:.'->/. ::,.;,. Sustain FS Coordinate training to assist healthcare responders to develop the necessary skills in order to respond. 

' . · . .. (i 

12····'·····)> 
·.· 

Assist with the provision of National Incident Management System training for healthcare . 
Sustain T1 organizations in order to refine and improve response knowledge, skills, and abilities in 

.. · . .. ·· . 
. . · .. · .. · .. . . . >.'· .: 

. . . accordance with the National Response Framework (NRF) . 
1- -. - - ,. ... ·. 

·. . . •>• · ... 
Assist with the provision of training for healthcare organizations based on existing response . 

Sustain T2 
·-:. -_ ' '.;_ _-· ': _- --"·;·:-. - ·.-· gaps in order to improve and refine required response knowledge, skills, and abilities. 

. ····. : ... -~-> __ .,_"_ -_··:: --",. . --.. , ·.-- _ _._, __ 

. . : 
. Sustain P1 Healthcare organization National Incident Management System (NIMS) training . 

' -- -- -' ···; >'• ... · .. 
- , ': - ,-," .· No Activity P2 Training to address healthcare gaps and corrective actions. 

. •.: .... ·: .. : ..... ;; ........... Sustain F6 Improve healthcare response capabilities through coordinated exercise and evaluation 
1.. ,, _ _,-· 

, .... ,: :. '•"····· • : '·.·.· Sustain T1 Coordinate and implement capability based exercises that test disaster planning efforts . 
. : · ....... :·· .-· ;,•',,-,,_ _ .. _: ..... · '. " ' 

·.·.· ... \., .·.:_ -__ ---:-.,,; .... Build T2 Utilize a coordinated evaluation method to evaluate exercises and actual incident responses '", :'· ' - _- ··-. :-•::: _; ·.· 

, .•. · /i . ·.····•·· :: 
••••••••••••• ••• 

.. Address findings from gap analysis and subsequent corrective actions to revise planning, I • . ' Sustain T3 
I•) .· 

I >: :: ···•• .<>.:•·. __ ,_- training, and exercises to minimize response gaps. I-·· ._ - -:-

. ._.;~ __ -_.;: I ?''• ' ... ·· .·· . ' ·::•::;; .. : .. :,. .. 
Build P1 Exercise plans 

.· ..... •: I<'·""'· .. 1':• ._·.,- · ... .. . :·,-___ ;., ' -- . Build P2 Exercise implementation and coordination . . 

·--.·.: - - '" .... : •. ;.;;;,.:; ... ·: I- - '<.: _. '.<C·_: .. -·· 
.- " .. ·,. "< ' ·.:.·· Build P3 Evaluation and improvement plans 

: ·. > .\>?' ·· .. · .. .. .. · . ., :. . . '. . . .. Build P4 Best practice and lessons learned sharing 
.. : ·., .. ~·.·· .. ... :,:;{" . Build S1 Evaluation and improvement plans · .. . ·. 
; . ' ::•: /;.' :. -· Build F7 Coordinate with planning for at-risk individuals and those with special medical needs. 
IX><'.:; •.i.· 

······ \,'' 
Participate in the planning process that identifies and determines multiple care options for .... :-s.~· ;: 

Build T1 individuals with special medical needs that are not suitable for mass care shelters and .:,: .... · ~ ~ :: . ; : ' ' .· .. 

require care at medical facilities during incidents. 

~·rt' I• ·. 
I• ; . ·:··· Participate in coordinated planning with public health and ESF#6 agencies to determine 

I . ····•········· ' :/'' .. ' . . .. 
. .···· ·· .. ;· No Activity T2 protocols for the transfer of patients between mass care and healthcare settings during a " 

1-- '. ·_-.-_ - • -->·· : _.----.::·,_-. ·... . . 
disaster. 

I· .,· . ··: -- "·.·_._l:- .· · .. · ••··· .•.. J .... Build P1 Healthcare planning for at-risk individuals and functional needs. 
:,., -:_: _'. 

. · ·.· · . 

; . •. :··· I ". ·; Build P2 Special medical needs planning 

Capability Summary Page 16 of 73 WCHD ASPRD7-13 

19



Attachment A: Capability Summary 

7.87% $34,512 2 Healthcare System Recovery 
, , , ',• Build F1 Develop recovery processes for the healthcare delivery system 

•. 1. '.• , ,,; 
Assess the impact of an incident on the healthcare systems ability to deliver essential 

,,· 
,, , __ 

Build T1 
, , 

·.:' services to the community and prioritize healthcare recovery needs 
•', 

. ''. , .. > . 
Promote healthcare organization participation in state and/or local pre- and post-disaster ;· ,;_,,,-_.: ·:, ,. : No Activity T2 recovery planning activities as described in the National Disaster Recovery Framework 

.. •/ - --- - --- " - ,. "<-<:· ... ·: (NRDF) in order to leverage recovery resources, programs, projects, and activities 

, ./ 
·, '_,-.· - ·_:·,·/'-';;_:;· .. · :·;,'; '.;_-,- Build P1 Healthcare recovery planning , , , 

>·::·- ··-.: '-_ 
, , :::.> " .. ·. '·· Build P2 Assessment of healthcare delivery recovery needs post disaster ...... 

: ::.•: .·: ; '. , :i ··., , ;' No Activity P3 Healthcare organization recovery assistance and participation 
...... .:.'. :.: .. , , Build F2 Assist healthcare organizations to implement Continuity of Operations 

.··. 
,1 •''·'• Build T1 

Identify the healthcare essential services that must be continued to maintain healthcare 
·.·::. delivery following a disaster 

.T·· .. / 
~,,,., 

, , 

, .. ·.··· 
Encourage healthcare organizations to identify the components of a fully functional COOP 

' ; Build T2 
, ; , ···'':.• , , , and develop corresponding plans for implementation. 

, ,, 

""' :":t. 1; If a disaster notice can be provided, alert healthcare organizations within communities 
I No Activity T3 threatened by disaster and if requested and feasible, assist them with the activation of 
' COOP such that healthcare delivery to the community is minimally impacted. 

, ', '-'.,1•. --

.···,;. 
·' Develop coordinated healthcare strategies to assist healthcare organizations transition from 

·-·-:_ No Activity T4 
COOP operations to normalcy or the new norm for healthcare operations 

, 
.:., 

, 
, ,, . .-: ' -- _: ·::::--;:; -

, Build P1 COOP planning assistance for healthcare organizations , 

, 

,··', ,' 
., " , Build P2 Healthcare organization COOP implementation assistance 

.>::, ,; , ; , ·:, : Build P3 Healthcare organization recovery assistance , , , ,, .,. , 

8.54% $37,475 3 Emergency Operations Coordination 
, 

, Sustain F1 Conduct preliminary assessment to determine need for public activation, , 

" Determine the process for healthcare organizations representation with local and state ','',',,: Sustain T1 ,:. :·,· ,· : ;,, ,, emergency operations during an incident response 

};• , '. , > , ?':·' ', .::::, 
' 

Sustain P1 Healthcare organization multi-agency coordination during response 
, ;: , ,;,,\•:?'' , ·• , 

, 

No Activity P2 Healthcare organization and emergency operations decision coordination ._ - ', - , 

•:,:; , : ,' Sustain F2 , 

, Assess and notify stakeholders of healthcare delivery status 
;, :· , .·.," • ::' it' During an incident, implement information sharing processes that supports ongoing 

, ; Sustain T1 communication to inform local incident management of the operational status and resource 

'•,'' 
I I needs of healthcare organizations I I , , C,', ,,:;- ' ' , ,•, .·.: 

" 
, .,. 

During an incident, implement information sharing processes that supports ongoing 

5L 
, 

Sustain T2 communication to inform healthcare organizations about the status of the incident and of 
•', 
·. 

: , , ,; , , : , , , healthcare delivery in the community ,,,,· ·-_----·'·. 

Capability summary Page 17 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

20



Attachment A: Capability Summary 
,_ < .·-. _.- --".':' ... , < . 

During an incident, implement coordinated information sharing processes that provide I•: 

' 
. No Activity T3 relevant and timely healthcare messages to the community and other stakeholders through . 

.. ::,: : : .· .:·-'.-· -;.-.; I.• ... '.; .: . a Joint Information System (JIS) 

: •/ .. ?;.: ·.>•> .. }·.: : ' ' ,. . .·. ' ::;::,.;· ---: . . -- ':._,_. Build P1 Healthcare organization resource needs assessment 
; . ;. ; " - ·:,; ·_:_· _-_:;-: :~·:: .. : --<:', .. :»·:·· .: .• I: . '";~.c.i>H . '· Build P2 Incident information sharing 

;: : .··· ·' .. 
. ... _ ... ·. ):.• .:' : :· .. :· .. .. '· __ , __ _-._ '· . No Activity P3 Community notification of healthcare delivery status . 

. :: .. •: 
' ' •·• ... :,····· No Activity F3 . Support healthcare response efforts through coordination of resources 

. ' -- ·~ : ".--.: : : :: :,-s·:· .. -, -' <:.-.:::;;-.·' No Activity F4 Demobilize and evaluate healthcare operations 
24.58% $107,835 5 Fatality Management 
_. __ -·- .-:~=};:\' •<>::.;:·::·• ... Sustain F1 Coordinate surges of deaths and human remains at healthcare organizations with 

? •. ·x~:.0 ·:.. :xi'.·· / 
' ·. ····•·.· ..... 

Prior to an incident, assist healthcare organizations with determining the amount of morgue 
. :,: I Sustain T1 space that is available to them duringperiods of death surges and develop the processes to 

"' --- :. · .. · : ... : request support from local and state agencies. 
·.· .. ·. : . , .... · .. •. 

Prior to an incident, coordinate with healthcare organizations to identify alternate storage 
' Sustain T2 

: '. ' I and disposal options for human remains ,-. :::_:,_,:_-·-' .· "'" :.'_/Y;·~:-.,.: ~-
,_, ·---- .': 

:~ - ,-.; .':/::· .. : > . : '··:,;:,,,. .• . :.:: -,;;::·:- Build P1 Anticipate storage needs for a surge of human remains 
·:::_ --_-/:-.-- · .. ___ .. : : . ,;.: .. : :. ·. 

_. -__ Build P2 Healthcare organization human remain surge plans .. .: .. · 

;., -.--· -._ -, 
. '. v••· < .·.·· .. ,,.,,." ·, Build E1 Mortuary storage equipment and supplies 

--·:; :'~::':--=:- . -, .. ·. >::: Build F2 Coordinate surges of concerned citizens with community agencies responsible for family assistance 
.. 

:;; ;0\+cc·········•··•··• . . : .••• \;·; i'i,.j· .. ···· 
Prior to an incident, assist healthcare organizations by coordinating options for surges of 

•·····.·· 

. : Build T1 concerned citizens and their direction to the appropriate location for family assistance when 
: these surges arrive at the facility seeking family member information. 

I ' . ' ',.:·:::i: ............... :·:c:·· 1.n\< · ·· ... 1--- • _:.: __ - ' • ' -; .- ---~: Build P1 Procedures for a surge of concerned citizens 

'>"•:•Yi:::• ... !::(··· Build F3 Mental/behavioral support at the healthcare organization level. .. 
··\4;,!•·"7:'',; • ·. . . ;:c ,··. Coordinate the options for mental/Behavioral support for healthcare organizations during ,.- :-- --: 

Build T1 ~.A> .. !'!', :):. : . (·. ·· .. ·· ';:.'.;} disasters which cause a death surge involving a large amount of human remains. 
;: -'~-·,:_/: -,,,.,, ·- . 

C;·i!O-': ". '_·,'. :~ -: , . _·:-·;: ·.:. · .. .:: .;.·:::·'' . Build P1 Mental/behavioral health support 

8.86% $38,880 6 Information Sharing 
1· . ;:,:,;:''.:( ·:---:·:-:.·>- : ; Build F1 Provide healthcare situational awareness that contributes to the incident common 
1

·i·w 
f~li~·>'·•··:•h"l' ~( 

t •·••··. 
.> );~y Build T1 

Before an incident, identify the essential elements of incident specific healthcare information 

"•' :···1>>' ' that are timely, relevant, actionable, and can be reasonably delivered during the response. . ,, 
::."\~:'~" :•:.· . 

> ..• •f I .. '· .... , ·{1 Before, during, and after an incident, utilize coordinated information sharing protocols to 
":'.+·:_'.;_;·~:·:--. i~--'.;,'f"_ ""'"' ':.'.>- .. -

· .. 

.·••• Build T2 receive and transmit timely, relevant, and actionable incident specific healthcare information l,h. ,, -:-- ,,,,, 
· ... ' .... ·~·i F ... to incident management during response and recovery. 

Capability Summary Page 18 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

21



Attachment A: Capability Summary 

·; Build P1 Healthcare information sharing plan 

. . : .. Build P2 Healthcare essential elements of information 
... ·.: .. : ..... :· ...... : . .. Build . P3 Healthcare incident information validation :•; :·;· . 

. __ ,.,-._'.:,::'. -' - ' •. .::1:; :•··· .·• •.••· . . "_:,,-._.;-.- '·. ·•.. ;: No Activity P4 Healthcare information sharing with the public . . ·_ - ,--.-, ' 

-_ '.-' .:-·- .--:,::>::::,/ .. _ •••• • :, .···-'· No Activity P5 Bed tracking :- ,· .-._:· ____ - ... ·.· .. ·· ... · 

; ' .•• ····;y· :· .···•·· .•. 
.· ··,· : .. . '','' . '''.'""'''/' No Activity PG Patient tracking 

·' : 
... .. ' ,. . 

.;•• ·.• ·. '.. .::'i') :L .. .·. 
' No Activity P7 Patient record tracking :· ' . ' 

::·_-:.:_ ::·:-: . I . •• .. :'.· 
'. ··. _·_-___ . ___ _;:"_.·.:::,,,·:· ' - ---~-:"': Build E1 Healthcare information systems :,_;,_ ' : 

· ... <•.: 
. .: -::_;~-- -___ -- ,,:<': .. . ·. ·. ·, · .. No Activity E2 Bed tracking system 

... _ -, 
.------- < - ' ' - :- -___ ;' .''· ._: <_:-_· ,. No Activity E3 Patient tracking system -- ' - :, .. · .. ·. . ";·.·:· ' 

. ;.· ... . 
' ·: •: ··~ : Build S1 Bed tracking system training ·:·· . 

·• 
. 

: Build F2 Develop, refine, and sustain redundant, interoperable communication systems .· 
. . ' . -' : '.' ; <::,~.' -'·:· ,--.. > Before, during, and after an incident or event, have redundant processes and systems to 

•••••• 
!' . : . .··•·.• 

Sustain T1 communicate with the appropriate multijurisdictional and multidisciplinary emergency 
.. " 

. 

.. _. _ .. ' ' 

,·······.·.· . 
responders 

.: 

T • 
j 

:. 

Before, during, and after an incident or event, have redundant processes and systems to 
: 

': ~> I Build T2 communicate the status of the inc'ident and the status of the community healthcare delivery 

. .. to healthcare organizations . 
·. 

. ,.· :_:- ::-·/_. ' ' Build P1 Interoperable communications plans _. ·.-.;.-

.. :: •. · .. ; : ·. ;:• No Activity E1 Interoperable communication system 
··.·.· . 

·'' . ,, ' 
' .. No Activity S1 Communication training 

2.22% $9,756 10 Medical Surge 
. 

. .. ·.·. •.:: No Activity F1 The Healthcare Coalition assists with the coordination of the healthcare organization 

·'· 
;:.· . 
·., Build F2 Coordinate integrated healthcare surge operations with pre-hospital Emergency Medical 

',· .· . Build T1 
Promote information sharing processes that enable healthcare organizations to track the 

. ' 1· status and transport of patients from EMS during medical surge incidents . ••• . 
... 

· ... :: ·. .·•. Provide training and guidance to encourage healthcare organizations to understand EMS 
.. 

I .: Build T2 disaster triage protocols and CBRNE treatment protocols that assist with the transition of 

.. :• I disaster patients from the field to the facility. 
' '. ' .. 

.:. ; : . :.J;; '. i:'' . ·. , . ... . Build P1 Healthcare organization coordination with EMS during response 
/{. .: ;, .. ; ; ; . ·•·F/· . 

Build P2 Coordinated disaster protocols for triage, transport, documentation, CBRNE ··. .. , ' . 

- ' ' '.-~:-.: __ -.'- .·: "- l: .. :· ' . P:X;'.::·;,: .- - ·.··:·, Build S1 Training on local EMS disaster triage methodologies ' ... .. 

: .. ·· 1; .. ::.•i');i: "' . : . ' : ' ·; 
;-·· ·<·· \' No Activity S2 Coordinated CBRNE training 

' -- -_ -.:> I ·::: : . : ::·:: No Activity F3 · Assist healthcare organizations with surge capacity and capability 
:,, '._ ''":"-~:+;:;-;:-: ·-:_- ,-, No Activity F4 Develop Crisis Standards of Care guidance 

.:.· . ; ·,:' ·. ' No Activity F5 Provide assistance to healthcare organizations regarding evacuation and shelter in place 

Capability Summary Page 19 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

22



3.81% 14 
Build 

Capability Summary 

Attachment A: Capability Summary 
Responder Safety and Health 

F1 !Assist healthcare organizations with additional pharmaceutical protection for healthcare 

Build 

Build 

Build 

T1 

T2 

T3 

Identify the pharmaceuticals needed to safeguard healthcare workers and their families 
when indicated by a biological infectious disease or during a likely exposure incident 
identified through risk assessments, hazards vulnerability assessments (HVAs), and 
resource needs. 

Assess the need for developing pharmaceutical caches that can be accessed by healthcare 
organizations when requested and available during an exposure/incident. 

Establish the appropriate processes to deliver caches of pharmaceuticals to healthcare 
organizations during an exposure requiring prophylaxis and treatment when requested and 
available. 

Build I P1 I Pharmaceutical needs assessment 
Build I P2 I Pharmaceutical cache storage, rotation, replacement, and distribution 
Build P3 Medical Countermeasure dispensing 
Build E1 Pharmaceutical cache protection 
Build I S1 I Pharmaceutical cache training 

F2 I Provide assistance to healthcare organizations with access to additional Personal Protective Equipment 

Build 

Build 

T1 

T2 

Build 
Build 

No Activity 
Build 
Build 

Volunteer Management 

Prior to an incident, and as applicable during an incident, work with subject matter experts to 
identify responder safety and health resource requirements 

Prior to an incident, and as applicable during an incident, and in conjunction with subject 
matter experts, formulate recommendations to public health responders regarding personal 
protective equipment that are consistent with local jurisdictional requirements. 

P1 I Personal protective equipment needs assessment 
P2 Personal protective equipment caches 
P3 Personal protective equipment supply and dispensing 
E1 Personal Protective Equipment for healthcare workers 
S1 I Personal protective equipment training 

F1 I Participate with volunteer planning processes to determine the need for volunteers in 

Sustain T1 

Sustain T2 

Assess which situations would necessitate the need for the use of volunteers in healthcare 
organizations during response and participate in the planning that would provide this as an 
option when needed. 

Identify the type and quantity of volunteers most likely needed to support healthcare 
response based on the risk assessments, hazard vulnerability assessments, resource 
assessments and other data that may provide clarity into anticipated needs. 

Page 20 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

23



Attachment A: Capability Summary 

.·. Prior to an incident or event, participate with volunteer planning for pre-incident screening 
··· Sustain T3 and verification of volunteers' credentials for healthcare professionals that may be used in 

healthcare organizations . 

•• I Prior to an incident or event, participate with training initiatives for the planning of initial and 
· ·• • .. ·. Sustain T4 ongoing emergency response training for registered volunteers that may be used in 

,·:·•:-c•;· · ·· • . · healthcare organizations during response. 

·. . . . . ... .•• .·.·. ··· ... ·. :°'"" Sustain P1 Volunteer needs assessment for healthcare organizations response. 
. . ·. ' ·· .. ·· ·.·. · •·:.· · · :;c:•• ·. Sustain P2 Collect, assemble, maintain, and utilize volunteer information 

·: , .:•:· . .. .. .· : ,, :•:: . . , . Sustain E1 Electronic volunteer registration system 
·. · :. ·. · .. . Sustain F2 Volunteer notification for healthcare response needs 

, . . . l '• · > At the time of an incident, determine the volunteers needed to assist the healthcare 
[;', . Sustain T1 organization response including the role and quantity of volunteers needed; communicate 

. 1 •• ,, ,, • ·~ • .. requests using the established volunteer request process . 

.. · :,: · ,·. •: · ·.. . • :•.; . • : Sustain P1 Process to contact registered volunteers 
> · · ·.. .;·. . . ·· ·· I::: .. · ".'" ': Sustain P2 Process to confirm credentials of responding volunteers 

·. . ., • :·. ' · · •·•· Sustain P3 Volunteer request process 
.·· ·• Sustain F3 Organization and assignment of volunteers 

· ·. · ' ·•' Develop a process to assist healthcare organizations with volunteer placement during an 
.•·• . S . 

1 
incident that includes multi-agency coordination between healthcare organizations in order 

I ustam T to deconflict the needs of multiple healthcare organizations with the availability of 
. .. ·.. . .. volunteers . 

. ··• .. ..fi. ' .· Develop a process to assist healthcare organizations with the provision of deployment 
,;·: ' . Sustain T2 briefings, tracking and rotation of volunteers, spontaneous volunteer management, safety 

.: and incident-specific training. .. ' . . 

. .. .. · ••• ;. .· .. , . . Sustain 1 P1 Volunteer deployment protocols 
.• 

1 

• ·' • ·. ' • Sustain P2 Briefing template for healthcare volunteers 
.;. · · . . .... · . ·•.• ·.·.. Sustain P3 Volunteer support services 

.·• · , . ., .. · ·· .. · Build F4 Coordinate the demobilization of volunteers 

···;•. . ·· B . Coordinate with incident management and the appropriate jurisdictional volunteer 
. • • 1. • . . ·· uild T1 organizations to ensure the proper outprocessing of volunteers. 

·. <> ·.>I>>--·. ·''-

. · ·· I : · Coordinate with incident management and the appropriate jurisdictional volunteer 
;.:;;:,; . organizations to identify community resources that can support volunteer post-deployment 

. < '\.. Build T2 medical screening, stress, well-being assessments and, when requested or indicated, have 
1 • •• • • .; • • • • .•.• • • • a process to refer volunteers to medical and mental/behavioral health services. -. '-·- -,.--,:>;-~.:~:. - ,- '. ' --

,- ' -_, -- . -- ·' --
' ··.;. . .,: .. .. : .:·•: .::•·•·· Sustain P1 Volunteer release processes 

) :·; ·.·., .••••... ·. : L .·•.••·· ·· ... '. !:'' ' .. · Sustain P2 Volunteer exit screening protocols 

100.00% $438,693 TOTAL (Must equal 100%) 

Capability Summary Page 21of73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

24



Attachment A: Capability Summary 

This page intentionally left blank 

Capability Summary Page 22 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

25



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Washoe County Health District 
ASPR Hospital Preparedness Program (BP2) Subgrant # ASPR07-13 

Scope of Work (SOW) July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 

HPP Capability #l: Healthc:are·System·Preparedness. 
Dess\iption: Healthc~res~Ysternpreparedn~ssis the ability ofa coni[!luriW:shealthcare syste!)1)to prepare,respqni'I, and recover fromJnciderits.that have a public health and 
medi.cal impact in the shorj::andfong•Jerm. Th~ healthcare system rol.e. in Cc:i,:1Jmunity preparedness involves coordi~ationwith emergency managemerit,.public health, 
mental/behavioral healtlliprovid~is;:community and faith based . . . ;L .·Y 
partn~r't''state;Jocal;ahaJerfli'a'l(~!;go,~~tiu11~htsto d9the fo110\<li[il;!' •>' :.. >. •>·''.;;; . . .. ·. . :/ ·•·. .· . . ... ··· .·· .•... · .. · ·.. .. . . . . . .. .. · 
-Provide an.d sustain a tlere?'..scalable,andfl~xible appro.ach.to attainp.,eded disasrer•resporise,and recovery capabilities while .not je!lpardizing services to individuals in the 
comni~~ity .. X . ,.•.i ;; ;,,;i:; • ;?.;'. ... · · .·•·.·. ·: '... > . ·.·····.· ';; / . . . . .. ··· • . . •.·. . . . .. 
'Pro~i<:le timely monito(1ngandmanagemen'.of resources . · · 
- Coordinate the alfocatidrr.dfemergenty medical care resources 
-Prn~ide timely·and rei~~antinfbrmation on the status of the indident and'healthcaresystem.fokey stakeholders 

~,,,,,., , '-''-" •--,; v·•' •• , - , , -·«, -· -· ·'' - ',. - .;•>' . . 

Healthca re•s\i~f~~; ~reP'~~~~:~~fsl~·~hiev~d th rough a· co ntl~~~[J~ia~~ie df•pla n ni ng, ,o rga'r);~fn;~i~;d eq ui ppi hg, tr~l,~ing; .exertises, evaluations a lld'~orrettive. actions: ... 

Gdal:·. • B.u i 1.d Yesili~Q '" 1:1i'ro'Ug~;c()i lal5griltion. w.ithtomrn u 11.ity. paffefer's. ···Hof i:I. discussi.oYis'aQd'foril)alize · significanticiE!ci.sibns. affecting coll~ borati.o.n among. coa I ition. members 
--_-_-,-;"··.",-,,'·:C:'·'·,-i·'··,·:.-'f·''·;;L•:·:·-_-,_•:,C!:·:·,>.-.· :· __ ---·::-----.·>--·-.-·-·_.·-;!;:-;/-_.·_,_.-_ - '··:'":'<-'•"':---.;/·---'_- ---_-,_-_-.·::•<:""-·_-,.-_-- · ,· -,- , 

as part ofpreparedrie55:a8:ivitiesc/l\voi.d ambiguif1es that}hou ldpjl).,rwiseburden respolic!ersand slow down. a.h@l.th.response, . 

Performance Measures: B~!cerlt ~f~ealihcarecoalitioris(HC~5)\K8Sthave establishe,~ff5r111alited agreernei)tsaf(d demonstrate.their ~Bllity to function and execute the 
capabHities for healthcare'.preparedness, response, andrecove,-yas·aefined In Healtncare'~reparedness Capabilities: National Guidanc:~for Healthcare System Preparedness. 
Below are the data elemefos that.must be reported on Jar thiscapaoility at mid-year'andend of;year. · · · 

Allocated funding: · 
,.0,0: ' 

HPl'l.1: · Are there forrMil'Bot~.rtiE!ni:ssucha~:Memoranda ofUodersfandii\g (MOUs);Mi.ifoalfAiil Agreements (MAAs); lnferagencyAgreemerif(IAAs), articles of 
incbrpciration, letters of agreement,;cohtracts;"charters; or other supportingJormal documentsthat define: . . 

U .. 1-The member organizations oftheflCC? 

i.1z:·Formal agreement to aid coalition m·embers and to share resoifrces and information 
1.1.3, A process to allow representation ofSubject matter experts (SM Es) to the HCC? 
1.1.!l;Joint or cooperati.Ve.activities'with hdh·:healthcare constituencies? 
1.ils:, Formal, agreeiTieiits to rirepa re·fo~.re~pon d .asp a rt of the Hct? 

HPPi.i:i·l:ias theHcc established aJormiiLsE!lli'gbverrlance structure(e:g.1iily;1a;s for the btJard .. iJf;i:fire't1:ors and a charter that is multidisciplinary and representative of all 
metnfi~1Fsofthe coalition)?' .•. >; . ':~~) '"''"' .· .. ·.· i'i~:.? . .. .. 7#;; . '. .· ··.·.· .'•. .• . . . . . . . . . 
H PP ,il3:• i'leaseesti mate tnetotal percenfage.ofi;the sfatepopu latLo.n • cd.ver·~a ·by: each ·HCC Wifliln'the State. 

HPPi.4i'ooe5Itle Hcc inc!~aeemergeffcV~~~·ag~ri:~nfimd publicffealt~~~;rrit.egral part~ers?:i~ . . . . . .. > .. • . • .. . . . .· . . . . . 1 
HPP L~: ~as th~ HCC and 1tsmernbers.pai;t1pp~.;.~a;1p.at,least one HSEE~7C~[!)pl1art exerc1seto;t~stStat~, regional and f~fll1P1,;level healthcare disaster planscons1denng 
scenatibs identified by a Hazard Vulnerabiiily)'\ssessmeiif(l;!VA) within the')Sast•yea[. ·.· · .•.• · •• .·•c ·· •':' • . . . · 

1.5.l - If sci, did the HCC achieve its establishedexertise·participation goals for ffs'>membernrganizatiotis' engagement in exercisE'sorreal events to test State, regional and 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASP R's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #1: Healthcare System Preparedness Page 23 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

26



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
facility:1e\i.eltieali:fii:are ilisa:Sterplan? ·•·· 
. . ,Ls.fc:1fso/didthe exelclses pr-real events'to tesfState,regional afjd fadlityCleVel.healthcare disaster plans demonstrate the HCC capabilities to function as a coordinated 
-~-~ti:i:V_i_L ;;_· ~-.;:_·~ <--~;~;;.:··.-. · ": ----:.:!:'.i\~:;~~-:yi;_- · ~"-->,:r,. ~ -~::.~-;,·~-;,,;:-~:<' -__ ::i:;~:~_-:_:: . 
• H~~.1m:~rn1a·s:t68,8GG'stlccessrcilly;implemet1tea "lesson ·Jeafi:ietl''.'a nd;"c\:i#eolive actions from a n•exerclse.cir event with in the past year? 

:·.eiirf ECi'W!Eil56iei:tfo~::ri'o6% ot.i:apallilif;i•wf11'.&e ~C:l"lievect·llv 6t3oi2oiih: ······• ·· ·· 
',;.<\,.-,'.·.· ·-</'""-'·-'•' '-'""'" _ •.c',o.,.;· -"')~""'' ,:,",~"-'·~> ,- '.c,-.-.,;,;_-_,., '_ , , ,-0 .·>oH'\'.c;Ii:/.!s~;..;.:\. ,, . , .· , -.-·, : '':' , · ... ,:-,:>-• 

The WCHD will continue to sustain current activities that assist with 
healthcare preparedness while building new capabilities within the 
region. 

Through the current activities and 
planning process, an electronic 
patient tracking system will be 
designed as well as a regional potable 
water plan. 

• Electronic patient tracking system 

• Potable water plan 

• Resource list for Access & Functional 
Needs citizens 

• 

• 
• 

Community Assessment of healthcare 
assets and equipment 

Revised hospital mass fatality annex 

Revised healthcare requesting 

procedures 

WCHD will continue to participate and administratively support the existing healthcare coalition, the Inter-Hospital Coordinating Council (IHCC) to include 
reviewing and revising response and recovery procedures as identified by the IHCC. 
Task1: ;Eorfrl:ii:collabprativeip\:eparedness planningig'rciup that provides integration,.coordinatiori;'ariil· organization for the purpose of . 

-- :-:.-,, ", ' -":> ·~'rii'i\;"''"'< /"' '>: '>' ·---- ,,, ·-·. J'"'_iz,_-::,;~7~----->: ' - --- - -- ' -.--. - /- >"--- -'·, .- -~'- '·':'-' ·' ;,:,•, --,\", .,, ','- -,_- - ... - ' -- - - - ' -_,,. ' -- -:-:·-' >, ; "·" ------ .. ·.· 
;regiO.O<li{!i:e;i[thcafe·p~eiparedY,'ess:iactivities and·response.co'o[.dina_tlon,(See Pg 1) ·; .:, ;j·::,::·}:d :;: . • •· ... · . . · . 

321.1.15.1 

Sustain $4,866 
Continue to participate in and administratively support the IHCC and the 
Skilled Nursing Facility Emergency Preparedness Committee 

June 30, 2014 

• Attend monthly IHCC 

meetings and provide agenda 
and meeting minute support. 

• Attend quarterly Skilled 

Nursing Facility meetings and 

provide agenda and meeting 

minute support. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASPR's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #1: Healthcare System Preparedness Page 24 of73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

27



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Task z:,,Provide ~ regional healthcare multi-agency coordination furii:tion to share iriddent'specific healthcare situatibnal awareness to·' 
assist W,ith resource coordination during respqj)se and;r.eccivery adivities (See Pg 1),; 

Build $13,922 

Continue to work with the Inter-Hospital Coordinating Council to create 
a healthcare coalition that will assist with response and recovery during 
an incident. 

June 30, 2014 

•.• !.- __ _ ___ , _ - __ \Fd~-~;·;~<:-· :,.::·;·_3~f?i(: ___ :_·_:,;;:;;~ -
Pla~~LDg Res?\:!f-fe ~l~~r~PF~:, ~~a. lthca re Coil lition 
regional boundaries (See Pg2) ./ 

Pla~n\g~ResoufC:~·EJ~h,,;nf~: 1-iealthtare·.Coalition 
primary member;(s~~:·Pg 2) 

·11}::~'[!'.'C''' -·· ~;:: ;: 

-:-::·-: ._ . ., · _ _, .·>-'{c·~·;_,_,,<;);7:::':2;,.::,:-:·,: '..:·i.: .. :·,:::>_· 0_ _ _ ._-: -•>.,c>··'··'·'>)·.: 
Planning Resource El~~erit ~: J,J,ealthca re Co a litio [i:c;. 
essential partnetmern6erships (See Pg 2) 

+' ', ' 

,.; 

Planriing.Resoutce El€rrient 4: Add itiona I Healthcare 
Coalition partn'e~~hipsJih~mberships (See Pg.2) - · 

--~-' <-:-' 
: ·:·. ,, --_:::;;:~·: '' \'._'::1/.;·._:- - ' . '·- .:·_,-·,- __ ' - ___.-]~:._::. 

Planning ResouiceElerTlerit 5: Healthcare.toalitioffi.; 
· . ,: ._- . . · --. _/ ·~:/~'[c:·-·-c.',,"_ ·. _. · :> -.·:>-.• -; · . ·· ... , . '.' 

Organization am~a•structuh: {See Pg 3) "' .. 

Planning Reso.ilrce Elerrient.s: 
dJring .res pons~. (See Pg 3) · 

Build 

Build 

Build 

Build 

Build 

Build 

WCHD will continue to participate in 

and administratively support the lnter
Hospital Coordinating Council. 

WCHD will continue to participate in 
and administratively support the lnter
Hospital Coordinating Council. 

WCHD will continue to participate in 
and administratively support the lnter
Hospital Coordinating Council. 

WCHD will continue to participate in 
and administratively support the Inter
Hospital Coordinating Council. 

WCHD will continue to participate in 
and administratively support the lnter
Hospital Coordinating Council. 

WCHD will design and build an 

electronic patient tracking system 

within WebEOC to be utilized by 

regional healthcare partners. 

• Update IHCC bylaws to 

incorporate regional 

boundaries represented and 

the primary/essential 

members. 

• Revised hospital requesting 

procedures 

regional boundaries represented and 

the primary/essential members 

Updated IHCC bylaws to incorporate 

the primary/essential members 

Updated IHCC bylaws to incorporate 

the primary/essential members 

Updated IHCC bylaws to incorporate 

the primary/essential members 

Updated IHCC bylaws to reflect the 

organizational structure and member 

information 

Development of electronic patient 

tracking system. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASPR's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #1: Healthcare System Preparedness Page 25 of73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

28



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

By the end of Budget Period 2, WCHD will have coordinated planning efforts that had previously been identified as gaps to prepare the healthcare 
organizations for an emergency. 
•Tas~l•:J:i!r:Engag~·ieleV<intfres[lonse and liealthca/ejpartnersto assess the probability ofhazards deemed likely to affedthehealth~are,deliyery capability within a geo. graphic. 
>:;;,;:,+1';·c;·<.-"'-.·:·.-.-,.; ... :.·.'-""'.<··-;>1U4'.Z,:\\0~"11~/~,,:,,.··--·_ .. ' · .·'-"'·'<;·•.o>:'<<il\i~'1•'·:<---•·: ·. · - - -· --- .- - ···_::_'·-'.·- <_·_ •:-:::.:_-·_·'~" ..• _ _.- . · · 
''adfa•a8cio:Prio.[itize;respcins.e:.and:.mitigation:a<;tj).\ities given.available resources. (See Pg 4) · . ·. ,.: :,.,. ••'''"' .,.;.,.o:;.,:, •. · . . . . . • 

1.1 -

Build $29,810 
As identified through a community exercise, the WCHD will facilitate the 
development of a Regional Water Emergency Restoration Plan. 

• Regional Water Emergency 

Restoration Plan 

June 30, 2014 I• Regional healthcare template to 

utilize for individual 

organizational planning. 
Task2: EilgagWIJ~'aJt:~care!fiartnerst~coordina.tehealthcare planning efforts with local and state emergencyop~rati6nsplanning to 
·:iritegratehea°!f[iid1i~E!{if~~·aiii~atlonprioritiesand:unique.needs into response and recovery operations. (SeePg4) · ·•· . · .... 

. iE!.i.U. 

Build 

Carson City Health and Human 

Services to develop a list of resources 

within Northern Nevada that serve 

citizens with Access or Functional 1 • 

Needs. 

Access and Functional Needs 

workgroup to develop a list of services 

available to citizens within the region. 

Reach out to the identified 

organizations to get them involved in 

the workgroup. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASP R's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012. 
Capability #1: Healthcare System Preparedness Page 26 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

29



Plan~ing ResDD~ce Elementi: Healthcare System 
disaster planning. (se~figs) 

. ->);~;:,;,- ;, 

Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Build 
WCHD will write a Regional Water 
Emergency Restoration Plan. 

• All regional hospitals will be involved in 

the review of the Regional Water 

Emergency Restoration Plan relating 

specifically to healthcare organizations. 

• Regional Water Emergency Restoration 
Plan 

A list of key resources to include: 

• Critical Medical Services 

Build $8,717 
WCHD will perform a community assessment to identify and 
prioritize healthcare assets and essential services imperative to 
healthcare delivery during an emergency. 

June 30, 2014 
• Critical medical support services 

• Critical facility management services 

• Critical healthcare information 
systems 

coordinateplaniiing~~a !Jre~~'~t~ti\le ITleasuresto assistviitl) th~protection ofpriorjtiied healthcare assets anclessential services (See Pg 4). 
,- :·::j/<f;ii/«/: .. -:- ;_-•-)!_\?F/;;:,1_-:c.,:_:: ·:·,c,:;;<:;:;;·: ... ·, - --~:..:./:·:~~-\'.>\,·;:,;:.-~X1J{})'·_-_:-,,::~;,•,,,- ... ·. :-·:_ .. ,,>S;.'r:'i~·"Y?.:F,' ,.,,···-- . _ <•>'/','. >1.:,._:•.-, •. ',-'; ·- ·_;·--·:.:·. ·'· .• 

Planni~;.Resource Elementl: ldentify~ncfc · 
prioritizeBritical healthcare assets and . f · 
essentials~ervices (See Pg.6) ~ttf 

' -- ' - - -.:v--
>>': 

Build 

Beginning in Budget Period 2, WCHD 
will perform a community 
assessment to identify and prioritize 
healthcare assets and essential 
services imperative to healthcare 
delivery during an emergency. 

Develop a list of key resources to include: 

• Critical Medical Services 

• Critical medical support services 

• Critical facility management services 

• Critical healthcare information systems 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASP R's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #1: Healthcare System Preparedness Page 27 of73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

30



PlannirikRes.ourceEle.rnen~.2:· Pdority 
;he~ltnca r~;j{s'§iifs and• essential.· seryi ces:: 
~fa1~8Hl~~i!l\::Sf~l"if~iKi/·.,.~.···<· ....•.•.•... ',ii~c'.~r·•·'··· 

Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

No Activity 

Develop a key list of equipment to include: 

Build 

By the end of Budget Period 2, 
WCHD will develop a list of 
equipment that can be used to assist 
healthcare organizations with 
essential services in a disaster. 

• 
• 

Specialty medical services 

Equipment that can provide power, HVAC, 

potable water, etc. 

• Redundant communications systems 

• 

Throughout the budget period, WCHD will work with healthcare organizations I I AAR/IPs of exercises and 
Sustain I $2,502 I during the planning and evaluation of exercises and the after-action reviews of June 30, 2014 events 

regional events to identify opportunities for improvement. 

T~s!1?:y[)~C:6Hf)i~[~~~iJ~c~~\~o/(*~sllring resp9n~~ie'56ur.ces·~ren.ot over allocated to multiple.st.al5eholders within the .cofn',;;J~ity· (See Pg 7) 
... ·,~-·--~""''"-""°". '-' _,, ........ ,,-,,Jg,;,;."-=·-'"·"'~·-,,,.. , ·--\.!,~•"cr.oJ·_,c,·, •-- -. , , , ··- .. ·.~ '" , - - -, . 

Build $7,087 

During Budget Period 2, WCHD will work in collaboration with Emergency 

Management to expand the Resource Management Requesting Procedures, 

which were developed during Budget Period 1, to coordinate with the 

Hospital Requesting Procedures for items that are not SNS (Strategic 

National Stockpile) resources. 

June 30, 2014 
Updated requesting 
procedures. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASPR's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #1: Healthcare System Preparedness Page 28 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

31



· Planriihg•Resouri:e•Elemint2: ·Healthcare resource 
coordination. (See Pg s)'.' · •.;:: 

Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Build 

Build 

Build 

work with the Inter-Hospital 

Coordinating Council to update the 

Hospital Requesting Procedures 

based on items identified during the 

drill during Budget Period 1. 

• During Budget Period 2, WCHD will 

work in collaboration with 

Emergency Management to expand 

the Resource Management 

Requesting Procedures, which were 

developed during Budget Period 1, 

to coordinate with the Hospital 

Requesting Procedures for items 

that are not SNS (Strategic National 

Stockpile) resources. 

• WCHD will work with the Medical 

Examiner's Office to revise the 

hospital annex to the regional mass 

fatality plan. 

• During Budget Period 2, WCHD will 

work in collaboration with 

Emergency Management to expand 

the Resource Management 

Requesting Procedures, which were 

developed during Budget Period 1, 

to coordinate with the Hospital 

Requesting Procedures for items 

I o 

I • 

lo 

All regional hospitals will 

participate in the reviewing process 

relating to the Hospital Requesting 

Procedures. 

All regional hospitals will receive 

training on hospital requesting 

procedures. 

Washoe County Resource Unit 

Leader will work with WCEM and 

WCHD to ensure the Resource 

Management Requesting 

Procedures identify processes for 

healthcare organizations to request 

resources other than SNS items. 

• Updated mass fatality annex 

specifically relating to hospitals. 

• Washoe County Resource Unit 

Leader will work with WCEM and 

WCHD to ensure the Resource 

Management Requesting 

Procedures identify processes for 

healthcare organizations to request 

resources other than SNS items. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASP R's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #1: Healthcare System Preparedness Page 29 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

32



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
that are not SNS (Strategic National 

Stockpile) resources. 

• Updated mass fatality annex 

specifically relating to hospitals 

··p1a.flnii:igi~~s{j'~ce ~lellie~f13h'~ddress.·healtilca·re .. •·· 
iQfcirrtiffifilihii~~J~(sg~pg s) ·· ··• · ; f•.•/ · · · 

Build 

No Activity 

• WCHD will work with the Medical 

Examiner's Office to revise the 

hospital annex to the regional mass 

fatality plan. 

WCHD will continue to provide JCS and HSEEP training opportunities to Health District staff, hospital representatives, Medical Reserve Corps volunteers, and 
regional partners. 

· Talik :E:'As~ist\viththepfi:ivision qf NationaFlnciaent Management System training for healthcare organizations in order to refine and 
. inipr~\/~re,spi:J.iJ~eJ~·~wi~dge;skills;.~pd abilitie~ in atcordance with the National Response Framework (NRF) .(See Pg 8) · 

Sustain 

;~.ia,n~Lri,ffii~1Ji;&~~i.~l~rj~?!~~J~j~iQJD;g~3 ~f.cl.[:~t~'.tV~~~~I No Activity 
> hea lthGate;g;!R$.@nd co rrect1MeJatt10 us; dSeeo;Bg; !3) • :: •. • ••. ;:•:.; 

r.1 ,!'1!6!1!'3!1!.IJ.!ft: 

coordinate JCS 300, JCS 400 and HSEEP training 

courses for healthcare system partners and WCHD 

staff. 

• Sign in sheets 

• Course evaluations·· 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASP R's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #1: Healthcare System Preparedness Page 30 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

33



Sustain 

Build 
$12,027 

Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

4;41.1.!.foj¥i.fi!ffithi4¥!·1i-!ii§ji!-1-ii-
. · . ·_· . .- · · .' Clbjectiv 

Participate in regional exercises on the planning team to ensure the healthcare 
needs are represented and met during the exercise objectives. 

WCHD will develop a HSEEP toolkit specific to healthcare exercise planning. 

June 30, 2014 

December 31, 
2013 

Exercise documentation 

Exercise kit 

:ras1~.~;~.utilizee~~e°"r~i'.Q~[~~·~x~t.J.~ti§ff,~ethqdtaevafuiite_e~ir~!.~i%~n~;.~f1uaJ..incid.eptY~j]~IT~~sr!Sef!Pg9) 

Build $9,892 
Identify critical equipment that can be used to provide healthcare 
organizations with essential services during a disaster. 

: :rask 3: __ : :.0Ad_d~reS_s1;fr_ndings tram gap -aria'iysiS __ a_ri:~::SU_bs·e_qUent corrective a·~i.C?_riS:-tp- revise pla-nning):t_t~inin·g, _and exerCises tci_:DJiniiTJize 
response gaps (ske Pg 9) 

tJEl.i.IJ, 

will participate in regional TEPW from 

the planning stages through the 

exercise or drill to ensure healthcare 

response capabilities have an 

opportunity to be tested. 

• 
Washoe County Emergency 

Management TEPW 

• WCHD will participate in 

Statewide TEPW 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASPR's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capabil'lty #1: Healthcare System Preparedness Page 31 of 73 WCHD ASPR07·13 

34



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
Build I • By mid-year of Budget Period 2, • WCHD will provide tool kit to 

WCHD will develop and distribute an regional hospitals and healthcare 
HSEEP exercise kit to regional organizations 

hospitals and healthcare • WCHD will provide training on the 
organizations, as the need was tool kit 
identified through the Nevada 
Hospital Association gap analysis 

• Throughout Budget Period 2, WCHD 

will participate in regional TEPW from 

the planning stages through the • WCHD will participate in regional 
Sustain I exercise or drill to ensure healthcare Washoe County Emergency 

response capabilities have an Management TEPW 

opportunity to be tested. • WCHD will participate in 

Statewide TEPW 

• By mid-year of Budget Period 2, • WCHD will provide tool kit to 
Build I WCHD will develop and distribute an regional hospitals and healthcare 

HSEEP exercise kit to regional organizations 
hospitals and healthcare • WCHD will provide training on the 
organizations, as the need was tool kit 
identified through the Nevada 

Hospital Association gap analysis 

• Throughout Budget Period 2, WCHD • WCHD will participate in regional 

will participate in regional TEPW from Washoe County Emergency 

Sustain I 
the planning stages through the Management TEPW 

exercise or drill to ensure healthcare • WCHD will participate in 

response capabilities have an Statewide TEPW 

opportunity to be tested. 

• WCHD will provide tool kit to 
Build I • By mid-year of Budget Period 2, regional hospitals and healthcare 

WCHD will develop and distribute an organizations 
HSEEP exercise kit to regio.nal • WCHD will provide training on the 
hospitals and healthcare tool kit 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASP R's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #1: Healthcare System Preparedness Page 32 of73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

35



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Sustain 

.:.>,-: .. _ .:;_::.', 

PlanningResour~eElerrlent4:" Bestpractice and le~sons 
lear~eci sharingf;(see pg.:J.D) ····· · · 

Build 

Build 

organizations, as the need was 

identified through the Nevada 

Hospital Association gap analysis 

• Throughout Budget Period 2, WCHD 

will participate in regional TEPW from 

the planning stages through the 

exercise or drill to ensure healthcare 

response capabilities have an 

opportunity to be tested. 

• By mid-year of Budget Period 2, 
WCHD will develop and distribute an 

HSEEP exercise kit to regional 

hospitals and healthcare 

organizations, as the need was 

identified through the Nevada 

Hospital Association gap analysis 

• 
By mid-year of Budget Period 2, WCHD 

will develop and distribute an HSEEP 

exercise kit to regional hospitals and 

healthcare organizations, as the need was 

identified through the Nevada Hospital 
Association gap analysis 

• WCHD will participate in regional 

Washoe County Emergency 

Management TEPW 

• WCHD will participate in 
Statewide TEPW 

• WCHD will provide tool kit to 

regional hospitals and healthcare 

organizations 

• WCHD will provide training on the 

tool kit 

• WCHD will provide tool kit to 

regional hospitals and healthcare 

organizations 

• WCHD will provide training on the 
tool kit 

WCHD will partner with Carson City Health and Human Services to enhance the Northern Nevada Access and Functional Needs workgroup and address the 
gaps identified by the workgroup. 

Ta~lcl: 'Partidp~fein t,~eplanning process thaf\dentifl1is'and.cl';'\ermines multiple care gptions.for indlVi~uals with special medical needs 
thatare notsuitableforniass care shelters arid require'careat'medl~al facilities durijfg incidents. (See Pg 11) · · · 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASP R's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #1: Healthcare System Preparedness Page 33 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

36



Build $19,471 

Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

WCHD will work in collaboration with Carson City Health and Human Services 
to develop a list of resources within Northern Nevada that serve citizens with 
Access or Functional Needs. 

December 31, 
2013 

Organization resource list. 

:. Taskz: palj;icJ.ilafeJp·.i:oordi(\at(iC!,pla'rin I nil wittij)G bl\c.hea lth·and ESF#6 .agencies to d.etermine· protocols for tlie transfer 
:-:-:,c, .• c.E:'.-/.,:~:-:::;~;.",.,-,,;c,,,,,4lS1),'.Jl11;-:<;,;,c,<:·.·~'1),,'.''''·''i'":"_<··- ,;,_.,,1;. __ ,,_::, .. _·:. ·:·.:- >'>'~'-''.,;.': -·:>'·'"'_._,,. ___ , __ ,:, _ ,,,_,._ ... :.-,,;'< '"·'·:>1-·- ~- ·· · .,__ -·: - .·.-.--. - . ":-'- · : --- ·--·-- . 
•betweeo[!iJ:ats!c.a)')'!•a r)d•h eal.tbc.afii.setti ngs:.du ri ng•a. disaster:x:(Se~•wg>11) ·. · · · ·. • :·:·:···•·. · 

11.1.ff'M 

Build 

Build 

WCHD will work in collaboration with 
Carson City Health and Human Services 

Nevada Access and Functional 
Needs workgroup to develop a list 
of services available to citizens 

to develop a list of resources within I within the region. 
Northern Nevada that serve citizens with • Distribute the list to regional 

Access or Functional Needs. partners. 

• Reach out to the identified 
organizations to get them involved 

in the workgroup. 

• Work through the Northern 
Nevada Access and Functional 

WCHD will work in collaboration with I Needs workgroup to develop a list 
Carson City Health and Human Services of services available to citizens 

to develop a list of resources within 

Northern Nevada that serve citizens with 

Access or Functional Needs. 

within the region. 

• Distribute the list to regional 
partners. 

• Reach out to the identified 

organizations to get them involved 

in the workgroup. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASP R's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #1: Healthcare System Preparedness Page 34 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

37



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Washoe County Health District 
· ASPR Hospital Preparedness Program (BP2) Subgrant # ASPR07-13 

Scope of Work (SOW) July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 

HPP.C:apabifity # 2 : .. Healthcare System Recovery 
" - -

Definition: fieg1$i)S~re syst~ryirecoveryinVolves the c9ll.~~§ra1:iory ".'ithEmergency r-.:Jariag~ijientand othet comm LJ~ity partners, { e.g.,:public health, business, and 
education] ~6.~e~ielop efficient processes andadvocate'fpr the rebuilding of public nealth; rnedical, and mental/oehavioral health systems to at least a level of functioning 
comparablE!'iopr~-incident levels and improv~d)~vels where possible. . .• ·.•. . . q . • • 

The focusJi(an effective and efficient return to h'6rmalcyZor a new standard of normalcy for the provision ofhealthcare delivery to. the community . 
• Goal: petermine whether re~overy is plannedfor·~spartof the preparednes~process as well as response: Communities think through how they can reinstate a level of 
functlooing comparable to pre-incident levelsicand impeoved levels where.possible, in the aftermath of a dis.aster. 
Perforrfi~'~ce Measures: per~ent:i)f:li.~.althcafe[coali.tions { H CCs) t nathave Bevel oped processes for short-term recovery.of hea Ith ca re service deli very and. continuity of 
busi nes·s•/o peratio ns;o,.Bel ow_ a re'tB"e'idata::el~ril'eiifrthat.ffi ust be. reported:c)f1itor this capability at rn i il"yea r. and end· of year: 
-- -- --:/·.')T\:1_ ·_f . a";.>\>:;;·/_ .. ---;--· __ ;-,'.;-<:·~--/'\./ : . :p.,.:<:;-·,.;,;,-: .. 
·Allocate.d .. u_n .. . mg::•:' • ._,,,1,,Uiiiii£'i'.3}\;51;!;:·:;:~:·:•• 

·---- ___ f'!'/:Ui 
HPJ>2;1:·.••.·l'lils;a'ii§!<~o~s:ef1'regioijalXJ[J'fisdictlO(lal Hazard '{(~lnefa~flffvA~alYsls. {HVA).been •co_l;i'duded withinthepiisl 3 years that fdeiitifies events and incidents thafmay 
lmp18tcthe ~b111w;tff)~n'•fi8c:·sh'-&g8iblsanci otlier healthca\:eorg~~i'z'aticins{Hcos) tci;.Cielivffi~~/;althcare? ··....... . . > · ... ·.. ':~ · . . . . · 

HPP.-2,2.: If yes,h~\/eLthoseipentlffed events orincidentsBeen asselfsed .as to.their parnntialimpacts on the hospital and other H_cc members, such as power outages, water 
outages,roa&iiuf~ges an·a;~upply chain disruptions? . . . .. . . . .. . 
HPP 2.3:,.lfcyes,have healthcare recovery need&•B.eeh identified and prioritizec;j.based oj\those p_otentiaJfiilpacts? 
HPP vi: bees the HCC ensure that Its hospitals'iand oili"eFHCOs are ·1ntegrateqcin the]Llrisdictibn's Emergency Operations Plan that is intended to meet prioritized e.ssential 
health Care recovery needs? '·· / _,,;;:;::.;;· . .. . ....... . ····.·. . . .. . '''''· . . .. . .. . 

•HPP 25:;COOP f'l~iJningz;L'.. ..:'.;.\: ~h'·· 
H pp 2;6\Ha-stli e 11tc,it5fffospit~lsj'•an?'.o.F.h~~;Hcto m em be rs im plerr\en.f~dJINb tested plans an'ci(#rote~es for cbntill uihg arii:J • sustaining. operatiiJns. (e.g., .·ii a rd en i ng 

<tacilities)N;ithin the_.pastthre·,;:years:;'°./\C · .... .-., ..• ..::. 
· HPP 2:i:''tfoes the frct·c6'Q'('dinate•wffn'.each•ofitShospitals and dtHe[Htosifoenhante meml:ie[.Suppart in planning'for .continuity-of aperatidr\s plans? 

HPP;Z.;8: •Has the l:IC.Cci:io[aihafod witli the State ari_d with itS}JC0slfO'develbp a. regior]al.recovery and·cQl"l~riuityfafOperaticins plan? 
HPP z;g,; Doestli•e·J1c0.cdofd~feits•lfospita Is~. and othef.;f:!Gds'.us.~ofElec:frori ic Meal8Jl•·ReciJras; and Ii nk theif(use.in their co nti nu lty of operations .p I ans? 
HPP:'2;io: .•... Do• H~~tl'iOspifals and'otffer H cos in co rporate!:gGii:iabce\'il'n m essagi ngto fi\efol,l/J'qrl<force ihto theiFcori~i!lUlty. of operatibns. i:lla"ns? 
HPP2.11: caAH1!'ciifi•ospifals'and other Hcbs t1laintail1 essential''fi.iridiori"s {e.g; col1tiriue.fi:iiJill for payment .,;,ith he'althcare insurers) ((J'isustalii revenues to operate.during 

:.;-,'i-<<{>/,·:,'.?-.<·-·--: __ ----:-:/-::;::_>:- . - __ · _ :.-'.'::;;;c;;-·c"·.0 <.·.-//.:"°' ·. - -___ .·_. -.,f<~;;,\-.,- ... ·.:,., .. ,,:· --.- · .·:-·.·:., -·>"- · · · . "· 
and after an emergency? ;.•;;,. 
HPP2.12:. l-las:fhe HCC successfUlly tested processesfoishor1:'teYrnrecoverwofhealfhcareservlce deliver.yand continuity of ?usiriess operations in an exerdse or event 
withinthe:.pastyear? : · ·. W'; '"' .r' . · ,_.,, · : <;: ···· '·' · .· · . 
HPP 2.1:3:.: lfyes,:has tlie HCCsucceSsfully.ill)ple'm~nted lessons learned an.d{cpfrective actionsfrom,.this exercise cir.event? .. ~•~ 

· Outcor1i~objective:.100%of i:~p~bility Y'iW'be·-achieved· by G/36/~iir.4.. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASPR's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #2: Healthcare System Recovery Page 35 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

38



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

WCHD will continue to coordinate efforts with the Skilled Nursing Committee 
to build their capabilities to recover from an emergency with limited impact 
to their patient population through plan development assistance and training 
opportunities. 

Enhance Skilled Nursing Facility and Memory 
Care Facility's ability to recover from an 
emergency. 

Business Continuity 
worksheet. 

During Budget Period 2, WCHD will support the identified needs of the regional Skilled Nursing Facilities by coordinating training opportunities or providing 
assistance with emergency response plan development. 
Tifsk':t:·"l'\tsess\tR:e'lrnpacfi:ifiiifi:iricldehtcih the healiffcare'systerns ability to deliver essential services to the community arid piiadt:iiiihealthcaie recovery needs (See Pg 
12:r·_:_:· -::i ::.:7,~:-:::;·:;;:.~:~lttil\'.1/~~'.;:-~~;~~}J"I::~1~~;i~~llif:!:F/:::;.::-:_~::: .. ;-;~-:~Q:1~:;.r-i:;~-,-~ .. -- -< .:- - " _ _-: - - . · . - -- . . :· - - - - - .):.o_;::~~::-t:t};.:::~::ri/)~:\?--:~ ;- -·-: ~ -- -

Build $13,911 
Assist Skilled Nursing Facilities with any identified needs relating to training or 
emergency response plans. 

June 30, 2014 
• Minutes identifying need 

• Training documentation 

Taskz: P[om'.oJ~"i~~~lt\'lCare orga.l'liz~tio,n~articipation instate ~nd/or\oca\ pre- and post-disasterrecoveryplanning activ_ities as de.scribed inthe _National Disaster Recovery 
·. l'ramewciiki(rii'i{i)glfiniordedi:deverag~'recoveryresources;:jjrograms, projects, and activities (see Pg12) · · · .· i' './ ·· · · · .. . . 

--.:;·:;:.-_>:,>;' -~1->\:VifrWil~:i-~!1;~;;;;;~::;;:::.::;.:-,: .'' ::·: -.:· ,' ;:_ :-: ::·~::·: ·:: ·:·.:·:_':- .;_~~: :;t :. :· » ''.:;_, ..... :·.'. ~;-_;._· 
·.Pia nni ngtReisoutce•Element'2:iA55essrri'e ritof .· <· :-;-:, _, :- ; ... ,_. ... -.:;·;<,·.<,:."'"''"~ .,;•,; •• -:_;.,.-; :,_,~:.----.. -: \"f <;::-'; ':»-·,,··.-'· .,; .,.: _· : ·:-- ;_' - --. . Ilea lthdfre?cfel ive :· :•recove' ~4l'~ee"as' i5st•d isaste r 
€~J{~j'.T~~:'''i!;'.g;:~'( .; :-.•··· ~if!;;c•x P .. _, ··. •.·· . 

Build 

Build 

Plann_i ng'Resclll~ce Elemenf3:~8&aTihcare organ izatiCJ n _ . . 
recoveryfa~Y1{t~~~e and P~~i'.~J~~E(ci~ fSeePgi~):i } .. ·? No Act1v1ty 

During Budget Period 2, WCHD will coordinate 

training and/or assist with plan development to 

regional Skilled Nursing Facilities. 

During Budget Period 2, WCHD will coordinate 

training and/or assist with plan development to 

regional Skilled Nursing Facilities. 

based on trainings 

requested 

• Training documentation 
based on trainings 

requested 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASPR's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #2: Healthcare System Recovery Page 36 of 73 WCHD ASPRD7-13 

39



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

l!E&JJJl&i.i.tik.12 

Build 
Creation of a worksheet to assist Skilled Nursing Facilities in the development 
of business continuity plans to ensure they are able to remain operational. 

June 30, 2014 
Worksheet relating to 
business continuity 

Task 2: Enc?urage healthcare organizations to identify the components of a fully functional COOP and develop corresponding plans for 
implemeritation.(See Pg 14) ,, . 

&A 

Build 
Creation of a worksheet to assist Skilled Nursing Facilities in the development 
of business continuity plans to ensure they are able to remain operational. 

Worksheet relating to 
business continuity 

Task 3:Ylf a disaster rioticeciln be pro3iaed, "cl~H:Jiealthcare organizaticinsl/Jithin communitiesihreatened by disaster and if requested 
andJ~a~ible, assi~them\Wi.th the·activ~tion:df(COOP such that healthcare: delivery to the comnfunity is minimally inipacted, (See Pg 14) 

- "'"""' - ,, - - •' . - ' ' -, ·.-.-._,, ·,_,,,,_ .. :'/'-•\ -.,.~_,~- .,' -,_,_,"' ,,_,,· ,' --'"- ,_ ,,,,, ,,, '·-·- ,'""""""' -- - -· """" "-· -----·-- ,. - '• "' - .,,, ' ' 

Plannilig'.R~squrce Eleh\~ri1:1: coo8plannJbg; > ; .••.. · 
'._-' ----:.·.-:,,.;:>::<.:·\di';• : . . :-. <' ,' ,-__ );._ - - :·'."'-<-~/(.<·-- - ,•h•/.>\··:'' 
assistaD.cE!•for.b~althcare·orga n izations (See Pg rift.· 

·•• - - -· ... 'N0''' . 

:.·--

Build 

By June 30'h 2014, WCHD will develop a 

Continuity of Operations 

worksheet/check list that will outline the 

essential functions and items to consider 

when developing Business Continuity 

plans. 

will receive training on the 

worksheet/check list. 

All seven Skilled Nursing Facilities. 

will begin working on Business 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASPR's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #2: Healthcare System Recovery Page 37 of73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

40



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Build 

Build 

By June 30th 2014, WCHD will develop a 
Continuity of Operations 
worksheet/check list that will outline the 
essential functions and items to consider 
when developing Business Continuity 
plans. 

By June 30th 2014, WCHD will develop a 
Continuity of Operations 
worksheet/check list that will outline the 
essential functions and items to consider 
when developing Business Continuity 
plans. 

Continuity Plans 

I• All seven Skilled Nursing Facilities 

will receive training on the 

worksheet/check list. 

All seven Skilled Nursing Facilities 

will begin working on Business 

Continuity Plans 

• All seven Skilled Nursing 

Facilities will receive training on 

the worksheet/check list. 

• All seven Skilled Nursing Facilities 

will begin working on Business 

Continuity Plans 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASP R's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #2: Healthcare System Recovery Page 38 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

41



Attachment B; Scope of Work by Capability 

Washoe County Health District 

ASPR Hospital Preparedness Program (BP2) Subgrant # ASPR07-13 
Scope of Work (SOW) July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 

HPp l:apa'bi.lit\l;;W'.§ : El1'letg~11c\f,@l)erati()ns .cC>cfrdi nati 9h 
DefJnitii)B:Emergenc'/Opeiatio.riscocfri:lim•~i@ifegardinghealthcare isth~~<J~ility for healthcar~,.9,.f:g~hizations to ehg<Jgewith'fncident·managementatthe·.E.mergency 
Operat\pn,s.center or witb.8p-scene )DSident rrianagement .during an.incii:l~«~to coordinate .information and resourc.e al location for affected healthcare organizations. This is 
donethr?ughrnulti,agersY,(~odfdiD·~!ipr representing ... ··· , , . > ... ·.· .. ·· . ·. . . ·.. • 

healthcare organizations or;by;irifegratingthis coordination.into"plaps and protocols that guide incident management tornake the appropriate decisions. Coordination ensures 
"'7;,,;.v,· -- - -------·+<>·· .. ·:··-'0w·:><"·":_-:,·:--<<:Y·'-'-· -----.·-· --_-----.. ·-i:'-'<'-'--"_-. ___ .-. __ :":-: : -- ____ ,,,,_:- - - - ·-

thaftne,healthcar~organiz~tions~cin'6iO~ntmanagement, and thep~bllchaverelevant and timely !~formation aboutihe siatus and needs.of the h.ealthcaredelivery system in 
the cofu;.nunityj:8Js'ien~ble~[tl~~lthcare oig~nizations to.coordinatl,'their.re~ponse with thafof;tne community response and according to the fiamework of the National 

''"y',/>>.· · _ --------~:'.1~\kf'. ::- · ... ::;)fi,':\'w·,·: · .'·:· .. ',-.<,.~<:.: _ ... _ _- -'·: .: ... :·: . ··._ · . _.-_.:.;;\·:.>" ..... _.·;:·· . · .. 
lncitleritManagerrientSys\"°i:n (NIMS):. • . - · ·. • 1·:·• · ·· · ...• :·· · · 
Goal1,i'tcfassessJfle:Je\leCat;wHlch'healthcare coalitions a"re organized arouria an integrate.i:IJncident Command.structure and make use' of this structure to coordinate the most 

co•-:.-'-_ '- -.·,o7!</'.~"_:, _. _ _.(•:•.·>'-"~--- .·-_ -_- ':".. ·,c, , , -,._ ... <. , , --

effective use:of,rgspurcesiih a'aisastersituation. • .. ,,c·: .,.,;;,·· :..,Yfl..::: ··:;:;; "' 
Pei'foimani:e iVJe~sures: RJrC:ent.ofli~althcare caalitidij'sf(ficcs)!i:nai: use a.n.iritegratedffjciclerii:fcommaridstrui:ture (JCS) to coordinate"operations and sharing of cr.itical 
resources amcin~iji\"(:;c org~~izations (including emergendv·manag~i';;ent arid public health) during disasters. Bel~w arethe data elernen"i~'that must be reported on.fifr this 
cap~biiity at rnid;yea~aT1cf~ndofy~ar. .. ·'' . 

. AIIC>C:ated:turiafrig: :>: • $37,475 . ' ' .. ,,,_,._,,,, .... "• ._ ... _ ,. ---

. i-IPP3 :l.: \'favefne HCC ·and it5\rriern IJicfr~ fuccess)'l.ll l'{ e1<ercised .f'rotoc?i]JCffifr\ot!fY]r\g non,partnerisl!ppcirt. agencies fo-adivate rn utu a I a id agreerrien ts for resource· sup po rt 
within the las;':ye~·r? · ••·· · · · > • ;;) :: · ·. .c;~,;'. . · .• ; 1 

· . ·. · " · .. · · · • · 

HPP 3.i: Has the!)l-H:t planned with partnefr;haspitalsand other HCdstci•iClejJtify each hospital ari,c!iolher HCD's maximurnpatient capacity to establish its baseline as a 
cOaHti_a-t-i? .... , -:·:,~;-~fE::, -·-< \,,.;_.:,: ,-.---.. ,--:-;.-1;,. -···-· 

'HPP 3'3: Has !h§:'/1cc coordiriateci•healtlica're'respof1seoperations•\Nith ~·ppfopriate patienttrahspart operations within the community, In an exercise ofevent, within the 
'~p~st ye~·f,7:;)·"/ - - --- · :r-<:.... ;;:.-,:0:::-?':r~::.-.:··· ... ·,:;;}*');;:: -- - > ;-- - :..·, :<;·~-:>." ... ;-.-:;;:~;~'.:i; - · · ·: -<:.-__ · __ .:.-::·'°/- ... _.__ · · .. -,, 

HPP•3(4!'.1f:Yes,whfcHofl:l'\eXdt1Dwi'ifg\fGncti~ere~essfully"C!em6ristf;aJed·bytheHcc:s)1osfJfra1~arid·ot-hei Hmsiii;t:~exeiciseor~nFi[lwhichthe Hcc participated? 
-·:3·:-4::1~~~i.ffirrager" - --·--.:-y;;;:. · '"''"'''>:.:: .-' ;'::.:;.';19;v0~,·: ,·:,.i:;fr;:4_.t1:: · ; •• :':,.,;;1~i; \·"· :-,·:~: , c.;;i.<· --- · 

··3,4;21:·t~eatrnerit·· 

3.4.3;;r:ral1sport 
3 .4'4',;f'racki ng 6f;patielJls ... ····•• · · 
3.4:S.'Documentati6rl"iofcare ••.• •·.--·· 
3(4·5 - Dff-ldadil)g 

···Hl'P 3.5: J:iasthe~ebeen«in HCC-trigger.ea.activation o1iithe.•.HC:~Hncidentresponse/wi\hinith.e. last year, event or exercise3HastneHCC successfully exercised notification 
pr6toc~lsf~/i!~7Wcispitalianil«)therHcoswithl~theJas~iv1i~'rc;;c;.G}~: .·· · !!'.~:,•• '. c.. · •· · · · · · <:~,; ·· · 

"<'·_-"-'.'· :·:--···:;..:,;;;,,.".·'"'''.-:~.:-.-.... -.- .... - -... -.. _.-.-,.· ,,.,.,,,,::::·.,'·:---'::'-/_';:',.',' :.-,:·. --:'.'·":''.'-".-,<_-·-'"•: .:'·'' -.~ .. ,_ ...... - -·-·: -· ,''' ,., .. , .. :-··-·./') 
HPP-3;6:. AreHei!'rriembefs•;integrated into an·HCC incTOehtcorn·rn·and.structure.such•.thatthe members are·includedin HCCRegional Rlans? . 

• ' ' - - •'' ;->, ;,-,-- -- '·, - .- - •' --· ... ---- - ' " .' .... '' ' .. -; - - ' .... _., .. , ... ' '' '"·" ' ' • ,, ' - ' - ;, :.-_ • ' ' ----"'"" 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASP R's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #3: Emergency Operations Coordination Page 39 of73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

42



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

·. (i~~~~~~~.~l~~tl\1~!;~qp.%'rifi:a,.p.a~Jl.~~~i,ll be. achiev~d••~x;~b.d/~q].4;, ... · 

WCHD will continue to assist in the expansion of existing plans to include 
healthcare organizations to ensure the continued consideration of 
healthcare needs within Incident Command or Emergency Operations 
Center. 

,-:>'_ -,: ;::::~::<~\-:::,'-._~-~" _:~::> ;:~,-:::L;~;:,~.:i~:-~;~_ ... ,., ... -_-_- ~:'-·- · · -_:·.·· . 
......... . ~l~rn~rip:: .l;lealthc~ f:.e.'prga nization .. · 
l[~~ai)iiltiqii ffiJWn~rgspon~e •. • (see Pg .. 16J. 
S7t'f:1~t0~·;'.'.;-/·::-:- __ :.; ·-·-:-:_'·::;::. >>_:·--:'.:::~; 1,j~::; ._ - · . --

- """_.., .. -,,, ... '.,_,•: •··y1''-;Y\'0"0:t'"'" '"I<-'·'-, · - ._.,..- • <;" ·- .·- •,. ·; - .- •• - - - • 

p1~~r:l\J:lpl~~$J?,\1~~$i];l~rrjeht•~:•·~~.alt~f~.~J;'.Rrgariizatiq~··.··. 
ilot:Itefil~ff8'.~nl'ivfCiJSedltioh~~91\aL~io'nJ::OJJXa rnatio n ..... ·.·· • ··· 

Sustain 

No Activity 

Healthcare organizations will have a revised 
hospital requesting procedures and resource 
management plans to utilize during emergency 
responses. 

Throughout Budget Period 2, WCHD will test the 
communication between the Emergency 
Operations Center and Hospital Command 
Centers at available exercises and drills. 

• 
• 

• Revised hospital 

requesting procedures 

• Revised resource 

requesting procedures. 

SO Ps will be revised based 

on AAR/IP identified items. 

• During Budget Period 2, WCHD will continue to test the Standard Operating Procedures developed during Budget Period 1 that outlines the interaction 

between the Emergency Operations Center and the Hospital Command Centers. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASPR's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #3: Emergency Operations Coordination Page 40 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

43



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
• By the end of Budget Period 2, WCHD will have revised and trained the regional hospitals and Skilled Nursing Facilities on requesting resources. These 

procedures are utilized during an emergency as a tool for regional healthcare organizations to request items needed during their incident response. 

• WCHD will work in collaboration with Emergency Management to expand the Resource Management Requesting Procedures, which were developed 

during Budget Period 1, to coordinate with the Hospital Requesting Procedures for items that are not SNS (Strategic National Stockpile) resources. 

• Personnel; Web EOC Resource Manager?? 

·tas~.h o.~.r\9il~'lff1i8si~~.~~'..i rnplerrient inforrri.atiOn)~.~.~Ipg:pt~,.c~sses th at SU PP6,~s·?Dg9i~g .comm u n icati§p. t.o. infqrm I oca I 
· l))aiiagemeilt,oftbe.16peratfo.nal.statu.s and res0u~ce:i1ee.cJ,;.;C!tl'iealt.hcare·orgar;i.izationsl(See pg;l7) .... · .. •./ ... /·. ,. ·· •. 

Sustain $21,509 

By the end of Budget Period 2, WCHD will have revised and trained the 

regional hospitals and Skilled Nursing Facilities on requesting resources. 

These procedures are utilized during an emergency as a tool for regional 

healthcare organizations to request items needed during their incident 

response. 

• Revised requesting 

June 30, 2014 I procedures 

• Training documentation 

Taskz:. Dl/iingariiiridoeni;JmplemeiltinformatiOn sharing proces.Sesthat supportscit1going.communicaticinto inf&rm healthcare organizations about the status of the 
, -,:_--;.'';,_-~---- ··;,_-. __ . _ _-,_ "''"".LJ;'-·· __ ._ ·_-·~-,·<··-- ·-·-:-"" · _ - ,"·: .; .- · .. _' >:· '.':"'°-:; ... '}•0y:· b, .'. ···'·:• , ", • • - _ :''"'• -'.·· .. ' • - • 

inddentanaaf.healthcare delivery in the community fsee"Pg 17) • · '' ·,, . . . .··. """f.sz:.:.:,;. · -·-··afg:;_:_tf.T\ - -- -- --".,. · _,,, ___ .,"·-··- · · ..... --~-- .. - · · ·· 

Sustain $6,264 

During Budget Period 2, WCHD will continue to test the Standard Operating 

Procedures developed during Budget Period 1 that outlines the interaction 

between the Emergency Operations Center and the Hospital Command 

Centers. 

June 30, 2014 I Exercise documentation 

Task3.: 'D~ringan in~ideo.t'~i.mplein'.el)tcoordinated infor111ation sh~ringprocesses thatproviae,relevant and timelyhE'althcaremessages to the tommLinity and other· 
. stakeildlders throullhaJii[8tJJDf6trii~lion.System (JIS) (See r.g,1[i7;)f,'' · '' ·' · · · .. ·-'''7 · · ·· · ' · · 

. 1.\21 I I I . i&lfo.1.11!% - . 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASPR's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #3: Emergency Operations Coordination Page 41of73 WCHD ASPRD7-13 

44



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
1.121.:.:.: 

• All regional hospitals will with the Inter-Hospital Coordinating 
participate in the reviewing process Council to update the Hospital 

Build I Requesting Procedures based on items 
relating to the Hospital Requesting 

Procedures 
identified during the drill during Budget 

Period 1. • All regional hospitals will receive 

training on hospital requesting 

During Budget Period 2, WCHD will work 
procedures 

in collaboration with Emergency • Washoe County Resource Unit 
Management to expand the Resource 

Leader will work with WCEM and 
Build I Management Requesting Procedures, 

WCHD to ensure the Resource 
which were developed during Budget 

Management Requesting 
Period 1, to coordinate with the Hospital 

Procedures identify processes for 
Requesting Procedures for items that are 

healthcare organizations to request 
not SNS (Strategic National Stockpile) 

resources other than SNS items. 
resources. 

During Budget Period 2, WCHD will worl< • All regional hospitals will 
with the Inter-Hospital Coordinating participate in the reviewing process 
Council to update the Hospital relating to the Hospital Requesting 
Requesting Procedures based on items Procedures. 

Build I identified during the drill during Budget • All regional hospitals will receive 
Period 1. training on hospital requesting 

procedures. 

Note: The page #'s listed in. this table correspond to ASP R's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012. 
Capability #3: Emergency Operations Coordination Page 42 of73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

45



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

PlanWing:Resoufc~El~.rnent•2!;[17cident·iRformation 
shariri~ (See Pg 17) ,~e()n't;;~·:·t .. 

Planning ~esoU~~~Ei~rn.e11t3: Community. notification 
of·healthcar~~f!ivery siat~s ·.(See Pg 18) · . ·•···.· :::.'«·:.·: .:> .. : ·: __ . .,., --·-,,: - . . "'.;LL:-~~ 

Pl<inning .Resdtl~f;£~iElei}l'.l:in1:l::ldentify available·:~;· ; '., :: 
.:,,,·'.·-·-:,:.-,_.-'-"-''.~if:'-. -··<-:•-,:i-",',: '""'': · .. -,.·Y • 

liealthcare'res<:)J'fii:es (See.Pg 18) 
Pfarining~'esquri:e ~lemE:!nt 2:. Resource rnarlagemerit 
implerii~o£~tion•(see Pgl8) · ...• · 

Build 

No Activity 

No Activity 

No Activity 

During Budget Period 2, WCHD will work 

in collaboration with Emergency 

Management to expand the Resource 

Management Requesting Procedures, 

which were developed during Budget 

Period 1, to coordinate with the Hospital 
Requesting Procedures for items that are 

not SNS (Strategic National Stocl<pile) 

resources. 

• Washoe County Resource Unit 

Leader will work with WCEM and 

WCHD to ensure the Resource 

Management Requesting 

Procedures identify processes for 

healthcare organizations to request 
resources other than SNS items. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASPR's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #3: Emergency Operations Coordination Page 43 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

46



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
•. Pl;:tl)'ling Resoufoe i:len:ien~ 3: Publlchealthresource 
• su~i>di'tto healthcarefoitgal)izaticins (se~ pg 1.9). 
f'lan~h1g<Resour~e•.Eii!itienf4i template rot producing 
inciaeritai=Ho'1r@la~s (se~Pg 19). · · · · · 

1 •. ·Eq1,1irfue'.tit~@ffi~~llrio!oii\l~i:j~Yeiltorym.a11agem.en(;c 
svsf~m~lr~~Ell~ii*~;fo; \•.·; •P'~•,;;H •1 ;.. •••..••. ·•·.··.···.·· •· • Y • •• ..•. · . 

~Pl1inrifrig.Resou rce Eiemeiitt: Process fo;e nsu re•,·•· . 

~i£~~f 2,filn~~~f~{~~~lij~i~g~e~id~}&j~)·~M~~~!egti~I .. 
f'1annfn'"'iR:esoi.l'rcefi:1eilierit2:•.Eva1iliatiO.riaria;··.· . :·:.)~ ;-_ _<·-:·<'.:\§l:¢.t~fii~&lfJ!;;;:;p,?,}5f,iy}S)j~~'.<:-::>t:-:: ~:: ·:·,>_-_-:-·;·- -.:>:;. :,·;; .:<:.:.: <; ::> ·';;:'I::.::·_- _ ' :_: ~: ! 

.. ~ori~10.gousipr.ogrra1;11!1.1;11provement·:s(See,Rg 20) 
><•,·:.-._-,.-~;~Ji;,\;J,t'.40~1;;,;;bj0£<?.i<''..-_;·,,•,·" .::: .;; -;_:-· ;-,_;-,·_-,'' '•: '.:'·· '' 

Skills•.&:rfai1Jil'ig"l'i''El:ialuatibYictrain.ing.;(see. Pg 20) 
,.: : -_,_. - :";~:.,o,f<'<'.'!n0+,,JmJ;'"";-, ·".• ~)- ·-"-:.;-·.:.;,;-'YJ<1:1-,';;. .. ,, . "-·--: 

No Activity 

No Activity 

No Activity 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASPR's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #3: Emergency Operations Coordination Page 44 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

47



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Washoe County Health District 
ASPR Hospital Preparedness Program (BP2) Subgrant # ASPR07-13 

Scope of Work (SOW) July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 

··.·l-ii:>F>Cap;1~ilitv2•·nS·:. Fa~.alityManagement 
Definititji:J'~'Fatality m anagementi.?JHe•a bi lity;~g[cqofCiinate:,V:itfrorganizatiory~)!e;~., laj'&.enfor.celll.e~t,cH~altfifa re, .em ergenev ·rriahagern ent, and Ille di ca I exaffii ner /coroner) 
;: ___ --.--.-,,,,, _, _. ___ -_,._-.· --. ,_,.,,,.:.--.-:_:::·-,-•·-c··;GJ1.,,1,·-.- -·'''·<·'--.,."_ .--.<,_-- c··-"·'f\L:~-,-,:p------- ___ --.·_ -·,·"'-'·•·'<->•···· -·_ ,,_-:"·--_1·1<',"·''''·-~"· ,- ·- <';:' to ensw~th~ prgperrecovery, handling;dde,ntificaticip/~tpansportation, tracliing, stl:lt~ge,.and tlisposalofJjuman remains and.p~:rsonal effects; certify cause of death; and . 
. facilitate access to mental/behavioral health'Servicesf~(family membersj~sporideirs, and survivo(s of a~lncident. Coordinatldii also includes th~proper aha.culturally 
sensitive storage of humanremains during periods 6fincreased deaths at·.Health.care organizatioris:during an incident. 
Goal: To determJ~ewhetJ:lerbealthcar{'!.cdalitions coordinate with l~ad,e.rS'/officials who manage(fafalities, as well .. as othei]urisdictional. partners, to develop a shared 
u n d ersta lldi ng of,rioles af;ci::~esponsibiiltles related to fatality ;management. · · · · ' · · · · 
Performance IVie~'S'ures: f'erd2ritofhealthcarecoalitions{HCts}'fliatha\/e systemsalid.J'.lrcicesses in place tD mana'ge mass fatalities corisistenfwith their defined roles and · 
responsibilities:Zi.ileiow.ai8;.the dat~ elements that must be report~d on for this capabjlify,at.mid-year and.end of.year. 

li.ilocatea£tt'i1dffig: 
....... -.. -···""'"''f'·;;''"''•'".".,c •. ,,-.. ' ,. ... ~ •·" -

HPP 5.~:.ttas tlie 1-1i:cidentifieciffieir6lesfaiicFrespoilsibllities 6f niembef6rg~niiatlons and oth~rCl(eyparfners for managing.r;,ass fatalities, including but not limited to the 
followih~; ··· ·· · ··· · · · ·· · · · · · ·. · · · 

5:LFclaentifying response actions ofHCG:.fDenibers; including local health departments, localemergency management, hospitals, other HCOs, and other key partners 
(e.g,

1
:funeral directors, ccirciners,,riiedical exa~-lners) . ·· . . · - . . 

5.Lic ldentifyiligwho is responsible fcir each of the Fatality.Ma!lagemenffunctions 
5,1:3- Identifying legal/reg~lai;o~yiauthorityof member organiiat(ons and key partners thatgovern fatality mahagelllentin the local jurisdiction, including any necessary 

waivers (e.g. detelrninirig cause:!dt}iieath, identification and storagi/\6hem;;1ns,family,notificatjon, burial permits and vital records, etc.) 
HPP s .. 2: Has thl'hHcce·st~hlished systems and processestorifal1age rnassfatalitiestorisistentwith its defined roles and responsibilities/including but not limited to the 
followihg: ::;• · · - ·· · 

.;5.2'.1- Ensurirlil::thaf systems-and processes<l're aligbed.With tlie.'IOC:al jurisdictionanEbP. o!Jatality •lllanagementplan 
5 '..2.2. - Id entifyifig critiffalpathways/trigger .pdiritSfof resp.arise actions 

· 5.23' RYciQidjlj[(trainiM'!l'on fatality. managemefif:'ci:ii)Jdi11atron _ ·. 
5.2:41fiE5fablisHing~comniunii:ationsystellls'amOhg•menibers.a'ndkey.pa'i;\ners,ir1Cludingmental/bella'vioral hea.lth pf()fessi'drials 
52;si:oevel6ping cancej:ffsof operafions.ar\Oistandard.operating·proc~d~ces .. 

. HPP 5,3~:'flasthe Hccestablished systems,andl'priisesses•1:a.manag"asurg@'.ofconcerned cifiieriweql.l~sting information abdut missing familymembers; .including how to 
· contact!*iie responsible agencyfpr.farnily;_S_up¢·1iit,and protocols to"erisure;lt§'HCOs can conneEt withfamily assistaQce andjor family reception; ci"nters? 
· HPPS.:4.:, Has the HccsuCC:essfllllyJgsted:itssystems and processesfcir,managing massJatalities)dUrihgan exercis.eior.eliehtwithin the·past year? 
HPP'S:s: Has.the;HcC:.suci:essfdlf\f'irnplemenf~d lessons learnec'l:'·arra'ccirrectlve actiorWrC>rfftthrr.exercise or event.l:Vitliin the past year? .; 

Ou.tcome Obje'ctf\/fi:,[0o%ilf:.capabifiiy.will be achieved.by3Gf30/Z014. 
,,,., '"' ' - ,- "'''''""''"''' - .-, ,,., ..... ~-,,,~,,-,- '"' .. '" ', ' ' -, -· -·-- ' -, - "-·-'• -, ' - --- -.-.··-' - . 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASP R's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness'', January 2012 
Capability #5: Fatality Management Page 45 of73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

48



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

WCHD will collaborate with WCMECO (Washoe County Medical Examiner 
Coroner's Office) to continue to developing fatality management capabilities 
within the region with the continued development of the Northern Nevada 
Disaster Victim Recovery Team and community Family Assistance Centers. 

Washoe County will have a cache of personnel 
specially trained in fatality response to be able 
to assist whether it is within the Family 
Assistance Center or the recovery of human 
remains. 

• Family Assistance 
Center Annex 

• Training documentation 

of NNDVRT 

1. WCHD will review and revise the Mass Fatality Hospital Annex developed during FY 10-11. The annex outlines each hospitals capability to store human 

remains including the equipment and supplies needed. 

2. WCHD will continue to support the objectives of the Medical Examiner's Office and the development of the Northern Nevada Disaster Victim Recovery 

Team. 

)Iask1:l::;:'Rtiof;tCi:;~H,al)dcien('af~iSfhealtn2afe organiZatiohs y;ith'determining the amount of morgue space that is availabletothemdurinll 
'~~ti'.bi1'¥/~~~~~~R1~~tg~~;and cleveloptli¢processes to requestsupport frcim local and state agencies. .· ·· 

1.121.1.:.:_1 

Build 

Washoe County Medical 
Examiner Coroner's Office will work 
together to revise the Mass Fatality 
Hospital Annex to address items 
indentified during the Operation Urgent 

All regional hospitals will receive 

training on the new Mass Fatality 

Hospital Annex 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASP R's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #5: Fatality Management Page 46 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

49



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Pl~11ning Resourc~Element2: .. H~althcare organization 
hu~an remain:~urgeplans; (See Pg22) · 

Equiplllent&.T.ecllhl)il)gy 1: Mortuary storage 
equip merit anchsupplies,. (See Pg 22) 

' -- - - - •'*""'''''' - ",-,,,c 

Build 

Build 

Solidarity community exercise. 

WCHD and Washoe County Medical 
Examiner Coroner's Office will work All regional hospitals will receive 
together to revise the Mass Fatality training on the new Mass Fatality 
Hospital Annex to address items Hospital Annex 
indentified during the Operation Urgent 
Solidarity community exercise. 
Medical Examiner's Office equipment to 
help support a response to a mass fatality I Equipment 
event within Washoe County. 

WCHD will develop an annex to the Statewide Family Assistance Center Plan, developed during Budget Period 1, to have specific regional considerations 
identified. 
Task 1:• Prior to an incident, assist healthcare"'cirganizations by coordinating options forsurges of concerned citizens and their direction to the appropriate location for family 
assistancEiWhenthese surges arrive at thefacilityseeking family member information. (See Pg 22) 

Build 

• WCHD will work with regional 

partners to develop an annex to 
the Statewide Family Assistance 

Center (FAC) plan to include the 

coordination with hospital FACs. 

coordination with hospitals for 
information and logistical support for 

family members of the missing/deceased. 

I• FAC Annex training with identified 

community and hospital FAC personnel tp 
ensure accuracy of information. 

FAC tabletop exercise with regional 

partners. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASP R's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #5: Fatality Management Page 47 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

50



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

WCHD will update and revise the hospital requesting procedures to include a "personnel" sheet that can be utilized to request mental/behavioral support at 
the healthcare organizations. 
·:Ta'51(.1:2ca6hlinafetlieopti0n's)fbf:merital/Behavioral support for healthcare organizations during disasters which cause a death surge 
:':i<.,;::;:ps·;:;;:,?!: .. s;<;·:;«J,;:~:,,c;~~:y-:-,,!<·-~·-->~_- .-·:· :'Y;(i·;:;h'.:'<.>/>,;.:,;. /-; -- ·_· - .. -. _ · "' · ~ , 
:•Jn~olliing"'alla[g~a1n'0uritof liui$ar(rnr'nain5: :· (See Pg 23) . · . 

111.1.M 

Build 

Build 

Determine the activation procedures for 

NNAMHS for supporting a Family 
Assistance Center. 

Revise ho5pital requesting procedure5 to 
allow for the requesting of personnel or 

mental/behavioral support. 

MOA with NNAMHS. 

Revised healthcare requesting 
procedures. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASP R's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #5: Fatality Management Page 48 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

51



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Washoe County Health District 

ASPR Hospital Preparedness Program {BP2) Subgrant # ASPR07-13 

Scope of Work (SOW) July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 

····· ·.· · .. i;ii:>~·capa~ili~v #.$:(1~t9trri~1:ign·sharrng•.·· 
Definition:. 1.nforijiafran:rnirfingistlie\al:iility .to condufffou ltiju,C,i§f[i~tional; mu ltidis,ciplinary ~Jic~ange ofpublic health and medicaLr,elat~d information and situational 
al/Jareiiessbet~ile[\the.hitaltl1caresystem and local, st~i:e?Fie~~raftribal, and territ.i:!.r;ial 1¥teJsofgovemnf~ntanalheprivate sector: This includes the sh.~ring of healthcare 
information:tgi;.9Ll~h'rbutinecoordination withtbe Joi~fJOf?rl11ation System fordiss1'n:iirati6n to the lo~.:3),sfate,. and Federal leyels of government and the community in 

. preparaticih tifi"and response to events orindi:!entsofijjubljc health and medical significance. · .· ·. · · · 
• Goa1:.Ltfr(d eterl11il)e .w hetherh ea@ca(e c'daiftl'l:fos•have!\he capability to r1rair)'iain atb m man .QIJeiatirigjp.ictu re du tingsl.l rge•i:!f:)erations. 
Performance Meas~res.:•.;:J7he'Pe~(Jrn]obi:e Measureslhatwill beusedJo•capfureal/Jardee pra~ress•fol/Jard buildingthis cap~bility is: . . . ·.·.. . .. / · .. 
o H p~'.specifi c f'~rformance;Tvi ea~uf~~:Percehf ()f .healthcare, coalifighS'{~ GGs)that ca.~· co ntinµg·~~i\;.rnon itorEsse~tia I El emellts of Information ( EEis) and ·.demonstrate the 
abilitytc'electropW~T1v;s~iJslp~l!~:x~~.Qd r~cei~e.data fromca.alitid~f~ernb~is to infpriTi;a C(Jihil{on Operali~g Picture 
•JdihtHPP'PHsPirP~if~f(Ti:§[lce;Measr:fre: PercentoflocaJcpartn~rs·tnat reported requ'esfedEssential Elements of'information (EEi) to health arid medical lead within the 
r·e·¢iD'§Sted :ti~-.e·fetm~:~s·:,~·~'.~~.::·:.\::;,-·>.:<::s·.>:·"·····.·; . . . _ ,:_.-,,/:-_·-- ::_--·--_···'---"_-~_:_;·,:_·__ _ - -- --: :· _:._~: /·. ---·._-.· _ __,, _ -. ·,. ._, - --. -
,Below arethe,dafa.elemi.iitsthat must bereported on;forthis capability at mid-year"and end of year. · · 

j\llocated'fiih~ipg: · >$38,880 

• 
HPP 6::[:'~HastheHCC identifiede~~~nti~l'el~'r'i)~[lts ofTriformatioh'(EEls)t~~ftneHCC me miler~ must report for specifictypesof events to inform the common operating 
procedµre7 ExarnplesocEEI ~,at~indtlde: · ··· · ·· 
-Facilityoperatingstatu~.;,, ; . · 
-Facill\y structural integ(i.fy .;. · .•. , . . ·. ··•· 
-Statllsof eva.cu~.fions/shelterj~ place operations 
-Critical medi~al~serv.ices(E!,g./critical care, trauma) .. · . . .·,·.... . .. ·. ,,. ' 
-~_C_~iti_~al _·ser,V_i~_-¢f~f~_t_u:~.'(~.-:-g? -~ledri __ ~i-wate_r,._s~ __ nit~!i_on-,:~h~·atihg:' _v:e_~tilatio_n_, __ -~i,t;co~tj_lt,~op!_~_g) _ __ ~ _-_:'-- ~-.- _ _ ___ _ 
;ctitical.healtllC~reci~ll~e.rv status. (e.g., surge s't.atus;i~~d status/~eaths, llledi.cala~d pharmaceutical sµ'pply and medical equipment) 
'Staffing ita~q's);' .·. . .·· · .. ·. .;J • ;,'. ; •...... ·. . •.···.·• .. · ....•.•.. · · · · ·' 
-Emerg~ncy0eoi.ca 1. Services status involving;patienttca.ns port, fracki ng .and avai I ability 

•., :~::~8~J~~:~~~~:i~~nc~:i2t ••... · . c,,Ls . · ·' .. : . . . h • . 

· HPP i;;z; lfE El•d.afa has il'e)e.Qlille8tifiea/.has•th~-i:icC.defi n ed. data:usage ar/8faC:cess· polities fof,,ti'ie EE I data? 
.HP,i!;6'3:· .ociesffl~f'ift:>Ha\leie'i:f~systems and .. proC:e5§:e~;J8;J;rnt~~ectio~llyieffiBi,andr~~eth~W .. ifata? 
ij:(~p'.6A:.CaniJie'fff(i;!jshilre basif.epidemiologfcal.arrd/o~.di#Jcal'i:l.ata willi.releyaJ;\J;llocal;,8ealth.depa.rtni.ents1f' 
HP!'. 6.5: :'\t;ei11i:e.'.Htcl'[le:111.8.ers ab le to rep6fi;ttie•Jd_e5iifie'l:i E i:;1sceJectronicaJJ~•wrnfit&@•e:trrii:eframe (li:f!Ji'sledas eyid.enceci•&,y5peffO:(ma n ce du ring ei<ercJses orevents 7 
Hi!I' 6:6: .ls'.tlieli'I C:C a blefo .reCeivea nd. qiiicliiy?:proce?Si;inir-i~EI •dafii tb prDVi ffeitfin~Jy; rel~va nl,.ani:i· act1o~able .h ea Ith ca ierhformatioh.to the· com man o~erating· picture as 

·,:~:~.id·e:nc;~·ciUi~i1~~ijci~h,~~r-n; &~~d~ rfr1g:e·x·erc1ses<ti'2~~v:~'~t~?2;;1~::n:)\,.:·;'.·;:/::'.''.' .. .>::. -__ ,_;-_ : __ ,~;_:;~:-'.~L~,:~~'.~~~iI?:'t-~::-i:_-::: _ · ~-::-.~·:.~~--~~\ :::~tr~~t-'::-:":_:-:_._:::: -: ._ -- ·-_· -L~;_;;::;:-::·:-·:.''./:_\;:7<-· · · · · .- __ -:-:--- ·:.:::t· ·· · -
HPP•6:7! Hastne HCC successfully implemefiffil Jessoii'slearnedarid corrediVe'actio'fifri:>m this el<ertise'Or.eventwithin the past year? 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASPR's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #6: Information Sharing Page 49 of 73 WCHD ASPRD7-13 

52



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

i~~;':i~1~;~11;D~;iti;r{ff: ::>~~;·t I·.'.~;:- , ... ,~ . ,. ·:'7 ":·_:;2'.:r?~~~}':<:,..,- __ ·<;~.- ~,iJ.9J~J;_~_E_Ri::oRMAf\JCE:MEAsuREs·~ 
>- ..:_-J:~:.!'C''.:.: .. ';_:::,""::_Vd•,'< ''"'··- '!',•· ;•' •"V•>;> ~~-;,, · -~~:•,,, 

'iH~l'.;~1;1~y:~>.<:f,e1n:J,aco,inc.1aem1p1annea•eyenttexermereportea.r6r;de.n1011stratilJr\,ofthe Information Sharing Capability; please answer the following information: 
i\1:1 i;l~.'l'F.ii;'fi)6~2iii::~~n~'~~ciairit'/iila nriea7eve~f/ei<eri:ise· litiliZed cih d emonsfrcatedJOne;iJ.c1rnore fu ncJiio n (s) within the: 
::1H:~g~eJ;iEPlG~2-~:2:t·;t.Jfe~[11f~OO'PX~r;:_Cif:1·a_c_a1;·p:a_Ef8·-~r.s:~th-~'ffECeived-:a. requeS.t:for:,;E_EJ"fCfeiJ'dMln_ato(J·--
;\l;IR!i.~i:tl;!EH,6i213::ctl:le!n)]i'ijo1itaflocanpiiii:r\er51tiiafrejJarted requested .EEi to the health and medical lead within ·ihe·requested;tiineframe,(numerafor) · 
':1f~P,~!jl;IEl?i6}2:ii:r;r~e!f,eql'[§s!:for·EEioccufrei:l'dUringa(select one): 
"l-il'l';l'flE.p,c6.2.;5: ;rb.E•!t\ij:l~)Ofincident/exerclse/planned event upon which the request for EEi was based 
•Hefi.,P,ttEP:6:2.6: other specified·.· 
Y;Hjj.jj'jiiH El' 6:i:i: ;r[le ;f1ame ahh'e i ncid erit/plariried event/ exercise. 
•.iHjjpipl;IEp:6:2;s: Jile•ila'.te:.of.theJnddent/planriedevent/exerdse 

Hj;p,fil;IEP;6';2.!J: Ji:\'eiil'lirob·e~cife'achtype oflqcaLpartner that responded to the request 
.··ttjjJ!i~fiEl'~6i2;19!•i@}!l1'~~~[e;O[gan izations .• ·1• i · 
. Hl'.fi;:Fii;i~jj!6fi'li1:•i8'i!'.aJfi\'.i!are•~oalitions·:•. it!'•·' 
•1i-lejj~g8i;'i>.i~1'ill!t:rtilfa~.~1(Hiea1til·•bepaijinet1i5:. •·· 
·· H 1'e:e1;1ep;5;z,i3i:i:o.t@ri5pecmed. · 
, H jJ j;,jjl;i EPi.i;' iii il!:~tb}t:iertn li m e rJc • . 

· Hfij:icf!)'iel'l~~2:l!s:•:f6ei'[eq!Jesting entitY'(e:g:;'h•eillth and medical lead at the State, sub·state regional, or local level). 
'H l\i>Ei> B ~p.£i;~:i':1i;':';8the r•re q lJ es ti ng. entify i; p ecifl e.d 
;:1:181'~J3.iilgBl_(;'~fil:t:i!\\1m~~ltYP.~(s) qfEEI reqllesj:ed: •. · 
B~P,~~~[t'~fil~tt3:;l:l'tifa~;t'{P,~ofl:f.o~ pthei'Fclrnh1unication syste!Tl used by local partners to report requested EEi 
1HPPiP,Hii116~ll\20!:~.Barri~rs/challeriges:fo.sti6inifting •. request.eaEEFv./ithin .the requestedtirnefr.aine .• (Pleasedescribetypesdf local partners exper.iencing challengesand
t~p~s dt\E'~ll~'i\'i5!~ii'61)1ih~<:J.wiili1il\t~'Cio~~~ed'.i;IJ1eframe): ., < .•. . · > • •• ''/< · · • · . ··. · . · . ·· .. ·. • .· · 

•'Qciic!lri..~ ol:>]ei:tive: 100%'~ai 'e'.f ~:~bi lity ~ill i:l~a~hieveci .·by 6/30/2014, 
;', .. '.;',;,-;;,:·.-' ""\f;:·.;•:.-:: ·-·i---. ,.- ·'·/:·~ -:-:;. '. ·-'·t·-:-;·:·>:·,':'.-:''······:,c;_-· .. "_,,.,_. .. - -·-. : . ;· :- '-'· ·'-'"'''.' -: ~~-- ', '·: , - -_- - ,,,· 

WCHD will collaborate with regional partners to research 
and develop tools for regional information sharing. This will 
enable continued communication during emergency 
responses. 

A Public Warning/Public Information regional 
plan that has an annex specifically for health 

and medical communications. 

• Health and medical annex 

• Electronic patient tracking 

system 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASP R's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #6: Information Sharing Page 50 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

53



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

1. WCHD will participate in the Nevada Public Warning/Public Information Task Force. 

2. WCHD will build an electronic patient tracking system and train healthcare representatives on the system. 

3. WCHD will continue to test the Standard Operating Procedures developed during Budget Period 1 that outlines the interaction between the 

Emergency Operations Center and the Hospital Command Centers. 

Taski!'fileforea n jncldent;.i~~ntify;tni-?iessential elements ?f inciden~spedfic healthcare. ihfor".'atipn that are ti11JelX, relevant, actionable, 
·· andycaqbe reasqri~8i~ci~lt'L~~eii1'.~~~ing;thel'e~po~se, [Seej'g24);;i;;;;;:. · '-- .;,.1;;;~.~ss< · . · j;;Y v ·· . . ..... 

I.I: j_l_J.( 

Build 
Through the Public Warning/Public Information Task Force, WCHD will assist in 

$11,465 I the development of a regional plan that addresses before, during and after an 
incident communications. 

June 30, 2014 I PW/Pl Regional Plan 

·Task.2:.',.Before, during, and .a.fteraHintid~nt;'ITtilize cobrdi iiated .i~f?rl1)ati6 nsha ring protocols tofeceivea rid tra nsmitt.i 111 ely, relevant, 
aodLildlqnabJ.e.io.cii:ie!JtJ{~~~cfoc.bea.lfne!'areinformation t0foci.dent1o:ii3fl~ge[l]ef1t·during.resp0Mi1i:lnd,r~t~very .. (see;8g2~li;··.• .. 

Build 

Build 

0 

Nevada Public Warning/Public 

Information Task Force. The task 
force will be developing templates 

for information sharing to the 

public and regional partners in the 

event of an incident. 

o WCHD will design and build an 

electronic patient tracking system 

within WebEOC to be utilized by 

regional healthcare partners. 

• Participation in Task Force 

meetings and applicable sub

committee meetings. 

• Development of Public Health and 

Medical Public Warning and 

Information Annex to the Washoe 
County Public Warning Public 

Information plan 

• Development of electronic patient 

tracking system. 

• Training for all regional hospitals on 

electronic patient tracking system. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASPR's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #6: Information Sharing Page 51 of73 WCHD ASPRD7-13 

54



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

• Throughout Budget Period 2, WCHD 

will testthe communication 
Sustain I between the Emergency Operations 

Center and Hospital Command 

Centers at available exercises and 

drills. 

• WCHD will participate in the 

Nevada Public Warning/Public 

I 
Information Task Force. The task 

Build 
force will be developing templates 

for information sharing to the 

public and regional partners in the 

event of an incident. 

• Throughout Budget Period 2, WCHD 

will test the communication 

between the Emergency Operations 

Sustain I Center and Hospital Command 

Centers at available exercises and 

drills. 

• WCHD will participate in the 

Nevada Public Warning/Public 

Information Task Force. The task 
Build I force will be developing templates 

for information sharing to the 

public and regional partners in the 

event of an incident. 

• Throughout Budget Period 2, WCHD 

will test the communication 

Sustain I 
between the Emergency Operations 

Center and Hospital Command 

Centers at available exercises and 

drills. 

Exercise AARIPs detailing the testing of 

the SOP 

• Participation in Task Force 

meetings and applicable sub

committee meetings. 

• Development of Public Health and 

Medical Public Warning and 

Information Annex to the Washoe 

County Public Warning Public 

Information plan 

Exercise AARIPs detailing the testing of 

the SOP 

• Participation in Task Force 

meetings and applicable sub

committee meetings. 

• Development of Public Health and 

Medical Public Warning and 

Information Annex to the Washoe 

County Public Warning Public 

Information plan 

Exercise AARIPs detailing the testing of 

the SOP 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASP R's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #6: Information Sharing Page 52 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

55



Planning Resourc:e Element 4: Healthcare 
information sharing withthe public (See Pg26} 
Planning Resource Element 5: Bed tracking~(?ee pg 
aJ )~ 

.. Plannil'lrdlesource.Element 6: eatienttfatliing.(See 
Pg 27). ' : .. 'sf 
Planni.~~ ResourceElem~r1t7: P~tient•fgE6fcJ .tracking 
(See Pg28) 

' . .. 

Eq~ipment &Technolci~l:H~~li:hcare·information 
syst~ins (See?g 26} · . 

. Equipment & I~?'1nology2: Bed tracking system (See 
Pg27) . !'" .· . ·· .. · . . 

'Equipment & TE!chl'lology 3: Patient tracking systeni: 
(See P 2·i') · • ·.·e' ::':-g .. · .·,····· 

... Skills &'ff~iningl: Bed.tracking system trainillg (See 
Pg27) 

Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

No Activity 

No Activity 

No Activity 

No Activity 

Build 

No Activity 

No Activity 

Build 

WCHD will design and build an 
electronic patient tracking system 
within WebEOC to be utilized by 
regional healthcare partners. 

WCHD will design and build an 
electronic patient tracking system 
within WebEOC to be utilized by 
regional healthcare partners. 

Sustain $0 
I 

WCHD will continue to build upon the purchase of 800 MHz radios for 
regional partners and have monthly communication drills, which include 

• Development of electronic patient 

tracking system. 

• Training for all regional hospitals 

on electronic patient tracking 

system . 

• Development of electronic patient 

tracking system . 

• Training for all regional hospitals 

on electronic patient tracking 

system. 

Monthly test documentation. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASP R's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
CapabHity #6: Information Sharing Page 53 of 73 WCHD ASPR0?-13 

56



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
emergency responders. 

TaSl_<,"-~_:!lB'·e~f6fe;: dU rin_-g)~;-~-:nd_--~~fter _a_ n·_ i h'ci_dellfo_rr~-~-~-ri~f: have retf~·~aa_nt-·p ro_c~·ss:~s __ ' _a rid _sVSteiTIS __ to: ·comm u _n i~ate the status of the incident 
and ~b'el~t~tus of;tbe,2oinirllinity[f(eaJthcare deliv'i;'~i~;JJe.a !tbca re arganJzati.o ns •.. (see-Pg. 2af ;,.;,.,,, •• : ·""' , .· . . 

WCHD will develop a Standard 
Operation Procedure for Sl<illed Nursing Facilities relating to the 

Build I Nursing Facilities relating to the 800 use 800 MHz radios for 

MHz radio training conducted during redundant communication 

Budget Period 1 during a disaster . 

•.. Equipfii.:il'lt8iTect:inol~g\' 1: 'lnterOperai51ecommunications 
s\i~tems (See Pg i9F"'' · - · · · ·· · No Activity 

Skills &•Trainingl: Cominunicaticrn Training (See P.g 29) . _.,, .. , __ , __ - - ' -- . ;.,-_ .. -, __ , __ _ No Activity 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASP R's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #6: Information Sharing Page 54 of 73 WCHD ASPRD7-13 

57



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Washoe County Health District 

ASPR Hospital Preparedness Program (BP2) Subgrant # ASPR07-13 
Scope of Work (SOW) July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 

HPP Capability #lo : IVledical Surge 
o. e.finitioi\:Medicalisurge:isthe abifit~!f6':j:irovide adequate medical(e~alualioh and care·during events that exceedJhe limits of the normal med.ical infrastructure of an 

'."''-'-'·'•.',• -,·,: , -e.,;:;oi:,,;.,"";••," /'";':''.'': '•O\:.:'"'<:~'<;/._''i'-'<.-<- '·,'. •' - __ ,, " ,·,,'- , '-i·;"',''V"~-r'- •---- ·_· ··_0
',':,' "' "' _ -":i-''f;".,•' ·-.· ' /'"--''i ' >' , -:'.>'".- _· ·.--

affected commlih1~y}ijit'eBcompasses~the ability ofthe healthcare:'fystem to'surviveailiazard)rnpact and maintain orrapidly recover operations that were compromised. 
Goa Ii To •dete(r\Jl~'e.whetheiJiealtHi:are coalitio~s:are•prepa[ed~1:() provide healthcafr in1:heirnmediateaftermath of a disaster.· 
Performan,c.e:rVje.ii.sures:. Percent ofhealthcar~ci6aliti!J.6,s)ffathave a coordi~at,~d.:11:\echanisrn established.that supports theirmemb~rs' ability both to deliver appropriate 
l~vels of.~ar7to all patlen1s(includlngpr"-exi~~ing paii~~ts [both inpatient <J.t'i5J;,outpatient], non-dis,,ster-re\ated patients, and disaster-specific .patients), as ":'.ell as to provide 
no les.s;.hari20%bed availability ofstaff~d members'iiJ'§cis, withinA hours df~a disaster. Belowarethe data elements thai:mustbe reported onfor this capability at mid-year 
and eriti:b[year:. · . · ,;i · ,.,. '' "' · .. '1B'' · · · ·. 

HPP 10.2: Has the Hccsuttessfully ~est~d ffs'tilbrdih<ited mechanism fa both deliver appropriate)evelsof care to all patients, as well as to provide no less than 20% bed 
avail~bllity of staffed members'•.beds; ~ithin 4:hours of a d'1saster? · ,;: · · 

102•1- If yes, has thei21'1Cc·5.liccessfullyirnplemented lessons learnedarid corrective actfoli'from. this exercise or event within the past year? 

HPp;103: Has th'i?r'\¢2d:~Jilonstratkdthe ability to coml1'1unicate%gi~nal healthcaresurg~ status in an exercise or event within the pastyear? 

HPP .f0.4: Does,tli'e'HCC'f\ave.the ability to expand its.coalition.wid'e surge capacity according to the scope.and magnitude of the incident 
HP~::lil:si oae~i:l'\el:IC:G;h'avethe ability to corn~unica1:e:aridC6ordinate supporttocits rnember organizallbns so that members can perform surge functions and coordinate 
·dist~Jbutlon ori~s'6liii:es to support those fUnctions?' :;.: · · . 

Outc!'.!.IT1~iobjedive:100%.i>.f:~~J><ibilitY,~U1,.be a~hieved b\f•G/30/2014 . 
• -- -·- - -;,.;,_ •• ,-, - . , ,-.;.,;-y..»:r;,. •.. -- . , --'·'>v··. - - -- . , -- --·-<.>; ·,, - ,., 

The healthcare coalition needs to be fully developed prior to the identification of how the coordination of efforts can addressed. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASPR's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #10: Medical Surge Page 55 of73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

58



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
,,_-<,_-,. __ , ~-- • ... _ - -, :.· · ;"':::-~ ;·_;·0:: , .,- • .- . -. · _-, - :,-:--;.: >::·«;;;:z.;i'(1/ :•:>:;,";:.:.··· ,- _--.. ·_: __ ,. __ , · .:.,•-· >< .-.- ·-·:· -~- ';~."-; c(•·c' :.·,;_.,,,_,. '/i '-'''-y•·'.- -<··_-«:-- · - • • , • • • 
:P,rov1 ~-t::.h_e~_l_t,bE~-~-~;:~P}?r.~J.~.r:i.~~l()n .f~~ :he_~t~.~-~~r..e,'.E!.qJ ~r~~fl_CY:- prep~ r_e~_n ess: a ct1v1_t)_es_. ~-n~.-__ s_tJ rg~;plijl pJJ IT)_g ~_hat gu 1 de 1 nc1d entnia_nagement dec1s1ons dun ng response. 

:F>1anriing R:e'§oi.lrceElernent1: Healthcare coalition 
- -:->.·.· ,,\:+'.·S•fl.,Y+Y:J··--. -·: .. ::::: ;_·_ ._,,- •. ;:: •'.·«J'·-;": .-:': _ -·_-_•.'. ;· · 

1Jrepare~n~:s~:~gtivities(see:Rg31) · . 
No Activity 

~ -- :·:,;,;c;>:;r.c:·-<)0;.r2VvtJ:v.o-' •" · · . .-. ·-·-- -·./re-"~· ····r ;<'>•; · · •... _ . 
Planmng;Resource:Element;·2:;,:Mult1cagency 

'·' :·:· _;c.-,c,,·,.,\/t.'jt'.fC<;;:i(~fJ.·_.'·:·· .:_: \,''-· .;' .. ;.f<;>i~i';/;·:·}: ·-- ·.:-·,.·_ - , ____ '. -•.: 
coOrdinatici'i1faUrihgrespdnsei!;fsee Pg 31); · ··:·:·· No Activity 

1. WCHD will review and update the regional Multi-Casualty Incident Plan. 
2. WCHD will begin to review and update the regional Mutual Aid Evacuation Annex of the Washoe County Multi-Casualty Incident Plan. 

'ta~K l.: il(piJ\il~&iJfil'iirmation •sn~'.fi)lgpiiJcesses tba~ eii~ol e Jie~jt~~ifre/~rka nizatioris.fo ·track the status ai\cJ trans po rt of patients 
(sJtlJatii{n'~Ji~\i;iKfl'!nessi fr()fn:i;J\;ii.§jdGFirig m~dic~i;>ufge ii;itide'nt5: (See·Pg •31)······ · ...• • .....•• ··.· :i!!;ii~. t' '· ~; ! :.. . 

Build $9,756 
WCHD will update the regional Multi-Casualty Incident Plan, 
which includes the notification of hospitals on transporting 
of patients. 

June 30, 2014 
Revised MCI plan with notification 
information. 

~1~~~~-~V~#~-~~l\~~~'~:,~::;$74Jf~~~;~~~~~~~~~fil'f~,~~-:b.e_~i-~_r_:~~-~-J:,_~r.~~~?;!r~tI~P.s _t~- understand_ E~s;_?:}~a-~~~f~~,I,~e:~1P~~~-°:-~-~!-~_; aild ·_caR·N E 
:treatrfigl)J:!-~.g§)s'):ha.t:ass1.~1N!tl:iitHe1.tr;~n.>1t1on ofdis?st.e.r:JpJJtleQ!s;Jrorr the field to the fac1ijty:,;:(se,~;8g·3.ili.jc: · · ·/ · :·c · . 

Build $0 WCHD will work with community partners to identify a new 
triage tag system for multi-casualty incidents. 

June 30, 2014 Revised MCI plan with triage tag 
information included. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASPR's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #10: Medical Surge Page 56 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

59



,.·.·,,, 

Plani)ing Res?f!r;c!!Ele~~:ti':)~~althcare.·organization 
coBrdination wftfiEMS;'dliriffg.response. (See 

. :.;;,.I. .. . . ...i)'.~0RF'.'.~:'<'··"""'·" ,.... . . . 

"':,\'>'>(:::·, ': ' - ">'·'- > ,' ·. ' .. , ,· ..... ,- .;._;;;:,;;:/,''•:. ::.- .,y-1.-.-.• ,.-... ' - -

Plaririing Res.oq(C:e.El~frient 2 :•i<foorc!inated disaster 
pro1:62ols fortriage, ti,ii'~~port;doi:~h;entation, CBRNE 
(see;Rg32) ·· · 

Build 

Build 

Build 

regional Multi-Casualty Incident Plan, 

to include newly selected Emergency 

Medical Services (EMS) triage tags 

• WCHD will review and update the 

regional Mutual Aid Evacuation 

Annex of the Washoe County Multi

Casualty Incident Plan. 

• WCHD will review and update the 

regional Multi-Casualty Incident Plan, 

to include newly selected Emergency 

Medical Services (EMS) triage tags 

• Participation from regional EMS 

partners and hospitals on the 

review of changes to the Multi

Casualty Incident Plan. 

• Training provided to regional 

EMS partners and hospitals on 

the changes made to the 

protocols. 

o Training provided to the regional 

EMS partners and hospitals on 

the EMS triage tags. 

• Participation from regional 

hospitals and EMS on the need 

to address the evacuation of 

more than one facility. 

• Workshop for regional partners, 

to include subgroups, to discuss 

and outline evacuation policies. 

0 

• 

Participation from regional EMS 

partners and hospitals on the 

review of changes to the Multi

Casualty Incident Plan. 

Training provided to regional 

EMS partners and hospitals on 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASP R's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #10: Medical Surge Page 57 of73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

60



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

• WCHD will review and update the 

regional Mutual Aid Evacuation 

Build I Annex of the Washoe County Multi-

Casualty Incident Plan. 

• WCHD will review and update the 

regional Multi-Casualty Incident Plan, 

Build I to include newly selected Emergency 

Medical Services (EMS) triage tags 

the changes made to the 

protocols. 

• Training provided to the 

regional EMS partners and 

hospitals on the EMS triage 

tags. 

• Participation from regional 

hospitals and EMS on the need 

to address the evacuation of 

more than one facility. 

• Workshop for regional 

partners, to include subgroups, 

to discuss and outline 

evacuation policies. 

• Participation from regional EMS 

partners and hospitals on the 

review of changes to the Multi-

Casualty Incident Plan. 

• Training provided to regional 

EMS partners and hospitals on 

the changes made to the 

protocols. 

• Training provided to the 

regional EMS partners and 

hospitals on the EMS triage 

tags. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASP R's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #10: Medical Surge Page 58 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

61



Skills>&.Trainingf: Tra\~jngorrlocal EMS.disaster 
triag~ Jl) etfioao16gi e~{se·e ~g:a2 )'=-· ( ccln't) 

,) - ' """':,.~· ,-,: - ' '""' "' __ ,--, 

·skills& i'ralninjf2: ··c::oordinated·cBRNE.training (See 
Pg 32}<·•>• .. .. .· .. .. . . .. 

Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Build 

No Activity 

• WCHD will review and update the 

regional Mutual Aid Evacuation 

Annex ofthe Washoe County Multi

Casualty Incident Plan. 

• Participation from regional 

hospitals and EMS on the need 

to address the evacuation of 

more than one facility. 

• Workshop for regional 

partners, to include subgroups, 

to discuss and outline 

evacuation policies. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASP R's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #10: Medical Surge Page 59 of73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

62



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
1321.1.15.1 

No Activity .~~~f~J~)£lili~~~~Q~"~i2=·;~.}itM~~/;i,u{g~planni~·~.1\~fl~~~ , , , 
;ii>lal:ll'iii1g'[Re"S'oar.:e1,1::1emer11:.i: iVl'e'in~a·1;:surg;ii·e·rlierl5ency· No Activity ' ' ' 
''8ll'~ra'tiI:t65.C:6oi8il'l~tib"b1ffsee i>[i34l· ;.· ;; ,.,. ·· · .... 
"'''l'-''' c;.·-,•-•---·· ,, .. ,.,/'"\~'-'•'·~•/--· - '• ~·~cc'• I I 
PlanmngR.e50~.r.ce,E.l.e111e.nt•3:·Ass1st. healthcare. No Activity 
~rganjzafj6~~lfn~~irnize surg~,caf.l~i;:ity .. (See.pg 34).• . 

1l~~~if i~\\ii~~\~~st1I~Ji¥~1.glirv~~i'JQ~a;;~~;!·•·•··· 
~la!'il:li1'1gfi{eso1ifoe;E1erijents: .• Medical'Sliige information 

P·-''-~'.-;>.0'.V:"~';'~""rr.v~:'~-;,;.;:·-··:·'--"<:;:;):''.><"·.'·_-: -, '. ·- - .-.- ;;·",;~--;.",,: , . 
••SB a n n g•· (See •Pg '3'Ji}f'i)4;,\if, · . 
. Plafi~ingReso~rce~l~IJi~11tf5:11.ealthcare organization 
·.·IJ~tie~t{ra !J~pO,lct;~s~iSl;ance~(seE!e~•3?). :'. :'''·· ···• · 
·Pia nil ing'Resb~ rce(El.emenh~:. Med ica 1• s Li rge'~6nsid eratio ns 
for.at:ris((;iodi~[CJGal;~n~·ft\8~~;\/Vith special·~edical needs 
Pl~riilifag.ii:fes~l)~ce .~lernej\fB:'!:MObile medical assets for 
sur!l~i6P:~n?ti~i:W:'(s!lllrg 3si ·· .. 

, ~IafiJiil;\~j~~~'t)~rf~,~le.111ent 9: M,e9iC:~l.s~rge considerat.ions 
•,forrV~mr~I?Rfre/!i0,[t(b~l~,a-ndit~bsewifHi5r:)ricJal. med ica I needs 
~glii'nn!rigii;(esoi'.fr~~Eleifieri£io: Mect;ca1fs'yrl5e · · .· · .. • · .. 
'·'""'; _•,.·.'-n'GMCl'lfit'.iW#ki'l•ft;£,;;>,J":,.t.,_,,,,,_._.. ---- ·- - ', - - . -:. , .., ,---,.·--·>-----(·Po .>cc"--- - - ---· .,.,,. -- ! 

',coi)§i)Ji~f;~,~r~~f(l]aj'dsl(iild i~id u9t~:aJ1dit5ose with· spei:ia Ii•··· 
rne:qip~))~eed§ (§~,e,pg41)) > i ,;, •·. . 

,l:quipmellt;~:f,eel)iiologyl.! Specialty equ pm.entto 
•r,y,,';'<'.':'''·;."':_,:,_,_-(···N4·?141f(::<t::1;~-·->·<'- . _,-- _:-_·· ,: -~·::-"::·-:"-> _>. ·· -
incre·a·sggfii\]i!jca14surgecapacityaiio capab lity. (See Pg 38) 
.Eqqipffi~(iti~])l'C::lill'dlogy2:'Medical.s1Jrge·.considerations '' ··:-"' __ ,._ ·. ,,_:·:·-,':·-·),':(;_;,,-/ ':'H-~(,J:'-:·,., !_',<>·· ---.• ·:-- • ;:-·c - . •::_:· ::.·"· ·· ·._ ·_ ·-. _-__ -

·'.f.of;~tJii~~,i~~W~l~·<lpdthc:i~~.IY,[~p.'~pJ~i<ll•medic~l.ne~ds 
;·;'J~ ¢.~1J?:gf~;}})1«~:1irft~Ji~i~~l));3~:C -~ ::: , -:· :0 ,· ~-:~:t{ !'!;;:.; ! '·f:'{'~'J!;<f'-• I / ' 

... Eci.U'iP'i'fie(lt\!8fjill~'Chriolotiv.;i::rvig(!iC:~1~ufg!J·consid.erations 

;~g~~if l!~l%~\(i~)rr~~t~c~f'mJ~~j~Etl~1nied.ica1 .neecis .... 

k~JS1!t~f~~I-f~;t,Qi ~-~i¥~~~:~~·~t~-1;;tn~·i_·o-i;9.~19~::~~a:~!tP:J~-~;:-_rJi_e8-i-~.a·1.:._:, __ ::::'.::·:::_· 
r:tS·fl1~-g-·-·e··-t.-c'-'Ci'm'··-'.-""'p·-ff€fl~tr:1(;see\pg-· :3·si·:-.;-;.-.:-y .cpJ~~,f}'~ir.'t:Zh:.0:; ;.::: .. <- ·, -- :->:·· · :_·,.· -··· 
(c,_,,,.!.' '~--,- __ ; .- ------- ,:}·'-•,y,rf, --- '-':.' - ' :.·:··~ ·:~~;;:_,_.f~-!;p,.,.,-J:!'.'.>-·1.> · .. :·_• _.·-- ---:-.-: 

~~1~~i~lli1ifi~~~~~~~1;~l~fst~i~~0~!~~~~}i~~ 0.t · 

No Activity 

No Activity 

No Activity 

No Activity 

No Activity 

No Activity 

No Activity 

No Activity 

No Activity 

No Activity 

No Activity 

No Activity 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASP R's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #10: Medical Surge Page 60 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

63



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
j' ' 1;ol d 1 } ~ ~· ' ~ '''' M> d ,,_. >;'Cj! f ;;~-~-," < > I '-"~ > t '1"~ ~ >°Z ,. ~- '"'• • °" <'';'- =•, :: • "~,. •:l.'Oo<"~ ~< ""'"•"• 

unction #4: , Develop'C:risis StantlarCls of',,Car;e"gi:iiCla'rfo·· 
< > I • C • j ~" - ! ) '- • lj ' •, 

Pl a r1n rngResoti~i:e1Ef emerif!Jr:!llstate crisls'5tan d a rd s 
,\C~J1:.:.L . · -. '.'-<tC'l_'.0;,;,:i_c .: ;--,,,:,;;;_v:.';{<·,.,;,. · •.• ;,. >/ ::_>:.,_ •. ·,, . 

of i:are·guidarice:i(see::~g:41) · · ·. 
Plan'nhig Resoufce.El(!ri]ent 2: lr1ditators for crisis 

. :,.,,,;v;._. . .. __ ·.--·>,;:, __ _.,A',-/,,. __ , ..... , •. ,.:;;,.,-: 

sta ndar,ds of tare· (See{f>g42) 
Plannlng.ResoU~ce Ele,rrT\eht 3: .tegal protections fof · 

·-··:·:-. _;_-__ ._._,,:hk;;·.·--/_.,·· __ ~i',;,;\;;_,.,_, _ _. ___ --- __ ,,_ -_,-··--· 
healthcaregra'.etition§r~)nd institutions (See. PgLl;:fJ);.:·. 

Plannjng Res§g,~f~}s.!~;fuerit4f2Proyide guidance~f~r·· 
crisis'stan.cl.ardsofcate'implementation processes;' . 
( , ,. . <). ·. ··:::1e·· 
Se.e Pg42 .. :1;:::f~, · 
Planning Res!lurte Elements:· Provide guidancefor· 
the managemeA of.scarce resources (See Pg 43);, 
Skills &Trainirig1'(:',Crisls sta'iida rds of care tr'ainfrig 

_;_-;,-f, ___ ,,._---,,- .. _;<115'.t:"'--""•' --- -- •', - ---_·:~·:>''"' 

(See.Pg44} ··''·'"''· ·"· 

No Activity 

No Activity 

No Activity 

No Activity 

No Activity 

No Activity 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASPR's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #10: Medical Surge Page 61of73 WCHD ASPR07·13 

64



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

tance to healthcare organizations regarding evac 

No Activity at this time 

rg51<:1:csefqre, di.iiirig;::andiilft:er;a/Jincidentens!Jhdhere are processes to provide resource assistanc.e tci healthcare organizations and .·-->': ·:;; ·.:.:._ .. ,- - '' ----: :----_--'- :C-\/11'· '•'''i'?(•:'·''\i';f';\~11';'.r-·>~: ,;·__ - ' - :- -, ' _._, ._,--.' - - ' . - ' 
jpfovidersforeyac~atfi:inf<intj\s.Jiijlt~c"Jn,place operations (See Pg 44) 

: .. gl#~!fi'.fugT~~~~~~~~1.~r):lel1t.l: HeilltHcaf~9rg.anization 
•:1ev~fli~ii~:tijg'fil!JJi~~e.l.ter~iniplaceplacis~':(seeiPg 44) · 
"/ · -;,.,Xt?.ff:':\lp'Jil)""'i7'1"··<•·'-<· ;_,·,·:-.-' ---: · ---, , , - ._ ' _._,. ', ,., : ""', "-'" •.··· -'" ·- - ---- . 

~p1~g2,\~~~~~4~!~~iomi.=:.tl,~~l~f~:~~[p~g~nization 
fpriepare.Clness•.to;rece1ve·.evacuat1on surge1 •(See Pg 45) 

JJ~;~~~,l~i~ll~egl~\~tC:• ~;,)2;~~:~~~ti9n options . 

Eqlii]5i'l:l~'f:ry~8\1vf:~cHW01agy:i:•1spe'c.ialized ·equip me nf · 
iieeilecii;!8(Ei~~cuate patients (see. Pg 45) 

No Activity 

No Activity 

No Activity 

No Activity 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASPR's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #10: Medical Surge Page 62 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

65



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Washoe County Health District 

ASPR Hospital Preparedness Program (BP2) Subgrant # ASPR07-13 

Scope of Work (SOW) July 1, 2013 through .June 30, 2014 

HPPCapability #14 : · Responder Safety and Health 
Definition: Tfie responder safety and health capability descril5e5 the ability of healthcare organizations.to pfotect the safety and health of healthcare workers from a variety 
of hazardsduring emergencies and disasters. This inclOdes processes to equip, train,'and provide other resources needed to ensure healthcare workers at the highest risk for 
adverse.,:xposure, illness, and injury are adequately p~otected from all hazarcls during response and recovery operations. · 

Goal: J.a:dt=termine whetQer,healtlica~e'cdaiitions have access to.s~fficiei)f;protection to keep.healtficare staff workirill effectively for the duratio.n of a healthcare crisis. 

Perfor.mance Measure: R;el'cfintofhealth~~re i:6aiiti6ns that havt=sysfoiris'and process.es in pTaC:e to preserve healthcare system functions and t? protect all of the .coalition 
mem5e~einploy€es (inclucifl\g=h~althcat~·ancl non-healthcare erii~lb~ees(s'elow are,±hedaf~=~1€ments that must be reported on for this capability at mid-year and end of • . . . . . . , _¥'.,:;:- ! .. ,e::::::-·• ··-- -- - - - . - ·-- "" . __ . .,, . -- . 
year.·.-:: 

HPP14!f:' Has the HCC inipiementE!d 'an occu~atloriaL~afety and health[llaii:fopfotect employees of the Organizations within the HCC and their families; cased on a Hazard 
Vulner~biiity Analysis(IWA)'c:'onduqti:id~Within:the last3years? · .::c:: · 
HPP)'.4ci:'lfves,;aoHC:C:melTlberorganizations hi'lve access to thE!'ei.ements of an occupatlorial,safety and health. program that Include: 

111'.!2:i c Pharn)aceuticalY.ca"ches •. •• > 
,14:.2:2 
.:14.23 -.Medic~h::C>unterrneasures 

·.· 14. 2.4•:f\isl« co.m mu hi cations 
14.2.57:1'aniily member. protections and•cons.ideratioris 
14.2;5c Social distarici~g protocols•··• 

14.211" Behavioral heaith 
142:8 - Security 

HPP 14.3: Has the' HCC suctessfull\'tested its systems and processes'fo preserve healthcare sys\Ei'm functions and tO enhance support ofall HCC member employees 
(in duding healthcare aiidnon-healthcare employees) in.an exercise or event within the past year? 
HPP 14A: ifyesihas the' HCC successfully implemented lessons learned and correct·1ve acf1ons from the exercise or event within the past year? 

Outcome Objective: 100% of capabilit\I Willbeacliieved by 6/30/2014. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASPR's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #14: Responder Safety and Health Page 63 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

66



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

By the end of BP2, WCHD staff will identify responder health and 
safety resources that address responder safety and health risks 
and needs in an effort to better protect responders in the event 
of a public health emergency. 

All public health responders will have access 
to a Health and Safety Plan as it relates to 
public health emergencies. 

A Safety and Health Plan which contains: 
1. Lists/Fact sheets/Risk assessment 

identifying: 

• medical health risks 

• 
• 

environmental exposures 

mental/behavioral health risks 

2. Matrices that address identified 
risks and: 

• Resources 

• Acute and chronic health conditions 

• PPE needs 

• Safety needs 

By end of year, WCHD staff will develop MOUs with all area hospitals (as they are willing) to ensure the prompt provision of medical countermeasures to 
all staff and their families in the event of a public health emergency. 

'rkik~ft:1a~5~f!vjtRE:i8haihi~ce~ticals ne~tjerffosafeguard healthcare workers and their familieswhen.i.ndicatedby a biol.ogical infectious disease or during a.likely exposure 
·i~~id~nt;ldii'6tii'i'~'ci;tlirougl'i:Jisk:assessmeiit!;';:Jj~zardsvulnefobility assessments (HVAs), and resource neet1s1 (SeePg46) · · · . . . · 
··.'.-,:;:c,_c·;,t,,::'.'.:1_,'<\if~1~4'.~k\§:f1JF;ilf1';'.,'~·+:,:·:·I-->"'.:.-- ;·,:-:< '.'.-:,_-_,-;_ "-(>:-·,>:-';.:,; :-< .. _: .,··::.-:··, :· - - .-o- ,_._ -- -,' '':- '-;· -.-.-. -.·. . - -- . •. :->-··· i" '.;J :-·.;:;_,;·· - . ·- - . - . . . . 

j 

December 31, 
2013 

Matrix of pharmaceuticals 
as they relate to identified 
risks. 

be accessed by healthcare.organizatibn~0he~/"§que~ted and available during an exposure/i9cident. 

Determine the need for developing pharmaceutical caches. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASPR's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #14: Responder Safety and Health Page 64 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

67



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
Task 3: Establish the appr~priate'p'.ocesses to deliver caches ofpharm~ceutii:als to healthcare ()rganizations during an exposure requiring prophylaxis and treatment when 
requested and available.;(See pg'46} . . . . 

Planning Resource Elemeht 1: Pharmaceutical needs 
. assessment . (See Pg 46) · 

.·.,·.•,• 

-'.~;~;~;~-j :.. -, '·:'.·-;/,{;.-,\:>'::·_-_;;:.';12;::1> _:'.·;_;:}:<:.··-'.-~.:-_<;'" --', . -. - - '. 
PlaHl1ing Resour~E'.~1e·rn~P~:~:1:Ph.ar,i;naceutical cache 

. storage; rotation,repla~~ment;•a nl:idistribution (see 
Pg 47) .. . . ·····.·· 

Build 

Build 

Conduct a needs assessment to determine the 
types of pharmaceuticals that may be needed to 
protect healthcare workers from priority threats. 
1. Develop security plans with Washoe County 

Sheriff's Office in the distribution of 

pharmaceuticals during a public health 

emergency. 

2. Create a supply chain management chart for 

pharmaceutical distribution in the event of a 
public health emergency. 

•/:. . · .·.·: . . Develop MO Us (as they are willing) with area 
Planning ResourceElellJ~rt3:. ,ryieaical Build hospitals for SNS medical countermeasures in the 
Count~rmeasuredispe~~[~g (S~.~Pg 47) event of a public health emergency. 

:F . c :df,1:.: ···········'·'·····. ·.··· . . . . Identify and purchase (as budget allows) security Equipment &Technoi<)gy 1: Rba.rmaceut1cal cache Build devices and environmental storage devices for 
prot~dioh (See Pg47) • < .. L . caches of medical supplies. ''' '' ' :>;,,,··-· 

Skills'.~Trainingl: PhaimaceiJ'tical·~acbE!training I Build I Develop a training curriculum for he.althcare 
·(See Pg:48) workers as 1t related to SNS requesting procedures. 

Needs Assessment 

Updated Medical 
Countermeasures 
Distribution and Dispensing 
Plan. 

MO Us 

Equipment purchased. 

Sign-in sheet from training 

By end of year, WCHD staff will create Responder Health and Safety Facts Sheets which include safety and health recommendations as they relate to 
identified risks. 
Ta.sk 1: Priorfo an incident, and as applii:ableduring a?J~cident, work withspbject matter experts.(e.g., state environmental health, state occupational health and safety, 
hazard-specificsubject matter experts,.and em.~'rge11cvrila_nagers_lto identifyresporicJersaiety anc:I hea~hresource requirements (e.g., equipment needs}. (See pg 129} 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASP R's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #14: Responder Safety and Health Page 65 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

68



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Build $3,258 Identify safety and PPE needs as they relate to identified risl<s. 
December 31, 

2013 

Matrix of safety and PPE 
needs as they relate to 
identified risks. 

;~2j1~1¥:E\~kl3~k~~~i,~,c;i~~pt~.iM,d·~~iap~H.~~ql.:,~yring a~lncide~~~ and·i~ conj~nction with .subject matter exp~r,ts, formulate recommendations.to public health responders. 
[~g~}t~i!;i~~R~r~M,~}!:R~9.§1':£ik~~.e,qu)p.~emi~Jl~]t~Hi: cons.1stentw1th localjurlsd1ctlonal requirements. {See Pg 129) . · . . .· . . .. · . 

· ~1~ffilff~~~~~-:'[~~~Bt .. i, P~f~;~~fir't~tective 
eqtlip'ffi~n'tnee'd~i~'§§'§~inerit (seE!liglis')~!j§i• . 

·.'(: .. :{':ii':·-:;:~:~~;y )-.-_:.-.··- ~ ~ <)'i :-I;~~!ti{.~~;7/:;>; __ :., , , - · ---. <·. ·_ .... -; :.::-.:.·;:-::-: 

Planning ~E!so~r~e Elemenl::i!:•·pers'ona 1 protective 
~quiiJIJJ~~@~~bes (s~Eipg'~sf · · · · · 
Plannirig5REi~Slii'C:e Element3:; Re rso n a 1. protective 

•··equi~/Tl:~~{gctpp1¥'an8disp~n'sihg (See Pg 49) 

)=,~~.\~~!r~t:i~};T,~,~~!3~J~li'l•i:•P~r~9in1 ~j)fr~I~ctive 
'Eq1Iii?f\\1¥iitf.6~rj1h'ea.ltfi¢ir~·'l!or.kers• 11.(see.·pg49) 
isl(ilf~,~1.tra'iilfl'ig i<'i~el'soifa 1iJfotefo.tWeieq ui pmeht .... 
!ttfi~'if1~,(S~~·Pg 14§.)\·~; '< . ··••···· • .. z!~Ci j . i. , 

Build 

Build 

No Activity 

Build 

Build 

Conduct a needs assessment to 
determine additional levels and types of 
PPE based on estimated resource needs. 
Assess the need for additional caches of 
PPE based on estimated resource needs. 

N/A 

Purchase PPE equipment consistent 
with identified risks. 
Identify training opportunities related to 
PPE caches. 

Needs Assessment 

Needs Assessment 

Purchased equipment 

List of training opportunities. 

Note; The page #'s listed in this table correspond to ASP R's "Healthcare Preparedness Capabilities: National Guidance for Healthcare System Preparedness", January 2012 
Capability #14: Responder Safety and Health Page 66 of 73 WCHD ASPRD7-13 

69



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Washoe County Health District 

ASPR Hospital Preparedness Program {BP2) Subgrant # ASPR07-13 

Scope of Work (SOW) July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 

· .• HPPCapability ft15:• Vorunteeri\/lanagement 
D .. e. f. initlon: Volunte•er rnaflagernenfis.the ability to .coordihate.iGe identification, recruifmeiit; registration, credenti'aLVE!rification, trairilng,.engagement, and retention of 

:···,·<,.· - ' - ~ :·_.·.·,;'>•'.'· .. ,-_> ,_ ... _f'.·~·-<· ·: >\/'.\'.-_' ·.<+·-_--::' ', ,'!-- ·--.- ' ; _- - _, ·"; .·-<:; .. ',) ·;;<·:.-' -.- -_ -._ -•:·.-' -'-:·-·-· -- .• _ •. " ; - ' ' ' ' ,' '' ;_._';•·· -'' ' ,. ' '-: ·>· ' . -- :· -\ 
volun.teersto support HeiiltJJcare orgahizatiOns·wlth .the medical preparedqess and response tq:incidents and events. · · . •· · . · · . . 
GO al: Ensure that the healthtaie c9alitions'naVE'Or ha\/e access to plans; pioi:esses, .and procedur'E<stomanage-volunteers,ifrduding rapid verification ofC:r.edentials and 
affiliatla~·'Afitli deployed entities. To deterrniriewh~tfl.,,rawardees are able·i'omeetrequests for volunt~ers in a timely m~ntier, . 
Performance Me.asure: :The Performance Measures tha\will be used to capture awardee progress toward build'1ng this capabHity are: 
•HPP-5pecific Performan['~Measure: Percent of healthcare coalitfons (HCCs) that have plans, processes and procedures in place to manage volunteers supporting a public 
healtn or medical:incidenC • · 
•Joint HPPcPHEP i'erforrn~nte Measure: Proportion of volunteersdeployeq to support a public health/medical incii:l.entwithin an appropriate timeframe. 
Belciw:·are the dat~:elerr;~;;tsth~t;mu~t berepbrted on forth is capability atmid-year and end of year. . 

Alloc~t~dfunding: · • .• f~6d,$$~ . 

. HPP:li51!i~ Does the HCtfliive piocepl:irns:forl[Cleritif\iirigth e type.and qUaii~Jt\)•dtvol li nteers. rie'ei:le'ffto s'u ppo rt healthca~e·'f,E!sponse? 
HPP 15{2: Doe"itheHCCHav~ o(fiaveacCess'to'ahelectronic registration's\lstemforrecording·ar)clmanaging volunteer information that is compliant with.!. lie current . .''.':,, ·. __ ',: ,' ,,, ·.:" ::--.- ·-':> ... "- --_---·.; ' - _- - - -_ -_- ·: '_,__._,_ . '·.--:·-~_;-·-,_ ":'"" - '-:--.> _-- -- ' -' ' - -: --- ,. ' "' '. :- '' ' ' ' 
guidelines cifthe'HHS ESA8;YHP program? : •r±' · · .; .. · · ·' 
HPPi.15 .. 3: Has thitHCC!l:'obrdiJjatedJ,\/lth the sfate and:H(c members to develop plaris; processes and prOcedures to manage\iolllriteers that address the following areas: 

153:1- Receiving villul)feefs . 
1S:3;:2 - oeterrniningvolUnteeraffil'iatiqn, i!}d uding proced ur@foiintegratl ng or refeiringiian,registered or spohtaffeousvol u nteers 
1:5S3(3-.Confirming volt:i'Hfeer cre(Jeritlals 
15:3:1i''"Ass\gfiing roles and respoi)sibilitles\o\volur]teers 
15.3.5 - f'icividing justintime training for vOlllnteers · 
15.3.6 -Traclffrig.voluhteers 
15:3.7 -Out-JJ.rocessingi.volunteers 

HPP 15:4: Has·the HCCsuccessfullyfested its plans, processesahd. pi;bcedl.lres formahagin1f.volunteers during an::exercise or event within the past year? 
HPP.·15:5: If yes;'l)asthe[i;lg:c:Suci:essfully implemented lessons leailled a_nd.co_rrecti\J.e actjo~·frorn this exercise of, event within the past year? 

JOIN'f;~ERFORMANCEMEl\SURES -
. HPl''PHEp;::J.5:2: dn;~ach inddent/planri;~·ev.,,,nVexe(Cise (eported for derrta.iistratianof theVciluhteeriMahagement Capability, please answer the following information:. 
HPP'.f'HEi>'l.S: ,2:1: Th.is incfd ent j pl a nrieCI eve'61/e~eid5(ufillllici. oi de mOllsfrat.eci o~e Dr 111ore fu nctio n(.S)'with in the: 
H Pp~PH EP J.s,i~:!'i; iTh e ieq LI est for volU nteers ace LI rred ;11 u ririg.a· (s',ilect ·an e): 
HPP"PHEP 1s,2.3: ThelVpe'of incident/exercise/planned event upon .wliich.the request for volunteers was based(selei:t all that apply): 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #15: Volunteer Management Page 67 of73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

70



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

'HPP-PHEP:i:s.2;4;s;i:ilogicalhazard or disease•or.other specified 
HpP-PH Ell, 1s:2,s: . The ha me of tn e. -incident/planned· event/ exercise 

.HPll.71l.l:!Eii1is;ii9:;;;rHedate oftb'e'inddent/planned event/exerci.se' 
~,1:1 ijji'.f\i;iEPhlS:::z;t:,.:th e;ila,te/time:wh en:i'eq0esl\f6(vqlu nteerS~Was received: by heal_th/m edica 1. lead. 
•Bel>,pl'IEP'Jfo,z,8: ,i'he'Jilim.IJ~r cifo/_i:>Jupte_ers r@q'.J:e'sti!d to .. d ~ploy_frorn:i:he originaffiiiireq uest6f ;caenl'l mi nator) 
c•Hfipi~fiE:ects-;z;19::;tbe-enfitYfh'iti'fiiadeihecirillin~i reifilest-for:Tvaldiite~~iS.laroiJ'do0n) · •· · --·· · ""''·· 
•'l-lfip~,gJ71Efic1s!2!io.:':.otlieC~e.11titV spetifiedk't,,2:· • 
Hpg~·eHEp'.'is:z:it:·::;rne'iBilte/time vihl{rivOiLinteers were requested to arrive at staging area or on scene by health and medical lead·: 
'HPP.'PHEP,ls-;2,12:'.Jb'E!'req~estedJoi:ation fortl)edeployment (select one): 
HPp,f>,HEp;;'i!5~2,:~:;·tne:·nuiii8erofvoluhfeers who were notified to deploy ("activated") 

tfle'l''cpfj'eplrs:i,i4fiit;f:l1"edate/timeWhentheJaifvolunteer was notified to deploy (i.e., "activated") 
HPi''i'HEP)S;i;isi:''!:he•.Q'ui'ntJer'Of.volunteers who arrived at staging area/on scene within requested timeframe (numerator) 
Hpf1,P.l-iE\?'iS.2~i6\ Nuinb~rt6f@$16yed.volunfoers·registered in ESAR,VHP 
HP,i!'iPHE.p},;l]~1~1i:• Nur11berofdeploye'dJ\'olimteers registered in other systems 
)lpP'Jf1fjl:~fi:s¥2rJ:~:; 0ate/tiine thatlastvolunteer arrived at staging area/on scene within requested timeframe 

HPP'P.HE:p.:is;Z,19: B~r'riers/chali'~~ges to deploying volunteers to support a public health/medical incident within requested timefr~me 

~::;;;:;;;1;::-:/:'::,._,,:;.,\ 7,t;tt'_'.'_ »c::~·:;,;:-·,_·w';l;2';,s,;;;~";J( ... -: ': ., __ --- -:ii}'.:z;;:c,· .:..._' _ · , ·;,,__ . _,-.,, -~:·.- _ , _ _ . _-

<j1~~i:o.l']'l~·.SJb,!~9i~S;:(~SR~igf,,cag~ b,Hitij wi,l I ,.b~,~f hi£!Ved. by 6/30/2014.· 

---
---

Ensure that Renown, St. Mary's, Northern Nevada and Incline Village Health 
Center and other healthcare organizations have or have access to plans, 
processes, and procedures to contact the MRC Program Coordinator to utilize 
MRC volunteers; including rapid verification of credentials and affiliation with 
deployed entities. To assure that WCHD's MRC program will be able to meet 
requests for volunteers in a timely manner. Additionally, ongoing training 
opportunities will be scheduled and made available for MRC Volunteers to 

MOU's or agreements will be developed to ensure that 
in the occun-ence of the need to utilize MRC

volunteers; Renown, St. Mary's, Northern Nevada and 
Incline Village Health Centers will be the target. 

Additionally, the American Red Cross will also be 
included in the process. 

improveskill by the end ofBP2s. 
---- - ;pg; EE liil!!.&!Liili.tLJ.!JJLl.i.11.i.2.iLli 

Written MOU's or 
agree1nents that 
outlines the process 
with each of the 
healthcare facilities 
identified. 

Prior to a.n incident or event the MRC Coordinator will develop written plans along with WC hospitals to determine which situations would wan-ant the use of 
MRC volunteers. Once the "need responses" for volunteers are dete1mined training initiatives will be developed to address these situations by the end ofBP2. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and local Planning'', March 2011 
PHEP Capability #15: Volunteer Management Page 68 of73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

71



Attachment B: Scope of Worl< by Capability 

Task 1: Assess which situations \N~uldnecessi1:at~the need for the us.e of vo1,q;9teeriili:healthcare organizations during respon~e and participate in the. planning that would 
provide this as an·~ptjpnwhenneed@c(See Pg,50. ) '• 

',' "·. C'_---,':·•,"'"'' •. ·,_,,;;V'•·'"~p.1'~A·-•·--·, ,,,_ . .,. 

Sustain $4,325 

MRC coordinator will utilize information obtained from local healthcare 
agencies and the American Red Cross to develop written plans to establish 
what situations would wan-ant the use ofMRC-volunteers. MRC volunteer 
information in E- Coordinator, which is the WCHD's electronic volunteer 
registration system, will be used to update and identify volunteers to respond 
to the new w1itten response plans. 

Ongoing during 
budget period 

The revised written 
response plans. 

Task2: ldentifyJhetyp~ai'iffquantityofvolunteers mo:Sflikelyne~ded to support healthcare response based on the risk assessments, haz.ard vulnerability assessments, 
·resource assessmeiitsandother data that mayprqvide:clarity:into anticipated qeeds,,(See Pg 50) 

Sustain $10,728 

MRC Coordinator will update E-Coordinator with volunteers who would most 
likely be able to support a health care response based upon the risk 
assessment needs data information that will be gathered from the local 
healthcare organizations. 

Ongoing during 
budget period 

The number volunteers 
needed based upon the risk 
assessment needs data. 

Task 3: Priorfoan'Jnciden1: or event, participate.with vcillmteer planning for rr.e:incident screening and verification of volunteers' credentials for healthcare professionals that 
may be usei:Jifn'liealthcare q(ganlzatiqns.;,(See:ggso)'' -- , . d· . 

Sustain $9,650 
MRC Coordinator will recruit new volunteers through media and participate in 
events that will promote MRC mission. E-Coordinator will also be updated 
with new volunteers and existing volunteers credentialed infmmation. 

Ongoing during 
budget period 

Number of MRC 

volunteers infonnation that 
is updated and sustained. 

• :rask 4:, Pri~i:tbarl'in cident or event, participat.,\with tr,aJhing initiativesfori:lleplarinihg·of initiafahd ongoing emergency resp0nsetraining for registered volunteers that may 
ibe usedA~1&ealthc~re organJzatiogsidtir\rig;ij~spanse: {S~epg.so) · · · .. ,.. . .... 

<-- -_ ,.,._-_~- >·:·'-'--/---- _ .. - - ·------_···-::-:-~>:·w0·:·:-.·-- .. --
'Planning Resour~e Element 1: Volunteer'tJ~eds• MRC Coordinator will update E-Coordinator 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #15: Volunteer Management Page 69 of73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

72



~¥:~~;~.~:Qi.~~~f~r~8@,al1hE.~~e•organizafi()n~ ~e?pcinse. 
.(See Pg!SO) . . . .... .. . . . .. 

,.,,,,,,. 

· Pl~nnfhkR~fau~c:e',Eien;i~~t 2: Collect,.assemble, 
n1aihtalh; a.nd utiliZ.~])(Qftinteer information~· (See Pg 
SJ} './''/ 

Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Sustain 

Sustain 

with volunteers who would most likely be able to 
support a health care response based upon the 
risk assessment needs data infonnation that will 
be gathered from the WC Hospitals/healthcare 
organizations. 
MRC Coordinator will recruit new volunteers 
through media and participate in events that will 
promote MRC mission. E-Coordinator will also 
be updated with new volunteers and existing 
volunteers credentialed infonnation. 
MRC volunteer information in E- Coordinator, 
which is the WCHD's electronic volunteer 
registration system, will be used to update and 
identify volunteers to respond to the new written 
response plans 

identified to support a healthcare 
risk from the needs risk 
assessment data. 

Number of MRC volunteers 
infonnation that is updated and 

sustained. 

The newly developed written 
response plans and updated 
information in E-Coordinator 

MRC Coordinator will review and revise the current MRC volunteer request process to ensure that prospective volunteers are mobilized in the appropriate 
health professional role for WCHD's response by the end ofBP2. 

Task 1: A~ftfiellme ofan incfdiint;'determine thevcilunteers needed to assist the healthcare organization response including the.role and.· 
quantity;ofvolunte.ers.rieecie'd;.cammunicate requests:using the established volunteer request process. (See Pg 51) · · · 

Sustain $4,181 

MRC coordinator will review and revise where needed the current healthcare 
organization's written request procedure at the time of an incident for 
volunteers needed to assist. The role and quantity of volunteers needed will 
also be assessed which will be aided with the use ofE-Coordinator 

Ongoing 
during budget 

period 

The written request process 

that will ensure proper 

volunteer response. 

Sustain 
written draft "call down" procedure that at 
the time of an incident determines the MRC 

The number of MRC volunteers 

identified and able to respond and 

assist in the event of a "call down 
volunteers needed to assist the WC Hospitals 1 process." 
or healthcare organizations response 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards far State and local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #15: Volunteer Management Page 70 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

73



. - . -- ___ ,:'.,";:-:-; '" 

Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

including the role and quantity of volunteers 
needed with along with the use ofE
Coordinator; communicate requests using the 
State's established volunteer request process. 

MRC coordinator will check with State 
Planrlihg·Resou.rce El~111el'ltZ:'Pfo6ess to t()llfirm 
credentials ofres~bndifl~~olunteers. (See Pg 51) 

Sustain 
licensing Departments and/or also request I The number of MRC volunteers 
copies of certifications licenses from new credentials that are confinned. 
and current volunteers. 

Planning Re~oLIJl~e Elerll'~llt 3: Vo.lunteerretjb~st 
process .. (See Pg51) 

Sustain 
MRC coordinator will use State's established I The use of Nevada's established 
volunteer request process. volunteer request process. 

MRC Coordinator will develop a written protocol for allocating MRC volunteers that are needed simultaneously across several healthcare organizations. This 
process will include the placement of volunteers through the appropriate deployment channels and match the assignment of volunteers to the needs of the 
requesting WC healthcare organizations that will be based on volunteer availability by the end ofBP2. 

Ta5k•l:Devel!lp a ~[oc;es~,1·&~ssiSt healthcare organizati\J:Kswith v(lllirfreer placemenfdu(;hg an incident that includes multi-agency .Coordination between healthcare 
org~~ izati8~5ccip)C,:i#~r 1:ci~aic~pfli.c!.the, need.sp\[l'I~ l,tiRI ~bi;~ltn:c~r~ arga n izati ~ns. ~~~~thE!. ayai la bi lity ?f,¥§iunte.ers.. (See Pg. ~.~1·. . . ·'·' . . · ....•..• , 

raa:.:.:s. a;11.:.11.nz 11MJ&.tm: .mu 

Sustain $10,122 

MRC Coordinator will revise current standard operating procedures on the 
written a call down procedure to minimize conflict ofMRC Volunteers 
availability during an incident. The "healthcare requesting procedure" data will 
be used to helo identify healthcare organizations needs. 

Ongoing 
during budget 

period 

The written multi-agency 
coordination plan. 

Taskz.: Develop ~'proc~ss 1t~~ssist healthcare or~aniz~.tjbns with theprovision of de~Ci~l'Tlent brlefings,.fratl<ing and rotation ~f volunteers, spontaneous volunteer 
managei\le'ritsafeiy and incident-specifictrainin'g'. (See pg 52) · · · · 

'•'/··· , -_- --:-,· _ _.' :,,-.., ,,, - _-;: ,-,"~;<>;·,·,·,_,-.· __ '::>_• .. ;·,\'." •. :.:'.')f/<),'c(H~>';'.'.".'.):">, <.>'.-,,£;,-~--·,·••'"•• . · ·; "ti.ii·o.'•· - ,;y,z;,:..• ·· · <•0:•.· , _ . • ,,"('•. -

sz:.:.;s. wa::.r.11.:u 1 s.MJ&.: • .m&. 

Sustain $5,726 

MRC Coordinator will revise and create written protocols for the deployment 
ofregistered volunteers; tracking and handling of spontaneous volunteers, and 
ensuring all volunteer personal safety in responding to incidents. This may 
require a simulated exercise of volunteers to test the effectiveness of the 

rocess along instituting a just in time exercise. 

Ongoing 
during budget 

period 

The written protocol for 

deployment. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #15: Volunteer Management Page 71 of73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

74



'>;Z. ::;;:::~:~;~·'.;,·,;~~~·: ."~ ;i' :'-~/;;:~~~~--::_'>;_ " -: - - - ·,·_·, -- . 
~lai;ming'f!esau·rceElement·l: ·Vo.lunteerdeploymerit·• 
protocolsL:(si;e;~g52) · · 

.__,;-: ._ .. ,_,,._' 
'•i-·f"-'"'"'*'· - ,,_,, 

, --;;:: '.'c::::;'.'.;:::·;~?'.'.:~: 

· Planni~g':~esi)(i'fi:~. ElemenfiUEiri~fing template for 
healt!lC;af.e~~CiitlbYeeis:. {See'pg:sz.r · 

-.· ·- . ., -·- -· ::t{(1itf:li·~,~(!~li;iJ1Ff;.:.~: :_:: _.~;<·" ::'·> .. ': __ 7"'''"·:_i:<~' •,'• -_-
pJanning:lfe~pijtqe'Elerrient3; \Jolunteer supporf 

~~ry.\r:~~,·~*~~x~~'t;'f) · · · · · ··· · 

Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Sustain 

Sustain 

Sustain 

MRC Coordinator will develop written protocols for 
the deployment ofregistered volunteers; tracking and 
handling of spontaneous volunteers, and ensuring all 
volunteer personal safety in responding to incidents . 
This mav reauire training of volunteers in the orocess. 

MRC Coordinator will develop written protocols. 

MRC Coordinator will provide training and 
information to MRC volunteers. 

The written protocols. 

The written protocol. 

The kind of training and or 
information that volunteers 

MRC Coordinator will Coordinate the demobilization ofMRC volunteers based on evolving incident requirements or incident status. This includes 
coordination with the appropriate partner agencies to ensure provision of medical and mental/behavioral health support needed for the volunteers' physical and 
mental well-being bv the end ofBP2. 

,'}'7,1JY:P:X~.:::::.;r1:\;f~+ifi,:r;J;;t1~S,:;;;.:~i_i%fS;i:::'_<"'::----::·· .. "-.··_,_-'"·'.:'C·«,.;<---~·:::._.:,·.,, ......... -.. _ .. -_ ... ·.· _ _ . _ ... _ . . _.- .- . -
.~J;~.~.~~12~~~~~~~1.~·iP~id,~.m;~,~CTf ~~\lJ.::-.r.~i~ nd .the a ppropria.te.ju risdi ctiona I volunteer organiz~tiops.~o~.~s~.'.~ mi;.~reper out Pr~ces5ing P;f y91~ nteers. (See. PgS~) '. 

Build $4,181 

MRC Coordinator will collaborate and work with select incident management 
personnel and localher health care coalition organizations, along with the MRC 
Volunteers to ensure the proper documentation on the out-processing of 
volunteers will be developed in written plans . 

Ongoing 
during budget 

period 

The development of the 
written plans. 

• f~W:z:;!c"(,'p~d(g~t~:YJ.(~~ti~Cident lllanag¢rnen,i"and the appropiiatejur.isdictional volunteer organizations to. identify community resources that can support volunteer p9st-
, .',•;_,,,,_.,,L>..;r/\.'~r'.'Jiu~J,"<1;:Jloftw~::;:r"">,"'""'''-~'-.<_.;.o--,~:::: -':/"_.w .. :0:,·:··c.J<'.:.-.:-:-·.,, ' ·_· '·:'>c·ic .. ·o·c; .. _"_ .··-·.".'· ·_ ·' - · · · · - ...... :_-• ... , :·. · .. _·_ · .-. --:·< _ ... > : .- .. : · _ · · __ ' :-· · · · -
~.a.~pl9~5f1!"liliti~~Jfal;l.s,,£'.~en.i.~g;;5ges~fr;:t,eJl-8~i.Qg assessm~nts and, when r~quested or indicated, h~ve a. prdcessto refer volunteers tO medical. and m.edtal/behavioral 
h~altli!s~1"ii:s~I~~f§fe'J?ii:\3Bl.{ ;;.•''~!'f:''t:C(••"• ;i· . .• • ; c· .. • . . . . . . · · ·· ·· .. ·.. > .· · .. · · ·.·· · ... · 

Build 

MRC Coordinator will collaborate in the coordination and participate with 

select incident management personnel and the MRC volunteers to identify the 
$4,181. I kinds and types of community resources that can support volunteer post

deployment medical screening, stress, and well-being assessments; while also 

establishing a process to refer volunteers to medical and mental/behavioral 

An informational list on the 
Ongoing kinds and types of 

during budget deployment services that are 
period made available to volunteers. 

Nate: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #15: Volunteer Management Page 72 of 73 WCHD ASPRD7-13 

75



Planning Resource Elerl1~nt 1: Volunteer Release 
Processes. (See Pg 53) 

PlannI~~i~~~~d~~~~~l~~e~t 2: 
screening protosgls. 
(See Pg53) 

Volunteer exit 

Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Sustain 

Sustain 

coordination and participate with incident 

management and the MRC volunteers to 
identify community resources that can 
support volunteer post-deployment medical 
screening, stress, and well-being 

assessments and when requested or 

indicated, have a process to refer 
volunteers to medical and 
mental/behavioral health services. 

MRC Coordinator will help in the 

coordination and participate with incident 

management personnel and the MRC 

volunteers to identify community resources 
that can support volunteer exit screening 
process and medical screening, stress, and 

well-being assessments and when 
requested or indicated, have a process to 

refer volunteers to medical and 

mental/behavioral health services. 

The written kinds and types of 
deployment services that are made 
available to volunteers. 

The written kinds and types of 
deployment services that are made 
available to volunteers 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and local Planning", Marcl1 2011 
PHEP Capability #15: Volunteer Management Page 73 of 73 WCHD ASPR07-13 

76



Washoe County Health District 
PW>licHeall:h 
Pr~,·~nt. Promol£, l'rot.,~t. 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: September 26, 2013 

DATE: September 17, 2013 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Patsy Buxton, Fiscal Compliance Officer, Washoe County Health District & 
775-328-2418, pbuxton@washoecountv.us 

THROUGH: Eileen Stickney, Administrative Health Services Officer, Washoe County Health ~~f 
District, 775-328-2417, esticlmev@washoecountv.us \:Y 

SUBJECT: Approval of Subgrant Amendment #2 from the Division of Public and 
Behavioral Health in the total amount of $1,045,473 (with $104,547.30 or 10% match) for 
the budget period July I, 2012 through December 31, 2013 in support of the Centers for 
Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) Public Health Preparedness Program; approve 
amendments totaling an increase of $128,275 in both revenue and expense to the FY14 
CDC Public Health Preparedness Federal Grant Program, IO l 0713; and if approved 
authorize the Chairman to execute. 

SUMMARY 
The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve and e~~ecute, or direct the Health 
Officer to execute, contracts in excess of $50,000, Interlocal Agreements and amendments to the 
adopted budget. 

The Washoe County Health District received a Subgrant Amendment #2 from the Division of 
Public and Behavioral Health for the period July l, 2012 (coffected from 7/1113) through 
December 31, 2013 in the total amount of$1,045,473 in support of the CDC Public Health 
Preparedness Grant Program. A copy of the Subgrant Amendm~nt #2 is attached. 

District Board of Health strategic priority: Protect populatic.n from health problems and 
health hazards. 

BCC Strategic Objective supported by this item: Safe, Secure and Healthy Communities. 

This item supports the Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness (EPHP) Division's mission 
to strengthen the capacity of public health infrastructure to detect, assess, and respond decisively 
to control the public health consequences ofbioterrorism events or any public health emergency. 

AGENDA ITEM#_ 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET I P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2400 FAX (775) 328-2279 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUMITY EMPLOYER 
PRINTi=n nf\1 1n::rvr1 i::n i:ill.Di::D 

1

wflores
Typewritten Text
DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.C.7

wflores
Rectangle



PREVIOUS ACTION 
The District Board of Health approved the Notice of Subgrant Award from the Nevada State 
Health Division in the amount of$665,000 for the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013 insupport 
of the CDC Public Health Preparedness Program at their August 23, 2012 meeting. 

BACKGROUND 
The Nevada State Health Division has awarded the Public Health Preparedness Program 
$1,045,473 for the budget period July 1, 2012 through December 31, 2013. Funds will be used 
to support personnel, travel, other professional services, and operating expenditures. Items 
include but are not limited to: hydration and nutrition (water/juice/coffee and snacks/light lunch) 
to be provided for participants in training exercises, meetings and other grant activities to ensure 
continuity of active participation; Incentives (non-cash value gift cards such as Walmart, 
Starbucks, etc) to be provided to preparedness training facilitators, etc. who volunteer their time 
training staff; incentives for meeting and training participants. 

The FY14 CDC Budget was projected at $665,000. Budget period 2 only reflects six months of 
authority. It is anticipated that a second round of funding in the amount of$380,473 will be 
awarded after the next Interim Finance Committee meeting scheduled for October 22, 2013. 
There was $63,773 in unspent funds from budget period I. The budget amendment talces into 
account receiving the second round of funding and will bring the Notice ofSubgrant Award into 
alignment with the progran1 budget. 

This award currently includes $40,3 76 of indirect revenue. No budget adjustment is needed for 
the indirect revenue. 

This budget amendment will also require Board of County Commissioners approval. 

FISCAL IMP ACT 
Should the Board approve these budget amendments, the adopted FY 14 budget will be 
increased by $128,275 in the following accounts: 

Amount of 
Account Number Description lncrease/(Decrease) 

2002-10-10713 -431100 Federal Revenue $128,275 
Total Revenue $128,275 

2002-10-10713-701130 Pooled Positions 1,955 
2002-10-10713-701412 Salary Adjustment 18,982 
2002-10-10713-705360 Benefit Adjustment (13,398) 
2002-10-10713-7101 DO Professional Svcs 94,720 
2002-10-10713-710110 Contracted/Temp Services 24,809 
2002-10-10713 -710205 Repairs and Maintenance (500) 
2002-10-10713-710300 Operating Supplies (1,950) 
2002-10-10713 -710334 Copy Machine Expense 50 
2002-10-10713-710350 Office Supplies 3,000 
2002-10-10713-710355 Books and Subscriptions 325 
2002-10-10713 -710360 Postage (50) 
2002-10-10713-710361 Express and Courier (50) 

2



2002-10-10713-710500 Other Expense 750 
2002-10-10713 -710502 Printing (200) 
2002-10-10713-710505 Rental Equipment 127 
2002-10-10713-710508 Telephone Land Lines 950 
2002-10-10713 -710509 Seminars and Meetings 1,300 
2002-10-10713-710512 Auto Expense (300) 
2002-10-10713-710529 Dues 35 
2002-10-10713 -710872 Food Purchases 800 
2002-10-10713-711010 Utilities (180) 
2002-10-10713-711114 Equip Srv 0 & M 26 

2002-10-10713-711210 Travel (2,676) 
2002-10-10713-711504 Equipment nonCapita/ (250) 

Total Expenditures $128,275 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Washoe County District Board of Health approve Subgrant 
Amendment #2 from the Division of Public and Behavioral Health in the total amount of 
$1 ,045,473 (with $104,547.30 or 10% match) for the budget period July 1, 2012 through 
December 31, 2013 in support of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) Public 
Health Preparedness Progran1; approve amendments totaling an increase of$128,275 in both 
revenue and expense to the FYl4 CDC Public Health Preparedness Federal Grant Program, IO 
10713; and if approved authorize the Chaim1an to execute. 

POSSIBLE MOTION 
Move to approve Sub grant Amendment #2 from the Division of Public and Behavioral Health in 
the total amount of$1,045,473 (with $104,547.30 or 10% match) for the budget period July 1, 
2012 through December 31, 2013 in support of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 
(CDC) Public Health Preparedness Progran1; approve amendments totaling an increase of 
$128,275 in both revenue and expense to the FY14 CDC Public Health Preparedness Federal 
Grant Program, IO 10713; and if approved authorize the Chaimmn to execute. 

3



Program Name: 

Department of Health and Human Services 

Division Public & Behavioral Health 

(hereinafter referred to as the DIVISION) 

SUBGRANT AIVIENDIVIENT #2 

Subgrantee Name: 

Division #: 13015-2 -----
Program #: CDC08-13 

Budget Account#: 3218 -----
Category #: 22 -----

GL#: 8501 
Job #: -9~3=-c0c-c6-c9-c-13-

Public Health Preparedness Washoe County Health District (WCHD) 
Health Planning & Emergency Response 
Division Public & Behavioral Health 

Address: Address: 
4150 Technology Way, Suite #200 1001 East Ninth Street 
Carson City, NV 89706-2009 Reno, NV 89520 

Subgrant Period: Subgrantee's 
July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2017 EIN#: 88-6000138 
Subgrant Bµdget Period: Vendor#: T40283400Q 
July 1, 201$)hrough December 31, 2013 Dun & Bradstreet#: 073786998 

Source of Funds: % of Funds: CFDA#: Federal Grant #: 

1. Center for Disease Control and Prevention 100% 93.069 5U90TP000534-02 

Amendment #2: 

The purpose of this amendment is to incre~ the funding by $380,473 to cover expenses incurred during 
six months of Budget Period 2 (July 1, 201 rough December 31, 2013) and to add a new Scope of Work 
for Budget Period 2 as detailed in Attachment A and B. The new grand total for this subgrant award is 
$1,045,473.00. 

Budget Period 1 Budget Period 2 Grand Total 
{7/1/12-6/30/13) {7/1/13-12/31/13) {7/1/12-12/31/13) 

1. Personnel $ 425,585 $ 269, 172.50 $ 694,757.50 
2. Contractual/Consultant $ 115,634 $ 57, 112.00 $ 172,746.00 
3. Travel $ 10,200 $ 5,062.00 $ 15,262.00 
4. Equipment $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 
5. Supplies $ 18,936 $ 2,625.00 $ 21,561.00 
6. Other $ 45,823 $ 6, 125.50 $ 51,948.50 
7. Indirect $ 48 822 $ 40,376.00 $ 89,198.00 

Total Cost $ 665,000 $ 380,473.00 $ 1,045,473.00 

By signing this Amendment, the Authorized Subgrantee Official or their designee, Program Manager, Bureau 
Chief, and Health Division Administrator acknowledge the above as the new scope of work for the above 
referenced Subgrant. Further, the undersigned understand this amendment does not alter, in any substantial 
way, the non-referenced contents of the Original Subgrant Award and all of its Attachments. 

Authorized Sub-grantee Official 
;;:1gnature Date 

Washoe County Health District /) /, 

t' Erin Seward . - I 

f/5/!3 Health Program Manager II, PHP f:ti// 1t.icttl/2> / 
Chad Westom ,, tt--Jo ' Cfgz,,d) 

,...,.,, l 

fr'\ ; '-/ !1'. '1/ . Bureau Chief L \.,, l• .._../\.: ·-~- .. . ···1 ,-
(, I I :S 

' Richard Whitley, MS 

rLJC11VV2/dOCcJ2&,f J~/ Administrator, Division of q·,rL !3 
Public and Behavioral Health 

t ..... ll :1 '.1-, VI~ I 1,f i/1;./L 
COCOB-13 WCHD Page 1of96 
4



This page intentionally left blank 

CDCOB-13 WCHD Page 2 of 96 Privileged Communication 5



DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
NOTICE OF SUBGRANT AWARD 

SECTION A 
Assurances 

o All original terms and conditions remain unchanged. 

SECTION B 
Description of services, scope of work, deliverables and reimbursement 

o The attached Scope of Work is for Budget Period 2, July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 and is broken 
down by capability, task and function. Attachment A: Capability Summary, shows the estimated allocation 
of awarded funds and proposed subgrantee effort by capability. Attachment B contains the 15 capabilities 
under this subgrant award including, but not limited to, the subgrantee planned activities and performance 
measure planned activities. 

• Achievement of Capability Objectives for Budget Period 2 to be completed by June 30, 2014. Outcome 
of the funded Capabilities will be measured by Division of Public and Behavioral Health. Each funded 
capability requires substantial achievement and demonstration of completion as specified in the Scope 
of Work of the funded functions and resource elements. If objectives are not met, Division of Public and 
Behavioral Health may reduce the amount of this subgrant award and reallocate funding to other 
preparedness priorities within the state. 

• Submit written Progress Reports to the Division of Public & Behavioral Health electronically according to 
the following schedule. This schedule may change due to availability of reporting templates and 
scheduled site visits. The Quarterly Reports are cumulative progress reports and should be submitted 
with the Request for Reimbursement at the end of the month. 

o October 31, 2014 Quarterly Progress Report- Year 2 
o January 31, 2014 Mid Year Progress Report- Year 2 
o April 30, 2014 Quarterly Progress Report- Year 2 
o July 31, 2014 Annual Progress Report- Year 2 
o October 31, 2015 Quarterly Progress Report - Year 3 
o January 31, 2015 Mid Year Progress Report - Year 3 
o April 30, 2015 Quarterly Progress Report - Year 3 
o July 31, 2015 Annual Progress Report - Year 3 
o October 31, 2015 Quarterly Progress Report - Year 4 
o January 15, 2016 Mid Year Progress Report - Year 4 
o April 30, 2016 Quarterly Progress Report- Year 4 
o July 31, 2016 Annual Progress Report-Year4 
o October 31, 2016 Quarterly Progress Report - Year 5 
o January 15, 2017 Mid Year Progress Report- Year 5 
o April 30, 2017 Quarterly Progress Report - Year 5 
o July 31, 2017 Final Progress Report - Year 5 

(For the period of 07/01 /13 - 9/30/13) 
(For the period of07/01/13-12/31/13) 
(For the period of 07/01/13- 3/31/14) 
(For the period of07/01/13-06/30/14) 
(For the period of 07/01/14 - 9/30/14) 
(For the period of 07/01/14 - 12/31/14) 
(For the period of 07/01/14- 3/31/15) 
(For the period of 07/01/14 - 06/30/15) 
(For the period of 07/01 /15 - 9/30/15) 
(For the period of 07 /01 /15 - 12/31 /15) 
(For the period of 07/01/15 - 3/31/16) 
(For the period of 07/01/15 - 06/30/16) 
(For the period of 07/01/16 - 9/30/16) 
(For the period of 07/01/16-12/31/16) 
(For the period of 07/01/16- 3/31/17) 
(For the period of 07/01 /16 - 06/30/17) 

• Schedule of Quarterly Match/Cost Sharing Reports remains unchanged. 

(continued on next page) 

CDCOB-13 WCHD Page 3 of 96 Privileged Communication 6



Subgrantee agrees to adhere to the following Year 2 budget through December 31, 2013: 

1. Personnel $ 269, 172.50 
Director, Epidemiology and Public Health Prep 75% 
Public Health Preparedness Manager 70% 
Administrative Secretary 50% 
Public Health Emergency Response Coordinator 95% 
Health Educator II 75% 
Public Information Officer 65% 
Public Health Emergency Response Coordinator 5% 
MRC Program Coordinator 50% 
Epidemiologist - Intermittent Hrly Position 100% 
Fringe Benefits (39.17%). 

2. Contractual/ $ 57, 112.00 
Contract Services 

Regional Planner, Environmental Health Consultant, 
Pharmacist, Administrative Analysts and Administrative 
Support. 

3. Travel 

4. Equipment 

5. Supplies 

6. Other 

7. Indirect 

Total Cost 

$ 5,062.00 

$ 0 

$ 2,625.00 

$ 6,125.50 

In-State and Out-of-State Travel in accordance with Federal GSA Rates. 

Office Supplies and Operating Supplies. 

Telephone Services; Postage; Copy Machine; Printing Books, Publications, 
Subscriptions; Membership Dues; Educational Supplies; Equipment 
Repair; Minor Furniture and Equipment; Rental Space/Meeting 
Incentives; Rental Space -Antiviral Storage; Equipment Services -
Vehicle asset Management Fee I Operating and Maintenance /Charge 
(for truck) and Satellite phones. 

$ 40,376.00 15.0% Direct Costs excluding capital expenditures, sub-awards and flow 
through funds. 

$ 380,473.00 

• The maximum approved funding under this subgrant has increased by $380,473.00 for six months of 
Year 2 budget period which covers July 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013. The grand total for this 
subgrant award is $1,045,473.00. 

• Requests for Reimbursement will be accompanied by supporting documentation, including the 
Reimbursement Worksheet and any required invoice copies. All Budget Period 1 and Budget Period 2 
expenses will be submitted separately. The Budget Period 2 Request for Reimbursement is included in 
Section C. Requests for Reimbursement are due on or before the 30th of the following month. 

• At the end of this budget period WCHD may submit a written request for carry-over of unexpended 
funding into the next budget period. The carry-over request may not exceed 10% of the current budget 
period awarded amount or a total equal to or less than $38,047.30. The request to carry-over must be 
submitted by April 30, 2014 and include a breakdown of estimated carry-over funding by category and by 
capability, reason or barriers which resulted in the carry-over and the planned scope of work to be 
completed with these carry-over funds. Please Note that a Carry-Over request is not a guarantee. 

• Costs associated with food or meals are NOT permitted unless included with per diem as a apart of 
official travel. Meals cannot be claimed within 50 miles of the official workstation. 

CDCOB-13 WCHD Page 4 of 96 Privileged Communication 

7



o Subgrantee agrees to cost share/match a nonfederal contribution in the amount of 10% ($1 for each $1 O 
of federal funds provided in this subgrant). The Cost Sharing/Match for Budget Year 2 will be 
$38,047.30 for a grand total Cost Sharing/Match of $104,547.30. ·This match may be provided directly 
or through donations from public or private entities and may be in cash or in kind, fairly evaluated, 
including plant, equipment or services. Amounts provided by the federal government or services 
assisted or subsidized to any significant extent by the federal government may not be included in 
determining the amount of such nonfederal contributions. Documentation of match, including methods 
and sources must be available upon request of Division Public & Behavioral Health. Subgrantee will 
sign attached Match Certification (Attachment 1 ). 

• Reimbursement Worksheet will be submitted along with each Request for Reimbursement: 

> Insert detailed breakdown of all monthly expenditures included in the attached reimbursement 
request (column c). 

> Provide complete travel detail including purpose of travel and attach copies of travel claim summary 
(if available). 

> Attached invoice copies for all items listed in ContracUConsultant and Equipment. Also attach 
invoices for all Supplies and Other purchases that are over $500 per item. NOTE: Supplies are 
items which have a consumable live of less than 1 year and Equipment are items over $5,000 per 
item OR have a consumable live of over 1 year (ie: laptops, iPads, printers, etc ... ). 

> Return document along with the monthly reimbursement request. 

o Budget Request and Justification Form will be submitted along with each Request for Reimbursement: 

> Insert your total monthly expenditure amount from your attached reimbursement request in column 
a. 

> Provide the percentage of the capabilities these funds are to be applied against in column b. 
> If utilizing an electronic copy, this will auto-populate the dollar amount in column c. 
> Return document along with the monthly reimbursement request. 

CDCOB-13 WCHD Page 5 of 96 Privileged Communication 8



HEAL TH DIVISION 
NOTICE OF SUBGRANT AWARD 

SECTION C 
Financial Reporting Requirements 

Request for Reimbursement form 

.,,. A Request for Reimbursement is due on a monthly basis, based on the terms of the subgrant agreement, no 
later than the 30th of the month . 

.,,. Reimbursement is based on actual expenditures incurred during the period being reported . 

.,,. Payment will not be processed without all reporting being current and without the Reimbursement Worksheet. 

.,,. Reimbursement may only be claimed for expenditures approved within the Notice of Subgrant Award . 

.,,. PLEASE REPORT IN DOLLARS and CENTS (No Rounding) 

Provide the following information on the top portion of the form: Subgrantee name and address where the check is to be 
sent, Health Division (subgrant) number, Bureau program number, draw number, employer 1.0. number (EIN) and Vendor 
number. 

An explanation of the form is provided below. 

A. Approved Budget: List the approved budget amounts in this column by category. 

B. Total Prior Requests: List the total expenditures for all previous reimbursement periods in this column, for each 
category, by entering the numbers found on Lines 1-8, Column D on the previous Request for ReimbursemenUAdvance 
Form. If this is the first request for the subgrant period, the amount in this column equals zero. 

C. Current Request: List the current expenditures requested at this time for reimbursement in this column, for each 
category. 

D. Year to Date Total: Add Column Band Column C for each category. 

E. Budget Balance: Subtract Column D from Column A for each category. 

F. Percent Expended: Divide Column D by Column A for each category and total. Monitor this column; it will help to 
determine if/when an amendment is necessary. Amendments MUST be completed (including all approving signatures) 30 
days prior to the end of the subgrant period. 

CDCOB-13 WCHD Page 6 of 96 Privileged Communication 

9



PrOC1ram Name: 

Nevada Departrn.em of Health and Human Services 
Division Public & Behavioral Health 

Public Health Preparedness Program 

Grand Total 

REQUEST FOR REllVlBllRSEi\/ENT 
Subcirantee Name: 

Division# 13015-2 
Program# COCOB-13 

G..# 8516 
Job#: 9306913 

D.-aJV#: -----

Public Health Preparedness Washoe County Health District (V\CHD) 
Health Planning & Errergency Response 
Nevada State Health Division 

Address: Address: 

4150Technology\/Vay, Suite200 1001 East Ninth Street 
Carson City, NV 89706 Reno, NV 89520 
Subc!rant Period: Subgrantee EIN #: 88-6000138 
July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2017 

Subgrantee Vendor#: T40283400Q 
Subarant Budget Period: 
July 1, 2013 through Decerrber 31, 2013 Dun & Bradstreet#: 73786998 

FINANaAL REPORT AND REQUEST FOR. FUNDS 

(report in dollars and cents; must be accompanied by expenditure report/back-up) 

Month(s): Calendar Year: 

A B c D 
E F 

l'pproved Budget Category l'pproved Total Aior CUITenl Year To 
Budget Balance 

Percent 
Budget Requests Request Date Total Expended 

1 Personnel $ 694,758 $ 415,234.05 $ 0.00 $ 415,234.05 $ 279,523.45 60% 

2 Contract/Consultant $ 172,746 $ 73,184.87 $ 0.00 $ 73,184.87 $ 99,561.13 42% 

3 Travel $ 15,262 $ 8,194.81 $ 0.00 $ 8, 194.81 $ 7,067.19 54% 

4 Supplies $ 21,561 $ 18,935.69 $ 0.00 $ 18,935.69 $ 2,625.31 88% 

5 Equiprrent $ 0$ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 0% 

6 other $ 51,949 $ 44,360.42 $ 0.00 $ 44,360.42 $ 7,588.08 85% 

7 Indirect $ 89, 198 $ 41,316.81 $ 0.00 $ 41,316.81 $ 47,881.19 0% 

8 Total $ 1,045.473 $ 601,226.65 $ 0.00 $ 601,226.65 $ 444,246.35 58% 

This report is true and correct to 1he best of rry knc:Mledge. 

Jl.uthorized Signature TIUe Date 

R3ninder: F-Equest for Farrburserrent cannot be processed wthout an eiq:ienditure report/backup. Farrburserrent is only 
allCM.ed for i1Errs contained wlhin Subgrant AIAE!rd docurren!s. If applicable, tra\.81 claiJTS rrust accorrpany report 

FCR f-EALlH Dl\/ISIO\J USE CN...Y 

Programcontactnecessary? __ Yes -- l\b Contact Person: 

R=ason for contact 

Fiscal revie.N'approval dale: Signed: 

Scope of \/\brk revie.N'approval dale: Signed: 

N30 or Bureau Chief (as required): C\3te: 

CDCOB-13 WCHD Page 7 of 96 Privileged Communication 10



Prooram Name: 

Nevada Department of Health and Human Services 
Division Public & Behavioral Health 
Public Health Preparedness Program 

Budget Period 1 

REQUEST FOR RBIVEURSBVENT 
SubQrantee Name: 

Dil.ision # 13015-1 
Program# COC08-12 

Q# 8516 
Joo tt. 93009128 

Drcmtt. ____ _ 

Public Health Preparedness Vl!.3shoe County Health District (VICHD) 

Health Planning & ErrErgency Response 
Nevada State Health Division 

Address: Address: 

4150Technology\N.3y, Suite200 1001 East Ninth Street 
Carson Qty, NV 89706 Reno, NV 89520 

Subqrant Period: Subgrantee BN #:. 88-6000138 

July 1, 2012throughJune30, 2017 
Subgrantee Vendor#:. T40283400Q 

SubQrant BudQet Period: 
July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013 Dun & Bradstreet#:. 73786998 

FINANCIAL REPORT AND REQUEST FOR FUNDS 

(report in dollars and cents; must be accompanied by expenditure report/back-up) 

Month(s): Calendar Year: 

A B c D 
E 

F 
PpprcTua:l Bu:lget Category PpprcTua:l Total Prier Current Y63rTo 

Budget Balance 
Percait 

Budget Ra:µsts ReqLESt Date Total Bq:al:!a:J 

1 Personnel $ 425,585 $ 415,234.05 $ 0.00 $ 415,234.05 $ 10,350.95 98% 

2 Contract/Consultant $ 115,634 $ 73,184.87 $ 0.00 $ 73,184.87 $ 42,449.13 63% 

3 Travel $ 10,200 $ 8,194.81 $ 0.00 $ 8,194.81 $ 2,005.19 80% 

4 Supplies $ 18,936 $ 18,935.69 $ 0.00 $ 18,935.69 $ D.31 100% 

5 Equiprrent $ 0$ D.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ D.00 O"lo 

6 Other $ 45,823 $ 44,360.42 $ 0.00 $ 44,360.42 $ 1,46258 97% 

7 Indirect $ 48,822 $ 41,316.81 $ 0.00 $ 41,316.81 $ 7,505.19 O"/o 

8 Total $ 635,000 $ 601,226.65 $ D.00 $ 601,226.65 $ 63,773.35 90"/o 

This report is true and correct to 1he best of ITT/ kncM.ledge. 

Authorized Signature litie Dale 

Rsrrinder Rsquest for R=irrburserrent cannot be processed Vlithout an eiq:iencliture report/backup. R=irrburserrent is only 
allCMed for ilerTB contained Vli1hin Subgrant AVIBrd docurrents. If applicable, tra.el clalrrs rrust a::carpany report 

FCR I-EAL 1H 01\/ISICN USE O\L Y 

Programcorilact necessary? __ Yes -- f\b Contact Person: 

R=ason for cori1act 

Rscal raicw'approo date: Signed: 

Scope of W:Jrk raicw'approo date: Signed: 

Proor Bureau Chief (a;; required): Date: 

CDCOB-13 WCHD Page 8 of 96 Privileged Communication 

11



Nevada Departmem of Health and! Hrnnan Sel"Vic:es 
Division Public & Behavioral Health Division# 13015-2 
Public Health Preparedness Program 

Buclget Period 2 

REQUEST FOR RBll/BURSEIVENT 

PrOQram Name: Subqrantee Name: 

Program# COC08-13 
Q# 8516 

Job#. 9306913 

Dravv#. -----

Public Health Preparedness Washoe County Health District (\/\CHO) 
Health Planning & Errergency Response 
Nevada State Health Division 

Address: Address: 

4150 Technology \Nay, Suite 200 1001 East Ninth Slreel 
Carson Otv, NV 89706 Reno, NV 89520 
SubQrant Period: Subgrantee BN #-. 88-6000138 
July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2017 

Subgrantee Vendor#-. T40283400Q 
Subqrant Budciet Period: 
July 1, 2013 through Decerrber 31, 2013 Dun & Bradstreet#-. 73786998 

FINANCIAL REPORT AND REQUEST FOR FUNDS 

(report in dollars and cents; must be accompanied by expenditure report/back-up) 

Morrth(s): Calendar Vear: 

A B c D E F 
Ppproved Budget Category l'pproved Total Prior Current Year To 

Budget Balance Percent 
Budget Requests Request Dale Total BqErded 

1 Personnel $ 269, 173 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 269,17250 0% 

2 Contract/Consultant $ 57, 112 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 57, 112.00 0% 

3 Travel $ 5,002 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 5,062.00 O"/o 

4 Supplies $ 2,625 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 2,625.00 O"/o 

5 Equiprrent $ 0$ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 O"/o 

6 Other $ 6,126 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 6,125.50 O"/o 

7 Indirect $ 40,376 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 40,376.00 O"/o 

8 Total $ 380,473 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 380,473.00 O"/o 
This report is true and correct to the best of rry kn:Mledge. 

Authorized Signature lltle Date 

R=rrinder: R=quest for Farrburserrent cannot be processed wthout an eiq:ienditure report/backup. FarrburS6TE!ll: is 
only a!ICM.ed for item; contained wthin S~rant Aw3rd doc:urrents. If applicable, tra\.el clairrs rrust accorrpany report 

Fffil-EAL.lH Dl\/ISIQ\J USE O\l...Y 

Program cmtact necessary? __ Yes -- l\l:J Contact Person 

R=ason for contact 

Fiscal reviei\lapproval date: Signed: 

Scope of \/\brk revieM'approval date: Signed: 

Aroor Bureau Chief (as required): Date: 

CDCOB-13 WCHD Page 9 of 96 Privileged Communication 12



Washoe County Health District (V\.cHD} 

Rei ni:Jurserrent \11.brl<sheet 

July1-July31, 2013 

Personnel 11tle Description Arrount 

TOfAL 

Contract I Consultant Description Arrount 

TOfAL 
Travel Mleage@ Lodging& AirFare 

(Name of Traveler) Travel Dates To $0.565/ni Per Diem &Msc Purpose/ Description Arrount 

TOfAL 

Supplies Description Arrount 

TOfAL 

Equipment Description (attach invoice copies for all items) Arrount 

TOfAL 

Other Description Arrount 

TOfAL 

Indirect Description Arrount 

TOfAL 

lUfAL EXPENDITURES 

CDCOB-13 WCHD Page 10 of 96 Privileged Communication 
13



Nevada State Division of Public & Behavioral Health: Public Health Preparedness 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) 
Budget Request and Justification Form 

Washoe County Health District (WCHD) 

July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 

Contact Name: 

Phone Number: 

E-Mail Address: 

Applicant/ Agency Name: 
Total Agency Request: 

Jeff Whiteside 

775-328-6130 
jwhitesides@washoecounty.us 
WCHD 
$760,946 - Year 2 

**Insert your total monthly expenditure amount below from your attached reimbursement request in column a. Provide the percentage of the 

capabilities these funds are to be applied against in column b. Jf utilizing an electronic copy this will auto-populate the dollar amount in column c. 
Return this document along with your monthly reimbursement request. This will provide a tracking to expedite the mid- and end-of-year progress 

reporting. 

**Please contact us if you have any questions. 

Budget Summary 

CDC Capabilities: 
1. Comm unity Pre_paredhess: 

Fl: Determine risks to the health of the jurisdiction 

F2: Build community partnerships to support health 

preparedness 

Monthly Expenditure: 

F3: Engage with community organizations to foster public 

health, medical, and mental/behavioral health social networks 

F4: Coordinate training or guidance to ensure commur 

engagement in preparedness efforts 

2. corri~~ri·i_t_y-Re~q~~~-iY-: 
Fl: Identify and monitor public health, medical, and mental/ 

behavioral health system recovery needs 

F2: Coordinate community public health, medical, and mental/ 

behavioral health system recovery operations 

F3: Implement corrective actions to mitigate damages 

incidents 

3_.,,. -Er11'~'.¥enc_y __ q_~:~ratit?ns -.~9--~-r~ _ination: 
Fl: Conduct preliminary assessment to determine need 

for public activation 

F2: Activate public health emergency operations 

F3: Develop ·incident response strategy 

F4: Manage and sustain the public health response 
FS: Demobilize and evaluate public health Emergency 
op_erations _ _ __ __ _ _ 

4. Emergency Public lnfonr1ation and Wa~ning: 
Fl: Activate the emergency public information system 

F2: Determine the need for a joint public information system 

F3: Establish and participate in information system operations 

F4: Establish avenue for public interaction and information 
exchange 

FS: Issue public information, alerts, warnings, and notifications 

CDCOB-13 WCHD Page 11of96 

(a) (b) 

Current% 

Utilized 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

(c) 
Current$ 
Utilized 

Privileged Communication 14



Budget Summary - Page 2 

Monthly Expenditure: 

.CDC Capabilities: 

5. Fatality Management: 

Fl: Determine role for public health in fatality management 

F2: Activate public health fatality management operations 

F3: Assist in the collection and dissemination of antemortem data 

F4: Participate in survivor mental/behavior health services 
F5: Participate in fatality processing and storage operations 

6. Information Sharing: . 

Fl: Identify stakeholders to be incorporated into information flow 

F2: Identify and develop rules and data elements for sharing 

F3: Exchange information to determine a commmon operating picture 

:7, Mass Care: No Activity 

. 8. Medical Countermeasure Dispe.nsing: 

Fl: Identify and initiate medical countermeasure dispensing strategies 

F2: Receive medical countermeasurers 

F3: Activate dispensing modalities 

F4: Dispense medical countermeasures to identified population 

F5: Report adverse events 

9. 11/l~clical Materlal Management and Distribution: 
Fl: Direct and activate medical material management and distribution 

F2: Acquire medical material 

F3: Maintain updated inventory management and reporting system 

F4: Estabish and maintain security 

F5: Distribute medical material 
F5: Recover medical material and demobilize distribution operations 

\~o, M~dica!SJrge: · 
Fl: Assess the nature and scope of the incident 

F2: Support activation of medical surge 

F3: Supportjusrisdictional medical surge operations 

F4: Support demobilization of me.dical surge operations 
· 11. Nori-Ph.armaceutical lntervent.ions: 

Fl: Engage partners and identify factors that impact non-pharmaceutical 

inteiventions 

F2: Determine non-pharmaceutical intervention 

F3: Implement non-pharmaceutical interventions 

F5: Monitor non-pharmaceutical interventions 

!12. PublicHealthiab~rat!lr/:f~stini: ••.· .· •J ·· 
[~3.cP.~bJi<::~ealth)urvejlla~~c_e:an~'gpi 1nt~~igati()n: 

Fl: Conduct public health surveillance and detection 

F2: Conduct public health and epidemiological investigations 

F3: Recommend, monitor, and analyze mitigation actions 

F4: Improve public health surveillance and epidemiological 

investigation systems 

CDCOB-13 WCHD Page 12 of 96 

(a) (b) 
Current% 

Utilized 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

(c) 
Current$ 
Utilized 

Privileged Communication 
15



Budget Summary - Page 3 

Monthly Expenditure: 

CDC Capabilities: 
14. Responder Safety and Health: 

Fl: Identify responder safety and health risks 

F2: Identify safety and personal protective needs 

F3: Coordinate with partners to facilitate risk-specific safety and 

health training 

F3: Exchange information to determine a commmon operating picture 

15. Volunteer Man~gemerit: 

Fl: Coordinate volunteers 

F2: Notify volunteers 

F3: Organize, assemble, and dispatch volunteers 

F4: Demobilize volunteers 

CDCOB-13 WCHD Page 13 of 96 

(a) (b) 

current% 

Utilized 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

(c) 
Current$ 

Utilized 

Privileged Communication 16



This page intentionally left blank 

CDCOB-13 WCHD Page 14 of 96 Privileged Communication 
17



Date: 

External Funding 
Source: 

ATTACHMENT 1 

Nevada State I Division Public & Behavioral Health 
Public Health Preparedness Program 

Match Certification 

Centers for Disease Control (CDC)- Public Health Emergency 
Preparedness (PHEP) 

A mandatory cost sharing/matching cost contribution is required for the following 
proposal: 

Funding Recipient: Washoe County Health District (WCHD) 

Project Title: HPP and PHEP Cooperative Agreement 

Project Grant#: 5U90TP000534-02 

CDCOS-13 

Duration: From: __ J_u_l~y_1~, _20_1_3 __ To: December31,2013 

Total cost sharing/matching cost contribution: $38,047.30 I Percentage: 10% 

Source of cost sharing/matching cost contribution: 

Name: 

Account# (if applicable): ----------------------------

Funding recipient hereby certifies that the identified cost sharing/matching cost 
contribution is not being used to match any other funding source. 

Washoe County Health District 
Name and Title 

(Funding Recipient) 
Signature Date 

CDCOB-13 WCHD Page 15 of 96 Privileged Communication 18



This page intentionally left blank 

CDCOB-13 WCHD Page 16 of 96 Privileged Communication 
19



Attachment A: Capability Summary 
Washoe County Health District (WCHD) 

CDC Public Health Emergency Preparedness (BP2) Subgrant #CDC 08-13 

July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2014 

Funding - Budget Perod Z: $760,946 

•Bu,dget Fund '.•' <).[0 ,: .,.. . !· ·.··· Capabilit\l/~~htt)~~ Name 
. 

<%;--. Allo~~tioll•·'·: ~·:'.??;;! ·;. '· '•', -_ -: ·. 
' -<· 

... .· 
• . 

9.2% $69,954 1 Community Preparedness 

·' 
-- __ .::_----- Sustain 

. 

Fl Determine risks to the health of the jurisdiction 
.. .· :'' . ·. :: ····.· cf' Utilize jurisdictiona I risk assessment to identify far which the jurisdiction needs to have access to 

. { 
.... .·. Sustain Tl 

,. i. ••.. . . •• : mitigate identified disaster hea Ith risks. 
·. ::·, < __ " -- Utilize jurisdictional risk assessment to identify within the jurisdiction that currently support the 

Sustain T2 ••• •.... · ... ·· . ' .. mitigation of identified disaster health risks. 
. 

I ·: • ·: . . ·.· ··:• •·. . Sustain Pl Identification of vulnerable populations. .. 
. ''." .::• ... .!'>·· . ·· Sustain P2 Jurisdictional risk assessment related to public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health . ., 

· .. .:c.::: . .. ···· 
::-:. : ______ -: ,,.,'. Sustain 51 Person(s) with expertise in GIS to assist in locating/mapping at-risk populations. . . . 

.· ·.•• : . ;.. . Build F2 Build community partnerships to support health preparedness. 
I , . 

' , __ -_;.:.:-~};!,:::~.--:·:·: -_.-- ', _-_·;:. \ Identify community sector groups to be engaged for partnership based upon the jurisdictional risk .. 
Sustain Tl 

·. 
.,. 

. -_ '' ' assessment . 
··. . •?: ... ···· '•.: . 

..··. . 
Create and implement strategies for ongoing engagement with community partners who may be able to 

'·· :··. Sustain T2 
I ·. _,_:::_., -"' ,--,.-' ---,, , . provide services to mitigate identified public health threats or incidents 

· .. ;£ 
••••••••• • 

.. · .. . Build T3 Utilize community agencies to help assure the community's ability to deliver public health, medical, and 
. 

,·:' ":• .. ; . mental/behaviora I hea Ith services in both short and long term settings during and after an incident . . . ' 

. . .. ·.· ··: . Utilize a continuous quality improvement process to incorporate feedback from community and faith-
Sustain T4 

.. . ··.· . . ······· ,· based partners into jurisdictional emergency operations plans . 
. 

. , 
. .... 

• Build TS Identify community leaders that can act as trusted spokespersons to deliver public health messages . ·. 

:. .. . . Build Pl Participation in existing or new partnerships representing the listed community sectors. 
.. 

Sustain ·, P2 Protocol to encourage or promote medical personnel to register and participate with MRC or 
.· Build F3 Engage with community organizations to foster public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health social networks. 

· .. .. ·.·.· ... 
Ensure that community constituency groups understand how to connect to public health to participate 

1:-- - _;- _<_:: _ _::/:-'-~ > . ·•·· •.::/ ... ·.· Build Tl 
in public health and community partner preparedness efforts . . 

.. ·. ;:;::r:ii': : "" > .• ;<• ; .. 
Ensure that public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health service agencies that provide essential 

I 

•·.·.··· .:"~i·.:.2 1; ~·;; . .· Sustain T2 health services to the community are connected to jurisdictional public health preparedness plans and 
. · ... · . ·,,; .,.: .. . : ·. efforts. 
······· ,\,_, ____ ... -:: 

. ........ :·········. Create jurisdictional networks for public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health information ., 
Build T3 

- --- .:.,, .. .. dissemination before, during, and after the incident. . --,,,-, '-': 

.-...: _-, 
... •. :• .... : .... ,. .: ,•• . 

Sustain Pl !Public health approaches to address children's medical and mental/behavioral health needs. . : . ... . 

Sustain P2 I Building and sustaining volunteer opportunities for community residents. 

Capability summary Page 17 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

20



Capability Summary 

Attachment A: Capability Summary 
F4 I Coordinate training or guidance to ensure community engagement in Preparedness Efforts 

Build 

Build 

Build 

Tl 

T2 

T3 

Integrate information on resilience into existing training and educational programs related ta crisis and 
disaster preparedn_ess and response. 

, Promote training to community partners that may have a supporting role to public health, medical, and 
mental/behavioral health sectors 

Provide guidance to community partners to assist them in educating their own constituency groups 

regarding plans for addressing prep a redness for and recovery from the jurisdiction's identified risks and 
for access to health services that may apply to the incident. 

Build I Pl I Public health approaches to address children's medical and mental/behavioral health needs. 

Sustain P2 I Building and sustaining volunteer opportunities for community residents. 

Community Recovery 

Fl I Identify and monitor public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health system recovery needs. 

Sustain 

Sustain 

Sustain 

Build 

Build 

Build 

Build 

Build 

Build 

Tl 

T2 

T3 

T4 

In collaboration with jurisdictional partners, document short-term and long-term health service delivery 
priorities and goals. 

Identify the services that can be provided by the public health agency and by community and faith-based 
partners that were identified prior to the incident as well as by new community partners that may arise 
during the incident response. 

Activate plans previously created with neighboring jurisdictions ta provide identified services that the 
jurisdiction does not have the ability to provide during and after an incident. 

In conjunction with healthcare organizations determine the community's health service priorities and 
goals that are the responsibility of public health. 

Sustain I Pl I Identify recovery needs 
Sustain P2 Community assessment 

Build P3 Operational plans 
Coordinate community public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health system recovery operations. 

Tl 

T2 

T3 

T4 

TS 

Participate with the recovery lead jurisdictional agencies to ensure that the jurisdiction can provide 
health services needed to recover from a physical or mental/behavioral injury, illness, or exposure 
sustained as a result of the incident, with particular attention to the functiona I needs of at-risk persons. 

Inform the community of the availability of mental/behavioral, psychological first aid, and medical 
services within the community, with particular attention to how these services affect the functional 
needs of at-risk persons 
Notify the community via community partners of the health agency's plans for restoration of impacted 
public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health services. 
Solicit community input via community partners regarding health service recovery needs during and after 

, the acute phase of the incident. 

Partner with public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health professionals and other social 
networks from within and outside the jurisdiction to educate their constituents regarding applicable 

health interventions being recommended by public health. 

Page 18 of 96 WCH D CDCOS-13 

21



Attachment A: Capability Summary 
Build F3 Implement corrective actions to mitigate damages from future incidents 

Conduct post-incident assessment and planning as part of the after action report process that affects 
Sustain Tl short and long-term recovery for those corrective actions including the mitigation of damages from 

·.I· future incidents . 
. , ,. I. Collaborate with sector leaders to facilitate collection of community feedback to determine corrective 

··• Build n . 
·" , .. ·.• .,.. 1.. -- _ actions . 

. • ··· · 1 • Implement corrective actions for items that are with'1n the scope or control of public health to affect 
-· -- . :·t; :._~;;:· - -- 1_.· .. Sustain T3 short and long-term recovery, including the mitigation of damages from future incidents. 

· <>:> _.... · )' _ . - Fac'i1'1tate and advocate for collaboraf1ons among government agenc'les and commun'1ty partners so that 

.:J· : Build T4 these agencies can fulfill their respective roles in completing the corrective actions to protect the health 
·,/ ••(· ' .• ·· of the public. 

6% $45,898 .· 3 Emergency Operations Coordination 
,:, -----:·_· _ - ___ _ . :."···- -_ Build Fl Conduct pre1'1minary assessment to determine need for public activation . 

. , · : ,,: <, ~- -:·>-«-·, - To analyze data, assess emergency conditions and determine the activation levels based on the 
. ' • '': , .,.. : . " ., . ··· Build ' Tl . . . 

. ___ .I(_'.'.,:--·-.··:: __ -.·:::_:_ r·:J-_\.::>-,- -"~-:·--::--- -- .---- -- complexity of the event or 1nc1dent. 

·.. ·~;,;:• .' "~·5 t···. . At the time of an incident and as applicable during an incident, determine whether public health has the - :·: ... Sustain T2 
-._ . -. -- -- - lead role, a supporting role, or no role . 

. , •"' . ... ·. . Define incident command and emergency management structure for the public health event or incident 
... / I Build T3 . 

. . •" .. ·. ..·.· according to one of the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) types. 
. . .·· Sustain F2 Activate public health emergency operations 
.. · r_:._> - -. - '.·-· ·:- . Prior to an event or incident, identify incident command and emergency management functions for 
• Sustain Tl h' bl' h I h. 'bl 

• 1,, - w 1ch pu 1c eat 1s respons1 e 
Prior to an event or incident, identify a pool of staff who have the skills necessary to fulfill required 

- Sustain T2 . . 
: incident command and emergency management roles deemed necessary for a response 

- · <-<--_ Prior to an event or inddent, ·identify staff to serve in the required incident command and emergency 
_._ ·-·-- 1- . - Sustain T3 management roles for multiple operational periods to ensure continuous staffing during activation . 

. : ·o;:V. .. . ..... ·.· . Prior to an event orinc'1dent, identify primary and alternate physical locations or a virtual structure that 
> '""" ·· "" .. · .. · ·.. Build . T

4 
will serve as the public health emergency operations center. 

• :·· ..... ••• "·· . Sustain TS At the t'1me of an event or incident, notify designated incident command staff of public health response . 
. 1 . .·· .... ··•· '• . In preparation for or at the time of an event or incident, assemble designated staff at the appropriate 
1 . . · ,' ·,•.' Sustain T6 . 

-- -_ ._: - __ .. _ emergency operations center 
'·,. : · · ,.:,; .· ·. Sustain Pl !standard operating procedures for the public health EOC. 

_ _.___ _ _ ___ :..X:- - .:'!·:::?:::- · _-:_' - Sustain P2 [NIMS certification based on discipline, level, and jurisdictional requirements 
-_':-·- <'.. ·-- Sustain F3 Develop incident response strategy 

.. \.':'.'.'::·.· _ --_--'.~~::-:. · Produce or contribute to an Incident Commander or Unified Command approved Incident Action Plan 
.. . I'.. •... . .. " " Sustain Tl prior to the start of the second operational period. 

· •··' ., , · •.. . •·· Sustain T2 Disseminate the Incident Action Plan to public health response staff. -- ---.-- . - - - -- - ·- . " 

... "·" .·· . , · .·· ..... , ·· ' sustain . T3 Revise and brief staff on the Incident Action Plan at least at the start of each new operational period. 
L .. · · .··. ' " · '' .. · . · ,,,,. · ··~ Build Pl !Template for producing incident action plans 

Capability Summary Page 19 of 96 WCH D CDCOS-13 

22



Build F4 

I I Sustain 
. I Build 

Sustain 

.,I t· l '.c' ','1'0 "-"'<:. ,~; . ' . 

.. ~~IFS Sustain 

Sustain 

Sustain 

Sustain 

Attachment A: Capability Summary 
Manage and sustain the public health response 

Tl I Coordinate public health and medical emergency management operations for the public health response 

T2 1Track and account for all public health resources during the public health response . 

T3 
Maintain s!tuational awareness using information gathered from medical, public health, and other 
health stakeholders 

Sustain I Pl I Process to ensure continued performance of pre-identified essential functions 
1 Demobilize and evaluate public health emergency operations . 

Tl I Return resources to a condition of "normal state of operation" as appropriate. 

TZ 

T3 

T4 

Conduct final incident closeout of public health operations including the turnover of documentation, an 
incident debriefing, and a "final closeout" with the responsible agency or jurisdiction executive/officials. 
Produce After Action Report for public health operations to identify Improvement areas and promising 
practices. 
Implement lmprq_y_ement Plan items that _b~ve been assigned to public health. 
Track the implementation progress of Improvement Plan items assigned to public health through a 

I sustain I TS 
I corrective action system . 

. I 
10% I $78,669 4 

I I Build 

......... ·.· I . .·· 

I Sustain I Pl I Demobilization procedures for public health operations. 
Emergency Public Information and Warning 

Fl [Activate the emergency public information system 

Sustain Tl 

Build TZ 

Build T3 

Sustain T4 

Sustain TS 

Prior to an incident, identify Public Information Officer, support staff and potential spokesperson{s) to 
convey information to the public. 

Prior to an incident, identify a primary and alternate physical and/or virtual structure that will be used to 
support alerting and public information operations. 
Prior to the incident, ensure identified personnel are trained in the functions they may be asked to fulfill. 
At the time of an incident, notify Public Information Officer, support staff, spokesperson(s), and subject 
matter experts of the need to either be on-call or to report for duty as necessary within a time frame 
aoorooriate to the incident. 
At the time of an incident, assemble public information staff at the physical or virtual location, debrief 
on incident, and assign response duties . 

... J· I Build T6 Assist local public health systems in implementing emergency communication abilities. 

. I. Sustain 

' 1 ·· ··1 · ·1 ,-_· ----- --"-. 

Capability Summary 

Sustain 
Build 

Build 

·Pl Standard operating procedures for the public health EOC. 

P2 Message templates addressing jurisdictional vulnerabilities. 
Sl NIMS training for public information staff 

Build I 52 I Crisis and emergency risk communication training 
Determine the need for a joint public information system 

Tl 

--
TZ 

T3 
--
Build 

As applicable to the incident, establish a Virtual Joint Information Center, if establishment of a full-
fledged Joint Information Center is not optimal. 

Identify a health department representative to participate in the jurisdiction's emergency operations 
center to ensure public health messaging capacity 

Assign tasks to support staff to support message coordination and public information through three 
principal functions: Research, Media Operations, and Administration, as applicable to the incident. 

El I Minimum components of a virtual joint information center. 

Page 20 of 96 WCHD CDCOB-13 

23



Attachment A: Capability Summary 
· Build F3 Establish and participate in information system operations . 

. 
1
d Develop, recommend, and execute approved public information plans and strategies on behalf of the 

. . 1-- _ _ _ _- Bui Tl Incident Command or Unified Command structure. 

· 1~;- - :_i./; . Based on jurisdictional structure, provide a single release point of information for health and healthcare 
· : · Sustain T2 

. ->,;::,: :: -'. _ issues through a pre-identified spokesperson in coordination with the JIC. 

• .· ... · .·· · .. · .. :-. '.-.-- -,-·.·--.· ;_· ' :''. ___ < .:- S . Facilitate rumor control for media outlets for the jurisdiction such as television, internet, radio, and 
____ . - : - . - usta1n T3 

_ -· <'- ---\-,::_. .. : ------ ·: _ newspapers. 

_-_:,"::::~;:-._ Build F4 Establish avenues for public interaction and information exchange 

· · .· · ..•. ·.• : • • .. •• ·•. . Establish mechanisms for public and media inquiries that can be scalable to meet the needs of the 
• :.. • . • Build Tl . -: <' - -· ·'-> :_.- incident. -- -- __ , 

· - ·: ;: /:: ' : . If health department websites exist, post incident-related information on health department website as 
Sustain T2 

--<;::·· .-_ >-.-- , .-_ _ a means of informing and connecting with the public. 
---- -_-},'_::;;-,,. _ __ -._ ::~_.-:_.: --->,_· -- _ Build T3 Utilize social media (e.g., Twitter and Facebook) when and if possible for public health messaging. 

____ - -----<~--:<:--.. - Build FS Issue public information1 alerts 1 warnings, and notifications. 
. ·. • 1•• c:• .. : . · Prior to the incident, comply with established jurisdictional legal guidelines to avoid communication of 

• ::::,:

1

,.. _ Sustain Tl _ information that is protected for national security or law enforcement reasons or that may infringe on 
•··· ... ·•· . ·•>••> .; ~ci · ·.;..;:·• ·• . · · .. · individual and entity r'1ghts. 

---/~·\_:-:- __ -:>:'.:_L:b:;__:----:::_:.J\:,_ _ _-_ ':-;· . - Dissemin~te informati~n ~o ~h~ public using p~e-esta~lished mes~age maps in '.an~uages and for~a.ts 
· ;."-" Build T2 thattake into accountJunsd1ct1on demographics, at-nsk populations, economic disadvantages, l1m1ted 

_- ·-I --- . _ ::.::·::_: _._ ._- , • .--,--.---_ _ _-,--_::<;:· __ language proficiency, and cultural or geographical isolation. 

--- · - ·:·" ••··•. · --_-"--: ). • ·. _.___ - . Transmit health-related messag'1ng information to responder organizat'1ons through secure messaging • •. Sustain T3 
- :- .- ~ :·<·- · platforms. 

3% $20,334 · 5 · PHEP Fatality Management 

.· . ··•. ·. . •· Build Fl Determine role for public health in fatality management. 

· _,.- · jJ;->- Prior to an ·incident, characterize potential fatal'lt'1es based onjurisd'1ct'1onal r"1sk assessment and the 
. --_-,I-:- _______ . Sustain Tl impact of these potential fatalities on jurisdictional resource needs 

l> ·-. --- : -._-: --- Prior to an incident, coordinate with subject matter experts to determine public health's role in an 
Build T2 

.· . incident that may result in fatalities. 
_-:",:_-:- - Prior to an incident, coordinate with jurisdictional, private and federal Emergency Support Function #6 

__ 1_-_:- Build T3 and Emergency Support Function #8 resources as necessary to determine their roles and requirements 
.--<--. " .:-.- for the response. 

Sustain F2 Activate public health fatality management operations. 
_:_:·:-:.- - -. -- _ · _ _ -·- Sustain _ Tl Assess data from the incident ta inform and guide the publ°lc health resources needed for the response. 

. 
} - - Identify and coordinate with jurisdictional, regional, private1 and federal Emergency Support Function #8 

· 1- Sustain T2 resources with expertise in the potential cause(s) of fatalities to mal<e recommendations regarding all .· . 
-__ :: ·r __ -_. -.·. -<:-.. _ __ __ __. -, phases of human remains disposition: recovery, processing, storing, and disposing. 

· :·: · '_ -·-~::· t"• .. fi . . . Coordinate with partners to initiate pre-determined processes for all phases of human remains 
· · . ..,.... ·. · · .. Sustain T3 .. 

-: ·- - -.. :.:+;-__ --. _., :,-·_ - dispos1t1on. 

' · · · · .· · ·• · ··• · ··· · · Coordinate incident details among members of the public health and medical health systems by sharing 
No Activity T4 f . b d 1. I· · f · d b b d h f h · 'd , _ in ormat1on etween programs an 1n<1ng 1n ormat1on ata ases, ase on t e scope o t e rnc1 ent. 

Capability Summary Page 21of96 WCH D CDCOS-13 

24



I I I Build 

I I 

i· .>I . 
· 1 · .• , •••• 

··1 ·. 

c:·:·•--

7% $51,748 
J:' 

I 

>I . .. . <1 · 

1 ••.•..•• ··••·•••••·•···••··•·•···•·· / >·· 
I . ·. I 

I I 

Build 

No Activity 

6 

Build 

I Build 

:,••· L· 
. t. 

Capability Summary 

§__ 
Build 

Build 

No Activity 

No Activity 

F4 

Build 

Build 

Build 

Attachment A: Capability Summary 
Mental/behavioral support at the healthcare organization level 

Tl I Coordinate with partners for the establishment of a mechanism to collect antemortem data. 

TZ 
Coordinate with partners to identify and assemble the resources required to collect and communicate 
ante mortem data. 

T3 !Coordinate with partners and assist, if needed, in the collection and dissemination of anternortem data 
to families of the deceased and law enforcement officials. 

T4 

Build 

Coordinate with partners ta support electronic recording and reporting of antemortem data through 
electronic systems and/or other information sharing platforms. 

Pl I Procedure for the collection of antemortem data. 

Participate in survivor mental/behavioral health services 

Tl 

TZ 

T3 

Coordinate with partners to assemble the required staff and resources to provide non-intrusive 
mental/behavioral health services to responders. 

Coordinate with partners to facilitate availability of culturally appropriate assistance. 

1 
Coordinate with Emergency Support Function 8 partners to support the provision of mental/behavioral 

health services to family members of the deceased and incident survivors as needed 
FS 1 Participate in fatality processing and storage operations 

Information Sharing 

Fl Identify stakeholders to be incorporated into information flow. 

Build 

Build 

Build 

I c- . 

FZ 

Sustain 

Build 

Build 

Sustain 

I 

Tl 

TZ 

T3 

Prior to and as necessary during an incident, identify intra-jurisdictional stakeholders across public 

health, public safety1 private sector1 law enforcement, and other disciplines to determine information
sharing needs 

Prior to and as necessary during an incident1 Identify inter-jurisdictional public health stakeholders to 
determine information sharing needs. 

Work with elected officials, identified stakeholders and private sector leadership to promote and ensure 

continual connection and use continuous quality improvement process to define and redefine 
information-sharing needs. 

Build I Pl I Processes to engage stakeholders 

Build I · PZ I Role-based public health directory. 
Identify and develop rules and data elements for sharing. 

Tl 

-

TZ 
-

T3 
-

T4 

Build 

Sustain 

Identify current jurisdictional and federal regulatory, statutory, privacy-related and other provisions, 

laws1 and policies that authorize and limit sharing of Information relevant to emergency situational 

awareness. 

Prior ta and as necessary during an incident1 identify routine or incident-specific data requirements far 
each stakeholder. 

Identify public health events and incidents that will necessitate information exchange. 

I Utilize continuous quality improvement or have a processes and a corrective action system to identify 

and correct unintended legal and policy barriers ta sharing of situational awareness information that are 

within the jurisdictional public health agency's control 

Pl /Data-exchange requirements 

PZ I Health Information exchange protocols 

Page 22 of 96 WCH D CDC08-13 

25



Attachment A: Capability Summary 
·.· Sustain F3 Exchange information to determine a common operating picture . 

. · 
Prior to and during an incident, collaborate with and participate in jurisdictional health information 

. . Sustain Tl . . 
. ... :. exchange (e.g., fusion centers, health alert system, or equivalent). 

. Maintain data repositories that are able to support data exchange with other regional and federal public 

t· . Sustain T2 hea Ith entities. Store data according to jurisdictio na I and/or federal standards for formatting, 

. ·. ;• ·... . vocabulary, and encryption. 

· ; . . Prior to and during an incident, request, send, and receive data and information using encryption that 
. : . :. Sustain T

3 
meets jurisdict'1onal and/or federal standards. 

. . · · · · ,i:• . ·.•. · ·: ·.: ·. Build Pl I Protocol for the development of Public Health Alert messages. 

0% $0 7 Mass Care 

--···. :-- ':- .. <~;~,·":_·:;: _-. , . Na Activity Fl ·:· Determine public health role in mass care operations . 
. _ _, -- -_---:-: < _-_'._-.>'_'\-.-~<::.:·:'.--' ·: No Activity F2, Determine mass care needs of the impacted population 

: · · .. · :.• •':h< ··• No Activity F3 · Coordinate public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health services 

··:· .. .)·i: ... No Activity F4 Monitor mass care population health 

16% $124,529 8 Medical Countermeasure Dispensing 

. ·:. :.,·::·;;1:: · Build - Fl Identify and initiate medical countermeasure dispensing strategies 

·- ._::+{--:___ _ - '.'.·,·· · -: ·. ": . Determine what medical countermeasures are best suited and available for the incidents most likely to 
. .. .. ·: . Build Tl b d . . d' . I . I _ .. -- _::._·- ,,;~.::·- ___ ._-"-- occur ase onJuns 1ct1ona ns<assessment. 

-· . :_. - - - - . .. :- Build T2 Identify and fill required response roles 
- · -1-- _ -· I'-'.- Build Pl \ Wr'1tten plans to identify the medical countermeasures. 

'"- ._._ ·:: ,,._ _ _ -· Build F2 Receive medical countermeasures. 
: Assess the extent to which current jurisdictional medical countermeasure inventories can meet incident 

Build Tl 
-- ·.., .:- ·- - -. - - needs. 

__ _-: - _ _-1:::---' -.;,::::~- :\,;-:~:~: _. . - Request additional med'1cal countermeasures from private, jurisdictional, and/or federal partners using 
__ '-1-_ --:- .. _:::,;,:::.-: :_: -. _-__ ~--:·_;':__ __ Build TZ established procedures, according to incident needs . 

. .. · .1 • • • .·.· •"' .· .. •··· •. .. .. : :·: Build T3 Identify and notify any intermediary distribution sites based on the needs of the incident 

· • • .· ··· : · :••1c. · ::, •·• .. < : .. · ' Build Pl I Written plans to request additional medical countermeasures . 

. . ·. · < · :·•. Build F3 Activate dispensing modalities 

·.• . • ·· 1 · . Activate dispensing strategies, dispensing sites, dispensing modalities and other approaches to achieve 

.· Build Tl dispensing goals commensurate with the targeted population. 

. Activate staff that will support the dispensing modality in numbers necessary to achieve dispensing goals 
Build T2 · h h d I · 1-- commensurate wit t e targete popu at1on. 

· -· ~.-.. If indicated by the incident, implement mechanisms for providing medical countermeasures for public 
.. .· .·. . . '... · .. .··. Build T3 health responders, critical infrastructure personnel, and their families 

-·: .--- ---- •· .. -- - '~"-!::: ----> ____ - Build T4 Initiate site-specific security measures for dispensing locations .·.· .: ;· ·····. h --·-- ·-:--:_· .. -.- · ·.: . Inform public of dispensing operations including locations, time period of availability, and method of 
. . : Build ~ 

_ ·:~_- .-:- .- :--- ">-"- --- : _ _._: __ --.. deliverv. 
' · - : ·--. .--.: '- -- ._:-.·: :-:-- -.-:-:--,. :.-·::'..---.-_: · :. - -: _·_ -t-_:;:·: :· __ ,,:·_ :: _______ . Build _Pl _\Medical countermeasure dispensing activities support 

. . ·· ·.';·. · : · •' [ • · ·.•.··. . .. ·. Build P2 I Procedure for activation of dispensing modalities. 

Capability Summary Page 23 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

26



Attachment A: Capability Summary 
·:: .. ~ _._ .. J :_,:: ':-· __ :_~::,,,,,."_·::._. · ._ - Build F4 Dispense medical countermeasures to identified population 

1.-:: ;,,,. ___ :.--->c> .",;,.;·;--5, ... ·.··: --... ·-··-:,_ ,\.. . ·- . Maintain dispensing site inventory management system to track quantity and type of medical 
•• : : ·" 1, ··. • · Build Tl . . . 1-- • 1, -__ -:: • :- , •• ., ,:•: .. :·::.-:- -·,:._. countermeasures present at the dispensing site. _ 

;:·:_--::;'._;::~-.<-~-:;~;:~:,; ,:,~::-::~/-·:::~<--~~:,;,:-,,_. ___ ·,-_· _-_-;_::. ::,: -· -- :'.':: . Screen and triage individuals to determine which medical countermeasure is appropriate to dispense to 
1_- ,-;_" .-::_.;_ ·:.-~- ·-:,_>.-.. , :: -. :- ~- __ ,,,.::-:~•)::,'.,':- :-~ ->'.;~ Build - : TZ _ individuals if more than one tyoe or subset of medical countermeasure is being provided at the site . 

. ; ?''i:'' ~~r~f.~&~c.-,'';- -·;:_,--:·-i_;:•:~~::··- .-.. ,_., : :~ -- . .,:,.;: • - Distribute pre-printed drug/vaccine information sheets that include instructions on how to report > . .:;.. : . •. ..,:• . Build T3 ·. 
_., _,.. ·-:> .. _:_::-:::---·- - --:<· .. ''.'.·.-_;: adverse events. 

1. >;::.C · .··· ······7~fu·,,,~j' · ....... ,:., .. ··:··. • . Monitor dispensing site throughput and adjust staffing and supplies as needed in order to achieve 
: • ... • •·• :.·••;c. < .. : Build T4 . . . . 

< ·•:;.,;, :•.. • ·· .. . . d1snensmg goals commensurate with the targeted population. 
~ '.:\~0,j~·i .. : > • ... • ': .... • Document doses of medical countermeasures dispensed, including but not limited to: product name and 

...... ' •··.. . ·· .. :'•/ Build I TS I b d fd' '•n di . fd' . -·.:--' · : -.---"-·'" at num er, ate a 1spens1ni;, an ocat1on o 1soens1ng 

.
• .. · ~· . :., :>.: \'I' C . : ... :,\ ;, . · . Report aggregate inventory and dispensing information to jurisdictional authorities at least weekly 
: •( ·:. .• •·.· .· :;:;. ·::;. · . BUiid TG during an incident but ootentiallv more freouentlv based on incident needs. 

, .. ·· "•t'ft'.>. ~ -)«;:. · --·~ ~--·-·_,-_- _____ ::~_-.. · -,c; ,(,---__ _. _ _ , • Determine the disposition of unused medical countermeasures within the jurisdictional health system 
. .. . . . . : · ::c ..... : ':T.> : Build T7 d' . . d' . I 1 .. _, _.-;,:; . .,i_,;:-. .i_::.-. -- __ c-:- : • . - ---:_- ::<_-- accor 1ng to 1uns 1ct1ona po 1c1es 

: ,/••,.:, •;;,;,;•:·:::.. : .. : ... , •·. '.' . Build Pl !Medical countermeasure dispensing to target populations 

"•'. · .·· "' '"'' · .. ,; · '•'."· Build FS Report adverse events 

' ·· Activate mechanism(s) for individuals and healthcare providers to notify health departments about 
· ··... · Build Tl 

--~_,.-_--:·-:/·_,_; __ - · .. I-·· .... >" _ adverse events. 

::: _;--. - -::: ::;-~:~:.:-:.;: .... ::~_:::;;:-.:--·:-:' :- _ -·-__ :/: ·:'._:-::_::,_-_-, -.-.--: -- No Activity T2 Re po rt adverse event data to jurisdictional and federal entities according to jurisdictiona I protocols. 

1 • •. ·: ··•:e•J,}/'''•~1';';•:.. · •"'.'""··· <••:· •,:; • · ·. Build Pl I Protocol to govern reporting of adverse events 
· •.•>c•', · > ·.:·.>·:·•::;: iVi .. :.• < ,:; •• :.:·:•.'. · : ... · > Build Sl !Adverse event report training 

0% $0 · ... · 9 · Medical Materiel Management and Distribution 

: :: ·· ··• .·:·. · • No Activity Fl Direct and activate medical materiel management and distribution 

t .. · ·· ~ :;., .··· · No Activity · . F2 Acquire medical materiel 
-:.: ·- :;·,._v:, --- __ -. _ .. -- No Activity · F3 Maintain updated inventory management and reporting system 

·· . !::J;::· I· :>:·::·. :·'i No Activity 1 ·. F4 Establish and maintain security 

· • : ··•' · · · ·· > No Activity FS Distribute medical materiel 
• ,; ·• . ·.· ·• · •. ' No Activity FG Recover medical material and demobilize distribution operations 

0% $0 ·.. 10 Medical Surge 
· .··.: .. '::: :;.:::::·!:'·•·.· No Activity Fl Assess the nature and scope of the incident 

,.,._ ·--,:'·. : :;:-+: r.·. ·:-: ~~'-i:;;;:-~;;;7:7~::, No Activity F2 Support activation of me di ca 1 surge. 

I< .,, "'• ·: • ·-:· · • :/•·•·· No Activity F3 Support jurisdictional medical surge operations 
I ... >•::·. ..: ' · No Activity F4 Support demobilization of medical surge operations 

1% $4,157 -- - 11- Non-Pharmaceutical Interventions 

> .. :-:_;;_ · '-''"':'--. · -.. ·._- .. ·. ~-: '-----~·: Build Fl Engage partners and identify factors that impact non-pharmaceutical interventions 

' F :' 11·.F·'~ >~&: ·. t. I; i: .:. '· .. · •"·•:::;;. .· Identify jurisdictional legal, policy, and regulatory authorities that enable or limit the ability to 1
. ·•• /. '< ·••• · . . .. \< ;•·:i. Build Tl recommend and implement non-pharmaceutical interventions, in both routine and incident-specific 

··• . · I •·:.;::•;: .• \.:< · . . situations. 

Capability Summary Page 24 of 96 WCHD CDC08-13 

27



I I 
-

I -
,'i'/ 

"'~" 
-

~ . 
. 

20% $152,525 
;.;,ii 

I 
I 

I 

- f 
,-

I 
¥ 

I I 

I 

. I . 

Capability Summary 

No Activity 

Attachment A: Capability Summary 

T2 

Prior to an incident, engage healthcare organizations, government agencies, and community sectors in 

determining their roles and responsibilities in non-pharmaceutical interventions on an ongoing basis 
through multidisciplinary meetings. 

·I I No Activity I Pl I Implementing non-pharmaceutical interventions plan. 

I No Activity I P2 Jcommunication and reporting plan 

No Activity I F2 I I Determine non-pharmaceutical interventions 

No Activity I F3 · !Implement non-pharmaceutical interventions 
No Activity I F4 !Monitor non-pharmaceutical interventions 

12 I Public Health Laboratory Testing 

No Activity I Fl !Manage laboratory activities 

No Activity 

No Activity 

No Activity 

No Activity 

13 

Sustain 

Sustain 

F2 Perform sample management 

F3 Conduct testing and analysis for routine and surge capacity 

F4 Support public health investigations 

F5 Report results 

Public Health Surveillance and Epidemiological Investigation 

Fl 

Sustain 

Sustain 

I Sustain 

I Sustain 

I 

I 

. T 

F2 

Sustain 

Conduct public health surveillance and detection 

Tl 

T2 

Engage and retain stakeholders who can provide health data to support routine surveillance and to 

support response to an identified public health threat or incident 

Conduct routine and incident-specific morbidity and mortality surveillance as indicated by the situation 

using inputs such as reportable disease surveillance, vital statistics, syndromic surveillance, hospital 
!discharge abstracts, population-based surveys, disease registries, and active case finding. 

Provide stat'1stical data and reports to public health and other applicable jurisdictional leadersh'1p in 

T3 I order to identify potential populations at-risk for adverse health outcomes during a natural or man

made threat or incident. 

T4 
Maintain surveillance systems that can identify health problems, threats, and environmental hazards and 

receive and respond to (or investigate) reports 24/7. 

sustain El Access to health information infrastructure and surveillance systems 

Sustain Pl Document the legal and procedural framework for information exchange 

Sustain P2 Protocols for accessing health information 

Sustain P3 Protocols to gather and analyze surveillance data 

Sustain P4 Procedures to ensure 24/7 health department access 

Sustain PS Protocols to notify CDC of cases on the Nationally Notifiable Infectious Disease List 

Build 51 Tier 1 Competencies and Skills for Appli_ed Epidemiologists 

Conduct public health and epidemiological investigations 

Tl 
Conduct ·investigations of disease1 ·injury or exposure in response to natural or man-made threats or 

incidents and ensure coordination of investigation with jurisdictional partner agencies. 

Page 25 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

28



Sustain 

Capability Summary 

Sustain 

Sustain 

Attachment A: Capability Summary 

TZ 

T3 

Sustain 

Sustain 

Provide epidemiological and environmental public health consultation, technical assistance, and 

information ta local health departments regarding disease, injury, or exposure and methods of 
surveillance, investigation, and response. 

Report investigation results to jurisdictional and federal partners, as appropriate. 

p1· ·I investigation report templates 

51 I Staffing capacity to manage the routine epidemiological investigation systems 

F3 I Recommend, monitor, and analyze mitigation actions 

Sustain 

Sustain 

Sustain 

Sustain 

F4 

Sustain 

Sustain 

Sustain 

sustain 

Tl 

TZ 

T3 

T4 

Determine public health mitigation, including clinical and epidemiological management and actions to be 

recommended for the mitigation of the threat or incident based upon data collected in the investigation 

and on applicable science-based standards outlined by Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Report, control 

of Communicable Diseases Manual, Red Book of Infectious Diseases or, as available, a state or CDC 

incident annex. 

Provide information to public health officials to support them in decision making related to mitigation 

actions. 

Monitor and analyze mitigation actions throughout the duration of the public health threat or incident. 

Recommend additional mitigation activities, based upon mitigation monitoring and analysis, throughout 

the duration of the incident, as appropriate. 

Sustain I Pl I Protocols for recommending and initiating containment and mitigation actions 
Sustain I Sl I Training in Homeland Security Exercise and Evaluation After Action Report process 

Improve public health surveillance and epidemiologi£a[_investigation systems 

Tl 

TZ 

T3 

T4 

Sustain 

Identify issues and outcomes during and after the incident. 

Conduct post-incident/post-exercise agency evaluation meeting(s) including all active participants to 

identify internal protocols and deficiencies that require corrective actions in areas such as programs, 

personnel, train_!£l_g, equipment, and organizational structure. 

Develop an After Action Report/Improvement Plan. 

Communicate recommended After Action Report Improvement Plan corrective actions to public health 
leadership. 

Pl !Communication of Improvement plan 

Responder Safety and Health 

. Fl !Identify responder safety and health risks. 

Build Tl 

Prior to an incident, identify the medical, environmental exposure, and mental/behavioral health risks 

that may be faced by staff responding to the public health incident in conjunction with partner agencies 

and based on jurisdictional risk assessment. 

Page 26 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

29



Attachment A: Capability Summary 
Prior to an incident, identify subject matter experts and other informational resources that can be used 

Build T2 by public health staff to make health and safety recommendations to the Incident Safety Officers or 
.. lead agency. 

··-- · Prior to an incident, and as applicable during an incident, work with subject matter experts to develop 

.··: Build T3 information on potential acute and chronic health conditions that may develop/occur during and after 
. 

.- - an exposure. 
1 

- --:--/!;> :,_ In consultation with the Incident Safety Officer and subject matter experts, participate in the 
. 1·:. . _.-;'.J: ·:;_ Build T4 formulation of recommendations to the Incident Commander regarding responder-specific risks to be 

·- -- _- -_::/:{:: . ··;'.\V :'..--~---- - _;.·> _ addressed in incident action plans. 

< < L'c •• Distribute safety materials to public health responders through daily briefings at the onset of, and 
_ . ·. _ : .)'.· Build TS throughout an incident, in consultation with the Incident Safety Officer and jurisdictional subject matter 

__ .,,.; . ·_:·-1·:. ___ . ·.:-. experts. 

_. -_.'.

1

'· ... " • _:-. • Build Pl ISafetyandhealthriskplans 
:: •·. ·. -- -- · _ · -: ::.'c::··. .~::;,._- . . Build P2 !Public health roles and responsibilities 
...... · Build · F2 identify safety and personal protective needs 

< .. _ .. <... -<- .:: . Prior to an incident, and as applicable during an incident, work with subject matter experts to identify 
·· Build Tl . 

.. 1.· _- _:- responder safety and health resource requirements. 

.. Prior to an incident, and as applicable during an incident, and in conjunction with subject matter experts, 
Build T2 formulate recommendations to public health responders regarding personal protective equipment that . 

: > - · are consistent with local jurisdictional requirements. 

- - : _ . Coordinate with partner agencies to provide medical countermeasures and/or personal protective 
/( ·. . .· , .. · .· .· . ... •.. Build T3 equipment to public health responders, if'1ndicated by the incident. 

<.;:\. • ·· • .· • •. . "' · .·,: .. ·. Build .. Pl I Risk-related personal protective equipment 
··· •· . · . .• ; .· · ")''! . •·• Build El I Personal Protect'1ve Equipment for healthcare workers. 
---:-"·:•-. -.'' No Activity F3 Coordinate with partners to facilitate risk-specific safety and health training 
·.... ' No Activ'1ty F4 Monitor responder safety and health actions 

9% $70,643 15 Volunteer Management 
.. -.. ·. Sustain Fl Coordinate volunteers 
> ··. ·.·• Prior to an incident, identify the types and numbers of volunteers most likely to be needed in a public 

. :>. : _ .. ---:.-·:·· Sustain Tl health agency's response based on the jurisdictional community risk assessment. 

·" --- Prior to an incident, coordinate with existing volunteer programs and partner organizations to support 
•... · .·.. Sustain T2 the pre-incident recruitment of volunteers that may be needed in a publ'1c health agency's response . 

. <· · :· ::,,:"--'" · · .-_'_ Prior to an incident, assure pre-incident screening and verification of volunteers' credentials through 
. •· .·•·.• ·.. .. .. Sustain T3 . . . . 

.. ; . ··.. ·· 1 iunsd1ct1onal ESAR-VHP and Medical Reserve Corps . 
... · - - - .. Prior to an incident and as necessary at the time of an incident, support provision of initial and ongoing 

· · Sustain T4 emergency response training for registered volunteers. Training should be supported in partnership with 
_ · 

1 
- _ jurisdictional Medical Reserve Corps unit(s) and other partner groups . 

. ··•·•·· • .i.. . .· · · . • •• ., Build Pl I volunteer needs assessment for healthcare organizations response. 
• 

1 
• • • • • Sustain P2 I Collect, assemble, maintain, and utilize volunteer information 

Capability summary Page 27 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

30



Attachment A: Capability Summary 

1--- -_::> < ·_,, I/, Sustain FZ Notify volunteers 

' ' '·•'• ), :('' ······ t'~K·c" ' ' ' " 
Sustain 

' 

Tl 
At the time of an incident, identify the desired skills and quantity of volunteers needed for the incident 

I ;.; ;C " " ·•(',"' ·,· ••..... · .· .. ··'. }<: _· from the preincldent volunteer registration. 

:•;" · .•.•• -- :,-_. -- ---:_-.-. ---- _:·:'.:·:::t;;Y~:;~ ·' '' At the time of an incident, contact pre-incident registered volunteers using multiple modes of ,, x " ; ;::i::; <· .· ... ··· '.·. ,' Sustain TZ 
· communication. 

' ' ' 

'.<>I / 
,., : ... I _:i .~_ : ' - - -' At the time of an incident, notify volunteers who are able and willing to respond of where and how to 

' ': >······ 
Sustain T3 

:-------·- ::_'. reoort . 

;.!·i', . , •:,i,;{ .. I'.·· .; '< .. Sustain T4 
At the time of an incident, coordinate with partner agencies to confirm credentials of responding 
volunteers. 

I · .. - .: - -.--- -~: _:: -I•. . ·'· :· .•·• >···········, .• " <· Sustain TS At the time of an incident, notify partner agencies of any need for additional volunteers. 
•··· -:.:-"'-;:;=.--:_ .. , :· -:- .:":·, Build ' F3 Organize, assemble, and dispatch volunteers 

. <•c .:;Gb'. · '' .. ·.·· 
Build Tl 

If the incident differs from or exceeds the public health agency's pre-incident-defined volunteer plans, 
,· 

·• ,:: ' '" '.''.· ':''::., 1'' .•.•••. , ',;, identify additional volunteers that have the necessary credentials and skills, 
' 

::: :\~';_~.·:-,-.. _,_ -.: .·--" ·:. - ·:.::<:,:.< I" 
,' ' ' 

Build TZ Assure deployment briefing of public health volunteers, including safety and incident-specific training, 

>· -··' ::.··-. -,- ' -. '..:: . .:...:_: ~/< 1,,. ' Sustain T3 Assure tracking and rotation of volunteers as indicated by the incident and by relevant job function. ' 

- ,.-_.,-_. ' .... ,<';, I) • Manage spontaneous volunteers who may request to support the public health agency's response, 

,X• .• ••' 

-·-· 
' ;,; .,, ' Build T4 either through incorporating them into the response or by triaging them to other potential volunteer 

' 

.· .... ,. 
' ' 1.· .}.-·.'····· resources. 

' ' 

~');;;; :C. , .•. . - - - · .. -; ,._.. Coordinate state and jurisdictional response roles for federal public health staff deployed to the .· t •· . .,.· Build TS 
' ,, ' jurisdiction. 

'•'· ,:;:•)'•;; . . , • !; ·> .~;;,!) . ., <' ,-·,:r.,._'.:_., ::.:-.:;·· _,· '' Build Pl I Volunteer deployment protocols 
; 

;;:;___· -: :~ ":- ;:· '' .~ .:--- ->:;/-·_.-~: .. _,_ -> .. :: ' 
" " •;.,, ' -... •, Build PZ I Process to manage spontaneous voluteers, 

' , .....•. '·• . .,.:./.;:'· Sustain F4 ' Demobilize volunteers 

"' ..• ' ' •··.· ' 

' ''"''•' ! '• '·- Sustain Tl Track (record or document) the demobilization of volunteers, -
,•;f:'• . .,',;: ·;-:: .. .- ,;:l'• 

,, -;--J'.: _ _-,-_ :::_ ,' .••,:·:: Sustain TZ Assure coordination of out-processing of volunteers. 
'·• ... ••• t)··•·•,'· ;c-i:>:• 

... , - - - :-· 
Coordinate with jurisdictional authorities and partner groups to identify community resources that can 

' !. ' IL ,) ... Sustain T3 support volunteer post-deployment medical screening, stress, and well-being assessment and, when ' 

_:- . : . ',:.~: 
;. g1,;-, \ .. ·, ,; ' •' 

requested or indicated, referral to medical and mental/behavioral health services, ';; ,, ' ' <··-

,,,- •'' 

-·· ',, '" '' ' ~·: - : ;'' · ___ .' Sustain Pl I volunteer release processes ' _:_. -: ,,~--· _. -_ ': . 

~-'; :·,:._·; -. -:_ ·:-:> ,TI':!•' ' ' ' ' Sustain PZ I volunteer exit screening protocols 

100% $760,946 TOTAL (Must equal 100%) 

Capability Summary Page 28 of 96 WCHD CDC08-13 

31



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Washoe County Health District 
CDC Public Health Emergency Preparedness (BP2) Sub-grant #CDC08-13 

Scope of Work (SOW) July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 

0 :piLJE;f> Capability # ·l:Col"IJrn\! nityPl"eparedlless 
Description: :communitypreparedriess is the abiliiy oteotT\munitie{to prepare for, Withsta~'ci,and recover - in both the short and long terms- from public health 
incidents. By engaging and coordinaf1ng with emergency manage')'ent, healthcare organizations (private and community-based), mental/beha\i1oral health providers, 
community and faith-based·partners, state, local, and territorial, public health's role in community preparedness is to. do the following: 
• Supp~(! the development of public health, m.edical, a~d mental/behavioral health systems that support recovery 
•Participate in awareness training with comniQn.ity and.faith-based partners on howJo prevent, respond to, and recover from public health incidents 
• Promote awareness of and accessto medicalandme~tal/behavioral health ZresoUtces thathelp protect the community's health and address the functional needs (Le., 

com_rnLI.n,ication, medical __ c~~e,. inde_p_e_nderlC~;:"~~-P-~r:~i:S1:o·n>tr_a_r;~p~_rtatio~)-_of_at-ri_sl_<:h1_d_iyid:~~l,s___ _ _ _ _ _ .. ,_ _. _. ,. _ 
; Eng;ige public and privati•,:organizatiopsJn•pt]'!;Jarean·~:ss activities that represerit;th:i!1fUncticinalneeds ofatcrisk imlividuals as well as.the cultural ani:l socio-economic, 
deIT{()graphic compohentsicit:tnecorfin1Unity i{'~': ;• > . Y :< : .. :: . ..... . . : . . . : )j 

• Identify thos.ef~(,pulati{~ft6at ma(be,athig~er riskfbr adverse health oytcom~s . . ... . . •.·. ·. . . . . . : 
• Receive and/oFibtegr,~i(i';the liea)thneeds iifpopulations who have been displaced due to incidents ihathave occurred in their own or distant communities (e.g.,· 
imPrDv:1sed nudear:·d-ev~2€6FfiU-rPIG~"neJ" · -

--- -- - --- "'"'' - - --- - ·-

PHEP Et.(FUni:ticlriZ): 1.deritification ofKe~Orgal]iz.afiO'n'S.,,Meiliannumber ofcorijrnlinitfs:ei:t6rs in Which LHDs:iClentifleHkey organizations toj:iartidpaie in public health, 
";' <.·:- - - -- - _- - --- - - - -- --- ---- ::·:------ ;.,_ .',·_::--.. ·.---.--.: ·-.':-" -:---:- -- - -- - - /f:. ; - ----:> ' -- ----- - ' ·--

medica I; and m enta l/behaviora I hea lth"related:emergency preparedness efforts. (See pg.JJ,12) · 

PHEPl:i(Function-1):.Community E~gagement'in F\iskrldeiitification - Mediatl n~miler ofcommunity sectors that LHDs engaged in~singjuris?ictional risk assessment (JRA) 
datalodetermine local hazards,vulnerabilifi~~;·and rjsltsthatmay impact publich~~l~h; l11edical, and/ormental/behavioral health syst~ms and~ervices. (See Pg 13-lS) 
PHEP 1;3'(Function 4):Cornmunity Engagenjentin Public Health Preparedness Activ,fties ~Proportion of key organizations that LHDs engaged ih a significant public health 
emergency preparedness)ctivity; (See Pg 15:17) : .>· ·· · 

PHEpl.4 (Functior2):C:i)rntr1uriifVEn~ageniehtin Recovery Planning - Median number of community sectors that LHDs engageifin ~eveloping and/or reviewing a 
community reciiy~ryplaiiil(~l~t~d:tothe:restoration ~nd recovery of publichb'altn; l11edical, and/o(ment~i/behavioral health systems ;md services. (See Pg18c19) 

Note: The page #'s listed for Performance Measures above correspond to CDC's "BP1 Performance Measures Specifications and Implementation Guidance", Vers·1on 1.1 

.outcqm ~ ()b] ~~ti~e: 100% of. capabi.1ityr)Ni1.1 .. ~~:<1chJ@.l/E1J:l;~y}i/30/2014: ... . . 

Jn Budget Period (BP) 2, WCHD will sustain community preparedness capacity 

in Washoe County through continued relationship-building efforts and 

discussions, continued efforts to engage the community in health 
preparedness, and continued coordination of health preparedness trainings. 

Enhanced collaborative relationships and 

improved preparedness planning and 

communications as result of achieving this 

short-term goal. 

Training sign-in sheets, 

training evaluations; updated 

plans as appropriate, meeting 

agendas/minutes/notes. 

Note: The page #'s l'lsted in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and local Planning'', March 2011 
PHEP Capability #1: Community Preparedness Page 29 of 96 WCHD rnrnR-n 

32



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Determine risks to the health of the jurisdictio 

Meeting notes I findings; 
Sustain 

During BPl, WCHD updated the heath-specific jurisdictional risk assessment; during BP4 
and BPS WCHD will be involved with updating the Washoe County Emergency 
Management hazard assessment and mitigation plan. 

WCHD will meet with mental and behavioral health partners to determine mental and 
behavioral health risks associated with an incident that could occur in Washoe County. 

May 30, 2014 I updated plans during upcoming 
budget periods. 

;f,j~k ?F8tili~e ipnlsdn:ty:i~al1ri~k ~~ses~me'ijt\8 Lcl~.n1tif'l•"Yith' ~me(ge~~Yrn"cnagern.ent and. comrriu n lfyandJ~ i~h-based partn~rs; .the• public health,.medical,·and 
· m.en·tal/be.havior.alhealtb 1s·ervkes withintMJ\itis.Bictio.n thatcurrently support the mitigation of identified disaster.health risksc {See Pgl6) 

. !'1!1'!1!111111 

Meeting notes I findings; 
Sustain 

• During BPl, WCHD updated the heath-specific jurisdictional risk assessment; during 
BP4 and BPS WCHD will be involved with updating the Washoe County Emergency 
Management hazard assessment and mitigation plan. 

• WCHD will meet with mental and behavioral health partners to determine mental 
and behavioral health resources that can be utilized in response to an incident. 

May 30, 2014 I updated plans during upcoming 
budget periods. 

Sustain 

;P,1ab~iii'nilfF!1'saUFc~'E1eTTiei\tz.{fir1C!riivl:Ju/1sdictiona1··r151i.····. 

~~1~~~~g1~~r~~~~.:::~~~;g·y_~b~1-!~:;~'.~~-1 ~rl·t~~--~1£~1fi~},,@:· :·_: - -_,: --- ---· 
0m.enta.l{be.havwr.al,he•ltli.;1,{See1pg ·1;7,)",. ,.,,.>.1·ic ·· 

Sustain 

Sustain 

WCHD will continue the BPl activity of 
supporting and co-administering the 
Northern Nevada Access and Functional 
Needs Workgroup. 

WCHD will meet with mental and behavioral 
health partners. 

WCHD will continue the BPl activity of 
searching for data sets indicating 
mental/behavioral health composition in 
Washoe County to include in future GIS 
maps. 

Northern Nevada Access and 
Functional Needs Workgroup 
Meeting agendas and minutes. 

Findings from meetings with 
mental health partners. 

Potential GIS maps to be included 
in All-Hazards Plan. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #1: Community Preparedness Page 30 of96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

33



Sustain 

Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

During BPl, these sector groups were identified; during BP2 WCHD will continue BPl 
outreach and partnership activities as appropriate. 

Tracking number of people 
June 30, 2014 I reached through outreach 

activities. 

Task2:;Cfeate and imple111ent strategiesforo~g~ing'e]1gagementwith community.partners who maybe abletci provide services to mitigate.iderttifred public health threats 
or incM~'[its (co_Qcept qf'.'S\riJ\egicac]visOr:y co~Q:fil'.' §JliUPi~Xii:ollaf!orative). (S~e ~gtl9) ;•Y• .. · .. · .. ·· .. · .·. >; . ,.··;.··· .. ··.·. • . . > .. . ... . .... 

Hd.1.1.1.& -· -

WCHD will continue to administrate community groups that support health I I Meeting agendas, notes or 
Sustain I preparedness, such as the Inter-Hospital Coordinating Council and the Northern Nevada June 30, 2014 minutes. 

Access and Functional Needs Worl<group. 
Task}.: tJtilize communit'tand fiiithcbased par!ii:;rshijJs;as well as collaboratibj-Js":'ith ~ny agencies primarily responsible for providingdirect health-related servicesto help 
assur~•t~e community's ability todelive;publ{sliealth.'1nedical,and mental/behav.ioral health .services fiibo.th sho.rt and long term settings during and after an incident. 
(SeeHgi:l'l) 

1.1tt.1.i.\ 

Build 

WCHD will update the agency's Public Information and Communication (PIC) Plan to 
include the process of communicating with specified community partners needed for 
the delivery of services in both short-term and long-term settings during and after an 
incident.· 

June 30, 2014 I tJpdated PIC Plan. 

Task 4: Utilize a'continuocis oualitv lmrfrovell1'ent incorporate feedbaclifrom community and faith-based partners into jurisdictional emergency operations plans. 

Sustain 

WCHD will continue to solicit feedback from community groups, such as the Northern 
Nevada Access and Functional Needs Workgroup, on WCHD emergency response plans, 
and will incorporate findings into revised plans as appropriate; will determine potential 
future exercises to test any changes to the made to the plan. 

June 30, 2014 Meeting notes or minutes; 
updated plans, as appropriate. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #1: Community Preparedness Page 31 of 96 WCHD cnrnR-1 '1 

34



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

'Task 5: Identify community leaders that can act as trusted spokespersons fo deliver public health messages. (See Pg 19) 

Build 

During BP1, WCHD identified community leaders that can act as trusted spokespersons 
to deliver public health messages. 

WCHD will coordinate a "working with the media" workshop for WCHD leadership, 
back-up Pl Os, and community partners identified as trusted spokespersons. 

111.1 •• JJ.tiJ 

June 30, 2014 

se.;' '>. . . .. · WCHD will participate in new partnerships 

ll~pnm,~;~e;~.~Ff,~,,:1e;;,~~~,1::r:.a,rticip~tion in existing ~~~kasr~~e .Community Resiliency 
(lrne,"{;P~.t;ti:iersh1ps,representingthehsted community. Build g P 
sectors.Ts'ee PglS1~fi;~•:, .· ·• . . \. .. . . WCHD will continue participating in existing 

... · .,·.:.::;, .. · .. ·. :·;,t; :. . partnerships, such as Inter-Hospital 

~ :;;i~(f;f ;f;~~;V•' ;.,.,, ·~, < ,,; ... ·.. ..·· .. . Coordi~ating Council. 
,Plannilig~rsoffrce5~1\:lrl1erit i:Ptcrtotbfil:b encourage WCHD s protocol documentation was 
or promq1:e, 111eaical"rf~rs(inne,I tof~gisferand · sustain completed during BP1, and protocol 
r:iai;ticip~~~;~if.frJ\llg(2·orESA~'V,Hg. (See Pg 19) implementation will continue during BP2 and 

1-:-.-,::-. :-- < :':·d~12t'Sr:'.;:('·>'·o:; .. '>>:::'.·--_ ,· '<:-·;:::;·;;:_-,.· · beyond. 

Training sign-in sheet; training 
evaluation. 

Meeting agendas, minutes, or 
notes; Community Resiliency Plan 
when finalized . 

Tracking of medical personnel 
who register/participate with 
MRC or ESAR-VHP, by Washoe 
County MRC Coordinator. 

By the end of BP2, WCHD will have further engaged community organizations to foster public health, medical and mental/behavioral health social networks by 
enhancing regional public information and warning through enhanced jurisdictional partnerships and training. --- $13,213 

. Ta'sk•i::i:EiiIUr~·th~t'i:'6ffifiitiiiity constltGency'gfoups unrleisfarid•how ta cDrineC:u(J· publlcheall\i to par;t!Cipa'fa'in public health and community partner preparedness. efforts: . 
· t·s~~-:-p,:~:~29){:;:~?:~';:'.:: ·; ::::'.g~;;'~~-:;:~W~J~:-_:~-:--:- /-:_--:-·:;_: _@.N:~~~d-:i:-::~/i:1:~~-i;~~;;:_'.·;:'... :- .. __ :.-~~-"- ;,_:-··:_·;-- .. --: .. _:/;::?t;'.;:\~ .... ; -·-' ;.:-'.k<;:'.f:> .:> · --~:_::::-:r_:)·-:t·,_:_; - - · - ; _ - -

Build 
WCHD will implement a community resiliency outreach campaign, including the 
distribution of a comprehensive document listing community resources developed 
during BP1, as well as a media component. 

Resource booklet distribution 
June 30, 2014 I tracking; media tracking of 

reach and frequency. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #1: Community Preparedness Page 32 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

35



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
Task 2: Ensuret~.'1.t p~blicJiealth, medicai;anq;f11ental/behavioral health service ag<;~cies that provide essential_ health services to the. community are con_nected to 
jurisdictiomil;pu bli,.h~<JJ.tb,PreP~redn.e~s plan~'an~ .effor):s. :(See,pg'20) ··· · · · •• · ·· 

ffiP.1.1.13. 

Sustain 
During BPl WCHD's all-hazards plan was updated, which documents the connection of 
public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health services were to public health 
preparedness efforts. 

Ongoing N/A 

Task 3: . Createjurisdictional networks (e.g., local busine.s_ses, _community and faith-based organizations, ethnic radio/media, and, if used by the jurisdiction, social networking 
_sites) forpublig,l1~alth, ll1E!dical,an.d rnental/behavioral'health infgr111aJion dissemination befor~, during;,,,nd after the incid~nt. (See pg 20) 

.-::::>:}:;!//'_:· :. - ' : '. . 

Plannihf Resource Element 1: 
problem scil\/ing strategy sessions. (See Pg 

Plannlng •• Resourc~'e1em~'~f 2: CEnsu;e hkalth g~fvices are 
cultur~llyand socially co,;f~eteht: 1 (.See Pg-~O) '.!~: 

..::;~~f-'.~< .:-~,;~:i;'.. 

Sustain 

Sustain 

written public health emergency 
preparedness and response plans from 
groups like the Northern Nevada Access and 
Functional Needs Workgroup and the Local 
Emergency Preparedness Council. 
WCHD will continue to solicit feedback from 
groups like the Northern Nevada Access and 
Functional Needs Workgroup to ensure 
health services are culturally and socially 
competent. 

Documentation offindings; 
updated plans, as appropriate. 

Meeting minutes or notes. 

By the end of BP2, WCHD will have further engaged the community in preparedness efforts through implementation of a community outreach campaign, 
coordination of trainings, and Medical Reserve Corps volunteer recruitment. ---$21,287 

Task 1: _ lntegr"'teinforrrlati6n?nresilience, specifically iH.efoe~.~·forfommunity-derive_d.apptpaches to support theprovislo~ of public health, medical,·andtnental/ 
behaviora11beplth s~rvices&uring and after an incident, Into exis\i~g'fr~inlng and educatiori_al pr;~grams related to crisis and disaster preparedness and respon~e. (See Pg 20) 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #1: Community Preparedness Page 33 of 96 WCHD CDCDR-1 'l 

36



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

WCHD will implement a community resiliency outreach campaign, including the Resource booklet distribution 
Build I distribution of a comprehensive document listing community resources developed June 30, 2014 tracking; media tracking of reach 

during•BPl, as well as a media component. and frequency. 
--'"'"''"-------·'- ,.,,_,.,':)\\V'f-~,,~-·--·---·c.·.-,..-_. •-'·' ·:-- -·-.. -.. ·--·:-:,:<":· ··c. . -· •. _- · '.•:,c:,·<c- _•-.-.• ·:- -,,._ . - ·, --
'T;ask•Z: prcimotetrainingJo.,coinmunitypar;tners that may haviia•s,llpporting·raleto public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health sectors (e.g., education, child care, 
· jU1ieriit'eJustice; child welfare; and rnngreg~fo cnildcare settings); (See.Pg iD)· · 

Build 
WCHD will coordinate a Community Resiliency workshop for WCHD staff and 
community partners 

Training sign-in sheet; 
April 30, 2014 I documentation of next steps 

needed for BP3 activities. 
i'rask3:'<Provide gliicl~nt~frocbmmunit\' partners; particularly groups representing the functional needs of at-risk populatio.ns,to~ssist them In educating their own 
,constituii/)fy;g~tjypsr~g~rding•~f~~s:faraddres~irig,preparedness for and recovery from the.jurisdiction's identified.risks and.far•access ta health services that may apply ta 
_·_;i>_<_:-~·'.::·'-'l0i'W'~::P''*''"''. _..·.----:"·-·--:·'_:-:·--···->·-·- •"··---·--··· --.-· ' -- ' -- ·- . ' . ' ·--. 
;o;!_.h~inqi.clgf!;tj~(S~g.![!g~?g)•, 

-.:;:,· :,._ -.:?i.::t:f~~~iJ~tk~-::,E_i:~:;'.;-;:~::;:''.~'.tii:~:_{:C::>>i>.';'.:.'.'::;·_:·:·,>,::::.-/.'::, ·:: .. --:_,-_··: : _ :-: ·-_- :-. , :_·-: __ ·.·,-,: 'f', 
1iJilann ilfg!~·~sgurce'.Ei ~.ri:u•nfi: Puolfc;he~lth ·apprcia i:hes 
.\"'Z .. · .. ;::·:"'::r--{f/e··'·-•".-';·"'"".'·: .. "'"'"-C''''<·c .. -- _·-;""~~··-.. .- · -
ta aaoress'Cnildrefu~s:medic,al ana mental/behavioral 
health'iii~ed~; (S~e'kg2.1) .·· · · . 
'' . '' '' '"~· ·-- - ' -...... -"°' . 

--~v 

., "'"""' 

-.-·:·::/::} .. -,. ' .. "::,- --./:<:~:::;~:'°-:-< :::_:-~_n~~~~m~~>__:.: -_ _ ·: __ :-~~:·:Z:;::·:. ·_._ ._ .· --: ... , :.-.~ 
; planning•Reso urce.·Eleri)e!\ti'Z:: (Building'. a rid ~usta.Lrii.ng · .. 
.·.: ;,-._,-•,-,' :-.". ·, -·· •_:•.-o·i•_-_-.,-_ ">.- ., ... ,,;,,\,""if'','/V.;_·~.·. '. ''·;•-_. "'"\ -''·-\·-','' - ," :: ' .. ·.,_.,,,- .-. • 

IJ.ciluhtee.raiJpartUnities;fcfti'catnmuniWresident5.••·rseePg 
21) E :;_;_' ~-n·~1~''·'·.· ·.····/t/ ·· ·· 

Build 

Sustain 

During outreach activities, WCHD will 
provide specific educational material for 
families with an access or functional needs 
child. 
WCHD will continue recruitment of 
volunteers for the Washoe County 
Medical Reserve Corps, when providing 
outreach and education at community 
events. 

Educational material; outreach 
tracking. 

Tracking of number of people reached 
at events; number of MRC volunteers 
recruited. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards far State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #1: Community Preparedness Page 34 of 96 WCHD CDCOS,13 

37



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Washoe County Health District 
CDC Public Health Emergency Preparedness (BP2) Sub-grant #CDC08-13 

Scope of Work {SOW) July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 
· ·· .•.• p~.gp~~p~bi(it~·#~.:·<Di:lmtn\;loity.Recqv¢ry 

Definitio~: Ccm1munity recovery is the ability t,j1'2o[la~oiate\\)ith ccili)muriity partner~i~(e.gtliealthcare organizationS, bus'1ness, ·education, and. emergency management) to 
;plan an~ advocate for the rebuilding of public h~alth, rnedLcal; ~nci:l\lental/behaviora1hea1th~yst~ms to at least a level of functioning comparableto pre-incident levels, and 
·improved levels where possible. ···· · 

Jhis capa[Jilitysupport5 National Health Security'smtegy qHj~ctivJ11~~orporate Post-lncident~~alth Recovery into Planning and Response. Post-incident recovery of the 
public h~alth, m~dical, and ,mental/b~havioral health services and systernsv;,ithin a jurisdiction is ~riticalJorhealth security andr~quires collaboration and advocacy by the 
public healtnagency forthe 'restmation of services, providers, facilities, andlrifrastructure within the public health, medical, and human services sectors. Monitoring the public 
health, medical ar\.d:menta11'behavioral health infrastructure is an essential public health service. . .. 

Allocated fund1fag: .• ~~;; ~i.Q~;GSg, 
Me·asure'oat . . 

Jhis t~p?bility consists oflheabilfi:~to'perfot,f)i F~htti?ns 1-3 as detailed belg\1.1; The communityrecovei'y evaluation tool is d~signed to capture descriptive 
infonnafion about response and recovery adtivities,;(Se~ Pg:i.6,30) · · · · · · · · · · 

Note: The page #'s listed for Performance Measures above correspond to CDC's "BPl Performance Measures Specifications and Implementation Guidance", Version 1.1 

out come Qbi.~l:tive: .loo.%· of .ca pa bi I itywil Lb~ ~~~j~\ii\J' by,G,/30/2 014:. • 
:,.;,: __ - -"/, :.,'_:,fi--t;;·,,,.·,'-·· ;,>:-.·_;;_•, · •,:'o-,'cc,''··' -- .;,.;;·,;_ :.-·-. ,-· _:;._,: __ .,.,;.'-;;it;;.,-:•.-··,_·'.<Ui;.h<·~---:•~.;;;;~~-· ·-·"~·-·-·- "·'/' 

In Budget Period (BP) 2, WCHD will build the capacity of the community 

recovery infrastructure in Washoe County by: 1) helping to facilitate the 
building of collaborative partnerships internally between WCHD 
divisions, and externally with community sectors and emergency 

response partners; 2) enhancing the delivery of public health, 
mental/behavioral health, and medical services during community 
recovery through the coordination of education and training for the 
community; and 3) determining how to solicit feedback from the 

community-at-large during incident recovery efforts. 

Enhanced community resiliency in Washoe 

County following an incident as result of 
achieving this short-term goal. 

Updated PIC Plan; training and 

exercise sign-in sheets; updated 
staff training reports; staff 
readiness survey results; on line 
training content uploaded; post

incident community assessment 
tool; resource booklet distribution 
tracking; media campaign reach 

and frequency; tracking of AAR/IP 
corrective action progress; meeting 

agendas and minutes. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #2: Community Recovery Page 35 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

38



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Function #1: Identify and monitor p~blic health, medical, and mental/behavioral health system recci~ery needs. . . I 

By the end of BP2, WCHD will train and engage public health staff to be prepared to respond to system recovery needs following an incident, and will 
collaborate with jurisdictional partners to enhance communication with Washoe County residents and visitors through public information warning systems as 
well as soliciting feedback from them about the aftermath of an incident. -- $42,866 

Taskl: ·ln.C:ollilboration with]~tiscJlctional partti'ers;doC:ument short-term and long-term health service delivery priorities and.goals. (See Pg22) '_-. •/-~~-, ... _ .... ,.-.,.,, ____ --'-,-.", .. :.-.-,--.,.-,,,, ____ ,- ·-·-··-•-,-.-,' .· - .. ,,~ ' - " ·- .. ·-··· '-"-> .. - -

Sustain 
WCHD will continue collaborating with jurisdictional partners to document short-term 
and long term health service delivery priorities and goals, as incidents occur. 

Ongoing 

Ta.s .. k··.·.z. :. id. e.n.·t. ify ... 'ih.·~.·.·servicesthatrcan·· .... b. ·.e· .provided bytlie public health agency and by community and faith-based partners that were identified prior to the incident as well as __ -:-_. ... ,,~ "","'"r';;,_ ... - - . .·_._,_._. ···"·'·--- : - - --
by.n,ewJi:a:mm'~blJ:'iJp,artners thaHna\fAarise during the incident response. (See Pg 22) 

Sustain 
WCHD will continue collaboration efforts to identify services that can be provided by 
community partners that may arise during an incident. 

Ongoing 

'Tasl,c;:l':·••Activat!Opl,aps/P:r~\iicjuslycreat@,(,,,itJineighboringjifrisdictio.ns.to provide identified services thatthe jurisdiction does not have the ability to provide during and after 
ari'i[lcident: (See.Pg•i2) · · · · · · 

WCHD will continue activating previously created plans with neighboring jurisdictions 
Sustain I to provide identified services that the jurisdiction does not have the ability to provide I Ongoing I Regional AAR/IPs as appropriate. 

during and after an incident, if appropriate. 

Task.4:Anict\.n)i;7nC,ti'ari·witJ:i liealth'tare:organizatlons (e.g., healthcare facilities and public and private community providers) arid base,d upon recovery operations, determine 
the.eah\'ri;Jhi~Vi~~~·aith service p'riorities ~nd goals that are the responsibility of public health. (See Pg 22) . ··. · · . . . .. · 

Build 

··-- -- ----------, 

• WCl-iD will coordinate training and a tabletop exercise for public health staff on the 
newly revised WCHD COOP plan. 

• WCHD will transfer documentation of public health staffs' NIMS trainings to the 
Washoe County Learning Management System to improve access to needed 

employee training status during an incident recovery period. 

• WCHD will conduct a follow-up readiness survey of public health staff to continue to 
assess and improve upon the agency's ability to serve the community following an 
incident. 

April 30, 2014 

June 30, 2014 

February 28, 

2014 

Training/exercise sign-in sheets. 

Updated personnel training 
transcripts. 

Staff readiness survey results; BP3 

and BP4 training strategy. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #2: Community Recovery Page 36 of 96 WCHD CDC08-13 

39



Planning Resource Elementi:· 1dentify recovery neecls(s~e··
Pg 23) 

Plannin~ke~~urce Element 2: Community asseksmeht 
(See Pg 23)' · . 

Planning Res6i.Jrce Elemenf3: Operational plans (See Pg 
23) 

Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
i'til .: .:. I • j 

Sustain 

Sustain 

Build 

WCHD will continue working with jurisdictional partners 
to identify recovery needs following an incident. 
During BP1, WCHD updated the health-specific 
community assessment; during BP4 and BPS, WCHD will 
participate in Washoe County Emergency Management's 
activities to update the regional assessment and 
mitigation plan. 
WCHD will coordinate training and a tabletop exercise 
for public health staff on the newly revised WCHD COOP 
plan. 

·1 Regional AAR/IPs as 
appropriate. 
Updated regional 
assessment and 
mitigation plan, most 
likely during BP4 or 
BPS. 

Training/ exercise sign
in sheet. 

By the end of BP2, WCHD will provide training to public health staff, MRC Volunteers and community partners to address effective, appropriate and 
coordinated systems recovery approach following an incident, and will implement an outreach campaign promoting community resiliency among Washoe 
County residents. --- $S4,498 

Task 1: Parf1c'1pate withther~c~Veryleadjur'1~d,icf1onal agencies (e.g.,emerg"'ncy management and soc;ial service) to ensure that the jurisdiction can provide health services 
needed to recover froma physical~r.:m~ktal/b~havioral injury, illness, or exposure sustained as a result citthe incident, with particular attention to the functional needs of at-
risk p~rs0ns (e.,giir#h5se,g[~place~:~rSin tli~[rusu~I residence) .. (See Pg.?,~l/ · 

Build 

• WCHD will continue partnerships with recovery lead jurisdictional agencies before, 
during and after an incident. 

• WCHD will continue to provide current online trainings for WCHD staff, 
jurisdictional government and community partners, and will add modules to further 
address training needs surrounding functional needs populations. 

• WCHD will coordinate a Community Resiliency workshop for WCHD staff and 
community partners. 

April 30, 2014 

Online training content 
uploaded. 

Training sign-in sheet; 
documentation of next steps for 
BP3. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #2: Community Recovery Page 37 of 96 WCHD CDC08-13 

40



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
Task.i:,,lli coiijuhctl~n with jurisdictional government and community partners,Jnform the community ofthe availability of mental/behavioral, psychological first aid, and 
medJCalservlc~swltii'ifi'±he,community,with 'par:ic~lar attentionto'how the~e services affect the functional needs of at-risk persons (including but not limited to children, 
elderly;.their·caregivers; .thei.disabjed; or individuals withlimit.ed·economic resources);.. •(See Pg 25) 

Build 

• WCHD will implement a community resiliency outreach campaign, including the 
distribution of a document listing community resources developed during BPl, as 
well as a media component. 

• WCHD will coordinate a Psychological First Aid workshop for MRC Volunteers and 
community partners . 

.• Resource booklet distribution 
June 30, 2014 I tracking; media tracking of 

reach and frequency. 

April 30, 2014 I • Training sign-in sheet; 

evaluation. 
. Task 3(.Notifythe corhmunjtyvia.comrnurilty'pai;tners of the health agency's plans for restoration of impacted public health, medJ.cal, and mental/behavioral healt,h services. 
<(S~·e':pg·;2~);-"_;_::i~·j:;.:;;~·;:_::;r:·-,·:,:;~~(','.J:_t:--~";:;b{.,,,:-.-·-- -.·--- · _. ·-:c- .. '"'<>·.- --- - · · - - - -- - -.---.·_-·.,-·, - -_ · - '" 

Build 
WCHD will update the agency's Public Information and Communication Plan to include 
the process of communicating with specified community partners in the instance the 
agency needs to communicate plans for restoration of impacted services. 

June 30, 2013 
Updated Public Information a.nd 
Communication plan. 

Task4: •.Slliiojtfc&foinunityiripu{yia•community partners regardfog health service recovery needs during and after the acute phase of.the.incident; 

Build 
WCHD will research community assessment instruments/resources used to solicit 
community feedback to determine corrective actions following an incident, and will 
strategize next steps needed to pilot the method selected. 

l.bLLJ 

Community assessment 
template; documented strategy 
to pilot assessment; adopted 

June 30, 2014 I and documented assessment 

collecting of community 
feedback in WCHD response 
plans during BP3 . 

.Tasl<S: iija"frnerwffh 'pUblic heali:Ki'medica I, aricbf:(f@nfai/beliaviora I hea Ith .prlJressii:ih~'l{a'i1d· other soda I networks. (e.g., faith-bas.ed,· vblu nteer organ izatlons, support .. 
. -; _,--. •-,._'·"<.\~'.'>''c;'.(?.Ji\f,>•.i~':_ ·; ",.,-.- ":-.>Nt"'>'F•''';-' · : ·-_:<, /\·;'<._;_'··:.:-· ... : .,_. __ ·-::•_··- - ---- -:·:-:-·>''Y"<'.;'-,\f--i;_ :' -·· - - - - --- . :·> _ '.· ·- - ·-
groups,•arji:l1pJ'j'?feSSiOnal orgatiizatiqiis)Jrom withinarid,o.i.Jtside the jurisdiction, as appli2ablefothe incident, to educate their.constituents regarding applicable health 

f.·:----',;'.~,1~,,·;._-?;tC,_·;:i.,_ '""!•'Wfi!i?>;1~-c.'-.'.-;_ .. _ ... ,_:. , ..; _,,,;;:-:, ... -.. ---.;.j<:, ,: --- -, ___ ---" -: . :> . -. --~-- .. ,;_; .- • - . · _ __ ·----· _, - - . , 
.;i~ter:Y.ehtionsil:ieJrjg(r,ecommenc!eiJ;byipublic health;. (5eei8g25) · 

Build 

• WCHD will implement a community resiliency outreach campaign, including the 
distribution of a document listing community resources developed during BPl, as 
well· as a media component. 

• WCHD will coordinate a "working with the media" workshop to better prepare 

June 30, 2014 I Resource booklet distribution 

tracking; media tracking of 
reach and frequency. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #2: Community Recovery Page 38 of 96 WCHD CDCOB-13 

41



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
WCHD back-up PIOs, other WCHD staff, and community partners to effectively 
partner with the media during a public health incident. 

March 30, 
2014 

Training sign-in sheet; 
training evaluation. 

By the~nd of BP2, WCHD Willf~rtllEircdll~~Jrativef~fforfs yvith jurisdictional P,arfnerstoenhance the rEigion'sability to implement corrective.actions 
mitigating.damages from future incidentsfhrough·.cpordJnated planning, asse;sment a ndtraining. -- $12,291. 

Task 1: Tfi conjllnctiqn withjurisdictional goverhment and community partners, conduct post-incident assessment and planning as part of the after action report process that 
affects sliort·and lo.ng,terrri rec0yeryfor those corrective actions that are within the control and purview of jurisdictional public health, including the mitigation of damages 
f rorri future i nciciellis ,.:(s~e.p.g:26)·, · 

Sustain 
WCHD will continue partnerships with jurisdictional government and community 
partners in conducting post-assessment and planning for corrective actions that are 
within the purview of WCHD's authority. 

Ongoing Regional AAR/IPs, as appropriate. 

Tas1c·2: •. Collaboraf~.'ft/Jtii•:~~j::fdrJea,cl~rs .. t.9fiii:)li\ate.c.cillection of.com111uhity0\eedback.to determinecorrecJive actions. (See pg,26) .. 

Build 
WCHD will research post-incident community assessment instruments/resources, and 
will strategize next steps needed to pilot the collecting of community feedback to 
determine corrective actions following a public health incident. 

Community assessment 
template; documented strategy 
to pilot assessment; adopted and 

June 30, 2014 I documented assessment 
collecting of community 
feedback in WCHD response 
plans during BP3. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #2: Community Recovery Page 39 of 96 WCHD CDC08-13 

42



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Tasl< 3: ·Implement corrective actions for items that arewithin the scope or control of public hea.lth to affect short and Jong-term recovery, including the mitigation of 
damagesfrO.m;'future incidents: [See Pg 26) · · 
,,_ - --.. -.·-- -'~---":, --_ :;·.,.:;~,-:o-· -_ _. - - - -

Sustain 

WCHD will continue identifying corrective actions in written After Action 
Reports/Improvement Plans (AAR/IPs), will track and document progress on action 
items from all AAR/IPs, and will report progress to the Department Emergency 

Management Committee. 

AAR/IP tracking; Department 

June 30, 2014 I Emergency Management 
Committee minutes. 

Tasl<4!::Facilitate ancfad.v?cate for collaborations among government agencies and community partners so that these agencies canfulfill their respective roles in completing 
·the' corrective actian·sto protectthe health.of the public.(See Pg 26) . · 

• WCHD staff will actively serve on the newly created Washoe County Community I June 30, 2014 

Build 
Resiliency Workgroup. 

• WCHD will continue administrating the Inter-Hospital Coordinating Council and the 
Northern Nevada Access and Functional Needs Workgroup. I June 30, 2014 

• Worlcgroup meeting notes or 
minutes; Community 
Resiliency Plan draft, possible 
in BP3; updated Washoe 
County Hazard Risk Mitigation 

Plan BP4 or BPS. 

• Meeting agendas and minutes. 
~ 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #2: Community Recovery Page 40 of 96 WCHD CDCOB-13 

43



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Washoe County Health District 
CDC Public Health Emergency Preparedness (BP2) Sub-grant #CDC08-13 

Scope of Work (SOW) July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 

····· P.HEif~.~~•ila~illjy,#3': .. ~metg~Q~vPP~t~tipns cC>ordiilati.on .. 
Definitiori:Ernergency oper~tions coordinatio'.~ii5cthe~J5ff;tyto direct and suppbrta~eVent oi incident "'.itnpublic health or medical i'11plitations by establishing a 
standa,dlzed, scalable.sysiem ofoverslght, org~~Tzatim1T~nd supervision co'qslste~t:•,,:,ith jGrisdictional standards and practices and with the National Incident Management 
Syste>h): •••::·:c.·. 
Alloi:ai:edJaiitliilg:. -__ ,. ------c- '""'--"~" 

PHEP ;H(Funi:fii:iii 2): Stilff Assen\bly - Tirnefor pre-identified;staffceiveringactivated publichealth agency incident managernen'tlead roles (or equivalent lead roles) to 
report for iil)rnediate duty. (see Pg 33-35) · · · · · · · 

-' Staoiztrrne:· Date and time thata designated official;began_ndtifying:staff to reportcfori!11fif\,diate duty to cover activated Incident management lead roles 
'-Stop timg::bate a.n.d.time.thatthe last staff per.5611Clotfffe'ti.to\'.c'61ier-an activated inciCl~llt_l)l'iinagetnent lead r.dle re;:ia'rtedfor immediate. duly 

PHEP 3:2\(~unctiOn 3): IAP' Prod-uction ofthe approy~tiihti<:lel'ii:'Actjon.Plan beforetbestart•orthe second oe_erafional period (See Pg 36-38) 
PHEP 3.3 (Furicticih 5): AAR and IP - nme to i:ompletea.draft'of ari)l.fterAction Report (AAR) andlmprovemerit Plan(IPHSee Pg 39-40) 

-Start time; bate exercise or public health emergency operation completed 
-Stop time: Date the draft After Action Report and Improvement Plan were ~_ubmitted lor clearanc."._within_the pu_blic health agency 

Note: The page # 1s listed for Performance Measures above correspond to CDC's "BP1 Performance Measures Specifications and Implementation Guidance 11
, Version 1.1 

Outcome Objective: 100% of capability ... will be,achieved by 6/30/201'/f~ 

Sustain WCHD's ability to assess and determine the need for a public health activation. --- $9,287 

TasJci: .• At the tjt\ie of~rniBtident aodj<lf~ppj;~~ble du~i hg ~n incident, ~oflcA\\,itll;ltl~i;di ctldn al. •9fl1C:ialf(~:g., ~the~agency ·rep resent~tf~~s; elected 0 r appointed l~a dersh i p 
ofl)cials; epid~roil:iliig~, 1~:6'p%to6a;~~'rveill~nJ;,'1";medi~a1, and chemii:a1;5ic)IQ'glc~f. anilfadiolog1ca1 5u8ieft)natterexperts;. and emenl~ncy ;perations ieadershipJ to analyze 
dafa; a~sessem~rgencyic~nditions~nd d~terin.ine the ~ctivation levels based·on the complexity of the event or incident. Activat.ion levels should·be consistent with. 
juri~dictional st~~:~~r;dsa.~~0~[~~ic~~ •• (~:w:;J;g~j~diction,~IJmergencY qp~f~!(§;p~ Pla6,Sand applical:ile an~:~~e.s). ·(See Pg 27) .·. . 

F.i El _I _ J_J 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #3: Emergency Operations Coordination Page 41of96 WCHD CDCOB-13 

44



Build 

Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
Include in WCHD plans the method for identifying the appropriate notifications and 
stakeholders to coordinate with during an emergency and include activation levels 
consistent with jurisdictional standards and practices. 

January 2014 
Updated Department 
Emergency Operations Plan 

f~~r<2: l\ttheti;,,~i~fari'iR2i~ent ~nd as appilcable during an lncide~t,def~f[iilne:wJ1etherpublic health has the lead role, a supporting role, or no role. (See Pg 27) ,,. ' ·' . ' ' ' ' ' "'' '" ' ' ' .,, ''. ' !'1!1!'1!1111!1 

Sustain 

WCHD Crisis Action Team along with Washoe County Crisis Action team with input 
from Washoe County Emergency Management will make decision regarding lead and 

supporting roles at the time of an incident. 

Dependent on I AAR/IP 
incident 

0:rask3:.•peflneih~i~,1'rit'.~orhmahdancl'erl'iergencynianagemeh'tstnicturefor the public health event o,rinc.id.ent a.ccording to one of the.Fede~al Emergency Management 
ilg~b'EV·(fEMA).type~~ (5E,°€:Pg 27). '· , ' ... . . . . , . . . 

. ·•r-J,~%r6~it~EIEi~~'1~~' 

Sustain 
Review the WCHD public health staff matrix that identifies appropriate staff based on 
incident type. 

March 2014 

sTis!<Z:PiiDr~.2 ~:~~~0~2,~J~9.f i~cident, iB~Q~j.f>{;\~jpi)Cll ,of staff w~o h~vetheskills necessary to fulfill retj.~if~djQf!~e~tco('1mand and.emergency management roles deeme~·.··· 
'ifi'e!'ces~aryJ6ra·respo'ns:e·;%ljhe:piJol.shou,ld:in~lude:public'healthsutiject. matter experts, ,Incident Co[tlmander,section Clliefs, .Command Staff, and support positions (e.g., 
,_,-,h:>;<"'t.;r",-;;· ;,,, >:,·->:-. -,,_ .. , ~' :';"": ',;'.'-•'/; '>'.''· ._ .- '" -. - >~- -'V:·-·,r<:>&,;iJU*itF:;-- . '°'':: .>. _: : "·· , .. :- • --·-.0·,,::'..--·, C;, ;•« - -:.- -- - -- -·:, • - - • -· .,, ,. ·.,· ,. - -- - · . · 

'lnforniatiOnalTechnalogylSpeclalist). · (5'ee'•Pli'.2S)i~fo:, · · ·· · _, 

Sustain Review and maintain JCS roster of WCHD staff for incident command staffing to ensure WCHD Department Operations 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #3: Emergency Operations Coordination Page 42 of 96 WCHO COCOS-13 

45



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
appropriate skills based on staff matrix referred to in Function 2, Task 1. Center Roster 

Task3: ,Prior to imeventor incident; ii:lentif'/.sfaff.toservei.r:\the.:r~quired.i.ncidenttorfirnahd.~n.d ,emergehcy ma~.ag~ment·roles for multiple DRerat.icinal periods to' ensure 

Sustain 
Review and maintain ICS roster ofWCHD staff for incident command staffing to ensure 
continuous staffing for three consecutive 12 hour shifts during activation. June 2014 WCHD ICS Roster 

Tasl<.4: f'rior.te an. eve,n~,or incident, identify primary ~nqalternatephysical.,lbcation,sor'°aviFt~~.Lstruc\ure.(ownedby pybli,shealthorhave access to through a 
·memo rand um•qflunderstanding.or 0th er written agreeinents)Jhat,wiUo.sery,e 'ls.the public. health .einergencY operations cetiteif•,. (See pg 29) 

Build 
Primary and alternate physical locations have been identified in the WCHD COOP and 
are primarily Washoe County facilities. MO Us will be developed to confirm these 
locations. 

August 2015 COOP and MOUs 

i~sk.S: At theti!necir.ari·f~ve~tor.T~Cid~.~t, notify designated.incident cci~ma,rid ~taff bf.public.healtn ie~porise; 
:--; - , .... :--"" :' - yi,;i,,_•~-.:,._ •• ?i"'-.·.:-•"'-+' ::+,~i·-.-·····/·'"-'--.:.~.'-"'"- .·;<;-:;; - •"> : .. , · •,-. - :. - - '"'''"- ._·,,_,, -.:;,\s.,. -,,,,. · ,,-_,:; . _ ,;;:. . , 

Sustain Notify WCHD Incident Command Staff through alert drills or for a real event. 

Task 6:. iii.preparation for or at thetime ofarl>~venf orillCident, ~ssemble de~ignated·staffatthe appropriate ernergency op~rations center(s) (i.e., public health emergency 
operations cent'er.or.jurisgictional.emergency operations center). ·(see Pg 29) · · 

Y(:':· . .- ', '. _- ·:J£'.'.',·-~,;;_i~1:'.:':_ ;._.~::;;:::;,'.'.i:i~·~;~-:.->;,c~:I~'.:.:.:_;:~;t:~:-/,~;:{-; ''':~;;~:-,_-, -.'..:.·.· ' ' -,. ' 
Skill & [ra ining.·l:'•N I r>JJS certification'based o'ti.discipli ~e;• 
level; ~ndJurisdictional requirements (See Pg 30) · · 

, . ' ---

Sustain 

Sustain 

Update Department Emergency 
Management Plan as necessary. 

Continue to monitor staff ICS certification 
level, ensure new staff complete required 
ICS training and both notify staff of 
training opportunities and provide ICS 300 
and 400 through WCHD. 

Department Emergency Management 
Plan 

Learning Management System 
Printout 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #3: Emergency Operations Coordination Page 43 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

46



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
.a;;sr : UP.TSP.rs as1s.1.1.a&n£os..1 

Sustain 
Ensure that Incident Command staff have access to Incident Action Plans during 
exercises and events. 

'····:·, ·. ·- . -'-:--' -, .. -.·._, · .,;_I!Jf:~·.::,, - :_.: ,.·_ -,-.- __ ,- __ ... _,,.: '.' ._ 
Ta~f3:;;;~,\!)Ji~,~a,r\cj !Jriefst,af,f~ci.n;the lncidenbl\ction Plan at least at the start of each new operational period. 

'- .-.,,~ ., ,·,"wk:';t.-:·,;;·.x1..tk'i"k ~-· _ "-'-'~ ·- - -,,_«',,,.»··~ >.-.'-"'' ;,,,_, -·-. . - .-. . ·:.. .>. _ 

Sustain 
Coordinate public health and EMS, and hospital operations at Regional Emergency 
Management Operations Center during Urgent Solidarity FSE May 2013. 

June 2014 

August 2013 

IAP, AAR/IP 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Loco/ Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #3: Emergency Operations Coordination Page 44 of 96 WCHD CDC08-13 

47



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

TaskZ: Track and accouhtfor all·public healthresourcesduringtnepubli~health response. i.f_ - . LL . . - ""'" .. •"· - -'" "" ,, .. "' -·' -

Sustain 
Continue completing AAR/IPs after events and exercises and track identified 
improvements . 

June 2014 AAR/IP and IP Tracking 

• :.:-___ ·: __ --. ..... •::1:,_\;;:.:. <:,.,/··-: -'..: •. ---: , _____ , __ . _ ·_·: :_·:_;_;_· -:_. , ::::: ._ -, ::>'> --'.·_,.~::-:·,,_., .. ~':\·;_,~;_;_;:>'.':: :>f<;~:'.·:>;::';'!'.-:'·.:;_:_.1/:-:r,-.:_,. :· ·. ,_ ,c,. ':;;.:·: _., _ ~- --'.::;~·_;; __ ,t.'{:;:<;;;:,::<.~~;:;;··>::-·-::~--- ,,._ ,. -- _._:··-~--' -_-·:·::.- ,. -<" -:,:,:;:·-~:;::''.'.:::>:~·-:;·:_--:-: _-> _ . _ ,--- -: _ _-· _ -:~.>:::<::_<:- · ->' ::- _ .. ,, >--
Task 4: ·1 rnPI em~rt I mprb~~men~Plan ·iterns(ecg:,, pro j~5\: W?EI: pl ~~s,and:eyid ence ofim p to'f e[11e nE acti~,Q.s J,thathave 'bee ii•assigned}o pub Ii c .. h.ealth .' (See' P g34) · 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #3: Emergency Operations Coordination Page 45 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

48



.·.Plari~in~HesCJfrh~i:1erl1'~Hti:Demobili~atic)n. 
proteau}est9t;f)!lblic liealt~f'oi:i~rations. i(See ·pg34) 

Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Sustain 
Review and revise Demobilization Plan as 
needed. 

Demobilization Plan 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #3: Emergency Operations Coordination Page 46 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

49



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Washoe County Health District 
CDC Public Health Emergency Preparedness (BP2) Sub-grant #CDC08-13 

Scope of Work (SOW) July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 

· ······)•:· Vi •.• ·;~·;1: •·r::.e.lf!E'RG?~a6r1i.~\rH¥~:4;,;•0 ~rn~l"g~p8yigili~fi~•·•·'rift,r.rflatib.1'1<~11i;i.Wa.rrii.ng · 
Detffiition: Emergency p@licinformafffirrariClilNarningis the ability tocfevef§p, coOrdinate, and disseniibate·1nformar1on, alerts, warnihgs, and notifications to the public and 
i nci dent·ma nagemerit. responders: •. 

Allotafl;.dfuliding: .. :• $7!!,669 

PHEP 4'1 (F~ndioh 5): Public Message DisselllinatiOn-Tirnefdmssue a risk communicalion\[nessag~Jor disseminafion.1;6 tlie public. 
(See Pgs 41~4gy· · · · ·· · · ··· · ·· · · · · ·· 

-Starttirne: Date an.d•time thafa designated official_requesi~i:lthat tile flr~t risl<commuriication message be developed 
~Stop time:;oate and··trmethat a designated official approved the firs\:risk commlinicaticm message for dissemination 

Note: The page #'s listed for Performance Measures above correspond to CDC's "BP1 Performance Measures Specifications and Implementation Guidance", Version Ll 

qutc.orT! !l0~J~~i1f!l;.~~OO:$•P.fs~ ll<l bil.ityy;i 11. b!l. ~ch i!lyeg;IJ'f~]3g/~0:14. 

By the end of Budget Period (BP) 2, WCHD will continue efforts to enhance the 
capability surrounding emergency public information and warning by: actively 
serving on the newly-created Public Information/ Public Warning Taskforce; 
continuing conducting call-down drills of staff; utilizing the Public Information 
Officer (PIO) as the agency's spokesperson and member on regional JICs; 
implementing the newly developed WCHD media policy addressing public 
communication topics like social media; coordinating/facilitating/participating 
in community trainings and exercises; revising the agency's Public Information 
and Communication (PIC) Plan; and, working with public and private agencies 
and organizations at the local, area, state, regional, and federal levels. 

H &&!£ 

Achieving this short-term goal will better 
prepare WCHD to effectively disseminate 
public health messages which adhere to the 
CDC's Crisis and Emergency Risk 
Communication (CERC} principles, and work 
with community partners to disseminate 
Joint Information Center (JIC) messages 
when appropriate. 

Sign-in sheets; meeting 
minutes, notes or agendas, 
updated website as 
appropriate; revised PIC plan; 
press releases and web and 
social media postings. 

By the end of BP2, WCHD will participate in the Public Warning/Public Information Tasl< Force coordinated through Washoe County Regional Emergency 
Operations Center, conduct National Incident Management System Incident Command System 300/400 Trainings, and conduct or participate in a Crisis 
Emergency Risk Communication (CERC) Training. --- $18,023 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #4: Emergency Public Information Warning Page 47 of 96 WCHD CDC08-13 

50



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
Tasl(•.1.;,;:erig[J1Pia~'ird~~i11:, iderifif\cgu~lic I hf°.[rnation C)fficei,suf pcfrf staff,!r].~pe~din~· •• afr ]udsdictioiial,vu I nera bi lities. and subject ·matter expertise), and potentia I 
~sli.6lc€58ersaA'fs) i:&:c:o:n'\i~\F,Iii:if6rmati66';taith~,R:(Jblic, (see Pg 36} / . ; ~:;.'~ ·':' .• • ·· · .· · .· .·.· .. <. . · 

Build 
• WCHD will coordinate and facilitate an ICS 300 class and ICS 400 class with 

attendance of 40 students. 
• February 28, 

2014 
• WCHD will conduct or participate in at least one CERC training. I • June 30, 2014 

Training sign-in sheets. 

:Task·11iAtJhetirni!!ofanincidiefl'-~otlfyPi.iblj~;Jflformatlon Officer, support staff, spokesperson(s), and subject matter experts, ifapplicable to the incident, of the nee.d to 
;~itffiei,Jelpn7~@jor·tbir~iJ~~;fprci~uty asneces~a'~.Witbjn atirne frame.apprnpriate to the.incident. (See Pg36) . . ... · .. · •. ·>/ ;. . . . • · · ... · · ... 

Sustain WCHD will continue implementing current call-down activities. Ongoing 

Call-down drill activity 
documentation including sign
in sheets with attendee and 
time. 

'V"<t·;"': .. ·e ~'""'>'fi,1;:i";·vr: .. ,,.,.,,b,,,,~,, .. -,:, _,.-._ ·:·. :-··-: '": : :~·:·-·~"~- ;··'' --o;;·,,i'•,:, ".:-'-· .: -: ----· .: :.:·-:·" '.• ·.: · ·:<:: <.'··· ·,.:. -.r, _, . . _ . : - " . : : _. - ·_·:. _. -- -_ _- ____ :· ._ _ _ . __ .~ ·: ,· __ -
;:ifaj\L~i;\~tl!Ji~~l\Jil'fofi~Q~n<;ifJeplJi~.~~~(!J.~lefl;\Ublic inforrnati(ln st:atf;~t,th.e .P hysica 1. 0r vi rtua 1)0.saFio ni •. d.ebt.i!'J'on incident, and assign. respqn~e. d utiesc 

Build 
A WCHD representative will attend regularly scheduled Public Information I Public 
Warning Task Force meetings and participate as member of Public Outreach 
Committee. 

June 30, 2014 
Meeting minutes, notes or 
agendas; Regional Pl/PW Plan. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #4: Emergency Public Information Warning Page 48 of96 WCHD CDCOB-13 

51



Planniriii Res<'.lli~ce Eleimentl: .·stafidard •op era ting 
· proceduresforthep~blit::b~althEOC.. (See Pg36) 

- .::~:~·;-:: ·: · .. ~.·.;,>:,-_:··.\'I'*'''·.·._;~'."'.: .. .... , , 
Planhii)gResource•Element 2: ·Message teilfilfates. 
a.dd ress .. i.~g ju risdicti a na 1 vu i nerabi lities. (see.Pg.36) 

' ;,• ;.,,-. ' -

Skill &Tfainirili'i: ·Nlf\l!Str~iningfor public ·1nformationsta'~ 
(See Pg 37) > · •· .. :t( 

····-··>;;::;;;•'> 

Sldll &'1'ra ining 2: .. crisis ~ nffemergE!nc/risk c(fm riWriicatio J1 
training (See Pg 37) · · ·· ··. · ··· ·:n. >, · 

Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Sustain 

Build 

Build 

Build 

Review the Washoe County Emergency 
Management Plan. 
WCHD staff will update the Public 
Information and Communications (PIC) 
Plan. 
WCHD staff will coordinate and facilitate 
an ICS 300 class and ICS 400 class with 
attendance of 40 students. 
WCHD staff will conduct or participate in 
at least one CERC training. 

N/A 

Revised PIC Plan. 

Training sign-in sheet. 

Training sign-in sheet or proof of 
participation. 

Build 

Coordinate an area-wide Public Information Officer (PIO) training using the Division of 
Strategic National Stockpile's Program Preparedness Branch online role-playing scenario 
that enables users to participate in a simulated public health emergency. The electronic 
system - lmown as the Medical Countermeasure Response Trainer (MCRT) - is designed 
to exercise the public information and warning-targeted capability and follows guidelines 
from the Homeland Security Exercise and Evaluation Program. 

June 30, 2014 
Online training/exercise sign
in sheet. 

ras.k 2,: ldentifVia,be~lthdf p~rthi'ert representative to participit~ in the jurisdiction'; emergerl~y operations cent~fto ensur.e public health messaging capacity is 
represented if<illoiii!lnfo'.m'l~iqn.p.~foer(JIC) or Virtual Joint 1nforma\ion.(:enter isn.ot applicableto the incident. - (See·Pg.38) ltit.f,1:\: ··'' .'·-4• ,,,,_.,,' .,.,,., •• ,,.,, '·"•'' . • ... , ,. , •• od• , - -~·-. ,.,,,, -· ',,, 

Sustain 
In BP1, WCHD identified staff representatives to participate in the jurisdiction's 
emergency operations center to ensure public health messaging capacity is represented 
in a JIC. 

Ongoing N/A 

Task~.:.•· As§lgnj~~[<s fo ~yiJ[cir;t.st~tt(YJ(lh staffdgdu nd.a ncyto suppoff e*t~~4\led. operationa I •periods) t6;5uf?port _message 'coc)rc:lin~tiorji.a nd. pu (Jlic .inform. at. ion th rough three 
. -''.'"-__ ..... _,_.,,_:,-,_ .. -;<··',,·.:. . .,,-·•.","·.,-·_"''''·-·<':,,_··, .•. ',,, ___ ,,,;,,,·_. __ ,_ ···:·-''-"'-_"- , ·'·-··."'"'.~>Y•;:·.·<•'•,'>':_<:j''/'~' ! ·-.·_; ,. __ ·_··_:•·-·_. ·"'."'.-\'_, ... ·- , ·-·,· ,,_>!; ,',,,.,._ · ... ' 

I priricipa1Juricti6ns: Research, Media'_Operatio~s,.and.Administration, as applicablefo~the..ifieident.(See Pg38) • '' :::;: . · ... · .. · · ····. ·: ·· · · · > ., · ·••• :·.· • · · · · 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #4: Emergency Public Information Warning Page 49 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

52



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

, . ,, ~-;>-c.;, ,,, _____ ;,;;f .. _,¥:'er;-~<;(·!"·'· -c·<·~-,~fff0Jl:C;'r.1n,:-~fi,-:''";•:'. "~ r-~·-": ~ '.'~-~--' ;- _,_-,-:i:,~,:\tdt-Jr,-.- .. -_ -, ---, ~ 

·~qu1p111.~11tlit1J~ljes~nC>!Pgy'}i<lnM101mum;.c9111.Pon.E!n;\s 
001c[~Jvlilt'rfil1w§Mfllllt8~w.:iii6;H::ci~tif~fil~1(iiE!E!i.l'g39i···· ••·· · training and exercise. 

Build 
WCHD PIO will complete Department of Homeland Security/FEMA/CDP/Emergency 
Institute E0389 Master Public Information Officer Training. 

Training and exercise sign-in sheet. 

September 9-
13, 2013 

Certificate of completion. 

J~~l~;z!. Base~'6hjudsdl~.t[$n~l·strui::tur~~[l'iQ:Vide a s)ngle release point of information for health and heal~hC:are issues through a pre-identified spoliesperson in coordination 
,;0'it1i:;!fieil12:2:(~~~~gc~o)~~'i~~'i' ',H11'(X' '}, .•:!ii!!~ ·· · ..• · · · ·.· · · ······ . .. ·. · <.:7,j£. "' ;;: · . .. > ., .. · · •. ·• . ·· : 

1321.1.15.: 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards far State and local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #4: Emergency Public Information Warning Page 50 of 96 WCHD CDC08-13 

53



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
·y,, >'"-''ii'" ',-' ,';c:.~" 21.- p•"'~-· •< /'., ,~\/i-1• •l'~-,,~hCf':°i"l'i~~~:.r 

, j:!Venues foi;,R!lllhc n:iteract10_11 and,) 

By end of BP2, WCHD PIO will continue effective public information dissemination on issues current to Health District activities and participate in applicable 
drills, exercises, JIC trainings, and other networking activities to improve and enhance future public health messaging, --- $16,755 

Task 1;,:,Establishmechariisms (e:g,; Call teritel';'poisofrc;iintrcilc~nter, and non'emergency ljp,e such as 211 or 3Il),for public and media inquiries that can be scalable to 
meet themeei:l~,of\he incident (See Pg 41' .. . . . .. , , . . . . " . 

i3ki.i.i3. 

Build 

WCHD will work with statewide Public Information/Public Warning Taskforce in 
selection and/or development of newly-available public information warning programs I Ongoing 
and applications similar to Ping4, MyStateUSA/EAS, and IPAWS, 

Implementation of programs, 

If hl'alt~_:;i;teP~\'1'm'.~o!Wl'9sites exist,,post. incident-relatedinformatfon;on, ,he_a_lth ·de pa rtmen_tWj!,tl'site·as,a ·_means ofiriformfog;~~d connecting with the pub I ic,_ (See 
-_::-.~x:;~~::~G-;!_'.--~- ,;-~~::;:",~~~~t:'.::::m~;;/~;;;1;~-<~;~J'.f~;-:_-::/_:;.,~;-~--~ :;~:;;·,~::;. <::-:·:- :- - ·-: ::.: · <::~ft;,,_;~:-:-~~-i~~~~i:;.,:::i}:~_,_,,'.,>· :- -,_-\;<:!:~(;· _. ·--_ ;',·- ---~_-:i:~-::_:>-.:- ,_ _ · ::-:.:::_. 

! 

Sustain 
WCHD will continue to have webmaster post pertinent information through the 
website such as press releases, media advisories, and social media releases. 

Ongoing 

Task 3: UtilizesCJcialmeafo (e.g,,Tl)lilter and Faceboolc)when a~cl if.pbssiblefor public health ll)essagirig, (See Pg 41) 
' _-_,',,,,-,,;i,.,·,:<-,,,.,,,,-, ,•;:.;;,,-,,_,,,N"'' .;;,~''_'• ,-.. ._,','n•'-- • ,.o,••' o'/,.o'_,,,,,, ',''/;i/;c_,••,,'' •'' .'"' ,:'-', ,-•,, ',.,<" o ,, 

r.JEl.1.15. 

Updated website, as 
appropriate. Media tracking and 
monitoring through VOCUS and 
TV Eyes, 

By end of BP2, WCHD will continue to work independently or coordinate with Washoe County Emergency Management to issue public information, alerts, 
warnings and notifications as needed. --- $14,411 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #4: Emergency Public Information Warning Page 51of96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

54



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
1 "<'''-< _>·'.;:".;,'·.· '··: ·-_ .• ,--_---·_,::-:--_;·+:,---· - '>.-'"<'-'",''·.··--,_--- - - -.·' ~<--·-·-·-···.i···_·.,,_._ ... -_.; ·!'d_-, - ' _,_.,, _ _'- _- __ ,·_- ._.·_. __ :,. _-. 

Taskl: Pd?rt.? th.eindd<:>flf7col11ply withesfalinsiledjurisdicticinal legaJ'.guideHnes.~o.avo.id communication of information that is protected for national security or law 
.•enforcierri'e~t;reaso'ns:orthati:riav:infringe on ihdlvld~aljand:entityxights. ($~e pg42) .• . . .. . . 
'-:>'-' <-···,-:,j-:/;:,, .. _.;;/.;,';(;-·,.;.;:_;';;'!:':.i-·.-:.:,;,.;,,'."'· .• -.,.-,,_--.- .. -.<ii-•>---,' . - . ',,,.'- --- ·.· .. ·.-.-·--. _,,, .-"·,-.-. •' ·- -

Sustain 
WCHD will continue to work with Washoe County's legal counsel to ensure the 
communication of information complies with legal guidelines. 

Ongoing 
Documentation from Washoe 
County's legal counsel, as it is 
made available to WCHD. 

J"as.k•Z: [li~se0iilat.e i~for[natidnfrothep~bllc using pre-established message maps in languages and formats that take into account jurisdiction demographics, at-risk 
pqpd]a*idff~,:·e20'8~roic\~j~~cjyan!.,ges/liri\ited;laoguage proficiency, and cultural or geographical isolatio.n.. · . · · .. · .. _, . . · · · 
( ·...• ··:);·.•••i•h •• . ·-- . . . . . · .. · .••. 

. C; .S~_i=-;,Bg:.;l2. ~;;;;i;;;/;'f,L:•··,: 

June 30, 2014 Revised PIC plan. 

~,i~ ,:::_,- -.~::i:::,;·ci: __ _.<'.·::::-- ·:::· ·: -:: -:~;:~::-<-·. _. . -:-:'.:-~; 
:ra:sk3:;'irr,ansi:iiif,health:related,fiiessaging information to responder organizations through secure messaging platforms. (See Pg 43) 

, •. - - ,.,;_.<----.- ' ,·_-,,,' -- ;' '•' .. - ' . • 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards far State and local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #4: Emergency Public Information Warning Page 52 of 96 WCHD CDCOB-13 

55



Attachment B; Scope of Work by Capability 

Washoe County Health District 
CDC Public Health Emergency Preparedness {BP2) Sub-grant #CDC08-13 

Scope of Work (SOW) July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 

·· ····· · . :gt-IEP[~apal."lility ffq~ R8EP·E~talityl\llanagern~rrt • 
D~fi~ition: ;Fata 1i%11ma n~gententis th~ ability fo eoordi~ate ,;J\t:h1llfh~R ofgiiRi;ati on~.(e.k; laVJI~nfdtcein~nt, .hea Ith ca re,. em eqjenty man age men!, and medical . 
ex~~iner/corangff!a.e~~y;eth~prq~er rec~very,.h.andling, ide~tifica1.f(}~;.!rans,partaticin, tratlii5'5,s,t6rage, and disposa1 of b~man remains and persana1 effects; certify 

. cau~~of deatht.andj'acilit~t~acc~.~~~i:OfTleHtalf.bt=havioralhealth servicesto!~efar;lilY members'. resp6~tjers, and survivors 0~ah incid~nt 
PEfrfd~r:ry.~.!fce·M;~~sur .. ~_~f:':'.:_::\:::_. 1 , __ -:;:;:-> --)/':<,, . __ ')·_:/,;;:::'-<···:;_,:.- ... -,· .. _-,, .. _-______ .____ __ .... ,·;::J .. :_:·:·.:}::•.:,~<L:-- , .. ·. _ _ - ____ :;~'.~;,:· .. ___ .. :·. <·;·.-.·: .·.-·_-_. ··;:;.. _. __ . . ; 
PHE~.S.2(Functionl): lde,ljtify ROie ~itDPa.~;9~rs(.~JIDsk~roporti~n.oHHEp-fypde?~tH~~that have defined fatality management roles.a.nd responsibilities of publichealth 
in ·relat\o,n to those of l<ey'focaf.partners (e.g;i'etj)ergeq§,y,'.ma~agement, cororie[S an(l):m~dical ~xaminers;)nd funeral direct.ors). {Seepgs56,58): · . 

Alloc:a1:edfundirig: $20,334 

Note: The page #'s listed for Performance Measures above correspond to CDC's "BPl Performance Measures Specifications and Implementation Guidance", Version 1.1 

() utco.m eq§i~?ti11E!:.iQ:ocy. 'of. ~a pa bi I ity wil I be.· a chi eV~(:j!b~,§/3Q/201.4. 

WCHD will collaborate with WCMECO (Washoe County Medical Examiner 

Coroner's Office) to continue enhancing fatality management capabilities 
within the region with the continued development of the Northern Nevada 
Disaster Victim Recovery Team and community Family Assistance Centers. 

Washoe County will have a cache of 
personnel specially trained in fatality 

response to be able to assist whether it's 
within the Family Assistance Center or the 
recovery of human remains. 

• Family Assistance Center 
Annex 

• Training documentation 
of the NNDVRT 

By the end of Budget Period 2, WCHD will have continued to build the fatality management capabilities within the region by building upon the Budget Period 
1 project to develop a Northern Nevada Disaster Victim Recovery Team. --- $5,783 

Task 1: Prior to an incident, characterize potential fatalities based·onjurisdictional risk assess.men! and th.e impact of these potential fatalities on jurisdictional resource 
needs. (See Pg;4S) · ·.· 

Sustain 
Review and update the Mass Fatality Annex to the Regional Emergency Operations 
Center as necessary based on real-world incident lessons learned. 

June 30, 2014 I Revised Mass Fatality Annex 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #5: Fatality Management Page 53 of 96 wr..in rnrno n 

56



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
Taskt::Prior t,a an incide~t~ coordinate with·s.ubJectmatter experts ( e.g,, tho~e)iith expertise in epidemiology, laboratory, surveillance; community cultural/religious beliefs 
or.buriaLp.r0!:;ices;,chemical, b\o[0gical, radiological and emergency ,operations lead.s;.and partners from hospital, mortuary, emergency medical services) to determine public 
M8aitl1'~i~~[~iiri~f\\1~2ict~nti:h~t!TI~v re5uJ!ufofatalities.•·(seeifil~s) ' } ~;,,1, ................. •.•.•••.'••.•·.·· .. ·· ·· ' .. ' >.•··•.·. . · · · 

Planned 
Activity Type 

Build 

By the end of Budget Period 2, WCHD will have continued to build the fatality 
management capabilities within the region by building upon the Budget Period 1 
project to develop a Northern Nevada Disaster Victim Recovery Team. 

. Date of 
Completion 

June 30, 2014 
NNDVRT team training 
documentation 

;.;.:,·' ··>,:;-:!:'>'";"·"':-··:_>''-';;·-:-:·';;._-_:_·_ •' _·_.·,(;,;<.-')/·::,:c.._ -·, ·- -·:. ' :':_.,:~ '-, ' - ,· '<> ' ' - . - ' -. 
;Task 3:,·#ici:J;;t,biaiiiibCld,ent,cciDrdiriatewitlijurisdictional, private and federal Emergency Support Function #6 and Emerge'ni:y,5,tl,Ppcirt Function #8 resources as necessary 
--:~ ·•'- .·->-:-"-:-/;l\1,·/•-·._·.·,::;:_"\'e!~>y-(-•···-.::-.. _. --_- -,; ,-_'-:' __ >: ,_:.·-_-:,,: ... \_. , , , ,.-:- ' _-- , ',, ' --- - - : ',. 

.. to '8eterm ine•thei r'roles·'andreq u irements,for1.the•respcinse: (See ·Pg 45)• · 
'.~--; _ _.:•::?>+;'.;-;,,;::· ~-,,-~ •. !:~2;>-----~ ~~:;::'-,'f!%tGttffu)J;;:;;:.,<;-::·- -·- --- :-;:;:'.+_0-'.;,_:'.:;;-._.":(.:':;:>;::·;:::_:-),->'. _::' ___ :_-;._-:<'>>'<;;:,._, ,. ":. ·-., · .>: 

Sustain 

By the end of Budget Period 2, WCHD will work with regional partners to develop 

protocols relating to the interface between Public Health, Washoe County Medical 
Examiner Coroner's Office and the healthcare organizations. 

Review and update the Mass Fatality Annex to the Regional Emergency Operations 
Center as necessary based on real-world incident lessons learned. 

June 30, 2014 [ Standard operating procedures 

June 30, 2014 I Revised Mass Fatality Annex 

:rasl(2:; laentifyaric1'Coc)cdiri~tewlth Jucis~l~ti"6,~al, regional, private,and fed?ral Emergency Support~unct,i~ri #8 resources with expertise in thepotentlal cause(s) of , 
faf<!liti'~sfo n:iaker'.eiccfmiii'i:l~cfoiions regardf~g~llphases of human remains disposition: recovery, p;o~~2sing (e.g., decontamination; infection control, and other mitigation 
rri8a~llr~5);'~t~'iih'g,~;;a\'df~Wkihg,.;c{sg¢:Pl'l48);1.;9~f;' · · · · ··' · · ··· 

Sustain 
Review and update the Mass Fatality Annex to the Regional Emergency Operations 
Center as necessary based on real-world incident lessons learned. 

June 30, 2014 [ Revised Mass Fatality Annex 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and local Planning", March 2011 
PHFP ~eoebilitv #5: Fatalitv Manaoement Page 54 of 96 WCHD CDCOB-13 

57



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
Task 3:, C~o(din.atewith 
(SgePg48) 

to initiate pre-determined (e.g., local/regi.6~,al, state, federal, and private sector) processe5for all phases of human remains disposition. 

Sustain 
Review and update the Mass Fatality Annex to the Regional Emergency Operations 
Center as necessary based on real-world incident lessons learned. Revised Mass Fatality Annex 

Task 4: Coordinateincidehf~etaijs,arnpng fl'lembersof the publichealth 
datab~ses; base.d onti)e 5cgpe1pf{~ei~cicle6'fr, (See ~g .. 48) 

.medical health systems by sharing information between programs and linking information 

521.1.15. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's" Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #5; Fatality Management Page 55 of 96 wrue> re>rno '' 

58



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

·:~··":i.::;·~~.i};_;i~\·?\:.;~'.~{:ff'.~\:~~~~~:ts}<~l'.: ;:·:._: ,};·_·~:_:·._··~ ::-.:,,;;; :~ .. -.. : :;;,·-~: _:_._:::_'-~:: 
_Pla11ning'~esource•Elernent 1: •. Procedure,forthe 
col lectid n;hf:~ni;{fi,o rte rrt tf~tr. " (see_ pg so)··---

By mid-year of Budget Period 2, WCHD 

Build 

Build 

will review the regional FAC plan to I resource annex 

:~: '""~ .. ,/" -
determine if a revision is necessary 

WCHD will reach out to previously identified mental/behavioral health services 
providers to obtain memorandum of agreements for staffing the community FAC or 
providing mental health support to Public Health responders. 

MOA with mental health 
professionals 

ic~~rdlh~t~·w'ilHpartnersto fatillt~t~·a~ailability of culturally appropriate assistance (e.g., addressing language barriers and religl~us or cultural practices). (see Pg 

WCHD will develop a list of regional partners who would be able to provide culturally 
appropriate assistance to member of the community being served in the community 
FAC. 

FAC annex with a list of 
providers 

''Fask;3nrco;ctC,8in~t'~INiflfE,.Ue/g&ni:Vsi.fppoiffunetion B ·partnerstos~pport the provision of mental/behavioral health services to family members of1he ·deceas_ed and 
•iil¢ii'J~ritsu65iSorsa~:n~~il~9:~[see_Pgs21V;v;l · - · _· •·'----' /-- -· •----.-__ -- _ ~ . · ·;( .. ::· .e:;.•.;;· •.. _ ,; : ,_ > , _ .- - . •• :.. __ , __ ._ -

- ---------.J.JkfM 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
nui::o r""n'.:!hilit\/ He;· i:::it::ilit\I M::1n::1P"PmPnt Page 56 of 96 WCHD CDC08-13 

59



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
Task 1: ·Make recommendations to incident management/jurisdictional lead;agency on procedures for the safe recovery, receipt, identification, decontamination, 
transportation,storage,anddisposaiof human remains. Recommendations can alsO·i~dude an assessment of the need for temporary burial, procurement of public property 
for temporary .burial;,and:sec'urity/Rrivacy reCjufrements of the. processing facility .. (See.PgS.3 I 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and local Planning", Marcil 2011 
PHEP Capability #5: Fatality Management Pa~e 57 of 96 wrHn rnrM_,, 

60



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Washoe County Health District 
CDC Public Health Emergency Preparedness {BP2) Subgrant #CDC08-13 

Scope of Work (SOW) July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 

~· .. f :,•¥ ;~ ?,;'[~~:,;t~1~'.'.;'.ffi ·; ;;.;·'~ ;·0 '.· ffi?l-i'EP.~~j:)~~ ilitv··#f ;~·: .. ·.1 nf Orm~tid:l'l ~h~r"irlg•·•··•···.· 
1 Defiriitia·n;.hi1l6lll)~ti<Jp sharing,is'.tne abili.ty1to conduct multijurisdictiarlal, multidisciplinary exchange afhealth-related nformatlon a.ndsituationaLawareness data among 

· fep~r,'lJ'.i, ~t~t1~f locai;~~~tit9r,ial;,and.tritia\d~yel~ of,g?vernment, and the private sector. This capability includes the rputi e sharingofinformation as :,.,ell as i.ssuing of public 
he~lth.aler:ts tq.fedeia1;·~tattf;iia:~al, te1riitoriai;.~nd tribal levelsof government and the private sector in preparation for, and in response to, events or incidents of public 
health'.sl~qlfig~~¢'.~ .• ,,i,: . '••·' "' 
Jl.llocate'd f~ nditiiI~111 r 

Performance 
Pl'IEP:6,l'(Fundioii'l!'&13)::5har~ Epidemiological/Clinical Data (Awardee)-The awardee health department can share basic epidemiological and/or Clinical data with 
relevanthealt.hcare aiganizatiqlls(HCOs). (See Pgs li(Hl) 
PHEP5,:2.[F;,dfiCi:iO]l;l,)~'3): Share;Ep'H:lem,i9logical/Cliriical Data (LHDs) - Proportion of PHEP-funded local health departments that can share basic epidemiological and/or 

. i:li~ical data with r~levant)healthcare o@inizatlons (HCDs). (See Pgs 62-64) . 
HPP-~fjEP6 1\.(~,un.ction.3J:'.tr'JforIT],atlon Sharlng,c Percenfof local partners that reported requested Essential Elements of Information (EEi) to the health and medical lead 
;v,i,\bio;ti;i~i;~(fu'e'.gt~ci:timefranie•;(see.pgs 65,67) · · 

Note: The page #'s listed for Performance Measures above correspond to CDC's "BP1 Performance Measures Specifications and Implementation Guidance", Version 1.1 

9. gtririrfi,~'.().bj¢~iQE\'i:foqo/.i(Btt:~~iffJ'iiit~;Ni11 be. achieved ·by. 6/ .. 30/2014 .. 
. _,,,,._, ·"''-''; ·V'Zl,;t,_<"·-·'·'" • --- --- .. ·.-·--.;,.y,0ti..~'i·---"--' , .... -_. - - ··'""''-"'·'- ·-·--·,,-.·,-· 

WCHD will collaborate with regional partners to research and 
develop tools for regional informational sharing. This will enable 
continued communication during emergency response. 

A Public Information I Public 
Warning regional plan that has an 
annex specifically for health 
communications. 

Public Information/ Warning Health Annex; 
training sign-in sheets; documentation from 
Washoe County's legal counsel as it is made 
available to WCHD; and revised Public 
Information and Communication Plan. 

ormation flo 

By end of BP2, WCHD will identify stakeholders to be incorporated into information flow by building partnerships through active participation in the Public 
Warning/Public Information Task Force coordinated through Washoe County Regional Emergency Operations Center. --- $24,307 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Loco/ Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #6: Information Sharing Page 58 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

61



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
Tasl< l: Prior to and as necessary during an incident, identify intra-jurisdictional stakeholders across public health, public safety, private sector, law enforcement, and other 
discipl'lnesto d~termiDe~rifor;m<itigD,shaxingoeeds. (See Pg 55) .. ·· · · 

.URhilffil 

Build 

WCHD will attend regularly scheduled Public Warning I Public information Task Force 

meetings, and participate on the Taskforce's Public Outreach Committee to determine I June 30, 2014 
information-sharing needs. 

Meeting agenda, notes, etc; 
Regional Public Information I 
Public Warning Plan when it's 
completed in the region. 

·Task 2:· P.rior to and as necessary during an incident, identify inforjiurisdictional public health·stakeholders to determine information sharing needs. (See Pg ss.) 
,, - -- - - - - - ____ ,,,_ ---- ·-- ._,., ,•)" .. - .. _ --- .,,- '.,,-,. - ·- " •' 

Through the Public Information I Public Warning Taskforce, WCHD will assist in the 
Build I development of a regional plan that addresses communications before, during and I June 30, 2014 I Pl/PW Regional Plan. 

after incident, including the identification of stal<eholders. 

TasiL3: Priorto ariflas ~~ess'i!cy11dli(\bgaii.ii1C'ident, work with elected;off1cials, Identified stafie~olders:{both ·inter' and i~fra-jllrisdictional) and private sector leadership to 
>''.;_- ,'";'. - - --_,-, -.-___ ,,:_·.·---;·.- - -'-'.\•':·"·,·/.',_,,"'~---·· '.'/•;.:--·-_ . .,_ - ,-__ - .. - _">.· _,,_,,. -·,-·;!\'-'''.' ,, .. ---. - _- __ , .. , ,•O'"'- •">::·-" - - -·,.~- -- - '-'"'.', 

proli).oteand ensure conti;{ual cO~ne'ctibn (e,g., ongoing standing meetings;webinars, and teleconferences) and use continuous qlialitVimprovement process to define and 

.rede. iine'information-silarii:\gneeds. (see Pg:SS).·;::. ····· · ·· ·· ·.. · ,', -- '• - ' - ,-,,,,. ' -··-··· - '•'" "•''"' ------- «-~-

Build 

Through the Public Information/ Public Warning Taskforce, WCHD will assist in the 
continuous quality improvement process to define and redefine information sharing 

and needs. 
,. WCHD will further contribute to continuous quality improvement in the region by 

providing trainings for community partners, including !CS 300 and 400 and CERC. 

The WCHD PIO will complete the E0389 Master Public Information Officer Training 
through the Department of Homeland Security/ FEMA/CDP/Emergency Management 
Institute, and will bring back knowledge gained to empower the Public Information I 
Public Warning Taskforce and WCHD leadership with best practices, including 
continuous quality improvement surrounding information sharing. 

,]21.1.1.i 

June 30, 2014 

Plan~ing Re~ci~µceEIS'fiient1:Processesto engage 
stakeholders (S~e PgSS) ' . .. 

Build 

Through participation in the Public 

Information/ Public Warning Taskforce, 
WCHD will work with community partners to 
identify a process to engage stakeholders. 

PlahningResburce,Elem~ht·Z': 
directory. (See Pg56) 

Build 
WCHD will add appropriate personnel to 

communications database. 

Training sign-in sheets; Pl/PW 
Regional Plan. 

Pl/PW Regional Plan. 

Updated communications 
database. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #6: Information Sharing Page 59 of 96 WCHO CDCOS-13 

62



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

i=Jll~1:iCJll.#i: 1CiE!h1:it\I ~l1cfd.e~E!1CJJ>rJ1es~l1Ciicia1:a E!1E!ltiE!61:~'tt>rt~li~fiWg. ;Sii. :c·•· · · · · ....... ·• 1 

By end of BP2, WCHD will work with community partners through the Public Warning/Public Information Task Force to identify and develop rules and data 
elements for sharing. --- $17,314 

··T~~kci:: ~riqr,1ie;~~ifa~{q~cess~~~IJ ri n~ all inc)c!~~}, ic!en.tifv, th rough.public· hea lth .. agency l~gal ·cau nsel ( ar\ffcou nsel fo other a~~ndes and. jurisdictions a~ appropriate), 
.;;i:utren:t1]D'ifi;;"iJjGflPi'J\3Eai:iciJ8Ii€falk~ilulaJ:ory;:statut'ofy)•privai:y~relatea .and other provisions, laws,.an.dpoliciesthat authofoe arid limit.sharing ·()f information relevant to 
'->;"if' 1'>.,.,,,-.!(;,,>(F·~>!:;.?-"ifl<f+';''<"".'i"''''-''Y·-·'>'-"_··_··:,.- . .:<:-.·,_. -o~'.,>''1'--'-·'.0· :·· _ ··_ :-· -"·,-_<<'::_._ __ -·=:·;_·--;---" :_·- - -~ , ... , - : --,--- _-. _ .. . - ,_,. ·:;,_,:.·_.--._, . , ,_. ,",. -_ _ .. 
e.r]i'erg~n'c\f'situatiO[ial ~~~~~re.s~. Sl!cnlavJ:~!:~b;cj polJcies may include l;Jealth,lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act (H.1.PAA),Dfflce of the NatlonalCoordinator Health . 
Hlnfo~mation Jecbn9l.o!lv.Rbiicy;llHS lnforniatlon·rvianagement Policy, and specific requirements of current memoranda of understanding and memoranda of agreements; 
•these;fa~~;.tjjl(y{iiHciress.pri~acy;civil··libectid;intell~ct~al property; an.d other substantive issues. (See pg 57) · 

Sustain 
WCHD will continue to utilize the agency's legal counsel to obtain guidance on all legal
related matters. 

Ongoing 
Documentation from Legal 
Counsel as it is made available to 
WCHD. 

f~~; Z: p'if3itci'~'~d?~~neces~~fy duriJ11~hihcident, idenfify routi~~ifr incident-specific data requirem~nts for each stakeh61der. (S~e ~g57) . ,_., .. ---~-1,:-c:·.-:- ... -_,,, .. >-.·_, ._,: --- -,·,·--- :i, -,<. - - - .. -. -:- -.. _ -

Build 
Through the Public Information/ Public Warning Taskforce, WCHD will work with 
community partners to further identify incident-specific data requirements for 
stakeholders. 

.. 6!.£.J 

June 30, 2014 Pl/PW Regional Plan. 

·-;;::·, .. ·.·-·:1-<;,;f<>};;·_'.>/,:::Y>J~~-:0.',.'_'.:.,··{.-.-:-,_;,,:_ .. _ -.. ·<-L,·_:"<:· :--_<::;>;··:·:·-· _ . . _ y,>: __ ;· .·,._ :_:;,_ :··::- ... __ "._-,,,·:·:·::;_>. · :: ·-.< ::·· 

'·.'fas1<'3;•••firii:irtdiafidias necessarv durii11>an incident, identify·publichealth events and incidents that, wlien:cibserved, will necessitafe information exchange. (See Pg 57) · 
<:· -<i: : __ :-.-::··:/'..'.- ::::;\·~-· -_ :-:'·:;,·--~:.:,::;r-~~ ,:; ·iyi(.'.(:-;-; _ .... · · ,\-:;;',;;;~'.;;:~.>: :)·>':~;;;_,_~- ,·.:. - : .. -_-· ;_'_; :.-, .. i.·· :i/1,•:_'0:;;::--.;:.;.:: ), ·_,_·,:<:< -_:,, · . · . ·-·- ·., ·,:-::;,-_, .... - \,. : ... ,_-,_,-_:_·, · - · · _,._· · _·_ · · · -. 

Build 
Through the Public Information/ Public Warning Taskforce, WCHD will work with 
community partners to further identify incidents which will necessitate information 
exchange. 

June 30, 2014 I Pl/PW Regional Plan. 

·Ta.s.k;·4:·::'.:.Prlh:f:1_tfjj:·Huxi_ff~{-~1:h~~-~_·tt:~._~:ia._h in~:i~_e·n_t;·-·ut.l1i.ze::t'6nti_r~--ous q.~,~11t_y _impravement or hav_e a __ pra.ces-Ses ·-an·d' a.:co·rrectfV_e_-:a·ct1on_·:syStem to._iderltifv and correct unintended 
;t./gal'aiitiJ~'16iJ2\t,:~~r,rliorsto ~~~i]l"iiiafislttl~tl0nal a;,;arenessinformatlon.that are within the j~risdiction.al publichealth agency'.scontrol (e,g., legal and policy barriers, 
!.iippo'rii'ay~ti~~ii'~r~Wttli\firi·iHeamouni:1dttiii1~t8 share data) .• (See Pg sn . <:~,, . . . . . . ·.·. ·. . . •·.·. 

Sustain 
WCHD will continue to utilize the agency's legal counsel to obtain guidance on all legal
related matters. 

Ongoing 
Documentation from Legal 
Counsel as it is made available to 
WCHD. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #6: Information Sharing Page 60 of96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

63



Planfiing Resource Element 1: Data-exchange 
requir_ements (See Pg 57) 

·"·>·.;.: - ---- _-·_·::--·"_.,.··-_-:.:.:: .. __ ~/'*~·:'_'-' <-" 
PlarihingReso.urce Elerrient2: Health'lnformati6n · 
exchange prdtbcols .(~ee ~g 57) .. 

Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capabilit 

Build 

Sustain 

Through the Public Information I Public 
Warning Taskforce, WCHD will work with 
community partners to identify data 
exchange requirements. 
WCHD will continue to utilize the 
agency's legal counsel to obtain guidance 
on all legal-related matters, including 
heath information exchange protocols. 

Pl/PW Regional Plan. 

Documentation from Legal Counsel as it 
is made available to WCHD. 

'G - -, ' j r \ ' 'I ' - '~ ' -·~' r c,•~ ~ ' I>-~ ~v ' ;:; I ,'~ '( - 'J:,~·,:1~ ""-\"W~J .:.: ,,p~ '"011:H T'- tt -·1 -'.j',>'.<;"";~" j!~ '·~.;.1,-,'J,-{~i'."';;~\&"lN'22~;· \o/'YA"l'l,f;f:'\'1-0~ '1"1 ~~-;.:''.)'QJ,'."S"if: ,f~;~l".: ,}""4,;::" "'"~d-~:'.1'f>-t1].hJ ~\'i/1''£'!1~'9).'\f~~!'~~wa 

.·· · · · Furict1on #3: Excflange. mfor;rpat1on,;to Cl!;!tera:n1n~:a :cgmmon:ogei;~t,ng,:p,1,ctpr;e~-. · ~·:''' ·:~ ~ ( pi:·":;;;,;(~~m 

Sustain 
WCHD will continue to collaborate with and participate in jurisdictional health 
information exchanges such as the Public Information I Public Warning Taskforce, 
Nevada Department of Public Safety PIO group, and WCHD Crisis Communicators List. 

Ongoing 
Documentation of health 
information exchange, as 
appropriate. 

Task,2:. Prior !°.and dur'1ng an incident, maintain defiijr;epdsitmiesthat areabl~to su~porti_d;ita exchange with other regional and federal public•health entities. Store data 
accordl[igJojurisdictionaJ.and/or federal stabdar~fcir'rfonn~t(ingi.vocabulary, arid encryptibn~{se.e pg S9) . ·· .. · 

Sustain • WCHD will continue to appropriately utilize its internal instance of WebEOC, and/or 
Washoe County Emergency Management's instance of WebEOC, and Web Fusion, to 
support data exchange with other public health entities as necessary. 

• WCHD will continue to utilize its Biostatistician's expertise to maintain certain data 
repositories and support data exchange. 

Ongoing Data in WebEOC. 

:-·-- - - -- -_------ ·------ "-:i±>:iv: .. "----.----<<< ·:·>.·_· _-,-. ----- - __ y-:· - --- -·,<- - .- ----- . - - - - -- -

Task3:;'Prior.to.'and during an incident, reque:St,serid, ~"rid receive;,data and information us,ing.~ncryption that meetsjurisqictional and/or federal standards. {See Pg 59) 
_ _,.- _ :..:>:;·•: .,_.,,:,·::;2 ,::·;_;: .. ~:;:-. -.- .-.-.-.-:: •. ~.--_-::·<.,;-,:,,_., -- -'.-::·:-- - .;-__ ,-,.;.;·_:~_ --,::-·':'.::::<>i;;·.:-.:_,.·,,>i'.l'L ',, .;~ ·,,:,£:i:'.;. -- ~-- .:.~:-:,. · -_,:_::~y:,\l•~:";;;/,;_,·.:.'.__, .. ,-:c_,-~:- _ :-_._;,>·<·--,,,_." ,,,._·,:,/_."'-. • --. ·.-~- · -_·.-"'·:_ 

Sustain 
WCHD will continue its practice of requesting, sending and receiving data and 
information using encryption that meets jurisdictional and federal standards. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #6: Information Sharing Page 61of96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

64



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Build 

As appropriate, WCHD will review and 
update the Public Information and 
Communication plan to ensure the 
protocol for the development of Public 
Health Alert messages is compliant with 
jurisdictional and federal standards. 

Potentially an updated PIC Plan. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #6: Information Sharing Page 62 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

65



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Washoe County Health District 
CDC Public Health Emergency Preparedness (BP2) Sub-grant #CDC08-13 

Scope of Work {SOW) July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 
-·-_PHEP Capability #7: Mass Care 

Definitfon: Mass care ifth-e ability fo- coordinate-with'.partner agencies to address tlie public health, medical, and mental/behavioral health needs of those impacted by an 
incidentafa congregate location. This capability-includ:~s the•cobr_dination of ongoing surveillance and assessment to ensure that health needs continue to be met as the 
incident evolve5.:c 

PHEPi·f.1_(Fu~r;tion 1): Define ~oles witli Par'ffiers (Awar"ilee};cJli~ ;iwardee health aepartmeht has defined itsiolein mass care operations in coortlination with ESF-6 and 
other keV'..partners: (See pgs 69-71) - · · 
PHEP 7.2 (Eunc:tio_h'1): l:iefipeRol~<with Part~_ers (LHDs) "Proportidh ofPHEP-funded local healt,il'departments that have defined their role '1n mass care operations '1n 
codrdinationwlfhESFfGar\&:6the(key;partners. (See Pgs72-74) . ..··· -~ --- -:-·. -·~.-- .- _:_ _ _ 
Ev~llJationTciiil'(fuilctiC)i;ff-4):0·This,instrume.~tisintended to be completeclby apy state or local healtndepartment(s) within the awardee jurisdiction involved in mass care 
operations. How·ever;.th~.alN~rCree'wiil alway~be r~spon~ible for subm'1tting'thesei:lata to CDC. Health departments not 'involved in mass care operaf1ons are not required to 
colllplete this tool. (See Pgs'75'.78) , ... · ·· · · - · 
Note: The page #1s listed for Performance Measures above correspond to CDC's "BP1 Performance Measures Specifications and Implementation Guidance", Version 1.1 

outC:qmeob.iective:_100%-ofcapabilitv:\Nill_b_Eiachi§1(e4b.v·§/30/2014. 

No Activity Planned for BP2 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #7: Mass Care Page 63 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

66



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Washoe County Health District 
CDC Public Health Emergency Preparedness (BP2) Sub-grant #CDC08-13 

Scope of Work (SOW) July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 

i#l±~i? ¢~ p~ bi lity# 8 =··· Meciical C:oll qter!Tl.e~~ll re.·. Disp¢nsi.ng .•. · 
De_~_n_iti_~i:i:~_'._Medl_~-a_l_.-fo_i:rfit~rh,i·e_a_st:rr,_e __ -di_sp_erlSYrl'g'.i'.~(the:ability to pr_ovide medical countermeasures (including vaccines,_ ai1tiviral-dfugs,·_a~ti_biotics, antitoxin, etc.) in Support 
oftr;,:a~ri\W~~:ci~~~(o'phy[a~is {~~~i·or vaFcina~ion) to theidehtified population in accordance with public health. guidelines .and/or.recommendations. 

Allocatedft.indiriil:'·i' · ... :.$124,sz!l···· .. :• 

iic;ilinile>~.i!e'ii!Je~.~\:.)'.e.(l'tJ'~~ion 1:sf:.;J'0C:f0il.i:i-c;omposite performance indicator from the Division of str~tegic National Stoclipile (DSNSJ in CDC's Office of Public Health 
'l'reparecine55.anCi'ResP,iinse. (see. pgs•zg,sai: i .·· · · 
Note: The page #'s listed for Performance Measures above correspond to CDC's "BP1 Pe!jormance Measures Specifications and Implementation Guidance 11

, Version 1.1 

.:;--~-- =<0_·fi'-JC;V;'.J:Ji.-<:::X;_S'fj('.f~;-.::._;_C--::_.;;;.;"'+:·, ' -,-:°": ·;:~!'.'.~"'.-~\'.''" · _:. -'-' ·:: - ·- - ·' '· 

pfii:cqrije/()~jeC:t!)i,ii:;:tpq~pfcapab)lity,MfilJ.be ac.hieved.byG/30/2014. 
,- - '._-_-_. -·--:~ __ ,-y---:,:;--<:/·o;;;'":---:•·. :.;_·,•,c,«'f•,,"t:0!:(,;-;;'-',•_,,, '.:, '-,- - :;,-_-" -'-: ·,,.,,.,__;,·.~,.,__,.,:-,- :. _-,_ ------ - '' ·: -- - • ' - ' · 

By the end of BP2, WCHD staff will ensure WCHD medical countermeasure 
plans are in accordance with CDC public health guidelines and 
recommendations in an effort to limit mortality in the event of a real public 
health emergency within Washoe County. 

100% of WCHD SNS staff will receive 
training specific to revised POD operations 
in order to prepare them for a real public 
health emergency. 

1. Updated Medical 
Countermeasures 
Distribution and Dispensing 
(MCMDD) Plan. 

2. Updated Point of Dispensing 
(POD) Operations Manual 

3. Sign-in sheets from staff 
, training(s) 

!¥!§41 
Objective 1: By mid-year, WCHD staff will revise the WCHD Medical Countermeasures Distribution and Dispensing (MCMDD) Plan to better meet the needs of 
Washoe County residents in the event of a real public health emergency as it relates to the identification and initiation of medico/ countermeasure dispensing 
strategies. 

Objective 2: By mid-year, WCHD staff will revise the WCHD Point of Dispensing (POD) Operations Manual to better meet the needs of Washoe County 
residents in the event o.f a real public health emergency as it relates to the identification and initiation of medico/ countermeasure dispensing strategies. 
$23,881 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards far State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #8: Medical Countermeasure Dispensing Page 64 of 96 WCHD CDCOB-13 

67



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
Task 1: .Prior to an incident, and if applicable during an incident; engage subject matter experts (e.g., e[Jidemiology, laboratory, radiological, chemical, and biological) 
including federal-partners, to determine what .. medical countermeasures are best su.ited and available forthe incidents most likely to occur based on jurisdictional risk 
assessment. (Se~gg-7~) ;!,~: · ·· · · ·· · · · · 

.\Jilli 

Build 
Hold meetings with subject matter experts to improve upon medical countermeasure 
plans. 

June 30, 2014 
Meeting sign-in sheets and 
minutes if applicable. 

Tasl<.2: Prior tO•an iili:icte'nt,:~nd'.ifapplicable during an incident, e"n"gage pr;t:ate sector, local, state, regional, and federal partners, as appropriate to the incident, to identify 
and fill required:,esporlse;fgles, (SfeelRil -zi;j~ · ·· · 

.ILi IL 

Build 

1. Develop MO Us and/or lnterlocal Agreements with private and public partners to 
identify and fill required response roles. 

2. Coordinate training and educational opportunities for WCHD staff and volunteers 
and Private POD partners. 

June 30, 2014 

Revise MCMDD and POD Operations Manual to 
include standard operating procedure related 
to: 

Pianri1ri15··Resolli'ceEl~rn'~hf·i~ Wfihenplans to · 

identifYthe medical col.Jnt~rme~:Sure.5: (S~~ Pg 71/ · Build 

-number and location of people affected by the 
incident, including AFM groups 
-possible agents/causes of incident 
-potential medical countermeasures 
-timeline for establishing medical 
countermeasure dispensing operations 
-personnel and staffing matrix 
-severity of possible incidents 

1. MOUs and/or lnterlocal 
Agreements 

2. Trainings & educational 
opportunities sign in sheet 
~ 

Updated MCMDD and POD 
Operations Manual. 

Objective 1: By mid-year, WCHD staff will revise the WCHD Medical Countermeasures Distribution and Dispensing (MCMDD) Plan to better meet the needs of 

Washoe County residents in the event of a real public health emergency as it relates to the receipt of medical countermeasures. 
Objective 2: By mid-year, WCHD staff will revise the WCHD Point of Dispensing Operations Manual to better meet the needs of Washoe County residents in 

the event of a re al public health emergency as it relates to the receipt of medical countermeasures. --- $23,181 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #8: Medical Countermeasure Dispensing Page 65 of 96 WCHD CDCOB-13 

68



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

··"!"<Jsk l..:.;;)\~s,@~sth~ ~xtenLto \Nhich .cuFrentJGrisdic:):iona I ,mr,?dica I cC>utiterrne.asure. in\/entori es can meet incident needs. 

Build Determine available medical countermeasure inventories. 
December 31, 
2013 

List of resources and their 
medical countermeasure 
inventories. 

•fask2fr..;iiet:\Liesbil'dditTan·a1 .•. rnedfi::iil cati'fjtefoieasufesfr.o.m private, jurisdictional, and/or federal partners usf ng•established procedures,· according tci•incident needs. 
lt{l~·)ftP~~~~J~t1~~~~~Jil:;n:;::;~Q:it~'.i:~t~:JI.f;t~~;·0:~~i~~"·~i:;;~~01:5i~;:·::.;-·:> <:; .. ' '. :,-:-·--:-_.;.~/:·-_;:~-:_:·\--- · -- . - - - : :. · _ --· _,- _ ~- --· -: :- ---- '",-_·-.'.r->?-.. '.>' .. -- ·!_.;;;:;-,--:~::~,_-:·> · · -- - __ 

(See Pg 

Build 
1. Revise medical countermeasure requesting procedures. 
2. Coordinate training and educational opportunities for WCHD staff and volunteers in I June 30, 2014 

addition to Private POD partners. 

1. Revised MCMDD 
2. Revised POD Ops Manual 
3. Sign-in sheets for training 

and educational 
opportunities. 

·Ja~~L!i:!~QJJJM;~Etj.~a~tY~gy,itjte(foediarrdisfrib_Q.ti5in sites ~sed on the neec:ls_of the incident, if applicable; (See 8g73) 
il1.!;igii!'i;_iil;_if!1 

Build 

Revise MCMDD and POD Operations 
Manual to include: 
-assessment of local inventory/medical 
countermeasure cache 
-identification of local pharmaceutical 
and medical supply wholesalers 
-process for requesting additional 
medical countermeasures if local 
supplies are exhausted 
-storage of medical countermeasures 

Updated MCMDD and POD Operations 
Manual. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #8: Medical Countermeasure Dispensing Page 66 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

69



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

lul.H§,M 
Objective 1: By end of BP2, WCHD staff will revise the WCHD Medical Countermeasures Distribution and Dispensing (MCMDD) Plan to better meet the needs 
of Washoe County residents in the event of a real public health emergency as it relates to activation of dispensing modalities. 

Objective 2: By end of BP2, WCHD staff will revise the WCHD Point of Dispensing Operations Manual to better meet the needs of Washoe County residents in 
the event of a real public health emergency as it relates to dispensing modalities. 

Objective 3: By end of BP3, all Private POD partners will have plans in place that address activation of their Private POD site. -- $30,512 

Task li'Actfoate dispenTing strategies, dispensing sites';'.dispensing modalities and other approaches, as necessary, to achieve dispensing goals commensurate with the 
targeted papuJJlJlon. ;[see.i'g7s) 

.lELJJ.JJ 

Build 

1. Revise POD Ops Manual to reflect newly updated public POD locations. 
2. Provide training to Private POD partners in the development of Private POD 

planning. 
3. Assist in the development of Private POD Plans for each Private POD partner which 

address activation of Private POD sites. 
4. Activate dispensing strategies as necessary if a real life emergency occurs. 

1. Revised POD Ops Manual 
June 30, 2014 2. Sign-in sheets for trainings 

3. Private POD Plans 

T .... ask 2: 'Activateisfaff tliat will supp~rtthe dispensin!l.bi'ciaaiit\I in'•liurllb~rs necessaryto.achieve dispensing goals commensurate with the targeted population. 
,· · ··--' ,, -,,•,)-'c.-:.,,.,,,.,_ . ., ,,-/•- _ .. ,,-- ___ --.. "· ·• - · • ··'-'·"•·'-- .•.•·/••···.d•-'• -,,,,,_,, · · · • "'••··· '•'-' .<· •- ·. - - '· · · · - · · • 

i'tiEl.i.13. 

1. Update roster of WCHD SNS Department Operations Center staff. 1. SNS DOC Roster 
'Id I 2. Update Public POD on-site staff. J 30 204 2. On-site POD rosters 

Bur 3. Provide training to SNS DOC and on-site POD staff with regard to POD operations. une ' 3. Sign-in sheets for 
4. Activate staff as necessary if a real life public health emergency occurs. trainings 

Task3i,!lfTndicated by the ihcident,.impiemeritlrnechaQi'iir11sJ6r providing medical tciontermeasures for public health.responders, cr'rtkal 'infrastructure personnel, and their 
farllili?iiif~f)plic~bl~. (see Pg.JS)· ·. . . · ,;;,,: ;,;;.:.·'..i: · ··' ~., ~;~.1'iy· · · . ·. ;:,; . ··· · · · .. ,·.·. .· · · 

%21.1.iS. 

Build 
1. Meet with Washoe County Sheriff's Office to ensure all Public POD sites have 

security plans and include these plans in the POD Ops Manual 
2. Ensure all Private POD Planning documents include security measures 

June 30, 2014 
Security Plans for each Public 
and Private dispensing site 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #8: Medical Countermeasure Dispensing Page 67 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

70



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Tasks: )l)forrp puplic.ofdispen.sing operatio.ns including.lo.catibns,:time period of availability, and. r,nethod of delivery. (See Pg 75) 
Jli.fJj,·,.~,,,,,"'. ' " /- '•q ' ,_,_ • • ' •• 

Build 

Develop MOUs and lnterlocal 
Agreements with Private POD partners 
and Public POD facility owners 
1. Revise Public POD activation 

procedures if necessary. 
2. Assist Private POD partners in the 

development of activation plans. 
3. Identify additional dispensing 

modalities and develop MO Us with 
these agencies. 

MOUs and lnterlocal Agreements 

1. Revised POD Ops Manual 
2. Private POD Plans 
3. Private POD MOUs 

Function #4: Dispense medical countermeasures to iden.tified popul'ation ! · · · 
• Objective 1: By end of BP2, WCHD staff will revise the WCHD Medical Countermeasures Distribution and Dispensing (MCMDD) Plan to better meet the 

needs of Washoe County residents in the event of a real public health emergency as it relates ta dispensing medical countermeasures. 

• Objective 2: By end of BP2, WCHD staff will revise the WCHD Point of Dispensing Operations Manual to better meet the needs of Washoe County 
residents in the event of a real public health emergency as it relates ta dispensing medical countermeasures. 

• Objective 3: By end of BP2, all Private POD partners will have plans in place that address activation of their Private POD site and dispensing of medical 

countermeasures. 

• $23,541 

f~~~!<.f~:~'i\1ainfaih\CJJ.spe'nsirig,site invenfory'managementsystem tci'traC:k quantity and.typedf medical courifermeasures present at the dispensing site. (See 
L:f~if'i?:)'L: ,,,.,., ··•·:;•,:;··i~e· ·:·• '• · .•.. ,,.,,, .• ,,"' · ···· · .. · · ··.• ·· · · '· .·· ··· · · · ·• ··• •·· .• ·· .. . · . . 

i.ltLtJ.[; 

Build Ensure appropri?te staff are trained in WeblZ CRA and Insight 
December 31, 

2014 

Documentation of trained 
WeblZ CRA and Insight staff 
members 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #8: Medical Countermeasure Dispensing Page 68 of 96 WCHD CDC08-13 

71



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Task 2: Screen and triageindivi,iualsto deternii.re wh)ch 11)edical countermeasurei~appropriate to dispense to individuals if more thah one type or subset of medical 
co.u.ntermeasur~;isbeing,et:'6,yid.e.d ~tthe .sife.:~(5eg.fi,g ?i? ), .·. ;;i• • . . •··. ,,. 

Distribute pre-printed drug/vaccine information sheets that include instructions on how 

Build to report adverse events before and during training opportunities to both WCHD staff I June 30, 2014 
and Private POD partners. 

List of staff and Private POD · 

partners who received 
information sheets, including 
date received. 

Task 4:;,Mohitor dispensing site throughput anc:ladju.Sfstaffing.and supplies as need.e'd in order to achieve dispensing goals commensurate with the targeted population. (See 
Pg77F . . .. 

1.121.i.i.i. 

Build 
Develop procedures for the disposition of unused medical countermeasures and include 

procedures ln the MCMDD. 

December 31, 

2014 
Procedures in MCMDD. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #8: Medical Countermeasure Dispensing Page 69 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

72



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Revise written dispensing processes and ~~,i.~'°P-~K~,~\~~~~~~rr:f~1t~!~i~?:-~=9~.,~-::5~ryi-_~·2:\8:~JF~.:~_{l:~-_._:-· -=,-: __ 
cp9nym:ne.a~ur~ .. dJSPE!Q§l;;J!lto):argetpqp8Jat1ons•·. 
(see.Pg•7$),,~vti? ' · · ·: •.. • •• :•VJ, >.' protocols in MCMDD related to I Revised procedures in MCMDD 

screening and triaging of patients 

Objective 1: By mid-year, WCHD staff will revise the WCHD Medical Countermeasures Distribution and Dispensing (MCMDD) Plan to better meet 
the needs of Washoe County residents in the event of a real public health emergency as it relates to reporting of adverse events. -- $23,414 

T~sl<.i:.'.~~tiV~~~l~ecna~isrn(~)fcfa'1~clividuals and healthcare providers to notify health departments about adverse events. (See Pg 79) 
_-<{+;,-:· .. --- :n:<::!:tJl:;,,:,' .:··.-;_.;,;-7;0';;:;',_ •_:> ... " :':::.. ·.: -·;- ,_--."<·'_:·::.;.·:. :::·.11>)---·---.- - ",_ . · · ·- · - · · · - .' _. , , 

1.1 

Include processes and protocols to govern 
reporting of adverse events that include: 
-messages that articulate the importance of 
adverse reporting 
-process to ensure individuals receive the I Processes in MCMDD 

::'.;.Jr:_-.::~:,-_-.'.;-'.,:~_-::-:;:",..,'., :.:·:"'.~'J,-'.;!!?'.f;:::;:'.:>_;,,;:·;;.• ·.:.<_.: ·_:"~'-,_:.·-.<:· ::--/;!?V~>,-::.:::·. __ .,,.:·. -- .. -_:. 
· Skilh&.[ffaii)j9g:Elerhent}'1%.~dverse.el(en;t.r,ep0r)::·. 
,t.(~iffi~,~~t5:w;wi~~?ri:1~;1 •. ·)~i . · ... · .· ...•....••....• ::. Build 

information sheet about potential adverse events 
of the medical countermeasure dispensed 
-information required to document adverse 
events 

Provision of procedures to WCHD staff and 

Private POD partners 
E-mail documentation of 
provision of procedures 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #8: Medical Countermeasure Dispensing Page 70 of96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

73



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Washoe County Health District 
CDC Public Health Emergency Preparedness (BP2) Sub-grant #CDC08-13 

Scope of Work (SOW) July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 

·.·• i;RME~G~fi-,~~ili,ty#9\:Il\ti~cli~al 1vraf~fiaLl\llad#gelTlent & Dist~·ibution 
· • Pi-fgp Q'~pa 6ilit\f #/10•·: f\Jleclip~1 surge 

'$ oo -' No~lannedActivity for BP2 
.;».- - ,\'<--• ;. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #9-10 Page 71of96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

74



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Washoe County Health District 
CDC Public Health Emergency Preparedness (BP2) Sub-grant #CDC08-13 

Scope of Work (SOW) July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 
·'·· :c.10 t.i. 1

1
;, ' ;- ·.··.··<:RH~f'~apabiHtv #Ti:, ·,Nori.::ph~~rni;itelitiC:a1·1nt~r\feptions 

Definitj.~5Hf'J3)~q~fl.~ar111aceutica!'iryter\lel}tions ~re tlieabilityto recommend to the applicable lead agency {if not public health) and implement, if applicable, strategies for 
diseas~'fnjury;"ana1ei('~osu1recontroL Strategies include the following: · 

-._~ __ ·1~-~-1-~E!2im~~r1f;~~-~~ra:~~ih.e>:·.:,:._ :.::_:_ :·::<:1;~:_ <- __ ,_ . -_ . ---- -
••Restrl'ctioris)on;inbvement aodtravel~advi.so.rv/warnings 

:~~~~~t~B~i~t~gi~.a,,ti~h . . -

·-,•_ Pre_c~·utiana.tVc:P_fqted:i~e,,beh~Vi_arS:, 
'.P.11ciC:~1:eattihiling:~i; .$4,1sif/ •0 

• 

PHEP11:1(f:unt::iion.i)i'bei:ermineRole \With Partners(l':\Wardee) - The awardee health department has collaborated with legal, scientific and community partners to 
determii"l.eifJi~~~~d resp6nsiilliitiesf~the ae,velopm_ent and implementation of NPI recommendations. {See Pgs 83-85) 
PHEP :l:i:.2(Functi0n'-:1'}!1ibet~rmine Role with Partners (LHDs)- Proportion of PHEP-funded local health departments that have collaborated with legal, scientific and 
com111µn[typ~f;t:h:ers tp d~terliijneroles and re~ponsibilities for the development and implementation of NPI reconimendations. {See Pgs 86-88) 

-•Pl;iE~-'ii•3l{~uhcti,ci'1li'3): 1;Develop•i\JPIR~c,cimmendations'.withJ~artnec~c Proportion of key partnersidentij'jed to .hav.e an incident-specific role that participated in the 
- _.-:-~.---·.":'· :'·'."':->·:,._·-·>:. '.VJ;\-:-:·-:-':0'·".' _-_c._- _----- ,. _'-'.-'f"Li<-':<'·'·- .. -,, __ ;." -.,_·--, · ::-,,'·":·'-'.· _,·.y;_'<'\·'.-- .,' ... ;-•'-":'0., : ·.-';· '-· ·:·: .. ·-_·-. - , . . 

develop111enfor irffplemeiitation:.ofNPhd'ufrng:an)ncident{See Pgs-89-91),••:c . ''"' , · · · : · . ·1· c •.> . . . . ·•• ... 

Note: The page #'s listed for Performance Measures above correspond to CDC's "BP1 Performance Measures Specifications and Implementation Guidance", Version 1.1 
1otit'2B'rrii;'-Oli'e'i:til7e~r'.1!00%~r1:~ ·~~illt Xwillbe'a~ililivedii":G 1:3011io14.• 

...... . •. . i l ..... ·""··"--· .......... - ,P.... .."/;. .. ....... - .... Y ...1, . . 1 .. .... .. 

By June 30, 2014, WCHD will develop a draft bench book that outlines relevant legal authorities related to the implementation of non-pharmaceutical 
interventions. 

:T~sl(\l:ifiril:ido'~hindaeht, ideritify]~iiS'ClictiOnal legai, policy,:and regulatory authorities th~fenahle•citlimitthe ability to recommend and implement non-pharmaceutical '.' . __ -. ·:_· -,,._, __ '"'.". ·. _: :·,Jt:·:':·-·-- ·-: ::-:;,_.·•"·-:_ •_ ,_,,_,___ · - ... -, ''·:-·.:cc_.-< :·.;x_.-,, __ • · :;· -_ - :,· ·. - ., >,,-:-y.:,•-,-,. , ·-·· -_-- . ·: -- . . -- .-._- -- _: · ,_., - - -- '" .· - . · 
• lntEirV)ention's;in.b(Jth'routine and inCident'specificsituations. {see Pg 102) . · · · · · · 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #11: Non-Pharmaceutical Interventions Page 72 of 96 WCHD CDC08-13 

75



Build 

Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Request a legal review of statutory and regulatory authority related to 
isolation/quarantine, facility closure, and event cancelation from the Assistant District 
Attoruney assigned to the Washoe County Health Authority and/or the Deputy Attorney 
General assigned to the Nevada State Health Division 

June 30, 2013 Report from the ADA or DAG. 

Tas1q:Gprici[to an incident,eng~ge healthcafi~~drgani~i'ltidris; ~oy~rnment agencies/and eommunlty sectors (e.g., education, social services, faith-based, business, and legal) 
in determil"lihgfhe.irroles.andrespcinsibilities in.noncpharmaceu.tical.inte.rv.entions on· an ongoii)gbasisthrough multidisciplinary meetings. (See Pg 102) 
···<' · .. ·\_",',\· .. i".'--· '.!<'/;,, __ ;_,.,,"~;,._ ,..'>·'· ·· "-,;·, -.. --_:_··-·-- _-·----c.:2/''·"_o.'L'.-·--;__'.___:::>7/-· .• ,_fA--'--'----''"°'".:..o:_J• __ ~-----'--'--'---- _c·_;'.:...:...,_,/t'~_,, .. '---'-'·--·'- _._ _,; • /'' ,-.,•;·,·.;.:> ---'·-·- ·-' 

l'lanriing Resollrce Elementi: Implementing non' 
ph~nT;aceuticalinterV~nfrons ~la'ri: (SeeRg102) 
PlannfngR.esource Element 2: Colllmuriication ana 
reporting ri1an(~ee i>l5tci2J. . 

No Activity 

No Activity 

l16JJ.t iB -MM 

Target is BP 3 

Target is BP 3 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #11: Non-Pharmaceutical Interventions Page 73 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

76



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
At the time! i:ifa.n intiderii:, act:1\/ate nori'i:il1armaceutical intervention locations.( e.g., isolation or quarantine sites) through coordination with jurisdictional officials 

'·· •"'•:;·-·\,~/:.-_'.·+u:'.!,·.':·• ,_,_.-;:·: :· ,-,,:;c.-:-':'•"':-- ,.- -·_ - ··: ',.·- ":- _.· ' -. , :, ',, ·· - ' 

[ e;g1;J<!;\/lei;ifcilG:~(iigQ!l [lle_t;lic.a l;a(ig"s.~hcml).(SeePg'loSJ · · · · 
1321.1.15. 

"Jas[(3: NJiie tli\1ec)fiinl!n~l<:ler1t, providerecpiJilTJendations for voluntary or mandatory closure of congregate locales and events to jurisdictional officials (e.g., emergency 
man?g~mel11f;:1a0lenf6rcemerit;:S'chool, and tribal entities) and s_takeholders (e.g., mall/store owners, faith-based congregations, and c.onvention centers/event 

c'catlit~iH~iif#~11i1t:~1~;,ae.a,~(~ee P!'.ids) · · ·· · · 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards far State and local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #11: Non-Pharmaceutical Interventions Page 74 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

77



Planning Resource Eleme.ntl: Isolation and 
quarantine plani (See:Pg 106) .· 
Planning Resource Element 2: . .Separation. of cohort 
plan (See Pgi06) ······ · · · . · 

Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

No Activity 

No Activity Target is BP 3 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #11: Non-Pharmaceutical Interventions Page 75 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

78



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Washoe County Health District 
CDC Public Health Emergency Preparedness (BP2) Sub-grant #CDCOS-13 

Scope of Work (SOW) July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 

Public Healtt1l.al:>.or:atoryTesting 

Ailb~~i~d fuhding\1/{\!\)iWJ' .. $ oo 1ti'J()'.jl:cti\/ity Planned in BP2 
.-c.-'\ ' 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards far State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #12: Public Health Laboratory Testing Page 76 of 96 WCHD CDCOB-13 

79



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Washoe County Heaith District 
CDC Public Health Emergency Preparedness (BP2) Sub-grant #CDC08-13 

Scope of Work (SOW) July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 

,pl;!gP;C~pC! ~iJit\t #13'_: FtlibJit±iealth SIJrvei IJC11'l<:E!_& _Ep!d.e_111i ologica 1·•1 nvesti gati on 
befirii~ion: PubliC'~ealth'~IJrv~faanq~:.a.nB epide.riliologicaf investigafron is ihefaability . .t() create, maintain/suµport, and strengthen·•routin e surveillance and detection systems 
_and~piderniological investigation'pfoces~es, 'a'5','we11 as.icnex_Rand_the~e syst:e'nis ancl proces~es in_respons_"'to1ntic:(ents of public health significance. 

PHEP 13.1 {Ft.im:Hb'ri 1)':'•''bisease·Reporting ,~Rroportion of reports ofselect~clreportable diseases received by a public health.agency within the awardee required time 
frami!. (See Pgs .i22cJ'.is)·· · · · · •"'· · · · ·· 

-Numerator: Number of reports of selected reportable disease received by a public health agency within the alNardee-required timeframe 
.- Deno.minator: Number ofreports of selected reportable disease'ieceived by a public health agency 

PHEP 13.2 (Function-3f Disease Control - Proport'1on ofreports df selected',reportable diseases fo'r which iniflal public health,.control measure(s) were ·initiated within the 
appropriatetim.effame.;(See pgs I26c128) ' · 

-'Numerator: lJUmbel'oi'ie]:iorts.ofselectedcreportable diseases for which public health control measl.lre(s) were initiated within ari appropriate timeframe 
~oe'riominator: Number of reports of selected reportable.diseases received by'a.pLlblic health agency 

PHEP 1{.3 (Function 2): Outbreak lnvestigatibn Heports1Bercentage of infectious djseas.e ou!break in~esti,i:;ations that generate reports (See Pgs 130-132) 
- Nutne.rator:.· Number. of infectious disease outbreak investigation reports generated 
- Denominafor'.<Numb'erof infectious disease outbreaks investigated 

PHEP 13A(Function 2): Outbreak Reports with Mi_nima.l•Elements - Percentage of in.fecf1ous disease outbreak investigation reports that contain all minimal elements (See 
Pgs 133-134) 

- Numerator: 'N,umber.ofinfec!ious disease outbreak investigation reports generated containing all minimal elements 
- D.enominator: N-U_nib'.efoffhfectib:LJs d'1S_easeJ:Jutbreak reportS_ geherat,ea 

PHEP BS (Function 2):. Exposure,Repbrts ,F'eicentage;of epidemiologlcaUi\v~stig~tio~1 of _'lCUt_e_environmen1:EJlexposures thaljlen_erattreports {See Pgs 135-137) 
~Nurnerator: Numberbf epidernialbgicaHhvestigation reports· of acute eiwironm'ental.exposures generated 
- Detibrninator: Number of.epidemiological iiivestig1rtions-of.acute environmentafexpasures 

PHEP 13.6 (~l.liici:ii:in 2): E~jJosure Reports with Minimal Elements ,fiercentage of acute environmental exposure reports that contain all minimal elements.(See Pgs 138-139) 
. .'cNumeratodil·r>JurriBer c\f'epidE!ri\iolbgicaLirivestigation reports ofacufe environmental exposures containing all minimal ele.ments 
·.::. Denominafor: Nurnb'erofepiderniologitalinvestigation reports of acute environmental exposures'generated . -- - - .- -- - - --- - "' ---·- ... - ---- - - - ' 

Note: The page #'s listed for Performance Measures above correspond to CDC's "BP1 Performance Measures Specifications and Implementation Guidance", Version 1.1 

•. QytcCJfoe:rf)~jg¢~i1(ei1tQQ%,1 9.f·ca.pabili~y·.W,ill'b~i~¢~i~&~d~gy.'§/30/2.014. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #13: Public Health Surveillance & Epidemiological Inv. Page 77 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

80



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
Complete the build out of Target Capability 13: Public Health Surveillance and 
Epidemiological Investigation. 

Only sustaining activities will be required. 
See output documentation 
under functions below. 

Functie>ri :ftf:)Co1"1dllctpµblic health sllrveillanC:e.ariCI detectiC>if ·. j · • [ 
Objectil/e '< ) 

By June 30, 2014, WCHD will sustain the tasks outlined below and Epidemiology staff will document attainment of Tier 1 Competencies and Skills for Applied 
Epidemiologists in Governmental Public Health Agencies. - $41,374 

Task.l.: Engage~ncl r~t~instakeholi:!~rs, which are defined by the jurisdiction, who can provide health data to support routine surveillance, including daily activities outside of 
·an irtdd~ri~~.a~:d;.io;;§~pport respoi)se;t0an identified public health threat or incident (See Pg 119) · .. 

Sustain 
WCHD will continue to engage stakeholders through reminders about legally mandated 
reporting in the EpiNews publication . 

. :r,a~k 2:~§~~du;!E,6,.Htilie ar{d'iDcide~.tc~pecific mc:lrbidity and mortality surveillance as indicated by the situation (e.g. complications of chronic disease, irijury, or pr~gnancy) 
ct,fsingirlJi§t~;sq;?B~~s·r.e.po!"la.ble diseils~ sur<eillance,vital statistics, syndromic surveillance, hospital discharge abstracts, population-based surveys, disease registries, and 
··~;;tive'tli5efiil8ilig~(s'e~1~g:.;tiQf · · 

Sustain 

Sustain 

Routine surveillance will continue to be conducted in accordance with NRS/NAC 441A 

Existing syndromic surveillance systems will be maintained including FirstWatch, and 
NRDM while continuing to transition from HMS to BioSense. 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

NBS and Staff investigation 
notes. 

Syndromic surveillance SOP 

Task3i'Pfo~ideslatisfi2aJ\9ata an~ repoi:tsfa5p1Jblic health and other applicable jurisdictional leadership in order to identify potential populations.at-risk for adverse health 
· outcome5_,dµriog.a,na:tut~iforJria'1;i);lade threatoHocident.; (see Pg 119) 

Sustain 
Statistical data will continue to be shared through internal reports on a weekly basis and 
with external partners through the EpiNews. 

CD Log and EpiNews 
Publications 

~Tasl<'1!1''1i\0.aii\.tilJl)';~,q'!i\l,~ilj~n~eli\isf~fo~it~il\c~fridentifyfi~~Jthprdqleir)s,threats, a~d environment~U1azarpsand receive afrd resp0nd to (or investigate) reports 24/7. (See Pg 
:,;;ti_9JU~'.;/.::,:;;;~~-·'.T~::.;~:;;~f~l:N'.'.(~J!+~t-.:,~!:?>:'.:~~~~~~;:yy:-;f,:;w;~;F-,:. ': ', :,: '"-'._:· ·'.~'.:: '" :_:·:~ :_,::\-i· '>~ ;' '.:::··:~:;t,·· .. ; : '... ::··.>;;.;;;;;;' . ---:':;i;;s::::·:;·: .. ;.:; ··'..':.·::;;';;~5~;.~;. ' .... ;'' - ' ' ·': : ' :: '. . . . ~ . 

Sustain 

Identification of health problems, threats, and environmental hazards will be achieved 
through continued analysis of surveillance data and encouragement of outbreal< 
reporting by professionals and members of the public. 

Ongoing EpiNews Publications. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #13: Public Health Surveillance & Epidemiological Inv. Page 78 of 96 WCHD CDCOB-13 

81



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Eqlliprnent &f~C:hnolo1iv.1: Accesstb heiilth 
information infrastructure and surveillance.systems 
(Sei:Pgl21} 

Pl~~~i~g~esource Element l:.·boC:GmeriftKg leg~I ana· 
procedurabffame1Nork.forinformation exdiange (Si§ePg· 
119). . . . . . . 

Planni~~Resou,,rce,~11:me~t2: Protocols for acce~~ihg · 
health informa'tiiln /(see~g fag) · 

Planning Resoufce Element 3: .Protocols to gather and 
analyze sur\'eillance data (See Pg 120) 

PlariningResotir~e Elefuent 4: Procedures.to ensure 
24/7 health department access (See Pg 120) 

Pl~~ning Res?uJce Element 5: Prptocols to notify CDC of 
cases.on the N~tionallyNotifi~bleJnfect.ious Disease list 
(See Pg l~Q) .. .. . . . . . . . . 

Sldlis &Traini~~.r:JJiet~icOrnpet~ncies a~d Skills for 
AppliedEpidemioiogist~ (S~e Pg121) · 

fijljf_i_j_J_j 

Sustain 

Sustain 

Sustain 

Sustain 

Sustain 

Sustain 

Build 

Build 

WCHD will continue to make computers and 
appropriate analytical software available for 
epidemiology staff use. 

Existing WCHD Communicable Disease 
Manual and Outbreak Response SOP capture 
the legal and procedural framework for 
information exchange, access to health 
information, and confidentiality. 
WCHD will continue to update and maintain 
e>cisting MOUs for accessing health 
information such as hospital discharge data, 
vital statistics, cancer registry, etc. 
WCHD will continue to utilize existing 
protocols for gathering and analyzing 
syndromic surveillance data and will update 
as needed for the transition from HMS to 
BioSense 
WCHD will continue to retain the services of 
an answering service that will refer calls to 
epidemiology staff 24/7. 

WCHD will continue to utilize the NBS to 
notify CDC of cases on the Nationally 
Notifiable Infectious Disease List 

WCHD Epidemiology staff will complete the 
self assessment for Tier 1 Competencies and 
Skills for Applied Epidemiologists in 
Governmental Public Health Agencies. 
WCHD Epidemiology staff will identify and 
complete training to address any deficits in 
the Tier 1 Competencies and Skills for Applied 
Epidemiologists in Governmental Public 
Health Agencies. 

Appropriate software installed 

WCHD Outbreak Response SOP 
and Communicable Disease 
Manual 

MO Us 

Syndromic Surveillance Protocol 

Call logs 

NBS 

Completed self assessments 

Staff training records 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #13: Public Health Surveillance & Epidemiological Inv. Page 79 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

82



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
WCHD Senior Epidemiology staff will 
complete the self assessment for Tier 2 

Build I Competencies and Sl<ills for Applied I Completed self assessments 
Epidemiologists in Governmental Public 
Health Agencies. 
WCHD Senior Epidemiologist staff will identify 
and complete training to address any deficits 

Build I in the Tier 2 Competencies and skills for I Staff training records 
Applied Epidemiologists in Governmental 
Public Health Agencies. 

By June 30, 2014, WCHD will sustain the tasks outlined below. --- $38,281 

.T8Sl_<-i·:·:· ~O~Ch.ict·i~v'eSfi_gatfOn:s:6'tdi_s_ea5e!';-rnjul""y·:~_r_-_exposure in response to natural or man-made threats or iilcidents cind _ensure--coordination of investigation with 
Jurisdicii.on.a'lJ~artri~s:agendes:.Partne.r,;inciude law enforcement, environmental health practitioners, public health nurses, maternal and child health, and other regulatory 
•ageh~ieslfiili!gal a~tiYlfy,is"suspected; (See Pg122) . . . ·. 

Sustain 
WCHD will continue to conduct investigations as required by law and/or public health 
necessity and will involve partner organizations as indicated. 

Ongoing 
NBS system and investigative 
files 

')f:~sl<.~z~~k[Ovifii!;iepla~.fiii9,logici!I and ~~v.!r.qnf1'.lental public health.consul.tation, technica.1 assistance, and information to local health departments regarding disease, injury, or 
~e~po$\lf~and}netbo'd~[@siJrvei1Jance; iAv~stig11iign;,al]d response (See Pg122}" . ; . . ... · .. · ... • . . .. . .. .. · 

' • I I " I • 

Sustain WCHD will continue to report investigation results to jurisdictional a federal partners 
utilizing NBS. 

Ongoing NBS system 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #13: Public Health Surveillance & Epidemiological Inv. Page 80 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

83



''·-. 

Skill~ &Tr~ii\mrfi! sdf:fr~g ta pa city to manage.the 
ro utin~ epidemiologic~ijnl/e;tig~tion.systems (See Pg 
124) 

Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Sustain 

Sustain 

WCHD will continue to utilize the existing 
Outbreak Response SOP and conduct an 
annual review of the document with 
updates as needed. 

WCHD will continue to provide training 
opportunities for staff to enhance their 
capacity to mange routine epidemiological 
investigation systems 

By June 30, 2014, WCHD will sustain the tasks outlined below. -- $36,435 

WCHD Outbreak Response SOP 

Staff training records 

Task 1: betern:inepublichealth mitigation, including Fllnicaland epiden:iological management and actions to be recommended for the mitigation of the threat or incident 
oasedup~n d~t~ tOll~Cte?)n .th.e investigation and on applicable science-based standards outlined by Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Report, control of Communicable 
Dis .. eases Manual1.;Red B):{ol<.oUl1fectlous Diseases or, as availablera state;or·'.CDC inc.ident annex. {See Pg124.) · ,. - - - __ .,-.:-•-' ,.,._,_.,_ .. _, ______ , ---------· -------· - ··---' ' - - -- - ----'·''""- .. • 

1.\L!_i LL 

Sustain WCHD will continue to monitor mitigation results. NBS, Staff investigation notes, 
and Outbreak final reports 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP CapabH.1ty #13: Public Health Surveillance & Epidemiological Inv. Page 81of96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

84



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

tas1<4i flecornrnenl'l.~~ditionalmiti!l~tiqr\ activities,baseci upon m'itrgati61l rn!lhitoring a.nd analysis, throughout the duration of the incident, as appropriate. : ' ",' "-:. "' -. _: ___ ,., ,·_.,-' -: __ --;;_·< ''" -'- ·'; ' ' - --.: ,,.., .,._. __ ,, - ' ,' - '. . ' . 
,. (See Jlg,;125 ),;;;;<;; •. . · · · · · · 

···,;·--''·-,','---AW%'*'··· -'.~y/J)o,; 

. Plan1Jin~R~~qu~c~·~.l!!rpeptJ: ... Prot.ocolsf()~··.· 
;recomi:ri'endimgtandJiiitia:ting containm nt and·•.·· 

'irritll5%f{6A~~,&~i6'll'~~fs~~~g·•125)·•···· ,:•·······•·•• 

Skill &]~.~ii:ii6g ~= ;ffainirig]'Q Hom el.and sec"urity 
ExeF2ise aWCi'Evaluation After Action\Report process 
'(s~e l'g 125) • ......... · •• • · · " 

Sustain 

Sustain 

Existing plans, SOPs and protocols will 
continue to be reviewed and updated 
as needed. 

Awareness level training on HSEEP will 
be provided to all epidemiology staff. 

Sustain WCHD will continue to identify issues and outcomes during and after incidents. 

Response plans and SOPs 

Staff Training Records 

Outbreak final reports and 
AAR/IPs 

:-·---,;;;··--,-·\ .. •:t·~-i''.tY'-:,·.>·~0;.;:c;·,,.,,.~,-··,.,';_ _,,,·,·d~·._-, .• __ ·._- .--·. _ • , , •. ···;-".~:;,··-. _. -·-·,.. y.--.. ,,: . ·-. , , 
·I~sk•~:'. $?;.9dµg;p,pst01nclcJE!n,t/post~ex!',rc1~e,agency evaluat1onmeet1ng(s) including all active participants (e.g., law enforcement, volunteer agencies, cl1n1cal partners or 
•'er\iiirori'rli~Bhi1•r.egulaJoi;V,'agency)to identify'internal protocols and deficiencies that require corrective actimis.in areas such as programs, perscinnel,training, equipment, 
,~;;:·.;;~·"C'~Ji;,:.~.--;J:"'>·-~·/;,_·_·-::,·.·'H?:'..!f;{;]';i,(.:<_:p,•'>'-.-.·.:-.---:- ·-;:':;;.,\-;i'./,:c·.';·'·~,,·,;:_.;:·-- · - ·· - - · · ', · .:- · · -- - · - · 
;.an CJ qrganlzatignal•st[qgtgr~• (Se.e,Pg 121J'l'Stf:;L·· · · ·· 

1321.1.15.1 

Sustain 
WCHD will continue to conduct post-incident evaluation meetings with active 
participants after major outbreak investigations and/or exercises. 

Ongoing 
Outbreak final reports and 
AAR/IPs 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State ond Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #13: Public Health Surveillance & Epidemiological Inv. Page 82 of 96 WCHD CDC08-13 

85



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Task 3: Develop an After Action Report/Improvement Plan. (See Pg 126) 

Planning Resource Elet11ent :l.: CornmuniE~tion of 

impro~erl1entplan (See Pg 126) 
Sustain 

WCHD will continue to communicate 

AAR/IP information to public health 

leadership after major outbreaks and/or 

exercises 

Outbreak final reports and AAR/IPs 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #13: Public Health Surveillance & Epidemiological Inv. Page 83 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

86



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Washoe County Health District 

CDC Public Health Emergency Preparedness (BP2} Sub-grant #CDC08-13 
Scope of Work (SOW} July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 

· ..... ····.· .. · :. '. ; E>HE.1-r~#r>~Bi1i'l:v #:!±4 Y Resi:>Bhd~r s~ti:i'l:v/a r'lcJ Heait.h . 
. Definftion:J:h,e r~spor;ci~nafety and tie~lth capabilitY describes the ability to protect public health agency staff responding to an incident and the ability to support the 
he~ttri;;,;d:sa?~w.needs ot hilsiiita1 a~ctmedica1 facility personnel, if requested. 

. ·---"-· ... - .. , '.•T.'.'."''· ".•'·. ·,:: -"· " - , , .' - . , -

··Alloca't~d.funding:~z·<• 

Performance 
PHEP:f4:1(Ful1Ciiob.~;·3 and 4): Deployment Safety and Health Program (Awardee) - The awardee health department has a deployment safety and health program in 
pl~cefor p'ubllc heati}i%spqnders [Yes/No] (See Pgs 143-145) 
PHEP l'f..2.(Function.1,3 andA):,:DeploymentSafety and Health Program (LHDs) - Proportion of PHEP-funded local health departments that have a deployment safety and 
health,prOgrarnfo plac~ fa~ public•~ealth responders (See Pgs 146-148) 

PHEPi4.3 (i:uncti~nA):. Screening/Out-Pro.cessing - Proportion of deployed public health responders screened for medical readiness prior to deployment and 
outprocessed post-depibyment (See Pgs 149-150) 

PHEP 14:4.(Furction 4): Responder. Health Outcomes - Percentage of public health responders who were injured, ill, exposed, or killed as a result. of deployment during an 
incident(SeePgs·l51~152). 

Note: The page #1s listed for Performance Measures above correspond to CDC1s 11 BP1 Performance Measures Specifications and Implementation Guidance", Version 1.1 

0.: - --;::· ~;;x_:,- ~: - - -'," -;" \;;'._\:;_;''-~-:: ;;: :>,-J-::<;.-_;->:': -_, _, .-:_':";::,t;::·:·::,:' --: -, -_ - - - - -

··.Out~em~.Q~i.ectiiie:,1qq~i.~t,capa~ilif\/"l(V.ilJ;~.~.a.chi~ved by 6/30/2()14 ... • 
' - ' -. -- '',' --~ .. ; -'""" _,, - _, " ---- _,_ --~-- - » . .,, - "' "-------------- ----- - . ' - --- _-"""' - --- '-" ' ._,,_ --- - : 

By the end of BP2, WCHD staff will identify responder health and safety 
resources that address responder safety and health risks and needs in an 
effort to better protect responders in the event off a public health 

emergency. 

All public health responders will have 
access to a Health and Safety Plan as it 
relates to public health emergencies. 

A Health and Safety Plan 
which contains: 
1. Lists/Fact sheets/Risk 

assessment identifying: 

• medical health risks 

• environmental exposures 

• mental/behavioral health 
risks 

2. Matrices that address 
identified risl<s and: 

• Resources 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards far State and local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #14: Responder Safety and Health Page 84 of 96 WCHD CDC08-13 

87



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

• Acute and chronic health 
conditions 

• PPE needs 

By end of year, WCHD staff will create Responder Health and Safety Fact Sheets which include safety and health recommendations as they relate to 
identified risks. --- $16,416 

Tas1<1: .Prior to an incideiit,Identify•the medlqal; environmental exposure, ahd mental/behavioral health risks that may be faced by staff responding to the public health 
incideritln conjunction with ·partner agencies:andba~e.tkonjurls.d.ictional rlsirnssess'['nent,JSee Pg 127) 

1.lL! ;_:_._ 

Build 
Identification of medical, environmental exposure, and mental/behavioral health risks 
through research and community collaboration. 

December 31, 
2013 

Task?: Prior to an 'incident, 'identify subject matter experts and.other informational resources that can be used by public health 
stafffo.fnake health and safetyrecommendations to thelncidentSMetyOfficers or lead.agen.cv. (See pg127 

Build identification of subject matter experts. 

Risk assessment identifying 
medical, environmental 
exposure, and mental health 
risks that first responders may 
be faced with during public 
health emergencies. 

Matrix which identifies subject 
matter experts by risk category. 

Task 3: Prior to an incident, and as applicable during an incident, work with subject matter experts to develop information on potential acute arid.chronic health conditions 
that may ,develop/occur during and after an exposure. J5ee·.Pi127;) .. · · 
~ 

Build 
Meetings with subject matter experts and research pertaining to potential acute and 
chronic health conditions. 

June 30, 2014 

Matrix which identifies potential 
acute and chronic health 
conditions related to identified 
risks. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #14: Responder Safety and Health Page 85 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

88



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
'.:_.,-.-,_·"'," _O·'.i'J!+'.'?G;/,'rc·,;.:'···v,;._ 0_!.~'Y.:-". · _··-··-··"·':~·:·:-·,"---·- .;,.·•.-:· _ .--·- .' --~'-'--"'·~·-·_'· ·.·,,-•-.",-•"'''. ·,_ -_, .-.-: : __ ... 

;';Task:4:'J~ccbns~Lt~t.il5D:'Ni.thJhelncidentSaf~~y Offi.cer and subjectmatter,experts, participate in the formulation of recommendations to the Incident Commander regarding 
;respa:Q8erl~p~c1hcrl~k~,tg1Je addressedcihTnciderr~ction plans:(See P-gl27J .· ·:. ·. . . . . . 

d!i.i.IJ.1 

Build 
1. Write an Incident Action Plan template for public health emergencies. 
2. Create a Responder Safety and Health Plan for use by the Safety Officer, 

Incident Commander and responders as needed. 
June 30, 2014 

• Incident Action Plan template 
that includes responder -
specific risks to be addressed 
during emergency responses. 

• Responder Safety and Health 
Plan that recommends 
possible solutions to 
responder specific risks 
during emergency responses. 

Task:s::Elisfoi>[ft'e!safet\iniaterials to public healthresponders through daily briefings at the onset of, and throughout an incident, in consultation with the Incident Safety 
·' '· '.\:·' __ ,-: -:--.··,,~;#~Y'°".''"'--'·:··· · ··' ->_•._ :- --·'· ·_--.-._,_ · -i.>- <''>·"--. , .,- - -- - - --· - -- · .- , 
(£t:Jfficei;l~b1l;mri5giiJ:tjJoJJ~I subjeq.rnatter e.J!pirJ:~. (See Pg.127) . . . . 

j.Jti.i.l,,i.1 

Build 
1. Write an Incident Action Plan template for public health emergencies. 

1. Incident Action Plan 
template that includes 
responder - specific risks to 
be addressed during 

2. Create a Responder Health and Safety Fact Sheets for use by the Safety Officer, 
Incident Commander and responders. 

June 30, 2014 I emergency. 
2. Fact Sheets that can be 

distributed to responders, · 
which address Health and 
Safety materials. 

Document safety and health risk scenarios likely to be 
faced by public health responders that addresses: 
-limits of exposure of injury necessitating response Responder Safety and 

Health Plan -Job-specific worker safety guides 
-potential for post-event medical and 
mental/behavioral health follow-up assessments 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards far State and local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #14: Responder Safety and Health Page 86 of 96 WCHD CDCOB-13 

89



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Document public health roles and responsibilities 

Planning Resource Element 2: Public health roles and 
Build 

related to identified risks and identify: Responder Safety and 
responsibilities (See Pg 128) -PPE Health Plan 

.... ;:~- ... ····· -protective actions 

By end of year, WCHD staff will create Responder Health and Safety Facts Sheets which include safety and health recommendations as they relate to 

identified risl<s. --- $16,416 

Taskl: Priorto<an•incidel)t, andas applicable during an incide~j:,W<:Jrl< with subjectmatter experts {e.g., state environmental health, state occupational health and safety, 
hazard,specific•sy9j[!ct111~):ler.e~perts,.and emergency rnanager?}to:jpen~tfY responder safety"and)healthresource req uir.emen.ts (e.g.,.equipment need.s) ,{See Pg 129) 

Build Identify safety and PPE needs as they related to identified risks. 
Matrix of safety and PPE needs 

as they relate to identified risl<s. 

Task2: Prior to an incident, and as applicable_;duringan;incident,,and in conjunctionwithsubjectmatter experts, formulate recommendations to public health responders 
regarding.personal protective equipment thatare cons1~tentW,itb·lo.1=.al;juri.sdictional requjreri)_ents,..(See Pg 129) · · 

fili.l.;J, 

Create Fact Sheets that list recommendations to public health responders regarding 

PPE. 
Task 3: Coordinate with partner agencies to prpvide medical countermeasures and/or personal protective equipment to public health responders, if indicated by the 
incl.dent. {S1eeP!l(l.29) 

f.fli.iJ.Li 

Build 
Update Medical Countermeasures Distribution and Dispensing Plan to include PPEs to 

public health responders. 
June 30, 2014 

Equiptn!'R~Resource Element 1: PersOT1al l'rotetti~e 
Equipment fo~;healfhcare workers. (See Pg 130) · · · · . 

Build 

Build 

Develop recommendations for risl<-related PPE 

for public health responders. 

1. Identify PPE that is consistent with 

identified risks. 

2. Create a resource inventory of PPE. 

1. Revised procedures in 
MCMDD 

2. Responder Safety and 
Health Plan 

Responder Safety and Health 
Plan 

PPE Resource Inventory 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #14: Responder Safety and Health Page 87 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

90



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

-
No Activity planned for BPZ 

!5'ta~~~:~i?~[I8C:~'6l<(filri)2rci.ellt/aifd'.~s·ifpplica!Jle;duril1g an incident, work with subject matter experts to determine/recommend risk~specifiC: training (both training for 
'-·> ""';f/-~-~.-.,c•·-:ii·_'·'·--:: :-:',';'oftip,1_¥"'.--·•.:·'':''-;-,'c•·'>···--. · ·;,,"''.'<'·>··-· ·.····-·:·._ · · , _. _- .,·_·· , _ · _ .. _::·-: :' .,., · · · · -··-
pi"{:iteCtfy/o)ci:iDQ~;a5';We]ll~S)!J{~fDiQgJoJ'!(eSp'cir(~"J!<J expo~ure oriniury). (See Pg Bi) · · •· .. .·· .;•:c; <: , . •· ··. · 

1321.1.13.i!f!S 

SRiHii'al1d TraiHiligi:•;¥1'\i~l<'specifit sa'fei:Ytraining on 'N'95 >: '·-"'~~<1.i :·.,·.· -' --- - -' ' ' ' 0 

(S,ee.Pg 131),:,,; ... · 
· Skills•aridfTraining·2.:, Rjsltspecific tralni~g ,documentation 
(See pg 131)~it''.•• .. . . ' 

·.•··Fl.ll'letion#4:>IVl()l'lifor•l"espondel" safety arld.'he~ltffattion~ )( ,. : <T•'.[Cjjj( ,, .... ,..... . ...• •u·· 

No Activity 

1asl<3; • J'id~i.degujaahcet8:[>'~i1:n er o[ganiZatlapsto help conduct in on itoringcifany responder staff for medical/meri1:al/beha\/ioral incident-related health.outcomes. (See 
Pg1i3ihC'~·i\';.; ·'~;. !~$*'t!~J,,;, . .; •7~1'1tti j .··· .·•· ... · . > ..••. > .. ·... < •.••....••... ··•·· •. · ··•·•··•.· •• . . . . ·.· . . 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 
PHEP Capability #14: Responder Safety and Health Page 88 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

91



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

No Activity 

Task4: Utilize surveHlance data and other applicable 'inputs from partner agencies fo provide r.ecommendations or considerations for any changes related to the use of 
personal protetti,ve equipment (e.g., to alter, suspend,'ortermiiia.te any activity or personal protective equipment usage judged to improve the outcome or be an imminent 
danger or immediately,Clahge{bUsJo,life and health). (See Pg 131) 

llllf.'llQ'l'I 

Tasl< 5: Support the Public lnformation:Offic~rand partner agencies to implement risl<-communication strategies that communicate ri.sks to responders after the completion 
< - :·-- -_:.-_- ,,__ :-- ;: '/:/- --,._- - >.·--- . -·/ : - -·- .. _- . - <Y>'. - - _,,_, - .-. 

of tlie acute phase ofan·inci'dent. lndude·risks known:pie-incident and those discovered.during and afterlthe.acute phase. (See Pg Bl) 
.-,c,·.,__ ._,-;e;·,·.,-,·------··---··_ .. --~-- ·.·.·•"-".-<•«'·>:·.<;.<·•--:'.- -_-;::· -.. ·.;c;,,,_ <'->-·--:-:··-}/.-: ·".·· -'--"\:,..... _-.,.,,_ .. , . , 

Planning Resource Element 1: Health surveillance 
', ·>·· .-,, ' 

(See Pg 132) 

Equipment Resource Element 1: RespollderDatabase 
(See Pg132) 

No Activity 

No Activity 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", Marcil 2011 
PHEP Capability #14: Responder Safety and Health Page 89 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

92



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Washoe County Health District 
CDC Public Health Emergency Preparedness (BP2) Sub-grant #CDC08-13 

Scope of Work (SOW) July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 

· PHEPCap<lbillty. #15. : ..• Vol1.1r:'lfeei l\lli3nagement·. 
·'o.~fii1fti~n:·:.vo1tlrite~f~!hi.~·n·~ge_me~t- is:.thE?abY1frV:to coordinate the identlficatibn, recruitment1 registration, credential v-efiffr:ation;·training, and eiigagement of volunteers to 
su'pport tl1eJ~yisdictl9nai•pUbih: health agency'~ response ta incidents of public health significance. 

AH~i:~tk<l i.clnciil"lli:' .1 •• ~,~,,~10;643' • 

Performa 
PHEP.15;1 (Functipnic:1.f:' Managing Volunteers (Awardee) - The awardee health department has plans, processes and procedures in place fo manage volunteers 
supparting•a,pi.Jbli~ health ormedicalincident [Yes/No] (See Pgs 1S5-156) · · 

'PfiEP/fs;;qfun'Ctioni1:2):·ManagingVoiunteers (LHDs) - Proportion of PHEP-funded LHDs that have plans, processes and procedures in place to manage volunteers 
supporting a public'nealih or medical incident (See Pgs 157-158) 

.HPPcPHEP 15.1 (Function 3'4):.,VQiunteer Management - Proportion of volunteers deployed to support a public health/medical incident within an appropriate timeframe 
(See pg~ 15911\;o) · · ··· · · 
Note: The page #'s listed for Performance Measures above correspond ta CDC's "BP1 Performance Measures Specifications and Implementation Guidance", Version 1.1 

OL1tcome,Q,l:>j~ctiv~: ioo%.9t ~apability will be achieved by 6/30/2014. 

Ensure that Renown, St. Mary's, Northern Nevada and incline Village Health 
Center and other healthcare organizations have or have access to plans, 
processes, and procedures to contact the MRC Program Coordinator to utilize 
MRC volunteers; including rapid verification of credentials and affiliation with 
deployed entities. To assure that WCHD's MRC program will be able to meet 
requests for volunteers in a timely manner. Additionally, ongoing training 
opportunities will be scheduled and made available for MRC Volunteers to 
improve skill by the end of BP2s. 

MOU's or agreements will be developed to 
ensure that in the occurrence of the need 
to utilize MRC-volunteers; Renown, St. 
Mary's, Northern Nevada and Incline Village 
Health Centers will be the target. 
Additionally, the American Red Cross will 
also be included in the process. 

Written MOU's or 
agreements that outlines the 
process with each of the 
healthcare facilities 
identified. 

Prior to an incident or event the MRC Coordinator will develop written plans along with WC hospitals to determine which situations would wainnt the use of 
MRC volunteers. Once the "need responses" for volunteers are detennined training initiatives will be developed to address these situations by the end of BP2 -
--- $18,681 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards far State and Local Planning", March 2011 

PHEP Capability #15: Volunteer Management Page 90 of 96 WCHD CDCOB-13 

93



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
Prior to an incident, identify the typesand numbers of volunteers most likely to be needed in a public health agency's response based .on the jurisdictional 

community risk assessment. (See Pg 133). . 
.lELLLLI 

Sustain 

MRC coordinator will use information from a revised "healthcare requesting 

procedure" form that local healthcare organizations will complete to develop written 

plans to establish what situations would warrant the use of MRC-volunteers. MRC 
volunteer information in E- Coordinator, which is the WCHD's electronic volunteer 

registration system, will be used to update and identify volunteers to respond to the 

new written response plans. 

Ongoing during 

budget period 
The newly developed written 
response plans. 

Task2: Priortoan incident, coordinate with existing \/blunteerprograms (e.g., ESAR-VHP,Medical Reserve Corps). and partner organizations to support the pre-incident 
recruitt1J.ent pf1Jolun.teeisth.atmaybe needed.in.a publ.i.c he.a.lth;igenc;y'.s.response. (5ee.Pg133h: · 

Sustain 

MRC Coordinator will recruit new volunteers through the media and participate in 
events that will promote MRC mission. E-Coordinator will also be updated with new 
and existing volunteer's infonnation during budget period 2. 

Ongoing during 
budget period 

Number of MRC volunteers 
information that is updated and 
sustained. 

Task 3: Prior to an lncid~rit, assure pr,e-inciderit screening and verification of volu.nteers' credentials thrbugh jurisdictional ESAR'VHP and Medical Reserve Corps. (See Pg 
133) .. . ·• . 

Sustain 

Prior to an incident MRC Coordinator will have previously verified volunteers 
credentials by checking with state licensing agencies and then storing infonnation in E
Coordinator which contains ESARP-VHP and MRC data and can be easily accessed 
electronically. 

Ongoing during I Records of Volunteers from 
budget period ESRAP-VHP. 

Task4: Prior to ari inciderit a~d as necessary at the time of an incident, support provision of initlaland ongoing emergency res·ponse training for registered volunteers. 
Training should besuppbtted iii' µartllership withjurisdictional Medical Reserye Corps unit(s) and other partner groups. (See pg 133) · . :Lt.I= . , . .. . ..,·.··" '· . .. . ~ . . ..... , . . . ,,/.'. .,,. . . 

Sustain 

MRC Coordinator will provide volunteers information on the written process of how to 
report to a situation upon activation which can include the need in some instances for 
"just-in-time" training. A partnership will also be established with CERT, NNOVAD, the 
Red Cross and REMSA, local healthcare organizations and other MRC Units in Nevada. 
The partners will have periodic regular scheduled meetings. 

Ongoing during 
budget period 

A copy of revised MRC Standard 
Operating Procedures. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Hea/t/J Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 

PHEP Capability #15: Volunteer Management Page 91of96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

94



• ~lahiliri~. ~~B:rCii'il:lement 1: ,vo1ur1teefneeds 
• ·assessinent;,f:li'r,.h ealthc~ r~•orgiln izatipns response ..• 

(Se~'"r~ ~3!)'.····.;::~~~'., >~,····· ...... ;.;···•••·····.::)·•··•/,.•··.•·.·.· 
. PliinninfRescitirt'e E:1en1\irii2: .co11ect;'assemb1e, 

- ·-:·· -... :·._ -:- -_--·>· ·: -: ... : '>'<> <,-·-'· '--_; '·i .'' ',' ' _- . ' -. ·- ,_ '", 
·maintain, arid.utilize volunteefinformation. 
(See pg.133) ·~i' • · · · · ·. 

Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Build 

Sustain 

local health care organizations and 
determine volunteers' needs based 
upon risk assessment needs data 
information that will be gathered . 

E-Coordinator will be updated with 
volunteers' information. 

Written risk needs data information. 

Volunteer information entered in 
E-Coordinator. 

MRC Coordinator will review and revise the cun·ent MRC volunteer request process to ensure that prospective volunteers are notified and mobilized in the 
appropriate health professional role for WCHD's local health care organizations by the end ofBP2. --- $15,000 

Taskl: Atthe time of ail iricipelit, identify the desired skills and quantity of volunteers needed for the incident from the preincident 
•volt'ntiiiiri•r~gl~tra~icin.;(SeePg13s) · 

Sustain 

MRC coordinator will review local healthcare organizations "requesting procedure" 
form at the time of an incident for volunteers. The role and quantity of volunteers 
available will be assessed which will be aided with the use of E-Coordinator 
(computerized volunteer system) . 

Ongoing during 
budget period 

The written and revised SOP 
process that will ensure proper 
volunteer response. 

. Task 2: ,AtthetiU,i; qf;anincident, coil.tact pre-incident.registeredyolunte12rsusing multiplerilodes ofcommunication: (See Pg 135). 
·~ . ........ ··'' '•' . . '·' . . . 

Sustain 
The role and quantity of volunteers needed will be written and included in the revised 
MRC- SOP. The E-Coordinator (computerized volunteer system) will be used to help 
notifv volunteers. 

Ongoing during I The revised SOP 
budget period 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards far State and Local Planning", March 2011 

PHEP Capability #15: Volunteer Management Page 92 of 96 WCHD CDCOB-13 

95



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Task4: .At the .. time of an incident, coordinate with partner agencies to confirm credentials of res.P .... ond'.1ng volunteers. (See P.g.13S) 
' , •'" ' -c-'" i.·.·-"" ', ',, ','""; 

Sustain 

MRC coordinator will check with State licensing Depm1ments and/or also 
request copies of certifications licenses from new and current volunteers prior 
to incidents. A written process will be written with select local healthcare 
organizations to confirm credentials. 

Tasks.:. At the time of an incident, notify:par1~eragen9.es of any need for add'1tionalv9lunteers. (See Pg 13S) 

~ 

Ongoing during 
budget period 

The revised SOP and written 
agreements with pm1ner 
organizations. 

MRC Coordinator will develop a written protocol for allocating MRC volunteers that are needed simultaneously across several healthcare organizations. This 
process will include the placement of volunteers through the appropriate deployment channels and match the assignment of volunteers to the needs of the 
requesting WC healthcare organizations that will be based on volunteer availability by the end of BP2. 

$19,962 
Task 1: JU.he incidentdiffers from or exceeds the publiC~ealth;<Jgen,c:Y's pre~incident;definedy,ql!Jnteer plans, idEihtif'{additional volunteers thafhave the Decessary 
credential~ and.skills. (Seegg 13~) · · · ' · · · · 

Build 

MRC Coordinator will develop a written plan that will identify additional volunteers e.g., : 
Interstate jurisdictional systems; ESAR-VHP; Intrastate jurisdictional system; and other 
Healthcare Coalition volunteers. ASPR's Medical Surge Capacity Handbook will be 
referenced to build this capacity. 

Ta~k 2: Assurf!deployment b"iefjng.of pµbHc; health volunteers,il'Jcffudjng;;afety and inddentc$pecific.training. 
,,15#{.-i~IJ.f' ___ -~"'H. p---x--,,, .. ,,.p __ ,, ____ , ·-« - ·-"· - ,,_. -- "'···. _, ___ ,,, "» 

Ongoing during 
budget period 

The written plan that will 
identify additional volunteers. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 

PHEP Capability #15: Volunteer Management Page 93 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

96



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Build 
Volunteers will be deployed consistent with the current MRC-SOP guidelines. Training 
will be provided that will include personal safety concerns and in addition to just in time 
training for specific incidents. 

Ongoing during 
budget period 

The revised MRC-SOP 
guidelines. 

;ra5i<3:•.t(tMi'.fr~·ft~'ill~ing;ap_drotatidnofvolunteers.as indicated bythe:jntident.and·by.reJ".vantjob fllnctipn.· (See. Pg 137) 
-, ,,,,,., --- ,,.,, - - -- " . --- - - ' ''" ____ ,.,_". ·" - ,-. '_, ·---" ;, - - __ , -- '_,,,. - - - ' ' ' ' - ,"'" , .. - - '- •"'''; ' --- ', -, ;: - -· ,- ' ,- - . -- - ' -" - - ., 

Sustain 
The current MRC SOP will be review~d and revised to assure that the current tracking 
and rotation of volunteers is still useful. 

Task. 4:•rv1aqagespo?tan.e?usovoJIJnteerswho may requestto support the public health agency's response, either through incorporatihgthemintothe response or by triaging 
th~m to other:Pdt~~ti~lvdlunfe?.er resourc~~:·•(seePg 137) · · . 

Build 
MRC Coordinator will develop written protocols for the tracking and handling of 
spontaneous volunteers, This may require developing a simulated exercise to test the 
effectiveness of the process along instituting a just in time training exercise. 

Ongoing during 
budget period 

The development of written 
protocols for the handling of 
spontaneous volunteers. 

· T~sits'i"C:o6rcii~at~sf~·te andJurisdictltilialre~ponse roles for federal publlc health staff deployed to the jurisdiction. (See Pg 137) ........ ·· .. · ...... • 

- -:~::.~::;"~----.\~ 

Plannillg: Re~C>~rce Elementl:.Vblu nteer 
d ep l~o/ihe nt•protaC:iiJs. · .. . 
(See pg 137) · · 

Pl~nni.ngResCJu~ce EI~rTient2:~~rpcess·.t.6hi~nage 
spont~rl'~fuus vcii~~Er=ers. (s~~~pg-"-' . · .... · • 

Build 

Build 

The MRC volunteer deployment protocol is 
written in the MRC- SOP. The E
Coordinator (computerized volunteer system) 
is used to help notify volunteers. Current 
practice will be reviewed and revised to 
ensure its usefolness in practice. 
MRC Coordinator will develop written 
protocols for the tracking and handling of 
spontaneous volunteers, This may require 
developing a simulated exercise to test the 
effectiveness of the process along instituting 
a just in time exercise. 

The MRC volunteer deployment 
protocol is written in the MRC- SOP. 

The development of written 
protocols for the handling of 
spontaneous volunteers. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: Natianal Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 

PHEP Capability #15: Volunteer Management Page 94 of96 WCHD CDC08-13 

97



Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 
ZtW 

MRC Coordinator will Coordinate the demobilization ofMRC volunteers based on evolving incident requirements or incident status. This includes 
coordination with the appropriate partner agencies to ensure provision of medical and mental/behavioral health supp01i needed for the volunteers' physical and 
mental well-being by the end ofBP2. --- $17,000 

Task}: Track (re~6rdor·abcume11t)\he de.mo.bilization of volunteers. ,.,,, '- - .. ,.- ' -- _ _,,. ___ ,_,. ___ --~!!'-, <;;-"·<{)'.-.; 

Sustain 

The MRC volunteer demobilization protocol is written in the JV!RC- SOP. The E
Coordinator (computerized volunteer system) will be used to document and record 
demobilized volunteers. The cmTent written process will be reviewed and revised to 
ensure its usefulness 

Task2: Assure co6rdinlltid.n ofb,utcprocesslng of volunteers. 
--· ._,_.,,_.- ,j,,-·, -- ,.,,_, ·-,"- "" ',,,., 

Sustain 

The out-processing or completion of a shift by the MRC volunteers is currently written in 
the MRC-SOP. The current process will be revised to ensure that coordination and 
collaboration with local health care organizations is included in the process by utilizing 
the "hea.lthcare requesting procedure" form data. 

Ongoing during 
budget period 

Ongoing during 
budget period 

The written MRC volunteer 
deployment protocol in the 
MRC-SOP. 

The revised written MRC -
SOP. 

Task 3: co.ordina. tewithjurisdictional authorities and p'artnergtoupsto Identify communityresources th.at can support volu11.teer post;deployment medical screening, stress, 
,, - ' ' ', _" .. ;- - ' - ' " - ' '' -' ' _- ',' - ," ' " : ',• - - - ' - '·-- - ' ;,! '' .__ ' ' - ' ·' - ;. '' 

and,We]l,iJeing•~:s,sessmeiit.and,:.Wh~n•ie@eete.d .. or in.dicated, referral.to•m.Eic:lical.iJnd.,menta.lfbehavi.oralj)i~althseryice.s. (See Pg;i38) ·· 

Sustain 

MRC Coordinator will revise the current written SOP to make sure in the coordination 
and participate with local healthcare organizations authorities that MRC volunteers are 
able to identify community resources that will support the volunteer post deployment 
screening process and medical screening, stress, and well-being assessments and when 
requested or indicated, have a process to refer volunteers to medical and 
mental/behavioral health services. 

Ongoing during 
budget period 

The revised written 
deployment process in the 
SOP. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for State and Local Planning", March 2011 

PHEP Capability #15: Volunteer Management Page 95 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

98



" 

Planning.Resburi:e Element i: Volu.nt.eer Release 
, Prcices·ses:. 
(SeeRg].39.jt···· ,. 

Attachment B: Scope of Work by Capability 

Sustain 

Sustain 

The out-processing or completion of a shift by the 
MRC volunteers is currently written in the MRC
SOP. The current process will be revised to 
ensure that coordination and collaboration with 
local health care organizations is included in the 
process by convening meetings with select 
groups. 

MRC Coordinator will revise the cunent written 
SOP to make sure in the coordination and 
pmiicipate with local healthcare organizations 
authorities that MRC volunteers are able to identify 
community resources that will support the 

volunteer post deployment screening process and 
medical screening, stress, and well-being 

assessments and when requested or indicated, have 

a process to refer volunteers to medical and 

mental/behavioral health services. 

The revised written MRC 
volunteer completion of shift or 
out processing protocol in the 
MRC-SOP. 

The revised written deployment 
process in the SOP. 

Note: The page #'s listed in this table correspond to CDC's "Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards far State and local Planning", March 2011 

PHEP Capability #15: Volunteer Management Page 96 of 96 WCHD CDCOS-13 

99



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES  

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: 9/26/13  

 
 

DATE:  September 19, 2013 
 
TO:  District Board of Health 
 
FROM: Eileen Stickney, Administrative Health Services Officer 
  Washoe County Health District  

(775) 328-2417, estickney@washoecounty.us 
 
SUBJECT:  Proposed Approval of Agreement Between the Washoe County Health 
District and Public Health Foundation in the amount of $63,900 to conduct part of a 
Fundamental Review of the Health District; and if approved, authorize the Chairman 
to execute the agreement. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Washoe County District Board of Health approve the proposed 
Agreement Between the Washoe County Health District and Public Health Foundation; and 
authorize the Chairman to execute the agreement. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The approval of this agreement supports the Washoe County Health District Administrative 
Health Services (AHS) Division’s mission to ensure administrative compliance for fiscal and 
operational policies as established by the District Board of Health and Board of County 
Commissioners.   
 
DBOH Strategic Goal #3:  
Secure and deploy resources for sustainable impact. 
 
AHS Strategic Goal #1:  
Ensure fiscal stability and good stewardship or resources. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Attached please find the contract with the Public Health Foundation to engage its services 
(including Dr. Beitsch) through professional services contracts to conduct a fundamental 
review of the Washoe County Health District.   
 
 

1

wflores
Typewritten Text
DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.C.8



September 19, 2013 
District Board of Health 
Page 2 of2 

PREVIOUS ACTION 

At the May 23, 2013 Washoe County District Board of Health meeting, the Board 
authorized the Interim District Health Officer to expend up to $80,000 for review and analysis 
of the Health District. 

At the July 25, 2013 Washoe County District Board of Health meeting, the Board directed 
the Interim District Health Officer to continue seeking possible consultants for the review and 
bring a recommendation to the Board for approval. 

At the August 22, 2013 Washoe County District Board of Health meeting, the Board directed 
the Interim District Health Officer to proceed with a Fundamental Review that engages the 
professional services of Mr. Stefanak and those of the Public Health Foundation (including 
Dr. Beitsch) through professional services contracts. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There will be a fiscal impact to the Health Fund in the amount of $63,900 accounted for in 
170200-710100. 

POSSIBLE MOTION 

Move to approve staff recommendation to approve the proposed Agreement Between the 
Washoe County Health District and Public Health Foundation; and authorize the Chairman 
to execute the agreement. 

Attachment 

2



AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is made and entered into between the WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH 
DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as "District," and Public Health Foundation, hereinafter 
referred to as "Consultant". 

Whereas, The District has agreed to have a fundamental review at the reconunendation of the 
Board ofCotmty Commissioners of Washoe County to further substantiate the general fund 
dollars received; and 

Whereas, Consultant is highly qualified to provide a thorough review of public health practices 
and make appropriate recommendations, 

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the parties agree as 
follows: 

Consultant agrees to: 
1. Review and assess District structure, legal, operations, oversight, and management of 

performance utilizing a framework composed of the Public Health Accreditation Board 
(PHAB) domains, standards, and measures and the "Minimum Package of Public Health 
Services" developed by the State of Ohio as the benchmarks for purposes of comparison. T11e 
District review will include a review of the governance structure of the District. The 
assessment will focus on exploring efficiency, effectiveness, and opportunities for District 
continuous improvement based on data provided by District and our experience in the field. 
The review will include an assessment of programs and activities that are mandated by statute 
of by the Interlocal agreement, whether these programs exceed mandated requirements, and 
whether program services are duplicated or can be delivered by other organizations in the 
community. T11e assessment will also include recommendations as appropriate regarding 
outsourcing of District programs or services versus delivery using personnel employed at 
District. 

2. Conduct the fundamental assessment in three phases, with on-site presence during each 
phase. The PHF assessment team will be led by Dr. Leslie Beitsch and include Dr. John W. 
Moran and Carol Moehrle; staff members in the PHF Performance Management and Quality 
Improvement division will be utilized as appropriate 

3. In Phase 1 the PHF assessment team will visit District, the District Board of Health, senior 
managers in the District, and key stakeholders, briefing them on the assessment process and 
collect initial data to support the structural, legal, operational, oversight, and performance 
assessment. This visit is planned for October 17'0 and l S'h, 2013 

4. Phase 2 begins with District conducting a self-assessment utilizing the PHAB accreditation 
self-assessment tools. It is recommended that this self-assessment not require collection of 
documentary evidence, but still be done with sufficient specificity to identify key programs in 
conformance with standards/measures. Following completion of the self-assessment, and 
analysis of data by PHF, the PHF assessment team will conduct its second on-site visit to 
validate the self-assessment findings through further collection of data. This visit is planned 
for November 12-15, 2013. 

1 33



5. During Phase 3 all data are analyzed and a report focused on findings and actionable 
recommendations will be prepared. The report will address structure, legal, operations, 
oversight, and managing of performance through the Jens of efficiency, effectiveness, and 
opportunities for organizational continuous improvement. Phase 3 culminates with an on-site 
presentation of PHF assessment team findings and recommendations to the Board ofHealth 
and Washoe Senior managers. A draft report will be provided to District no later than January 
31, 2014 (assuming the fundamental assessment commences no later than October I, 2013 
under an approved contract). This draft report will integrate the work of the PHF team and 
financial services reviews. The final report will be provided to District no later than February 
20, 2013 with a presentation to the District Board ofHealth on February 27, 2013. The 
assessment team will provide additional information as may be requested by the Board 
during the presentation. 

6. Although the assessment is presented as three distinct phases for purposes of deliverables and 
invoices, the assessment process will be ongoing and iterative. It is dependent upon District 
for data and information to be provided throughout the assessment. 

7. Consultant shall comply with all federal, state and local laws required to carry out the 
services to be performed under this agreement. 

8. Consultant hereby assigns to the District all rights to all products, reports, documents, 
photographs, videos, data and drawings produced by Consultant as a result of its services to 
the District during the terms of this Agreement. 

The District agrees to: 
1. Pay Public Health Foundation $63,900 for the above agreed to scope of work. Contract 

total to be paid in installments of$15,975 (25%) as follows: First installment to be paid 
upon execution of this agreement. Second installment to be paid upon completion of 
Phase 1 above. Third installment to be paid upon completion of Phase 2. Final 
instalhnent to be paid upon completion of Phase 3 and presentation to District Board of 
Health. 

2. Provide work and meeting space during site visits. 
3. Reserve the right to withhold payment if it is determined that the services described 

herein have not been provided. 
4. Provide all necessary data and information required by consultant throughout the 

assessment. 

HIPAA: The parties aclmowledge that they are subject to the provisions of the Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act and the regulations promulgated there under (hereinafter 
"HIP AA"), pertaining to the maintenance, handling, retention, confidentiality and availability of 
records and data containing protected health information, as that tem1 is defined by 45 C.F.R. § 
164.501. It is agreed that in addition to maintaining such records and data in accordance with 
HIP AA and any more restrictive provision of state law, including but not limited to Chapters 
441A of the Nevada Revised Statutes and the Nevada Administrative Code, the parties will 
require that any employee, contractor or agent who may have access to the records and data 
provide comparable protections to those provided by the parties. Consultant agrees to abide by 
the terms of the Business Associate Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated by 
reference. 

2 4



Indemnification and Hold Harmless: Consultant shall save, hold harmless, and indemnify the 
District, its ofiicers, agents and employees, from and against all claims, causes of action, 
liabilities, expenses and costs, including reasonable attorneys' fees, for injury or death of any 
person or damage to property arising out of, or connected with, work performed under this 
Agreement which is the result of any acts or omissions, whether negligent or otherwise, of 
Consultant, its officers, agents, subcontractors or employees. 

Term: The term of this Agreement is from October l, 2013 through March 14, 2014. 

Termination: This Agreement and any amendments may be terminated by either pmiy at any 
time, without cause or penalty upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other party. Only 
services satisfactorily performed up to the date of receipt of notice shall be compensated by the 
District and such compensation shall be pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

Severability: The provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed severable and if any portion 
shall be held invalid, illegal or unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of the Agreement 
shall be in effect and binding upon the parties. 

Waiver of Provision: Any waiver of any terms or conditions hereof must be in writing m1d 
signed by the parties hereto. A waiver of m1y of the tenns or conditions hereof shall not be 
construed as a waiver of any other terms or conditions hereof. 

Amendments: This Agreement may be amended at any time by mutual agreement of the parties 
without additional consideration, provided that before any amendment shall be operative or valid 
it shall be reduced to writing and signed by the parties. 

Entire Agreement: This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties and shall 
be binding upon the parties and no other agreements, oral or written, have been entered into with 
respect to the subject of this Agreement. 

Notices: Official notices required under this Agreement shall be sent to the parties by ce1iified 
or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid in the United States Postal Service to 
the addresses set forth below, or to such other addresses as the parties may designate in writing 
from time to time by notice given in accordance with the provisions of this section. 

Notices to Consultant shall be addressed to: 
Margie Beaudry 

Public Health Foundation 
1300 L Street, NW Suite 800 

Washington, DC 20005 

Notices to the District shall be addressed to: 
Kevin Dick 

Washoe Cmmty Health District 
PO Box 11130 

Reno, NV 89520 

3 
55



Governing Law: This agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Nevada. Any 
action brought pursuant to this action shall be brought in Washoe County, Nevada. 

Witness whereof, the parties hereto or a representative of either have set their hands and 
subscribed their signatures as of the date and year indicated. 

WASH OE COUNTY DISTIRCT BOARD OF HEALTH 

Date: ------
Matt Smith, Chairman 

PUBLIC HEALTH FOUNDATION 

By: ___________________ Date: _____ _ 
Sue Madden, COO/CFO 

4 6



Exhibit A 

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT (HIPAA) 
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 
WASHOE COUNTY HEAL TH DISTRICT 

Hereinafter referred to as "Covered Entity" 

and 

Public Health Foundation 
Hereinafter referred to as "Business Associate" 

This agreement is entered into between Covered Entity and Business Associate, effective upon 
signature. 

Business Associate acl<nowledqes and agrees that all protected health information that is created 
or received by Covered Entity and disclosed or made available in any form, including paper 
record, oral communication, audio recording, and electronic medium by Covered Entity or its 
operating units to Business Associate on Covered Entity's behalf shall be subject to this 
agreement. 

OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF the BUSINESS ASSOCIATE 

1. Business Associate agrees to not use or disclose Protected Health Information other than 
as permitted by this Agreement or as Required by Law. 

2. Business Associate agrees to use appropriate safeguards to prevent use or disclosure of 
the Protected Health Information other than as provided by this Agreement. 

3. Business Associate agrees to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is 
known to Business Associate of a use or disclosure of Protected Health Information by 
Business Associate in violation of the requirements of this Agreement. 

4. Business Associate agrees to report to Covered Entity any use or disclosure of the 
Protected Health Information not provided for by this Agreement of which it becomes 
aware. 

5. Business Associate agrees to ensure that any agent, including a subcontractor, to whom 
it provides Protected Health Information received from, or created or received by 
Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity agrees to the same restrictions and 
conditions that apply through this Agreement to Business Associate with respect to such 
information. 

6. Business Associate agrees to provide access, at the request of the Covered Entity, and 
in the time and manner as set forth in the contract's Inspection and Audit provisions, to 
Protected Health Information in a Designated Record Set, to Covered Entity or, as 
directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 
CFR 164.524. 

7. Business Associate agrees to make any amendments to Protected Health Information in 
a Designated Record Set that the Covered Entity directs or agrees to pursuant to 45 CFR 
164.526 at the request of Covered Entity or an Individual, and in the time and manner as 
mutually agreed between the parties. 

8. Business Associate agrees to mal<e internal practices, books, and records, including 
policies and procedures and Protected Health Information, relating to the use and 
disclosure of Protected Health Information received from, or created or received by 
Business Associate on behalf of, Covered Entity, available to the Covered Entity, or the 
Secretary, in a time and manner as set forth in the contract's Inspections and Audit 

77



provisions or designated by the Secretary, for the purpose of the Secretary determining 
Covered Entity's compliance with the Privacy Rule. 

9. Business Associate agrees to document such disclosures of Protected Health Information 
and information related to such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to 
respond to a request by an Individual in accordance with 45 CFR 164.528. 

10. Business Associate agrees to provide to Covered Entity or an Individual, in time and 
manner as set forth in the contract's Inspection and Audit provisions, information 
collected in accordance with the previous section of this Agreement, to permit Covered 
Entity to respond to a request by an Individual for an accounting of disclosures of 
Protected Health Information in accordance with 45 CFR 164.528. 

PERMIITED USE AND DISCLOSURES BY BUSINESS ASSOCIATE 

General Use and Disclosure Provisions (1. and 2. are alternative approaches) 

1. Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business Associate may use or disclose 
Protected Health Information to perform functions, activities, or services for, or on behalf 
of, Covered Entity as specified in the contract, provided that such use or disclosure would 
not violate the Privacy Rule if done by Covered Entity or the minimum necessary policies 
and procedures of the Covered Entity. 

2. Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business Associate may use Protected 
Health Information for the proper management and administration of Business Associate 
or to carry out the legal responsibilities of the Business Associate. 

3. Except as otherwise limited by this Agreement, Business Associate may disclose 
Protected Health Information for the proper management and administration of Business 
Associate, provided that disclosures are: 

a. Required by Law, or 
b. Business Associate obtains reasonable assurances from the person to whom 

the information is disclosed that it will remain confidential and used or further 
disclosed only as Required by Law or for the purpose for which it was 
disclosed to the person, and 

c. The person notifies Business Associate of any instances of which it is aware 
in which the confidentiality of the information has been breached. 

4. Except as otherwise limited by this Agreement, Business Associate may use Protected 
Health Information to provide Data Aggregation services for Covered Entity as permitted 
by 45 CFR 164.504(e)(2)(i)(B). 

5. Business Associate may use Protected Health Information to report violations of law to 
appropriate Federal and State authorities, consistent with 45 CFR 164.502U)(1 ). 

OBLIGATIONS OF COVERED ENTITY 

1. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any limitations in its Notice of Privacy 
Practices in accordance with 45 CFR 164.520, to the extent that such limitation may 
affect (Business Associate's) use or disclosure of Protected Health Information. 

2. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of, 
permission by an Individual to use or disclose Protected Health Information, to the extent 
that such changes may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of Protected Health 
Information. 

3. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any restriction to the use or disclosure 
of Protected Health Information that (Covered Entity) has agreed to in accordance with 
45 CFR 164.522, to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use 
or disclosure of Protected Health lnfonmation. 

2 8



PERMISSABLE REQUESTS BY COVERED ENTITY 

Except in the event of lawful data aggregation or management and administrative activities, 
Covered Entity shall not request Business Associate to use or disclose Protected Health 
Information in any manner that would not be permissible under the Privacy Rule if done by 
Covered Entity. 

TERM AND TERMINATION 

1. TERM: 
The Tenm of the Agreement shall extend beyond the termination of the contract and shall 
terminate when all of the Protected Health Information provided by Covered Entity to 
Business Associate, or created and received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered 
Entity, is destroyed or returned to Covered Entity, or, if it is infeasible to return or destroy 
Protected Health Information, protections are extended to such information, in 
accordance with the termination. 

2. EFFECT OF TERMINATION 
a. Except as provided in paragraph (b.) of this section, upon termination of this 

Agreement, for any reason, Business Associate shall return or destroy all 
Protected Health Information received from (Covered Entity), or created or 
received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity. This provision 
shall apply to Protected Health Information that is in the possession of· 
subcontractors or agents of Business Associate. Business Associate shall 
retain no copies of the Protected Health Information. 

b. In the event that Business Associate determines that returning or destroying 
the Protected Health Information is infeasible, Business Associate shall 
provide to (Covered Entity) notification of the conditions that mal<e return or 
destruction infeasible. 

Upon a mutual determination that return or destruction of Protected Health 
Information is infeasible, Business Associate shall extend the protections of 
this Agreement to such Protected Health Information and limit further uses 
and disclosures of such Protected Health Information to those purposes that 
make return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate 
maintains such Protected Health Information. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

1. AMENDMENT: The parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this 
Agreement from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the 
requirements of the Privacy Rule and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability 
Act of 1996, Public Law No 104-191. 

2. SURVIVAL: The respective rights and obligations of Business Associate under EFFECT 
OF TERMINATION of this Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

3. INTERPRETATION: Any ambiguity in this Agreement shall be resolved to permit 
Covered Entity to comply with the Privacy Rule. 

3 99



COVERED ENTITY 

Washoe County Health District 
1001 E. Ninth Street 
Reno, NV 89512 

(Authorized Signature) 

Matt Smith 
(Print Name) 

Chairman, WCDBOH 

(Print Title) 

Date 

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE 

Public Health Foundation 
1300 L Street, NW, Suite 800 
Washington DC 20005 

(Authorized Signature) 

(Print Name) 

(Print Title) 

Date 

4 
10



wflores
Typewritten Text
DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 10



























































































Washoe County Health District 
Public Health 

TO: District Board of Health Members 

FROM: Randall Todd, DrPH 
Director, Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness 

DATE: September 18, 2013 

SUBJECT: Emergency Medical Services Working Group Update 

The EMS Working Group met on September 6, 2013. Issues discussed at the meeting 
included: 

• Data - Data definitions have been received from Sparks Fire. Truckee Meadows 
Fire submitted their data definitions just a few days prior to the September 6 
meeting. Reno Fire definitions are still pending. REMSA data a call receive 
times for Priorities 2 and 3 were still pending as of the meeting date but have 
subsequently been received. There are some outstanding issues with 911 
dispatch data that appear to be possibly incomplete. All parties agreed to work 
on getting the information to the Health District for analysis. Once the definitions 
are complete it is planned to assess 2 additional months of data so that analysis 
can be based on a full quarter. 

• Emergency Medical Dispatch - Discussion continued on this topic and included 
some debate on whether or not utilization of field-experienced dispatchers as 
utilized by REMSA is a requirement and, if not, if it represents a best practice. 
This remains an area of disagreement. 

,,-? 

~ / /?<_/~ // 
;;:{,,;;:: 1-2./4:/::'( ,~ / "''= '-cf 

Randall L. Todd, DrPH 
Director, Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness 

wflores
Typewritten Text
DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 11



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER 

 
 
 
 
 
TO:  District Board of Health Members 
 
FROM: Kevin Dick 
  Interim District Health Officer  
 
DATE:  September 26, 2013  
 
SUBJECT: REMSA Franchise Agreement Negotiations Extension Request 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
SUMMARY: 
The elected bodies of the City of Sparks, the City of Reno, and the Washoe County Board of 
County Commissioners and appointed body of the District Board of Health directed their 
respective Managers to create an Emergency Medical Services Working Group (EMS-WG) 
for the purposes of reviewing and implementing the recommendations of the Emergency 
Medical Services System Analysis Final Report dated August 2012 by the TriData Division 
of the System Planning Corporation (TriData Report). 
 
The TriData Report included 38 recommendations for the improvement in the Emergency 
Medical Services (EMS) delivery system for the Washoe County region including the 
updating of the current Franchise Agreement with the regional ambulance provider, the 
Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority (REMSA). 
 
At the concurrent meeting held on June 10, 2013, the elected and appointed officials of the 
four jurisdictions directed their respective managers to negotiate a “renewed” Franchise 
Agreement with REMSA within 120 days. The 120 days is scheduled to expire on October 
2, 2013. The motion before the Washoe County District Board of Health (DBOH), per the 
meeting minutes, read as follows: 
 

“Chair Smith moved, seconded by Council Member Ratti, to direct the EMS 
Working Group to open negotiations with REMSA on an updated agreement 
within 120 days.     
 
MOTION CARRIED 
Washoe County Board of Health 
 
The motion was also approved by the Board of County Commissioners, Reno 
City Council, and Sparks City Council.” 

 
The 120 days is scheduled to expire on October 2, 2013.  
 

1

wflores
Typewritten Text
DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 12



September 26, 2013 
REMSA Franchise Agreement Extension Request 
Page 2 of 6 
 
The EMS-WG has reached consensus on a large number of the TriData Report 
recommendations. Several recommendations are moving forward through the actions in 
organized meetings between the local jurisdictions Managers and REMSA. 
 
A subcommittee assigned by the EMS-WG Managers has determined a working outline of 
agreement issues to serve as a scope of work for developing a comprehensive updating of 
the current agreement between the City of Reno, the City of Sparks, Washoe County, and 
the Washoe County District Board of Health and REMSA. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Washoe County Board of County Commissioners commissioned the TriData Division of 
the Systems Planning Corporation (TriData) to review and provide recommendations on the 
efficiency and effectiveness of the regional Emergency Medical Services (EMS). The study 
culminated with TriData submitting to Washoe County, the City of Reno, the City of Sparks, 
and the Washoe County District Board of Health the Emergency Medical Services Systems 
Analysis – Final Report dated August 2012 (TriData Report).  
 
The Executive Summary of the TriData Report states: 

 
“Overall, Washoe County EMS providers at all levels provide timely, high quality 

response in a professional manner. It is easy to notice the dedication of each 
participant within the system. The combination of fire first response, with either 
commercial or fire-based EMS transportation is an appropriate method to provide 
service. We note throughout the report that most challenges stem from the lack of 
EMS oversight, with the system operating on a fragmented basis. The lack of 
system transparency, distrust between system participants, and failure to take 
advantage of technologies that could solidify system cohesiveness are at the root 
of most administrative, operational, and financial issues.”    

Source: TriData Final Report-August 2012, page 1. 
 
The TriData Report addresses the REMSA Franchise Agreement as follows: 

 
“Evaluation of REMSA Franchise Agreement  

We are very concerned about the status of the REMSA Franchise 
Agreement. Since 1990, most of the negotiated changes have clearly favored 
REMSA, limiting the DBOH oversight authority. The EMS system is supposed 
to resemble a PUM with an independent oversight organization (REMSA), and 
an independent contractor (RASI). In practice, it is difficult to tell the difference 
between organizations, with REMSA functioning as a private EMS contractor.  

The agreement allows for either a contract rebid or a market share analysis 
to determine whether the current contractor is retained. Regardless, no more 
than seven years should go by without a competitive provider selection 
process. Several metrics identified by the agreement does not provide enough 
information to fully evaluate the performance of the contractor. Also, the 
required $200,000 performance bond is inadequate to protect the citizens from 
system failure. The minimum performance bond or irrevocable line of credit 
should be $1,000,000.  

22



September 26, 2013 
REMSA Franchise Agreement Extension Request 
Page 3 of 6 
 

Using arbitration to decide EMS transport fees is an unnecessary surrender 
of DBOH authority. The oversight agency should have complete discretion of 
granting a fee increase. If alternative dispute resolution is needed, it should be 
limited to mediation.  

Sections 30 and 31 are of concern. Issues concerning successor financial 
liability cannot be directly answered because there are many possible 
succession models. EMS services are encouraged to seek their local legal 
counsel for guidance. There is a major issue concerning the administrative 
acknowledgement of DBOH-REMSA modification agreements. We offer 
suggestions to handle these agreement gaps.  

The DBOH-franchisee agreement is in need of a complete overhaul. There 
must be appropriate checks and balances that assure a fair process that ensures 
oversight while providing an environment for good patient care in a business 
friendly environment.”   

Source: TriData Final Report-August 2012, pages 4-5. 
 
The TriData report goes on to state, “Washoe County now has the time, place, and 
opportunity to make significant changes to the EMS system that will facilitate future growth 
and success.  The current providers are dedicated to providing excellent patient care in a 
professional manner.  Strengthening the EMS system can occur by empowering an 
oversight agency with the authority to oversee all aspects of EMS.  Redesign of the EMS 
franchise agreement is necessary to shift the balance of power to the oversight agency.” 
 
The TriData Report included 38 recommendations for the improvement of Emergency 
Medical Services (EMS) delivery system for the Washoe County region including the 
updating of the current Franchise Agreement with the regional ambulance provider, the 
Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority (REMSA). The status of the 38 
recommendations was provided in detail at the Concurrent Meeting on June 10, 2013. 
 
At the concurrent meeting held on June 10, 2013, the elected and appointed officials of the 
four jurisdictions directed the EMS Working Group to open negotiations with REMSA on an 
updated agreement within 120 days (see the motion above). The 120 days is scheduled to 
expire on October 2, 2013.  
 
The EMS-WG has reached consensus on a large number of the TriData Report 
recommendations. Several recommendations are moving forward in organized meetings 
between the local jurisdictions Managers and REMSA. 
 
The 15 outstanding recommendations in need of negotiation of the TriData Report 
recommendations at the June 10, 2013 Concurrent Meeting remains as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3



September 26, 2013 
REMSA Franchise Agreement Extension Request 
Page 4 of 6 
 
 
TABLE 1 – Outstanding TriData Report Recommendations 
Recommendation 

Number and 
Report Page No. 

TriData Report Recommendation 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
TriData #17 
(Page 122) 

 

Section 1 of the Franchise Agreement should be redesigned to prohibit 
any REMSA board appointee or their employer organization from being 
associated with RASI or any successor franchisees.  All consumer board 
members should be directly appointed by the DBOH. 

TriData #18 
(Page 123) 

 

If REMSA continues to use market analysis, it should include intra-model 
and extra-model comparisons.  No more than seven years should elapse 
without conducting a full competitive bid. 

TriData #19 
(Page 124) 

Require REMSA or the contracted agency to post a surety bond, or 
secure an irrevocable line of credit for at least $1,000,000.  The franchise 
agreement should also include a clause that upon declaration of default 
by the District Health Officer or DBOH, either REMSA or ay service 
contractor cannot bring legal action to delay the DBOH’s access to the 
funds. 

TriData #20 
(Page 124) 

The eight minute response time requirement should be required for all 
calls classified by the PSAP as Charlie, Delta, or Echo (Priority 1 or 2). 

TriData #23 
(Page 126) 

Determine ambulance response time fines based on both the act of 
lateness and degree of lateness.  Assess a $100 penalty for being late 
and an additional $15.28 (as per CPI changes) per minute to a maximum 
of $250. 

TriData #24 
(Page 126) 

Funds collected for EMS contract performance standard violations should 
be used to offset EMS oversight costs incurred by the Washoe County 
DBOH. 
 

TriData #26 
(Page 127) 

Require REMSA to submit their annual report to the DBOH within 90 
days of the fiscal year end. 
 

TriData #28 
(Page 129) 

Restructure REMSA to assure greater separation of the public utility 
oversight group (REMSA) and the contractor (RASI). 
 

TriData #31 
(Page 133) 

The new Washoe County EMS agency should enter into an agreement 
with REMSA for the provision of county-wide EMS Education and 
Training; Granting of function privileges would remain under control of the 
local agency and its medical director.  Local agencies could opt out of or 
augment REMSA provided education and training.  Regulatory oversight 
of the education and training processes would be the responsibility of the 
Washoe County EMS Manager and EMS Medical Director.  REMSA 
could provide these services cost-free in exchange for EMS first 
responder services being provided by Cities and Fire District. 
 

TriData #36 
(Page 137) 

Municipal first responders should be reimbursed by REMSA for providing 
first responder services. 
 

44



September 26, 2013 
REMSA Franchise Agreement Extension Request 
Page 5 of 6 
 

Recommendation 
Number and 

Report Page No. 
TriData Report Recommendation 

DISPATCH 
TriData #13 
(Page 117) 

Combine 911/dispatch centers into one central county-wide resource so 
that all data is collected in one central location with singular methodology.  
Alternatively, develop a virtual consolidation between dispatch centers 
using a universal CAD or type of CAD for the County. 
 

TriData #16 
(Page 118) 

Place all EMS Communications on the 800 MHz radio system. 
 
 

MEDICAL OVERSIGHT 
TriData #29 
(Page 130) 

The County Commissioners should authorize the District Board of Health 
(or other lead agency) to create a countywide EMS oversight authority.  
The District Health Officer (or designated department head) would be 
responsible for day-to-day oversight.  The DHO would need a staff to 
accomplish this oversight. 

TriData #30 
(Page 131) 

The chosen lead agency should appoint an EMS Staff that includes: an 
EMS Manager, EMS Medical Director, EMS Information Specialist, EMS 
Quality Manager, and EMS Education and Training Manager. 

OTHER 
TriData #37 
(Page 137) 

The Reno Fire Department, IAFF, and the volunteer service should work 
out any issues assure that the closest, qualified unit will be sent to a 
medical emergency. 

 
 
ANALYSIS: 
Summary of the EMS-WG’s current progress on the implementation of the 38 
recommendations from the TriData Report was presented to the Concurrent Meeting via the 
Executive Summary dated June 30, 2013. The outstanding 15 recommendation in need of 
further negotiation prior to implementation are shown above in Table 1. 
 
While the issues outstanding prior to the June 10th Concurrent Meeting has been actively 
discussed by the EMS-WG on a frequent basis with all parties present, the specific 
negotiation points being developed by the Managers are still a work-in-progress due the 
complexity of the current REMSA Franchise Agreement; the current regional EMS 
environment; patient needs; and the numerous topics needing full discussion to renew and 
modernize the agreement and implement the recommendations in the TriData Report. 
 
To meet the policy requirement from the action taken by the DBOH in the June 10, 2013 
motion on this topic (see above), a subcommittee assigned by the EMS-WG Managers has 
determined a working outline on the franchise agreement’s details to serve as a scope of 
work for developing a comprehensive renewal of the current agreement between the 
Washoe County District Board of Health and REMSA, which is acceptable to the City of 
Reno, the City of Sparks, and Washoe County. 
 

5



September 26, 2013 
REMSA Franchise Agreement Extension Request 
Page 6 of6 

The scope of work being completed to renew the current agreement between the local 
jurisdictions and REMSA, taking into consideration the outstanding issues in Table 1 above 
and the other TriData recommendations, includes but is not limited to the following: 

• Definitions 
• Obligations of the parties to the agreement 
• Scope of Services 
• Fees, Rates, and Procedures 
• Programs and Services 
• Surety, Indemnity, Liability, 
• Transfer, Assignment, and Subcontracting 
• Default and change in law 

The Managers are finalizing their respective thoughts on the scope of work and would 
submit meeting the October 2, 2013 deadline provided by the elected and appointed officials 
is not feasible due to the complexity of the numerous outstanding issues to bring closure to 
a renewed agreement. An extension of time is requested to move from an outdated and 
somewhat generalized franchise agreement to one that is modernized and specific in its 
requirements and defined responsibilities. This is necessary in order to provide greater 
transparency and the ability to manage overall EMS system performance in conjunction with 
the other EMS provider agencies and provide the meaningful oversight proposed by the 
T riData report. 

Staff is recommending an extension of 120 days from October 3, 2013 through January 31, 
2014 to bring the proper elements to the table for negotiation with REMSA. 

ALTERNATIVES: 

1. The DBOH may choose to accept the recommendations of staff on the renewing 
of an Emergency Medical Services agreement with REMSA by extending the 
negotiation period for 120 days to January 31, 2014. 

2. The DBOH may choose not to accept the recommendations of staff on the 
renewing of an Emergency Medical Services agreement with REMSA by 
extending the negotiation period for 120 days to January 31, 2014, and provide 
other direction to the Interim District Health Officer. 

POSSIBLE MOTION: 
Move to authorize the Interim District Health Officer to extend the negotiation period for 120 
days for the purpose of renewing an agreement with REMSA for Emergency Medical 
Services. 

kevin Dick 
Interim District Health Officer 

6

wflores
Rectangle



DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13  

Washoe County Health District 
 
 

 
September 13, 2013 
 
To:  Members District Board of Health 
 
From:  Eileen Stickney 
 
Subject: Health Fund Revenue and Expenditure Report for August 2013 

  
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the District Board of Health accept the attached report of revenues and 
expenditures for the Health Fund for August 2013 of fiscal year 14. 
 
Background 
The attached reports are for the accounting period 2/14 and the percentages should approximate 16% 
of the year.  The total revenues and expenditures for the current year (FY14) compared to last year 
(FY13) are as follows:  
 
August 2013 FY14 – REV FY13 – REV FY14 – EXP FY13 – EXP 
GFTransfer  
Overhead 

  $483,005.66 
17% 

 

AHS $82,933.66 
7% 

$87,903.22 
8% 

399,236.63 
15% 

$400,396.60 
15% 

AQM $246,899.00 
11% 

$216,943.25 
10% 

331,952.40 
13% 

$339,014.72 
12% 

CCHS $111,223.14 
5% 

$37,852.54 
2% 

$650,177.78 
14% 

$751,658.59 
15% 

EHS $262,025.61 
13% 

$226,004.55 
13% 

$916,195.16 
16% 

$1,033,763.33 
18% 

EPHP $90,389.40 
5% 

$172,786.05 
9% 

$312,120.61 
15% 

$401,273.31 
17% 

Adjustments     
TOTAL $793,470.81 

8% 
$741,489.61 

8% 
$3,092,688.24 

15% 
$2,926,106.55 

14% 
 
The Environmental Oversight Account for August 2013 is $108,314.13. 
 
I would be happy to answer any questions of the Board during the meeting or you may contact me 
directly at 328-2417.  Thank you. 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Administrative Health Services Officer 
 
Enclosure 

wflores
Stamp



Washoe County Health District
REVENUE

Pds 1-2, FY 14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    422503  Environmental Permits 63,177.00- 9,798.00- 53,379.00- 16 51,500.00- 8,418.00- 43,082.00- 16
    422504  Pool Permits 74,690.00- 3,624.00- 71,066.00- 5 68,000.00- 3,576.00- 64,424.00- 5
    422505  RV Permits 13,306.00- 1,938.00- 11,368.00- 15 10,500.00- 1,442.00- 9,058.00- 14
    422507  Food Service Permits 492,181.00- 76,168.00- 416,013.00- 15 369,000.00- 61,595.00- 307,405.00- 17
    422508  Wat Well Const Perm 23,567.00- 8,302.00- 15,265.00- 35 20,000.00- 7,596.00- 12,404.00- 38
    422509  Water Company Permits 3,200.00- 594.00- 2,606.00- 19 2,500.00- 261.00- 2,239.00- 10
    422510  Air Pollution Permits 584,012.00- 98,271.00- 485,741.00- 17 448,037.00- 73,151.25- 374,885.75- 16
    422511  ISDS Permits 66,522.00- 18,893.00- 47,629.00- 28 49,000.00- 7,810.00- 41,190.00- 16
    422513  Special Event Permits 99,623.00- 32,360.00- 67,263.00- 32 79,000.00- 22,526.00- 56,474.00- 29
    422514  Initial Applic Fee 35,226.00- 5,096.00- 30,130.00- 14 27,000.00- 4,678.00- 22,322.00- 17
*   Licenses and Permits 1,455,504.00- 255,044.00- 1,200,460.00- 18 1,124,537.00- 191,053.25- 933,483.75- 17
    431100  Federal Grants 5,174,744.05- 166,399.75- 5,008,344.30- 3 5,860,619.51- 172,462.75- 5,688,156.76- 3
    431105  Federal Grants - Indirect 243,178.41- 5,514.47- 237,663.94- 2 125,376.00- 2,033.52- 123,342.48- 2
    432100  State Grants 72,652.00-  72,652.00-  281,857.00-  281,857.00-  
    432310  Tire Fee NRS 444A.090 468,548.00- 63,664.65- 404,883.35- 14 418,766.00- 66,093.55- 352,672.45- 16
    432311  Pol Ctrl 455B.830 300,000.00- 78,739.00- 221,261.00- 26 300,000.00- 79,864.00- 220,136.00- 27
*   Intergovernmental 6,259,122.46- 314,317.87- 5,944,804.59- 5 6,986,618.51- 320,453.82- 6,666,164.69- 5
    460162  Services to Other Agencies         
    460500  Other Immunizations 89,000.00- 11,054.07- 77,945.93- 12 89,000.00- 15,804.00- 73,196.00- 18
    460501  Medicaid Clinical Services 8,200.00- 334.25- 7,865.75- 4 36,200.00- 44.46 36,244.46- 0-
    460503  Childhood Immunizations 20,000.00- 3,388.50- 16,611.50- 17 30,000.00- 4,610.00- 25,390.00- 15
    460508  Tuberculosis 4,100.00- 678.32- 3,421.68- 17 4,100.00- 994.57- 3,105.43- 24
    460509  Water Quality         
    460510  IT Overlay 35,344.00- 7,555.00- 27,789.00- 21 113,400.00- 20,990.00- 92,410.00- 19
    460511  Birth and Death Certificates 450,000.00- 79,859.00- 370,141.00- 18 400,000.00- 86,193.00- 313,807.00- 22
    460512  Duplication Service Fees  8.96- 8.96   3.00- 3.00  
    460513  Other Healt Service Charges     2,700.00- 1,374.00- 1,326.00- 51
    460514  Food Service Certification 19,984.00- 3,101.00- 16,883.00- 16 13,900.00- 2,551.00- 11,349.00- 18
    460515  Medicare Reimbursement         
    460516  Pgm Inc-3rd Prty Rec 1,750.00- 183.30- 1,566.70- 10 2,250.00-  2,250.00-  
    460517  Influenza Immunization 7,000.00- 36.50- 6,963.50- 1 7,000.00- 49.00- 6,951.00- 1
    460518  STD Fees 21,000.00- 3,434.18- 17,565.82- 16 23,000.00- 3,453.60- 19,546.40- 15
    460519  Outpatient Services         
    460520  Eng Serv Health 50,707.00- 7,507.00- 43,200.00- 15 44,000.00- 2,579.00- 41,421.00- 6
    460521  Plan Review - Pools & Spas 3,816.00- 1,052.00- 2,764.00- 28 2,500.00- 530.00- 1,970.00- 21
    460523  Plan Review - Food Services 18,765.00- 4,673.00- 14,092.00- 25 17,000.00- 3,519.00- 13,481.00- 21
    460524  Family Planning 27,000.00- 6,040.87- 20,959.13- 22 44,000.00- 5,314.78- 38,685.22- 12
    460525  Plan Review - Vector 36,021.00- 9,560.00- 26,461.00- 27 30,000.00- 5,192.00- 24,808.00- 17
    460526  Plan Review-Air Quality 65,272.00- 4,433.00- 60,839.00- 7 40,000.00- 6,254.00- 33,746.00- 16
    460527  NOE-AQM 113,934.00- 14,440.00- 99,494.00- 13 100,000.00- 17,095.00- 82,905.00- 17
    460528  NESHAP-AQM 135,389.00- 19,816.00- 115,573.00- 15 84,000.00- 14,808.00- 69,192.00- 18
    460529  Assessments-AQM 57,888.00- 9,424.00- 48,464.00- 16 41,000.00- 8,557.00- 32,443.00- 21
    460530  Inspector Registr-AQ 14,655.00- 2,113.00- 12,542.00- 14 2,600.00- 2,838.00- 238.00 109
    460531  Dust Plan-Air Quality 187,690.00- 19,663.00- 168,027.00- 10 95,000.00- 14,376.00- 80,624.00- 15
    460532  Plan Rvw Hotel/Motel      322.00- 322.00  
    460533  Quick Start         
    460534  Child Care Inspection 10,560.00- 1,968.00- 8,592.00- 19 8,500.00- 1,914.00- 6,586.00- 23
    460535  Pub Accomod Inspectn 22,540.00- 3,507.00- 19,033.00- 16 17,300.00- 2,949.00- 14,351.00- 17
    460570  Education Revenue 2,900.00- 480.00- 2,420.00- 17 5,700.00- 149.00- 5,551.00- 3

2



Washoe County Health District
REVENUE

Pds 1-2, FY 14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
*   Charges for Services 1,403,515.00- 214,309.95- 1,189,205.05- 15 1,253,150.00- 222,374.49- 1,030,775.51- 18
    484050  Donations Federal Pgm Income 37,550.00- 7,298.99- 30,251.01- 19 41,934.00- 7,580.16- 34,353.84- 18
    484195  Non-Govt'l Grants 55,988.00-  55,988.00-  114,750.00-  114,750.00-  
    484197  Non-Gov. Grants-Indirect         
    485100  Reimbursements         
    485110  Workers Comp Reimb         
    485121  Jury Reimbursements         
    485300  Other Misc Govt Rev 69,558.75- 2,500.00- 67,058.75- 4  27.89- 27.89  
*   Miscellaneous 163,096.75- 9,798.99- 153,297.76- 6 156,684.00- 7,608.05- 149,075.95- 5
**  Revenue 9,281,238.21- 793,470.81- 8,487,767.40- 9 9,520,989.51- 741,489.61- 8,779,499.90- 8

3



Washoe County Health District
EXPENSE

Pds 1-2, FY 14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    701110  Base Salaries 9,184,929.10 1,406,955.16 7,777,973.94 15 9,442,227.37 1,477,474.74 7,964,752.63 16
    701120  Part Time 565,939.67 67,666.19 498,273.48 12 529,904.89 88,317.04 441,587.85 17
    701130  Pooled Positions 430,542.66 71,928.88 358,613.78 17 522,298.86 77,874.84 444,424.02 15
    701140  Holiday Work 2,818.65 925.92 1,892.73 33 1,450.00 51.44 1,398.56 4
    701150  xcContractual Wages         
    701200  Incentive Longevity 165,403.00 524.59 164,878.41 0 158,292.00 494.22 157,797.78 0
    701300  Overtime 66,703.00 8,904.62 57,798.38 13 50,325.11 8,438.08 41,887.03 17
    701403  Shift Differential         
    701406  Standby Pay  100.00- 100.00      
    701408  Call Back 1,000.00  1,000.00  1,000.00 99.98 900.02 10
    701412  Salary Adjustment 230,084.60-  230,084.60-  52,986.54  52,986.54  
    701413  Vac Payoff/Sick Pay-Term  15,517.87 15,517.87-   25,885.01 25,885.01-  
    701415  Physical Fitness Pay         
    701417  Comp Time  3,012.29 3,012.29-   16,569.07 16,569.07-  
    701419  Comp Time - Transfer  1,848.58 1,848.58-      
    701500  Merit Awards         
*   Salaries and Wages 10,187,251.48 1,577,184.10 8,610,067.38 15 10,758,484.77 1,695,204.42 9,063,280.35 16
    705110  Group Insurance 1,418,327.59 225,927.51 1,192,400.08 16 1,449,189.10 226,687.55 1,222,501.55 16
    705210  Retirement 2,513,907.30 369,895.06 2,144,012.24 15 2,410,125.05 370,413.74 2,039,711.31 15
    705215  Retirement Calculation         
    705230  Medicare April 1986 136,185.22 21,219.55 114,965.67 16 139,962.64 22,598.66 117,363.98 16
    705320  Workmens Comp 66,138.03 11,023.02 55,115.01 17 64,187.41 10,655.44 53,531.97 17
    705330  Unemply Comp 15,179.22 3,794.85 11,384.37 25 15,533.45 15,533.45  100
    705360  Benefit Adjustment     10,656.00  10,656.00  
    705510  Severance Pay         
*   Employee Benefits 4,149,737.36 631,859.99 3,517,877.37 15 4,089,653.65 645,888.84 3,443,764.81 16
    710100  Professional Services 849,074.83 7,085.00 841,989.83 1 1,091,804.38 77,407.04 1,014,397.34 7
    710105  Medical Services 9,173.00 1,004.00 8,169.00 11 9,264.00 136.00 9,128.00 1
    710108  MD Consultants 46,950.00 3,200.00 43,750.00 7 46,900.00 5,412.50 41,487.50 12
    710110  Contracted/Temp Services 53,500.03 7,118.92 46,381.11 13 71,051.00 3,185.17 67,865.83 4
    710119  Subrecipient Payments         
    710200  Service Contract 103,593.00 19,013.59 84,579.41 18 105,243.00 26,079.86 79,163.14 25
    710205  Repairs and Maintenance 11,470.00 266.80 11,203.20 2 20,549.91 2,106.03 18,443.88 10
    710210  Software Maintenance 15,636.00 12,000.00 3,636.00 77 16,200.00 3,000.00 13,200.00 19
    710300  Operating Supplies 123,961.00 11,369.81 112,591.19 9 132,737.55 7,441.03 125,296.52 6
    710302  Small Tools & Allow 10,685.00 229.96 10,455.04 2 3,685.00  3,685.00  
    710308  Animal Supplies 1,600.00 582.75 1,017.25 36 2,000.00 132.78 1,867.22 7
    710312  Special Dept Expense         
    710319  Chemical Supplies 232,300.00 168,635.13 63,664.87 73 231,950.00 231,816.20 133.80 100
    710325  Signs and Markers         
    710334  Copy Machine Expense 27,247.00 3,407.39 23,839.61 13 28,274.89 3,489.50 24,785.39 12
    710350  Office Supplies 39,673.50 2,554.15 37,119.35 6 44,171.01 5,060.05 39,110.96 11
    710355  Books and Subscriptions 7,594.00 1,339.93 6,254.07 18 8,413.00 582.07 7,830.93 7
    710360  Postage 21,830.00 2,686.39 19,143.61 12 21,954.00 3,078.61 18,875.39 14
    710361  Express and Courier 685.00 47.88 637.12 7 610.75 205.52 405.23 34
    710391  Fuel & Lube 100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00  
    710400  Payments to Other Agencies         
    710412  Do Not Use         
    710500  Other Expense 23,931.96 1,582.35 22,349.61 7 45,973.51 950.44 45,023.07 2
    710502  Printing 30,270.00 2,188.56 28,081.44 7 31,499.00 1,246.87 30,252.13 4

4



Washoe County Health District
EXPENSE

Pds 1-2, FY 14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    710503  Licenses & Permits 7,887.00 445.00 7,442.00 6 8,870.00 2,022.39 6,847.61 23
    710504  Registration         
    710505  Rental Equipment 1,900.00  1,900.00  5,178.00 411.00 4,767.00 8
    710506  Dept Insurance Deductible  33.86 33.86-   150.00 150.00-  
    710507  Network and Data Lines 5,530.00 1,753.54 3,776.46 32 6,486.00 963.59 5,522.41 15
    710508  Telephone Land Lines 42,359.00 6,202.62 36,156.38 15 46,535.00 5,930.65 40,604.35 13
    710509  Seminars and Meetings 31,265.00 4,457.50 26,807.50 14 32,320.00 6,620.50 25,699.50 20
    710512  Auto Expense 18,702.20 2,307.64 16,394.56 12 19,784.00 2,214.01 17,569.99 11
    710514  Regulatory Assessments 11,920.00 2,980.00 8,940.00 25 11,920.00 2,980.00 8,940.00 25
    710519  Cellular Phone 15,660.00 2,385.96 13,274.04 15 18,447.00 1,241.44 17,205.56 7
    710524  Utility relocation  200.00 200.00-      
    710529  Dues 10,756.01 1,530.00 9,226.01 14 11,926.00 4,157.00 7,769.00 35
    710535  Credit Card Fees 11,925.00 2,510.37 9,414.63 21 11,455.00 1,983.62 9,471.38 17
    710546  Advertising 41,770.00 1,264.00 40,506.00 3 44,728.86  44,728.86  
    710550  Small Differences         
    710551  Cash Discounts Lost         
    710577  Uniforms & Special Clothing 25,500.00 200.41 25,299.59 1 3,000.00 279.97 2,720.03 9
    710585  Undesignated Budget 62,228.75  62,228.75  71,077.00  71,077.00  
    710600  LT Lease-Office Space 109,115.00 19,063.70 90,051.30 17 113,439.00 18,706.88 94,732.12 16
    710620  LT Lease-Equipment         
    710703  Biologicals 246,790.79 11,252.39 235,538.40 5 249,583.98 35,526.54 214,057.44 14
    710714  Referral Services     9,040.00  9,040.00  
    710721  Outpatient 93,092.55 292.08 92,800.47 0 110,399.15 7,849.94 102,549.21 7
    710872  Food Purchases 10,175.50 7.00 10,168.50 0 11,675.00 639.21 11,035.79 5
    711010  Utilities 180.00  180.00  2,700.00  2,700.00  
    711100  ESD Asset Management 47,436.00 8,174.00 39,262.00 17 17,040.00 2,688.00 14,352.00 16
    711113  Equip Srv Replace 27,084.14 4,601.20 22,482.94 17 25,938.64 4,338.76 21,599.88 17
    711114  Equip Srv O & M 46,868.56 7,688.88 39,179.68 16 42,163.13 8,997.54 33,165.59 21
    711115  Equip Srv Motor Pool 16,741.00  16,741.00  18,346.00  18,346.00  
    711117  ESD Fuel Charge 55,492.05 9,731.94 45,760.11 18 51,253.35 12,038.89 39,214.46 23
    711119  Prop & Liab Billings 74,502.09 12,417.06 62,085.03 17 80,283.41 13,380.56 66,902.85 17
    711210  Travel 231,811.03 19,012.29 212,798.74 8 251,954.25 13,341.63 238,612.62 5
    711300  Cash Over Short         
    711399  ProCard in Process         
    711400  Overhead - General Fund 2,898,034.00 483,005.66 2,415,028.34 17 2,553,372.00  2,553,372.00  
    711504  Equipment nonCapital 112,098.36 8,306.20 103,792.16 7 155,955.08 49,809.50 106,145.58 32
*   Services and Supplies 5,866,098.35 854,135.91 5,011,962.44 15 5,897,250.85 567,601.29 5,329,649.56 10
    781004  Equipment Capital 231,954.82 29,508.24 202,446.58 13 397,107.01 17,412.00 379,695.01 4
    781007  Vehicles Capital 100,000.00  100,000.00      
*   Capital Outlay 331,954.82 29,508.24 302,446.58 9 397,107.01 17,412.00 379,695.01 4
**  Expenses 20,535,042.01 3,092,688.24 17,442,353.77 15 21,142,496.28 2,926,106.55 18,216,389.73 14
    485196  Insur Reimb-F/A Loss         
*   Other Fin. Sources         
    621001  Transfer From General 8,603,891.00-  8,603,891.00-  8,623,891.00-  8,623,891.00-  
*   Transfers In 8,603,891.00-  8,603,891.00-  8,623,891.00-  8,623,891.00-  
    811001  Transfer to General         
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund         
*   Transfers Out         
**  Other Financing Src/Use 8,603,891.00-  8,603,891.00-  8,623,891.00-  8,623,891.00-  
*** Total 2,649,912.80 2,299,217.43 350,695.37 87 2,997,615.77 2,184,616.94 812,998.83 735



Washoe County Health District
Administrative Health Services

Pds 1-2, FY 14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    431100  Federal Grants 1,109,048.06- 82,933.66- 1,026,114.40- 7 1,109,658.25- 87,903.22- 1,021,755.03- 8
    431105  Federal Grants - Indirect 1,921.50-  1,921.50-      
*   Intergovernmental 1,110,969.56- 82,933.66- 1,028,035.90- 7 1,109,658.25- 87,903.22- 1,021,755.03- 8
    460511  Birth and Death Certificates         
    460512  Duplication Service Fees         
*   Charges for Services         
    484195  Non-Govt'l Grants 55,988.00-  55,988.00-  114,750.00-  114,750.00-  
    484197  Non-Gov. Grants-Indirect         
    485100  Reimbursements         
    485300  Other Misc Govt Rev 67,353.75-  67,353.75-      
*   Miscellaneous 123,341.75-  123,341.75-  114,750.00-  114,750.00-  
**  Revenue 1,234,311.31- 82,933.66- 1,151,377.65- 7 1,224,408.25- 87,903.22- 1,136,505.03- 7
    701110  Base Salaries 1,610,653.89 252,656.98 1,357,996.91 16 1,620,335.85 254,751.61 1,365,584.24 16
    701120  Part Time         
    701130  Pooled Positions 5,000.00 2,528.93 2,471.07 51 5,000.00 2,645.99 2,354.01 53
    701140  Holiday Work         
    701200  Incentive Longevity 33,265.00  33,265.00  30,755.00 57.70 30,697.30 0
    701300  Overtime 1,200.00 989.81 210.19 82 1,200.00 378.21 821.79 32
    701412  Salary Adjustment 3,642.80  3,642.80  10,554.54  10,554.54  
    701413  Vac Payoff/Sick Pay-Term      3,173.40 3,173.40-  
    701417  Comp Time  2,805.87 2,805.87-   18.92 18.92-  
    701419  Comp Time - Transfer  1,848.58 1,848.58-      
    701500  Merit Awards         
*   Salaries and Wages 1,653,761.69 260,830.17 1,392,931.52 16 1,667,845.39 261,025.83 1,406,819.56 16
    705110  Group Insurance 258,484.26 41,232.55 217,251.71 16 254,302.59 39,921.12 214,381.47 16
    705210  Retirement 421,998.67 61,863.96 360,134.71 15 384,397.43 60,533.91 323,863.52 16
    705215  Retirement Calculation         
    705230  Medicare April 1986 22,856.87 3,499.81 19,357.06 15 22,639.74 3,613.85 19,025.89 16
    705320  Workmens Comp 11,691.26 1,948.56 9,742.70 17 11,339.00 1,889.84 9,449.16 17
    705330  Unemply Comp 2,683.24 670.81 2,012.43 25 2,755.00 2,755.00  100
    705510  Severance Pay         
*   Employee Benefits 717,714.30 109,215.69 608,498.61 15 675,433.76 108,713.72 566,720.04 16
    710100  Professional Services 36,744.00 2,500.00 34,244.00 7 45,500.00 6,000.00 39,500.00 13
    710105  Medical Services 150.00 67.00 83.00 45 350.00 26.00 324.00 7
    710108  MD Consultants         
    710200  Service Contract 500.00 0.49 499.51 0 1,500.00  1,500.00  
    710205  Repairs and Maintenance 200.00  200.00  400.00 80.00 320.00 20
    710300  Operating Supplies 9,397.00 3,426.28 5,970.72 36 9,100.00 373.63 8,726.37 4
    710312  Special Dept Expense         
    710334  Copy Machine Expense 3,500.00 1,191.78 2,308.22 34 4,500.00 1,194.45 3,305.55 27
    710350  Office Supplies 10,963.50 616.15 10,347.35 6 9,993.00 795.52 9,197.48 8
    710355  Books and Subscriptions 1,000.00 76.00 924.00 8 1,000.00 24.94 975.06 2
    710360  Postage 1,680.00 97.30 1,582.70 6 1,625.00 165.93 1,459.07 10
    710361  Express and Courier 100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00  
    710500  Other Expense 1,600.00 67.20 1,532.80 4 1,600.00 140.00 1,460.00 9
    710502  Printing 4,480.00  4,480.00  4,780.00 19.75 4,760.25 0
    710503  Licenses & Permits 1,992.00 120.00 1,872.00 6 2,340.00 240.00 2,100.00 10
    710507  Network and Data Lines 630.00 118.76 511.24 19 630.00  630.00  

6



Washoe County Health District
Administrative Health Services

Pds 1-2, FY 14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    710508  Telephone Land Lines 9,580.00 1,441.22 8,138.78 15 10,080.00 1,167.64 8,912.36 12
    710509  Seminars and Meetings 2,800.00 712.50 2,087.50 25 5,300.00 1,476.50 3,823.50 28
    710512  Auto Expense 2,336.00 245.97 2,090.03 11 3,336.00 325.05 3,010.95 10
    710519  Cellular Phone 1,520.00 85.74 1,434.26 6 1,470.00 157.66 1,312.34 11
    710529  Dues 4,030.02  4,030.02  2,850.00 2,485.00 365.00 87
    710546  Advertising 150.00  150.00  150.00  150.00  
    710585  Undesignated Budget         
    710600  LT Lease-Office Space 67,464.00 12,323.70 55,140.30 18 71,788.00 11,966.88 59,821.12 17
    710872  Food Purchases 2,725.50  2,725.50  2,725.00  2,725.00  
    711010  Utilities     1,000.00  1,000.00  
    711100  ESD Asset Management      48.00 48.00-  
    711114  Equip Srv O & M      133.15 133.15-  
    711115  Equip Srv Motor Pool         
    711117  ESD Fuel Charge      186.08 186.08-  
    711119  Prop & Liab Billings 13,169.78 2,194.96 10,974.82 17 14,239.00 2,373.18 11,865.82 17
    711210  Travel 36,428.55 3,905.72 32,522.83 11 41,165.00 1,088.64 40,076.36 3
    711504  Equipment nonCapital 3,456.01  3,456.01  4,275.00 189.05 4,085.95 4
*   Services and Supplies 216,596.36 29,190.77 187,405.59 13 241,796.00 30,657.05 211,138.95 13
**  Expenses 2,588,072.35 399,236.63 2,188,835.72 15 2,585,075.15 400,396.60 2,184,678.55 15
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund         
**  Other Financing Src/Use         
*** Total 1,353,761.04 316,302.97 1,037,458.07 23 1,360,666.90 312,493.38 1,048,173.52 23

7



Washoe County Health District 
Air Quality Management 

Pds 1-2, FY 14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    422510  Air Pollution Permits 584,012.00- 98,271.00- 485,741.00- 17 448,037.00- 73,151.25- 374,885.75- 16
*   Licenses and Permits 584,012.00- 98,271.00- 485,741.00- 17 448,037.00- 73,151.25- 374,885.75- 16
    431100  Federal Grants 708,173.00-  708,173.00-  912,531.00-  912,531.00-  
    431105  Federal Grants - Indirect 29,372.00-  29,372.00-  30,224.00-  30,224.00-  
    432100  State Grants     182,000.00-  182,000.00-  
    432311  Pol Ctrl 455B.830 300,000.00- 78,739.00- 221,261.00- 26 300,000.00- 79,864.00- 220,136.00- 27
*   Intergovernmental 1,037,545.00- 78,739.00- 958,806.00- 8 1,424,755.00- 79,864.00- 1,344,891.00- 6
    460513  Other Healt Service Charges         
    460526  Plan Review-Air Quality 65,272.00- 4,433.00- 60,839.00- 7 40,000.00- 6,254.00- 33,746.00- 16
    460527  NOE-AQM 113,934.00- 14,440.00- 99,494.00- 13 100,000.00- 17,095.00- 82,905.00- 17
    460528  NESHAP-AQM 135,389.00- 19,816.00- 115,573.00- 15 84,000.00- 14,808.00- 69,192.00- 18
    460529  Assessments-AQM 57,888.00- 9,424.00- 48,464.00- 16 41,000.00- 8,557.00- 32,443.00- 21
    460530  Inspector Registr-AQ 14,655.00- 2,113.00- 12,542.00- 14 2,600.00- 2,838.00- 238.00 109
    460531  Dust Plan-Air Quality 187,690.00- 19,663.00- 168,027.00- 10 95,000.00- 14,376.00- 80,624.00- 15
*   Charges for Services 574,828.00- 69,889.00- 504,939.00- 12 362,600.00- 63,928.00- 298,672.00- 18
    485300  Other Misc Govt Rev         
*   Miscellaneous         
**  Revenue 2,196,385.00- 246,899.00- 1,949,486.00- 11 2,235,392.00- 216,943.25- 2,018,448.75- 10
    701110  Base Salaries 1,275,216.35 193,044.81 1,082,171.54 15 1,345,462.49 207,782.99 1,137,679.50 15
    701130  Pooled Positions 17,646.29 1,040.75 16,605.54 6 93,151.68 2,780.95 90,370.73 3
    701140  Holiday Work 418.65  418.65  250.00 51.44 198.56 21
    701150  xcContractual Wages         
    701200  Incentive Longevity 20,530.00 198.45 20,331.55 1 19,210.00  19,210.00  
    701300  Overtime 3,400.00 355.99 3,044.01 10 10,045.11 1,622.37 8,422.74 16
    701408  Call Back         
    701412  Salary Adjustment         
    701413  Vac Payoff/Sick Pay-Term  14,058.02 14,058.02-      
    701417  Comp Time  89.29 89.29-      
    701500  Merit Awards         
*   Salaries and Wages 1,317,211.29 208,787.31 1,108,423.98 16 1,468,119.28 212,237.75 1,255,881.53 14
    705110  Group Insurance 176,696.79 28,669.11 148,027.68 16 172,127.11 23,870.70 148,256.41 14
    705210  Retirement 332,632.51 48,358.19 284,274.32 15 324,109.95 49,302.35 274,807.60 15
    705230  Medicare April 1986 18,136.32 2,891.05 15,245.27 16 19,385.69 2,989.96 16,395.73 15
    705320  Workmens Comp 8,275.26 1,379.22 6,896.04 17 7,585.40 1,264.24 6,321.16 17
    705330  Unemply Comp 1,899.24 474.82 1,424.42 25 1,843.00 1,843.00  100
*   Employee Benefits 537,640.12 81,772.39 455,867.73 15 525,051.15 79,270.25 445,780.90 15
    710100  Professional Services 396,190.26 1,075.00 395,115.26 0 385,103.78 906.00 384,197.78 0
    710105  Medical Services 1,525.00  1,525.00  1,416.00  1,416.00  
    710200  Service Contract 1,600.00  1,600.00  500.00  500.00  
    710205  Repairs and Maintenance 1,000.00  1,000.00  10,741.91 2,026.03 8,715.88 19
    710210  Software Maintenance 3,386.00  3,386.00  4,200.00  4,200.00  
    710300  Operating Supplies 1,000.00 42.30 957.70 4 11,079.55 1,532.18 9,547.37 14
    710334  Copy Machine Expense 4,400.00 480.89 3,919.11 11 4,400.00 480.88 3,919.12 11
    710350  Office Supplies 3,500.00 69.43 3,430.57 2 4,000.00 860.43 3,139.57 22
    710355  Books and Subscriptions 100.00 288.03 188.03- 288 224.00 289.23 65.23- 129
    710360  Postage 3,000.00 620.30 2,379.70 21 2,900.00 571.66 2,328.34 20
    710361  Express and Courier 75.00  75.00  80.75 191.50 110.75- 237
    710500  Other Expense 100.00 1,175.00 1,075.00- 1,175 100.00  100.00  
    710502  Printing 800.00 101.63 698.37 13 800.00 359.07 440.93 45

8



Washoe County Health District 
Air Quality Management 

Pds 1-2, FY 14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    710503  Licenses & Permits     135.00 232.39 97.39- 172
    710505  Rental Equipment 1,800.00  1,800.00  1,800.00  1,800.00  
    710506  Dept Insurance Deductible  33.86 33.86-      
    710507  Network and Data Lines  960.00 960.00-   835.00 835.00-  
    710508  Telephone Land Lines 5,500.00 643.80 4,856.20 12 6,500.00 695.03 5,804.97 11
    710509  Seminars and Meetings     3,005.00 770.00 2,235.00 26
    710512  Auto Expense 500.00 67.24 432.76 13 1,000.00 3.89 996.11 0
    710519  Cellular Phone 4,700.00 613.02 4,086.98 13 4,700.00 328.89 4,371.11 7
    710529  Dues 3,250.00 300.00 2,950.00 9 4,435.00 740.00 3,695.00 17
    710535  Credit Card Fees 2,300.00 636.01 1,663.99 28 1,600.00 373.20 1,226.80 23
    710546  Advertising 1,650.00 904.00 746.00 55 1,000.00  1,000.00  
    710550  Small Differences         
    710577  Uniforms & Special Clothing 100.00 200.41 100.41- 200 1,100.00 279.97 820.03 25
    710585  Undesignated Budget 25,879.62  25,879.62      
    710600  LT Lease-Office Space         
    710721  Outpatient         
    711100  ESD Asset Management 6,432.00 1,340.00 5,092.00 21 2,592.00 432.00 2,160.00 17
    711113  Equip Srv Replace 9,523.78 1,587.56 7,936.22 17 8,499.58 1,586.78 6,912.80 19
    711114  Equip Srv O & M 11,981.33 1,764.05 10,217.28 15 10,384.74 1,941.25 8,443.49 19
    711115  Equip Srv Motor Pool         
    711117  ESD Fuel Charge 12,156.58 1,752.14 10,404.44 14 10,687.05 2,149.39 8,537.66 20
    711119  Prop & Liab Billings 9,321.78 1,553.64 7,768.14 17 9,525.40 1,587.56 7,937.84 17
    711210  Travel 34,419.48 1,438.65 32,980.83 4 36,088.25 7,372.83 28,715.42 20
    711300  Cash Over Short         
    711399  ProCard in Process         
    711504  Equipment nonCapital 11,800.35  11,800.35  37,117.08 3,549.56 33,567.52 10
*   Services and Supplies 557,991.18 17,646.96 540,344.22 3 565,715.09 30,094.72 535,620.37 5
    781004  Equipment Capital 151,576.82 23,745.74 127,831.08 16 342,770.01 17,412.00 325,358.01 5
*   Capital Outlay 151,576.82 23,745.74 127,831.08 16 342,770.01 17,412.00 325,358.01 5
**  Expenses 2,564,419.41 331,952.40 2,232,467.01 13 2,901,655.53 339,014.72 2,562,640.81 12
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund         
**  Other Financing Src/Use         
*** Total 368,034.41 85,053.40 282,981.01 23 666,263.53 122,071.47 544,192.06 18

9



Washoe County Health District
Community and Clinical Health Services 

Pds 1-2, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    431100  Federal Grants 1,875,162.86- 73,531.59- 1,801,631.27- 4 2,131,855.53-  2,131,855.53-  
    431105  Federal Grants - Indirect 92,460.00- 4,918.57- 87,541.43- 5 15,300.00-  15,300.00-  
    432100  State Grants 22,652.00-  22,652.00-  24,857.00-  24,857.00-  
*   Intergovernmental 1,990,274.86- 78,450.16- 1,911,824.70- 4 2,172,012.53-  2,172,012.53-  
    460162  Services to Other Agencies         
    460500  Other Immunizations 89,000.00- 11,054.07- 77,945.93- 12 89,000.00- 15,804.00- 73,196.00- 18
    460501  Medicaid Clinical Services 8,200.00- 334.25- 7,865.75- 4 36,200.00- 44.46 36,244.46- 0-
    460503  Childhood Immunizations 20,000.00- 3,388.50- 16,611.50- 17 30,000.00- 4,610.00- 25,390.00- 15
    460508  Tuberculosis 4,100.00- 678.32- 3,421.68- 17 4,100.00- 994.57- 3,105.43- 24
    460515  Medicare Reimbursement         
    460516  Pgm Inc-3rd Prty Rec 1,750.00- 183.30- 1,566.70- 10 2,250.00-  2,250.00-  
    460517  Influenza Immunization 7,000.00- 36.50- 6,963.50- 1 7,000.00- 49.00- 6,951.00- 1
    460518  STD Fees 21,000.00- 3,434.18- 17,565.82- 16 23,000.00- 3,453.60- 19,546.40- 15
    460519  Outpatient Services         
    460524  Family Planning 27,000.00- 6,040.87- 20,959.13- 22 44,000.00- 5,314.78- 38,685.22- 12
    460570  Education Revenue 2,400.00- 324.00- 2,076.00- 14 4,500.00- 63.00- 4,437.00- 1
*   Charges for Services 180,450.00- 25,473.99- 154,976.01- 14 240,050.00- 30,244.49- 209,805.51- 13
    484050  Donations Federal Pgm Income 37,550.00- 7,298.99- 30,251.01- 19 41,934.00- 7,580.16- 34,353.84- 18
    484195  Non-Govt'l Grants         
    485110  Workers Comp Reimb         
    485300  Other Misc Govt Rev 2,205.00-  2,205.00-   27.89- 27.89  
*   Miscellaneous 39,755.00- 7,298.99- 32,456.01- 18 41,934.00- 7,608.05- 34,325.95- 18
**  Revenue 2,210,479.86- 111,223.14- 2,099,256.72- 5 2,453,996.53- 37,852.54- 2,416,143.99- 2
    701110  Base Salaries 2,046,242.25 319,117.29 1,727,124.96 16 2,237,201.94 354,020.94 1,883,181.00 16
    701120  Part Time 541,787.10 64,212.79 477,574.31 12 505,752.32 83,604.92 422,147.40 17
    701130  Pooled Positions 204,802.33 41,247.48 163,554.85 20 175,944.41 37,670.77 138,273.64 21
    701140  Holiday Work         
    701150  xcContractual Wages         
    701200  Incentive Longevity 47,486.00  47,486.00  48,012.00 148.06 47,863.94 0
    701300  Overtime 1,280.00 44.02 1,235.98 3 1,280.00 260.50 1,019.50 20
    701403  Shift Differential         
    701406  Standby Pay  100.00- 100.00      
    701412  Salary Adjustment 34,459.06-  34,459.06-  75.00-  75.00-  
    701413  Vac Payoff/Sick Pay-Term      6,513.33 6,513.33-  
    701415  Physical Fitness Pay         
    701417  Comp Time      7,024.55 7,024.55-  
    701419  Comp Time - Transfer         
    701500  Merit Awards         
*   Salaries and Wages 2,807,138.62 424,521.58 2,382,617.04 15 2,968,115.67 489,243.07 2,478,872.60 16
    705110  Group Insurance 414,555.78 63,259.32 351,296.46 15 433,968.28 69,803.65 364,164.63 16
    705210  Retirement 651,180.47 96,999.76 554,180.71 15 658,011.56 103,779.42 554,232.14 16
    705230  Medicare April 1986 34,770.23 5,498.16 29,272.07 16 36,909.75 6,412.71 30,497.04 17
    705320  Workmens Comp 18,911.83 3,151.96 15,759.87 17 18,435.65 3,072.60 15,363.05 17
    705330  Unemply Comp 4,340.42 1,085.13 3,255.29 25 4,479.25 4,479.25  100
*   Employee Benefits 1,123,758.73 169,994.33 953,764.40 15 1,151,804.49 187,547.63 964,256.86 16
    710100  Professional Services 66,232.00 1,342.00 64,890.00 2 75,150.71 3,417.60 71,733.11 5
    710105  Medical Services 850.00 42.00 808.00 5 850.00  850.00  
    710108  MD Consultants 46,950.00 3,200.00 43,750.00 7 46,900.00 5,412.50 41,487.50 12
    710110  Contracted/Temp Services 1,000.00 2,063.50 1,063.50- 206 1,000.00  1,000.00  
    710119  Subrecipient Payments         
    710200  Service Contract 3,798.00 2,371.84 1,426.16 62 6,048.00 2,356.01 3,691.99 39

10



Washoe County Health District
Community and Clinical Health Services 

Pds 1-2, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    710205  Repairs and Maintenance 3,770.00 266.80 3,503.20 7 3,800.00  3,800.00  
    710210  Software Maintenance         
    710300  Operating Supplies 72,402.00 1,199.06 71,202.94 2 76,719.00 3,001.81 73,717.19 4
    710334  Copy Machine Expense 14,497.00 1,566.59 12,930.41 11 13,847.00 1,519.43 12,327.57 11
    710350  Office Supplies 12,360.00 745.84 11,614.16 6 13,520.01 1,489.84 12,030.17 11
    710355  Books and Subscriptions 2,250.00 55.00 2,195.00 2 2,060.00  2,060.00  
    710360  Postage 3,600.00 399.29 3,200.71 11 4,490.00 508.95 3,981.05 11
    710361  Express and Courier 285.00 47.88 237.12 17 245.00 14.02 230.98 6
    710412  Do Not Use         
    710500  Other Expense 14,595.96 241.15 14,354.81 2 30,602.51 652.64 29,949.87 2
    710502  Printing 10,000.00 1,347.36 8,652.64 13 9,675.00 575.03 9,099.97 6
    710503  Licenses & Permits 3,055.00 325.00 2,730.00 11 3,555.00 1,550.00 2,005.00 44
    710504  Registration         
    710505  Rental Equipment         
    710506  Dept Insurance Deductible      150.00 150.00-  
    710507  Network and Data Lines 2,080.00 273.72 1,806.28 13 2,560.00 83.02 2,476.98 3
    710508  Telephone Land Lines 13,229.00 1,986.49 11,242.51 15 13,975.00 1,921.67 12,053.33 14
    710509  Seminars and Meetings 5,650.00 1,306.00 4,344.00 23 4,750.00 1,585.00 3,165.00 33
    710512  Auto Expense 13,566.20 1,848.39 11,717.81 14 13,318.00 1,437.58 11,880.42 11
    710519  Cellular Phone 360.00 245.50 114.50 68 540.00 18.28 521.72 3
    710524  Utility relocation  200.00 200.00-      
    710529  Dues 800.00 1,050.00 250.00- 131 1,350.00 550.00 800.00 41
    710535  Credit Card Fees 3,215.00 384.59 2,830.41 12 3,245.00 383.87 2,861.13 12
    710546  Advertising 26,845.00 360.00 26,485.00 1 34,903.86  34,903.86  
    710551  Cash Discounts Lost         
    710577  Uniforms & Special Clothing 200.00  200.00  200.00  200.00  
    710585  Undesignated Budget     15,300.00  15,300.00  
    710703  Biologicals 243,370.00 11,057.19 232,312.81 5 246,163.19 35,526.54 210,636.65 14
    710714  Referral Services     9,040.00  9,040.00  
    710721  Outpatient 90,957.55 280.00 90,677.55 0 108,264.15 7,269.46 100,994.69 7
    710872  Food Purchases 6,450.00 7.00 6,443.00 0 6,550.00 639.21 5,910.79 10
    711010  Utilities     1,700.00  1,700.00  
    711100  ESD Asset Management 1,608.00 134.00 1,474.00 8 288.00  288.00  
    711114  Equip Srv O & M 546.37 115.69 430.68 21 550.44  550.44  
    711115  Equip Srv Motor Pool         
    711117  ESD Fuel Charge 711.35 194.37 516.98 27 711.35  711.35  
    711119  Prop & Liab Billings 21,303.49 3,550.60 17,752.89 17 23,150.65 3,858.42 19,292.23 17
    711210  Travel 33,713.00 5,930.02 27,782.98 18 28,184.00 758.01 27,425.99 3
    711399  ProCard in Process         
    711504  Equipment nonCapital 5,850.00 5,762.50 87.50 99 6,530.00 189.00 6,341.00 3
*   Services and Supplies 726,099.92 49,899.37 676,200.55 7 809,735.87 74,867.89 734,867.98 9
    781004  Equipment Capital 30,378.00 5,762.50 24,615.50 19 17,000.00  17,000.00  
*   Capital Outlay 30,378.00 5,762.50 24,615.50 19 17,000.00  17,000.00  
**  Expenses 4,687,375.27 650,177.78 4,037,197.49 14 4,946,656.03 751,658.59 4,194,997.44 15
    811001  Transfer to General         
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund         
**  Other Financing Src/Use         
*** Total 2,476,895.41 538,954.64 1,937,940.77 22 2,492,659.50 713,806.05 1,778,853.45 29

11



Washoe County Health District 
Environmental Health Services 

Pds 1-2, FY 14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    422503  Environmental Permits 63,177.00- 9,798.00- 53,379.00- 16 51,500.00- 8,418.00- 43,082.00- 16
    422504  Pool Permits 74,690.00- 3,624.00- 71,066.00- 5 68,000.00- 3,576.00- 64,424.00- 5
    422505  RV Permits 13,306.00- 1,938.00- 11,368.00- 15 10,500.00- 1,442.00- 9,058.00- 14
    422507  Food Service Permits 492,181.00- 76,168.00- 416,013.00- 15 369,000.00- 61,595.00- 307,405.00- 17
    422508  Wat Well Const Perm 23,567.00- 8,302.00- 15,265.00- 35 20,000.00- 7,596.00- 12,404.00- 38
    422509  Water Company Permits 3,200.00- 594.00- 2,606.00- 19 2,500.00- 261.00- 2,239.00- 10
    422511  ISDS Permits 66,522.00- 18,893.00- 47,629.00- 28 49,000.00- 7,810.00- 41,190.00- 16
    422513  Special Event Permits 99,623.00- 32,360.00- 67,263.00- 32 79,000.00- 22,526.00- 56,474.00- 29
    422514  Initial Applic Fee 35,226.00- 5,096.00- 30,130.00- 14 27,000.00- 4,678.00- 22,322.00- 17
*   Licenses and Permits 871,492.00- 156,773.00- 714,719.00- 18 676,500.00- 117,902.00- 558,598.00- 17
    431100  Federal Grants 362,198.04-  362,198.04-  340,000.00-  340,000.00-  
    431105  Federal Grants - Indirect 27,470.00-  27,470.00-      
    432100  State Grants 50,000.00-  50,000.00-  75,000.00-  75,000.00-  
    432310  Tire Fee NRS 444A.090 468,548.00- 63,664.65- 404,883.35- 14 418,766.00- 66,093.55- 352,672.45- 16
*   Intergovernmental 908,216.04- 63,664.65- 844,551.39- 7 833,766.00- 66,093.55- 767,672.45- 8
    460509  Water Quality         
    460510  IT Overlay 35,344.00- 7,555.00- 27,789.00- 21 113,400.00- 20,990.00- 92,410.00- 19
    460512  Duplication Service Fees  8.96- 8.96   3.00- 3.00  
    460513  Other Healt Service Charges     2,700.00- 1,374.00- 1,326.00- 51
    460514  Food Service Certification 19,984.00- 3,101.00- 16,883.00- 16 13,900.00- 2,551.00- 11,349.00- 18
    460520  Eng Serv Health 50,707.00- 7,507.00- 43,200.00- 15 44,000.00- 2,579.00- 41,421.00- 6
    460521  Plan Review - Pools & Spas 3,816.00- 1,052.00- 2,764.00- 28 2,500.00- 530.00- 1,970.00- 21
    460523  Plan Review - Food Services 18,765.00- 4,673.00- 14,092.00- 25 17,000.00- 3,519.00- 13,481.00- 21
    460525  Plan Review - Vector 36,021.00- 9,560.00- 26,461.00- 27 30,000.00- 5,192.00- 24,808.00- 17
    460532  Plan Rvw Hotel/Motel      322.00- 322.00  
    460533  Quick Start         
    460534  Child Care Inspection 10,560.00- 1,968.00- 8,592.00- 19 8,500.00- 1,914.00- 6,586.00- 23
    460535  Pub Accomod Inspectn 22,540.00- 3,507.00- 19,033.00- 16 17,300.00- 2,949.00- 14,351.00- 17
    460570  Education Revenue 500.00- 156.00- 344.00- 31 1,200.00- 86.00- 1,114.00- 7
*   Charges for Services 198,237.00- 39,087.96- 159,149.04- 20 250,500.00- 42,009.00- 208,491.00- 17
    485100  Reimbursements         
    485121  Jury Reimbursements         
    485300  Other Misc Govt Rev  2,500.00- 2,500.00      
*   Miscellaneous  2,500.00- 2,500.00      
**  Revenue 1,977,945.04- 262,025.61- 1,715,919.43- 13 1,760,766.00- 226,004.55- 1,534,761.45- 13
    701110  Base Salaries 2,975,071.19 444,446.34 2,530,624.85 15 3,018,372.82 473,960.55 2,544,412.27 16
    701130  Pooled Positions 200,194.04 25,946.56 174,247.48 13 236,872.77 28,594.17 208,278.60 12
    701140  Holiday Work 2,400.00 925.92 1,474.08 39 1,200.00  1,200.00  
    701150  xcContractual Wages         
    701200  Incentive Longevity 50,500.00  50,500.00  50,800.00 288.46 50,511.54 1
    701300  Overtime 59,123.00 6,421.54 52,701.46 11 36,600.00 6,061.09 30,538.91 17
    701406  Standby Pay         
    701408  Call Back 1,000.00  1,000.00  1,000.00 99.98 900.02 10
    701412  Salary Adjustment 199,268.34-  199,268.34-      
    701413  Vac Payoff/Sick Pay-Term      16,198.28 16,198.28-  
    701415  Physical Fitness Pay         
    701417  Comp Time      9,525.60 9,525.60-  
    701500  Merit Awards         
*   Salaries and Wages 3,089,019.89 477,740.36 2,611,279.53 15 3,344,845.59 534,728.13 2,810,117.46 16

12



Washoe County Health District 
Environmental Health Services 

Pds 1-2, FY 14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    705110  Group Insurance 411,488.13 67,123.72 344,364.41 16 434,110.13 67,923.20 366,186.93 16
    705210  Retirement 776,699.80 112,607.86 664,091.94 14 728,879.94 112,412.53 616,467.41 15
    705230  Medicare April 1986 41,720.32 6,435.23 35,285.09 15 41,940.99 6,894.55 35,046.44 16
    705320  Workmens Comp 19,168.03 3,194.68 15,973.35 17 18,838.38 3,139.74 15,698.64 17
    705330  Unemply Comp 4,399.22 1,099.81 3,299.41 25 4,577.10 4,577.10  100
*   Employee Benefits 1,253,475.50 190,461.30 1,063,014.20 15 1,228,346.54 194,947.12 1,033,399.42 16
    710100  Professional Services 217,318.30 1,475.00 215,843.30 1 325,401.67 1,880.00 323,521.67 1
    710105  Medical Services 6,548.00 895.00 5,653.00 14 6,548.00 110.00 6,438.00 2
    710110  Contracted/Temp Services 35,000.03 3,116.19 31,883.84 9 65,000.00 1,569.81 63,430.19 2
    710200  Service Contract 95,300.00 13,702.51 81,597.49 14 95,300.00 21,158.93 74,141.07 22
    710205  Repairs and Maintenance 5,500.00  5,500.00  4,600.00  4,600.00  
    710210  Software Maintenance 250.00  250.00      
    710300  Operating Supplies 25,650.00 7,985.60 17,664.40 31 20,100.00 2,533.41 17,566.59 13
    710302  Small Tools & Allow 10,685.00 229.96 10,455.04 2 3,685.00  3,685.00  
    710308  Animal Supplies 1,600.00 582.75 1,017.25 36 2,000.00 132.78 1,867.22 7
    710319  Chemical Supplies 232,300.00 168,635.13 63,664.87 73 231,950.00 231,816.20 133.80 100
    710325  Signs and Markers         
    710334  Copy Machine Expense 1,900.00 30.87 1,869.13 2 2,250.00 33.03 2,216.97 1
    710350  Office Supplies 6,250.00 291.76 5,958.24 5 9,100.00 148.23 8,951.77 2
    710355  Books and Subscriptions 2,100.00 225.00 1,875.00 11 2,400.00 119.00 2,281.00 5
    710360  Postage 10,600.00 1,312.93 9,287.07 12 9,775.00 1,348.84 8,426.16 14
    710361  Express and Courier 175.00  175.00  175.00  175.00  
    710391  Fuel & Lube 100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00  
    710500  Other Expense 200.00 49.00 151.00 25 8,300.00 157.80 8,142.20 2
    710502  Printing 12,600.00 332.77 12,267.23 3 11,525.00 175.20 11,349.80 2
    710503  Licenses & Permits 2,690.00  2,690.00  2,690.00  2,690.00  
    710505  Rental Equipment         
    710506  Dept Insurance Deductible         
    710507  Network and Data Lines 2,220.00 232.44 1,987.56 10 2,500.00  2,500.00  
    710508  Telephone Land Lines 8,960.00 1,401.71 7,558.29 16 9,710.00 1,423.72 8,286.28 15
    710509  Seminars and Meetings 16,515.00 1,914.00 14,601.00 12 13,415.00 2,564.00 10,851.00 19
    710512  Auto Expense 50.00  50.00  100.00  100.00  
    710514  Regulatory Assessments 11,920.00 2,980.00 8,940.00 25 11,920.00 2,980.00 8,940.00 25
    710519  Cellular Phone 6,600.00 844.97 5,755.03 13 6,600.00 496.40 6,103.60 8
    710529  Dues 1,565.99 180.00 1,385.99 11 1,661.00 382.00 1,279.00 23
    710535  Credit Card Fees 4,410.00 1,101.61 3,308.39 25 4,610.00 879.57 3,730.43 19
    710546  Advertising 10,500.00  10,500.00  6,050.00  6,050.00  
    710577  Uniforms & Special Clothing 25,200.00  25,200.00  1,700.00  1,700.00  
    710585  Undesignated Budget 36,349.13  36,349.13      
    710600  LT Lease-Office Space 41,651.00 6,740.00 34,911.00 16 41,651.00 6,740.00 34,911.00 16
    710721  Outpatient         
    711100  ESD Asset Management 32,964.00 5,092.00 27,872.00 15 11,856.00 1,824.00 10,032.00 15
    711113  Equip Srv Replace 17,182.42 2,950.64 14,231.78 17 17,061.11 2,688.98 14,372.13 16
    711114  Equip Srv O & M 32,731.24 5,647.84 27,083.40 17 30,573.49 6,204.58 24,368.91 20
    711115  Equip Srv Motor Pool 16,741.00  16,741.00  16,741.00  16,741.00  
    711117  ESD Fuel Charge 42,624.12 7,785.43 34,838.69 18 39,776.37 9,703.42 30,072.95 24
    711119  Prop & Liab Billings 21,592.09 3,598.68 17,993.41 17 23,656.38 3,942.74 19,713.64 17
    711210  Travel 76,000.00 7,264.67 68,735.33 10 81,150.00 3,075.44 78,074.56 4
    711399  ProCard in Process         13



Washoe County Health District 
Environmental Health Services 

Pds 1-2, FY 14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    711504  Equipment nonCapital 89,242.00 1,395.04 87,846.96 2 62,544.00  62,544.00  
*   Services and Supplies 1,161,784.32 247,993.50 913,790.82 21 1,184,175.02 304,088.08 880,086.94 26
    781004  Equipment Capital 50,000.00  50,000.00  25,000.00  25,000.00  
    781007  Vehicles Capital 100,000.00  100,000.00      
*   Capital Outlay 150,000.00  150,000.00  25,000.00  25,000.00  
**  Expenses 5,654,279.71 916,195.16 4,738,084.55 16 5,782,367.15 1,033,763.33 4,748,603.82 18
    485196  Insur Reimb-F/A Loss         
*   Other Fin. Sources         
    621001  Transfer From General         
*   Transfers In         
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund         
*   Transfers Out         
**  Other Financing Src/Use         
*** Total 3,676,334.67 654,169.55 3,022,165.12 18 4,021,601.15 807,758.78 3,213,842.37 20

14



Washoe County Health District
Epidemiology Public Health Preparedness

Pds 1-2, FY 14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    431100  Federal Grants 1,120,162.09- 9,934.50- 1,110,227.59- 1 1,366,574.73- 84,559.53- 1,282,015.20- 6
    431105  Federal Grants - Indirect 91,954.91- 595.90- 91,359.01- 1 79,852.00- 2,033.52- 77,818.48- 3
*   Intergovernmental 1,212,117.00- 10,530.40- 1,201,586.60- 1 1,446,426.73- 86,593.05- 1,359,833.68- 6
    460511  Birth and Death Certificates 450,000.00- 79,859.00- 370,141.00- 18 400,000.00- 86,193.00- 313,807.00- 22
*   Charges for Services 450,000.00- 79,859.00- 370,141.00- 18 400,000.00- 86,193.00- 313,807.00- 22
**  Revenue 1,662,117.00- 90,389.40- 1,571,727.60- 5 1,846,426.73- 172,786.05- 1,673,640.68- 9
    701110  Base Salaries 1,277,745.42 197,689.74 1,080,055.68 15 1,220,854.27 186,958.65 1,033,895.62 15
    701120  Part Time 24,152.57 3,453.40 20,699.17 14 24,152.57 4,712.12 19,440.45 20
    701130  Pooled Positions 2,900.00 1,165.16 1,734.84 40 11,330.00 6,182.96 5,147.04 55
    701140  Holiday Work         
    701150  xcContractual Wages         
    701200  Incentive Longevity 13,622.00 326.14 13,295.86 2 9,515.00  9,515.00  
    701300  Overtime 1,700.00 1,093.26 606.74 64 1,200.00 115.91 1,084.09 10
    701412  Salary Adjustment     42,507.00  42,507.00  
    701413  Vac Payoff/Sick Pay-Term  1,459.85 1,459.85-      
    701417  Comp Time  117.13 117.13-      
    701500  Merit Awards         
*   Salaries and Wages 1,320,119.99 205,304.68 1,114,815.31 16 1,309,558.84 197,969.64 1,111,589.20 15
    705110  Group Insurance 157,102.63 25,642.81 131,459.82 16 154,680.99 25,168.88 129,512.11 16
    705210  Retirement 331,395.85 50,065.29 281,330.56 15 314,726.17 44,385.53 270,340.64 14
    705230  Medicare April 1986 18,701.48 2,895.30 15,806.18 15 19,086.47 2,687.59 16,398.88 14
    705320  Workmens Comp 8,091.65 1,348.60 6,743.05 17 7,988.98 1,289.02 6,699.96 16
    705330  Unemply Comp 1,857.10 464.28 1,392.82 25 1,879.10 1,879.10  100
    705360  Benefit Adjustment     10,656.00  10,656.00  
*   Employee Benefits 517,148.71 80,416.28 436,732.43 16 509,017.71 75,410.12 433,607.59 15
    710100  Professional Services 132,590.27 693.00 131,897.27 1 260,648.22 65,203.44 195,444.78 25
    710105  Medical Services 100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00  
    710108  MD Consultants         
    710110  Contracted/Temp Services 17,500.00 1,939.23 15,560.77 11 5,051.00 1,615.36 3,435.64 32
    710200  Service Contract 2,395.00 2,938.75 543.75- 123 1,895.00 2,564.92 669.92- 135
    710205  Repairs and Maintenance 1,000.00  1,000.00  1,008.00  1,008.00  
    710210  Software Maintenance 12,000.00 12,000.00  100 12,000.00 3,000.00 9,000.00 25
    710300  Operating Supplies 15,512.00 1,283.43- 16,795.43 8- 15,739.00  15,739.00  
    710334  Copy Machine Expense 2,950.00 137.26 2,812.74 5 3,277.89 261.71 3,016.18 8
    710350  Office Supplies 6,600.00 830.97 5,769.03 13 7,558.00 1,766.03 5,791.97 23
    710355  Books and Subscriptions 2,144.00 695.90 1,448.10 32 2,729.00 148.90 2,580.10 5
    710360  Postage 2,950.00 256.57 2,693.43 9 3,164.00 483.23 2,680.77 15
    710361  Express and Courier 50.00  50.00  10.00  10.00  
    710500  Other Expense 7,436.00 50.00 7,386.00 1 5,371.00  5,371.00  
    710502  Printing 2,390.00 406.80 1,983.20 17 4,719.00 117.82 4,601.18 2
    710503  Licenses & Permits 150.00  150.00  150.00  150.00  
    710505  Rental Equipment 100.00  100.00  3,378.00 411.00 2,967.00 12
    710506  Dept Insurance Deductible         
    710507  Network and Data Lines 600.00 168.62 431.38 28 796.00 45.57 750.43 6
    710508  Telephone Land Lines 5,090.00 729.40 4,360.60 14 6,270.00 722.59 5,547.41 12
    710509  Seminars and Meetings 6,300.00 525.00 5,775.00 8 5,850.00 225.00 5,625.00 4
    710512  Auto Expense 2,250.00 146.04 2,103.96 6 2,030.00 447.49 1,582.51 22
    710519  Cellular Phone 2,480.00 596.73 1,883.27 24 5,137.00 240.21 4,896.79 5
    710529  Dues 1,110.00  1,110.00  1,630.00  1,630.00  15



Washoe County Health District
Epidemiology Public Health Preparedness

Pds 1-2, FY 14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    710535  Credit Card Fees 2,000.00 388.16 1,611.84 19 2,000.00 346.98 1,653.02 17
    710546  Advertising 2,625.00  2,625.00  2,625.00  2,625.00  
    710585  Undesignated Budget     55,777.00  55,777.00  
    710620  LT Lease-Equipment         
    710703  Biologicals 3,420.79 195.20 3,225.59 6 3,420.79  3,420.79  
    710721  Outpatient 2,135.00 12.08 2,122.92 1 2,135.00 580.48 1,554.52 27
    710872  Food Purchases 1,000.00  1,000.00  2,400.00  2,400.00  
    711010  Utilities 180.00  180.00      
    711100  ESD Asset Management 6,432.00 1,608.00 4,824.00 25 2,304.00 384.00 1,920.00 17
    711113  Equip Srv Replace 377.94 63.00 314.94 17 377.95 63.00 314.95 17
    711114  Equip Srv O & M 1,609.62 161.30 1,448.32 10 654.46 718.56 64.10- 110
    711115  Equip Srv Motor Pool     1,605.00  1,605.00  
    711117  ESD Fuel Charge     78.58  78.58  
    711119  Prop & Liab Billings 9,114.95 1,519.18 7,595.77 17 9,711.98 1,618.66 8,093.32 17
    711210  Travel 51,250.00 473.23 50,776.77 1 65,367.00 1,046.71 64,320.29 2
    711504  Equipment nonCapital 1,750.00 1,148.66 601.34 66 45,489.00 45,881.89 392.89- 101
*   Services and Supplies 305,592.57 26,399.65 279,192.92 9 542,456.87 127,893.55 414,563.32 24
    781004  Equipment Capital     12,337.00  12,337.00  
*   Capital Outlay     12,337.00  12,337.00  
**  Expenses 2,142,861.27 312,120.61 1,830,740.66 15 2,373,370.42 401,273.31 1,972,097.11 17
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund         
**  Other Financing Src/Use         
*** Total 480,744.27 221,731.21 259,013.06 46 526,943.69 228,487.26 298,456.43 43

16



Washoe County Health Distirct 
Undesignated 
Pds 1-2, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    710400  Payments to Other Agencies         
    711400  Overhead - General Fund 2,898,034.00 483,005.66 2,415,028.34 17 2,553,372.00  2,553,372.00  
**  Expenses 2,898,034.00 483,005.66 2,415,028.34 17 2,553,372.00  2,553,372.00  
    621001  Transfer From General 8,603,891.00-  8,603,891.00-  8,623,891.00-  8,623,891.00-  
*   Transfers In 8,603,891.00-  8,603,891.00-  8,623,891.00-  8,623,891.00-  
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund         
*   Transfers Out         
**  Other Financing Src/Use 8,603,891.00-  8,603,891.00-  8,623,891.00-  8,623,891.00-  
*** Total 5,705,857.00- 483,005.66 6,188,862.66- 8- 6,070,519.00-  6,070,519.00-  

17



Washoe County Health District 

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2434 FAX (775) 328-6176 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  09/26/2013 

 
DATE:  September 17, 2013 
 
TO:  District Board of Health Members 
 
FROM: James English, REHS, CP-FS, Environmental Health Specialist Supervisor 

Waste Management and Land Development Program  
775-328-2428; jenglish@washoecounty.us 

 
SUBJECT: Update on citation and enforcement regarding prevention of bear activity within 

populated areas. 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Washoe County District Board of Health approved changes to the Regulations of the Washoe 
County District Board of Health Governing Solid Waste Management at their September 2010 
meeting.  The regulations included definitions for animal resistant containers and an enforcement 
mechanism for requiring the procurement of containers when violations to the updated regulations 
occur.  In January of 2011, the Washoe County Health District (WCHD) developed a fact sheet 
regarding how to file complaints when wildlife disturbs or rummages through garbage containers 
within the health district. 
 
Specific regulations related to animal resistant containers and enforcement related to wildlife, 
including bears rummaging through garbage containers, and the complaint fact sheet on the subject 
are available online at http://www.washoecounty.us/health/ehs/regulations.html. 
 
CURRENT ACTIONS RELATED TO WILDLIFE/SOLID WASTE ISSUES 
From October 2010 to December 2012, the WCHD has received two complaints related to bear/solid 
waste issues from separate addresses.  WCHD staff responded and investigated both complaints.  
One location had an animal resistant container and one did not.  Staff educated the second property 
owner on proper storage of solid waste and our new regulations regarding animal resistant 
containers. 
 
From January 2013 to present the WCHD has received three complaints related to bear/solid waste 
issues.  Of the three complaints, two were valid.  Both property owners of the valid complaints 
voluntarily obtained animal resistant containers. 
 
WCHD staff has been working in conjunction with Nevada Division of Wildlife, Incline Village 
Improvement District, Waste Management, Inc. and individuals to continue education efforts to 
minimize wild animals having access to solid waste within the health district.     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item No. 14. 

1

mailto:jenglish@washoecounty.us
http://www.washoecounty.us/health/ehs/regulations.html
wflores
Rectangle

wflores
Typewritten Text
DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 14



Division Director’s Report – Environmental Health Services  
September 17, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 
 

Incline Village eying bearproof trash bins; customers would 
pay possible $250 cost 
 

Written by Jeff DeLong – Reno Gazette-Journal 
August 17, 2013 
 

Incline Village residents could soon be required to store their garbage in bear-resistant 
containers in a change that might set the stage for similar actions in other bear-prone areas of 
Washoe County and elsewhere along the Carson Range. 
 
The proposal by officials with the Incline Village General Improvement District comes during a 
summer of mounting problems posed by garbage-raiding black bears and a rising outcry from 
residents who insist too many bears are being killed as a result. 
 
Washoe County commissioners canceled a scheduled Tuesday discussion on bears and 
possible future changes in trash management policy to await the result of a proposal to be 
considered by Incline officials in September. 
 
The idea is to minimize human-bear conflicts caused by bears attracted to carelessly handled 
trash, said Joe Pomroy, public works director for the upscale north Lake Tahoe community. 
 
“If this is the way to reduce those conflicts, that’s what we would want,” Pomroy said.   
 
On Sept. 25, representatives of Waste Management Inc., are scheduled to appear before the 
Incline district’s Board of Trustees with a proposal that would provide all of the community’s 
4,200 single-family homes with bear-resistant trash containers. 
 
Use of the portable plastic trash carts, reinforced with metal at the top to prevent access by 
bears and other animals, would be required by the district, which includes Incline Village and 
Crystal Bay. The cost to Waste Management would be passed to its residential customers in the 
area with increased fees, Pomroy said. 
 
What that cost will be is yet to be determined and enacting the new system would entail a 
process taking “multiple months,” he said. The need to prevent easy access to trash by bears is 
clear, said Jim Hammerel, a newly seated trustee who campaigned on the need to address 
worsening urban bear issues at Incline. 
 
“I think the vast majority of our residents see this as something that’s way overdue,” Hammerel 
said. “People talk about bear problems. It’s not a bear problem, it’s a human problem. The bears 
are here because people are irresponsible with their trash.” 
 
 
 
 
BY THE NUMBERS 
Total human-bear conflicts in 2012: 237 
Washoe County/Incline Village: 22 percent 
Other parts of Washoe County: 55 percent 
Douglas County: 16 percent 
Carson City: 7 percent 
Source: Nevada Department of Wildlife 

2



1

wflores
Typewritten Text
DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 15



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
EPIDEMIOLOGY AND PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS DIVISION 

September 18, 2013 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Members, Washoe County District Board of Health 

From: Randall L. Todd, DrPH 
Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness (EPHP) Director 

Subject: Report to the District Board of Health, September 2013 

Communicable Disease -
Pertussis 

Public Health . , ... ,' .,,., 

As noted last month there is an ongoing statewide increase in pertussis cases. Another cluster of four 
probable cases has been identified along with a significant number of contacts in school and daycare. 
Staff are experimenting with the use of a robo-calling service through Survey Monkey as a more efficient 
means of following up with contacts and detennining the status of medical visits and prophylaxis. 

Suspect Mumps 
A cluster of3 suspected mumps cases have been reported among a group of young adults who had been 
previously vaccinated. Staff are working with our infectious disease consultant to order appropriate lab 
tests to either confinn the diagnosis of mumps or to identify an alternative etiology consistent with their 
symptoms. 

Public Health Preparedness -
State Site Visit 
PHP staff participated in a site visit with Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health PHP program 
staff in a review of both the CDC and ASPR year-end progress report. Much progress was made in the 
past fiscal/grant year on program requirements. State PHP program seemed pleased with the results and 
only had clarifying questions about some grant activities. 

Collaboration 
PHP staff participated in a collaborative effort between PHP, MRC, Sparks Fire and the Sparks Home 
Depot to provide preparedness outreach to customers during their Saturday Kids Workshop event. 

PHP staff is collaborating with Washoe County Emergency Management to bring Kelly Burke as a 
speaker for the Public Infonnation I Public Warning Taskforce Conference on November 21. This 
presentation will focus on the significance of communication in effectively managing a crisis and in 
influencing perceptions. Mr. Burke will also be providing a smaller personalized training to identified 
WCI-JD staff who work with the media frequently. Mr. Burke has previously trained staff both at the State 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET I P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-6190 FAX(775) 325-8130 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

1

wflores
Typewritten Text
DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.A 



level and here in Washoe County. He is highly respected in his field and is often utilized to train senior 
staff at the CDC and federal cabinet level personnel. 

PHP staff presented to Reno Access Advisory Committee on the progress of the Northern Nevada Access 
and Functional Needs Workgroup over the past year and on current projects, such as updating the WCHD 
Public Information and Communication (PIC) plan. 

PHP staff has received MOUs from both Sparks Fire Department and Saint Mary's Regional Medical 
Center to become Private POD Partners. These agreements are awaiting signature by the District Health 
Officer. These two new partners, along with the other four Private POD Pmtners (Nevada Energy, Circus 
Circus, REMSA, and Renown) will pull more than 50,000 individuals away from Health District Public 
POD operations in the event of a public health emergency. Both Reno Fire and Truckee Meadows Fire 
are in the process of reviewing MOUs as well. 

PHP, CCHS and State EMS staff are collaborating to train approximately 300 Reno, Sparks and Truckee 
Meadows firefighters/EMTs in the administration of vaccines in the event of a public health emergency. 
Trainings will take place in late September and early October. 

PHP staff participated in the Regional Training and Exercise Planning Workshop (TEPW) and brought the 
information to the State Health TEPW. TEPW workshops are an important mechanism to ensure that 
various agencies with requirements to conduct exercises coordinate their eff01ts for greater efficiency. 

Medical Reserve Corps (MRC) 
MRC Volunteers continue to be utilized by the immunization program and in vital statistics to help 
patrons needing assistance in filling out the required forms, and needing directions to other Health District 
pro 6>rams and services. 

MRC volunteers were instrumental in helping with registering over I 00 children in a Child ID Program 
held during two separate community wide venues. 

MRC Volunteer assistance was also present for a blood drawing activity at the Stead area Job Corps 
Program. 

The MRC Program Coordinator was a pmticipant and the MC for the training conference "Health Care: A 
Diversity & Inclusion Mandate" sponsored by the N01them Nevada Human Resources Association. 

Leadership Development 
PHP Staff member Christina Conti will graduate from the Chamber Leadership Reno Sparks program this 
month. This is a 9-month program where Christina represented the Health District at monthly workshops. 
During the Leadership project, the class designed and rebuilt an accessible playground for the preschool 
children of Marvin Picollo School. 

Randall L. Todd, DrPH, Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness Director 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET I P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-6190 FAX (775) 325-8130 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

2



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER 

 
 
 
DATE:  September 26, 2013 
 
TO:  District Board of Health Members 
 
FROM: Steve Kutz, RN, MPH, Division Director 

Community and Clinical Health Services 
(775) 328-3759 skutz@washoecounty.us 

 
SUBJECT: Community and Clinical Health Services (CCHS) Division Report,  
  September 2013 District Board of Health Meeting 
 

1. Divisional Update  
2. Program Reports 

 
1. Divisional Update –  

a. Affordable Care Act – The CCHS Division Director continues work on executing 
contracts with three qualified health plans (QHPs) on the Nevada Silver State 
Exchange, the insurance plans that will insure Nevadans as part of the 
Affordable Care Act (ACA). He also is working on designation as an Essential 
Community Provider (ECP) for the plans. QHPs are building their provider 
networks, and must ensure that they have a sufficient number of providers that 
serve predominately low-income, medically underserved individuals. These 
providers are considered ECPs. As a reminder, contracts with the QHPs as well 
as other health plans that are seen in CCHS programs are expected to improve 
reimbursement and revenue. Management will also be working with staff to better 
be able to provide information to clients so that they can enroll in a QHP.  

 
b. School Based Health Centers (SBHC) – CCHS management and staff recently 

met with staff from the Community Health Alliance (merged HAWC and St Mary’s 
Foundation programs) and the Washoe County School District to discuss SBHC, 
with respect to potential concerns surrounding sexual and reproductive health. 
To date a feasibility study has been conducted and the school board supports the 
project. Current plans are for parents and guardians to be given a consent with 
options to include/exclude various types of services.  SBHC services will include 
primary care, mental and dental care services, which are desperately needed in 
the more at-risk schools. The current plan involves a pilot SBHC at Wooster High 
School through the use of a mobile medical van, providing services to Wooster 
students, and those from the feeder schools. CHA and WCSD stated that CCHS 
staff with expertise in sexual and reproductive health would likely be invited to a 

1

wflores
Typewritten Text
DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.B



September 26, 2013 
CCHS Division Report 
Page 2 of 4 

meeting with the parent advisory board for this project. Staff and management 
are excited about this project, as it will benefit the students and their families, 
allowing for students to be able to better focus on school. 

 
c. Data/Metrics –  

 

 

 
 

 
Changes in data can be attributed to a number of factors – fluctuations in community 
demand, changes in staffing and changes in scope of work/grant deliverables, resulting in a 
reduction of direct services available.  
 
2. Program  Reports – Outcomes and Activities 

a. Sexual Health – Staff continues to work diligently to improve data collection and 
submission processes for the STD and HIV programs.  Improved collaboration 
between the Nevada State Division of Public and Behavioral Health (DPBH), 
formerly the Nevada State Health Division, and the WCHD to improve data 
quality are still in progress, with staff reporting increased efficiency and quality. 
 

b. Immunizations – With influenza season quickly approaching, the program is 
prepared to administer a variety of vaccines, including a new quadrivalent 
presentation. The Immunization Program Coordinator, Lynnie Shore, is educating 
staff on the various presentations, responding to media requests for information, 
and ensuring adequate supplies of all vaccine types. Becky Koster is preparing 
for the fourth year of School Located Vaccination Clinics at approximately 50 
schools for the 2013/2014 school year. This is an ongoing partnership with 
Immunize Nevada, the Washoe County School District and new this year, 
volunteers from the UNR School of Community Health Sciences. In addition to 

127 245

1463

273
579

2687

0

1000

2000

3000

MCAH STD IZ TB FP Total

Number of Visits by Program, August 2012 
and August 2013

Aug‐12

Aug‐13

2



September 26, 2013 
CCHS Division Report 
Page 3 of 4 

influenza immunizations, students will also be offered Tdap to assure protection 
against vaccine preventable diseases, particularly pertussis in light of the 
emerging epidemic in Nevada.  
 
Through a partnership with Public Health Preparedness and the area fire 
districts, Ms. Shore will train local EMTs and paramedics to successfully 
administer influenza vaccinations as a training exercise for future Point of 
Distribution (POD) events. A series of classes will be held in October to increase 
their knowledge and skills regarding the multiple presentations, indications for 
use, and risks for all population groups.  
 
The HL7 connection between the Health District’s EMR system, Insight,  and 
Nevada WebIZ is functioning successfully, and staff is now conducting quality 
assurance activities to ensure accurate data entry and inventory levels. 

 
c. Tuberculosis Prevention and Control Program – Staff continues work on two 

ongoing contact investigations. The TB program received assistance with the 
cost of the Quantiferon test (QFT) through Qiagen, Inc., the testing manufacturer. 
This reduced the operating expenses for testing with both of these investigations. 
The University of California, San Diego has offered to include the TB Program in 
a research study on videophone direct observed therapy which offers secure 
servers and applications to ensure HIPAA compliance, and free phones for 
clients. Staff are working with administration to obtain approvals to participate in 
this study. This project will benefit the program and the clients, as mobile 
technology solutions for direct observed therapy are an ongoing challenge.   

 
d. Family Planning/Teen Health Mall – The Title X 2012 Corrective Action Plan 

was closed on September 11, 2013.  All corrections were met, and staff is in the 
process of initiating the perpetual inventory system. Once this system has been 
fully implemented the staff will update Region IX.   

 
e. Chronic Disease Prevention Program – On September 12, 2013, program staff 

presented at the Nevada Public Health Association Conference on “Engaging 
Non-Traditional Partners: Improving Public Health Through Policy, Systems, and 
Environmental Change at the Local Level”. The 5th Annual Obesity Forum was 
held on September 19, 2013 at UNR. New this year in conjunction with the 
Obesity Forum, are Healthy Living Week activities, including Parent Night at the 
Boys & Girls Club, and a screening of Weight of the Nation at UNR.   

 
f. Maternal, Child and Adolescent Health (MCAH) – The DPBH has granted 

authority to the Health District to conduct Fetal Infant Mortality Review (FIMR) 

3



September 26, 2013 
CCHS Division Report 
Page 4 of 4 

activities in Washoe County.  The goal of FIMR program is to enhance the well-
being of women, infants and families by improving community resources and 
health delivery systems.  The MCAH program is currently developing an 
implementation plan for this program, which will identify and addresses health 
concerns preceding fetal and infant deaths. A press release on FIMR activities 
will soon be released. The Pregnancy Connection program continues to meet 
grant deliverables and high risk home visitation referrals continue to be received. 

 
 
 

4



Washoe County Health District 

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2434 FAX (775) 328-6176 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

 
DATE:  September 13, 2013 
 
TO:  District Board of Health Members 
 
FROM:  Robert O. Sack, Division Director, Environmental Health Services (EHS) 
 
SUBJECT: Environmental Health Services Division Report for September 2013 
 
 
Food Program 

 
• Staff approved the first ‘Train the Trainer’ course in approximately 10 years.  Sandi Marcell’s 

Train the Trainer course is for those wishing to become Certified Food Protection 
Instructors.   

 
Vector-Borne Disease Program 

 
• On September 4, over 700 acres were treated via the final aerial helicopter application.  

West Nile virus is still with us as two more positive samples were found in the Double 
Diamond area the first week of September. This gives us a total of ten samples this summer 
season.  Upon discovery of these positive mosquito samples, staff began fogging the areas 
of Damonte Ranch, Rosewood Lakes, and Bella Vista Ranch.  This week the Double 
Diamond and South Meadows areas were fogged and iIncreased adult activity was reported 
by staff at Lazy 5 Regional Park.  Additional fogging treatments are planned the week of 
September 16.  We need colder weather and a frost to get us out of this virus transmission 
zone.  

 
• The public health interns started back to school and their part-time schedule is still allowing 

the Program to continue with catch basin sampling and treatment activities.  The interns are 
sampling hundreds of mosquito larvae in catch basins in Caughlin Ranch, Northwest Reno, 
Reno High School vicinity, and Edison / Mill Street areas.  One of the positive samples 
collected at the Damonte Ranch in July this year is the same mosquito type found in these 
catch basins.  Over 6,700 catch basins have been sampled and treated this season. 

 
• Dr. Scott Berhardt of Utah State University contacted the Vector-Borne Diseases Program 

(VBDP) to collect a specific flea for a population genetics study at the CDC Plague Branch 
in Fort Collins, Colorado.  Over the past several weeks, staff trapped ground squirrels and 
collected the requested Oropsylla montana flea that is common in Washoe County and a 
competent vector of plague.  So far over 100 O. montana fleas have been collected for the 
study.  VBDP staff plans one additional day of trapping at Sand Harbor the week of 
September 16. 

 
• Building permits have picked up in the past several weeks.  Staff has been busy inspecting 

project sites requiring our design standards and making certain contractors comply.  So far 
this year, 35 projects have been signed off. 
 

Agenda Item No. 17.C. 

1

wflores
Rectangle

wflores
Typewritten Text
DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.C



Division Director’s Report – Environmental Health Services  
September 17, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 
 
Waste Management Program 

 
• HR began recruitment for the Licensed Engineer position. 

 
EHS 2013 Inspections 
The numbers listed below do not represent all programs and inspections conducted by staff in EHS.   

 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE JULY AUG YTD 
Child Care 15 9 11 6 15 19 18 26 119 
Complaints 144 90 149 120 137 78 115 109 942 
Food 239 404 438 383 378 365 397 412 3,016 
General * 103 62 109 83 217 170 225 240 1,209 
Plans (Comm. Food/Pools/Spas) 9 11 11 19 10 6 13  7 86 
Plans (Residential Septic) 18 15 19 45 36 44 19 41 237 
Wells 4 13 4 14 0 15 14 20 84 
Waste Management 8 17 8 18 9 16 11 10 97 

  TOTAL 540 621 749 688 802 713 812 865 5,790 
*General Inspections Include:  Invasive Body Decorations; Mobile Homes/RVs; Public Accommodations; 
Pools; Spas; RV Dump stations; and Sewage/Wastewater Pumping. 
 

 
 
 

Robert O. Sack, Division Director 
Environmental Health Services Division 

2



Health inspectors keep Sparks Rib Cook-off safe 

Aug. 31, 2013   |  RGJ 

Health inspection of Best in the West Nugget Rib C...: We follow Jim English, environmental health supervisor for the 
Washoe County Health District, as he inspects Chicago BBQ Co. at the 2013 Best in the West Nugget Rib Cook-off. 
Chicago BBQ was the 2012 winner of the food festival. Yun Long/RGJ Media 

 

Washoe County environmental health specialist supervisor James English, left, checks the temperature of the ribs at the 
Checkered Pig booth on Wednesday. Checkered Pig employee Ronnie Foster waits to get back to work. / Tim Dunn/RGJ 

If you go 

WHAT: Twenty-four rib vendors compete for first place at the Best in the West Nugget Rib Cook-off, with dozens more 
selling arts and crafts, other food and beverages  
WHEN: 11 a.m. to 9 p.m. today through Sunday; 11 a.m. to 5 p.m. Monday  
WHERE: Victorian Square, Sparks  
DETAILS:  www.nuggetribcookoff.com  
Click on “Our Video Picks” to watch a video about the process of inspecting the Nugget Rib Cook-off. 

Days before the first person ever takes a bite of a pork rib during the Best in the West Nugget Rib Cook-off, the Washoe 
County Health District has inspected every inch of the food festival. 

Eighteen health district employees have volunteered to work during the event, staffing it around the clock as ribs cook 
overnight. 

Inspectors have been working at Victorian Square since Sunday checking booth construction, water lines, refrigeration 
and proper food storage for the 24 rib booths and the about 80 other food and beverage vendors. 

“These facilities are so large,” said Jim English, an environmental health supervisor with Washoe County. “They’re 
producing as much food as most of the restaurants in town on any given day. So therefore, we make sure they meet our 
standards prior to doing any food prep whatsoever.” 

In the 25 years of the event, no major foodborne illnesses have been reported, English said. 

Booths in violation are issued a correction notice. Inspectors have shut down rib vendors in previous years because of 
cross-contamination or temperature issues. They opened a few hours later after addressing the issue. 

As of Wednesday, no major violations had been reported for the year. 

3

http://www.nuggetribcookoff.com/


How it works 

Each booth is considered a temporary restaurant and treated as such by inspectors. Opening inspections take about 15 
to 20 minutes each. 

The 24 rib booths will be inspected about three to five times a day during the festival. Criteria include overall cleanliness, 
temperature control and food storage. 

“Our key concerns are refrigeration and hot holding,” English said. “... If food isn’t maintained at the proper 
temperatures, that is what causes foodborne illnesses.” 

Bacteria like to grow within 70 to 120 degrees, he said. So inspectors check to make sure hot foods are held above 135 
degrees, while cold items are stored below 40 degrees. 

Since the meat has hit the smokers on Tuesday, inspectors work at all hours of the day to check the food safety. Because 
of the nature of the event, food prep, cooking and cooling occur overnight. 

“Most of the cooking processes is a slow cooking process where it takes 10 to 18 hours to cook the food product,” 
English said. “So, they have to start a minimum full day ahead, otherwise, they wouldn’t have product to serve 
tomorrow.” 

What they look for 

Inspectors are looking for correct cooking and cooling temperature of food products, supplies stored off the ground and 
issues regarding refrigeration, electrical and power. 

More than one dozen refrigeration trucks will house the meat and other food items throughout the event, and each one 
is constantly inspected. 

John Ascuaga’s Nugget also is required to have backup units. 

“This is the only event that we allow cooking and cooling to keep up with the actual rush in business,” he said. 

About 500,000 people are expected to attend the event, which started Wednesday and ends Monday. 

During other special events, food vendors must sell or dispose of any food that was cooked during the day, no 
holdovers. All special event vendors, including those at the rib cook-off, have to cook with fresh product at each festival. 

All the other food booths, including the two dozen beverage carts, fried items and frozen treats, also are inspected. 
Inspectors will mainly be looking for overall cleanliness, food storage and use of ice scoops. Garbage and waste water 
disposal also will be inspected. 

All food vendors will have a temporary permit from health department posted. 

4



Washoe County Health District to Conduct Insecticide Fogging
Posted: Aug 20, 2013 4:56 PM PDT 
Updated: Aug 21, 2013 2:22 PM PDT 

The Washoe County Health District will conduct insecticide fogging early Wednesday morning to reduce 
mosquito activity.

The insecticide application will be conducted between U.S. Highway 395 (west), Rio Wrangler Road (East), 
Pembroke Drive (North), and Damonte Ranch Parkway (south) at 5am. 

Staff will apply a pyrethrum fog using foggers mounted in the back of pickup trucks to eradicate adult 
mosquitoes. 

Pyrethrum is a biological product produced primarily from the flowers of the Chrysanthemum plant. The Health 
District says the insecticide has low potential for systemic toxicity in mammals. 
  
West Nile was first detected in this area in 2004. 
  
Mosquito season in this area usually ends with the first killing frosts in October. 
  
Until then, area residents are reminded to take the following precautions during summer months to prevent an 
increase in the mosquito population in and around their homes: 
  
•Clear the yard area of any free-standing water that may become a mosquito breeding-ground 
  
•Wear long sleeves and long pants in mosquito prone areas 
  
•Use mosquito repellant and follow label precautions 
  
•Repair any window screens that provide entry for mosquitoes 
  
•Vaccinate horses for Western Equine Encephalitis (WEE) 
  
•Vaccinate horses for West Nile Virus (WNV). Four effective vaccines exist for horses, but vaccine development 
for humans is still underway with currently no available product in sight. 
  
•Report night-time mosquito activity to the District Health Department at 328-2434 

The Dept. of Agriculture says products containing the below active ingredients typically provide reasonably long
-lasting protection: 

• DEET (Chemical Name: N,N-diethyl-m-toluamide or N,N-diethly-3-methyl-benzamide)  
• Picaridin (KBR 3023, Chemical Name: 2-(2-hydroxyethyl)-1-piperidinecarboxylic acid 1-methylpropyl ester )  
• Oil of Lemon Eucalyptus* or PMD (Chemical Name: para-Menthane-3,8-diol) the synthesized version of oil of 
lemon eucalyptus  
• IR3535 (Chemical Name: 3-[N-Butyl-N-acetyl]-aminopropionic acid, ethyl ester) 

EPA characterizes the active ingredients DEET and Picaridin as "conventional repellents" and Oil of Lemon 
Eucalyptus, PMD, and IR3535 as "biopesticide repellents", which are derived from natural materials. For more 
information on repellent active ingredients, please visit: 
http://www.epa.gov/pesticides/health/mosquitoes/ai_insectrp.htm. 
  
For other information, visit the WCHD web site at www.washoecounty.us/health or the Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention at www.CDC.gov.

Washoe County Page Blocked

Right Now
Ely

Page 1 of 1

08/21/2013http://www.ktvn.com/story/23200418/washoe-county-health-district-to-conduct-insectici...
5

wflores
Rectangle



1

American and Rim Fires 

Wildfires are part of life in the western United States.  Although this year’s fire season began 
quietly, two fires in California that started in August significantly affected our air quality.

The American Fire near Foresthill began on Saturday, August 10 with the first impacts to our area 
seen on August 11.  The fire was located approximately 50 mile southwest of the Truckee 
Meadows.  For the next few days the weather pattern generally transported smoke in a northerly 
direction until afternoon Zephyrs brought smoke into Washoe County. Air pollution levels changed 
rapidly and Air Quality Index levels during the worst portions of the day occasionally reached 
Unhealthy levels (above 150).   

August 18 illustrated how fast air pollution levels can change when outflow wind from a 
thunderstorm pushed a wall of smoke into the Truckee Meadows.  The National Weather Service 
in Reno captured this event through a 9 second time lapse video 
(http://youtu.be/eUPdNu0nDW0).  Fine particulate matter levels increased dramatically as the 
smoke rolled into the valley.  The American Fire was fully contained on August 29 after consuming 
more than 27,000 acres.

The Rim Fire started on August 17 near Yosemite National Park approximately 100 miles south of 
the Truckee Meadows.  The fire grew quickly and produced a thick plume of smoke.  A change to 
the weather pattern shifted winds and began transporting smoke into the Truckee Meadows on 
August 22.

Single hour concentrations of fine particulate matter exceeded 200 ug/m3. Pollution levels 
changed rapidly fluctuating between the Moderate and Very Unhealthy (AQI above 200) ranges.  
As of September 10, the Rim Fire was 80 percent contained and had burned over 254,000 acres.

In response to these pollution levels, the Washoe County School District and Nevada 
Interscholastic Activities Association implemented precautionary measures to protect the student’s 
health such as indoor recesses and cancelling outdoor activities including football games. 

Director’s Report AUGUST 2013
A

ir
 Q

u
al

it
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

D
iv

is
io

n
 

W
as

ho
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

H
ea

lt
h 

D
is

tr
ic

t AIR QUALITY COMPARISON FOR AUGUST 

Air Quality Index Range # OF DAYS         
AUGUST  2013 

# OF DAYS        
AUGUST 2012 

 GOOD                                                                    0 to 50 7 14 

 MODERATE                                                        51 to 100 11 17 

 UNHEALTHY FOR SENSITIVE GROUPS       101 to 150 7 1

 UNHEALTHY                                                    151 to 200    6 0

 VERY UNHEALTHY                                         201 to 300    0 0

 TOTAL 31 31

11

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.D

wflores
Typewritten Text
DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.D

wflores
Rectangle



2

Director’s Report continued AUGUST 2013
A

ir
 Q

u
al

it
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

D
iv

is
io

n
 

W
as

ho
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

H
ea

lt
h 

D
is

tr
ic

t 

How does this wildfire episode compare with other recent events?

In June 2008, thousands of lightning strikes hit northern California which started dozens of 
large wildfires.  Smoke blanketed California and periodically blew into the Truckee Meadows.  
The table below compares three air quality parameters for the 2008 and 2013 episodes.  
Please see the notes below that address improvements to the fine particulate monitoring 
program since 2008.

20081 20132

Highest AQI value3 211 209 
Number of days (rolling 24-
hrs) when AQI was 
Unhealthy or above4

7 6 

Number of days (midnight 
to midnight) exceeding 24-
hr NAAQS5

4 7 

1. June 23 through July 31, 2008. 
2. August 11 through September 9, 2013. 
3. In 2008, this was reported as the highest rolling 24-hr period.  In 2013, this was the AQI as 
reported by AirNow for a specific hour.  AirNow’s AQI calculations are updated each hour and 
give more weight to shorter-term (less than 24-hr) concentrations. 
4. AQI above 150. 
5. EPA’s data handling convention specifies that 24-hr averages be from midnight to midnight 
for comparison to National Ambient Air Quality Standards. 

A major difference between these two events is when these fires occurred.  The 2008 event 
occurred in June/July while the 2013 event occurred in August/September.  The 2013 smoke 
event directly affected school children by cancellation of outdoor activities ranging from recess 
to high school football games.

Communication of Air Quality Information

The AQMD monitors the air continuously and provides that information each day via email, 
website, social media, and a telephone hotline.  More frequent updates are provided during 
episode such as these wildfires.  The AQMD coordinated with the National Weather Service 
and local media to provide accurate and timely information to the public.

The website and social media activity tracked closely with air pollution levels with peak activity 
occurring on August 23.  AQMD’s homepage/ourcleanair.com was the second most visited 
County page for the month of August.  The AQMD also developed an AQI vs. Activity chart 
(attached to the Director’s Report) for the WCSD.  This chart is an additional tool for the 
school district to use in their decision making process related to air pollution levels.  The NIAA 
has also developed a similar chart. 

Areas in and around the American and Rim Fires will continue to produce some amount of 
smoke until the season’s first significant rain.  As long as these fires produce smoke, there is 
a potential for that smoke to impact the Truckee Meadows. 

2



3

 Washoe County Health District                               AUGUST 2013 
 Air Quality Management Division Report

P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

A
c

ti
vi

ty
 

Monitoring:

EPA completed a three day Technical Systems Audit of the ambient air 
monitoring program.  The TSA strengthens defensibility of monitoring data by 
ensuring that the program meets Code of Federal Regulation requirements. 

Planning:

Staff will be preparing an exceptional events request to be submitted to EPA 
Region IX for the American and Rim Fire episode.  The request will be to exclude 
specific ambient air monitoring data influenced by the fires when comparing to the 
National Ambient Air Quality Standards.

Dan Inouye, Branch Chief 
Planning and Monitoring 

A
ir

 Q
u

a
lit

y 

HIGHEST AQI NUMBER BY POLLUTANT 

POLLUTANT AUGUST 2013 
YTD

for 2013 
AUGUST 2012 

Highest 
for 2012

CARBON MONOXIDE       (CO) 18 24 12 29

OZONE 8 hour                   (O3) 87 93 100 104

PARTICULATES                (PM2.5) 174 174 89 105

PARTICULATES                (PM10) 97 97 44 74

For the month of August 2013, the highest Air Quality Index (AQI) values 
reported was one hundred seventy-four (174) for PM2.5, eighty-seven (87) for 
Ozone, and ninety-seven (97) for PM10, due to the American fire and Rim fire. 
There were no exceedances of Carbon Monoxide.  There were seven (7) days 
the air quality was in the good range, eleven (11) days in the moderate range, 
seven (7) days in the Unhealthy for Sensitive Groups range, and six (6) days the 
air quality fell into the Unhealthy range.

33



4

TYPE OF PERMIT 

2013 2012

AUGUST YTD AUGUST 
ANNUAL 
TOTAL 

 Renewal of Existing Air Permits 98 967 99 1339 

 New Authorities to Construct 3 54 11 88 

 Dust Control Permits 10           
(96 acres)

85            
(785 acres)

8            
(25 acres)

105           
(1420 acres)

 Wood Stove Certificates 42 230 39 329 

 WS Dealers Affidavit of Sale 13 
  (7 replacements)

58             
(36 replacements)

3            
(2 replacements)

134           
(83 replacements)

 WS Notice of Exemptions 342 
(3 stoves removed)

5287 
(52 stoves removed)

433 
 (4 stoves removed) 

7346 
(83 stoves removed)

    

Combined Total for both:
Asbestos Assessments and Asbestos 
Demo and Removal (NESHAP) 

112 744 82 1148 

 Asbestos Assessments 97 592 - - 

Asbestos Demo and Removal 
(NESHAP) 

15 152 
-

-

 Washoe County Health District                       AUGUST 2013 
 Air Quality Management Division Report

Staff reviewed twenty-four (24) sets of plans submitted to the Reno, Sparks or 
Washoe County Building Departments to assure the activities complied with Air 
Quality requirements. 

Staff conducted thirty-six (36) stationary source renewal inspections in August 
2013. Staff also conducted inspections on asbestos removal and 
construction/dust projects. 

C
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 &
 

In
sp

e
c

ti
o

n
 A

c
ti

vi
ty

 
P

e
rm

it
ti

n
g

 A
c

ti
vi

ty
 

 

4



5

 Washoe County Health District                        AUGUST 2013 
 Air Quality Management Division Report

P
e

rm
it

ti
n

g
 &

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

vi
ty

 On August 13th and 14th, a four member panel including three members of the Permitting & 
Enforcement Staff and a member of the CCHS staff completed the interview and selection 
process to fill the vacant Air Quality Specialist II position in the Enforcement Program.  The panel 
was very pleased with the seven (7) highly qualified candidates.  In the end, Joshua Restori was 
selected as the final candidate and he has accepted the position.  Joshua comes to Washoe 
County with four (4) years of experience as an Air Quality Inspector working for Clark County 
Department of Air Quality.  His training and experience will be a great asset to the program and 
we look forward to his September 9th start date. 

The Enforcement Staff continues to be busy with asbestos abatement projects, specifically the 
final push to complete all of the school projects prior to the early start date of August 11th .  The 
Cal Neva Resort Spa & Casino began the first phase of a facility wide asbestos abatement project 
associated with a complete renovation of the property.  The facility will be closed for the next year 
while the asbestos abatement and renovation activities are completed.

On August 22nd, Air Quality Staff made a presentation on the recently amended Woodstove and 
Hydronic Heater regulations to the Association of Title Companies.  After a presentation on the 
amendments to the regulations, the group participated in a lively question and answer session.  
The response was very positive and will hopefully help to clear up any questions regarding the 
Woodstove Program.  All of the participants were very appreciative of the opportunity to put a face 
with a name. 

The U.S. EPA Office of Enforcement and Compliance Assurance made a national request for 
participants to assist with the design of the new Integrated Compliance Information System (ICIS).
The ICIS System currently provides the public with compliance data from 
Federal/State/Local/Tribal Water Pollution Control and RCRA Waste Management programs.  In 
compliance with the Congressional directive, the final phase of the system is to include air quality 
compliance and enforcement programs so that the public will have access to all environmental 
compliance data in a single location.  I volunteered to represent the Nevada Air Agencies on the 
Web Design Committee since we do input data on-line rather than through a batch submittal form 
like most larger air agencies.  I’ve been attending weekly conference calls and webinars reviewing 
the system design and functionality.  We will be Beta Testing the various modules of the new 
ICIS-AIR system from October 7, 2013 through June 2, 2014 and Validation Testing from October 
15, 2013 through May 2, 2014.  The ICIS-AIR system is projected to go into production nationally 
on September 24, 2014.  This is the final phase of a project that has been in development for no 
less than 15 years. 

Charlene Albee, Branch Chief
Permitting & Enforcement  

55



6

COMPLAINTS
   2013* 2012

AUGUST YTD AUGUST YTD
Annual
Total

Asbestos 6 19 1 13 18 

Burning 0 3 0 5 8 

Construction Dust 7 21 1 24 30 

Dust Control Permit 0 9 0 4 7 

General Dust 3 36 7 34 46 

Diesel Idling 0 1 0 4 8 

Odor 2 12 1 7 16 

Spray Painting 0 6 0 2 5 

Permit to Operate 2 13 5 38 55 

Woodstove 0 9 0 14 16 

TOTAL 20 129 15 145 209 

NOV’S AUGUST YTD AUGUST YTD
Annual
Total

Warnings 4 19 3 34 46 

Citations 4 22 4 24 40 

TOTAL 8 41 7 58 86 

 Washoe County Health District                       AUGUST 2013 
 Air Quality Management Division Report

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

vi
ty

 
 

* Discrepancies in totals between monthly reports can occur because of data entry delays. 

Notices of Violation (NOVs): 

There were eight (8) Notice of Violations (NOV’s) issued in the month of August,
2013. There were four (4) NOV Warnings and four (4) NOV Citations.

6



R
ec

om
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

fo
r 

S
ch

oo
ls

 a
n

d
 C

h
il

d
 C

ar
es

 o
n

 P
oo

r 
A

ir
 Q

u
al

it
y 

D
ay

s 
A

ir
 Q

u
al

it
y 

In
d

ex
 (

A
Q

I)
 T

ab
le

 f
or

 O
zo

n
e 

an
d

 P
M

2.
5
w

it
h

 V
is

ib
il

it
ie

s 
fo

r 
W

il
d

fi
re

 S
m

ok
e1

 

T
hi

s 
gu

id
an

ce
 w

as
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

W
as

ho
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

H
ea

lth
 D

is
tr

ic
t, 

A
ir

 Q
ua

lit
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t D

iv
is

io
n.

  
Th

e 
A

Q
I t

ab
le

 w
as

 a
da

pt
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

Sa
cr

am
en

to
 M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 A

ir 
Q

ua
lit

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t D
is

tri
ct

 “
A

ir 
Q

ua
lit

y 
G

ui
de

lin
es

 fo
r S

ch
oo

ls
.”

R
ev

is
ed

 A
ug

us
t 2

8,
 2

01
3 

 

A
ct

iv
it

y
G

oo
d=

0 
to

 5
0

(V
is

ib
il

it
y 

11
 m

il
es

 
an

d 
u

p)

M
od

er
at

e=
51

 t
o 

10
0

(6
 t

o 
10

 m
il

es
)

U
n

he
al

th
y 

fo
r 

S
en

si
ti

ve
 G

ro
u

ps
*=

10
1 

to
 1

50
(3

 t
o 

5 
m

il
es

)

U
n

he
al

th
y=

15
1 

to
 2

00
(1

.5
 t

o 
2.

75
 m

il
es

)

V
er

y 
U

n
he

al
th

y=
20

1 
to

 3
00

(1
 t

o 
1.

25
 m

il
es

)

H
az

ar
do

us
=

30
1 

to
 5

00
(l

es
s 

th
an

 1
 m

il
e)

R
ec

es
s 

(1
5 

m
in

)
N

o 
R

es
tr

ic
ti

on
s

N
o 

R
es

tr
ic

ti
on

s

M
ak

e 
in

d
oo

r 
sp

ac
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

al
l

ch
il

d
re

n
es

pe
ci

al
ly

 
th

os
e

w
it

h 
lu

ng
/h

ea
rt

 
il

ln
es

se
s

or
 w

ho
 

co
m

p
la

in
 a

bo
ut

 
di

ff
ic

ul
ty

 b
re

at
hi

ng
.

R
es

tr
ic

t 
ou

td
oo

r 
ac

ti
vi

es
 t

o 
al

l c
hi

ld
re

n
an

d 
li

m
it

 p
ro

lo
ng

ed
 

or
 h

ea
vy

 e
xe

rt
io

n.

R
es

tr
ic

t 
ou

td
oo

r 
ac

ti
vi

ti
es

 t
o 

al
l 

ch
il

d
re

n 
an

d 
li

m
it

 
in

d
oo

r 
ac

ti
vi

ti
es

 t
o 

li
gh

t 
to

 m
od

er
at

e 
ex

er
ci

se
.

K
ee

p 
ev

er
yo

n
e 

in
d

oo
rs

 a
nd

 li
m

it
 

in
d

oo
r 

ac
ti

vi
ty

 t
o 

li
gh

t 
ex

er
ci

se
.

P
.E

. (
1 

hr
)

N
o 

R
es

tr
ic

ti
on

s
N

o 
R

es
tr

ic
ti

on
s

M
ak

e 
in

d
oo

r 
sp

ac
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

al
l

ch
il

d
re

n.
  H

ig
h 

sc
h

oo
l 

st
u

de
nt

s
w

it
h 

lu
ng

/h
ea

rt
 c

on
di

ti
on

s 
sh

ou
ld

 li
m

it
 

pr
ol

on
ge

d 
or

 h
ea

vy
 

ex
er

ti
on

.

R
es

tr
ic

t 
ou

td
oo

r 
ac

ti
vi

es
 t

o 
al

l c
hi

ld
re

n
an

d 
li

m
it

 p
ro

lo
ng

ed
 

or
 h

ea
vy

 e
xe

rt
io

n.

R
es

tr
ic

t 
ou

td
oo

r 
ac

ti
vi

ti
es

 t
o 

al
l 

ch
il

d
re

n 
an

d 
li

m
it

 
in

d
oo

r 
ac

ti
vi

ti
es

 t
o 

li
gh

t 
to

 m
od

er
at

e 
ex

er
ci

se
.

K
ee

p 
ev

er
yo

n
e 

in
d

oo
rs

 a
nd

 li
m

it
 

in
d

oo
r 

ac
ti

vi
ty

 t
o 

li
gh

t 
ex

er
ci

se
.

S
ch

ed
ul

ed
 S

p
or

ti
ng

 
E

ve
nt

s
N

o 
R

es
tr

ic
ti

on
s

U
n

us
ua

ll
y 

se
ns

it
iv

e 
ch

il
d

re
n 

an
d 

hi
gh

 
sc

h
oo

l s
tu

d
en

ts
sh

ou
ld

 li
m

it
 

pr
ol

on
ge

d 
or

he
av

y
ex

er
ti

on
d

ur
in

g 
sc

he
d

ul
ed

 s
p

or
ti

ng
 

ev
en

ts
.

H
ig

h 
sc

h
oo

l s
tu

de
nt

s
w

it
h 

as
th

m
a 

or
 o

th
er

 
re

sp
ir

at
or

y 
or

 
ca

rd
io

va
sc

ul
ar

 il
ln

es
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
m

ed
ic

al
ly

 
m

an
ag

in
g 

th
ei

r 
co

nd
it

io
n.

  I
n

cr
ea

se
 

re
st

 p
er

io
ds

 a
n

d 
su

bs
ti

tu
ti

on
s 

to
 lo

w
er

 
br

ea
th

in
g 

ra
te

s.

C
on

si
de

ra
ti

on
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 g
iv

en
 t

o 
re

sc
he

du
li

ng
 o

r 
re

lo
ca

ti
ng

 t
he

 e
ve

nt
.

E
ve

nt
 s

h
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

sc
he

du
le

d 
or

 
re

lo
ca

te
d.

E
ve

nt
 s

h
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

sc
he

du
le

d 
or

 
re

lo
ca

te
d.

A
th

le
ti

c 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

an
d 

T
ra

in
in

g
(2

 t
o 

4 
hr

s)
N

o 
R

es
tr

ic
ti

on
s

U
n

us
ua

ll
y 

se
ns

it
iv

e 
ch

il
d

re
n 

an
d 

hi
gh

 
sc

h
oo

ls
tu

d
en

ts
sh

ou
ld

 li
m

it
 

pr
ol

on
ge

d 
or

 h
ea

vy
ex

er
ti

on
d

ur
in

g 
pr

ac
ti

ce
 o

r 
tr

ai
ni

ng
.

H
ig

h 
sc

h
oo

l s
tu

de
nt

s
w

it
h 

as
th

m
a 

or
 o

th
er

 
re

sp
ir

at
or

y 
or

 
ca

rd
io

va
sc

ul
ar

 il
ln

es
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
m

ed
ic

al
ly

 
m

an
ag

in
g 

th
ei

r 
co

nd
it

io
n.

  I
n

cr
ea

se
 

re
st

 p
er

io
ds

 a
n

d 
su

bs
ti

tu
ti

on
s 

to
 lo

w
er

 
br

ea
th

in
g 

ra
te

s.

A
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

ov
er

 2
 

ho
ur

s 
sh

ou
ld

 d
ec

re
as

e 
in

te
ns

it
y 

an
d 

du
ra

ti
on

.  
A

d
d 

re
st

 
br

ea
ks

 o
r 

su
bs

ti
tu

ti
on

s 
to

 lo
w

er
 

br
ea

th
in

g 
ra

te
s.

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
or

 t
ra

in
in

g 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
sc

he
d

ul
ed

 
or

 r
el

oc
at

ed
.

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
or

 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 s

h
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

sc
he

du
le

d 
or

 
re

lo
ca

te
d.

1
V

is
ib

ili
ty

 c
on

ve
rs

io
ns

 to
 A

Q
I w

er
e 

ta
ke

n 
fro

m
 “

W
ild

fir
e 

Sm
ok

e:
 A

 G
ui

de
 fo

r P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 O
ffi

ci
al

s”
 (R

ev
. J

ul
y 

20
08

 w
it

h 
20

12
 A

Q
I u

pd
at

es
) 

*C
hi

ld
re

n 
ar

e 
an

yo
ne

 f
ro

m
 I

nf
an

t t
o 

8th
 G

ra
de

.  
H

ig
h 

Sc
ho

ol
 S

tu
de

nt
s 

ar
e 

in
di

ca
te

d 
an

d 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

th
e 

pa
rt

ic
ip

an
ts

 f
or

 S
ch

ed
ul

ed
 S

po
rt

in
g 

E
ve

nt
s 

an
d 

Pr
ac

tic
e 

an
d 

T
ra

in
in

g 
ac

ti
vi

ti
es

.  
Fo

r 
ch

ild
re

n,
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
fo

r 
re

lo
ca

ti
on

 o
r 

re
sc

he
du

lin
g 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

at
 th

e 
U

nh
ea

lth
y 

fo
r 

Se
ns

it
iv

e 
G

ro
up

s 
ra

ng
e 

fo
r 

Sp
or

ti
ng

 E
ve

nt
s 

an
d 

Pr
ac

tic
e 

an
d 

T
ra

in
in

g 
ac

ti
vi

tie
s.

 

 

77



H
ow

 t
o 

us
e 

th
is

 A
Q

I T
ab

le
 

T
hi

s 
gu

id
an

ce
 w

as
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

W
as

ho
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

H
ea

lth
 D

is
tr

ic
t, 

A
ir

 Q
ua

lit
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

D
iv

is
io

n.
 

Th
e 

A
Q

I t
ab

le
 w

as
 a

da
pt

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
Sa

cr
am

en
to

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 A
ir 

Q
ua

lit
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t D

is
tri

ct
 “

A
ir 

Q
ua

lit
y 

G
ui

de
lin

es
 fo

r S
ch

oo
ls

.”
R

ev
is

ed
 A

ug
us

t 2
8,

 2
01

3 

T
he

 u
se

 o
f 

th
is

 A
Q

I 
ta

bl
e 

by
 W

as
h

oe
 C

ou
nt

y 
S

ch
oo

ls
 a

n
d 

C
hi

ld
 C

ar
e 

F
ac

il
it

ie
s 

is
 v

ol
u

nt
ar

y,
 b

ut
 is

 r
ec

om
m

en
d

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
W

as
ho

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
H

ea
lt

h 
D

is
tr

ic
t,

 A
ir

 Q
ua

li
ty

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
D

iv
is

io
n

 (
A

Q
M

D
) 

ba
se

d 
on

 t
he

 E
nv

ir
on

m
en

ta
l P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
A

ge
nc

y’
s (

E
PA

) g
ui

de
li

ne
s 

fo
r 

O
zo

n
e 

an
d 

P
M

2.
5.

   

H
ow

 t
o 

us
e 

th
is

 A
Q

I 
ta

bl
e:

 
T

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
st

ep
s 

ar
e 

an
 e

xa
m

pl
e 

si
tu

at
io

n:
 

S
te

p 
1:

C
he

ck
 th

e 
A

Q
I 

fo
re

ca
st

 f
or

 T
ue

sd
ay

 o
n 

M
on

da
y 

es
pe

ci
al

ly
 d

ur
in

g 
po

te
nt

ia
ll

y 
po

or
 a

ir
 q

ua
li

ty
 d

ay
s.

  F
or

ec
as

t A
Q

I 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 fo
un

d 
on

 A
ir

N
ow

 (
ai

rn
ow

.g
ov

).
F

or
ec

as
ts

 a
re

 a
ls

o 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

on
 o

ur
cl

ea
na

ir
.c

om
, t

he
 A

Q
I 

H
ot

li
ne

 7
85

-4
11

0,
 a

nd
 o

n 
fa

ce
bo

ok
 a

nd
 tw

it
te

r.
 

S
te

p 
2:

If
 th

e 
fo

re
ca

st
 is

 “
V

er
y 

U
nh

ea
lt

hy
”,

 f
ol

lo
w

 th
e 

gu
id

an
ce

 in
 th

e 
A

Q
I 

ta
bl

e;
 f

or
 r

ec
es

s 
an

d 
P

.E
. r

es
tr

ic
t o

ut
do

or
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
to

 a
ll

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
li

m
it

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
in

do
or

s 
to

 li
gh

t t
o 

m
od

er
at

e 
ex

er
ci

se
; S

po
rt

in
g 

ev
en

ts
, t

ra
in

in
g,

 a
nd

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
lo

ca
te

d 
or

 r
es

ch
ed

ul
ed

. 

S
te

p 
3:

O
n 

T
ue

sd
ay

,c
he

ck
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t A
Q

I 
on

 A
ir

N
ow

 b
ef

or
e 

an
 a

ct
iv

it
y 

lik
e 

re
ce

ss
, P

.E
., 

sc
he

du
le

d 
ev

en
t, 

or
 p

ra
ct

ic
e/

tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 u
se

 th
e 

A
Q

I 
ta

bl
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

. 

(O
nl

y 
d

ur
in

g 
w

il
df

ir
es

) 
S

te
p 

4:
In

 a
dd

it
io

n 
to

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t A

Q
I 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

A
ir

N
ow

, g
o 

ou
ts

id
e 

an
d 

fi
nd

 a
 p

er
m

an
en

t s
tr

uc
tu

re
 o

r 
ge

ol
og

ic
 f

ea
tu

re
 (

hi
ll

, m
ou

nt
ai

n)
 th

at
 h

as
 a

 
kn

ow
n 

di
st

an
ce

 f
ro

m
 s

ch
oo

l o
r 

ch
il

d 
ca

re
.  

Fo
r 

ex
am

pl
e,

 i
f 

th
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
or

 f
ea

tu
re

 is
 1

 m
il

e 
aw

ay
 a

nd
 it

 c
an

no
t b

e 
se

en
, w

e 
ar

e 
m

os
t l

ik
el

y 
in

 th
e 

“V
er

y 
U

nh
ea

lth
y”

or
 “

H
az

ar
do

us
”

ra
ng

es
.  

F
ol

lo
w

 th
e 

A
Q

I 
ta

bl
e 

gu
id

el
in

es
, f

or
 th

e 
ca

te
go

ry
 in

di
ca

te
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 y
ou

r 
vi

si
bi

li
ty

. 

L
im

it
at

io
ns

 o
f 

A
ir

N
ow

 
D

at
a 

fo
r 

A
ir

N
ow

 is
 s

en
t e

ve
ry

 h
ou

r 
by

 A
Q

M
D

 to
 th

e 
w

eb
si

te
 a

t t
he

 to
p 

of
 th

e 
ho

ur
.  

T
he

 A
Q

I 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

is
 d

at
a 

is
 ty

pi
ca

ll
y 

up
da

te
d 

at
 th

e 
bo

tto
m

 o
f 

th
at

 s
am

e 
ho

ur
.

T
hi

s 
la

g 
is

 a
n 

im
po

rt
an

t l
im

it
at

io
n 

an
d 

m
us

t b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 w

he
n 

de
te

rm
in

in
g 

im
po

rt
an

t h
ea

lt
h 

de
ci

si
on

s.
  C

on
di

ti
on

s 
ca

n 
ch

an
ge

 r
ap

id
ly

 d
ur

in
g 

po
or

 a
ir

 q
ua

lit
y 

da
ys

 (
w

il
df

ir
e 

sm
ok

e,
 in

ve
rs

io
ns

, 
du

st
 s

to
rm

s,
 e

tc
.)

.
G

en
er

al
ly

, i
f 

yo
u 

se
e 

or
 s

m
el

l t
he

 s
m

ok
e 

or
 d

us
t, 

st
ay

 in
do

or
s.

   
A

s 
al

w
ay

s 
w

it
h 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
, t

he
re

 c
an

 b
e 

m
al

fu
nc

ti
on

s 
an

d 
gl

it
ch

es
 th

at
 a

re
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 in
 w

hi
ch

 
ou

r 
A

Q
I 

ca
lc

ul
at

io
ns

 w
il

l b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
s 

ne
ed

ed
 b

y 
ph

on
e,

 e
m

ai
l, 

fa
ce

bo
ok

, a
nd

 tw
it

te
r.

O
zo

ne
 

O
zo

ne
 (

O
3)

 is
 a

n 
in

vi
si

bl
e 

po
llu

ta
nt

 a
nd

 a
 s

tr
on

g 
ir

ri
ta

nt
 th

at
 c

an
 c

au
se

 c
on

st
ri

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ai
rw

ay
s,

 f
or

ci
ng

 th
e 

re
sp

ir
at

or
y 

sy
st

em
 t

o 
w

or
k 

ha
rd

er
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 o
xy

ge
n.

Fo
r 

W
as

ho
e 

C
ou

nt
y,

 o
zo

ne
 is

 a
 s

um
m

er
ti

m
e,

 r
eg

io
na

l p
ol

lu
ta

nt
 in

 w
hi

ch
 a

ll
 W

as
ho

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
sc

ho
ol

s 
an

d 
ch

il
d 

ca
re

s 
w

il
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
si

m
il

ar
 le

ve
ls

.  
O

zo
ne

 u
su

al
ly

 r
ea

ch
es

 it
s 

hi
gh

es
t 

le
ve

l d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

af
te

rn
oo

n 
an

d 
ea

rl
y 

ev
en

in
g 

ho
ur

s,
 a

nd
 th

e 
hi

gh
es

t c
on

ce
nt

ra
ti

on
s 

ar
e 

of
te

n 
do

w
nw

in
d 

of
 th

e 
ur

ba
n 

ar
ea

. I
nd

o
or

 le
ve

ls
 o

f 
oz

on
e 

ar
e 

us
ua

ll
y 

le
ss

 th
an

 o
ut

do
or

 a
ir

. 

F
in

e 
P

ar
ti

cu
la

te
s 

(P
M

2.
5)

 
In

 W
as

ho
e 

C
ou

nt
y,

 f
in

e 
pa

rt
ic

ul
at

e 
(2

.5
 m

ic
ro

ns
 a

nd
 s

m
al

le
r)

 le
ve

ls
 in

 o
ut

do
or

 a
ir

 g
en

er
al

ly
 a

re
 h

ig
he

st
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
fa

ll
 a

nd
 w

in
te

r 
m

o
nt

hs
 d

ue
 to

 w
oo

ds
to

ve
 a

nd
 f

ir
ep

la
ce

 u
se

 
es

pe
ci

al
ly

 d
ur

in
g 

co
ld

 a
ir

 in
ve

rs
io

ns
.

C
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ho
 a

re
 e

xp
os

ed
 to

 fi
ne

 p
ar

ti
cl

es
 m

ay
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
re

sp
ir

at
or

y 
sy

m
pt

om
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

as
th

m
a 

sy
m

pt
om

s 
an

d 
di

ff
ic

ul
ty

 b
re

at
hi

ng
. S

m
al

l 
pa

rt
ic

le
s 

m
ay

 e
nt

er
 d

ee
p 

pa
rt

s 
of

 th
e 

lu
ng

 a
nd

 c
ro

ss
 in

to
 th

e 
bl

oo
ds

tr
ea

m
 a

nd
 c

ir
cu

la
te

 in
 th

e 
bo

dy
.

Sm
ok

e 
fr

om
 w

il
df

ir
es

 is
 p

ri
m

ar
il

y 
m

ad
e 

up
 o

f 
P

M
2.

5.
  T

h
e 

vi
si

bi
li

ty
 to

 A
Q

I 
co

n
ve

rs
io

n
 c

an
 o

n
ly

 b
e 

u
se

d 
du

ri
n

g 
w

ild
fi

re
 s

m
ok

e 
ev

en
ts

.

A
Q

I 
ve

rs
u

s 
B

ur
n 

C
od

e 
U

ni
qu

e 
to

 W
as

ho
e 

C
ou

nt
y,

 th
e 

w
in

te
rt

im
e 

B
ur

n 
C

od
es

 (
N

ov
. 1

 –
 F

eb
. 2

8)
 a

re
 is

su
ed

 e
ac

h 
m

or
ni

ng
 a

nd
 a

ft
er

no
on

 o
r 

as
 c

on
di

ti
on

s 
ch

an
ge

.  
T

he
 p

ro
gr

am
 b

eg
an

 in
 th

e 
m

id
 1

98
0s

 to
 

he
lp

 w
it

h 
pa

rt
ic

ul
at

e 
m

at
te

r 
le

ve
ls

 a
nd

 is
 s

til
l u

se
d.

T
he

 G
re

en
, Y

el
lo

w
, a

nd
 R

ed
 c

ol
or

 s
ch

em
e 

w
as

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

w
he

n 
to

 b
ur

n 
or

 n
ot

.  
B

ur
n 

C
od

e 
co

lo
rs

 a
re

 N
O

T
 A

Q
I 

co
lo

rs
.  

T
he

 A
ir

 Q
ua

li
ty

 I
nd

ex
 f

or
 P

M
2.

5 
w

as
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

E
P

A
 m

or
e 

re
ce

nt
 a

nd
 a

do
pt

ed
 it

s 
ow

n 
co

lo
r 

sc
he

m
e.

  A
 R

ed
 B

ur
n 

C
od

e 
do

es
 n

ot
 e

qu
al

 a
 r

ed
 

A
Q

I 
(U

nh
ea

lt
hy

 1
51

-2
00

) 
an

d 
a 

ye
ll

ow
 A

Q
I 

(M
od

er
at

e 
51

-1
00

) 
do

es
 n

ot
 e

qu
al

 a
 Y

el
lo

w
 B

ur
n 

C
od

e.
  B

ur
n 

C
od

es
, a

lt
ho

ug
h 

de
si

gn
ed

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 h

um
an

 h
ea

lt
h,

 a
re

 n
ot

 A
Q

Is
.

8



Washoe County Health District 
Public Health 
Pre\'Clll. Promcil~. Prntccl. 

September 19, 2013 

TO: Members District Board of Health 

FROM: Eileen Stickney 

SUBJECT: Report for September 2013 Administrative Health Services Division 

Technology Update - 2013 Accela Engage Conference Report: 

Accela, Inc. (Accela) is the vendor for Permits Plus, the application that the 
Health District and Washoe County uses for permitting and inspections and is the 
vendor for Accela Automation, the permitting software that we are looking at 
migrating to. Accela holds an annual user conference containing sessions 
showing features of current releases of their software, future feature plans, and 
sessions with government agencies showing what they are doing with their 
software. 

As we are looking at moving to Accela Automation, the sessions Steve Fisher 
focused on dealt mainly with how people are doing things in Accela Automation, 
the challenges they came across, and the innovations they came up with. Steve 
also attended hands-on training sessions with a focus on creating reports, 
configuring business logic, fee configuration, and configuring the online portal 
where constituents can apply for permits, schedule inspections, and look up 
record information. 

One session focused on a jurisdiction's use of Accela Mobile Inspector and 
mobile printing in the field, a direction that we wish to head in. The printer they 
ended up using is the one Steve found through independent research. 

Also of interest was Accela Automation's enhancements to Ad-Hoc Reporting, 
allowing users to create reports on-the-fly with various types of charts and 
graphs. 

The hands-on training sessions helped prepare me for an implementation of 
Accela Automation for both the Environmental Health Services and Air Quality 
Management divisions as well as implementing any new needs for both divisions 
when we are fully live on Accela Automation. 

Conclusion: 
This year's conference was highly useful for getting a better idea of what Accela 
Automation can do and how it may affect our current business processes. This 
will help during an Accela Automation implementation when mapping out our 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET I P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA89520 (775) 328-2400 FAX (775) 328-2279 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY ISAN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER 

1

wflores
Typewritten Text
DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.E



District Board of Health 
September 19, 2013 
Page Two 

current business processes to see how we might streamline them based on 
Accela Automation's capabilities. 

WIC Program Update: 

N b f WIG P rf . t S um ero a 1c1pan s erve d* J I 2013 - LIIV 

Women Women Women Infants Children 
Prenatal Postpartum Postpartum 0-12 1-5 Years TOTAL 

Non- Breastfeeding Months 
breastfeedinQ 

580 402 380 1,296 3,170 5,828 

It takes a full month after the last day of the reporting month for final caseload 
counts as WIG is open daily and participants have 30 days to purchase their WIG 
foods. 

A new WIG clinic site was opened in August at the Sparks Library located at 
1125 1 ih Street as a pilot. It is a partnership between the Health District and 
the Washoe County Sparks Library beginning 2 days per month and will expand 
to meet the public's needs. Anyone can call for hours and days of operation at 
(775) 328-2299. 

Administrative Health Servic 1cer 

2



DBOH AGENDA ITEM N0.17.F 

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT ~ 
Public Health 

/IJfVAOf>. 1•rr1~n1 /''""'"1~. 1•,,,1,-,.1 

TO: District Board of Health Members 

FROM: Kevin Dick 
Interim District Health Officer 

DATE: September26, 2013 

SUBJECT: September 2013 Interim District Health Officer Report 

REMSA/EMS 
I continue to participate in the EMS working group to proceed with negotiations on changes 
to the REMSA franchise agreement. I have been meeting with the City and County 
Managers for their representatives to coordinate on approaches to modernize the franchise 
agreement, and to discuss and develop possible regional EMS Oversight structures. 
Additional information is contained in the EMS I REMSA DBOH Agenda item. 

Fundamental Review 
Scopes of work were revised to provide for a final report to be presented to the Board at the 
February 27, 2014 DBOH meeting. The initial site visit of the assessment team is planned 
for October 1 ?'h and 181h with a second phase visit planned for November 1 ih to 151

h to 
provide follow-up on the self-assessment information provided to the assessment team by 
the Health District. The contract with Mr. Stefanak has been signed and a purchase order 
issued. The contract with the Public Health Foundation is on the agenda for approval under 
consent items at the September 26, 2013 DBOH meeting. 

Staffing 
An Air Quality Specialist II position was filled effective September 91

h. Recruitments are in 
progress for a Public Health Nurse II positions in CCHS, a Senior Environmental Health 
Specialist in EHS, a Licensed Engineer in EHS, an EMS Coordinator in EPHP, and a Fiscal 
Compliance Officer in AHS. These positions are being filled as a result of vacancies due to 
retirements or promotions. 

Permit Software Project 
I continue to participate in the Negotiating Team forthe regional business licensing and 
permitting software project. Accela Automation was selected as the top ranking vendor 
following the Request for Proposal process. The Negotiating Team is working on 
negotiating pricing, cost allocations across the participating jurisdictions, and potential 
funding mechanisms. 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET I P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY JS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 1 
PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER 



2 

September 26, 2013 
Interim District Health Officer Report 
Page 2 of 3 

Cross Divisional Initiatives 
ART I Quality Improvement I Process Improvement - The Accreditation Readiness Team 
(ART} has been working on development of a Quality Improvement I Process Improvement 
(QI) initiative forthe Health District. Division Directors met with Ms.Frenkel and Ms. Jordan 
on August 23rc1, and Division and Directors and Supervisor met with them on September 4 
and 18th. These sessions focused on discussion of QI, the results of the District QI survey 
conducted in August, and how to roll out and engage staff in a QI initiative focused on 
continuous improvement and implementation of recommendations that my result from the 
District Fundamental Review. The QI survey results are attached. 

Other Events and Activities 
A regularly scheduled meeting with Division Directors was held on August 281

h, and a 
meeting with Division Directors and Supervisors on September 15th. I also conduct 
individual meetings with the Division Directors on a bi-weekly schedule. 

I attended the Obesity Forum held on September 19th and provided welcoming remarks. 

I prepared and submitted a Health Officer report to the State Board of Health. The State 
Board of Health meeting scheduled for September 13th was cancelled. 

I continue to serve as President of HomeFree Nevada I EnergyFit Nevada, the not-for-profit, 
Home Performance with Energy Star Provider for the State of Nevada. 

Health District Media Contacts and Outreach 

Health District Media Contacts: August 16-September18, 2013 

DATE MEDIA REPORTER 

911712013 KTVN-CH 2 CBS - Reno Rebecca Kitchen Pertussis - Paulsen 

9/1712013 KRXl-CH21 FOX - Reno Ryan Kem Healthy Living Week - Seals 

9/16/2013 KOLO-CHB ABC - Reno Jennifer Burton Immunizations - Ulibarri 

911212013 Sparks Tribune Sarni Edge Food Policy - Wagner 

911112013 Wolf Pack Online Beau Smith Rim Fire - Schnieder 

91612013 Nevada Media Alliance Cambria Roth Rim Fire - Inouye 

91312013 UNIVISION Raul Delgado Needle Exchange - Howell 

91312013 KXJZ FM Radio - Capitol Public Radio Ky Plaston (Sacramento) Rim Fire - Inouye 

813012013 Nevada Sagebrush Alex Mosher Fire and Masks - Schnieder 

8/30/2013 KOLO-CHS ABC - Reno Terri Russell Immunizations - Ulibani/Mertz/Dickens 

8/30/2013 Reno Gazette - Journal Jeff Delong Rim Fire - Inouye 

8/30/2013 KGO Radio CH810AM Bay Area Mel Baker Rim Fire - Inouye 

812912013 KOH AM Radio ABC-Reno Monica Jay Preparedness Month - Todd 

8/2812013 Reno Gazette - Journal Yen Long Food Inspections - English 

8/27/2013 Reno Gazette - Journal Bill Driscoll Rim Fire - Ulibarri 

812612013 Sacramento Bee Peter Hecht Rim Fire - Inouye 

812612013 KRNV-CH 4 NBC - Reno Madison Courtney Remediation - Sack/Ulibarri 

812612013 UNIVISION Laura Calzada Rim Fire - Inouye 



September 26, 2013 
Interim District Health Officer Report 
Page 3of3 

S/23/2013 KOLO-CHS ABC - Reno 

S/23/2013 KNN-CH 2 CBS - Reno 

S/23/2013 Associated Press 

S/23/2013 Reno Gazette - Journal 

S/23/2014 KRNV-CH 4 NBC - Reno 

S/23/2013 KOLO-CHS ABC - Reno 

S/22/2013 UNIVISION 

S/22/2013 ABC News Radio San Francisco 

S/22/2013 KXJZ FM Radio - Capitol Public Radio 

S/22/2013 KOLO-CHS ABC - Reno 

S/22/2013 KRNV-CH 4 NBC - Reno 

S/22/2013 KUNR FM Radio - NPR Reno 

S/21/2013 KNN-CH 2 CBS - Reno 

S/21/2013 Reno Gazette - Journal 

S/21/2013 Reno Gazette - Journal 

S/19/2013 KRXl-CH21 FOX - Reno 

S/19/2013 Reno News & Review 

S/19/2013 KNN-CH 2 CBS - Reno 

S/19/2013 KRXl-CH21 FOX - Reno 

S/19/2013 Reno Gazette - Journal 

S/16/2013 Reno Gazette - Journal 

S/16/2013 KOLO-CHS ABC - Reno 

Press Releases/Media Advisories/Editorials 

9/10/2013 Press Release 

9/3/2013 Media Advisory 

S/30/2013 Media Advisory 

S/29/2013 Press Release 

S/27/2013 Media Advisory 

S/27/2013 Media Advisory 

S/23/2013 Media Advisory 

S/22/2013 Media Advisory 

S/22/2013 Media Advisory 

S/20/2013 Media Advisory 

S/20/2013 Media Advisory 

Kevin Dick 
Interim District Health Officer 

Colin Lygren 

Erin Breen 

Scott Sonner 

Jeff Delong 

Samantha Boatman 

Erin Breen 

Raul Delgado 

Anna Maria Gibson 

Ky Plaston (Sacramento) 

Chris Buci<ley 

Madison Courtney 

Will Stone 

Adam Varahahailml 

Steve limko 

Jeff Delong 

Ryan Kem 

Brian Burkhardt 

Adam Rasmussen 

Ryan Kem 

Siobahn McAndrew 

Emerson Marcus 

Chris Buckley 

PIO Ulibarri 

PIO Ulibarri 

PIO Ulibarri 

PIO Ulibarri 

PIO Ulibarri 

PIO Ulibarri 

PIO Ulibarri 

PIO Ulibarri 

PIO Ulibarri 

PIO Ulibarri 

PIO Ulibarri 

Rim Fire - Inouye 

Rim Fire - Inouye 

Rim Fire - Inouye 

Rim Fire - Inouye 

Rim Fire - Inouye 

Rim Fire-Timmons 

Mosquitos - Ulibarri 

Rim Fire - Interim Health Officer Dicl</Ulibarri 

Rim Fire - Inouye 

Rim Fire - Inouye 

Rim Fire - Inouye 

Ozone - Ulibarri/Inouye 

Fire and Masks - Ulibarri/Inouye 

Air Quality Hours - Ulibarri 

Rim Fire - Inouye 

Air Quality American Fire - Inouye 

Air Quality American Fire - Inouye 

Air Quality American Fire - Inouye 

Air Quality American Fire - Inouye 

Air Quality American Fire - Inouye 

Air Quality American Fire - Schnieder 

Air Quality American Fire - Inouye 

Healthy Living Week 

Mosquito Abatement -Aerial Larvicide 
1 Week Forecast -Air Quality
Moderate - Very Unhealthy 

Obesity Forum 

Air Quality - Very Unhealthy 

1 Week Forecast -Air Quality- Unhealthy 

1 Week Forecast - Air Quality- Very Unhealthy 

Air Quality- Very Unhealthy 

Air Quality - Unhealthy 

Mosquito Abatement - Fogging 

AQMD New Hours 

3 


	09-26-13 Agenda.doc
	09-26-13 ITEM 5
	09-26-13 ITEM 7
	09-26-13 ITEM 8.A.1.a
	09-26-13 ITEM 8.A.1.b
	09-26-13 ITEM 8.A.1.c
	09-26-13 ITEM 8.A.1.d
	09-26-13 ITEM 8.A.1.e
	09-26-13 ITEM 8.C.1
	09-26-13 ITEM 8.C.2
	09-26-13 ITEM 8.C.3
	09-26-13 ITEM 8.C.4
	09-26-13 ITEM 8.C.5
	09-26-13 ITEM 8.C.6
	09-26-13 ITEM 8.C.7
	09-26-13 ITEM 8.C.8
	09-26-13 ITEM 10
	09-26-13 ITEM 11
	09-26-13 ITEM 12
	09-26-13 ITEM 13
	09-26-13 ITEM 14
	09-26-13 ITEM 15
	09-26-13 ITEM 17.A
	09-26-13 ITEM 17.B
	09-26-13 ITEM 17.C
	09-26-13 ITEM 17.D
	09-26-13 ITEM 17.E
	09-26-13 ITEM 17.F



